
CABINET
AGENDA

Wednesday, 3 April 2019

The Jeffrey Room, The Guildhall, St. Giles 
Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE

6:00 pm

Members of the Cabinet:

Councillor: Jonathan Nunn (Leader of the Council)

Councillor: Phil Larratt (Deputy Leader)

Councillors: Mike Hallam, Tim Hadland, Stephen Hibbert, Brandon Eldred, Anna King 
and James Hill. 

Chief Executive George Candler

If you have any enquiries about this agenda please contact 
democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk or 01604 837722 

mailto:democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk


PORTFOLIOS OF CABINET MEMBERS

CABINET MEMBER TITLE

Councillor J Nunn Leader

Councillor P Larratt Deputy Leader
 

Councillor M Hallam Environment

Councillor B Eldred Finance

Councillor T Hadland Regeneration and Enterprise 

Councillor S Hibbert Housing and Wellbeing

Councillor A King Community Engagement and Safety

Councillor J Hill Planning

SPEAKING AT CABINET MEETINGS
Persons (other than Members) wishing to address Cabinet must register their intention to do so by 12 noon on the day of 
the meeting and may speak on any item on that meeting’s agenda.

Registration can be by:

Telephone: (01604) 837722
(Fax 01604 838729)

In writing: Democratic Services Manager
The Guildhall, St Giles Square, Northampton NN1 1DE
For the attention of the Democratic Services Officer

By e-mail to democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk

Only thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses, so that if speakers each take three minutes no more than ten 
speakers will be heard.  Each speaker will be allowed to speak for a maximum of three minutes at each meeting.  Speakers 
will normally be heard in the order in which they registered to speak.  However, the Chair of Cabinet may decide to depart 
from that order in the interest of hearing a greater diversity of views on an item, or hearing views on a greater number of 
items.  The Chair of Cabinet may also decide to allow a greater number of addresses and a greater time slot subject still to 
the maximum three minutes per address for such addresses for items of special public interest.

Members who wish to address Cabinet shall notify the Chair prior to the commencement of the meeting and may speak on 
any item on that meeting’s agenda.  A maximum of thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses by Members unless 
the Chair exercises discretion to allow longer.  The time these addresses take will not count towards the thirty minute period 
referred to above so as to prejudice any other persons who have registered their wish to speak.

KEY DECISIONS
  denotes the issue is a ‘Key’ decision: 

 Any decision in relation to the Executive function* which results in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the 
making of saving which are significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 
decision relates. For these purpose the minimum financial threshold will be £250,000;  

 Where decisions are not likely to involve significant expenditure or savings but nevertheless are likely to be significant 
in terms of their effects on communities in two or more wards or electoral divisions; and

 For the purpose of interpretation a decision, which is ancillary or incidental to a Key decision, which had been 
previously taken by or on behalf of the Council shall not of itself be further deemed to be significant for the purpose of 
the definition.

mailto:democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk


NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held:
in The Jeffrey Room, The Guildhall, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 

1DE
on Wednesday, 3 April 2019

at 6:00 pm.
George Candler
Chief Executive 

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES  

2. MINUTES  

3. INTENTION TO HOLD PART OF THE MEETING IN PRIVATE IF NECESSARY  

4. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES  

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

6. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES  

7. UPTON COUNTRY PARK - APPOINTMENT OF MAIN CONTRACTOR  
(Copy herewith)

8. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME  
(Copy herewith)

9. LOCAL PLAN  
(Copy herewith)

10. CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL  
(Copy herewith)

11. REDUCING THE USE AND COST OF TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION  
(Copy herewith)

12. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  
THE CHAIR TO MOVE:
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE REMAINDER OF THE 
MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO 
THEM OF SUCH CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS LISTED AGAINST 
SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH 
OF SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”



 

13. SIXFIELDS - UPDATE OF THE JUDGEMENT AND 
ENFORCEMENT ISSUES  
(Copy herein)

(5)

SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA
 

 Exempted Under Schedule 
12A of L.Govt Act 1972
Para No:-



1
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 13 March 2019

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

Wednesday, 13 March 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Nunn (Chair); Councillor Larratt (Deputy Chair); Councillors 
Eldred, Hadland, Hallam, Hibbert, Hill and King

1. APOLOGIES
There were none.

2. MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 20th February 2019 were agreed and signed by the 
Leader.

3. INTENTION TO HOLD PART OF THE MEETING IN PRIVATE IF NECESSARY
The Leader explained that Item 11 (Sixfields – Update of the Judgement and Enforcement 
Issues) had been exempted under schedule 12A, Part 1, (3) of the Local Government Act 
1972.  A challenge to this had been received from the press, and would be discussed under 
Item 10.

4. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES
There were none.

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were none.

6. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
There were no issues arising from Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

7. BUDGET MONITORING  - PERIOD 10
Councillor Eldred as the relevant Cabinet Member submitted a report and drew Members’ 
attention to the Key Financial Indicators at section 3.2.  Homelessness, which accounted for 
the majority of the overspend had been addressed in next year’s budget.

Councillor Birch asked about the impact of the overspend on next year’s budget.  Councillor 
Eldred advised that this was being met from reserves, so the budget was not affected.

RESOLVED:

2.1 Cabinet noted the contents of the report and noted that future reports will set out the 
actions being taken by Corporate Management Board to address issues arising.

2.2 Cabinet noted the capital appraisals approved under delegation as set out in 
Appendix 1.

8. CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY
Councillor Nunn as the relevant Cabinet Member submitted a report outlining the proposed 
communications strategy.

Councillor Birch queried whether the strategy worked for opposition Councillors, since they 
1

Agenda Item 2



2
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 13 March 2019

did not have a communications team to celebrate their achievements.

Following some discussion, it was noted that the work of the communications team was 
intended to strengthen the reputation of the Council as a whole, not to promote individual 
Councillors.

RESOLVED:

2.1 Cabinet approved the Communications Strategy 2019-20.

9. NORTHANTS WASTE PARTNERSHIP - MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
Councillor Hallam as the relevant Cabinet Member submitted a report providing an updated 
and revised version of the Northamptonshire Waste Partnership Memorandum of 
Understanding.

RESOLVED:
 
2.1 Cabinet agreed to the adoption of the updated and revised Memorandum of 

Understanding relating to membership of the Northamptonshire Waste Partnership. 

2.2 Cabinet delegated to the Cabinet Member for the Environment the authority to sign the 
amended MoU. 

10. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
The Borough Secretary reported that he had received a document from the press which 
challenged the decision to hold Item 11 in private.  He pointed out that NBC discussed items 
in public wherever possible.  However in this instance a verbal update was being given to 
Cabinet which, if in the public domain, would likely result in legal privilege issues.

In answer to a question from the Leader, the Borough Secretary confirmed that there had 
been no pressure from any Member to discuss this item in private.  It had been an officer 
decision, based on legal privilege issues.

The Leader moved that the public and Press be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
on the grounds that there was likely to be disclosure to them of such categories of exempt 
information as defined by Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 as listed against 
such items of business by reference to the appropriate paragraph of Schedule 12A to such 
Act.

The Motion was Carried.

11. SIXFIELDS - UPDATE OF THE JUDGEMENT AND ENFORCEMENT ISSUES
This item was considered in private.

The meeting concluded at 6.50 pm

2



 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Service Area: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Members:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
3rd April 2019 
 
YES 
 
YES 
 
NO 
 
Economy, Assets and Culture.  
 
Cllr. Tim Hadland, Cllr. Mike Hallam 
 
Upton & Hunsbury Meadows 

 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet on the Upton Country Park 

project work to date and the tender process that will be used to select the 
preferred contractor  
 

1.2 To seek approval to appoint the main construction contractor for the Upton 
Country Park project. 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
It is recommended that: 
 
2.1 Cabinet delegates authority to the Head of Economy, Assets and Culture, in 

consultation with the Borough Secretary, the Head of Customers and 
Communities and the Cabinet Members for Regeneration and Environment to 
finalise the contract terms and to appoint the main construction contractor for 
the Upton Country Park project. 
 

2.2 Cabinet delegates authority to the Head of Economy, Assets and Culture, in 
consultation with the Borough Secretary, the Head of Customers and 
Communities, and the Cabinet Members for Regeneration and Environment to 
undertake any further land acquisitions, transfers of land, easements etc 

Report Title 
 

Upton Country Park – Appointment of main contractor 

Appendices 0 
 
 

3

Agenda Item 7



required in order enable the delivery of the scheme as long as no additional 
funding is required. 

 
3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1 Upton Country Park is identified as a key element of the overall planned 

sustainable urban extension of South West Northamptonshire.  
 

3.1.2 The objectives of Upton Country Park are to: 
 

- Provide a gateway to the wider countryside and create a link between the urban 
area and the countryside 

- Provide an attractive setting for adjoining development 
- Provide leisure routes with good connections to the surrounding area 
- Conserve and enhance biodiversity 
- Maintain its agricultural use 
- Promote environmental education 
- Provide a range of formal and informal recreation activities 

 
3.1.3 Upton Country Park is divided into two phases made up of approximately 166 

hectares of land.  
 

3.1.4 Phase 1 was delivered in 2008 and consists of approximately 38.5ha. The 
area includes the Elgar Centre (Community Centre and Changing Rooms) 
plus car parking, Sustainable Urban Drainage System including ponds and 
ditches, playing fields for 5 Football pitches and a cricket square, a bat barn, 
footbridges and associated access footways and footpaths, bins, benches, 
newly planted trees, a woodland and an area of grazed grassland. These 
works were funded through Section 106 developer contributions. 
 

3.1.5 Phase 2 consists of approximately 127.2ha. The vast majority of this land is 
grazing land with some arable, but also includes 2 lakes making up 9.5ha.  
The area has the River Nene running through the centre west to east, and the 
Western Bypass dissecting the area North to South.  It runs from Upton Mill 
Farm to the edge of the village of Kislingbury.  Section 106 monies have now 
been received from surrounding developments to enable this second phase to 
be delivered. These funds were agreed by the Section 106 board on 06/03/19. 

  
3.1.6 The Upton Country Park Masterplan was refreshed in 2016 after land from 

Homes England (previously known as Homes and Communities Agency) was 
transferred to NBC. This enabled a review of documents such as planning 
policies and planning applications, changes to land use, and changes to 
access arrangements to be incorporated into the designs and delivery strategy 
for the scheme.  
 

3.1.7 The planned works will involve the construction of approximately 2,400m of 
new footway/cycleway, approx. 4,400m2 of leisure and hardstanding areas, 
new fencing, gates, bridges, boardwalks, a viewing platform, signage and 
woodland, wetland and associated planting. 
 

4



3.1.8 A maintenance allowance for 2019/20 and 2020/21 has been agreed with the 
Environmental Services team. Maintenance for future years is not included 
within the financial modelling, this will come from future year Section 106 
payments. 

 
3.1.9 Tenders for the works to Upton Country Park will be returned to the Council on 

29 March 2019. A tender analysis and evaluation process will be undertaken 
to ensure compliance with the Council’s detailed requirements both from a 
technical and financial perspective. 
 

3.1.10 Potential works that will need to take place in a future phase have also been 
identified. These include the construction of a car park and toilet facilities for 
the new country park. Demand for these facilities will be evaluated once 
enough future Section 106 funding has been received and this work then 
taken forwards. 

 
3.2 Issues 
 
3.2.1 This project has a very tight critical path. This is because the window for 

carrying out the works is restrictive, with work not able to commence until the 
lambing period is over in May, and works being reliant on no flooding of the 
reservoirs. If the contract is not awarded and work started as soon as is 
practical it is probable that delivery will not be completed this year, and work 
will have to be suspended during the winter months and recommenced next 
year. This will have a significant impact on costs. 

 
3.3 Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 Cabinet could choose not to approve the recommendations of this report and 

wait until the tender evaluation has been carried out before recommending the 
appointment of a contractor. This option would delay the start on site, with the 
impact being that the work would have to be spread over 2 years with an 
inevitable increase in costs. The project has been costed against the available 
Section 106 allocations, and any increase in costs will require value 
engineering to be undertaken. This option is not recommended.  
 

3.3.2 Cabinet could choose to bring the project to a close and only continue to 
maintain the areas in the phases that have already been completed. This 
would result in the eventual loss of Section 106 funding, as the funding is 
required to be spent on this specific project and the maintenance alone would 
not be able to use the available funding, resulting in over £2 million needing to 
be returned to the developers. This option is not recommended. 
 

3.3.3 Cabinet could approve the recommendation to grant delegated authority to 
approve the appointment of the main contractor and proceed with the project. 
This option is recommended to ensure that the scheme is delivered in the 
current year, and that the Section 106 funding contributed by developers is 
spent on the schemes that it was intended for. 

 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

5



 
4.1.1 This project delivers against the following policies: West Northamptonshire 

Joint Core Strategy (2014), the Green Infrastructure Plan, A Green 
Infrastructure toolkit for Northampton (2015) and the Nene Valley West Green 
Infrastructure Strategic Masterplan 2014. 

 
4.2 Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1 The funding for this scheme is made up of Section 106 contributions as 

agreed by the Section 106 board 
 
4.2.2 There are several financial risks associated with the project relating to both 

capital and revenue expenditure. They are identified in the following 
paragraphs. 
 

4.2.3 At this stage the project construction costs are estimates and these will not be 
firmed up until tenders are received. Even after this stage there is an inherent 
amount of risk as with any capital scheme. There has been a sensible 
contingency placed on the scheme and it is intended that cost pressures 
above the contingencies will be met through Value Engineering. 
 

4.2.4 There will be an ongoing revenue cost related to maintenance of the area 
once the scheme is completed. Allowances for this have been made within the 
project budget. 

 
4.3 Legal 

 
4.3.1 The works contract is being tendered in accordance with the Council’s 

Contract Procedure Rules and external legal advice has been sought to 
provide construction law advice and assistance. 

 
4.4 Equality and Health 
 
4.4.1 Upton Country Park will have a positive benefit to residents and the wider 

community. The scheme will introduce shared multi use surfaces through the 
area allowing users from a range of groups that were previously unable to take 
advantage of this space to do so. 
 

4.4.2 The Project will also ensure that the space is kept to specified standard 
ensuring that space is available to the public for years to come. 

 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 Public consultation was carried out as part of the consultation on the West 

Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan and the Green Infrastructure 
Plan. These included policies specifically related to the River Nene Strategic 
Corridor which this project falls under. 
 

4.5.2 Further, detailed, consultation has taken place with key stakeholders through 
the design stage including with the local fishing club, the leasehold farmer, 
Northamptonshire County Council, Natural England, Homes England, 

6



Environmental Agency, Morris Homes, internal NBC teams and Borough 
Councillors. 

 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 This project delivers under the corporate objective of ‘A clean, green and tidy 

town’ delivering further green infrastructure assets that can be used to help 
promote Northampton as a pleasant and desirable place to live. 

 
4.7 Other Implications 
 
4.7.1 N/A 
 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 River Nene Country Park – Design and Access Statement 2010 
5.2 River Nene Country Park – Planning Statement 2010 
5.3 Upton Country Park Masterplan Refresh and Delivery Strategy (2016) 
 
6. Next Steps 

 
6.1 Key dates for the next steps are as follows: 

 Appointment of contractor  April 2019 

 Start on site    May 2019 

 Targeted completion   Winter 2019 (to be agreed with contractor) 
 
Report Author – Kevin Langley  
Contact Details: klangley@northampton.gov.uk 01604 837740 
Service Areas – Economy, Assets and Culture, and Customers and 
Communities 
Heads of Service – Rick O’Farrell and Marion Goodman 

7

mailto:klangley@northampton.gov.uk


Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

CABINET REPORT

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date:

Key Decision:

Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Service Area:

Accountable Cabinet Member: 

Ward(s)

3rd April 2019

YES

YES

YES

Planning

Councillor James Hill

All

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present an updated Local Development 
Scheme to Cabinet for consideration.  

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approves the new Northampton Borough 
Local Development Scheme and brings it into immediate effect.

Report Title LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

Appendices

8

Agenda Item 8



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background

3.1.1 The Local Development Scheme (LDS) is a rolling business plan for the 
preparation of key planning policy documents that will be relevant to future 
planning decisions.  It outlines the programme and resources for completion 
and adoption of each relevant planning document.  It is a requirement of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended by Section 111 of 
the Localism Act 2011) that the Council prepares and maintains an LDS.

3.1.2 The LDS must specify:

 The local development documents which are to be development plan 
documents;

 The subject matter and geographical area to which each development 
plan document is to relate;

 Which development plan documents (if any) are to be prepared jointly 
with one or more other local planning authorities;

 Any matter or area in respect of which the authority have agreed (or 
propose to agree) to the constitution of a joint committee;

 The timetable for the preparation and revision of the development plan 
documents; and

 Such other matters as are prescribed.

3.1.3 Development Plan Documents (including, for Northampton, the Local Plan 
Part 2) must be prepared in accordance with the LDS.

3.1.4 The existing LDS covering Northampton Borough was brought into effect by 
Cabinet in February 2017 and covered the three year period to September 
2018. 

3.2 Issues

3.2.1 Local plans are subject to an examination in public (EiP) by an independent 
inspector appointed by the Secretary of State.  The purpose of the EiP is to 
examine whether or not the local plan has been prepared in accordance with 
legal and procedural requirements and whether it is sound.  One of the key 
tests of soundness (as set out in paragraph 35 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework) is that the Inspector has to consider its consistency with national 
policy, which includes whether the Local Plan has been prepared in 
accordance with the LDS.  Failure to maintain the LDS could result in the 
Local Plan Part 2 failing this test and not proceeding to adoption.  Failure to 

9



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

prepare a Local Plan as set out in the LDS could also place the Council at risk 
of a High Court challenge. 

3.2.2 Another test of soundness that has to be considered is whether or not the 
Local Plan is an appropriate strategy, taking into account reasonable 
alternatives, and based on proportionate evidence.  The LDS has been 
updated to take into account the amount of time it took to obtain appropriate 
evidence and monitoring data to ensure that the policies in the draft Local Plan 
Part 2 are soundly based on a proportionate level of evidence.

3.2.3 The updated Northampton LDS covering the period to August 2020 has been 
prepared and is attached as Appendix A to this report.  

3.2.4 By bringing the updated LDS into effect, the Council will be in a position to 
proceed with consultation on the Proposed Submission version of the Local 
Plan Part 2.  A report on the Proposed Submission version of the Local Plan 
Part 2 is elsewhere on this agenda.  Subject to Cabinet’s approval, the 
updated LDS will be brought into effect from the date of this meeting.

3.3 Choices (Options)

Option 1: Agree to the recommendation

3.3.1 If Cabinet agree to the updated Local Development Scheme and to its coming 
into effect immediately, the Council will be in a position to consult on the 
Proposed Submission version of the Local Plan Part 2 from May to June 2019.  
This should then make it possible to reach the other milestones in the LDS 
with a view to submitting the Local Plan Part 2 to the Secretary of State for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government by November 2019. 

Option 2: Do not agree to the recommendation

3.3.2 Cabinet could defer or decide not to update the LDS.  If consultation on the 
Proposed Submission version of the Local Plan Part 2 went ahead without an 
up-to-date LDS in place, the Council would run the risk that, at examination-in-
public, the plan would be found unsound because it would not be legally 
compliant.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy

4.1.1 Having an up-to-date Local Development Scheme in place will facilitate the 
delivery of the Northampton Local Plan Part 2.  The Local Plan Part 2 will 
review and update the Local Plan Saved Policies and the Central Area Action 
Plan.  An up-to-date plan will provide greater certainty and allow policies at the 
local level to address local issues and be fully compliant with up-to-date 
requirements.  Planning applications will be determined in accordance with the 

10



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

development plan, including the Local Plan Part 2, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

4.2 Resources and Risk

4.2.1 Production of the Local Development Scheme itself has no direct resource 
implications.  Clearly, the project of producing the Local Plan Part 2 has 
financial implications.  Sufficient resources are available for those activities 
scheduled in the LDS to take place in the remainder of this financial year.  
Sufficient resources have been incorporated into the budget for 2019/20 to 
cover all the remaining stages of plan preparation. 

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 The Local Plan is a statutory document and has to be prepared in accordance 
with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as amended; the Town 
and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, as 
amended; the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes 
Regulations 2004; and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 
2010.

4.3.2 It is a requirement of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as 
amended by Section 111 of the Localism Act 2011) that the Council prepares 
and maintains an LDS.  One of the tests at Public Examination is a legal 
compliance test which includes whether the Local Plan has been prepared in 
accordance with the LDS.  Failure to maintain the LDS could result in the 
Local Plan Part 2 failing the legal compliance test and not proceeding to 
adoption.  Failure to prepare a Local Plan as set out in the LDS could also 
place the Council at risk of High Court Challenge.  In addition, under Section 
15 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended by the 
Housing and Planning Act 2016) the Secretary of State now has the power to 
prepare a LDS and direct that a local planning authority bring that LDS into 
effect.

4.4 Equality and Health

4.4.1 Because it is a plan setting out the timetable for production of the Local Plan 
Part 2, the Local Development Scheme does not, of itself, have any direct 
impacts on equalities.  The Local Plan Part 2 will be subject to an Equality 
Impact Assessment.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

4.5.1 Cabinet Advisory Group – Local Plan have been advised of the production of 
the updated Local Development Scheme and its significance to the soundness 
of the Local Plan Part 2.

11



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

4.6.1 By facilitating the production of the Local Plan Part 2, the Local Development 
Scheme will help to guide all development across Northampton, achieving 
economic, social and environmental benefits.  In terms of the priorities set out 
in the Council’s Corporate Plan, the LDS, by facilitating the production of the 
Local Plan Part 2, will help to deliver a stronger economy by:

 Having a Local Plan that helps Northampton to grow and prosper
 Containing polices to address the strategy for town centre, provision of 

charging points for electric vehicles, securing quality development that 
makes a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness

4.6.2 It will also help to deliver resilient communities by:

 Facilitating the delivery of new and better homes, including affordable 
homes

4.7 Other Implications

4.7.1 There are no other implications arising directly from the updating of the Local 
Development Scheme.

5. Background Papers

5.1Northampton Local Development Scheme, February 2017, Northampton Borough 
Council https://www.northampton.gov.uk/downloads/file/8482/northampton-local-
development-scheme-february-2017 

National Planning Policy Framework, February 2019, Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--
2 

Appendix A – Northampton Local Development Scheme (April 2019)

6. Next Steps

6.1 Having the updated Local Development Scheme in place will enable the Council 
to progress with the next stage in the production of the Northampton Local Plan 
Part 2.

Peter Baguley
Head of Planning
Tel. 01604 838921

12

https://www.northampton.gov.uk/downloads/file/8482/northampton-local-development-scheme-february-2017
https://www.northampton.gov.uk/downloads/file/8482/northampton-local-development-scheme-february-2017
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2


Northampton 

Local Development Scheme

April 2019

13



Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

1

1. Introduction to the Local Development Scheme

1.1 The Local Development Scheme (LDS) is a rolling business plan for the preparation of 
key planning policy documents that will be relevant to future planning decisions.  It 
outlines the programme and resources for completion and adoption of each relevant 
planning document.  It is a requirement of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 (as amended by Section 111 of the Localism Act 2011) that the Council prepares 
and maintains an LDS.

1.2 The LDS must specify:

 The local development documents which are to be development plan 
documents;

 The subject matter and geographical area to which each development plan 
document is to relate;

 Which development plan documents (if any) are to be prepared jointly with 
one or more other local planning authorities;

 Any matter or area in respect of which the authority have agreed (or propose 
to agree) to the constitution of a joint committee;

 The timetable for the preparation and revision of the development plan 
documents; and

 Such other matters as are prescribed.

1.3 Development Plan Documents must be prepared in accordance with the LDS.

1.4 The existing LDS covering Northampton was prepared and brought into effect by 
Northampton Borough Council in February 2017 and covered the three year period 
January 2015 to September 2018.

1.5 An updated timetable covering the period to 2020 has now been prepared and is 
attached at Appendix 1.

1.6 This LDS reflects discussions regarding future partnership working that have taken 
place with Daventry District and South Northamptonshire Councils following the 
adoption of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy in December 2014. 

14



Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

2

2. What is the current development plan?

2.1 The Development Plan can comprise either a single document or a number of 
documents that set out the spatial planning strategy for the area.

2.2 For the purposes of Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
the adopted Development Plan for Northampton Borough currently comprises the 
following:

 Northampton Local Plan Saved Policies - Adopted 1997

 Northampton Central Area Action Plan - Adopted 2013

 West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan Part 1 - Adopted 2017

 Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan – Adopted 2014

 Duston Neighbourhood Plan – Made December 2015

 Growing Together Neighbourhood Plan – Made April 2017

 Spring Boroughs Neighbourhood Plan – Made April 2016

2.3 The Northampton Local Plan was adopted in 1997 and a number of its policies were 
saved in 2007 to ensure that they remained part of the development plan prior to the 
adoption of a new plan. Some of these policies have subsequently been replaced by 
the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy but a significant number of Saved 
Policies still remain (see Appendix 2 – Remaining Northampton Local Plan Saved 
Policies).

2.4 The Northampton Central Area Action Plan was adopted in January 2013.  Its 
Examination took place post-publication of the NPPF.  It provides up-to-date planning 
policies for the town centre and its surrounding area.

2.5 The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Part 1 was adopted in 
December 2014.  Its Examination took place post-publication of the NPPF.  It provides 
up-to-date planning policies for the whole of Northampton Borough as well as the 
neighbouring areas of Daventry District and South Northamptonshire.

2.6 The Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan was adopted in July 2017. 
The Plan, which was prepared by Northamptonshire County Council, sets out the 
strategy, policy and locations for minerals and waste development in the county to 
2031. 

15



Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

3

3. The future Development Plan

3.1 The Local Plan Saved Policies were adopted in 1997 which pre-dates the existing 
planning system, the NPPF and the adopted Joint Core Strategy.  This means that 
there is a need to review and update these policies. It is important to have an up to 
date plan in place to positively guide development decisions.  An up to date plan will 
also replace extant interim guidance that does not constitute a formal part of the 
Development Plan.  In addition, there is a need to consider how the Local Plan Part 2 
policies will relate to existing and future Neighbourhood Plans.  

3.2 The continuing regeneration and growth of Northampton’s Central Area coupled with 
recent planning reforms, such as the prior notification system for changes of use 
from business use to residential use, mean that it is also necessary to review the 
Central Area Action Plan’s (CAAP) policies and proposals. The Local Plan Part 2 will 
contain those policies which remain up to date and any CAAP policies which need 
updating.  Once adopted, the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 will replace the CAAP. 

3.3 The Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) states that the Local Plan  should make clear 
what is intended to happen in the area over the life of the plan, where and when this 
will occur and how it will be delivered.   Local plans should be tailored to the needs 
of each area in terms of their strategy and the policies required.  They should focus 
on the key issues that need to be addressed and be aspirational but realistic in what 
they propose.

3.4 As the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy provides up to date strategic 
policies for Northampton Borough, the main scope of the Northampton Local Plan 
Part 2 will be as follows:

 Site specific allocations including residential and employment uses;

 Detailed development management policies against which planning 
applications will be determined;

 Identification, phasing and implementation of local infrastructure (for example 
the Northampton Northern Orbital Road);

 Boundaries of retail centres;

 Historic conservation, open space and nature conservation policies and 
designations; and

 Policies Map.

3.5 The Local Plan Part 2 will cover the entire Borough of Northampton including the 
Northampton Central Area.

16



Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

4

3.6 The Local Plan Part 2 will need to be consistent and in conformity with the Joint Core 
Strategy; it will cover the period up to 2029.

Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulation Assessment

3.7 Under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the sustainability appraisal 
of development plans is mandatory.  For the development plan it is also necessary to 
conduct an environmental assessment in accordance with the requirements of the 
Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive (European Directive 2001/42/EC).  
Therefore, it is a legal requirement for Local Plans to be subject to SA and SEA 
throughout their preparation.  The requirements to carry out SA and SEA are distinct, 
although it is possible to satisfy both using a single appraisal process.  The aim of 
the process is to appraise the social, environmental and economic effects of plan 
strategies and policies and ensure that they accord with the objectives of sustainable 
development.

3.8 The SA, incorporating the SEA, will be undertaken as an integral part of preparing 
Local Plans and will help arrangements for monitoring and implementation. The SA 
process has the following five stages:

 Stage A: Setting the context and objectives, establishing the baseline and 
deciding on the scope

 Stage B: Developing and refining alternatives and assessing effects

 Stage C: Prepare the sustainability appraisal report

 Stage D: Seek representations on the sustainability appraisal report from 
consultation bodies and the public

 Stage E: Post adoption reporting and monitoring 

3.9 Under the EU Habitats Directive (92/43/EEC) a Habitats Regulations Assessment is 
required for any proposed plan or project which may have a significant effect on one 
or more European sites and which is not necessary for the management of those 
sites.  The purpose of the HRA is to determine whether or not significant effects are 
likely and to suggest ways in which they could be avoided. The first stage is to carry 
out a Screening process to establish if the Local Plan might have any Likely 
Significant Effects (LSEs) on any European site and therefore to determine whether 
a full HRA would be required for the Plan.  

3.10 Further details of how the SA and HRA processes relate to the Local Plan 
preparation stages are set out in the diagram below.

17



Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

5

18



Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

6

4. Other documents to be produced

4.1 In addition to the Development Plan, a suite of other documents will be prepared:

Neighbourhood Plans

4.2 Neighbourhood Plans can be produced by Parish Councils or Neighbourhood 
Forums to set out policies in relation to the development and use of land in the whole 
or any part of a particular specified neighbourhood area.  They are not prepared by 
Northampton Borough Council but are submitted to it ahead of independent 
examination and a referendum.  They are not legally defined as Development Plan 
Documents but they do become part of the statutory Development Plan when they 
are made.

4.3 In Northampton Borough the following Neighbourhood Plans have been made:

 Duston – Made 14 December 2015;
 Spring Boroughs  – Made 18 April 2016; and
 Growing Together – Made 3 April 2017.

Adopted Policies Map

4.4 A map of Northampton Borough which illustrates geographically the application of 
the policies in the adopted Development Plan.

Annual Monitoring Report (AMR)

4.5 AMRs are produced each year to monitor progress in producing the Development 
Plan and the implementation of policies.  It is currently prepared as a joint AMR by 
the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit on behalf of Northampton Borough, 
Daventry District and South Northamptonshire Councils.

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)

4.6 SPDs expand upon and provide further detail to policies in the Development Plan. 
There are currently no plans to prepare any SPDs. 

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule

4.7 On 21 September 2015 the Borough Council adopted a Community Infrastructure 
Levy.  All planning applications for liable developments submitted and granted 
permission after 1st April 2016 have to pay the Levy.  Charges apply to residential 
development and to retail developments of more than 100 square metres outside the 
town centre. Further details are available on the Council’s website:   
www.northampton.gov.uk/cil .

19

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/cil


Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

7

Statement of Community Involvement

4.8 The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out how communities and 
stakeholders can expect to be engaged in the preparation of planning documents 
and in the consideration of planning applications in Northampton Borough.  The SCI 
was adopted in January 2017 and modified in 2018.  

5. Programme for Plan Preparation

5.1 The programme for preparing the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 is set out in the 
schedule below and shown on the LDS timetable in Appendix 1.  The Council is 
expected to progress the preparation of this Local Plan in accordance with the 
schedule.  Progress on meeting the programme will be reported annually in the 
AMR.  If significant changes occur the LDS will be reviewed.

20



Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

8

Schedule 1 - Northampton Local Plan Part 2

Subject Matter To set out site specific allocations for Northampton 
Borough including residential and employment uses. It 
will include policies against which planning applications 
for the development, management and use of land and 
buildings will be considered. It will include the 
identification, phasing and implementation of local 
infrastructure for sites.  As an example of some of its 
policies content, it will include boundaries of retail 
centres, historic conservation, open space and nature 
conservation policies and designations, highway issues 
and car parking.  It will replace the Central Area Action 
Plan.   

Geographical Area Northampton Borough

Status Development Plan Document

Timetable for Production and Conformity with Appropriate Regulations

Formal Commencement of Preparation/ 
Consultation on the Scope of the Local Plan Part 2/ 
Call for Sites (Regulation 18)

September – October ‘15

Issues Consultation (Regulation 18) April - June ‘16

Options Consultation (Regulation 18) September – November ‘16

Sites Consultation (Regulation 18) October - November ‘17

Publication of Draft Plan and Consultation 
(Regulation 19)

May ’19 – June ‘19

Submission (Regulation 22) November ‘19

Examination (Regulation 24) (To be Confirmed) March ‘20

Adoption (Regulation 26) August ‘20

Management 
Arrangements

Head of Planning. Regular reports to Cabinet Advisory 
Group – Local Plan.

Resources Required Planning Policy team; input from other Council services, 
neighbouring authorities, consultees, Programme Officer 
and Planning Inspectorate.

Monitoring and Annual Monitoring Report

21



Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

9

Review Mechanisms

22



Northampton Local Development Scheme

April 2019

10

Appendix 1 – Northampton Borough Local Development Scheme

Local Plan Part 2

2015 2016 2017 2018

J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D

C I O SC

2019 2020

J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D

P S E A

KEY

Local Plan Part 2:

C - Commencement of preparation I - Issues Stage                   O - Options Stage

SC – Sites Consultation P - Publication of document for representations S - Submission of document

E – Examination of document (Subject to PINs)      A – Adoption of document

23



April 2019

11

Appendix 2 – Remaining Northampton Local Plan Saved Policies

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provided for the saving of policies in 
adopted Local Plans for a period of 3 years from the commencement of Section 38 of the 
Act (which was on 28 September 2004).  Policies in plans approved or adopted at that date 
expired on 27 September 2007 unless the Secretary of State extended them beyond that 
date, by direction. The remaining policies are known as “Saved” Policies.  The intention is 
that as new Local Plans are prepared Saved Policies will be replaced.  In the case of 
Northampton Borough some Saved Policies have already been replaced as a result of the 
adoption of the Northampton Central Area Action Plan and the West Northamptonshire Joint 
Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1).  The list below shows the remaining Northampton Local 
Plan Saved Policies. 

Note
An asterisk * next to the Policy Number indicates that the 1997 Northampton Local Plan 
Policy Applies Outside Central Area Action Plan Boundary.  In all other cases 1997 
Northampton Local Plan Policy Applies as originally.
 

List of Remaining Northampton Local Plan Saved Policies

Policy
Number

Policy Name/ Description Notes

E7 Skyline development Part of Development Plan
E9 * Locally important landscape areas Part of Development Plan.

Part Replaced by CAAP Policies 4 
and 29.

E20 * New development (design) Part of Development Plan.
   Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 

1.
E26 * Conservation Areas: development and 

advertisements
Part of Development Plan.

Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 1.

E28 Use of upper floor shops and other 
commercial premises

Part of Development Plan

E29 * Shopping environment: new or 
replacement shop fronts

Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policies 1 

and 13.
E30 * Shop front: external security protection Part of Development Plan.

Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 1.

E35 Advertisements: in conservation areas Part of Development Plan
E36 Advertisement hoardings: 

express consent
Part of Development Plan

H10 Other housing development: 
backland development

Part of Development Plan

24



April 2019

12

H11 * Other housing development: 
commercial property in primarily 

residential areas

Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 1.

H14 * Residential development, open space
and children’s play facilities

Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 4.

H16 Housing for the elderly Part of Development Plan
H17 Housing for people with disabilities Part of Development Plan
H18 Extensions Part of Development Plan
H21 Conversion to flats Part of Development Plan
H23 Conversion to flats Part of Development Plan
H24 Conversion to flats Part of Development Plan
H26 Conversion to flats – floors above 

shops
Part of Development Plan

H28 Hostels Part of Development Plan
H29 Residential institutions Part of Development Plan
H30 Multi-occupation with a single dwelling Part of Development Plan

H31 * Cumulative effect Part of Development Plan.
Part replaced by CAAP Policy 16.

H35 Childcare facilities Part of Development Plan
B5 Development policies for proposed

business areas: Brackmills, Milton Ham 
and Pineham

Part of Development Plan

B6 Support services Part of Development Plan
B7 Brackmills: height considerations Part of Development Plan
B8 Northampton Cattlemarket Part of Development Plan
B9 Pineham and Milton Ham: landscaping

Zone
Part of Development Plan

B10 Pineham and Milton Ham Part of Development Plan
B11 Milton Ham: height considerations Part of Development Plan

B14 * Development for non-business uses in
business areas

Part of Development Plan.
Replaced by CAAP Policy 15.

B17 * Use of land for open storage, salvage 
and recycling

Part of Development Plan. 
Part Replaced by CAAP Policies 1 

and 15.
B19 * Existing business premises in primarily

residential area
Part of Development Plan.

Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 1.

B20 Working from home Part of Development Plan
B22 * Small businesses: up to 200 sq.m Part of Development Plan.

Part Replaced by CAAP Policies 1, 
10 and 11.

25



April 2019

13

B23 * Repair and maintenance of vehicles Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policies 1, 

10 and 11.
B31 * Environmental impact of business 

development: new locality
Part of Development Plan. 

Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 1.

B32 Environmental impact of business
development: amelioration

Part of Development Plan

B33 Environmental impact of business
development: hazardous 

development

Part of Development Plan

T11 * Commercial uses in residential areas Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policies 1, 

10 and 36.
T12 * Development requiring servicing Part of Development Plan.

Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 36.

T14 * Public transport – rail corridors Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 8.

T16 * Taxi services Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 1.

T22 * Provision for people with a disability Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 1.

R9 Districts and local centres: change of
use from shops

Part of Development Plan

R11 Shopping facilities/ local centre in
 major residential development

Part of Development Plan

R15 * Car showrooms Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 1.

R16 Retail sales from petrol filling stations Part of Development Plan
R17 * Retailing from industrial premises Part of Development Plan.

Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 11.

L2 * Community use of existing schools 
and colleges

Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 4.

L10 Bradlaugh Fields Part of Development Plan
L12 Motor sports and motorised water 

sports
Part of Development Plan

L13 Local community facilities Part of Development Plan
L24 Allotment gardens Part of Development Plan

26



April 2019

14

L25 Alternative use of allotment land Part of Development Plan
L26 * Leisure proposals: site specific Part of Development Plan.

Part Replaced by CAAP Policy 4.

D4 Crow Lane (north): business or leisure Part of Development Plan
D6 Delapre Abbey: office and conference 

centre
Part of Development Plan

D9 M1 Junction 15a/ A43: suitable for 
single development with high standard 
of building design within a landscaped 

setting

Part of Development Plan

D12 Land north west of Kings Heath Part of Development Plan
D13 Overstone Scout camping ground (off 

Billing Lane): residential or public 
house/ hotel

Part of Development Plan

D16 St Edmund’s Hospital: development
guidelines given

Part of Development Plan

D17 * Southbridge area and power 
station site,

Nunn Mills: residential, business and 
leisure

Part of Development Plan.
Part Replaced by CAAP Policies 27 

and 28.

D20 Tweed Road (Pioneer Aggregates):
development guidelines given

Part of Development Plan

27



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

CABINET REPORT

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC / PRIVATE

Cabinet Meeting Date:

Key Decision:

Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Service Area:

Accountable Cabinet Member: 

Ward(s)

3rd April 2019

YES

YES

YES

Planning

Councillor James Hill

All wards

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Proposed Submission version of 
the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 to Cabinet for consideration.

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approves the Proposed Submission version of 
the Local Plan Part 2, Policies Map and Sustainability Appraisal for publication 
under Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012 as amended.

2.2 That the Head of Planning be given delegated authority in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Planning to make minor non-material spelling, 
formatting, mapping and other amendments to the consultation documents 
where they do not alter the intent of the plan.

Report Title NORTHAMPTON LOCAL PLAN PART 2 PROPOSED 
SUBMISSION

Appendices

28

Agenda Item 9



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

3. Issues and Choices

3.1Report Background

3.1.1 The purpose of the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 (NLP2) is to set out the 
planning policy framework for the Borough to 2029.  The NLP2 will be in 
conformity with the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan 
Part 1 (WNJCS), which was adopted in 2014.  The policies of the WNJCS, 
which are generally of a strategic nature, will continue to apply to Northampton 
after the NLP2 is adopted. It is for this reason that the Local Plan Part 2 will 
only cover the period to 2029 and not the more usual 15 years from adoption.

3.1.2 The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy sets out the strategic-level 
policies for the Northampton, Daventry and South Northamptonshire Council 
areas, most notably allocating Sustainable Urban Extensions and setting out 
policies on employment, the distribution of retail, transport strategy, tourism 
and the built and natural environment.  Core Strategy Policy S3 requires that 
about 18,870 net additional dwellings be provided in Northampton Borough 
from 2011 to 2029.  

3.1.3 When it is adopted, NLP2 will replace all of the saved policies from the 
Northampton Local Plan, 1997 and replace the Northampton Central area 
Action Plan, 2013.

3.1.4 Once the NLP2 is submitted to the Secretary of State, it will be subject to an 
examination in public by an independent inspector to consider whether it has 
met the legal tests for its preparation and whether it meets the tests of 
soundness (set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)).  

3.1.5 The legal tests relating to its preparation are:

 In accordance with the Local Development Scheme;
 Whether the consultation has been in accordance with the Council’s 

Statement of Community Involvement and national consultation 
regulations;

 Whether it has been subject to sustainability appraisal; and 
 Whether the duty to co-operate has been met.

3.1.5 Several rounds of consultation have already taken place relating to the 
preparation of the Local Plan, as follows:

a) Issues consultation, May / June 2016 – this formal public consultation 
sought views on the scope and key issues the Local Plan Part 2 should 
address.  Alongside this, consultation took place on the Sustainability 
Appraisal Scoping Report and Statement of Community Involvement and 
the Land Availability Assessment call for sites and its methodology. 

b) Options consultation, September / November 2016 – this second stage of 
public consultation sought opinions on the vision and objectives for the 
plan and a number of other matters for which options were presented.

29



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

c) Sites consultation, October / November 2017 – gathered views on the 
potential future uses of sites.  Sites were rated as to whether or not they 
could be considered for inclusion in the Local Plan Part 2.

3.1.6 The examination in public will focus on whether or not the Local Plan meets 
the tests of soundness set out in paragraph 35 of the NPPF as follows:

 Positively prepared – providing a strategy which, as a minimum , seeks 
to meet the area’s objectively assessed needs, and is informed by 
agreements with other authorities, so that unmet need from neighbouring 
areas is accommodated where it is practical to do so and is consistent 
with achieving sustainable development;

 Justified – an appropriate strategy, taking into account the reasonable 
alternatives, and based on proportionate evidence;

 Effective – deliverable over the plan period, and based on effective joint 
working on cross-boundary strategic matters that have been dealt with 
rather than deferred, as evidenced by the statement of common ground; 
and 

 Consistent with national policy – enabling the delivery of sustainable 
development in accordance with NPPF policies.

3.1.7 The content of the Local Plan has been informed by an extensive evidence 
base which has been kept up to date and reviewed in the light of 
representations to previous consultations.  The evidence base can be viewed 
at https://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200205/planning_for_the_future/1739/ 
.

3.1.8 The plan must also be subject to Sustainability Appraisal.  The purpose of this 
is to appraise the social, economic and environmental effects of the plan and 
to consider choices made in comparison to reasonable alternatives.  This does 
not mean that the most sustainable option has to be selected as long as there 
are valid planning reasons to select an alternative option.  The Sustainability 
Appraisal and Habitats Regulations Assessment have both been carried out 
for the Council by independent consultants to ensure impartiality.

3.1.9 The Council has worked with neighbouring councils and the County Council 
during the preparation of this plan in accordance with the duty to co-operate.

3.2 Issues

3.2.1 The Proposed Submission Local Plan Part 2 has fourteen chapters.

3.2.2 Chapter 1 provides an introduction to the local plan (including its relationship 
to the WNJCS) and the processes involved in its preparation.  Northampton 
Now sets out a description of the social, economic and environmental 
characteristics of the borough and the consultation that has informed this plan 
and the challenges and opportunities Northampton faces.  The Vision and 
Borough Objectives attempt to address these challenges and have been 

30

https://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200205/planning_for_the_future/1739/


Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

informed by previous consultation on the Local Plan and the evidence base 
supporting the plan.

3.2.3 The Sustainable Development chapter incorporates Policy 1 - Presumption in 
Favour of Sustainable Development, which is an important overarching policy.  
The NPPF sets a requirement to consider development proposals in a positive 
way and states that all Local Plans must incorporate a presumption in favour 
of sustainable development.  WNJCS Policy SA addresses this for West 
Northamptonshire and the Local Plan policy is much the same, having the 
effect that sustainable development proposals will be approved and 
developments that improve the economic, social and environmental conditions 
of the area can be secured.  It makes it clear that planning applications which 
accord with Local Plan policies will be approved unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

3.2.4 Chapter 5 of the Local Plan is about securing high quality development and 
includes policies on: 

 placemaking, which is about making sure development is attractive, 
locally distinctive, protects the natural environment and heritage assets 
and encourages healthy lifestyles.

 High quality design
 Amenity and layout
 Sustainable construction
 Flood risk and water management

3.2.5 Chapter 6 is about the regeneration of the borough.  The main focus is on the 
central area of the town, placing the continued vitality of the town centre at the 
heart of the regeneration strategy and making policy provisions for Greyfriars, 
Castle Station, Four Waterside, St Peter’s Way, Ransome Road and the 
University of Northampton Waterside Campus.  It also contains a supportive 
policy for hotel growth particularly in the town centre and Enterprise Zone.

3.2.6 Chapter 7 of the Local Plan sets out details about housing delivery and 
allocates 81 new sites for new housing.  These sites have been selected 
following a rigorous approach covering 17 criteria, with the involvement of 
landowners, developers and key stakeholders to ensure that they are 
deliverable in an acceptable way within the plan period.    

3.2.7 Sufficient capacity has been identified to meet the WNJCS requirement for the 
provision of 18,870 dwellings in Northampton from 2011 to 2029.  However, it 
should be noted that the housing trajectory set out in the Local Plan is different 
from the proposed housing delivery trajectory set out in Appendix 3 of the 
WNJCS.  The delivery rates envisaged in the Core Strategy for Northampton 
in this period are very high – for example 1,544 dwellings in 2018/19 and 
1,278 dwellings in 2022/23.  In practice, housing completion rates in 
Northampton have been slower than the rates set out in the Core Strategy and 
are predicted to continue in the same way for the first few years of the plan 
period.  Completions in sustainable urban extensions, in particular, are 
running at lower rates than were expected.  Taking this evidence into account, 
and following legal advice on this matter, the Local Plan contains a housing 
delivery trajectory that differs from the proposed housing delivery trajectory set 

31



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

out in the WNJCS by setting lower figures for the first five years, with higher 
rates of delivery in later years of the plan period.   More detail on this is set out 
in the Housing Technical Paper attached at Appendix C.

3.2.8 On the basis of the findings of the West Northamptonshire Housing Market 
Evidence, it has not been necessary to change the stipulation of WNJCS 
Policy that, for developments of 15 or more dwellings, the proportion of 
affordable housing should be 35%, so there is no new policy on this in the 
Local Plan Part 2.  There is a policy on the type and mix of housing which 
includes stipulations about the mix of dwelling types, as well as self-build and 
custom-build housing and specialist housing.

3.2.9 Regarding Houses in Multiple Occupation, Policy 14 includes the revised 
threshold, as set out in the Northampton study of Housing in Multiple 
Occupation Policy, 2018, for the consideration of changes of use from Use 
Class C3 dwellinghouses to Use Class C4 houses in multiple occupation, 
where the permitted development rights have been removed by Article 4 
Directions.

3.2.10 Policies to safeguard existing employment sites and support new employment 
developments and schemes are set out in Chapter 8.

3.2.11 Policies about new retail development and retail impact assessment are set 
out in Chapter 9 – Centres, Services and Facilities.  This reflects advice 
contained in the Retail and Leisure Study, 2018.  In this section, there are also 
policies on proposals for new community facilities, childcare provision and 
sites for burial space.

3.2.12 Policies for the protection and enhancement of environmental assets including 
green infrastructure, open spaces, biodiversity and heritage assets are set out 
in Chapter 10.

3.2.13 Sustainable transport, highway safety and parking standards are the subject of 
policies in Chapter 11.

3.2.14 Policy 32, in Chapter 12 deals with infrastructure delivery and contributions.

3.2.15 Site specific allocations and policies for major new developments that 
necessitate detailed development parameters are set out in the Site Specific 
Allocations and Policies chapter (Chapter 13), alongside a list of the 96 
development allocations.

3.2.16 The final chapter of the plan explains how the Council will go about monitoring 
the implementation of the plan.

3.2.17 A Sustainability Appraisal has informed the preparation of this Local Plan Part 
2.  Reasonable alternatives to the policies and sites have been assessed 
during the preparation of the plan and these have informed its formulation.

3.2.18 Subject to the approval of the Proposed Submission version of the Local Plan 
Part 2 for public consultation, it is proposed that consultation commences on 
1st May 2019 for a six week period closing on 14th June 2019.

32



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

3.3Choices (Options)

Option 1: Agree to the recommendation

3.3.1 If Cabinet approves the Proposed Submission version of the Local Plan Part 
2, Policies Map and Sustainability Appraisal for publication, the Council will be 
able to go out to public consultation for six weeks from 1st May.  This should 
then make it possible to achieve other milestones in the preparation of the 
plan with a view to submitting it to the Secretary of State for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government by November 2019.  

Option 2: Do not agree the recommendation

3.3.2 Cabinet could defer or decide not to approve the Proposed Submission 
version of the Local Plan Part 2, Policies Map and Sustainability Appraisal for 
publication.  To take either course of action would run the risk that the date for 
adoption of the Local Plan Part 2 would slip back.  To do this would mean that 
the Council would continue to have planning policies that are becoming 
increasingly outdated, making it increasingly difficult to manage development 
effectively.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy

4.1.1 The Local Plan Part 2 will review and update the Local Plan Saved Policies 
and the Central Area Action Plan.  An up-to-date plan will provide greater 
certainty and allow policies at the local level to address local issues and be 
fully compliant with up-to-date requirements.  Planning applications will be 
determined in accordance with the development plan, including the Local Plan 
Part 2, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  Policies in an 
emerging plan have increasing weight the further they progress through the 
process, particularly if they have not received any objections.

4.2 Resources and Risk

4.2.1 Sufficient resources have been incorporated into the budget for 2019/20 to 
cover the remaining stages of plan preparation. 

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 The Local Plan is a statutory document and has to be prepared in accordance 
with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as amended; the Town 
and Country Planning Act (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, as 
amended, The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes 
Regulations 2004; and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 
2010.

33



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

4.4 Equality and Health

4.4.1 An equalities impact assessment has been carried out.  None of the policies in 
the document went beyond the screening stage as no unjustified negative 
impacts were identified.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

4.5.1 Cabinet Advisory Group have been regularly briefed and had the opportunity 
to comment throughout the plan preparation process.  Feedback from 
members of the public, businesses, agents, developers, other local authorities 
and community groups during previous public consultation, and since, has 
been taken into account in the formulation of the Proposed Submission Plan. 

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

4.6.1 The Local Plan Part 2 will help to guide all development across Northampton, 
achieving economic, environmental and social benefits.  In terms of the 
priorities set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan, the Local Plan Part 2 will 
help to deliver a stronger economy by:

 Having a Local Plan that helps Northampton to grow and prosper
 Containing policies to address the strategy for the town centre, 

provision of charging points for electric vehicles and securing quality 
development that makes a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness.

4.6.2 It will also help to deliver resilient communities by facilitating the delivery of 
new and better homes, including affordable homes.

4.7 Other Implications

4.7.1 There are no other implications arising directly from the proposals in this 
report.

5. Background Papers

5.1National Planning Policy Framework, February 2019, Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--
2 

West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, December 2014, West 
Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=27374
24 

34

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737424
http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737424


Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/26/03/19

Northampton Central Area Action Plan, January 2013, Northampton Borough 
Council 
https://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200205/planning_for_the_future/1748/centra
l_area_action_plan_caap 

Northampton Local Plan, 1997, Northampton Borough Council 
https://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200205/planning_for_the_future/1746/ 

Appendix A – Northampton Local Plan Part 2 – Proposed Submission, January 
2019

Appendix B – Sustainability Appraisal and Habitats Regulations Assessment of 
the Northampton Local Plan Part 2, January 2019, LUC

Appendix C – Northampton Local Part 2 – Housing Technical Paper, March 2019

Appendix D – Local Plan Policies Map and Central Area Inset Plan

6. Next Steps

6.1 The results of this consultation will be fed into the Submission version of the 
Northampton Local Part 2, which will be put before Cabinet for approval for 
submission to the Secretary of State in due course. 

Peter Baguley
Head of Planning
Tel. 01604 838921

35

https://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200205/planning_for_the_future/1748/central_area_action_plan_caap
https://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200205/planning_for_the_future/1748/central_area_action_plan_caap
https://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200205/planning_for_the_future/1746/


1 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

NORTHAMPTON LOCAL PLAN 
PART 2 

 
 
 

SUBMISSION DRAFT 
CONSULTATION 

 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (LOCAL DEVELOPMENT) (ENGLAND) 

REGULATIONS 2012 AS AMENDED 
REGULATION 19 

(April 2019) 
 
 

36



2 

 

CONSULTATION 
 
PURPOSE OF THIS CONSULTATION 
 
This consultation document is the proposed submission draft of the Northampton 
Local Plan Part 2.  It contains details of the Council’s proposed policies for 
determining planning applications and site specific allocations to guide developments 
within the Borough.  These are the policies and proposals which the Council 
consider to be sound and will submit to the Planning Inspectorate for independent 
examination.  
 
CONSULTATION ARRANGEMENTS 
 
This consultation exercise accords with Northampton’s Statement of Community 
Involvement (adopted in 2017 and modified in 2018).  In undertaking this 
consultation, the Council will: 
 

• Placed a Notice in the Northampton Chronicle & Echo 
• Published a Press Release 
• Contacted consultees on the local plan database including statutory 

consultees 
 
Consultation documents include: 
 

• The Submission Draft Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
• Sustainability Appraisal of the Submission Draft Local Plan Part 2 
• Habitat Regulations Assessment 

 
These consultation documents can be viewed at the following locations: 
 
a. Northampton Borough Council Offices 
 
The Council’s One Stop Shop (Planning Area) at the Guildhall, St Giles Square, 
Northampton NN1 1DE 
 
b. Libraries 
 
Northampton Central Library, 74-76 Abington Street, Northampton 
Abington Library, Lindsay Avenue 
St James Library, 138 St James Road 
Hunsbury Library, Overslade House, 11 Overslade Close 
Duston Library, Pendle Road, Duston 
Far Cotton Library, The Rec Centre, Towcester Road 
Kingsthorpe Library, Welford Road, Kingsthorpe 
Weston Favell Library, 35 Weston Favell Centre 
Wootton Community Centre, Curtlee Hill, Wootton 
 
 
 

37



3 

 

c. Neighbourhood Forum Venues 
 

• Duston Parish Council, Pendle Road, Duston NN5 6DT 
• Spring Boroughs Neighbourhood Forum, Springs Family Centre, 9 Tower 

Street, Northampton NN1 2SN 
• Growing Together Neighbourhood Forum, Blackthorn Community Centre, 

Longmead Court, Blackthorn NN3 8QD 
• Queens Park Neighbourhood Forum, Kingsthorpe Community Centre, Mill 

Lane, Northampton NN2 6RQ 
• Semilong and Trinity Neighbourhood Forum, Briar Hill Community Centre, 

The Springs, Briar Hill, Northampton NN4 8SX 
 
HOW TO COMMENT: The consultation period begins on Wednesday 01 May 2019 
and ends at 5pm on Friday 14 June 2019. 
 
A guidance note has been prepared to help you complete the representation form.  
Whilst you can comment on any part of the Plan or the Policies Map, you will need to 
state the paragraph number, table, figure and/ or Policy number. 
 
You can respond in one of the following ways: 
 

• Online using Survey Monkey (link) 
 

• By email - download the representation form, completing it and emailing it to 
the Planning Policy Section (clearly marked “Submission Draft 
Consultation”) at: planningpolicy@northampton.gov.uk. 

 
• By post - to Planning Policy (Submission Draft Consultation), Northampton 

Borough Council, Directorate of Regeneration Enterprise and Planning, St 
Giles Square, Northampton NN1 1DE 

 

38

mailto:planningpolicy@northampton.gov.uk


4 

 

 CONTENTS  
 
MAIN DOCUMENT 
Chapter Section Page 
1 Introduction and Policy Context 7 
2 Northampton Now 12 
3 Vision and Borough Objectives 28 
4 Sustainable Development 32 
5 Quality of New Development 33 
6 Northampton Regeneration Strategy 40. 
7 Housing 47 
8 Economy 61 
9 Centres, Services and Facilities 66 
10 Built and Natural Environmental Assets 75 
11 Movement 83 
12 Infrastructure 89 
13 Site Specific Allocations and Policies 92 
14 Implementation and Monitoring 108 
Appendix 
A Trajectory for sites allocated in the Local Plan Part 2 

(excluding Sustainable Urban Extensions and housing 
commitments in the Five Year Housing Land Supply) 

117 

B Superseded Policies 121 
C Schedule of planning obligation requirements for 

Northampton Transport Schemes 
128 

D Northampton and NRDA Transport and Infrastructure 
Schemes 

130 

E A45 Northampton Growth Management Scheme projects 132 
F Healthcare infrastructure projects schedule 133 
G Primary education provision requirements 134 
H Secondary education provision requirements 136 
Glossary  137 
 
LIST OF POLICIES 
1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development 32 
2 Placemaking 34 
3 Design 35 
4 Amenity and Layout 36 
5 Sustainable Construction 38 
6 Flood Risk and Water Management 39 
7 Supporting Northampton Town Centre 42 
8 Regeneration Opportunities 43 
9 Supporting and safeguarding the University of Northampton 

Waterside Campus 
44 

10 Managing hotel growth 45 
11 Development of main town centre uses 46 
12 Housing and other housing led allocations 52 

39



5 

 

13 Type and mix of housing 57 
14 Delivering Houses in Multiple Occupation 60 
15 Safeguarding Existing Employment Sites 63 
16 Supporting New Employment Developments and Schemes 

Within and Outside Safeguarded Sites 
64 

17 New Retail Developments and Retail Impact Assessment 67 
18 Retail Development on Upper Floors 68 
19 Neighbourhood Centres 70 
20 Community Services and Facilities 72 
21 Childcare Provision 73 
22 Sites for Burial Space 73 
23 Sustaining and enhancing existing, and supporting the 

creation of, Northampton’s Green Infrastructure 
76 

24 Providing Open Spaces 77 
25 Supporting and enhancing Biodiversity 79 
26 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 80 
27 Protection and enhancements of designated and non-

designated heritage assets 
81 

28 Designing Sustainable Transport and Travel 84 
29 Highway priority and safety 86 
30 Transport schemes and mitigation 86 
31 Parking standards 87 
32 Infrastructure Delivery and Contributions 90 
33 Development Allocations 92 
34 Northampton Railway Station (LAA0288), railfreight and 

adjoining sites (LAA0333) 
96 

35 Martin’s Yard extension (LAA1005) 99 
36 The Green, Great Houghton (LAA1098) 101 
37 Greyfriars (LAA1113) 103 
38 Ransome Road (LAA1139) 105 
  
LIST OF FIGURES 

1 Northampton Borough Boundary 7 
2 Key stages of the Northampton Local Plan 9 
3 Northampton Communications 13 
4 Northampton Central Area 14 
5 County visitors 17 
6 County expenditure on tourism 17 
7 Heritage and Historic Landscapes in Northampton 20 
8 Locations of Air Quality Management Areas 22 
9 Sustainable Urban Extensions within the Northampton 

Related Development Area 
27 

10 The Central Area and the Town Centre boundaries 41 
11 Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone 61 
12 Existing neighbourhood centres 70 
13 Meeting community needs 71 
14 Open spaces in Northampton 78 

40



6 

 

15 Locations of Air Quality Management Areas 84 
16 Development principles for Northampton Railway Station 

and railfreight sites 
98 

17 Development principles for land north of Martin’s Yard 100 
18 Development principles for land at The Green, Great 

Houghton 
102 

19 Development principles for Greyfriars 104 
20 Development principles for Ransome Road 107 
   
LIST OF GRAPHS 
 
1 Housing delivery in Northampton against the Joint Core 

Strategy housing delivery trajectory 
48 

2 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 housing delivery trajectory 52 
   
LIST OF TABLES 
 
1 Housing completions and delivery in Northampton (2011-

2018) 
15 

2 Northampton Local Supply (May 2016) 18 
3 Northampton Hotel Performance 2013 – 2015 18 
4 Northampton projected requirements for new hotel 

development 2016-2029 
19 

5 Public Health England’s population profile for Northampton 
July 2018 

23 

6 Housing commitments (including Joint Core Strategy 
allocation) proposed allocations and windfall 

49 

7 Local Plan Part 2 Housing Delivery Trajectory 51 
8 Housing mix of objectively assessed need for market and 

affordable housing, 2016 to 2029 
56 

9 Net job changes in West Northamptonshire 64 
10 Local Plan Implementation and Monitoring Framework 110 
   
 
 
 
 
 

41



7 

 

CHAPTER 1 
INTRODUCTION AND POLICY CONTEXT 

 
PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 

 
1. Northampton Borough Council is preparing a new Northampton Local Plan 

Part 2, which will cover the entire Borough of Northampton (see Figure 1) for 
the period up to 2029.  The Plan (NLP2) will be in conformity to the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan Part 1 (WNJCS) which was 
adopted in 2014.  

 
Figure 1: Northampton Borough Boundary 

 

 
 

2. NLP2, when adopted, will replace all the remaining saved policies from the 
previous Northampton Local Plan 1997 and update the policies contained in 
the Northampton Central Area Action Plan which was adopted in 2013.  It will 
include development management policies which will provide policy directions 
for sustainable development, housing delivery, retention and expansion of 
employment opportunities, supporting the growth and changing roles of the 
town centre, providing commercial and leisure enterprises as well as 
protecting and enhancing the built and natural environment.  It will also 
include site specific allocations for various types of developments and/ or 
uses that are considered suitable for these sites. 

 
3. This Plan forms part of the Development Plan for Northampton.  The 

Development Plan is the basis upon which planning applications will be 

42



8 

 

determined unless there are material considerations which indicate otherwise.  
The statutory Development Plan for Northampton consists of: 

 
• West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan Part 1 
• Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
• “Made” Neighbourhood Plans, which currently include the Duston 

Neighbourhood Plan, Spring Boroughs Neighbourhood Plan and Growing 
Together Neighbourhood Plan 

 
4. The National Planning Policy Framework 2019 makes it clear that the local 

plan needs to be reviewed every 5 years and that development which accords 
with an up to date Plan should be approved.  Any proposed development that 
conflicts with an up to date plan should be refused unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  Therefore, it is important for local planning 
authorities to have up to date Local Plans to ensure that development is 
progressed in an acceptable and sustainable manner. 

 
PLAN PREPARATION PROCESS 

 
5. The National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) sets out the 

requirements for the preparation of the local plan.  Plans must be prepared in 
accordance with legal and procedural requirements and be sound.  Plans are 
sound if they are: 

 
• Positively prepared – provide a strategy which will, as a minimum, meet as 

much as possible of the area’s objectively assessed needs and is informed 
by agreements with other authorities, so that unmet need for neighbouring 
areas is accommodated where it is practical to do so and is consistent with 
achieving sustainable development 

 
• Justified – an appropriate strategy, taking into account the reasonable 

alternatives and based on proportionate evidence 
 

• Effective – deliverable over the plan period, and based on effective joint 
working on cross-boundary strategic matters that have been dealt with 
rather than deferred, as evidenced by the statement of common ground 

 
• Consistent with national policy – enable the delivery of sustainable 

development in accordance with the policies in the National Planning 
Policy Framework 

 
6. In delivering the Local Plan, the Council has completed the initial stages of the 

plan preparation process.  The Issues, Options and Sites consultations were 
undertaken in 2016 – 2017, which provided the Council with information and 
evidence on the key issues that the Local Plan need to address, and how, in 
addition to delivering the requirements set out in the West Northamptonshire 
Joint Core Strategy. 

 
7. The key stages which the Council have completed are shown below:                                               

43



9 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2: Key stages of the Northampton Local Plan 
 

 
 

8. Following the consultation on the submission draft, the Council will update the 
Local Plan to take into account the comments received.  The Plan will then be 
submitted to the Planning Inspectorate for an independent examination.   

 
DUTY TO COOPERATE/ STATEMENT OF COMMON GROUND 

 
9. The Localism Act 2011 introduced the requirement for the “Duty to Cooperate” 

(DTC).  A section 33A was therefore inserted into the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  This Act placed a legal duty on all local 
planning authorities, county councils, local enterprise partnerships and 
“prescribed bodies” (as defined by the regulations) to engage constructively, 
actively and on an ongoing basis, to maximise the effectiveness of local plan 
preparation relating to strategic cross boundary matters.  

 
10. In regulation 4 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 

Regulations 2012, the bodies prescribed for the purposes of meeting the 
above legal duty are listed.  In publishing its consultation documents for the 

44



10 

 

Northampton Local Plan Part 2 to date, the Council has consulted all those 
included in the list of prescribed bodies. 

 
11. In addition, the Council worked closely with partners in Daventry District, 

Northamptonshire County and South Northamptonshire Councils in preparing 
the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan Part 1.  The 
Council has continued to work closely and engage with Daventry and South 
Northamptonshire, as well as other authorities including Wellingborough 
Council and Northamptonshire County Council, throughout the preparation of 
the Northampton Local Plan Part 2.   

 
12. The NPPF also requires the preparation and maintenance of one or more 

Statements of Common Ground, which provide an explanation of how cross 
boundary matters were addressed and how various parties have worked 
cooperatively to address them.  These will be prepared alongside the version 
of the Local Plan to be submitted to the Secretary of State. 

 
SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL AND HABITATS REGULATIONS 
ASSESSMENT 

 
13. In line with legislative requirements, each successive stage in the production 

of NLP2 has been the subject of a sustainability appraisal.  The Plan therefore 
conforms to the requirements set out in the Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA) Directive (European Directive 2001/42/EC), ensuring that 
the potential impacts of the plan, from an environmental, economic and social 
perspectives, are taken into the account throughout the process.   

 
14. The Sustainability Appraisal (SA) is an iterative process, which began with the 

development and assessment of the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 Options 
Consultation paper in September 2016.  This stage was continued with SA of 
the sites consultation, which was released for consultation in October 2017 
and an assessment of the reasonable alternatives in 2018 to inform this 
submission draft. 

 
15. Northampton also contains part of the Upper Nene Gravel Pits Special 

Protection Area (SPA), which is a European designation for the conservation 
of natural habitats.  The Council is legally bound to carry out a Habitats 
Regulations Assessment (Directive 92/43/EEC) to assess the impacts of the 
Local Plan proposals against the conservation objectives of the SPA. 

 
16. A separate Sustainability Appraisal document outlining the above 

accompanies this submission draft. 
 

PREVIOUS CONSULTATION 
 

17. The Council has undertaken consultations in accordance with the 
requirements set out in the Town and Country Planning (England) 
Regulations 2012.  These consultations also conform to the Council’s 

45



11 

 

Statement of Community Involvement, which seeks to inform and encourage 
participation in the evolution of the Plan.   

 
18. In summary, the following consultation exercises have been completed: 

 
• Issues consultation – this is the first stage of the plan preparation 

process and consultation took place in May/ June 2016.  The public were 
consulted  on the scope and the key issues the new Local Plan Part 2 
should address 
 

• Options consultation – this forms the second stage of the plan 
preparation process which confirmed that Northampton needs to deliver 
18,870 new homes by 2029 and that a positive and proactive approach 
will be needed towards planning for homes, as well as jobs, in a 
sustainable way.  Also of importance is the need to balance growth 
requirements against the need to protect and enhance the built and 
natural environment.  This consultation took place between September 
and November 2016 
 

• Sites consultation – the purpose of consulting on this third stage of the 
plan preparation process was to gather views on the potential future uses 
of sites to deliver the strategy and development required in the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, which forms Part 1 of the Local 
Plan.  Consultation took place in October and November 2017  

 
19. Further information can be found in the Consultation Statement which 

accompanies this submission draft. 

46



12 

 

CHAPTER 2 
NORTHAMPTON NOW 

 
PROFILE OF NORTHAMPTON 

 
Overview and Population 

 
20. With a population of just over 225,000 in 20171, Northampton is the largest 

town in England. Planned expansion has led to the population figure reaching 
above 200,000 and the town continues to grow and maintain its role as a 
major employment, retail and residential centre within Northamptonshire. 

 
21. It is located centrally in Northamptonshire, covering an area of approximately 

80 square kilometres.  It is the main town in Northamptonshire (see Figure 3) 
and, particularly since its designation as a New Town in 1965, has absorbed 
several surrounding villages.  The borough is bordered by Daventry District to 
the north and west, South Northamptonshire District to the south west and 
south and Wellingborough Borough to the east.  There is no Green Belt in 
Northampton or its neighbouring authorities. 

 
22. As of December 2017, at least 63% of Northampton’s residents are between 

the age of 16 and 64, which is the same rate the East Midlands and Great 
Britain2.  38.9% have NVQ Level 4 and above, this is higher than the rate for 
East Midlands and Great Britain at 32.1% and 38.6% respectively.  7.4% do 
not have any qualifications, and this is also lower than the East Midlands 
(8.2%) and Great Britain (7.7%) averages.   

 
Topography and hydrology 

 
23. Northampton is located within a shallow “bowl” adjacent to the River Nene.  It 

is surrounded by higher land, which rings the town, including Glassthorpe Hill 
(141m above sea level) to the west, Coneybury Hill (approximately 120m 
above sea level) and the Pitsford Ridge (approximately 125m above sea 
level).  Within the town, there are three main areas of higher ground.  These 
are to the south of the Nene Valley, the eastern edge of the town and the area 
around the former University campus towards the northern edge of the town. 

 
24. Northampton is also located at the confluence of the River Nene and its 

tributary the Brampton Nene, which flows south into the Nene from Pitsford 
Reservoir.  Smaller streams also influence the topography and hydrology of 
the town, including Dallington brook and the Wootton Stream, which flows into 
the Nene from the south.  The Billing Brook, Ecton Brook and Sywell Bottom 
flow south into the Nene on the eastern side of the town.   

 
                                                           
1 https://www.northamptonshireanalysis.co.uk/dataviews/tabular?viewId=181&geoId=46&subsetId= 

2 https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157159/report.aspx 

47



13 

 

Figure 3: Northampton Communications 
 

 
 

 
Geology 

 
25. Northampton is located on the edge of the band of Oolitic limestone, which 

runs north-south through England.  It lies at the junction of several types of 
limestone and the adjacent clay, which creates a complex geology for the 
area.  The most well known of the Oolitic limestones are the “Northampton 
sands and Ironstones” which have a distinctive golden-brown colour and are 
often seen in local buildings.  The valley of the River Nene has accumulated 
deep sedimentary deposits of sand and gravel which have been quarried in 
recent years.  

 
Central Area and Town Centre 

 
26. The Central Area, incorporating the town centre (see Figure 4), its adjoining 

areas and parts of the Waterside Enterprise Zone, have experienced some 
key changes in recent years.   

 
 

 
 

48



14 

 

 
Figure 4: Northampton Central Area 

 

 
 

27. These include the consolidation and relocation of the University of 
Northampton to its new premises (now known as Waterside Campus) in 
Bedford Road, the development of the University’s student accommodation in 
St John’s Street, the opening of a new bus station in the town centre, the 
development of a new railway station building and the development of a new 
Premier Inn hotel in St John’s Terrace.  Also of significance is the University 
of Northampton’s Innovation Centre, located close to the railway station, 
offering 42 flexible office units, a cafe and conference space.  

 
28. Northampton Town Centre is a regional shopping centre and remains the 

main retail and services centre within Northamptonshire.  A recent study 
concluded that Northampton town centre, its district and its local centres are 
performing well in spite of the closures of national chains like BHS and Marks 
and Spencer’s.  This is attributed to the wide ranging shops and services 
currently available in these centres which cater for Northampton’s population 
and its catchment.  It is also evident that people from outside Northampton do 
visit the town centre. 

 

49



15 

 

29. Northampton’s town centre currently accommodates the indoor retail units of 
the Grosvenor Centre, Market Walk and the Ridings Arcade.  It has an 
outdoor market area, the largest in England.  There are tourist attractions 
within the Cultural Quarter, which centres around a creative cluster in the area 
around Derngate/ Guildhall Road.  The Royal & Derngate theatre, 
Northampton Film House cinema and a major new extension to the 
Northampton Museum and Art Gallery creating new galleries/ teaching 
facilities/ retail area are major attractions within the Cultural Quarter. The 
Northampton Museum and Art Gallery is home to the world famous Shoe 
Collection, a collection of national importance.  78 Derngate commemorates 
the works of Charles Rennie Mackintosh. Conversion of Vulcan Works into a 
managed workspace for around 100 businesses within the Cultural Quarter 
will support job creation over the plan period. Also, NN Contemporary Art 
space occupies number 9 Guildhall Road in the Cultural Quarter, providing art 
space in for artists at all stages of their careers. 

 
30. Northampton has 3 professional sports grounds, Northampton Saints Rugby 

at Franklins Gardens, Northampton Town Football at PTS Academy Stadium 
and Northamptonshire County Cricket in Abington.  They attract visitors and 
sports fans, as well as publicising venues for hire for special events (such as 
weddings, birthdays and entertainment).     

 
Housing 

 
31. Northampton is predominantly an urban area.  Northampton continues to 

experience pressures in housing delivery, with a growing population and a 
gradual reduction in land availability contributing to this problem.  In addition, 
in spite of planning consents, and allocations for Sustainable Urban 
Extensions within Northampton and its immediate surrounding areas, 
Northampton has not been able to meet its 5 year housing land supply as 
required by the Government.   

 
Table 1: Housing completions and delivery in Northampton (2011 – 2018) 

 
 JCS Requirement 

2011 – 2018 
Actual Housing 
Completions (Net 
Additions) 

Delivery of 
Dwellings 
compared to the 
requirement 

Total dwellings 6,613 5,139 -1,474 
  

32. Northampton’s house prices3 continue to be higher on average than 
properties within the East Midlands, but lower than the United Kingdom 
average.  Its relatively higher average compared to the rest of the areas within 
the East Midlands could be attributed to its accessibility to both London and 
Birmingham as well as Milton Keynes.   

 

                                                           
3 Land Registry 

50



16 

 

Date UK East Midlands Northampton 
August 2017 225,598 182,837 205,175 
October 2017 224,936 183,956 207,376 
December 2017 225,205 184,863 206,877 
February 2018 224,946 186,339 207,457 
April 2018 226,704 187,876 213,642 
June 2018 228,384 187,553 213,288 
    
 

Economy 
 

33. Northampton has high levels of employment, with 113,000 people in 
employment in June 20184.  This equates to 76.6% of Northampton’s 
economically active population.  This is above the East Midlands level of 
74.5% and Great Britain at 75%.  Situated within the wider Oxford – Milton 
Keynes – Cambridge Corridor, the borough is an important centre for high 
performance engineering and high end shoe manufacturing as well as being 
highly represented in business administrative and support services, financial 
and insurance activities, storage and distribution and manufacturing.  Major 
employers include Barclaycard, Cosworth, Panasonic UK Ltd, Travis Perkins, 
Avon, Carlsberg UK and Nationwide Building Society. 

 
34. Northampton has an Enterprise Zone, which was designated in August 2011.  

Since its designation, almost 2000 new jobs have been created and 
significant regeneration schemes have taken place.  These include the 
development of the new bottling/ canning plant at Carlsberg, the expansion of 
Cosworth, the completion of the redeveloped railway station and the 
completion of a new campus for the University of Northampton. 

 
Tourism 

 
35. Northampton has an opportunity to capitalise on tourism as part of the town 

centre’s regeneration strategy.  In Northamptonshire, the number of visitors in 
2016 was 262,1485  This represented an increase of just under 12% from the 
previous year.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
4 https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157159/report.aspx 

5  https://www.visitbritain.org/nation-region-county-data 

51

https://www.visitbritain.org/nation-region-county-data


17 

 

Figure 5: County visitors 
 

 
 

36. Expenditure in the County was £79.01m, and there has been an upward trend 
over the last 14 years.  

 
Figure 6: County expenditure on tourism 

 

 
 
 

37. To support any future requirements associated with the tourism, visitor and 
cultural sectors, a hotel study6 was commissioned by Northampton Borough 
Council to provide an assessment of the future potential for hotel development 
in Northampton to inform the Northampton Local Plan Part 2.   

 
38. Northampton is served by 24 hotels (1,670 letting rooms) with budget/ limited 

service (55%), 3* and 4* (22%). This includes the Premier Inn which opened 
in the town centre in December 2015.  Northampton has fewer hotel 
bedrooms than the comparator towns and cities of Leicester, Milton Keynes 
and Reading.   

                                                           
6 Northampton Hotel Futures: hotel audit and demand assessment (Hotel Solutions, May 2016) 

52



18 

 

 
Table 2 

 

 
 

39. The Hotel Study states that although gradually improving, the performance of 
Northampton’s branded 3 and 4 star hotels has been well below national 
averages over the last 3 years and this covers all performance indicators 
(including room occupancy and achieved room rates).  In contrast, branded 
budget hotels performance has been strong.   

 
Table 3 

 
 

40. Corporate demand is set to increase significantly given the planned office 
development and employment growth in the Enterprise Zone.  Substantial 
growth is also expected in the contractor business (mainly budget and lower 
priced unbranded hotels given the scale of construction work).  There is 
therefore scope for growth in residential conference business – the market 
remains constrained by the lack of 3 / 4 star hotel bedroom availability on 
Tuesday and Wednesday nights, and Northampton’s limited supply of 4 star 
hotels with good conferencing facilities.   

 
41. The study alluded to on-going events that generate demand for hotel 

accommodation.  These include the sporting events associated with rugby, 

53



19 

 

football and cricket which will continue to have a positive impact on the town’s 
larger hotels and conference venues at these sports grounds to attract 
weekend association conferences, exhibitions and events.  Silverstone (not 
within Northampton’s borough boundary) will continue to be a key driver for 
weekend business for Northampton hotels.  The proposed Silverstone Motor 
Sport World attraction could however provide a new draw that Northampton 
hotels can use to attract weekend leisure break stays. Events at Santa Pod 
Raceway will continue to generate demand for some budget and unbranded 
hotels in Northampton.  Other events influencing demand for accommodation 
are the Alive@Delapre concerts, Northampton Balloon Festival and people 
attending concerts at MK Bowl. 

 
42. The study also contains projections of possible future growth in Northampton, 

between 2016 and 2029, using the Hotel Futures demand forecasting model.  
Projections were prepared for 3* and 4* star hotels and budget hotels, taking 
Northampton’s current supply of hotels and the estimates of 2015 room per 
night demand as the baseline for the projections.  The results of the demand 
projection is shown below. 

 
Table 4 

 
 

Heritage and historic landscapes 
 

43. Northampton has a range of heritage assets, including over 500 listed 
buildings (such as Delapre Abbey, the Guildhall, County Hall and All Saints 
Church) and 21 conservation areas.  There are four conservation areas within 
the town centre alone, which reflects the town’s strong heritage legacy.  In 
addition, there is also a Registered Battlefield within Northampton’s boundary, 
located partly within the grounds of the Barnes Meadow Local Nature Reserve 
and Delapre Abbey Park.  There are 7 scheduled monuments in the Borough.  
Other heritage sites of interest includes the remains of Northampton Castle 
which can be found close and within the grounds of Northampton Railway 
Station and the Ironstone Heritage Centre, which is home to the 
Northamptonshire Ironstone Railway Trust.  The latter is based within the 
grounds of the Hunsbury Hill Country Park. 

 

54



20 

 

Figure 7: Heritage and Historic Landscapes in Northampton7 
(Crown Copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey Licence no 

10019655) 
 

 
 
 

Green Infrastructure, Open Space and Leisure 
 

44. Northampton currently has over 1,600 ha of parks, open spaces and other 
green areas.  Together with the River Nene, these natural and man made 
corridors provide valuable natural and historic assets which are of great 
important for sustaining and enhancing biodiversity.   In addition, parts of 
Northampton also accommodate the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special 
Protection Area and six Local Nature Reserves.      

 
45. These assets do vary in terms of their distribution, quality and accessibility 

and opportunities remain for connections and linkages to be improved.   
 

46. In addition, Northampton also has significant leisure provision, including 
commercial leisure centres, such as the centres run by the Leisure Trust 
(Danes Camp, Lings Forum, Mounts Bath, Cripps), cinemas (at Vue Sol 
Central and Cineworld Sixfields), various private gyms, indoor and outdoor 
sports facilities and playing pitches (for example the Old Northamptonians / 
Old Scouts / Casuals rugby clubs) and the Nene White Water Rafting Centre 
in Bedford Road. 
 

 
 

                                                           
7 Northampton Urban Fringe Landscape Character and Sensitivity Study (Chris Blandford Associates, XXX) 

55



21 

 

Transport and Movement 
 

47. 80% of people who work in the Borough live in the Borough, with the majority 
of travel to work trips being less than 5km. 61% of these journeys are made 
by car adding almost 59,000 trips on the road network. The trips made to 
places outside the Borough are to a number of locations, including Milton 
Keynes, with public transport presently only making up 4% of these inter-
urban trips. The borough has a high level of car ownership, which is the 
dominant mode of travel.  

 
48. The Borough benefits from a range of key strategic highway network 

connections including three junctions of the M1 (Junctions 15, 15A and 16). 
The A43 links to the M40 Motorway linking Oxford and the south of England 
and the A14 at Kettering and the A45 trunk road runs through the town from 
the M1 providing links to Wellingborough, Rushden and the A14 at Thrapston. 
Work is taking place to upgrade Junctions 13 to 16 of the M1 to a “smart” 
motorway with additional capacity.     

 
49. Northampton is served by one modern and central railway station, which is on 

the Northampton loop of the West Coast Main Line.  The station was 
redeveloped and opened in 2015 to accommodate increasing passenger 
demand.  It is located within 10 minutes’ walk of the town centre.  It is served 
by West Midlands Train services to both London and Birmingham New Street. 
There are three trains per hour each to London Euston and Birmingham New 
Street, off peak, Monday to Saturday which makes both cities accessible from 
Northampton.   

 
50. Northampton has access to Birmingham International Airport, London Luton 

Airport and East Midlands Airport. Luton and East Midlands Airport can be 
reached within a one hour car journey and Birmingham International can also 
be accessed by direct train.   

 
51. Northampton’s strategic location makes it attractive for logistics and 

distribution, as well as head office functions.    
 

52. Northampton has a network of local bus services as well as interurban bus 
and coach services.  Most local bus services radiate from the North Gate bus 
station, in the town centre.  The station was opened in 2014, having moved 
from its previous location at Greyfriars.  Stagecoach operates most of the 
local services and National Express coaches run from Victoria Street. 

 
53. Northampton accommodates around 10,000 car parking spaces which are 

formed of over 20 private and public surface and multi storey car parking 
facilities.  

 
Low Emissions Travel  

 
54. There will be a movement towards more sustainable forms of travel will 

include the increasing use of electric and hybrid vehicles for private, public 

56



22 

 

and business related journeys and decrease in use of petrol and diesel 
vehicles in order to reduce carbon emissions, improve air quality and 
encourage more environmental friendly forms of travel.    

 
55. The Council’s Low Emission Strategy8 (LES) aims to improve air quality and 

health across Northampton by reducing vehicle emissions through the 
accelerated take up of cleaner fuels and technologies.  Evidence for the 
strategy found that whilst levels of nitrogen dioxide have improved in some 
areas of Northampton, concentrations at key locations have remained 
elevated over the last decade and at some locations, concentrations have 
increased.   

 
56. There are currently 7 Air Quality Management Areas (see Figure 8).  These 

are areas which exceed the Government’s air quality objective and where 
there is relevant exposure to the public. 

 
Figure 8: Locations of Air Quality Management Areas 

 

 
 
 

57. The predominant cause of elevated levels of NO2 is road transport emissions.  
The emissions from different vehicle types have a varying significance, 
depending on the location.  The LES quoted examples from buses, 
considered to be a significant contributor in the inner urban area and on 
arterial routes, whereas heavy and light goods vehicles are a significant 
contributor on trunk roads.  Cars (especially diesel) play a significant role in all 
areas. 

 
58. The LES concluded that the number of people affected by asthma and chronic 

obstructive pulmonary disease in Northampton is higher than for England as a 
whole.  Evidence also suggests that there is a close link between air pollution 
and areas of high deprivation.  Individuals living in areas of high deprivation 

                                                           
8 Northampton Low Emission Strategy 2017 – 2025 (Northampton Borough Council, December 2017) 

57



23 

 

often live in accommodation close to roads that have high levels of emissions.  
Individuals in more deprived areas therefore have poorer health, suffer more 
adverse health effects than people experiencing the same level of emissions 
exposure in less deprived areas.   

 
Health and Wellbeing 

 
59. In July 2018, Public Health England9 published the Northampton District Local 

Authority Health Profile which provides a picture of people’s health in 
Northampton. This publication provided the following summary. 

 
Table 5 

A Summary of Public Health England’s Population Profile for Northampton 
 3rd July 2018 

Overview The health of people in Northampton is varied compared with the England 
average.  Around 16% (7,400) of children live in low income families, which 
is slightly higher than the Northamptonshire average of 14% (19,300).    

Child 
Health 

In year 6, 20.8% (467) of children are classified as obese in Northampton 
which is slightly higher than the Northamptonshire average of 19.4% 
(1,376). 

Adult 
Health 

The rate of alcohol related harm hospital stays in 907 per 100,000 
population, which is above the average for England.  This represents 1,879 
stays per year.  This is slightly higher than the hospital stays for 
Northamptonshire at 766. 

Life 
expectancy 

The charts below show that Northampton has a larger gap in life expectancy 
for males and females compared to Northamptonshire. 
 
 

                                 Northampton 

 
 

 

 

Northamptonshire 

                                                           
9 Public Health England Northampton profile July 2018 

58



24 

 

 

Trends 
over time 
(under 75 
mortality) 

 
The chart below shows that Northampton’s mortality rates for all causes for 
men and women are slightly higher than the England average.  However, for 
females, the gap reduced between 2014 and 2015. 
 

 

 

 
  
  
 

60. The above table demonstrates that there is a need to ensure that the Borough 
is better equipped to deal with meeting people’s health requirements, 
particularly in light of its growing population. Within Northampton, there are a 
range of public and private health facilities including Northampton General 
Hospital, GP surgeries, dentists, pharmacists and other health care providers.  

 

59



25 

 

KEY CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR NORTHAMPTON 
 

Challenges 
 

Housing delivery 
 

61. The main challenge for Northampton is the delivery of homes, including 
affordable housing, to meet the identified need for existing and future 
Northampton residents.  It is becoming increasingly challenging to deliver the 
number of dwellings required within an area that is compact, extensively built-
up and has competing priorities.     

 
62. The Government, through the 2019 NPPF, has made  it clear that the local 

plan has an important role in supporting the Government’s objective to 
significantly boost the housing supply and that the needs of groups with 
specific housing requirements are to be addressed. The West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy identifies a provision of 18,870 new 
homes to be built within Northampton Borough from 2011 to 2029.  Evidence 
shows that the Borough does not have a 5 year housing land supply, though 
the Borough passed the Government’s Housing Delivery Test in February 
2019.          

 
Provision for deprived communities 

 
63. Northampton also has significant areas of deprivation, including parts of the 

eastern and central areas.  However, like most towns of this size, there are 
parts of the borough which are relatively affluent.   There is a need to ensure 
that the requirements of Northampton’s current and emerging population, 
businesses, investors and visitors are met in balanced and consistent 
manner.  Combined with a growing population, there is a need to plan for 
improved healthcare and wellbeing.    

 
Competing priorities   

 
64. Northampton has nationally important heritage assets including the former 

grounds of Northampton Castle, Delapre Abbey, the Queen Eleanor Cross, 
the Battlefield and local Churches, including St Peter’s Church and the Holy 
Sepulchre (one of only four round churches in the country), plus conservation 
areas and other important listed buildings.   These heritage assets provide 
valuable resources to the town, not just from a historic and architectural point 
of view but also from an economic perspective through tourism.  It is therefore 
a challenge for Northampton to deliver homes and jobs, but without impacting 
adversely on the survival of these assets. 

 
65. Equally important are the vast numbers of open spaces and green 

infrastructure in Northampton, which provide residents and visitors with health 
benefits, as well as education in nature conservation matters.  These include 
the Local Nature Reserves, Abington Park, the Racecourse, and various 
green spaces and recreational areas located within the Borough.  Ongoing 

60



26 

 

pressure to deliver houses and jobs means that some of the spaces which are 
assessed as being less valuable could be lost, and the issue of balance and 
meeting competing priorities is challenging.                                              

 
 

Opportunities 
 

Brownfield Land and the Enterprise Zone 
 

66. Brownfield and vacant sites, including those listed in the Northampton 
Brownfield Land Register and Land Availability Assessment, show that there 
are opportunities for development on these sites.  It is accepted that some 
these sites may have constraints which have deterred developers from 
developing.  However, ongoing partnership approaches and flexible, viable 
policies (including the flexible approach of permitted development rights) may 
result in more positive outcomes for these sites.  

 
67. The Enterprise Zone continues to provide opportunities for both new 

developments and expansion schemes.  Commercial operators have already 
benefitted from these opportunities including the relocation of an operator 
from Brackmills to a much larger and modern property within the Enterprise 
Zone. 

 
Economic Opportunities 

 
68. There is a further economic development opportunity in developing a co-

ordinated strategy to emphasise the historic identity of the borough, its 
heritage assets, open spaces and opportunities to repurpose the town centre.  
This could help to attract investment from relocating businesses, improve 
rates of business tourism and build the borough’s attractiveness for wider 
tourism as well as injecting new life into the town centre by welcoming wide 
ranging new roles including more cultural and leisure related services. 

 
Sustainable Urban Extensions 

 
69. The Sustainable Urban Extensions set out in Figure 9 will continue to create 

new neighbourhoods in Northampton, providing housing and community 
facilities to meet the needs of current and future residents. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

61



27 

 

Figure 9: Sustainable Urban Extensions within the  
Northampton Related Development Area 

 

 
Strategic Rail Opportunities 

 
70. As part of efforts to ensure that Northampton can play a full role in the 

development of the Oxford – Cambridge Corridor, the Borough Council is 
seeking to maximise opportunities to increase the connectivity and range of 
destinations served by rail. Outside the Borough, work has started on 
construction of High Speed 2 (HS2), which will provide a high speed rail link 
between London and Birmingham initially, with a later phase proposed to link 
further to Leeds and Manchester.  An advantage of this for Northampton, 
which the Council supports, is that this offers potential to release capacity on 
the West Coast Main Line (WCML), with the possibility that new service 
patterns could be introduced, perhaps including fast, long distance services 
calling at Northampton, increasing the range of destinations available.  
Network Rail is investigating opportunities for these new service patterns. 

 
71. Preparatory work is also underway for East West Rail, linking Oxford with 

Cambridge.  With Northampton Borough Council’s active support as part of 
the East West Rail Consortium, England’s Economic Heartland (the local 
subnational transport body) is pressing for Network Rail’s work on releasing 
capacity on the WCML to consider the opportunity to develop direct services 
on the Northampton – Milton Keynes- Aylesbury High Wycombe – Old Oak 
Common axis, further widening the range of rail connections for Northampton. 

 
72. A further opportunity to improve links from the north to Northampton and more 

widely to the Oxford – Cambridge Corridor is presented by the possibility of 
providing new transport links along the alignment of the former Northampton 
to Market Harborough railway line.  This is potentially an important 
contribution to wider growth aspirations associated with the Oxford – 
Cambridge Corridor. 

 

62



28 

 

CHAPTER 3 
VISION AND BOROUGH OBJECTIVES 

 
VISION 

 
73. The Vision provides an indication of what Northampton would be like by 2029, 

not just in terms of its physical landscape, but also how its role in meeting the 
needs of residents, investors and visitors will have evolved. 

 
74. This Vision draws on the version included in the West Northamptonshire Joint 

Core Strategy but has been amended to reflect the characteristics that are 
more particular and current to Northampton.  The Vision also takes into 
account the comments submitted in earlier Local Plan consultations.  

 
Vision 
 
By 2029 Northampton will be the heart of West Northamptonshire, playing a 
key role in the Oxford – Cambridge Corridor.  Northampton will provide a 
balanced range of high quality housing to meet differing housing needs and 
aspirations and offer an excellent quality of life for its communities.  Services, 
facilities and infrastructure will also support communities, adding to the 
quality of life and supporting residents and visitors.  Based upon a thriving 
mixed economy and associated services, it will be a place where history, 
innovation and regeneration are mutually supportive.   There will be continuing 
pride in the Royal and Derngate Theatres, museums including the 
Northampton Museum and Art Gallery, and professional sports teams such as 
Northampton Town Football Club, Northampton Saints Rugby Club and 
Northamptonshire County Cricket Club.  Northampton will have strengthened 
its role as the leading social centre within the county for cultural, commerce, 
leisure and entertainment, employment and health.  Through the University of 
Northampton, there will be first class and modern learning activities and 
facilities to be proud of.   
 
Northampton will be a great UK location for a range of employment 
opportunities, as well as achieving high levels of proficiency in both academic 
and vocational education.  The Borough will build on its economic strengths, 
including its location at the heart of the county and in the Oxford – Cambridge 
Corridor and as a prime area nationally for high performance engineering and 
as a logistics and distribution centre.    
 
Northampton will blend high quality design choices with outstanding public 
open spaces, distinctive historic character, an enhanced riverside setting and 
a network of green spaces and high quality parks.  The Borough will also be a 
leading example of low environmental impact and resilient development in 
response to climate change. 
 
Northampton will be better connected and have a sustainable and highly 
accessible transport network that is recognised locally, regionally and 

63



29 

 

nationally.   
 
 
 
 
BOROUGH STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
 
The strategic objectives are based on those in the West Northamptonshire Joint 
Core Strategy Local Plan Part 1, but they have been updated to taking into account 
consultation responses to date and more recent evidence. 
 
The objectives are: 
 
Objective 1 – High quality design and Place Shaping 
 
To achieve high quality design that takes account of and improves local character 
and heritage and provides a safe, healthy and attractive place for residents, visitors 
and businesses. 
 
Objective 2 – Housing 
 
To provide a range of housing in sustainable locations, seeking to ensure all 
residents have access to a home they can afford, and that meets their needs. 
 
Objective 3 – Supporting the town centre 
 
To drive the regeneration of Northampton’s town centre and improve visitor and 
investor experience by making it the focus of social networking, where people have 
access to commerce, leisure and culture, heritage, wide ranging employment 
opportunities and retail options at the heart of Northamptonshire in an attractive 
environment.  To improve accessibility into the town centre to increase its 
attractiveness as a destination of choice. 
 
Objective 4 – Economic advantage 
 
To strengthen and diversify Northampton’s economy by taking advantage of our 
internationally well placed location, strategic transport network and proximity to 
London and Birmingham. To capitalise on the opportunities offered by the Oxford to 
Cambridge Arc.  
 
Objective 5 – Specialist business development 
 
To support and develop opportunities for specialist employment clusters and 
business development focused on a low carbon economy. To maximise the 
opportunities offered by a regenerated town centre and the Enterprise Zone.   
 
 
 
 

64



30 

 

Objective 6 – Heritage 
 
To conserve, and where possible, enhance through carefully managed change, the 
heritage assets and their settings, and to recognise and elevate their role in 
providing a sense of place and local distinctiveness. 
 
Objective 7 – Protecting and building communities 
 
To ensure new development in urban areas actively supports and links new and 
existing communities physically and socially, to achieve social cohesion and address 
the areas of deprivation identified in parts of the Borough. 
 
Objective 8 – Public Health 
 
To promote healthier and safer communities by supporting the creation of and 
protecting shared facilities, improving connectivity and securing high quality design. 
 
Objective 9 – Educational attainment 
 
To raise educational achievement and the skills base of our communities through 
supporting the development of our learning infrastructure and strengthening links 
between local businesses and local schools, Moulton and Northampton Colleges and 
the University of Northampton. 
 
Objective 10 – Green Infrastructure 
 
To conserve natural habitats and species, seek to provide net gains in biodiversity 
where possible and enhance the existing strategic green infrastructure network by 
incorporating and designing these into sustainable urban extensions.  
 
Objective 11 – Connections 
To reduce the need to travel, shorten travel distances and make sustainable travel a 
priority and an attractive option across Northampton by maximising the use of 
alternative travel modes.  In so doing, the Plan will combat congestion, reduce 
carbon emissions and address social exclusion for those who do not have access to 
a private car.  In addition, to ensure a much wider range of destinations will be 
accessible by direct railway services from Northampton, including some fast, long 
distance services. 
 
Objective 12 – Climate change 
 
To minimise demand for resources and mitigate and adapt to climate change by: 
 

• Promoting sustainable design and construction in all new development 
• Ensuring strategic development allocations are located and designed so as to 

be resilient to future climate change and risk of flooding 
• Encouraging renewable energy production in appropriate locations and 
• Ensuring new development promotes the use of sustainable travel modes 

 

65



31 

 

Objective 13 – Infrastructure and Development 
 
To protect and enhance local services and to ensure social, physical, green and 
technology infrastructure is adequately provided to meet the needs of people and 
business in a timely and sustainable manner in response to regeneration and new 
development.  To ensure that the relevant utilities are provided prior to occupancy. 

66



32 

 

CHAPTER 4 
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

 
75. An aim of this local plan is to ensure that the growth requirements for 

Northampton are met in a sustainable manner.  This means that 
Northampton’s needs, including those for housing, jobs, retail and leisure, 
should be met in such a way as not to adversely impact on its built and natural 
environmental assets.   

 
76. Sustainable development has three dimensions – economic, social and 

environmental.  This is reflected in the National Planning Policy Framework 
and the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy.  This Plan’s policy for 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development takes those policies 
into account.  

 
 
POLICY 1 
PRESUMPTION IN FAVOUR OF SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 
When considering development proposals in Northampton, the Council will maintain 
a positive and flexible approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.  The Council will 
always work proactively, and be sufficiently flexible, with applicants jointly to find 
solutions and respond to rapid change.  This means that sustainable development 
proposals will be approved and developments that improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area can be secured. 
 
Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan (and, where 
relevant, with other development plan policies) will be approved without delay, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.   
 
Where there are no policies relevant to a planning application or relevant policies are 
out of date at the time of making the decision, then Northampton Borough Council 
will grant permission unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The Council 
will take into account whether there are any adverse impacts of granting permission 
which would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed 
against the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy SA (Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development) 
 
 
 
 
 

67



33 

 

CHAPTER 5 
QUALITY OF NEW DEVELOPMENT 

 
PLACE MAKING AND HIGH QUALITY DESIGN PRINCIPLES 

 
77. Good design is fundamental to the creation of high quality places in which to 

live and work.  Good design is indivisible from good planning.  High quality 
places, are formed from the combination of well-designed buildings and 
spaces with good connections between them, that can endure, are distinctive, 
and can allow communities to flourish, are environmentally sustainable and 
connect physically and socially with the surrounding area.  As such, good 
design is key to achieving sustainable development.  It is for this reason that 
the Local Plan Part 2 contains robust and comprehensive policies that set out 
the quality of development that will be expected.  High quality and sustainable 
design can also deliver benefits for healthy living by supporting more active 
lifestyles, providing places for social interaction, and enabling interaction with 
nature, which all help benefit physical and mental health.  Well designed and 
built homes and, commercial buildings and neighbourhoods also have legacy 
benefits as they often retain their general appeal, value and marketability 
throughout their lifetime.  New residents and businesses are more likely to 
take pride of place and support efforts to help maintain and invest in the 
buildings and neighbourhoods if they are of high quality design and build at 
the outset. 

 
78. The integration of high quality design with existing development need not be 

at the expense of innovation.   
 

79. Northampton has a rich and distinctive built and natural environment which 
helps to give the borough its identity.  However, the Northampton Urban 
Design Appraisal 2016 identifies that Northampton’s local distinctiveness has 
not always been positively incorporated into developments because of a lack 
of attention to design quality. By conserving and complementing the best of 
the borough’s built and natural environment, through high quality design, the 
town will become a more attractive, inclusive, healthy place for people to live 
and work, and be more attractive to businesses wishing to invest in the 
borough.  

 
80. Accordingly, policies in this Plan must ensure that a distinct sense of place 

and high environmental quality is incorporated into new development.   

 

81. All development should be well designed and of a high quality, meeting urban 
design principles outlined in The Design Companion for Planning and 
Placemaking10. The Council also believes that meeting Building for Life 

                                                           
10 Design Companion for Planning and Placemaking (Urban Design London 2017) 

68



34 

 

criteria helps achieve urban design principles. Building for Life   is a national 
standard for well-designed homes and neighbourhoods. The Council supports 
use of BfL, or a successor standard as well as other relevant guidance, 
including the Design Companion for Placemaking, to help structure pre-
application discussions between local communities, the Council and the 
developer of a proposed scheme. 

 
 
POLICY 2 
PLACEMAKING  
 
Development should be designed to promote and contribute to good placemaking 
through high quality, innovative and sustainable design which encourages the 
creation of a strong, locally distinctive sense of place by: 
 

• Being well designed for the intended use(s), attractive and adaptable to future 
requirements 
 

• Incorporating a mix of easily accessible facilities for day to day living, or 
providing easy access to those facilities nearby  
 

• Creating healthy environments that encourage people to walk and cycle to 
reach local facilities and facilitate recreation. 
 

• Responding to and enhancing locally distinct townscape, landscape and 
historic environment characteristics  

 
• Retaining, enhancing and creating important views and vistas into, out of and 

through the site responding to topography and landform where such 
opportunities arise.  

 
• Sustaining, protecting and enhancing heritage and natural environment 

assets, including prospective non-designated assets and setting and those 
included on Local Lists as well as those already statutorily protected. 
Additionally future development must not leave these assets vulnerable to risk 
and, wherever possible, should promote the use, understanding and 
enjoyment of the historic and natural environments as an integral part of good 
placemaking 

 
• Having regard to safeguarding or enhancing the setting of locally distinct 

places, including those found in Conservation Area Appraisals, in terms of 
scale, design, landform and integration within the existing local context to 
protect their identified important and unique characteristics based on sound, 
consistent analysis 

 
• Including high quality public realm for streets and public spaces incorporating 

features such as public art as an opportunity to reinforce and enhance 

69



35 

 

legibility, character and local distinctiveness 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy C2 (New Developments) 
Policy N1 (The Regeneration of Northampton) 
 

82. To complement the placemaking policy, it is necessary to have detailed 
design criteria as set out in Policy 3. 

 
POLICY 3 
DESIGN 
 
To assist in the achievement of good placemaking, new developments should be 
designed to: 
 

• Perform positively against Building for Life (or successor advice) criteria; 
• Incorporate Design Coding (in the case of major developments) 
• Create legible street layouts and public spaces with good pedestrian/cycle 

routes and public transport access,  high quality landscaping and street 
furniture, avoiding a motor vehicle-dominated approach; and 

• Demonstrate how they respond to and incorporate climate change and 
adaptation into the design process 

 
Small scale developments including infill, corner plot and backland development 
fronting a street, should ensure continuity in the way the buildings enclose and relate 
to the street. Small scale developments should respect their context. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy C2 (New Developments) 
Policy N1 (The Regeneration of Northampton) 
 

AMENITY AND LAYOUT 
 

83. External private space is important in creating homes that meet people’s 
needs and support appropriate living conditions.  External private spaces 
should be proportionate to the size of the dwelling and the expected make-up 
of the household that is likely to occupy it.  External private space should 
enable occupants to enjoy their home, allowing place for play and socialising 
and catering for domestic needs, such as storage of refuse, drying clothes, 
storing bicycles and other items typically too large to be comfortably stored 
within the dwelling.  Flatted accommodation will also be required to make 
adequate provision for external private space. Where this is not possible, 
communal external space should be designed to maximise amenity for users, 
with careful design of communal refuse storage and cycle parking areas.   
 

84. When converting a property into a house in multiple occupation, the landlord/ 
property owner must provide acceptable standards, for example, for room 
sizes, lighting and internal layout.  In addition, internal space standards within 
new dwellings play an important part in ensuring that the resident’s quality of 

70



36 

 

life and wellbeing are appropriately considered.  Space standards are 
intended to ensure that new dwellings provide a reasonable level of internal 
space to undertake day to day activities at a given level of occupancy.  The 
Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS) deals with internal space within 
new dwellings and is suitable for application across all tenures.  The Council 
undertook desktop research of just over 100 housing developments granted 
planning permission between 2015 and 2018, and concluded that around half 
of the schemes meet most of the guidance set out in the NDDS. 

 
 
POLICY 4 
AMENITY AND LAYOUT 
 
Development will be required to create and protect a high standard of amenity for 
buildings and external open space. In particular new development should ensure: 
 

• New development is not overbearing upon existing buildings or open spaces 
• External private or communal garden space, in its extent and design, meets 

the reasonable needs of its users. The design of new communal garden areas 
should seek to create spaces that provide opportunities for privacy or 
seclusion for residents 

• The outlook and visual amenity afforded from within buildings and private / 
communal garden areas should be satisfactory taking account of the 
relationship with neighbouring buildings and the wider street scene, including 
the design of parking, boundary treatments and landscaping. 

• Shared circulation space and routes to private entrances within flatted 
development should be of sufficient width, be welcoming, and be naturally lit 
wherever possible 

• Provision of the at least the minimum internal space standards and storage 
areas as described nationally  

• Provision of adequate facilities for refuse and storage which are effectively 
designed in terms of use, access and layout 

• Levels of sunlight and daylight within buildings are satisfactory 
 

Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy H1 (Housing Density and Mix and Type of Dwellings) 
Policy H2 (Affordable Housing) 
Policy H5 (Managing the Existing Housing Stock) 
Policy N2 (The Regeneration of Northampton) 
 

SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 
 

85. Climate change in the future is expected to increase frequency and intensity 
of some of the extreme weather events. The response to climate change is 
one of the greatest challenges facing the country.  Northampton is 
experiencing shorter, milder winters, but increasing incidents of extreme 
weather events, the most notable of these include the Easter floods of 1998.  

 

71



37 

 

86. The National Planning Policy Framework sets out that the planning system 
should support the transition to a low carbon future, in a changing climate and 
support renewable and low carbon energy, by taking a proactive approach to 
mitigating and adapting to climate change.    

 
87. The core principles of sustainable design and construction are reflected in a 

number of policies within the WNJCS. In particular Policy S10 seeks to reduce 
the impact of climate change though sustainable development principles. 
WNJCS Policy S11 seeks greater energy efficiency in the building 
construction stage and the implementation of low carbon and renewable 
energy.  

 
88. Following the Government’s housing standards review which rationalised the 

large number of codes, standards, rules, regulations and guidance and 
collated the Code for Sustainable Homes into Building Regulations, the 
Council cannot implement the Code for Sustainable Homes in full.  However, 
the Council can set and apply policies which ensure compliance with national 
standards. Policy H4 WNJCS set out that residential development must be 
designed to provide accommodation that meets the requirements of the 
Lifetime Home Standards.     

 
89. There are two scales of renewable energy.  It may take the form of building 

integrated schemes or micro-renewable installations and larger scale strategic 
projects or infrastructure schemes. As Northampton is an urban authority, the 
renewable energy potential for Northampton is more likely to consist of Solar 
PV.  These are versatile with deployment possible in a wide range of locations 
including on domestic and commercial buildings. The UK has seen a 
significant level of solar PV deployment over recent years and with the major 
sustainable urban extensions planned for Northampton there is a real 
potential for detailed design to optimise passive solar gain and, where 
appropriate, integrated photovoltaics. Also the majority of new buildings are 
now being designed to maximise the potential for roof top solar gain. 

 
90. There is a need to reduce the amount of waste that is sent to landfill and 

generating energy from waste by the way of a combined heat and power 
station is one way of doing this. This might be appropriate in large schemes 
including Sustainable Urban Extensions. 
 

91. The greatest reductions of CO2 will be achieved by reducing energy use and 
improving energy efficiency but also increasing the proportion of energy from 
renewable energy. The potential energy resource from renewable 
technologies in Northampton can make a contribution to reducing carbon 
emissions from fossil fuels.  
 

92. The Council is committed to tackling climate change by reducing energy 
consumption and thereby reducing carbon emissions, through the process of 
sustainable development and design and the encouragement of the use of 

72



38 

 

low carbon energy technologies such as Combined Heat and Power on large 
scale developments and solar technology on all suitable developments.   

 
POLICY 5 
SUSTAINABLE CONSTRUCTION 
 
To aid the effective implementation of the Core Strategy Sustainable Development 
polices, development proposals should: 
 

• Consider sustainable design at the beginning of the development process 
• Adapt development, but not at the detriment of the particular assets of the 

site 
• Where possible, incorporate decentralised energy networks through 

Combined Heat and Power systems 
• Ensure that new buildings and refurbishment of existing building stock 

adopt sustainable construction methods  
• Actively promote energy efficiency and use of renewable energy sources 

where there is opportunity to do so  
• Ensure renewable energy design and installation does not create a negative 

effect on the local area in term of; noise, views, character of the area, 
residential amenity  

 
For residential development, proposals should demonstrate that dwellings meet 
the Building Regulation optional higher water efficiency standard of 110 litres per 
person per day, as set out in Building Regulations Part G2. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy S10 (Sustainable Development Principles) 
Policy S11 (Low Carbon and Renewable Energy) 
Policy H4 (Sustainable Housing) 
 

FLOOD RISK AND WATER MANAGEMENT 
 

93. The River Nene and its tributaries are a significant feature of the town, with 
new development having the potential to increase the risk of flooding from a 
range of different sources. West Northamptonshire Core Strategy Policy BN7 
supports development that comply with the flood risk assessment and 
management requirements set out in NPPF and the West Northamptonshire 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessments. 
 

94. Northamptonshire County Council (NCC) is the lead local flood authority 
(LLFA) and is responsible for the coordination and management of flood risk. 
Since the adoption of the West Northamptonshire Core Strategy, two further 
documents have been introduced to assist in the reduction of flood risk.  
 

95. It is not possible to eliminate all the risk of flooding. The Northamptonshire 
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy produced by Northamptonshire 
County Council, sets out a framework of measures to manage local flood risk. 

73



39 

 

The strategy sets out a collaborative approach to reducing flood risk within 
Northamptonshire.  
 

96. In addition, NCC has published Local Standards and Guidance for Surface 
Water Drainage in Northamptonshire11. The guide is a living document, which 
is updated regularly with new emerging information. The guide is designed to 
assist developers in the design of surface water drainage system and to 
support local planning authorities in considering drainage proposal for new 
developments.  

 
POLICY 6 
FLOOD RISK AND WATER MANAGEMENT 
 
Proposals that assist in the management of flood risk and ensure flood risk is not 
increased elsewhere, and proposals which comply with relevant guidance for flood 
risk management and standards for surface water will be supported. 
 
For all new development, suitable access must be provided and maintained for water 
supply and drainage infrastructure 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy BN7 (Flood Risk) 

                                                           
11 https://www.floodtoolkit.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Local-Standards-for-publication-v1.3-
September-2017.pdf 

74

https://www.floodtoolkit.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Local-Standards-for-publication-v1.3-September-2017.pdf
https://www.floodtoolkit.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Local-Standards-for-publication-v1.3-September-2017.pdf


40 

 

CHAPTER 6 
NORTHAMPTON REGENERATION STRATEGY 

 
CENTRAL AREA AND TOWN CENTRE STRATEGY 

 
97. The Local Plan continues to play a part in supporting the role that town 

centres perform at the heart of the communities and this is emphasised in the 
National Planning Policy Framework.  The superseded 2012 NPPF sought to 
support town centres to generate local employment, and promote beneficial 
competition within and between town centres.  However, there is a degree of 
recognition that the role of town centres may be changing due to the 
nationwide changes associated with changing spending patterns and the 
impact of technology on shopping behaviours.   
 

98. Planning policies should therefore take a positive approach towards town 
centre growth, management and adaptation.  This emphasises the critical 
point that the roles of town centres are changing and the plan needs to 
provide a degree of flexibility which will allow it to adapt accordingly and grow 
in accordance with the needs of the investors, visitors and residents.   

 
99. Northampton Central Area incorporates the town centre and its immediate 

surroundings (see Figure 10).   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

75



41 

 

Figure 10:  The Central Area and the Town Centre boundaries 
 

 
 
100. The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy identified the town centre as 

a regional town centre, stating that Northampton is the largest urban area and 
the main commercial, administrative, cultural and retail centre for 
Northamptonshire.  
 

101. The Joint Core Strategy adds that Northampton has a particular influence 
across Northamptonshire and due to its size, function and location in the 
national context, the town will continue to generate and attract in-migration. 
Policy N1 states that the regeneration of Northampton will be supported by a 
range of measures including a focus on Northampton’s town centre and 
Central Area for office, retail, leisure and service development providing high 
quality urban design and public realm and protecting its heritage assets and 
historic character.   
 

102. Northampton’s Retail and Leisure Study12 concluded that Northampton town 
centre is performing well, with a strong leisure sector.  It is particularly well 
provided for in terms of retail, leisure and financial/ business services, which 
have grown substantially as a proportion of the centres’ units and floorspace 

                                                           
12 Northampton Retail and Leisure Study, Nexus Planning, September 2018) 

76



42 

 

since 2010, responding to changing shopper demands for a centre that seems 
to cater well for to both the resident population and the wider region.  As a 
primary designated centre within the Borough and a Regional Town Centre, 
Northampton is ideally placed to respond to the ever revolving retail market 
and changing shopping habits. 

 
POLICY 7 
SUPPORTING NORTHAMPTON TOWN CENTRE 
 
In the town centre, as defined on the policies map, the Council will continue to 
support proposals and schemes which contribute positively towards the range of 
retail, leisure and service based offers, to accommodate the changing role of 
Northampton’s town centre and to improve visitor experience.   
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy S2 (Hierarchy of Centres) 
Policy N1 (The Regeneration of Northampton) 
 

CENTRAL AREA AND TOWN CENTRE SITE ALLOCATIONS 
 
103. The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy acknowledges the 

importance of the town’s Central Area in accommodating a variety of town 
centre uses such as offices, retail and leisure as well as providing homes.  In 
particular, the SEMLEP Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone is 
considered to be the area that will act as a catalyst to accelerate growth and 
regeneration opportunities.   

 
104. The Retail and Leisure Study recommended that the Local Plan allocate a 

range of suitable sites to meet the scale and type of development likely to be 
needed over the next 10 years.  The Study recognised that residential 
development often plays an important role in ensuring the vitality centres and 
therefore encourages these on appropriate sites.   In addition, economic 
growth in the town centre will also attract and retain a greater number of 
graduates13.  A strategy which actively promotes and supports investments in 
regeneration will contribute to the attraction of the town centre and 
subsequent growth in student retention.   

 

105. Within the town centre and the wider Central Area, there are prime sites which 
provide opportunities to deliver a range of town centre uses as well as provide 
additional housing to meet local housing needs.  The Central Area has six 
designated Conservation Areas - St Giles, Holy Sepulchre, All Saints, 
Derngate, Billing Road and the Boot and Shoe Quarter.  There are also other 
additional heritage assets which will need to be taken into account when 
considering development proposals.  

 
 

                                                           
13 The Great British Brain Drain (Centre for Cities, November 2016) 

77



43 

 

POLICY 8 
REGENERATION OPPORTUNITIES  
 
Town Centre 
 
The Council will continue to support schemes which will contribute positively towards 
the regeneration of the town centre, particularly where the schemes provide a 
balanced mix towards meeting the requirements for town centre uses and housing 
delivery whilst respecting and enhancing the heritage assets. In particular, 
regeneration of the Greyfriars site, as shown on the Policies Map, is encouraged.  
This is a vacant site which was previously occupied by the bus and coach station.  It 
adjoins the Grosvenor Shopping Centre.  Proposals should conform to the site 
specific proposal for Greyfriars as outlined in Policy 37. 
 
Central Area 
 
In addition, the Council will also support the regeneration of sites within the Central 
Area, which will deliver opportunities for housing and economic development for the 
benefit of Northampton’s residents and investors.  The sites, most of which are in the 
Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone, are considered suitable for regeneration in 
the Central Area are: 
 

• Castle Station – passenger and railfreight areas.  Any proposals should 
conform to Policy 34 of this Local Plan 

• Four Waterside – located to the east of Castle Station and the Innovation 
Centre 

• St Peter’s Way – to the north of the Lidl Supermarket and B&Q  
• Ransome Road – to the south of the University of Northampton Waterside 

campus.  Any proposals should conform to Policy 38 of this Local Plan 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy N1 (the regeneration of Northampton) 
Policy N2 (Northampton Central Area) 
 

UNIVERSITY OF NORTHAMPTON 
 
106. The new University of Northampton’s Waterside campus, which opened in 

September 2018, is located in the Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone, 
covering an area of around 20 hectares alongside the River Nene and is 
within 10 minutes’ walk of the town centre.   A relatively new university, 
Northampton University was formed in 1999 by an amalgamation of a number 
of training colleges and gained full University status in 2005.  Originally based 
on two campus sites, the new University campus draws all its facilities onto a 
single, more accessible location, bringing with it over 12,000 students.  The 
presence of the relocated University is likely to be influential in the direction of 
the economic growth of the town centre and its wider area.   
 

107. The Waterside campus provides not just teaching facilities at all levels from 
undergraduate degrees to doctorate qualifications, it also has facilities which 

78



44 

 

will support students, staff and students’ families through the provision of a 
hotel, student accommodation and sports facilities.  The University, its staff, 
students and their families therefore make a positive cultural and economic 
impact on Northampton and its surrounding areas.  It has been reported that 
the institution as a whole has created a £290m boost to the County of 
Northamptonshire and generated more than 2,700 jobs.14 
 

108. The University plays a crucial role in ensuring that Northampton produces 
graduates with the right skills to contribute towards the town’s economy.  
However, it will also have a major role in attracting investment through 
housing growth and employment opportunities.  It is essential that the 
University be supported in order to ensure that a ready-made supply of 
graduates, capable of meeting local labour requirements, is met.  In addition, 
its location in the town centre will contribute to its viability and vitality, because 
students and their families will be taking advantage of the offer within the area 
including its cultural, heritage, leisure and retail provision, adding to their 
investment and growth.  

 
POLICY 9 
SUPPORTING AND SAFEGUARDING THE UNIVERSITY OF NORTHAMPTON 
WATERSIDE CAMPUS 
 
The role and contribution of Northampton University will be supported through the 
safeguarding of the site for education purposes.  Any enhancements to the existing 
facilities, and improved connectivity to the town centre, will be welcomed provided 
the schemes meet the design and sustainable construction requirements of this 
Plan.   
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy E6 (Education, Skills and Training) 
 

TOURISM AND HOTELS 
 
109 Northampton will capitalise on the tourism sector as part of its town centre 

strategy by supporting the needs generated by the sector, primarily in the 
accommodation sector.  The borough has a number of facilities which are not 
just tourist attractions.  Some also perform a role in community facility 
provision, for example, offering venues for special social ocassions. 

 
110 This principle is embedded in the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy 

Policy E7, which supports proposals for tourism, visitor and cultural 
developments provided certain criteria are met. It applies the sequential test 

                                                           
14 https://www.northampton.ac.uk/news/new-jobs-for-northamptonshire-residents-thanks-to-waterside-
campus/ 

 

79

https://www.northampton.ac.uk/news/new-jobs-for-northamptonshire-residents-thanks-to-waterside-campus/
https://www.northampton.ac.uk/news/new-jobs-for-northamptonshire-residents-thanks-to-waterside-campus/


45 

 

by requiring attractions and facilities of a significant scale to be located firstly 
within town centres, then edge of town centres and then at other locations.   

 
111. The Hotel Study15 concluded that the Borough Council could prioritise full 

service, international brand 3 and 4 star hotels with conference, banqueting 
and leisure facilities, to help in attracting major national and international 
companies to the Enterprise Zone and to develop Northampton as a 
conference destination.  

 
POLICY 10 
MANAGING HOTEL GROWTH 
 
Proposals for new hotel development including aparthotels and serviced apartment 
complexes will be supported in the following locations: 
 

• Within the town centre boundary as defined in the Policies Map 
• Within the Enterprise Zone boundary as defined in the Policies Map 

 
Developments for hotels in any other locations which apply the sequential test and 
demonstrate that the scheme will attract new leisure and business tourism demand 
without substantially undermining the potential for new hotels to be delivered in the 
town centre and in the Enterprise Zone will also be supported. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy E7 (Tourism, Visitor and Cultural Industries) 
 

REGENERATION IN AREAS OUTSIDE THE TOWN CENTRE 
 
112. The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy acknowledges that a 

combination of factors including the regeneration and reuse of previously 
developed land and sustainable urban extensions will add high calibre 
housing, local services and facilities as well as sustainable transport 
connections to the town centre.  It adds that Northampton will be a major 
regional and cultural economic driver for the wider area.  Northampton’s 
regeneration is expected to be supported by a range of measures including a 
focus on the town centre for commerce, leisure, service and heritage as well 
as addressing pockets of deprivation in areas such as Spring Boroughs, Kings 
Heath and Northampton East.  

 
113. The Retail and Leisure Study recommended that where suitable and viable 

town centre sites are not available for main town centre uses, the Local Plan 
should allocate appropriate edge of centre sites that are well connected to the 
town centre.  If sufficient edge of centre sites cannot be identified, policies 
should explain how identified needs can be met in other accessible locations 
that are well connected to the town centre. 

 

                                                           
15 Hotel Study (Hotel Solutions, 2016) 

80



46 

 

114. In addition to development opportunities identified through the local plan, 
Neighbourhood Plans also include policies to address deprivation and 
encourage regeneration.  So far, three Neighbourhood Plans have been 
made.  They are the Duston Neighbourhood Plan (made 2015), the Spring 
Boroughs Neighbourhood Plan (made 2016) and the Growing Together 
Neighbourhood Plan (made 2018).  

 
115. In addition, there are eight Sustainable Urban Extensions within Northampton 

(some straddle the borough boundary) which have been allocated in the Joint 
Core Strategy with a view to delivering housing requirements as well as 
address the shortage of education, support the establishment of local facilities 
including retail for day to day needs and employment, as well as open spaces.  
When delivered, these will contribute towards regenerating Northampton as 
well as improving the prospects of Northampton’s residents and investors.  

 
POLICY 11 
DEVELOPMENT OF MAIN TOWN CENTRE USES 
 
The Council supports the development of an appropriate mix of main town centre 
and residential uses in the town centre and the Central Area.  Where suitable and 
viable sites are not available for main town centre uses in the town centre, support 
will be given for appropriate edge of centre sites that are well connected to the town 
centre.  
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy N1 (The Regeneration of Northampton) 
Policy N2 (Northampton Central Area) 

81



47 

 

  
CHAPTER 7 
HOUSING  

 
HOUSING DELIVERY 

 
Current Provision 

 
116. West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (JCS) Policy S3 sets the housing 

requirement for Northampton Borough from 2011 to 2029 at about 18,870 
dwellings.  7073 of these dwellings (37%) are set to be provided in the 
Sustainable Urban Extensions (SUEs) allocated in the JCS.  By 1st April 
2018, 5,138 dwellings had been delivered, against a JCS requirement to 
allocate sufficient sites (allowing for windfall) to accommodate 6,613 new 
dwellings in Northampton by that time.  The number of dwellings delivered by 
1st April 2018 falls some 1,475 units short of the delivery trajectory16 set out in 
the JCS (see Table 6).   

 
117. The profile of the JCS delivery trajectory was heavily influenced by economic 

conditions and intelligence at the time it was being progressed.  The trajectory 
envisaged that between 2014/15 and 2023/24, an annual completion rate of 
over 1,000 dwellings (peaking at 1,588 in 2019/20) was deliverable.  This has 
not materialised.  This is mainly because delivery of new dwellings at the 
SUEs has been relatively slow.  One of the consequences of this is that it is 
forecast that not all of the dwellings expected to be delivered by the SUEs, will 
be completed before 1st April 2029.   Table 6 below also shows the housing 
commitments for the Sustainable Urban Extensions. Graph 1 illustrates this 
persistent under-delivery against the JCS proposed housing delivery 
trajectory. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                           
16 West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (adopted 2014) 

82



48 

 

Graph 1:  
Housing delivery in Northampton against the Joint Core Strategy proposed 

housing delivery trajectory 
 

 
 
118. Northampton’s Five Year Housing Land Supply Assessment for April 2018 

shows that Northampton has under delivered against the JCS target over the 
last 4 years.17 It was anticipated that, to accord with the NPPF, a buffer of 20% 
would have needed to be added to the supply of deliverable sites.  However, in 
2018, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government introduced 
a new methodology for measuring housing delivery.18 The first Housing 
Delivery Test concluded that Northampton Borough passed the test and 
therefore only needs a 5% buffer for the first 5 years.19  An assessment of 
Northampton’s five year housing land supply also confirmed that windfall sites 
of under 200 dwellings have the capacity to generate in the region of 300 
dwellings per annum.  This is a figure that has consistently been delivered over 
the last 10 years.  It is anticipated that this trend will continue, and potentially 
increase, in the short to medium term due to Government changes to permitted 

                                                           
17 Northampton Housing Technical Paper (Northampton Borough Council, March 2019) 

18 Housing Delivery Test measurement rulebook (MHCLG, July 2018) 

19 Northampton Housing Technical Paper (Northampton Borough Council, March 2019) 

83



49 

 

development rights (which include flexibility for changes of use from 
employment and other commercial uses to residential).   

 
Table 6: Housing commitments (including Joint Core Strategy allocations), 

proposed allocations and windfall 
 

 JCS requirement 
2011-2018 

Net completions 
2011-18 

Delivery of 
dwellings 
compared to JCS 
requirement 

Total dwellings 6,613 5,138 -1,475 

 

Site name Status as at 1st April 
2018 

Dwellings 
completed 
as at 1st 
April 2018 

Remaining 
capacity to 
1st April 
2029 

Remaining 
capacity 
forecast to be 
delivered after 
1st April 2029 

N5 (Northampton 
South SUE 

Not implemented. 
N/2013/1035 (outline 
permission) 
Reserve matters for 
phase 1 – 349 dwellings 
approved 

0 950 50 

N6 (Northampton 
South of 
Brackmills) 

Not implemented. 
N/2013/0338 (appeal 
allowed) 

0 1100  

N7 (Northampton 
Kings Heath SUE – 
Dallington Grange) 

Not implemented. 
N/2014/1929 (live 
application) 

0 1997 803 

N9 (Northampton 
Upton Park SUE) 

Not implemented. 
N/2011/0997 (outline 
approval for up to 1,000 
dwellings) 
N/2018/0426 (reserved 
matters in progress for 
860 dwellings) 
 

0 1000  

N9A (Northampton 
Upton Lodge SUE) 

N/2017/0091 
(live application for 1,400 
dwellings) 

0 2026 74 

 
Completions Existing 

commitments 
(as of 1st 
April 2018) 

Windfall 
allowance 

Sustainable 
Urban 
Extensions 

LP2 
Allocations 

Total 
Delivery 

Plan 
Target 

       
5,138 3,580 2,400 6,168 4,749 22,035 18,873 

84



50 

 

       
Difference between Plan Target and Total Delivery 
3,162 
 
119. In progressing this local plan, the Council undertook a robust Land Availability 

Assessment.  This detailed investigation concluded that the Council had 
sufficient supply to meet the requirement of about 18,870 net additional 
dwellings across the plan period and therefore complies with Policy S3 of the 
adopted Joint Core Strategy.  In addition, despite the results of the Housing 
Delivery Test and the changes to Northampton’s position on housing delivery, 
across the five years of the Local Plan (2019/20 – 2023/24), there is still a 
predicted shortfall.   

 
120. The following needs to be considered: 
 

• Much of the identified under-delivery so far has been the result of slower rates 
of housing completions in the Sustainable Urban Extensions than 
anticipated 

• The short term housing supply is constrained by the JCS’s heavy reliance on 
large SUEs for substantially meeting the Borough’s housing needs 

• The Council has researched alternative sites in the borough exhaustively 
through its Call for Sites and Land Availability Assessments.  There are no 
other sources of supply that could address this short term shortfall 

 
121. In the face of long term under-delivery, which the Council has tried to 

overcome, it is unreasonable to envisage that historic under-delivery against 
the JCS’s proposed housing delivery trajectory can be addressed in the first 
five years of the Local Plan Part 2, particularly at a time when that same 
proposed delivery trajectory set out in the JCS sets unprecedented levels of 
housing delivery. 

 
122. The Council has therefore considered it necessary to have a housing trajectory 

that differs significantly from the proposed housing trajectory set out in the JCS. 
 
123. The housing assessment for Northampton Borough concluded that there is 

sufficient capacity to deliver 22,048 dwellings over the period 2011 to 2029 (this 
figure includes all planning approvals and commitments, Sustainable Urban 
Extensions, windfalls and the housing capacity identified through the proposed 
Local Plan Part 2 developments).  The Joint Core Strategy only requires the 
delivery of 18,870 dwellings over this same period.  This means that sufficient 
capacity has been identified to deliver 3,162 dwellings more than is required by 
2029.  Further information can be found in the Housing Technical Paper 
(Northampton Borough Council, March 2019). 

 
124. Taking into account the fact that delivery rates have proven to be low since 

2011, particularly in Sustainable Urban Extensions, this surplus has been 
deducted from the requirement for 2019 – 2024 and a flat rate delivery rate of 
1,094 dwellings per year has been applied to those years.  This is a 
conservative approach which allows some contingency in case the SUEs 

85



51 

 

continue to under-deliver, but it is also challenging given that it exceeds 
previous years’ rates of delivery since 2011. 

 
125. From 2024/25 onwards, the annual requirement will step up to 1,518 dwellings 

per year.  Clearly, the higher delivery level envisaged for the last five years of 
the Plan period is ambitious, but this matter can be addressed in the West 
Northamptonshire Strategic Plan, which is timetabled to have reached adoption 
in 2022.  This will enable an early review of the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
to take place.  This revised housing delivery trajectory is set out in Table 7 and 
Graph 2. 

 
Table 7: Local Plan Part 2 Housing Delivery Trajectory 

 
Year 

 
Trajectory 

(including 5% 
buffer for 2019 - 
2024), dwellings 

Baseline Target, 
dwellings 

Proposed 
Housing 

Trajectory from 
West 

Northamptonshire 
Joint Core 

Strategy, 2014, 
dwellings 

2011-12 423 423 423 
2012-13 516 516 516 
2013-14 834 834 785 
2014-15 877 877 1,039 
2015-16 739 739 1,132 
2016-17 884 884 1,292 
2017-18 865 865 1,426 
2018-19 673 673 1,544 
2019-20 1,094 1,042 1,588 
2020-21 1,094 1,042 1,491 
2021-22 1,094 1,042 1,355 
2022-23 1,094 1,042 1,278 
2023-24 1,094 1,042 1,025 
2024-25 1,518 1,594 900 
2025-26 1,518 1,594 875 
2026-27 1,518 1,594 815 
2027-28 1,518 1,594 695 
2028-29 1,518 1,594 694 
Total 18,872 18,991 18,873 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86



52 

 

Graph 2: Northampton Local Plan housing delivery trajectory 
 

 
 
 
126. Sites have been allocated in this Plan to deliver about 4,749 new dwellings.  

Appendix A shows the trajectory for sites allocated in the Local Plan Part 2, 
which excludes the SUEs and sites already committed through planning 
approvals.  The sites below are allocated on the Policies Map for housing and 
housing led mixed use development. 

 
 
POLICY 12 
HOUSING AND OTHER HOUSING LED ALLOCATION  
 
The following sites are allocated for housing and / or housing led development: 
 

Ref Location Dwelling 
Capacity 

0168 Rowtree Road 131 
0171 Quinton Road 19 
0174 Ransome Road Gateway 6 
0195 Hunsbury School, 

Hunsbury Hill  
50 

(5YHLS) 
0205 Parklands Middle School, 

Devon Way 
132 

0288 Railway Station car park 68 
0333 Railway Station car park  200 

87



53 

 

0335 Great Russell Street / 
Chronicle & Echo North 

28 
 

0336 Site rear of Aldi, former 
Chronicle & Echo site 

19 
(5YHLS) 

0338 Countess Road  54 
(5YHLS) 

80 
0403 Allotments, Studland Road  74 
0496 57 Artizan Road   10 
0629 British Timken Site  140 
0657 Fraser Road 140 
0672 Tunnel Hill Cottages  139 

(5YHLS) 
0685 12 Pennycress Place, 

Ecton Brook Road 
12 

0719 Car garage workshop, 
Harlestone Road 

35 

0720 Ryland Soans garage, 
Harlestone Road 

62 

0814 32 Great Russell Street  12 
(5YHLS) 

0903 Hawkins Shoe Factory, 
Overstone Road 

105 
(5YHLS) 

0910 379 Harlestone Road 17 
0915 118 – 122 Wellingborough 

Road 
12 

0932 Site 1 Southbridge Road 44 
(5YHLS) 

0933 Site 2 Southbridge Road 50 
(5YHLS) 

1001 Former Emmanuel Middle 
School 

81 
(5YHLS) 

1006 Pineham 106 
1007 Land south of Wooldale 

Road, east of Wootton 
Road 

44 

1009 Land west of Policy N5 
Northampton South SUE 

271 

1010 Land at St Peter’s Way/ 
Court Road/ Freeschool 
Street 

37 
(5YHLS) 

1013 Park Campus 800 
(5YHLS) 

1014 Avenue Campus 200 
1022 Belgrave House 99 

(5YHLS) 
1025 Land to the west of 

Towcester Road 
180 

 
1026 Eastern Land Parcel, 

Buckton Fields 
24 

1034 Witham Way 4 
1035 West Oval garage site 7 

88



54 

 

1036 Derwent drive garage site 8 
1037 Swale Drive garage site 

and rear/ unused land 
6 

1041 Newnham Road, 
Kingsthorpe 

15 

1048 Stenson Street 6 
1049 Land off Arbour Court, 

Thorplands garage block 
11 

1051a Land between Waterpump 
Court and Billing Brook 
Road  

24 

1051b Waterpump Court and 
Billing Brook Road 

29 

1052 Land rear of garages in 
Coverack Close 

13 

1058 Land off Oat Hill Drive, 
Ecton Brook 

11 

1060 Hayeswood Road, Lings 6 
1068 Garage site in The Briars, 

Briar Hill 
5 

1069 Garage site off Farmclose 
Road, Wootton 

6 

1071 2 sites off Medway Drive, 
near Meadow Close 

9 

1086a 2 parcels of land in 
Sunnyside Estate 
(Cosgrove Road) 

6 

1086b 2 parcels of land in 
Sunnyside Estate 
(Chalcombe Avenue) 

7 

1094 Land off Holmecross Road 10 
1096  Land off Mill Lane 14 
1097  Gate Lodge 30 
1098 The Green, Great 

Houghton 
771 

1099 Upton Park (Upton Reserve 
Site) 

40 

1100 Hill Farm Rise, Hunsbury 
Hill 

90 

1102 Site east of Towester Road 50 
1104 Watering Lane, Colingtree 265 
1107 Former Abington Mill Farm, 

land off Rushmere Road 
125 

1108  Horsley Road 35 
1109 Mill Lane 6 
1113 Greyfriars 400 
1114 Cedarwood Nursing Home, 

492 Kettering Road 
2 

(5YHLS) 
1116 194 – 200 Kingsthorpe 

Grove 
14  

(5YHLS) 
1117 133 Queens Park Terrace 18 
1118 135 Harlestone Road 7 

89



55 

 

(5YHLS) 
1119 Silver Cornet, Welland Way 14 

(5YHLS) 
1121 Upton Valley Way East 34 

(5YHLS) 
1123 83-103 Trinity Avenue 9 
1124 41 – 43 Derngate 7 

(5YHLS) 
1126 5 Primrose Hill 6 

(5YHLS) 
1127 32 Connaught Street 6 
1131 The Leys Close, 39 Mill 

Lane 
6 

(5YHLS) 
1133 Eastern District Social Club 5 

(5YHLS) 
1134 St Johns Railway 

Embankment 
12 

1137 Wootton Fields 89 
1138 Land south of Old Bedford 

Road 
7 

1139 Ransome Road 250 
(5YHLS) 

1140 Land north of Milton Ham 224 
 
Proposals for the allocated sites will need to have regard to the site specific 
considerations set out in policies 34 to 38, in addition to other relevant planning 
policy, planning objectives and other material consideration. 
  
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy S4 (Scale and Distribution of Housing Development) 
Policy S4 (Northampton Related Development Area) 
 

TYPE AND MIX OF HOUSING 
 
127. Consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework and the JCS, this plan 

seeks to ensure that the housing provided in Northampton is of the size, type 
and tenure needed for different groups in the community including people who 
require affordable housing, families with children, older people, students, 
disabled people, Gypsies and Travellers, people who rent their homes and 
people wishing to commission or build their own homes.  

 
Affordable housing 

128. JCS Policy H1 sets criteria for the density, mix and type of dwellings for the 
borough.  Since the adoption of the JCS, further housing market evidence, to 
supplement and update the West Northamptonshire Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment that informed the Joint Core Strategy has been commissioned and 
reported. Crucially, the West Northamptonshire Housing Market Evidence 

90



56 

 

report20 (WNHME) concluded that 33.45% of housing need from 2016 to 2029 
needed to be affordable housing and that any losses from current stock would 
increase the number of affordable dwellings needed by an equivalent amount.  
On this basis, there is no reason to change the stipulation in JCS Policy H2 
that, for Northampton, the proportion of affordable housing required on 
developments of 15 or more units should be 35%. 

 
Housing Mix 

 
129.For both market housing and affordable housing, the WNHME has modelled the 

objectively assessed need for housing by type of dwelling from 2016 to 2029 for 
Northampton as shown in Table 8.  One trend that was particularly noted in the 
report was that demand in Northampton for 1- and 2-bedroom affordable 
housing flats has reduced significantly to be replaced by a commensurate 
increase in demand for 2-bedroom houses. 

 
Table 8: Housing mix of objectively assessed need for market and affordable 

housing, 2016 to 2029 
 
  Market Housing Affordable Housing Total 

(rounded) 
Flat 1 bedroom 560 5% 1,080 19% 1,600 

2 bedroom 630 5% 680 12% 1,300 
House 2 bedroom 2,470 20% 1,830 32% 4,300 

3 bedroom 6,680 53% 1,580 27% 8,300 
4 bedroom 2,010 16% 500 9% 2,500 
5+ bedroom 170 1% 120 2% 300 

Total 
(rounded) 

 12,500  5,800  18,300 

 
Self-build and custom build housing 

 
130. In accordance with Government guidance, the Council keeps a register of 

individuals and associations of individuals who are seeking to acquire serviced 
plots of land in Northampton in order for those individuals to occupy as their 
sole or main residence and to have regard to the demand evidenced by the 
register when making provision for serviced plots of land. 

 
Specialist housing 

 
131. When planning for specialist housing for adults, including older people and 

people with particular needs, it is important that it provides an environment 
where residents can care for themselves, retaining independence and security 
of tenure. 

 

                                                           
20 West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit – Housing Market Evidence 2017, Opinion Research Services 

91



57 

 

132. The West Northamptonshire Housing Market Evidence21 shows that for 
Northampton, the following provision is required to meet the needs of older 
people: 

 
• Potential annual target for provision of retirement housing: 126 
• Dementia care housing scheme: at least 1 within the next 3 – 5 years 
• Northampton has no identified need for additional care home provision as 

there is a surplus of care home spaces 
 
133 In part, these needs can be addressed by ensuring a proportion of new 

dwellings meet the optional accessibility standards (M4 (3) wheelchair user) to 
help ensure that certain forms of specialist accommodation are provided. 

 
Accessible Housing 

 
134. The Housing Market Evidence shows that, across West Northamptonshire, the 

number of people aged 65 or over is expected to equate to about half of the 
overall housing growth.  Most of these people will be local and many will want 
to stay in their existing homes.  However, there will be a demand among some 
of these people, as they get older, for more accessible housing.  Furthermore, it 
is anticipated that a third of the increase in households in West 
Northamptonshire will include at least one person aged 65 or over.  
Accordingly, a significant proportion of new dwellings will need to be accessible 
and adaptable dwellings to Category 2 standards in Building Regulations.  
Further work needs to be carried out to establish the proportion of Category 2 
dwellings that would be most appropriate. The Housing Market Evidence also 
recommends that a minimum of 4% of all market housing be built to wheelchair 
adapted standard (Category 3 of the Building Regulations) and 8% of all 
affordable housing. 

 
POLICY 13 
TYPE AND MIX OF HOUSING 
 
Housing needs will be met by development providing a mix of dwelling types and 
sizes to meet current a forecast accommodation needs. 
 
Market housing 
 
Proposals for market housing will be supported where they provide a mix of housing 
in line with the following: 

 
- 5% - 1 bedroom flats 
- 5% - 2 bedroom flats 
- 20% - 2 bedroom houses 
- 53% - 3 bedroom houses 

                                                           
21 Study of housing and support needs of older people across Northamptonshire (Northamptonshire Councils 
and CCGs), (Three Dragons and Associates, March 2017) 

92



58 

 

- 16% - 4 bedroom houses 
- 1% - 5 or more bedroom houses  

 
Exceptions to this mix will be supported where they are evidenced by a robust 
assessment of needs at an appropriate local level. 
 
Affordable housing 
 
Proposals for affordable housing will be supported where they provide a mix of 
housing in line with the following: 
 

- 19% - 1 bedroom flats 
- 12% - 2 bedroom flats 
- 32% - 2 bedroom houses 
- 27% - 3 bedroom houses 
- 9% - 4 bedroom houses 
- 2% - 5 or more bedroom houses  

 
Exceptions to this mix will be accepted only where they are evidenced by a robust 
assessment of needs at an appropriate local level. 
 
Self-build and custom build housing   
 
On sites of more than 100 dwellings, provision should be made for a proportion of 
serviced plots of land to contribute towards meeting the evidenced demand for self-
build and custom build housing in Northampton.  Serviced plots of land for self-build 
and custom build housing will also be supported on other allocated sites or permitted 
windfall sites where, overall, this would not result in an over-provision of this type of 
housebuilding when compared to the Council’s supply / demand balance. 
 
The Council will support proposals for self-build and custom build housing which 
include the creation of low cost and affordable housing. 
 
Specialist accommodation 
 
The Council will support schemes that provide specialist accommodation that 
promotes independent living.  Such schemes are particularly supported in areas with 
easy access to services and facilities, including public transport and retail and 
service centres.  Proposals should be designed in a manner which will meet the 
specialised nature and care requirements of prospective occupiers.  
 
Accessible Housing 
 
To meet the needs of the Borough’s residents and to deliver dwellings capable of 
meeting their occupants’ changing circumstances over their lifetime, an appropriate 
proportion of residential development must be designed to meet the requirements of 
M4(2) or its successor standard. 
 
4% of all new market dwellings and 8% of affordable dwellings should be 

93



59 

 

constructed to M4(3) standards, or their successor, to enable wheelchair 
accessibility. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy H1 (Housing Density and Mix and Type of Dwellings) 
Policy H2 (Affordable Housing) 
 

Houses in Multiple Occupation 
 
135. Houses in multiple occupation (HMOs) continue to contribute towards the 

Borough’s housing supply and perform a vital role within the community.  This 
sector provides accommodation primarily for people who are seeking short to 
medium term lettings including students, young professionals seeking work 
opportunities but not necessarily a commitment to a mortgage, deprived social 
groups who are unable to afford their own homes and international migrants.  
The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy is clear that the Council will 
need to make provision for a variety of housing requirements including HMOs. 

 
136. For Northampton, there are a range of contributory factors that impact on the 

demand for HMOs.  Northampton is a university town, has employment 
opportunities tied to the logistics/ distribution centres and industrial estates and 
is relatively close to London for key workers and professionals to commute.  In 
addition, there is increased demand for private rented housing from individuals 
and families.  The relocation of the University of Northampton to its new 
Waterside campus has resulted in a shifting in geographical demand for HMOs.  

 
137. Evidence shows that over-concentrations of HMOs can lead to detrimental 

social, economic, cultural and environmental conditions, leading to adverse 
impacts on local neighbourhood characteristics22.  These include increased 
noise levels, parking issues and litter, all of which can have a negative impact 
on people’s health and wellbeing. There are also concerns associated with the 
impact on the community mix, following changes of use from dwellinghouses to 
HMOs, whereby there is a perception that there are fewer families living 
permanently within the streets.  Parts of Northampton, such as areas within 
Semilong, Abington, Delapre and Far Cotton have experienced these adverse 
impacts23.   

 
138. To address this, the Council introduced Article 4 Directions to regulate the 

proliferation of high concentrations of HMOs.  In areas with Article 4 Directions, 
planning permission is required for the change of use from dwellinghouses to 
houses in multiple occupation for 3 – 6 unrelated people.  Normally, these 
changes of use are permitted development, which mean that such conversions 
can be undertaken without the need for planning approval.  An Interim Planning 

                                                           
22 A Study of Houses in Multiple Occupation Policy (Loughborough University, November 2018) 

23 Interim Planning Policy Statement on Houses in Multiple Occupation, NBC November 2014 and Cabinet 
Report on Article 4 Directions, NBC March 2017 

94



60 

 

Policy Statement was adopted in 2014, leading to the requirement to determine 
planning applications against a specified threshold. 

 
139. A study24 on HMOs has confirmed that, to effectively plan for the distribution of 

HMOs, and to regulate the possible formation of new over-concentrations, a 
new and more stringent saturation threshold of 10% of dwellings within a 50 
metre radius should be adopted.  The study also recommended a blanket 
Article 4 Direction within the Borough. 

 
POLICY 14 
DELIVERING HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION 
 
Where there is an Article 4 Direction in place that removes the permitted 
development right for the conversion of a Class C3 unit to a Class C4 unit, in 
creating, supporting and maintaining a balanced, mixed and inclusive community, all 
planning applications for change of use from dwellinghouses to a house in multiple 
occupation (HMO) will be supported provided that less than 10% of the dwellings 
within a 50m radius of the application site are HMOs.  Schemes should be compliant 
to the Council’s existing space standards for houses in multiple occupation, and 
provide sufficient refuse storage which will be available within the curtilage of the site 
and within a secure facility.  They should not result in an increase in flood risk and 
risks arising from surface water drainage. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy H1 (Housing Density and Mix and Types of Dwellings) 
 

GYPSIES AND TRAVELLERS 
 
140. The West Northamptonshire Travellers Accommodation Needs Study25 

concluded that Northampton did not need to cater for additional pitches in the 
Local Plan for households that meet the planning definition of gypsies and 
travellers26.  There are also no requirements to provide plots for travelling 
showpeople. 

 
141. However, temporary stopping places can be made available at times of 

increased demand due to fairs or cultural celebrations attended by gypsies and 
travellers.  The Study concluded that a charge may be levied as determined by 
the Council although they only need to provide basic facilities including cold 
water supply, portaloos, sewage disposal point and refuse disposal facilities. 

                                                           
24 Houses in Multiple Occupation (Loughborough University, November 2018) 

25 West Northamptonshire Travellers Accommodation Needs Study (Opinion Research Services, January 2017) 

26 Planning Policy for Travellers Sites (Department for Communities and Local Government, August 2015) 

95



61 

 

CHAPTER 8 
ECONOMY 

 
THE LOCAL ECONOMY 

 
142. Northampton is the County’s main employment area.  Northampton’s central 

location in the East Midlands, with immediate access to the M1 motorway, 
means that it is a strategic location for logistics and distribution.    The majority 
of the UK population can be reached within a 4 hour drive time.  The availability 
of train services from Castle Station means that both London and Birmingham 
can be reached within the hour.   

 
143. Northampton is home to a range of major employers including headquarters for 

large companies like Barclaycard, Cosworth, Carlsberg UK, Panasonic UK Ltd, 
Nationwide Building Society, Avon Cosmetics and Mahle Powertrain and GE 
Precision Engineering.  It also has an Enterprise Zone, designated in 2011, with 
just under 64,000sq.m of new built development since its creation.  By 2018, 
approximately 2,000 new jobs had been created within the Enterprise Zone.  
Northampton is part of the SEMLEP (South East Midlands Local Enterprise 
Partnership) area.  The key sectors considered by SEMLEP to be strong are 
high performance technology, next generation transport, manufacturing and 
advanced technology, logistics and creative/ cultural.  Some high performance 
technology firms are located in the Enterprise Zone. 

 
Figure 11: Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone 

 

 
 
 
144. In Cities Outlook 2017, Northampton was considered to be the second best 

place nationally to start a business with only London doing better.  In terms of 

96



62 

 

the quantity of business per 10,000 population, Northampton came 6th.  This 
level of confidence in Northampton was strengthened by the development of 
the new University of Northampton campus in the Enterprise Zone, which 
opened in September 2018. Town centre regeneration schemes, ranging from 
the development of the Innovation Centre, the new Castle Station and the St 
Johns student accommodation, have all contributed towards securing job 
creation and retention for Northampton across a wide sector.   

 
145. The National Infrastructure Commission27 prepared a paper on the proposals 

and options to maximise the potential of the Cambridge – Milton Keynes – 
Oxford Corridor.  The paper highlighted the importance of Northampton as a 
centre for high performance engineering with a rate of new business start-ups 
per 10,000 population second only to London. 

 
146. The latest Government data shows that just over 76% of Northampton’s 

population aged 16 – 64 were in employment, which is slightly higher than the 
East Midlands and national averages.28  The number of people with 
qualifications at NVQ Level 4 and above is 35%, which is slightly more than the 
East Midlands average but below the national average by 3 percentage points.  
This means that Northampton’s jobs market is relatively healthy.  Ongoing 
support for creating the right number and quality of jobs is required in order to 
ensure that Northampton’s residents can continue to have access to jobs.   

 
147. Property market evidence shows that the distribution and general industrial 

market remains the main thrust of the commercial market in Northampton, with 
the office market weaker in comparison29.  Class B uses (offices, general 
industrial, storage and warehousing) provide a substantial proportion of 
Northampton’s employment, but an increasing proportion of employment occurs 
in other uses, such as retail, leisure and the construction industry30.  The 
ongoing demand for the more traditional employment land within the B Use 
Classes Order therefore needs to continue to be accommodated.  These will 
ensure that there is a balance in the economy in terms of job supply across the 
sectors. 

 
SAFEGUARDING DEVELOPMENT 

 
148. The Council places significant weight on supporting economic growth and 

productivity, which accords with Government guidance and the vision and 
objectives of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy.   Comprehensive 
assessments and reviews of each employment site were undertaken to assess 

                                                           
27 Partnering for Prosperity: a new deal for the Cambridge-Milton Keynes-Oxford Arc (National Infrastructure 
Commission, November 2017) 

28 NOMIS  

29 Northampton Employment Land Study (NBC/ PBA February 2018) 

30 NOMIS 

97



63 

 

whether the allocated for employment use in the previous adopted Local Plan 
should be safeguarded.  The findings have informed employment allocations in 
this Plan. To maintain a balance of employment provision in the local economy, 
it is important to continue to support the retention of sites which accommodate 
the distribution and general industrial market sectors.  At the same time, there 
is a need to continue to promote growth in the office sector to ensure that there 
is a balance in the provision of jobs across all key employment sectors. 

 
POLICY 15 
SAFEGUARDING EXISTING EMPLOYMENT SITES 
 
To facilitate the creation of new jobs, attract inward investment and deliver economic 
prosperity to Northampton residents and investors, the Council will: 
 

• Safeguard all existing employment sites, including the Enterprise Zone, as 
shown on the Policies Map, for employment use within the office, general 
industrial and warehousing and distribution sectors.  Employment generating 
uses which are ancillary to and/ or support the wider employment operations 
will also be supported if evidence associated with need is provided 
 

• Support the change of use to alternative non-employment-generating uses 
only if evidence can be provided to demonstrate that the existing use and 
other employment-generating uses are no longer viable.  Evidence to be 
supplied includes detailed marketing over a minimum of 12 months which 
shows that the applicant has actively and extensively marketed the site for 
employment use 

 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy S7 (Provision of Jobs) 
Policy S8 (Distribution of Jobs) 
Policy E1 (Existing Employment Areas) 
Policy E2 (New Office Floorspace) 
Policy E3 (Technology Realm, SEMLEP Northampton Waterside Enterprise 
Zone) 
Policy E8 (Northampton Junction 16 Strategic Employment Site) 
 

SUPPORTING JOB CREATION AND RETENTION 
 
148. The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy requires the delivery of around 

28,500 jobs to ensure that there is enough labour supply to support housing 
growth.  Northampton is expected to deliver the majority of new jobs in West 
Northamptonshire.  In safeguarding the existing Northampton employment 
sites, there will be ongoing opportunities for extensions, redevelopments and 
churn.   

 
149. The Joint West Northamptonshire Annual Monitoring Report 2017/18 concluded 

that as a whole West Northamptonshire provided significantly more employee 
jobs than prior to the recession in 2008.  All constituent partners, including 
Northampton, are showing gains in employment. The overall net gain of 19,000 

98



64 

 

jobs indicated that the West Northamptonshire area as a whole was on track to 
deliver the overall target of 28,000 additional jobs by 2029.   The report adds 
that the 2017 data shows particularly significant increases in jobs compared to 
2016 for Northampton Borough (+12,000).  If this trend continues, Northampton 
will be in a better position to contribute further to the creation of jobs in West 
Northamptonshire. 

 
Table 9: Net job changes in West Northamptonshire31 

 
Year Daventry 

District 
Northampton 

Borough 
South 

Northamptonshire 
West 

Northamptonshire 
2008 38,500 125,000 29,000 192,500 
2009 35,000 120,500 28,500 184,000 
2010 34,500 122,500 28,500 185,500 
2011 35,500 122,500 28,500 185,500 
2012 34,000 121,500 28,500 186,500 
2013 35,500 123,000 29,000 187,500 
2014 35,500 125,000 31,000 191,500 
2015 37,500 124,000 32,000 193,500 
2016 40,000 128,000 32,500 200,500 
2017 41,000 136,000 34,500 211,500 

Change  
2008 – 2017 

+2,500 +11,000 +5,500 +19,000 

 
150. To support net job creation, it is important to ensure that employment schemes 

outside the designated employment sites, which are compatible with their 
surrounding uses, are considered positively.  For example, mixed uses which 
generate jobs can operate in residential areas and/ or in neighbourhood 
parades.  These can be supported because they provide locally based 
employment which could reduce the need for travelling, whilst contributing 
towards jobs growth.  This accords with the Government’s aspiration to ensure 
that planning policies are flexible enough to accommodate needs not 
anticipated in the plan including allowing new and flexible working practices. In 
addition, the active promotion of training opportunities and apprenticeships with 
local employers will be encouraged and supported to secure the retention of 
students who choose to pursue higher education within the locality. 

 
 
POLICY 16 
SUPPORTING NEW EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENTS AND SCHEMES WITHIN 
AND OUTSIDE SAFEGUARDED SITES 
 
New employment related developments within the safeguarded employment sites 
will be positively welcomed.  There is some employment land within these 
safeguarded sites that has the capacity to deliver more employment growth.  These 
sites include land within: 
 
                                                           
31 West Northamptonshire Joint Annual Monitoring Report (2017/18) 

99



65 

 

• Northampton Town Centre including land at FOUR Waterside 
• Brackmills Industrial Estate 
• Swan Valley and Pineham 
• Moulton Park 
• Lodge Farm 

 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy S7 (Provision of Jobs) 
Policy S8 (Distribution of Jobs) 
Policy E1 (Existing Employment Areas) 
Policy E2 (New Office Floorspace) 
Policy E3 (Technology Realm, SEMLEP Northampton Waterside Enterprise 
Zone) 
Policy E8 (Northampton Junction 16 Strategic Employment Site) 
 
 

100



66 

 

CHAPTER 9 
CENTRES, SERVICES AND FACILITIES 

 
RETAIL DEVELOPMENT 

 
151. Retail provision remains one of the dominant themes of discussion in the last 

few years, as town centres continue to experience higher rates of vacancies, 
national retailers closing down completely or some of their stores, and 
customer behaviour towards online retailing continues to change.  The 
challenges set by online retailing are substantial. 

 
152. Evidence32 suggests that the high street is no longer solely driven by retail 

offerings.  The growth in the food and beverage sector is a significant change in 
UK high streets as town centres adapt to the changing way that people live, 
socialise, eat and shop.  There is also an increase in the number of multi-
faceted stores, for example, clothing shops that have barbers and vape shops 
that serve coffee.  It is increasingly recognised that town centres and high 
streets across the UK need to reshape their role and become more of a hub for 
the community, incorporating leisure, entertainment, office space, health uses 
and housing.   

 
153. Northampton has a compact town centre which performs a regional role within 

Northamptonshire.  Apart from retail, other uses, including residential, have an 
important role to play towards ensuring the vitality of the town centre.  In 
addition to the town centre, Northampton’s retail hierarchy has District Centres 
at Weston Favell and Kingsthorpe and Local Centres at St James End, 
Wellingborough Road (Abington) and Kettering Road (Kingsley).  These 
centres are shown on the policies map. The Retail and Leisure Study 
concluded that vacancies in the town centre, despite having fallen since 2010, 
give rise to some concern given their spatial concentration. 

 
154. There are also around 60 neighbourhood centres providing for day-to-day 

needs and substantial areas of out-of-town shopping at Sixfields, Riverside, St 
James Retail Park and Mereway which are not in the retail hierarchy.  The 
Retail and Leisure Study concluded that 40% of resident spend is in out of 
centre locations.  

 
NEW RETAIL PROVISION  

 
155. The Council aims to maintain and enhance the vitality and viability of the 

borough’s town centre, district centres and local centres.  Focusing investment 
in the borough’s existing centres will help to promote their economic prosperity 
as well as helping to ensure that economic activity takes place in the most 
sustainable locations easily accessible by modes of travel other than the car. 

 

                                                           
32 Northampton Retail and Leisure Study (Nexus Planning, October 2018) 

101



67 

 

156. The Retail Study33 includes a health assessment of all the centres designated 
through the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy.  Aside from the town 
centre, the designated centres are: 

 
• Weston Favell District Centre 
• Kingsthorpe District Centre 
• Kettering Road Local Centre (Kingsley) 
• St James Local Centre 
• Far Cotton Local Centre 
• Wellingborough Road Local Centre 

 
157. The assessments found these centres, including the town centre, to be healthy.  

It concluded that each district and local centre has a role and function that 
complements the town centre.  Wellingborough Road, for example, has a 
strong leisure position including restaurants and bars which allow it to function 
as an ancillary leisure destination, particularly given its proximity to the town 
centre.  The Plan needs to ensure that the roles and functions of these centres 
continue to be supported and enhanced.   

 
 
POLICY 17 
NEW RETAIL DEVELOPMENTS AND RETAIL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
The Council will support the provision of between 7,000 sq.m and 8,900 sq.m net of 
convenience retail floorspace and between 5,300 sq.m and 7,300 sq.m net of 
comparison floorspace to meet forecast retail expenditure to 2029 in the defined 
retail hierarchy as set out in the table below. 
 

Retail Hierarchy: 
 
Regional Town Centre                 Northampton town centre 
District Centres                            Weston Favell 
                                                     Kingsthorpe 
Local Centres                               St James End 
                                                     Far Cotton 
                                                     Wellingborough Road (Abington) 
                                                     Kettering Road (Kingsley) 
                                                     Local Centres provided within SUEs 
 

 
The Council will support proposals which meet the following criteria: 
 

• Will deliver retail firstly in the Primary Shopping Area, followed by the Town 
Centre as shown on the Policies Map.  Priority will be given to additional 
comparison retail in the town centre. If no suitable, viable and available sites 
exist in the centres identified in this policy (taking account of reasonable 

                                                           
33 Northampton Retail and Leisure Study (Nexus Planning, September 2018) 

102



68 

 

flexibility in the format of the proposal), then proposals for sites on the edge of 
those centres will be considered.  If no edge of centre sites are suitable, 
viable and available, out-of-centre sites will be considered.  It is not accepted 
that specific classes of goods cannot be sold from in-centre locations.  
Developments will need to demonstrate flexibility in their operational 
requirements in terms of their form 

 
• Any retail proposals on sites outside centres in the retail hierarchy will be 

required to demonstrate compliance with the sequential approach to site 
selection.  For those proposals exceeding 500 square metres gross 
floorspace, it will have to be demonstrated that the proposal will not have an 
unacceptable impact on existing centres in the retail hierarchy 

 
• Within the defined Primary Shopping Area, development proposals should: 

 
i. Not result in the over-dominance of non-retail use within a frontage; and 
ii. Provide an active frontage and be open for business during the day 
 

• Change of use of vacant units into alternative main town centre or upper floor 
residential use will be supported if evidence shows that there is a continuous 
period of vacancy and marketing over an 18 month period and that there are 
no realistic prospects of the unit being occupied for its previous use 

 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy S2 (Hierarchy of Centres) 
Policy S9 (Distribution of Retail Development)     
 

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT ON UPPER FLOORS 
 
158. In addition to main town centre uses in designated centres, evidence shows 

that residential provision in the town centre would assist in introducing a 
resident customer base into these centres, increasing footfall, vitality and 
viability.  However, not all units are suitable for conversions and only schemes 
in acceptable locations will be supported. 

 
POLICY 18 
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT ON UPPER FLOORS 
 
In suitable locations, proposals that seek to deliver residential accommodation on 
upper floors in the town centre, district centres and local centres will be supported, 
subject to all other material considerations. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy S2 (Hierarchy of Centres) 
 
 
 
 
 

103



69 

 

NEIGHBOURHOOD CENTRES 
 
159. In addition to ensuring that the Borough is better equipped to deal with meeting 

people’s health requirements, the Local Plan also has an important role to play 
in achieving a much healthier lifestyle and an inclusive community.   

 
160. There are around 60 neighbourhood parades in Northampton which cater for 

the day to day needs of the local community.  They are smaller in size than the 
local centres defined through the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy.  
However, they vary in terms of success, sizes, occupancy and facilities.   

 
161. These parades predominantly accommodate shops and services which cater 

for people’s day to day needs such as a small convenience store, newsagent, 
hairdressers, a hot food takeaway and a post office.  Some also include 
community facilities and leisure such as a pub.  

 
162  These centres perform a variety of roles including promoting of social 

interaction and supporting a healthier lifestyle.  They provide a valuable service 
to the people living nearby within their catchment, supporting community links 
as well as providing      services for less mobile members of the community. 
These local facilities also promote sustainable living, allowing people to walk to 
these centres.  In Northampton, majority of the residential areas are located 
within 400m of a neighbourhood parade.  The Chartered Institution of Highways 
and Transportation guidance34 states that 400m (5 minutes’ walk) would be an 
acceptable walking distance to a neighbourhood centre and 800m (10 minutes’ 
walk) would be the maximum.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
34 Retail and Neighbourhood Centres Study, NBC/ Peter Brett Associates 2014) 

104



70 

 

Figure 12: Existing Neighbourhood Centres  
 

         
 
163. It is accepted that these shops and services, whilst operating as individual 

businesses, are very much affected by the prospect of the whole parade35.  
These parades build relationships with their communities and know their market 
well.  There is therefore a need to be both flexible and responsive, allowing 
businesses to use spaces innovatively and respond to changing needs. 

 
POLICY 19 
NEIGHBOURHOOD CENTRES 
 
In supporting the retention of neighbourhood centres, any proposals that would result 
in the loss of a centre will need to demonstrate the following: 
 

• There is an existing neighbourhood centre within a 400m radius 
• A viability assessment, to include robust marketing and evidence of 

community interest, has been undertaken which provides evidence that it is 
not viable for the parade to continue operating  

 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy RC2 (Community Needs) 
 
 
 
                                                           
35 Parades to be proud of: Strategies to support Local Shops (CLG, June 2012) 

105



71 

 

COMMUNITY SERVICES AND FACILITIES  
 
164. Community services and facilities are important in ensuring that the needs of 

the communities are met in an accessible manner.  As communities expand, so 
do their requirements for a range of provision such as local shops, doctors 
surgeries, health centres, schools, childcare, sports facilities and community 
centres.   

 
165. Evidence shows that multi use centres that are easily accessible are both 

sustainable and beneficial to communities.  It is also important for these 
facilities to be delivered early and on time.   

 
166. In addition, Northampton’s faith communities play an important role in the 

voluntary and community sector, providing, amongst others, local and 
neighbourhood facilities for those in need and those in long term disadvantage.  
Key to delivering these roles is the availability of places of worship.  Evidence 
commissioned36 concluded that the various faith groups who responded to the 
survey (25 in total) have various approaches to meeting this requirement (see 
figure 13).   

 
Figure 13: Meeting community needs 

 

 
 
167. The need for the above community services and facilities can be met in a 

variety of ways including extension of existing facilities, maximising the 
opportunities offered by vacant units, conversion of buildings and from new 
developments.  For religious groups in particular, the ability to hire facilities 
could play an important role as would shared facilities.   

 
168. Joint Core Strategy policies RC1 and RC2 set out the approach that applies to 

the provision of new community facilities and the loss of existing ones. 

                                                           
36 Northampton Faith Communities Profile and Places of Worship Audit and Needs Assessment (CAG, June 
2013) 

106



72 

 

 
 
POLICY 20 
COMMUNITY SERVICES AND FACILITIES 
 
Proposals for new or extended community facilities, and for change of use to such 
facilities,  including places of worship, will be considered against the following: 
 

• The property/ site should be accessible by public transport and other 
sustainable transport modes including walking and cycling 

• Any proposal should not result in any significant, adverse impact on the 
residential amenity of the area including impacts associated with noise and 
traffic 

 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy RC1 (Delivering Community Regeneration) 
Policy RC2 (Community Needs) 
 

CHILDCARE PROVISION 
 
169. Children benefit from social, physical and cognitive development and outcomes 

helping them to prepare for school. Evidence shows that attending high quality 
early education has a lasting impact on social and behavioural outcomes.  

 
170. A number of major housing projects have either started or due to start in the 

period to 2019. It is assumed that these housing developments will lead to an 
increase in the population locally, increasing the demand for childcare. The 
Childcare Act 2006 puts a duty on Local Authorities to provide sufficient 
childcare for working parents or parents who are studying or training for 
employment and to ensure there are early years funded education places for all 
eligible children up to compulsory school age. 

 
171. The Northamptonshire Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (Interim Jan 18) 

outlines that there is currently sufficient provision across the country for 2, 3 
and 4 year olds that are entitled to free places and that this is sufficient for the 
next two years.  However, there are areas which have a surplus of these 
childcare places.  This is attributed to parents not choosing a childcare place 
near to where they live but instead, choosing providers close to their 
workplaces.  In Northamptonshire, take up of free entitlement place is below the 
national rate.  Northampton has the highest number of children eligible for 2 
years funding (75%) but has the lowest take up (60%).  The Assessment 
concluded that although there seems to be sufficient capacity across the 
County as a whole.  However, with the requirement to deliver a high number of 
dwellings in Northampton, it is anticipated that there will be impacts on 
childcare provision.  

 
 
 
 

107



73 

 

POLICY 21 
CHILDCARE PROVISION  
 
To ensure the supply of childcare within Northampton is strategically managed, and 
to ensure that there is sufficient, high quality, flexible childcare that is affordable and 
meets the needs of parents and carers, development for childcare provision should: 
  

• Locate premises within sustainable locations, with good public transport 
facilities, access to cycling and walking routes, and away from major roads 

• Maximise the use of current educational establishments  
• Ensure that new developments are accessible and inclusive for a range of 

users, including disabled people 
• Ensure that there is not a net loss of facilities, unless it can be demonstrated 

that there is no ongoing need or future demand. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy RC2 (Community Needs) 
 
BURIAL SPACE AND PROVISION 
 
172. Northampton’s population has grown significantly from 212,500 (2011) to 

225,500 (2016).  This growth is set to continue, with the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy’s target of 18,870 homes to be delivered 
in Northampton by 2029.  This means that demand for burial space and 
cremations will also increase over the plan period, highlighting the need to plan 
for future requirements.  Evidence shows that there are changing 
representations of faith communities in Northampton and this will need to be 
reflected in the future provision of burial space.37 

 
173. The Borough accommodates mainly large, strategic sites which are owned and 

managed by the Council, including Towester Road cemetery and Kingsthorpe 
Cemetery, and a private crematorium.  In addition, several churches also 
provide some burial/ interment capacity but space is very limited and 
insufficient to cater for need.  This Plan therefore aims to ensure that sufficient 
land is allocated and safeguarded to meet the identified requirements for burial 
space.  A study commissioned by the Council38 concluded that, by 2029, there 
will be a deficit of burial space capacity of 4,011 plots. 

 
POLICY 22 
SITES FOR BURIAL SPACE 
 
To meet the need for future burial spaces, the following sites, as indicated on the 
Policies Map, will be safeguarded for this use: 

                                                           
37 Northampton Faith Communities Profile and Places of Worship Audit and Needs Assessment (CAG, June 
2013) 

38 Northampton Burial Space Need and Provision Study (Enzygo, 2018) 

108



74 

 

 
• Land adjoining Kingsthorpe cemetery 
• Land adjoining Dallington cemetery 

 
When considering any proposals for extensions, consideration should be given to 
securing the enhancement of the roles that burial grounds play in the wider 
community, including its greenspace / amenity / ecological and heritage values.  
Opportunities to improve the provision to accommodate the requirements of religious 
groups and people of no religion, such as washing facilities, should also be included 
in any design considerations. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy RC2 (Community Needs) 
 

109



75 

 

CHAPTER 10 
BUILT AND NATURAL ENVIRONMENT 

 
PROTECTION AND ENHANCEMENT OF CRITICAL ENVIRONMENTAL 
ASSETS 

 
Green Infrastructure 

 
174. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) defines Green Infrastructure 

(GI) as a network of multi-functional green space, urban and rural, which is 
capable of delivering a wide range of environmental and quality of life benefits 
for local communities.  This Plan is providing further guidance on the detailed 
requirements for the creation, enhancement and management of green 
infrastructure, in line with the requirements set out in the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy. 

 
175.The geography and historic development of Northampton has provided a green 

and blue infrastructure legacy of historic parks like Delapre and the 
Racecourse, amenity green spaces set in the framework of places where 
people live and work, natural and semi natural landscapes including 
Kingsthorpe Nature Reserve and green / blue corridors like the River Nene, 
Grand Union Canal and Brampton Valley Way.  Other places of note include 
allotments such as Berrywood Road, play areas and teen facilities such as 
Radlands Plaza Skate Park and places for quiet reflection like the grounds of 
the Holy Sepulchre.  

 
176. Northampton’s GI contributes to: 
 

• the protection, conservation, enhancement, management of and net gain in 
biodiversity resources by reducing fragmentation and increasing and 
enriching species diversity 

• improving connectivity and access by linking natural assets and 
encouraging modal shift to walking and cycling 

• better community and public health by improving air quality and open-air 
surroundings to encourage outdoor activity which lowers stress levels and 
improves mental and physical health and well-being 

• the protection, conservation, enhancement and management of historic 
landscapes, archaeological and built heritage assets and their settings 

• climate change adaptation by water management, reducing the impact of 
flooding, higher temperatures, drier summers and counteracting the heat 
island effect 

• the development and delivery of ecosystem services 
 
177. A Green Infrastructure Plan (GIP) for Northampton was commissioned to 

provide an opportunity to bring together and interpret detailed information on 
assets and themes that have a bearing on the multi-functional nature of GI.  
The GIP defines a Local Level Green Infrastructure (LLGI) Network for the 
borough. 

110



76 

 

 
POLICY 23 
SUSTAINING AND ENHANCING EXISTING, AND SUPPORTING THE CREATION 
OF, NORTHAMPTON’S GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 
New development must ensure that existing green infrastructure assets will be 
protected, managed, maintained and connected to enhance their multi-functionality.   
 
Development of 15 dwellings or more will deliver and / or contribute to a net gain of 
green infrastructure in accordance with the Best Practice Principles, Aims and 
Objectives set out in the Northampton Green Infrastructure Plan (or subsequent 
updated documents).  Development proposals will demonstrate through context and 
design how they make a positive contribution to the Green Infrastructure 
Components. 
  
Major applications must be accompanied by a site specific green infrastructure 
strategy and /or plan to illustrate how GI is integrated within the development 
proposal and seeks to improve connectivity to the Local Level Green Infrastructure 
network beyond the site boundary. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy S10 (Sustainable Development Principles) 
Policy BN1 (Green Infrastructure Connections) 
Policy BN2 (Biodiversity) 
Policy BN3 (Woodland Enhancement and Creation) 
Policy BN8 (The River Nene Strategic River Corridor) 
 

Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
 
178. Northampton has 21 designated parks, over 200 amenity green spaces, over 

85 natural or semi natural areas, over 100 children or young people equipped 
play spaces, 22 allotment sites and 43 cemeteries and churchyards39.  Figure 
12 provides a snapshot of their locations with the Borough.  Together, these 
provide around 1,396 hectares of open spaces contained within the Local Level 
Green Infrastructure Network, identified in the Northampton Green 
Infrastructure Plan40.There are a number of key sports facilities within and close 
to the town which attract users from a wider area.  

 
179. It is essential that these facilities are maintained and increased.  Based on the 

Open Space study undertake jointly by consultants and Northampton Borough 
Council, standards have been derived to ensure that the requirements of the 
future residents are catered for when new development proposals are 
considered. 

 

                                                           
39 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study (Northampton Borough Council, with technical evidence supplied 
by Nortoft, March 2018) 

40 Northampton Green Infrastructure Plan (Fiona Fyfe Associates, 2016) 

111



77 

 

POLICY 24 
PROVIDING OPEN SPACES 
 
New development must ensure that open spaces defined on the Policies Map are 
sustained or enhanced. 
 
All new housing developments of 0.2 ha or sites accommodating 6 dwellings or more 
will be required to contribute to open space provision as per the standards below.   
 
Open space type Planning standards for new developments 

Quantity per 1,000 
population 

Accessibility Quality 

Parks and Gardens 1.26ha per 1,000 800m Green Flag standard 
Amenity Green 
Space 

1.5ha per 1,000 480m Green Flag standard 

Natural and Semi 
Natural Green 
Space 

1.8ha per 1,000 720m walk 
 
800m walk for sites 
2ha or over 

Green Flag standard 

Children’s Play and 
provision for young 
people 

0.25ha per 1,000 of 
Designated 
Equipped Playing 
Space including 
teenage provision 

400m for LEAP 
 
1,000m for NEAP 
 
1,000m for teenage 
facilities 

New LEAPs and 
NEAPs should meet 
the Fields in Trust 
standards as 
relevant to the 
individual site.   
New youth provision 
should reflect 
current best 
practice, and also 
take into account the 
needs expressed by 
young local people. 

Allotments 0.36ha per 1,000 1,000m Allotments should 
be secure with gates 
and fencing 
providing suitable 
and accessible 
areas for growing, 
and where 
applicable, an 
adequate water 
supply and car 
parking. 

Civic spaces Specific to the 
locality.  No set 
standard required 

  

Cemeteries and 
closed churchyards 

Specific to the 
locality.  No set 
standard required 

  

    
 
Where standards cannot be met on site, developers are required to provide 

112



78 

 

mitigation measures and/ or contribute towards off site provisions. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy S10 (Sustainable Development Principles) 
Policy BN1 (Green Infrastructure Connections) 
Policy BN2 (Biodiversity) 
Policy BN3 (Woodland Enhancement and Creation) 
Policy BN8 (The River Nene Strategic River Corridor) 
 

Figure 14: Open spaces in Northampton (all typologies) 
 

 
 

Biodiversity  
 
180. Northampton is an urban area, is compact and development is taking place to 

meet the needs of existing and future residents and investors.  The Borough 
accommodates a number of parks, open spaces and greenspaces, all of which 
are valuable natural and historic assets which contribute to the biodiversity of 
Northampton.   Biodiversity relates to the number, variety and variability of 
living organisms.  For Northampton, for instance, the Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits SPA, which is internationally important for migrating birds, needs to be 
protected to ensure that it is not adversely affected by new development. 

 
181. The 2015 Northamptonshire Biodiversity Supplementary Planning Document 

provides guidelines for planning applicants, and policy makers and decision 
makers within partner authorities, when considering a proposal.   

 

113



79 

 

POLICY 25 
SUPPORTING AND ENHANCING BIODIVERSITY 
 
The Council will expect major development proposals to conserve, enhance and 
increase the net gain for biodiversity.  In particular, the Council will seek the 
protection or enhancement of wildlife sites that are in areas which are: 
 

• of national or international importance, specifically the Site of Specific 
Scientific Interest, Special Protection Area and Ramsar site at the Upper 
Nene Valley Gravel Pits or 

• of local importance including the Borough’s Local Nature Reserves and Local 
Wildlife Sites 

 
All proposals must secure a net gain in biodiversity through the protection, 
strengthening, creation and management of new habitats.  All applicants are 
expected to assess the impacts of their proposals on biodiversity by undertaking an 
ecological survey. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy BN2 (Biodiversity) 
 

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 
 
182. Part of the above site is located within the south eastern part of Northampton 

and is known as the Clifford Hill Gravel Pits.  The Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits was designated as a European Special Protection Area because of its 
international importance as a wetland habitat for non-breeding waterbirds.  It 
has also been included on the list of wetland sites of international importance 
(Ramsar sites). 

 
183. Evidence41 shows that there is a need to ensure that increased recreational 

pressure at the SPA resulting from housing growth is addressed.  New housing 
within 3km of the SPA is considered to cause increased recreational pressure 
contributing to disturbance and decline in bird species which form the SPA 
qualifying features.  With the amount of potential development being 
progressed within the vicinity, there is a need to ensure that the appropriate 
mitigation are in place to prevent additional pressure and disturbance to the 
birds. 

 
184. The Upper Nene valley Gravel Pits Special protection Area SPD42 supplements 

the policies contained in the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy. It 
highlights the requirement to consult Natural England on proposals that could 
affect the SPA.  The consultation zones are included in the SPD. 

                                                           
41 Natural England consultation response (June 2016) 

42 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area Supplementary Planning Document (Northampton 
Borough Council, August 2015) 

114



80 

 

 
POLICY 26 
UPPER NENE VALLEY GRAVEL PITS SPECIAL PROTECTION AREA 
 
All new development proposals within 3km of the Special Protection Area, must 
demonstrate, where necessary through a series of mitigation measures, that their 
proposals will not contribute to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the bird 
species for which the site is designated.  
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy BN4 (Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area) 
 

HERITAGE AND HISTORIC LANDSCAPES 
 
185. Heritage assets, which can range from landscapes and historic street patterns 

to modest tombstones, make a positive contribution to the character of a place.  
Their protection and enhancement can stimulate regeneration, resulting in 
economic and environmental benefits derived in part from people’s capacity to 
access, enjoy and learn.  They are a finite non-renewable resource which can 
be irreparably damaged by insensitive change to the asset or its setting. 

 
186. For Northampton, they are a valuable resource which tell the story of the town, 

enabling people to appreciate how the town developed and evolved over time 
as well as the experiences encountered by residents at that specific time.  For 
example, Delapre Abbey and Delapre Park provide a whole host of historical 
information.  Delapre Abbey, built in 1145, accommodates one of only two 
Cluniac nunneries ever built in England.  The funeral cortege of the body of 
Queen Eleanor, wife of King Edward I, stopped in only 12 places as it made its 
way from Lincoln to Westminster.  One of the 12 places was Northampton, 
where the Eleanor Cross now stands. 

 
187. The four town centre conservation areas, contain architectural and historical 

assets which are of significance to Northampton.  Included in one of the 
conservation areas is the town’s Market Square, which has remnants dating 
back to the late 17th century.   

 
188. Northampton has over 500 listed buildings, 21 conservation areas, 7 scheduled 

ancient monuments and a Registered Battlefield. The Council is also collating a 
list of non-designated heritage assets that will be assessed against an agreed 
set of criteria and which are supported by an independent panel.  The 
protection and appropriate management of these assets will assist in ensuring 
they survive, and contribute towards sustaining the character and local 
distinctiveness of Northampton.   

 
189. There is a need to set out a positive strategy for the conservation, enjoyment 

and enhancement of the historic environment as mentioned in Government 
guidance.  The most appropriate way of managing heritage assets is to have a 
thorough understanding of the historic significance of the asset(s) and their 

115



81 

 

setting, as well as the wider context of which they form part.  This will assist in 
informing how development proposals are to be considered.   

 
190. Northampton’s geography and historic development has provided a legacy of 

over 1,670 ha of parks, open spaces and other green areas.  The natural and 
man-made corridors along and following the River Nene are valuable natural 
and historic assets of great importance for biodiversity, as well as the town’s 
legacy of historic private and civic landscapes.  Examples include Abington 
Park, Delapre Park, Hunsbury Hill Country Park and the Racecourse.  Added to 
these are the Special Protection Area/ Ramsar site at the Upper Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits, 6 Local Nature Reserves, over 50 Local Wildlife Sites, over 70 
potential wildlife sites and 8 Geological sites.  Collectively, these provide a 
diverse assembly of green spaces which contribute to Northampton’s local 
character and sense of place. 

 
191. A study43 commissioned by the Council articulates the role that these urban 

fringe landscapes play in terms of: 
 

• Recognising the intrinsic value of landscape in their own right, and also 
landscapes that make a strong contribution to the historic significance and 
setting of historic assets 

• Opportunities for helping to protect and enhance local landscape 
distinctiveness through mitigation of development led change and 
appropriate land management practices 

• Opportunities for restoring areas where the landscape character has been 
eroded or compromised by inappropriate or insensitive past development 

 
 
POLICY 27 
PROTECTION AND ENHANCEMENTS OF DESIGNATED AND NON-
DESIGNATED HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
The Council will expect development proposals to conserve and enhance the historic 
environment and designated and non-designated heritage assets, including historic 
landscapes, by: 
 

• Ensuring that development proposals demonstrate a clear understanding of 
the significance of the asset and its setting, and the impact the scheme will 
have on that significance 

• Ensuring that this enhanced understanding has been considered and 
incorporated into the development proposal demonstrating how the scheme 
preserves and/ or enhances the asset 

• Requiring a clear and convincing justification for any harm or loss of an asset, 
supported by demonstrating how harm is outweighed by public benefits 

• Supporting high quality proposals which positively considers Northampton’s 
                                                           
43 Northampton Urban Fringe Landscape Character & Sensitivity Study (Chris Blandford Associates, November 
2018) 

116



82 

 

local distinctiveness including aspects associated with siting, scale, massing, 
layout, form, materials and architectural detailing 

• Being consistent with guidance from Historic England and heritage best 
practice 

 
Proposals which will result in an increased and/ or improved accessibility to heritage 
assets will also be supported. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy BN5 (The Historic Environment and Landscape) 
 

117



83 

 

 
CHAPTER 11 
MOVEMENT  

 
OVERVIEW 

 
192. The transport network within and connecting to the Borough requires 

developing in the form of enhancement and expansion in order to 
accommodate the growing demand. A range of transport schemes have been 
identified by the Council, the Highway Authority and transport providers which 
will evolve over the Local Plan period.  The West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy also provides strategic policies which support the retention and 
enhancement of strategic connections (rail, roads and water) and sets out the 
requirements to achieve modal shift and mitigate the impacts of developments 
on the highway network.   

 
193. The Northamptonshire Transportation Plan44 sets out the County Council’s 

policies, objectives and vision for transport in Northamptonshire up to 2026.  It 
is supported by a range of specialist strategy documentation which as a whole 
form the Local Transport Plan for Northamptonshire. The LTP has six main 
objectives including the creation of a transport system that supports and 
encourages growth and plans for the future impacts of growth, whilst 
successfully providing benefits for the County.  Also, they aim to ensure that 
people have the information and options available to enable them to choose the 
best form of transport for each journey that they make. 

 
MANAGING NORTHAMPTON’S TRANSPORT AND MOVEMENT 

 
Delivering Sustainable Transport 

 
194. In line with Government guidance and the strategic policies contained in the 

West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, the potential impacts of 
development on transport networks need to be addressed.  It is important to 
manage the impacts of growth, promoting opportunities for utilising sustainable 
modes of movement including walking and cycling as well as taking into 
account appropriate mitigation associated with the environmental impacts of 
traffic and transport infrastructure.   

 
195. New developments are also expected to contribute to Northamptonshire County 

Council’s modal shift objectives, which are a 5% reduction in the share of 
private car trips across existing developments and a 20% reduction in the share 
of private car trips from all new developments. 

 
196. The Council’s Low Emission Strategy45 (LES) aims to improve air quality and 

health across Northampton by reducing vehicle emissions through the 
                                                           
44 Northamptonshire Transport Plan: Fit for Purpose (Northamptonshire County Council, 2012) 

45 Northampton Low Emission Strategy 2017 – 2025 (Northampton Borough Council, December 2017) 

118



84 

 

accelerated take up of cleaner fuels and technologies.  Evidence for the 
strategy found that whilst levels of nitrogen dioxide have improved in some 
areas of Northampton, concentrations at key locations have remained elevated 
over the last decade and at some locations, concentrations have increased.  

 
197. There are currently 7 Air Quality Management Areas (see Figure 15).  These 

are areas which exceed the Government’s air quality objective and where there 
is relevant exposure to the public. 

 
Figure 15: Locations of Air Quality Management Areas 

 
 
POLICY 28 
DESIGNING SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT AND TRAVEL  
 
The Council will support planned growth and existing development with appropriate 
transport infrastructure, including for sustainable modes of travel and safety 
improvements.  The Council will work together with the highway authority, Highways 
England, public transport operators, developers and other relevant bodies to design 
and fund improvements to transport infrastructure where these are necessary to 
support growth or to improve existing centres, employment areas and community 
facilities.  
 
All new and existing developments will be expected to contribute towards achieving 
the Northamptonshire County Council’s Modal shift targets.  All Major Applications of 
10 dwellings or more, or 0.5ha or more, will also be required to include a Travel Plan. 
Applicants will be required to demonstrate that they can mitigate their transport 

119



85 

 

impact either on site or off site and will be required to enter into the relevant legal 
agreement(s) with the Local Planning Authority and the relevant Highway Authority.  
 
The design of developments should ensure that people are encouraged and 
facilitated to undertake short and regular journeys by walking and cycling safely and 
to use public transport. 
 
Developments should be designed to incorporate, demonstrate and achieve the 
following sustainable travel principles: 
 

• To promote, improve and encourage active lifestyles and health and well-
being 

• To reduce car usage 
• To improve accessibility by, and usability of, public transport 
• To maximise opportunities for integrated secure and safe walking and cycling 

routes which connect to the existing network, as well as open spaces and 
green infrastructure 

• To secure a high quality design of the street scene which creates a safe, 
secure and pleasant environment 

• To upgrade and improve the existing street scene  
• To design developments including the provision of streets, streetscapes and 

open spaces which enable and encourage children to walk, cycle and play 
within their local environments  

• To promotes sustainable travel to day-to-day destinations including the town 
centre, the railway station, the bus station, places of work, schools and 
colleges, health facilities and local leisure and recreation facilities. 

 
Major new developments of 10 dwellings or more, or 0.5ha or more, must 
include: 

 
• Facilities for the use of public transport 
• Infrastructure that facilitates cycling including parking facilities and links to the 

existing cycle network 
• Travel planning for new users 

 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy C2 (New Developments) 
Policy N12 (Northampton’s Transport Network Improvements) 
 

Securing Highway Safety 
 
198. The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy is clear that the design of new 

developments is an important factor in influencing travel behaviour.  However, 
in considering the design of new developments, there is a need to take into 
consideration the impacts on the highway network in terms of safety. 

 
 

120



86 

 

POLICY 29 
HIGHWAY NETWORK AND SAFETY 
 
Subject to consideration of all other relevant plan policies and material 
considerations, development proposals will be permitted provided: 
 

• There would be no potentially adverse impacts on the local and/or strategic 
transport network which cannot be mitigated against.  Major planning 
applications and development proposals that generate a significant number of 
traffic movements must be accompanied by a Transport Assessment 

• They are designed to allow safe and suitable means of access and site 
operation 

 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy C2 (New Developments) 
 

Managing an effective network 
 
199. The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy is clear that West 

Northamptonshire’s strategic road and rail connections have made the area 
economically attractive.  To ensure that the network remains efficient and 
capable of serving future demand, improvements need to be supported and 
carefully managed.  Mitigation is key to ensure that capacity is enhanced 
without having unacceptable consequences. 

 
200. There is a range of planned and potential future transport projects that will take 

place during and beyond the Local Plan period including the Brackmills & 
Castle Station Corridor improvements, the North West Bypass, the Northern 
Orbital Road, the Northampton Growth Management Scheme affecting the A45 
and the dualling of the A43 from Northampton to Kettering.  In addition a 
number of strategic opportunities have been identified that have the potential to 
improve the range of destinations served by direct trains from Northampton and 
to improve access between cities to the north of Northampton, Northampton 
and the wider Oxford-Cambridge Corridor.  Accordingly, the route of the former 
Northampton to Market Harborough railway has been safeguarded as a 
potential transport corridor. 

 
201. A safeguarded corridor between Brackmills and Castle Station is identified for 

use as a continuous public transport, cycling and walking route. The Council 
needs to safeguard the land required for transport-related developments to be 
progressed. 

 
 
POLICY 30 
TRANSPORT SCHEMES AND MITIGATION 
 
In order to deliver a high quality, accessible sustainable transport network, the 
Council will require developers to fund and financially contribute towards a range of 
transport schemes through the relevant legal agreements and planning conditions, in 

121



87 

 

order to meet the growth requirements of this local plan, to mitigate the impacts of 
developments and to ensure they create a high quality, sustainable, accessible 
development that is well connected to the rest of the Borough.   Developments will 
be supported where the developer can demonstrate that they do not have an 
unacceptable transport impact, that they promote sustainable forms of travel and 
they include sufficient mitigation measures. 
 
The Council will also safeguard areas of land for transport and sustainable travel 
related developments which have been agreed for implementation during and 
beyond the plan period, once their precise alignment has been defined.  In addition, 
the route of the former Northampton to Market Harborough railway line, as shown on 
the Policies Map, has been safeguarded for future transport use. 

 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy C3 (Strategic Connections) 
 

Parking 
 
202. The Government states that patterns of movement, streets, parking and other 

transport considerations are integral to the design of schemes and contribute to 
making high quality places.  Northamptonshire County Council adopted a 
Supplementary Planning Document for Parking in 2016, which has been used 
to determine planning applications.  This is set to be replaced by a new 
supplementary planning document produced by Northampton Borough Council. 

 
203. The design of new developments will also need to change to accommodate the 

move towards electric vehicles, the requirement for increasing model shift, to 
improve the quality of the environment and improve people’s quality of life. New 
developments and extensions to existing developments will need to ensure 
they make provision for electric vehicle charging and associated infrastructure. 

 
POLICY 31 
PARKING STANDARDS  
 
Subject to all other relevant local plan policies and material considerations, planning 
permission will be granted for proposals that meet the County Council’s parking 
standards and any replacement standards formulated over the plan period.  These 
standards include car parking, disabled parking, garage parking, visitor parking, 
cycle parking and provision for deliveries and emergency parking. New residential 
and commercial developments will be required to cater for the provision and use of 
electric and hybrid vehicles. 
 
Where appropriate, where there will be an additional demand for car parking but 
where car parking cannot be accommodated on site, the Council will require a 
financial contribution towards parking provision and management based on the 
parking type, size, provision and locality. 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy N12 (Northampton’s Transport Network Improvement) 

122



88 

 

 
 
 

123



89 

 

CHAPTER 12 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
OVERVIEW 

 
204. Northampton’s population growth will create an increase in the demand for key 

infrastructure. The Council will continue to work in partnership with adjacent 
councils, infrastructure providers and developers in order to assess, plan, 
deliver and implement the provision of the required infrastructure needed in the 
Borough. 

 
205. The range of Infrastructure required to support and manage growth could 

include transport, telecommunications, water supply, sewage treatment and 
sewerage, flood risk and energy.  As Northampton is required to accommodate 
18,870 net additional dwellings and 28,000 net additional jobs up to 2029, there 
will be a need to address current infrastructure deficiencies as well as planning 
to accommodate this proposed level of development up to 2029.  

 
INFRASTRUCTURE DELIVERY 

 
206. The West Northamptonshire Infrastructure Delivery Plan46 contains details on 

strategic infrastructure items required to deliver growth. The Infrastructure that 
is required to serve the current and future needs of the Borough including 
developments that have been granted planning permission can be delivered 
and provided through a variety of organisations and mechanisms including 
Central Government, Highways England, South East Midlands Local Enterprise 
Partnership (SEMLEP) and developer contributions.   

 
HEALTHCARE  

 
207. The Northamptonshire Healthcare Foundation Trust provide care for the 

population of Northampton Borough (Northamptonshire). They deliver many of 
the NHS services that are provided outside of a hospital and within the 
community which include physical, mental and speciality services. 

 
208. The main local acute NHS Trust hospital is the Northampton General Hospital 

which serves Northampton Borough, South Northamptonshire, Daventry and 
provides specialist cancer services for people living in Northamptonshire, North 
Buckinghamshire and South Leicestershire.  

 
209. Evidence shows that some existing health care and wellbeing facilities are 

already short of capacity and will require expansion and also there will be the 
requirement for the creation of new health and wellbeing facilities. A large 
amount of development is proposed within Northampton and on the edges of 
Northampton as part of the planned sustainable urban extensions.  

 
                                                           
46 Infrastructure Delivery Plan (West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit, 2017) 

124



90 

 

210. Developer contributions for health care and well-being facilities and related 
provision will be sought and expected from developers and will be achieved 
through the use of Section 106 Agreements and CIL payments for the provision 
of improvements, extensions and creation of new health care facilities to meet 
the needs of a development.  

 
EDUCATION  

 
211. Northamptonshire County Council is required to meet the needs of all new 

developments that are located within its legislative boundary. The County 
Council have a School Organisation Plan which covers a five year period and 
their current plan covers the period 2016 to 2021.  

 
212. The plan provides the calculations and requirements for the additional school 

places that will be required to accommodate the required educational provision 
to serve the future growing population. It is recognised that there are also free 
schools located within Northamptonshire. A free school is a type of academy, a 
non- profit making, independent, state-funded school which is free to attend but 
which is not wholly controlled by a local authority. Free schools are governed 
by non-profit charitable trusts that sign funding agreements with the Secretary 
of State for Education.   

 
213. The funding provision for education is provided through a number of 

mechanisms including from the Government, the Education Funding Agency 
and through securing funding from developers via Section 106 Agreements and 
the Community Infrastructure Levy. Developers will seek the advice 
Northamptonshire County Council’s Education Department and the Local 
Planning Authority to determine what level of education provision will need to 
be provided, where it is to be located and to determine the associated cost. 

 
INFRASTRUCTURE DELIVERY  

 
214. The Council will work with its partners to ensure that funding opportunities are 

captured and the required infrastructure is delivered accordingly. 
 
POLICY 32 
INFRASTRUCTURE DELIVERY AND CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
All new development proposals will be required to contribute towards the delivery of 
any new infrastructure associated with and resulting from the scheme.  These need 
to be funded and delivered in a timely manner.  Where proposals have an impact on 
existing infrastructure, resulting in the need for enhancements, developers will be 
required to positively contribute towards its delivery. 
 
Funding provision will be sought from a number of mechanisms including from 
developer contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy.  
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
Policy INF1 (Approach to Infrastructure Delivery) 

125



91 

 

Policy INF2 (Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements) 

126



92 

 

CHAPTER 13 
SITE SPECIFIC ALLOCATIONS AND POLICIES 

 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN ALLOCATIONS 

 
215. The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy requires the development of at 

least 18,870 houses in the Borough and the contribution to the delivery of 
28,500 jobs over its plan period which is to 2029.  In addition, there are also 
requirements to provide for retail and leisure schemes which will continue to 
sustain and support economic and regeneration initiatives across the Borough. 

 
216. The Council undertook a Land Availability Assessment, in accordance with 

Government’s guidance and criteria, of sites and properties which may 
contribute to these requirements.  The purpose of this assessment is to identify 
a future supply of land which is suitable, available and achievable for housing 
and economic development up to 2029.  The Council is not required to identify 
every site but it needs to demonstrate that it has made a robust assessment of 
the sources of housing land supply in order to meet its required target.  In doing 
so, the Council assessed all the following sites: 

 
• Those that were assessed through the Strategic Housing Land Availability 

Assessment exercise during the production of the West Northamptonshire 
Joint Core Strategy 2014 

• The safeguarded employment sites in the Northampton Local Plan 1997 
and the Central Area Action Plan 2013 

• The sites that came forward through the Call for Sites consultation in the 
spring of 2016 

• Any sites that came forward following the Call for Sites consultation as 
requested by promoters 

 
217. Following the initial LAA exercise, the Council concluded that there is sufficient 

land to meet the requirements of the Joint Core Strategy.  The Sites 
Consultation, held in the autumn of 2017, sought to gather opinions on the 
Council’s decisions on the sites which will be taken forward for further 
investigations and those which will not.  In 2018, further detailed site 
investigations were undertaken utilising the sites allocation methodology, which 
resulted in the identification of the Council’s preferred options for development 
allocations.  The investigations required a wide range of internal and external 
involvement ranging from the Environment Agency through to heritage 
specialists.   

 
POLICY 33 
DEVELOPMENT ALLOCATIONS 
 
The sites set out below are allocated on the Policies Map for development. The 
Council will support the developments and proposals on these allocated sites, 
provided that they meet the requirements set out in the development 
management policies within this Plan.   

127



93 

 

 
 
 

0167 Tanner Street 
0168 Rowtree Road 
0171 Quinton Road 
0174 Ransome Road Gateway 
0180 St James Road 
0195 Hunsbury School, Hunsbury Hill  
0205 Parklands Middle School, Devon Way 
0208 Swan Valley Gateway 
0288 Railway Station car park 
0328 Cattle Market Road 
0333 Railway Station car park  
0335 Great Russell Street / Chronicle and Echo North 
0336 Site rear of Aldi, former Chronicle & Echo site 
0338 Countess Road 
0403 Allotments, Studland Road  
0496 57 Artizan Road   
0508 Fishpond Road  
0590 Nationwide Building Society (adjacent car park) 
0594 Sixfields East 
0598  Car park, Victoria Street 
0629 British Timken Site  
0657 Fraser Road 
0666 171 – 180 St Andrews Road 
0672 Tunnel Hill Cottages  
0685 12 Pennycress Place, Ecton Brook Road 
0719 Car garage workshop, Harlestone Road 
0720 Ryland Soans garage, Harlestone Road 
0814 32 Great Russell Street  
0818 St Peter’s Way 
0870 Sixfields, Upton Way 
0903 Hawkins Shoe Factory, Overstone Road 
0910 379 Harlestone Road 
0915 118 – 122 Wellingborough Road 
0931 Sites in Green Street 
0932 Southbridge Site 1 
0933 Southbridge Site 2 
1001 Former Emmanuel Middle School 
1005 North of Martins Yard, Spencer Bridge Road 
1006 Pineham 
1007 Land south of Wooldale Road, east of Wootton Road 
1009 Land west of Policy N5 Northampton South SUE 
1010 Land at St Peter’s Way/ Court Road/ Freeschool Street 
1013 Park Campus 
1014 Avenue Campus 

128



94 

 

1022 Belgrave House 
1025 Land to the west of Towester Road 
1026 Eastern Land Parcel, Buckton Fields 
1034 Witham Way 
1035 West Oval garage site 
1036 Derwent drive garage site 
1037 Swale Drive garage site and rear/ unused land 
1041 Newnham Road, Kingsthorpe 
1048 Stenson Street 
1049 Land off Arbour Court, Thorplands garage block 
1051b Waterpump Court and Billing Brook Road 
1051a Land between Waterpump Court and Billing Brook Road  
1052 Land rear of garages in Coverack Close 
1058 Land off Oat Hill Drive, Ecton Brook 
1060 Hayeswood Road, Lings 
1068 Garage site in The Briars, Briar Hill 
1069 Garage site off Farmclose Road, Wootton 
1071 2 sites off Medway Drive, near Meadow Close 
1086a 2 parcels of land in Sunnyside Estate (Cosgrove Road) 
1086b 2 parcels of land in Sunnyside Estate (Chalcombe 

Avenue) 
1094 Land off Holmecross Road 
1096  Land off Mill Lane 
1097  Gate Lodge 
1098 The Green, Great Houghton 
1099 Upton Park (Upton Reserve Site) 
1100 Hill Farm Rise, Hunsbury Hill 
1101 Land at Waterside Way 
1102 Site east of Towester Road 
1104 Watering Lane, Colingtree 
1107 Former Abington Mill Farm, land off Rushmere Road 
1108  Horsley Road 
1109 Mill Lane 
1112 Milton Ham 
1113 Greyfriars 
1114 Cedarwood Nursing Home, 492 Kettering Road 
1116 194 – 200 Kingsthorpe Grove 
1117 133 Queens Park Terrace 
1118 135 Harlestone Road 
1119 Silver Cornet, Welland Way 
1121 Upton Valley Way East 
1123 83-103 Trinity Avenue 
1124 41 – 43 Derngate 
1126 5 Primrose Hill 
1127 32 Connaught Street 
1131 The Leys Close, 39 Mill Lane 
1133 Eastern District Social Club 

129



95 

 

1134 St Johns Railway Embankment 
1137 Wootton Fields 
1138 Land south of Old Bedford Road 
1139 Ransome Road 
1140 Land north of Milton Ham 
  

 
 
Delivering WNJCS: 
All strategic and Northampton based policies 
 

SITE SPECIFIC POLICIES 
 

NORTHAMPTON RAILWAY STATION, RAIFREIGHT AND ADJOINING 
SITES (LAA0288 and LAA0333) 

 
218. Northampton’s railway station currently accommodates a new two storey 

station building, provision for taxis and a temporary decked car park.  To the 
north, the site is currently used for railfreight and further north is a small 
business area, and a café and lorry park. Also within the site is a scheduled 
monument and a listed building, which form part of a range of heritage assets 
within and surrounding the site.  The southern half of the site is located within 
the Enterprise Zone. 

 
219. To the north and south of the site are employment areas, and to the east is 

Spring Boroughs. To the west are a residential area and a park.  The site is 
within 10 minutes’ walk from Northampton town centre.   

 
220. With a new railway station, there is an opportunity to capitalise on the site’s 

location for development to meet future passenger requirements as well as 
housing and commercial development needs.  Network Rail has indicated that 
the railfreight operation can be moved elsewhere, therefore opening up the 
potential for the residual railway land to be developed.  There is potential to 
consider a comprehensive and integrated development on this whole site, 
capitalising on its sustainable location on a rail network, close to the town 
centre and supporting modal shift.  Its location also provides an opportunity for 
high density development to be delivered. 

 
221. The railway station also needs to be able to accommodate additional services 

including those that may arise as a result of opportunities relating to released 
capacity on the West Coast Main Line, including fast, long distance services, 
East west Rail services and potential transport minks to the north via the route 
of the former Northampton to Market Harborough railway. 

 
222. Parts of the northern section are at moderate risk of groundwater flooding. 
 
 
 
 

130



96 

 

POLICY 34 
NORTHAMPTON RAILWAY STATION (LAA0288), RAIFREIGHT AND 
ADJOINING SITES (LAA0333) 
 
The existing Northampton Railway Station Building and associated buildings, 
platforms, tracks, infrastructure, security measures, car parking and 
associated services and facilities will be safeguarded to ensure that the 
provision of current and future accessible passenger railway services to and 
from Northampton will be met.  This will also continue to contribute towards 
an increased modal shift towards rail usage whilst supporting the provision of 
on site and related employment. These safeguarded areas will include 
safeguarded road accessibility to allow for 24 hour servicing and emergency 
access to Northampton Rail Station via St Andrew’s Road. 
 
Subject to compliance with other policies in this plan and material 
considerations, proposals to provide additional capacity to facilitate improved 
passenger railway services at Northampton station will be supported. 
 
To secure the protection, enhancement and enjoyment of the character and 
setting of the adjacent listed building and its two adjoining listed walls that are 
located within the existing railway station site, public realm will be created 
between the heritage assets and the station building as shown in Figure 16.   
 
The development of a permanent and secure multi-storey car park on the 
Northampton Railway Station site with access to the main railway station 
building will be supported in order to create sufficient on-site car parking, 
bicycle and motorcycle parking to cater for the future growing demand of rail 
usage.  
 
The layout of the development should be designed to take into account 
existing sewers and water mains within the site. 
 
Subject to detailed assessment, development on this site should maximise the 
use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). 
 
On site LAA0288, the Council will support the delivery of mixed use 
development including a multi-storey car park, offices, residential and 
ancillary Class A uses.  
 
On site LAA0333, the Council will support the delivery of at least 200 
dwellings, subject to analysis of capacity, on the residual areas not required 
for commercial and/ or passenger rail services.   
 
The following design principles are to be incorporated into any master 
planning and/ or planning application proposals for the two sites: 
 

• A high quality development that preserves and enhances the 
significance of the former castle site and in particular the scheduled 
monument and listed Postern Gate and the setting of these heritage 

131



97 

 

assets 
 

• Development across the whole area need to be considered in an 
integrated manner 
 

• This high quality development must secure permeability within the site 
for pedestrians and cyclists 

 
• Improved and safe connectivity, including direct pedestrian routes, with 

the Spring Boroughs area and the town centre will need to be created 
  

• Opportunities should be explored for development to enhance the site’s 
relationship to the Brampton Arm of the River Nene. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132



98 

 

FIGURE 16 
DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES FOR NORTHAMPTON RAILWAY STATION AND 

RAILFREIGHT SITES 
 

 
 

MARTIN’S YARD EXTENSION (LAA1005)  
 
223. Martin’s Yard is an employment area which is predominantly occupied by local 

light engineering, waste disposal and recycling companies.  They provide a 
valuable service for the local community, and there are very few areas which 
offer these services in Northampton.  There are ongoing requirements from 
existing and interested occupiers to expand and invest in the area.  Its 
expansion will contribute towards meeting demand as well as modernise the 
area and improve the ecological value of the residual land not required for 
employment.   

133



99 

 

 
224. The area which is proposed for extension is a vacant site of around 1.4ha, 

which was previously used for landfill.  It contains superficial deposits of clay, 
silt and gravel.  It is currently scrubland and marshland, and is dominated by 
semi-improved grassland and scrub containing Japanese knotweed and 
disturbed ground.  It is located within a Local Wildlife Site and the Brampton 
Valley Arm of the sub regional Green Infrastructure corridor.  To the north is the 
Kingsthorpe Local Nature Reserve.   

 
POLICY 35 
MARTIN’S YARD EXTENSION (LAA1005) 
 
The Council supports the extension of the Martin’s Yard employment area for 
employment purposes to meet local demand, subject to the following criteria 
and principles shown in Figure 17: 
  

• The extension for employment use will be restricted to the area shown  
 

• A transport assessment will be undertaken to assess the ability of the 
existing highway and access to adequately cater for the existing and 
proposed development  
 

• Ecological and green infrastructure enhancements and net biodiversity 
increases need to be delivered in the area shown, taking into account its 
location within the Brampton Valley Arm and located immediately south 
of the Kingsthorpe Local Nature Reserve  
 

• A landscape barrier will be required between the employment area and 
the residual land 

 
• The layout of the development should be designed to take into account 

any existing sewers and water mains within the site. 
 

• Subject to detailed assessment, development on this site should 
maximise the use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



100 

 

FIGURE 17 
DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES FOR LAND NORTH OF MARTIN’S YARD 

 

 
 
 

THE GREEN, GREAT HOUGHTON (LAA1098)  
 
225. The site is located to the south west of Great Houghton Village, part of which is 

within a Conservation Area and accommodates listed buildings.  It lies to the 
east of the South of Brackmills Sustainable Urban Extension.  This is primarily 
agricultural land, which can be accessed from Bedford Road or from Newport 
Pagnell Road.  It borders onto designated woodland area which create a buffer 
from Brackmills Employment Area. 

 
226. This agricultural land is relatively flat, and there are some electricity pylons 

across pockets of the site. 
 
 

135



101 

 

 
POLICY 36 
THE GREEN, GREAT HOUGHTON (LAA1098) 
 
Housing development of up to 800 dwellings, which comply with the 
development principles shown on Figure 18 will be supported, subject to the 
following criteria being met: 
 

• The built development should only take place outside of the area 
hatched in the diagram 
 

• The scheme should be of high quality design, and must take into 
account and be sensitive to the significance and the setting of the Great 
Houghton conservation area, evident through a Heritage Impact 
Assessment  
 

• A buffer is to be created, in the form of ecological enhancements and 
net increase in biodiversity in the area hatched in the diagram 
 

• The development provides suitable transport links to neighbouring 
developments, including neighbourhood centres and community 
facilities 

 
• The proposal should include pedestrian and cycling provision to secure 

connectivity and permeability within the site and improved connections 
to the employment area to the north and the proposed residential areas 
to the west 

 
• Development on this site should maximise the use of Sustainable 

Drainage Systems (SuDS). 
 

• The layout of the development should be designed to take into account 
existing sewers and water mains within the site. 

 
• Any proposal that comes forward should include suitable measures to 

mitigate the impact of additional traffic generated by the development. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

136



102 

 

 
FIGURE 18 

DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES FOR LAND AT THE GREEN, GREAT HOUGHTON 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

137



103 

 

GREYFRIARS (LAA1113) 
 
227. The Greyfriars site is located within the town centre boundary, and is bounded 

by a range of mixed uses including employment and car parking facilities to the 
north, residential and commercial to the east, North Gate bus station and 
commercial to the west and south west and predominantly retail and the Market 
Square further south.  Its location within the town centre and the proposed 
extension to the Primary Shopping Area makes the site as ideal for a variety of 
mixed town centre uses as well as an element of residential use. 

 
228. This vacant site was previously occupied by the bus station, and adjoins the 

Grosvenor Centre retail development area.  It can be accessed from Lady’s 
Lane and Sheep Street.  There are still pockets of contaminated land on the 
site.  This site lies within close proximity to heritage assets in the All Saints 
Conservation Area. Although the site can be accessed from the Grosvenor 
Centre, an opportunity exists to improve the connectivity and permeability of the 
site with its surrounding areas primarily to the north and south. 

 
 
 
 
POLICY 37 
GREYFRIARS 
 
This key development site is available for a high density, high quality mixed 
use town centre development and residential use which complements, 
expands and seeks to enhance the current town centre offer and improve 
connectivity to the Market Square and the town centre.  
 
Any proposals should conform to the development principles shown in Figure 
19 and will need to ensure that they: 
 

• Are of a high quality design, using high quality materials which 
complement the surrounding area and public realm. The proposal 
should include the creation of key, unique landmark buildings that 
reflect the location of this site and Northampton town centre 
 

• Provide sympathetic design of an appropriate scale taking into account 
the historic character of Sheep Street together with improved, safe and 
well-lit pedestrian and cycle connectivity north / south and reinstate a 
building line in the missing gap to the north of Lady’s Lane and to the 
south of Greyfriars.  Pre-existing surface connections should also be 
reinstated 
 

• Be outward looking towards maximising external active frontages 
particularly at ground floor level 
 

• Ensure that new development is well related and sympathetic to the 
characterisation and heritage assets of the surrounding areas  

138



104 

 

 
• Ensure the provision of appropriate levels of secure and safe vehicle 

parking which are consistent with parking requirements. 
 
The layout of new development should be designed to take into account 
existing sewers and water mains within the site. 
 
 

 
 

 
FIGURE 19 

DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES FOR GREYFRIARS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

139



105 

 

RANSOME ROAD (LAA1139) 
 
229. This site is located within an area which is and will be experiencing significant 

regeneration activity and change.  It lies immediately to the south of the 
Enterprise Zone, and is accessible to all the leisure activity and open spaces 
associated with the River Nene and its adjoining parks. The site is within 10 
minutes’ walk of the town centre and its Primary Shopping Area, and further 
opportunities exist to improve accessibility from University Drive.  

 
230. The eastern section of the site is a Registered Battlefield site, and the southern 

and south eastern boundaries border Delapre Park Conservation Area and its 
historic park.  Development will need to be planned in a manner which respects 
the significance of these assets.  To the north is the safeguarded former railway 
line, and further north is the University of Northampton, Beckets Park and 
Midsummer Meadow which accommodates the Northampton marina and the 
Radlands Plaza skatepark. 

 
231. There are areas of historic landfill and contamination on the site, particularly 

within the southern and eastern areas.  These are primarily associated with the 
haulage industry, contamination from the previous engine sheds and depots, as 
well as earthworks.  The site is also at moderate risk of groundwater flooding, 
and is within Flood Zones 2 and 3.   

 
 
POLICY 38 
RANSOME ROAD 
 
Ransome Road will be developed for up to 250 dwellings in a manner which is 
consistent with the diagram shown in Figure 20.  Proposals need to include 
the following: 
 

• Be two to four storeys in height, with taller buildings facing along the 
principal movement routes and the northern section of the site 
 

• Bus only route to be provided, connecting Bedford Road to London 
Road via University Drive, designed specifically to discourage private 
vehicle traffic from the wider primary distributor network accessing and 
adversely impacting on the predominantly residential character of the 
site  
 

• Deliver a strategic green space corridor with associated footpaths to 
effectively link the site to Becket’s Park and Delapre Park.  Suitable 
access to Delapre Lake and Delapre Abbey and Park from Ransome 
Road is encouraged 
 

• Respect the historic integrity and significance of on-site and nearby 
heritage assets.  Appropriately address the site’s location within and 
adjacent to the registered battlefield of the Battle of Northampton and 
also make an appropriate contribution to supporting its interpretation to 

140



106 

 

the local area 
 

• Incorporate appropriate measures to mitigate against flood risk both 
within the area and downstream of the sites, particularly taking account 
of the role of Hardingstone Dyke and residual risk associated with River 
Nene fluvial flood defences 
 

The layout of any development should be designed to take into account 
existing sewers and water mains within the site. 
 
Subject to detailed assessment, development on this site should maximise the 
use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

141



107 

 

FIGURE 20 
DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES FOR RANSOME ROAD 

 

 
 

142



108 

 

CHAPTER 14 
IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING 

 
Introduction 

 
232. Review and monitoring are key aspects of the Local Plan. The Council is 

required to report on the progress of Local Plan preparation and to what extent 
Local Plan policies are being achieved. 

 
233. Monitoring is an important and necessary part of the plan-led system. In order 

to determine the effectiveness of the overall plan and to take into account the 
changing circumstance nationally and locally. A monitoring framework is 
therefore required to measure that the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 delivers 
the desired outcomes, and when necessary actions or interventions can be put 
in place to rectify any failings. 

 
Monitoring Framework 

 
234. The Council will continue to monitor the implementation of the Local 

Development Scheme and the extent to which the policies set out in the Local 
Plans are being achieved.  The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012 set out the minimum requirements that each local 
authority must provide, as such there is a duty to publish: 

 
• Detail relating to the Local Plan(s) and supplementary planning documents 

outlined in the Local Development Scheme including: the title; timetable for 
production; progress towards meeting the identified milestones; details of 
adoption; and, if necessary, reasons for any delay; 
 

• Identification of Local Plan policies that are not being implemented, the 
reasons behind this and the steps the authority intends to take to rectify this 
situation; 
 

• Where a policy in a local plan specifies an annual number, or a number 
relating to any other period of net dwellings or net additional affordable 
dwellings, completed during the monitoring period and since the start of the 
plan period, 
 

• Details of any neighbourhood development order or neighbourhood 
development plans; 
 

• Summary details of CIL expenditure during the reported year 
 

• Details of any action taken under the duty to cooperate during the monitoring 
period   
 

 
 

143



109 

 

How will the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 be monitored? 
 
235. An Annual Monitoring Report will be published.  The report will contain an 

assessment of the extent to which the policies set out in the Local Plan are 
being achieved and whether targets are being met. 

 
Implementation 

 
236. The policies in the Local Plan will be implemented to facilitate delivery of the 

spatial vision and strategic objectives. However, it is important to recognise that 
many other process will influence their achievement, such as the 
implementation of other plans and strategies produced at the national and local 
levels, investment by the public, private and voluntary sectors and the actions 
of individual business and persons. The plan is the key element in delivering 
the spatial vision and strategic objectives for the borough, but it is not able to 
this in isolation.   

 
237. As a consequence, in order to deliver the proposed growth in the borough in a 

sustainable manner, it will be necessary to form effective and ongoing working 
relationships with key delivery partners in both the public and private sectors, 
establish robust delivery mechanism and capitalise on funding opportunities.  

 
238. The Local Plan will have an important role in influencing and providing a 

positive framework for investment decisions. Ultimately, it will be investments 
by individual developers, businesses, and other organisations that will deliver 
the spatial vision and implement many of the policies within the Local Plan.  

 
The Monitoring Indicators  

 
239. Indicators are essential instruments for monitoring and evaluation. Indicators 

measure how far policies have gone towards meeting policy targets and 
provide the evidence required to know if policies are heading in the right 
direction. In an ideal situation a vast range of indicators could be used to 
monitor the Local Plan, however, in order that the monitoring framework 
remains manageable, a realistic balance must be achieved.   

 
240. Indicators exist in many different forms. The majority of the indicators are 

quantitative, or statistical in nature, outlining key data which relates to the 
policy, particularly those which promote, or aim to manage, additional 
development. However, not all policies can be monitored in numeric terms and 
there are indicators which are qualitative in nature, where a contextual or 
descriptive update is necessary to measure the impact of the policy. Most of the 
indicators contained in the Monitoring Framework are easily accessible from; 
sources of national statistics; regional or sub regional data sources, or from 
information held or collected within the Council and its partner organisations.  

 
241. The indicators outlined in the Local Plan implementation and monitoring 

framework set out below, offer an effective strategy for monitoring the 
implementation of the Local Plan’s spatial strategy, objectives, policies and 

144



110 

 

proposals. However, in order to be robust over the plan period and resilient to 
change, it will be necessary to review and revise these to respond to changes 
in the availability of information, and the effectiveness of specific indicators.     

 
Table 10: Local Plan Implementation and Monitoring Framework 

 
Policy Title Target Indicators/ 

Monitoring Details 
1 Presumption in 

favour of sustainable 
development 

This policy reinforces the principle 
of sustainable development within 
the decision making process, which 
is a national requirement 
 
No target required 

Not applicable 

2 Placemaking  This policy aims to ensure that all 
developments are proposed in a 
manner that promotes positive 
place making  
 
Target: all schemes should be 
required to meet this policy when 
preparing proposals and plans  

All relevant planning 
applications should 
be determined in 
accordance with this 
policy 

3 Design This policy aims to ensure that all 
developments are proposed in a 
manner that delivers high quality 
design. 
 
Target: all schemes should be 
required to meet this policy when 
preparing proposals and plans  

All relevant planning 
applications should 
be determined in 
accordance with this 
policy 

4 Amenity and layout This policy aims to ensure that the 
right level of amenity space is 
provided and the appropriate layout 
is designed when considering 
proposals.  This will ensure that 
people’s wellbeing are supported. 
 
Target: schemes will be compliant 
with the space and amenity 
standards including the nationally 
described technical standards 

Annual monitoring of 
planning approvals 
which do not meet 
the nationally 
described standards 
and all identified 
standards in the 
policy  

5 Sustainable 
construction 

The policy seeks to deliver 
sustainable design concepts in 
development schemes. 
 
Target: all schemes will deliver 
elements of sustainable 
construction  

Planning approvals 
to be monitored 
based on whether 
an, all or none of the 
criteria outlined were 
met  

6 Flood risk and water 
management 

The policy seeks to ensure that 
developments do not result in 
additional flood risk with the area. 
 
Target: no additional flood risk  

Environment Agency 
comments on 
applications affected 
by flooding matters 
must be complied 

145



111 

 

identified  with.  Annual 
monitoring required 
on whether there are 
any contravention to 
EA advice 

7 Supporting 
Northampton town 
centre 

This policy seeks to secure main 
town centre uses and uses which 
will meet the town centre’s 
changing role and visitor 
experience 
 
Target: an increase in the number 
of main town centre uses and 
residential schemes which 
strengthens the town centre’s 
position and role.  An increase in 
footfall 

Number of planning 
approvals for main 
town centre uses/ 
residential schemes 
which will be 
monitored annually. 
 
Number of planning 
approvals granted to 
vacant units. 
 
Undertake annual 
town centre shopping 
survey. 
 
An increase in visitor 
footfall can be 
determined through 
updates provided by 
the Northampton 
Town Centre 
Manager 

8 Regeneration 
opportunities  

This policy aims to identify key sites 
for regeneration opportunities. 
 
Target: developments will be 
progressed and completed on the 
selected sites within the timeline of 
the local plan 

Planning approvals 
and implementation 
of the schemes on 
the sites will be 
monitored 

9 Supporting and 
safeguarding the 
University of 
Northampton 
Waterside campus 

This policy provides assurance that 
the future of the University and its 
graduates are supported 
 
Target: the retention of the 
University of Northampton campus 
in the Central Area and to increase 
the number of graduates staying on 
in Northampton 

Working with the 
University to identify, 
annually, the number 
of students who 
choose to stay in 
Northampton to 
work. 
 
Planning approvals 
associated with 
campus facilities and 
the university’s 
environment 

10 Managing hotel 
growth 

This policy supports the 
development of hotels in 
appropriate locations 
 
Target: an increase in the number 
of 3 and 4 star hotels in the town 

The number of 
planning applications 
received for hotel 
developments  
 
The number of hotels 

146



112 

 

centre and the Enterprise Zone to 
meet demand 

built in Northampton 

11 Development of 
main town centre 
uses 

This policy seeks to ensure that 
main town centre uses are 
developed in compliance with the 
sequential test. 
 
Target: securing main town centre 
uses primarily within in the town 
centre 

The number of 
planning applications 
approved for main 
town centre uses 
outside the town 
centre 

12 Housing and other 
allocations  

This policy seeks to deliver the right 
amount of housing to meet the 
requirements of the Joint Core 
Strategy 
 
Target: delivery of a five year 
housing land supply 

Annual preparation 
of a 5 year housing 
land supply 

13 Type and mix of 
housing 

This policy aims to ensure that 
housing development schemes 
meet the needs of all the various 
markets including rental, affordable 
and full market value 
 
Target: secure the delivery of 
suitable homes to meet identified 
needs 

Annual preparation 
of a 5 year housing 
land supply and 
annual monitoring 
reports. 
 
Annual monitoring of 
planning approvals 
for affordable 
housing, self-built 
and custom built 
housing, specialist 
housing and 
accessible homes 

14 Delivering housing in 
multiple occupation 

This policy seeks to manage the 
concentration of houses in multiple 
occupation in the plan area 
 
Target: no more than 10% of 
dwellings within a 50m radius of the 
application sites are HMOs 

The number of 
planning permissions 
granted which 
exceed the targets  
 
The number of  
planning appeals 
dismissed on the 
grounds of this policy 

15 Safeguarding 
existing employment 
sites 

This policy’s objective is to ensure 
that existing employment sites are 
protected to meet the jobs target for 
the Joint Core Strategy 
 
Target: resist loss of safeguarded 
employment sites  

Planning approvals 
for non-employment 
generating uses in 
these allocated sites 
to be monitored 
annually 

16 Supporting new 
employment 
developments and 
schemes within and 
outside safeguarded 
sites 

This policy’s objective is to ensure 
that new employment sites are 
supported, to meet the jobs target 
for the Joint Core Strategy 
 
No target required.  The provision 

Although no targets 
are needed, the 
implementation of 
new employment 
schemes will be 
monitored to assess 

147



113 

 

of new employment sites will 
contribute towards the delivery of 
additional jobs in Northampton 

the number of jobs 
created and the 
floorspace developed 

17 New retail 
developments and 
retail impact 
assessment 

The policy aims to deliver additional 
convenience and comparison 
floorspaces in Northampton, 
primarily in the town centre, district 
and local centres.   
 
Target: large scale retail schemes 
outside the designated centres 
should not take place  

Planning approvals 
for retail schemes of 
500sq.m or more 
outside the 
designated centres 
will be monitored 
annually 

18 Residential 
development on 
upper floors 

This policy seeks to ensure that 
residential schemes above the 
ground floors are undertaken in a 
manner which would not be 
detrimental to heritage and not 
affected by environmental concerns 
 
Target: This is not an area which 
can be targeted.  These units tend 
to be considered for alternative 
uses as and when they become 
vacant.  This is more likely to be led 
by the open market 

Planning approvals 
for upper floors  

19 Neighbourhood 
parades 

This policy seeks to ensure that the 
local population are supported by 
neighbourhood centres which will 
meet their daily shopping and 
service requirements 
 
Target: no loss of neighbourhood 
parades within the timeline of the 
local plan 

Planning approvals 
for residential uses in 
the neighbourhood 
parades 

20 Community services 
and facilities 

This policy aims to secure the 
provision of appropriate community 
facility  
 
Target: No target required 

These will be 
monitored through 
annual monitoring 
reports 

21 Childcare provision This policy aims to secure the 
provision of childcare facility to 
meet the needs of parents and 
carers. 
 
Target: No target required 

These will be 
monitored through 
annual monitoring 
reports 

22 Sites for burial 
space 

The objective of this policy is to 
meet the demand for burial space. 
 
Target: the sites allocated will be 
used for burial space provision 

Planning approvals 
secured on these 
sites for burial space 
provision 

23 Sustaining and 
enhancing existing, 
and supporting the 

This policy aims to ensure that 
Northampton’s green infrastructure 
is maintained and enhanced where 

Planning approvals 
for schemes that 
meet the threshold 

148



114 

 

creation of, 
Northampton’s 
green infrastructure 

appropriate. 
 
Target: proposals affecting the 
green infrastructure components 
will meet some, if not all, of the 
objectives set out in the Green 
Infrastructure Plan 2016 or any 
updated plans 

which contribute 
positively to the 
green infrastructure 
component 

24 Providing open 
spaces 

The purpose of this policy is to 
ensure that new development 
schemes will include open spaces 
to meet the needs of future and 
existing residents 
 
Target: open spaces are provided 
in conjunction with the 
requirements set out in the Open 
Space Study 2018 and any 
subsequent updates 

Planning approvals 
for schemes which 
do not meet the 
requirements of the 
Open Space Study 
will be monitored. 
 
Gains and losses of 
open space 
typologies will also 
be monitored. 

25 Supporting and 
enhancing 
biodiversity 

This policy seeks to ensure that a 
net increase in biodiversity can be 
achieved in new developments in 
line with national requirements 
 
Target: no target required as a net 
increase will be sought from 
relevant planning applications 

Progress will be 
monitored through 
planning approvals 
and annual 
monitoring reports 

26 Upper Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits Special 
Protection Area 

This policy seeks to ensure that 
developments which are located 
close to this protected area will 
mitigate against any adverse 
effects on the bird colony 
 
Target: acceptable mitigation 
measures are in place for new 
schemes within the affected areas 
and the bird colonies will not be 
reduced 

Progress will be 
monitored through 
planning approvals 

27 Protection and 
enhancements of 
designated and non-
designated heritage 
assets 

This policy seeks to ensure that all 
development proposals protect and 
enhance heritage assets 
 
Target: no target required as all 
schemes are expected to ensure 
that development proposals do not 
result in adverse impacts on 
heritage assets  

Progress will be 
monitored through 
the number of 
planning approvals 
granted contrary to 
heritage advice  

28 Designing 
sustainable transport 
and travel 

This policy seeks to ensure that all 
new proposals should take into 
account the need to incorporate 
sustainable forms of travel within 
the schemes 
 

Percentage of 
households with 
access to services 
and facilities by 
public transport, 
walking and cycling, 

149



115 

 

Target: all relevant new schemes 
will identify ways in which 
sustainable travel becomes the 
more attractive option for 
movement 

within 30 minutes 
travel time with no 
more than 400m 
walk to a bus stop. 
 
Annual analysis of 
bus users in 
Northampton 

29 Highway network 
and safety 

This policy seeks to secure safety 
measures within the highway 
network  
 
Target:  all relevant new schemes 
will be designed in a manner which 
will not compromise safety on the 
users of the network 

This will be 
monitored through 
the preparation of an 
annual Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan 

30 Transport schemes 
and mitigation 

This policy seeks to secure 
appropriate mitigation where 
concerns have been identified 
 
Target: all new relevant schemes 
will be required to prepare  

This will be 
monitored through 
the preparation of an 
annual Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan 

31 Parking standards The purpose of this policy is to 
ensure that the right level of car 
parking is provided, and provided 
safely, to facilitate the new 
development 

Progress will be 
monitored through 
design layouts which 
are submitted as part 
of the planning 
applications  

32 Infrastructure 
delivery and 
contributions 

This policy aims to ensure that the 
right infrastructure in delivered at 
the right time and the appropriate 
funds secured 

Progress will be 
monitored by the 
Council’s S106 
Officer and the 
publication of the 
annual Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan 

33 Development 
allocations 

This policy seeks to allocate 
developments to meet housing 
needs and job requirements over 
the plan period 

Progress will be 
monitored through 
planning applications 
and annual 
monitoring reports 

34 Northampton railway 
station, railfreight 
and adjoining sites 

This policy seeks to ensure that the 
development on this site takes 
place in an acceptable manner 

Progress will be 
monitored through 
planning application 
and annual 
monitoring report 

35 Martin’s Yard 
extension 

This policy seeks to ensure that the 
development on this site takes 
place in an acceptable manner 

Progress will be 
monitored through 
planning approval 
and annual 
monitoring report 

36 The Green, Great 
Houghton 

This policy seeks to ensure that the 
development on this site takes 
place in an acceptable manner 

Progress will be 
monitored through 
planning application 

150



116 

 

and annual 
monitoring report 

37 Greyfriars This policy seeks to ensure that the 
development on this site takes 
place in an acceptable manner 

Progress will be 
monitored through 
planning application 
and annual 
monitoring report 

38 Ransome Road This policy seeks to ensure that the 
development on this site takes 
place in an acceptable manner 

Progress will be 
monitored through 
planning application 
and annual 
monitoring report 

    
 
  
 

 
 

151



117 

 

APPENDIX A 
Trajectory for sites allocated in the Local Plan Part 2 (excluding Sustainable 
Urban Extensions) 
 
Sites that already feature in the Council’s five year housing supply calculations are 
marked “5YHLS” in the yield column.  Because they are existing commitments, and 
to avoid double counting, these sites are not profiled in the year-by-year columns. 
 
 
REF SITE NAME YIELD  

 
2019/

20 
2020/

21 
2021/

22 
2022/

23 
2023/

24 
2024/

25 
2025/

26 
2026/

27 
2027/

28 
2028/

29 
0168 Rowtree Road 131 10 10 10 10 10 15 15 15 15 21 

0171 Quinton Road 19      9 10    

0174 Ransome Road 
Gateway 

6   3 3       

0195 Hunsbury School, 
Hunsbury Hill  

5YHLS  
(50) 

 

          

0205 Parklands Middle 
School, Devon 
Way  

132 
 

20 20 20 20 20 20 12    

0288 Railway Station 
(car park) 

68  
 

   25 25 18     

0333 Railway Station 
(railfreight)  

200 
 

     40 40 40 40 40 

0335 Great Russell 
Street/ Chronicle 
& Echo North 

28   10 10 8      

0336 Site rear of Aldi, 
Former Chronicle 
& Echo 

5YHLS 
(19) 

          

0338 Countess Road  
5YHLS (64) 
Additional 

capacity 80 
Total: 124 

  20 20 20 20      

0403 Allotments, 
Studland Road  
 

 74   37 37        

0496 57 Artizan Road  10    5 5      
0629 British Timken 

Site  
140  20 20 20 20 20 20 20    

0657 Fraser Road 140 20 20 20 20 20 20 20    
0666 171 – 180 St 

Andrews Road 
Planning approval 
 

5YHLS 
(22) 

          

0672 Tunnel Hill 
Cottages  

5YHLS 
(139) 

          

0685 12 Pennycress 
Place, Ecton 
Brook Road 

12    6 6      

0719 Car garage 
workshop, 
Harlestone Road 

35   11 12 12      

0720 Ryland Soans 
garage, 
Harlestone Road 

62   20 21 21      

0814 32 Great Russell 5YHLS           

152



118 

 

REF SITE NAME YIELD  
 

2019/
20 

2020/
21 

2021/
22 

2022/
23 

2023/
24 

2024/
25 

2025/
26 

2026/
27 

2027/
28 

2028/
29 

Street 
(N/2016/1434)  

(12) 

0903 Hawkins Shoe 
Factory, 
Overstone Road  

5YHLS 
(105) 

          

0910 379 Harlestone 
Road 

17    8 9      

0915 118 – 122 
Wellingborough 
Road 

12    6 6      

0932 Southbridge Site 1 5YHLS 
(44) 

     15 15 14   

0933 Southbridge Site 2 5YHLS 
(50) 

     20 20 10   

1001 Former 
Emmanuel Middle 
School 
 

5YHLS 
(81)  

 

          

1006 Pineham 
 

106        30 40 36 

1007 Land south of 
Wooldale Road, 
east of Wootton 
Road 

44 
 

   22 22      

1009 Land west of 
Policy N5 
Northampton 
South SUE 

271 20 20 20 20 20 30 30 30 40 41 

1010 Land at St Peter’s 
Way/ Court Road/ 
Freeschool Street 

5YHLS 
(37) 

      10 10 10 7 

1013 Park Campus 
 

5YHLS 
(800) 

          

1014 Avenue Campus  
 

200 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 

1022 Belgrave House 
 

5YHLS 
(99) 

          

1025 Land to the west 
of Towcester 
Road 

180 
 

20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20  

1026 Eastern Land 
Parcel, Buckton 
Fields 

24 
 

   12 12      

1034 Witham Way 4  
 

   2 2      

1035 West Oval garage 
site 
 

7 
 

 3 4        

1036 Derwent Drive 
garage site 

8    4 4      

1037 Swale Drive 
garage site and 
rear/ unused land 
 

6    3 3      

1041 Newnham Road, 
Kingsthorpe 

15   5 5 5      

1048 Stenson Street 6    3 3      
1049 Land off Arbour 

Court, Thorplands 
garage block 
(exclude 
woodland) 

11 
 

   5 6      

153



119 

 

REF SITE NAME YIELD  
 

2019/
20 

2020/
21 

2021/
22 

2022/
23 

2023/
24 

2024/
25 

2025/
26 

2026/
27 

2027/
28 

2028/
29 

1051
a 

Land between 
Waterpump Court 
and Billing Brook 
Road  

24    12 12      

1051
b 

Waterpump Court 
and Billing Brook 
Road 

29   9 10 10      

1052 Land rear of 
garages in 
Coverack Close 

13   3 5 5      

1058 Land off Oat Hill 
Drive, Ecton 
Brook 

11    5 6      

1060 Hayeswood Road, 
Lings 

6    3 3      

1068 Garage site in The 
Briars, Briar Hill 

5    2 3      

1069 Garage site off 
Farmclose Road, 
Wootton 

6    3 3      

1071 2 sites off 
Medway Drive, 
near Meadow 
Close 

9   3 3 3      

1086
a 

2 parcels of land 
in Sunnyside 
Estate (Cosgrove 
Road) 

6    3 3      

1086
b 

2 parcels of land 
in Sunnyside 
Estate 
(Chalcombe 
Avenue) 

7    3 4      

1094 Land off 
Holmecross Road 

10    5 5      

1096  Land off Mill Lane 
 

14 
 

 4 4 4 2      

1097  Gate Lodge 30 
 

  10 10 10      

1098 The Green, Great 
Houghton 

771 
(LAA 

density 
at 75%) 

50 50 50 50 50 100 100 100 100 121 

1099 Upton Park 
(Upton Reserve 
Site) 

40 
 

  10 15 15      

1100 Hill Farm Rise, 
Hunsbury Hill 

90   30 30 30      

1102 Site east of 
Towester Road 

50    25 25      

1104 Watering Lane, 
Colingtree 

265 20 20 20 20 20 33 33 33 33 33 

1107 Former Abington 
Mill Farm, land off 
Rushmere Road 

125 
 

   25 25 25 25 25   

1108  Horsley Road 
 

35  10 12 13       

1109 Mill Lane  6  
 

   3 3      

1113 Greyfriars 
 

400   50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 

1114 Cedarwood 5YHLS           

154



120 

 

REF SITE NAME YIELD  
 

2019/
20 

2020/
21 

2021/
22 

2022/
23 

2023/
24 

2024/
25 

2025/
26 

2026/
27 

2027/
28 

2028/
29 

Nursing Home, 
492 Kettering 
Road  

(2) 

1116 194 – 200 
Kingsthorpe 
Grove  

5YHLS 
(14) 

          

1117 133 Queens Park 
Terrace 
 

18          9 9 

1118 135 Harlestone 
Road 
 

5YHLS 
(7) 

 

          

1119 Silver Cornet, 
Welland Way 
 

5YHLS 
(14) 

 

          

1121 Upton Valley Way 
East  

5YHLS 
(34) 

          

1123 83-103 Trinity 
Avenue  
 

9  
 

  3 3 3      

1124 41 – 43 Derngate 
 

5YHLS 
(7) 

 

          

1126 5 Primrose Hill 
 

5YHLS 
(6) 

 

          

1127 32 Connaught 
Street 
 

6  
 

   3 3      

1131 The Leys Close, 
39 Mill Lane  

5YHLS 
(6) 

 

          

1133 Eastern District 
Social Club, 
Crestwood Road 
 

5YHLS 
(5) 

 

          

1134 St Johns Railway 
Embankment 

12    6 6      

1137 Wootton Fields 92   30 31 31      

1138 Land south of Old 
Bedford Road 

7  
 

   4 3      

1139 Merge Homes 
England plots in 
Ransome Road  

5YHLS 
(250) 

 

  50 50 50 50 50    

1140 Land north of 
Milton Ham  

224 20 20 20 20 20 25 25 25 25 24 

 Sub Total 220 294 544 718 702 530 515 422 402 402 
 5 year total  2478  2271 
 Total  4749 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

155



121 

 

APPENDIX B 
SUPERSEDED POLICIES 
NORTHAMPTON LOCAL PLAN 1997 
 
Saved Policies in the Adopted 
Northampton Local Plan 1997 

Replacement Policy Number and Title 
in the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 

E7 Skyline 2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 
E9 Locally Important Landscape 

Area 
23 Sustaining and enhancing 

existing, and supporting the 
creation of, Northampton’s 
Green Infrastructure 

E20 New development: Design 2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 
E26 Conservation Areas: 

development and advertisements 
27 Protection and enhancements of 

designated and non-designated 
heritage assets 

E28 Use of upper floors and other 
commercial premises 

18 Retail and/ or other development 
on Upper Floors 

E29 Shopping environment: new or 
replacements shop front 

2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 

E30 Shop front: external security 
protection 

2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 

E35 Advertisements: in conservation 
areas 

27 Protection and enhancements of 
designated and non-designated 
heritage assets 

E36 Advertisement hoardings: 
express consent 

3 Design 

H10 Other housing development: 
backland development 

2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 

H11 Other housing development: 
commercial property in primarily 
residential areas 

12 Housing and other housing led 
allocations 

H14 Residential development, open 
space and children’s play area 

24 Providing Open Spaces 

H16 Housing for the elderly 13 Type and mix of housing 
H17 Housing for people with 

disabilities 
13 Type and mix of housing 

H18 Extensions 2 / 3 / 
4 

Placemaking / Design / Amenity 
and Layout 

H21 Conversion to flats 2 / 3 / 
4 

Placemaking / Design / Amenity 
and Layout 

H23 Conversion to flats 2 / 3 / 
4 

Placemaking / Design / Amenity 
and Layout 

H24 Conversion to flats 2 / 3 / 
4 

Placemaking / Design / Amenity 
and Layout 

H26 Conversion to flats – floors above 
shops 

18 Residential Development on 
Upper Floors 

H28 Hostels 10 Managing hotel growth 
H29 Residential Institutions 13 Type and mix of housing 

156



122 

 

H30 Multiple occupation with a single 
dwelling 

14 Delivering Houses in Multiple 
Occupation 

H35 Childcare facilities 21 Childcare Provision 
B5 Development policies for 

proposed business areas: 
Brackmills, Milton Ham and 
Pineham 

15  Safeguarding Existing 
Employment Sites 

B6 Support services 20 / 
21 

Community Services and 
Facilities / Childcare Provision 

B7 Brackmills: height considerations 2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 
B8 Northampton Cattlemarket 15  Safeguarding Existing 

Employment Sites 
B9 Pineham and Milton Ham: 

landscaping zone 
2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 

B10 Pineham and Milton Ham 15  Safeguarding Existing 
Employment Sites 

B11 Milton Ham: height 
considerations 

2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 

B14 Development for non-business 
uses in business areas 

2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 

B17 Use of land for open storage, 
salvage and recycling 

16 Supporting New Employment 
Developments and Schemes 
Within and Outside Safeguarded 
Sites 

B19 Existing business premises in 
primarily residential area 

16 Supporting New Employment 
Developments and Schemes 
Within and Outside Safeguarded 
Sites 

B20 Working from home 2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 
B22 Small businesses: up to 200 

sq.m 
16 Supporting New Employment 

Developments and Schemes 
Within and Outside Safeguarded 
Sites 

B23 Repair and maintenance of 
vehicles 

16 Supporting New Employment 
Developments and Schemes 
Within and Outside Safeguarded 
Sites 

B31 Environmental impact of 
business development: new 
locality 

2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 

B32 Environmental impact of 
business development: 
amelioration 

2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 

B33 Environmental impact of 
business development: 
hazardous development 

2 / 3 Placemaking / Design 

T11 Commercial uses in residential 
area 

16 Supporting New Employment 
Developments and Schemes 

157



123 

 

Within and Outside Safeguarded 
Sites 

T12 Development requiring servicing 2 / 3 / 
4 

Placemaking / Design / Amenity 
and Layout 

T14 Public transport – rail corridors 28 Designing Sustainable Transport 
and Travel 

T16 Taxi services 28 Designing Sustainable Transport 
and Travel 

T22 Provision for people with 
disability 

2 / 3 / 
4 

Placemaking / Design / Amenity 
and Layout 

R5 Town centre: change of use 7 / 11 Supporting Northampton Town 
Centre / Development of main 
town centre uses 

R6 Town centre: primary shopping 
frontages 

 Not required 

R7 Town centre: secondary 
shopping frontages 

 Not required 

R9 District and local centres: change 
of use from shops 

17 New Retail Developments and 
Retail Impact Assessment 

R11 Shopping facilities/ local centre in 
major residential development 

17 New Retail Developments and 
Retail Impact Assessment 

R15 Car showrooms 2 / 3 / 
4 

Placemaking / Design / Amenity 
and Layout 

R16 Retail sales from petrol filling 
stations 

17 New Retail Developments and 
Retail Impact Assessment 

R17 Retailing from industrial premises 17 New Retail Developments and 
Retail Impact Assessment 

L2 Community use of existing 
schools and colleges 

20 Community Services and 
Facilities 

L10 Bradlaugh Fields 23 Sustaining and enhancing 
existing, and supporting the 
creation of, Northampton’s 
Green Infrastructure 

L12 Motor sports and motorised water 
sports 

 Not required 

L13 Local community facilities 20 Community Services and 
Facilities 

L24 Allotment gardens 24 Providing Open Spaces 
L25 Alterative use of allotment land 12 Housing and other housing led 

allocations 
L26 Leisure proposals: site specific  Not required 
D4 Crow Lane (north): business or 

leisure 
 Not suitable for allocation 

D6 Delapre Abbey: office and 
conference centre 

27 Protection and enhancements of 
designated and non-designated 
heritage assets 

D9 M1 Junction 15a/ A43: suitable 
for single development with high 

33 Development Allocations 

158



124 

 

standard of building design with a 
landscaped setting 

D12 Land north west of Kings Heath  Sustainable Urban Extension in 
the Joint Core Strategy 

D13 Overstone Scout camping ground 
(off Billing Lane): residential or 
public house/ hotel 

 Not required.  Part of site now 
developed. 

D16 St Edmunds Hospital: 
development guidelines given   

 Not required – under 
construction 

D17 Southbridge area and power 
station site, Nunn Mills: 
residential, business and leisure 

 Not required - built 

D20 Tweed Road (Pioneer 
Aggregates): development 
guidelines given 

15 Safeguarding Existing 
Employment Sites 

D22 Angel Street/ Bridge Street: retail 
or office 

 Not required - built 

D23 Castle Yard, St Andrews Road: 
residential or business, 
safeguard future position of north 
west bypass 

33 Development Allocations 

D26 Freeschool Street: high density 
residential or residential and 
office with retail on frontage to 
Marefair 

33 Development Allocations 

D27 Lower Mounts: car park and 
leisure/ residential 

33 Development Allocations 

D28 St Andrews Street: residential 
and retail 

 Not required – various changes 
have taken place within the area 

D29 St Johns car park: residential, 
leisure and parking 

 Not required – part of the site 
has been developed 

D30 British Gas land, St Peter’s Way: 
mix of leisure, retail and 
employment with a minor 
element of housing 

 Not required – site developed 

D31 Victoria Street car park: office 
and car parking 

33 Development Allocations 

D32 Western Island, Lady’s Lane 33 Development Allocations 
D33 Wellington Street: office and 

retail 
 Not required.  Not allocated in 

the Central Area Action Plan 
D35 York Road: business or 

residential 
 Not required.  Not allocated in 

the Central Area Action Plan 
    
 
 
 
 
 

159



125 

 

SUPERSEDED POLICIES 
CENTRAL AREA ACTION PLAN 2013 
 
Adopted Policies in the Central Area 
Action Plan 2013 

Replacement Policy Number and Title 
in the Northampton Local Plan Part 2/ 
status update 

1 Promoting design excellence 2 / 3 / 4 Placemaking / Design / 
Amenity and Layout 

2 Tall buildings 2 / 3 / 4 Placemaking / Design / 
Amenity and Layout 

3  Public realm 2 / 3 / 4 Placemaking / Design / 
Amenity and Layout 

4 Green infrastructure 23 / 24 Sustaining and enhancing 
existing, and supporting the 
creation of, Northampton’s 
Green Infrastructure / 
Providing Open Spaces 

5 Flood risk and drainage 6 Flood Risk and Water 
Management 

6 Inner ring road 28 / 29 / 
30  

Designing Sustainable 
Transport and Travel / 
Highway network and safety 
/ Transport schemes and 
mitigation 

7 Bus interchange: Fishmarket  Policy implemented 
8 Safeguarded public transport 

route 
28 / 29 / 
30 

Designing Sustainable 
Transport and Travel / 
Highway network and safety 
/ Transport schemes and 
mitigation 

9 Pedestrian and cycle movement 
framework 

28 / 29 / 
30 

Designing Sustainable 
Transport and Travel / 
Highway network and safety 
/ Transport schemes and 
mitigation 

10 Parking 31 Parking standards 
11 Town Centre boundary 7 / 11 / 17 Supporting Northampton 

Town Centre / Development 
of main town centre uses / 
New Retail Developments 
and Retail Impact 
Assessment 

12  Definition of Primary Shopping 
Area 

7 / 17 Supporting Northampton 
Town Centre / New Retail 
Developments and Retail 
Impact Assessment 

13 Improving the retail offer  Superseded by the NPPF 
(2019).  No longer required 

160



126 

 

14 Meeting retail capacity 17 New Retail Developments 
and Retail Impact 
Assessment 

15 Office and business use 15 / 16 Safeguarding Existing 
Employment Sites / 
Supporting New 
Employment Developments 
and Schemes Within and 
Outside Safeguarded Sites 

16 Central Area living 12 / 13 Housing and other housing 
led allocations / Type and 
mix of housing 

17  Grosvenor Centre redevelopment 33 / 37 Development Allocations / 
Greyfriars 

18  Abington Street East 11 / 17 Development of main town 
centre uses / New Retail 
Developments and Retail 
Impact Assessment 

19 Castle Station  Policy implemented 
20 St Johns  Policy implemented  
21 Angel Street  Policy implemented 
22 Bridge Street  Majority of the area affected 

by the policy now 
implemented 

23 Upper Mounts/ Great Russell 
Street 

33 Development Allocations 

24 Spring Boroughs  Not required.  The site is 
covered by Spring Boroughs 
Neighbourhood Plan (made 
2016) 

25 The Waterside 33 Development Allocations 
26 The Waterside: Brampton Branch 

St Peter’s Way 
33 Development Allocations 

27 The Waterside: Southbridge 
West 

33 Mostly developed.  
Remaining sites covered by 
Development Allocations 

28 The Waterside: Avon / Nunn Mills 
/ Ransome Road 

 Policy implemented 

29 The Waterside: Becket’s Park 33 / 23 / 
24 

Development Allocations / 
Sustaining and enhancing 
existing, and supporting the 
creation of, Northampton’s 
Green Infrastructure / 
Providing Open Spaces 

30 The Waterside: Nene Meadows 23 / 24 Sustaining and enhancing 
existing, and supporting the 
creation of, Northampton’s 
Green Infrastructure / 

161



127 

 

Providing Open Spaces 
31 Market Square 7 / 8  Supporting Northampton 

Town Centre / Regeneration 
Opportunities 

32 Drapery 7 / 11 / 17 Supporting Northampton 
Town Centre / Development 
of main town centre uses / 
New Retail Developments 
and Retail Impact 
Assessment 

33 Freeschool Street 33 Development Allocations 
34 Former Royal Mail Sorting Office  Policy implemented 
35 Telephone Exchange, Spring 

Gardens 
15 Safeguarding Existing 

Employment Sites 
36 Infrastructure Delivery 32 Infrastructure Delivery and 

Contributions 
 
 

162



128 

 

APPENDIX C 
SCHEDULE OF PLANNING OBLIGATION REQUIREMENTS (for 
NORTHAMPTON TRANSPORT SCHEMES) 
 
Ref Growth 

Location 
Infrastructure 
Requirement 

Required for 
Growth at 

Delivery 
Body 

Broad 
Phasing 

Cost 
Est. 

Funding 
Sources 

Method 

CIL/S106/
S278/ 

Planning 
Condition 

T1 NRDA 
 

A45/M1 Northampton 
Growth Management 
Scheme* (see table on 
page 23)  

NRDA  
 

NCC/HE  
 
 

2018  
Start  

  

£12.24m  
 

Developer  
 

 

T2/ 

T3 

Northampton 
(West)  
 

North West Relief Road 
(A428 to A5199)  
 

Northampton  
Kings Heath / 
Northampton West  

Developer/
NCC  
 

2019  
Start  

£32m  
 

Developer/ 
SEMLEP/ 
NCC  
 

 

T4 Northampton 
(West)  
 

Sandy Lane Relief Road 
Phase 2 related to 
Upton Lodge Norwood 
Farm developments  

Norwood Farm 
/Upton Lodge  
 

Developer  
 

2020  
 

£7.59m  
 

Developer/
Grant 
Funded  
 

 

T7  Northampton 
(West)  
 

Kingsthorpe Corridor 
Improvements  
 

Northampton (West)  
 

NCC  
 

2017  
Start  

£2.2m  
 

NCC/  
Developer/ 
Grant 
Funded  

 

T9 NRDA  
 

Plough Junction 
Improvements  

Northampton St 
John’s Area  

NCC  
 

Not 
known  

£3m  
 

Grant 
Funded  
 

 

T12 NRDA  
 

Bedford Road Bus 
Priority Improvements  

Town Centre  
 

NCC  
 

Not 
known  

£2.2m  
 

NCC/  
Developer  

 

T13 NRDA  
 

Wellingborough Road 
Bus Improvements  

Northampton  
 

NCC  
 

Not 
known  

£1.4m  
 

NCC  
 

 

T14 NRDA  
 

Inter Urban Bus Service 
Improvement  

Northampton  
 

NCC  
 

2010  
ongoing  

£1.2m  
 

NCC  
 

 

T15 NRDA  
 

Cycle and Walking 
Routes, and Crossing  
 

Northampton  
 

NCC/  
Sustrans  

2010  
ongoing  

£14m  
 

NCC/  
Sustrans/  
Developer  

 

T16
b 

Northampton 
(North)  
 

A43 Corridor 
Improvements:  
Phase 1 b – Round 
Spinney to Moulton 
roundabout  

Northampton North 
SUE  
 

NCC  
 

2018 £14m NEP/ 
NHB/ 
Developer/ 
Grant 
Funded  
 

 

T16
c 

Northampton 
(North)  
 

A43 Corridor 
Improvements:  
Phase 2 - Moulton to 
Overstone Grange  

Northampton North 
SUE  
 

NCC  
 

2016-18  
 

£9.25m  
 

Developer/ 
Grant 
Funded  
 

 

T16 
d 

Northampton 
(North)  
 

A43 Corridor 
Improvements:  
Phase 3 – Overstone 
Grange to Holcot/Sywell 
roundabout  

Northampton North 
SUE  
 

NCC 2020 £20 SEMLEP/
Developer/
NCC  
 

 

T18 Northampton 
(North)  
 

Local Multi Modal 
Interchange and Bus 
Route 
Improvement/Provision  

Northampton North 
SUE  
 

NCC 2015 
ongoing 

£2m Developer  

T19 Northampton 
(North)  

Kettering Road Bus 
Priority  

Northampton North 
SUE  

NCC 2019 
start 

£1.5m Developer/
NCC/ 
Grant 

 

163



129 

 

funded  
T20 Northampton 

(North)  
Walking and Cycling 
Improvement  

Northampton North 
SUE  

NCC  
 

Not 
known  

£0.34m  
 

Developer  
 

 

T21 Northampton  
(West)  

Potential Junction 
Provision/ Improvements  

Northampton West 
SUE  

NCC  
 

2019 
start 

Not 
Known 

Developer  

T22 Northampton 
(West)  

Bus Route Improvement  
 

Northampton West 
SUE  

NCC  
 

2019 
start  

£1.8m  
 

Developer  
 

 

T23 Northampton 
(West)  

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement  

Northampton West 
SUE  

NCC Not 
known 

£0.23m Developer  

T24 Northampton  
(South)  

Towcester Road Bus 
Priority related to 
Northampton South  

Northampton South 
SUE  
 

NCC  
 

2018 
start 

£0.12m Developer/
NCC 

 

T25 Northampton  
(South)  

Bus Route Improvement 
related to Northampton 
South  

Northampton South 
SUE  
 

NCC Not 
known 

£1.4m Developer  

T26 Northampton  
(South)  

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement  

Northampton South 
SUE  
 

NCC 2018 
start 

£0.5m Developer  

T27 Northampton  
(South)  

London Road Bus 
Priority  
 

Northampton South 
of Brackmills SUE  

NCC 2018 
start 

£2.7m Developer/
NCC 

 

T28 Northampton  
(South)  

Bus Route Improvement  
 

Northampton South 
of Brackmills SUE  

NCC 2018 
start 

£1 Developer  

T29 Northampton  
(South)  

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement  
 

Northampton South 
of Brackmills SUE  

NCC 2018 
start 

£0.5m Developer  

T30 Northampton 
(West)  
 

Harlestone Road/Mill 
Lane Junction 
Improvements  

Northampton Kings 
Heath SUE  
 

NCC 2019 
start 

£3.7m Developer  

T31 Northampton 
(West)  

Dallington to Kings 
Heath Road 
Improvements  

Northampton Kings 
Heath SUE  

NCC 2019 
start 

£3.6m Developer  

T32 Northampton 
(West)  

Bus Route Improvement  
 

Northampton Kings 
Heath SUE  

NCC 2019 
start 

£4.3m Developer  

T33 Northampton 
(West)  

Walking and Cycling Improvement  
 

Northampton Kings 
Heath SUE  

NCC 2019 
start 

£0.9m Developer  

T34 Northampton 
(North West)  
 

Bus Route Improvement  
 

Northampton North 
of Whitehills SUE  

NCC 2018 
start 

£1.6m Developer  

T35 Northampton 
(North West)  
 

Walking and Cycling Improvement  
 

Northampton North 
of Whitehills SUE  

NCC 2018 
start 

£2m Developer  

T36 Northampton  
(South)  

Bus Route Improvement  
 

Northampton Upton 
Park SUE  

NCC 2018 
start 

£1.5m Developer  

T37 Northampton  
(South) 

Walking and Cycling Improvement  
 

Northampton Upton 
Park SUE  

NCC 2018 
start 

£0.2m Developer  

T64 NRDA Spencer Bridge Road 
Corridor Improvements 

Wider Area NCC Not 
Known 

£3.5m Not known  

T66 NRDA St James Mill Link Road Northampton 
Waterside 
Enterprise Zone 

NBC 2018 
start 

£2m NBC/SEM
LEP 

 

 
Sub Total NRDA Transport Infrastructure Known Costs                                                                    £154.470m 
 

 

Source: West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit – Infrastructure Delivery Plan Update 2017 – December 2017  

 
 
 

 

164



130 

 

APPENDIX D 
NORTHAMPTON AND NORTHAMPTON RELATED DEVELOPMENT 
AREA TRANSPORT AND INFRASTRUCTURE SCHEMES 
 

Ref  Growth 
Location 

Infrastructure 
Requirement  

Required for 
Growth at  

Delivery 
Body 

Broad 
Phasing  

Cost Est.  Funding 
Sources 

Northampton & Northampton Related Development Area 
T1 NRDA A45/M1 Northampton 

Growth Management 
Scheme* (see table on 
page 23) 

NRDA NCC/HE 2018 
Start 

£12.24m Developer 

T2/
T3 

Northampton 
(West) 

North West Relief Road 
(A428 to A5199) 

Northampton  
Kings Heath / 
Northampton 
West  

Developer/N
CC 

2019 
Start 

£32m Developer/ 
SEMLEP/ 
NCC 

T4 Northampton 
(West)  

Sandy Lane Relief 
Road Phase 2 related 
to Upton Lodge 
Norwood Farm 
developments 

Norwood Farm 
/Upton Lodge 

Developer 2020 
 

£7.59m Developer/G
rant Funded 

T7 Northampton 
(West)  

Kingsthorpe Corridor 
Improvements 

Northampton 
(West)  

NCC 2017 
Start 

£2.2m  NCC/ 
Developer/ 
Grant 
Funded 

T9 NRDA 
 

Plough Junction 
Improvements 

Northampton  St 
John’s Area 

NCC Not 
known 

£3m Grant 
Funded 

T12 NRDA Bedford Road Bus 
Priority Improvements 

Town Centre NCC Not 
known 

£2.2m  NCC/ 
Developer 

T13 NRDA Wellingborough Road 
Bus Improvements 

Northampton  NCC Not 
known 

£1.4m NCC 

T14 NRDA Inter Urban Bus 
Service Improvement 

Northampton NCC 2010 
ongoing 

£1.2m NCC 

T15 NRDA Cycle and Walking 
Routes, and Crossing  

Northampton NCC/ 
Sustrans 

2010 
ongoing 

£14m NCC/ 
Sustrans/ 
Developer 

T16 
b 

Northampton 
(North) 

A43 Corridor 
Improvements:  
Phase 1 b – Round 
Spinney to Moulton 
roundabout 

Northampton 
North SUE 

NCC 2018 £14m NEP/ NHB/ 
Developer/ 
Grant 
Funded 

T16
c 

Northampton 
(North) 

A43 Corridor 
Improvements:  
Phase 2 - Moulton to 
Overstone Grange 

Northampton 
North SUE 

NCC 2016-18 £9.25m Developer/ 
Grant 
Funded 

T16
d 

Northampton 
(North) 

A43 Corridor 
Improvements: 
Phase 3 – Overstone 
Grange to 
Holcot/Sywell 
roundabout 

Northampton 
North SUE 

NCC 2020 £20m SEMLEP/ 
Developer/ 
NCC 

T18 Northampton 
(North) 

Local Multi Modal 
Interchange  and Bus 
Route 
Improvement/Provision  

Northampton 
North SUE 

NCC 2015  
ongoing 

£2m Developer 

T19 Northampton 
(North) 

Kettering Road Bus 
Priority  

Northampton 
North SUE 

NCC 2019 
start 

£1.5m Developer/N
CC/ Grant 
funded 

T20 Northampton 
(North) 

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement  

Northampton 
North SUE 

NCC Not 
known 

£0.34m Developer 

T21 Northampton  
(West) 

Potential Junction 
Provision/ 
Improvements  

Northampton 
West SUE 

NCC 2019 
start 

Not known Developer 

165



131 

 

Ref  Growth 
Location 

Infrastructure 
Requirement  

Required for 
Growth at  

Delivery 
Body 

Broad 
Phasing  

Cost Est.  Funding 
Sources 

T22 Northampton 
(West) 

Bus Route 
Improvement  

Northampton 
West SUE 

NCC 2019 
start 

£1.8m Developer 

T23 Northampton 
(West) 

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement 

Northampton 
West SUE 

NCC Not 
known 

£0.23m Developer 

T24 Northampton 
(South) 

Towcester Road Bus 
Priority related to 
Northampton South   

Northampton 
South SUE 

NCC 2018 
start 

£0.12m Developer/ 
NCC 

T25 Northampton 
(South) 

Bus Route 
Improvement related to 
Northampton South   

Northampton 
South SUE 

NCC Not 
known 

£1.4m Developer 

T26 Northampton 
(South) 

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement  

Northampton 
South SUE 

NCC 2018 
start 

£0.5m Developer 

T27 Northampton 
(South) 

London Road Bus 
Priority 

Northampton 
South of 
Brackmills SUE 
 

NCC 2018 
start 

£2.7m Developer/ 
NCC 

T28 Northampton 
(South) 

Bus Route 
Improvement 

Northampton 
South of 
Brackmills SUE 

NCC 2018 
start 

£1m Developer 

T29 Northampton 
(South) 

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement 

Northampton 
South of 
Brackmills SUE 

NCC 2018 
start 

£0.5m Developer 

T30 Northampton 
(West) 

Harlestone Road/Mill 
Lane Junction 
Improvements  

Northampton 
Kings Heath SUE 

NCC 2019 
start 

£3.7m Developer 

T31  Northampton 
(West) 

Dallington to Kings 
Heath Road 
Improvements 

Northampton 
Kings Heath SUE 

NCC 2019 
start 

£3.6m Developer 

T32 Northampton 
(West) 

Bus Route 
Improvement  

Northampton 
Kings Heath SUE 

NCC 2019 
start 

£4.3m Developer 

T33 Northampton 
(West) 

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement 

Northampton 
Kings Heath SUE 

NCC 2019 
start 

£0.9m Developer 

T34  Northampton 
(North West) 

Bus Route 
Improvement 

Northampton 
North of Whitehills 
SUE 

NCC 2018 
start 

£1.6m Developer 

T35 Northampton 
(North West) 

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement 

Northampton 
North of Whitehills 
SUE 

NCC 2018 
start 

£2m Developer 

T36 Northampton 
(South) 

Bus Route 
Improvement 

Northampton 
Upton Park SUE 

NCC 2018 
start 

£1.5m Developer 

T37 Northampton 
(South) 

Walking and Cycling 
Improvement 

Northampton 
Upton Park SUE 

NCC 2018 
start 

£0.2m Developer 

T64 NRDA Spencer Bridge Road 
Corridor Improvements 

Wider Area NCC Not 
known 

£3.5m Not known 

T66 NRDA St James Mill Link 
Road 

Northampton 
Waterside 
Enterprise Zone 

NBC 2018 
start 

£2m NBC/SEML
EP  

Sub Total NRDA Transport Infrastructure Known Costs   £154.470m 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

166



132 

 

APPENDIX E 
A45 NORTHAMPTON GROWTH MANAGEMENT SCHEME 
PROJECTS 
 

Table 2 - A45 Northampton Growth 
Management Scheme Projects  
 
 

Cost Est. 

M1 Junction 15 Interchange £2.31m 
Wootton Interchange £0.8m 
Queen Eleanor Interchange £1.49m 
Brackmills Interchange £1.32m 
Barnes Meadow Interchange £2.14m 
Lumbertubs Interchange £2.6m 
Great Billing Interchange £1.58m 
Total £12.24m 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

167



133 

 

APPENDIX F 
HEALTHCARE INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS SCHEDULE 
 
 

Ref  Growth 
Location 

Infrastructure 
Requirement  

Required for 
Growth at  

Delivery 
Body 

Broad 
Phasing  

Cost 
Est. 

Funding Sources 

Northampton & Northampton Related Development Area (NRDA) 
H1 Northampton 

(South) 
Contribution to 
improving Local 
Health Centres at 
Wootton Medical 
Centre and Grange 
Park Medical 
Centre  

Northampton 
South, South of 
Brackmills SUEs, 
Avon Nunn MiIls, 
Wootton Fields & 
Grange Park 

NHSE/ 
NCCG/  

2014 £0.9m Developer 

H2 Northampton 
NRDA (West) 

Contribution 
required to develop 
a minimum 9 GP 
practice within 
multi-purpose 
building located on 
Kings Heath SUE   

Northampton 
Kings Heath SUE 
& Northampton 
West SUE 

NHSE/ 
NCCG/  

2016 £3m Developer/GPs 

H3 Northampton 
NRDA  
(North/West) 

Contribution 
towards Internal 
Refurbishment of 
existing GP 
practice 

Northampton 
North of Whitehills 
SUE 

NHSE/ 
NCCG/   

2014 £0.6m Developer 

H4 Northampton 
NRDA (North) 

Relocation of 
existing GP 
practice and 
expansion to cater 
for patient increase  

Northampton 
North SUE 

NHSE/ 
NCCG/   

2016 £2.1m Developer/GPs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

168



134 

 

APPENDIX G 
PRIMARY EDUCATION PROVISION REQUIREMENTS 
 

Ref  Growth 
Location 

Infrastructure 
Requirement  

Required  
for Growth 
at  

Delivery 
Body 

Broad 
Phasing  

Cost 
Est.  

Funding 
Sources 

Northampton  
E3a Northampton One new three form 

entry Primary School 
at Norwood Farm  

Norwood 
Farm 

NCC 2020 £8m NCC/ 
Developer 

E3b Northampton One two form entry 
Primary School at 
Upton Lodge 

Upton Lodge NCC 2020 £6.5m NCC/ 
Developer 

E5 Northampton 
NRDA 

New two form entry 
Primary School at 
Northampton South 
SUE 

Northampton 
South SUE 

NCC 2019 £7m EFA/ 
Developer 

E6 Northampton 
NRDA 

New two form entry 
Primary School at 
Northampton South of 
Brackmills SUE   

Northampton 
South of 
Brackmills 
SUE   

NCC 2020 £7m NCC/ 
Developer 

E7 Northampton 
NRDA 

Two x new two form 
entry Primary Schools 
at Northampton Kings 
Heath SUE 

Northampton 
Kings Heath 
SUE 

NCC 1st by 2020 £14m NCC/ 
Developer 

E8 Northampton 
NRDA 

New two form entry 
Primary School at 
Northampton Upton 
Park SUE 

Northampton 
Upton Park 
SUE 

NCC 2019 £7m NCC/ 
Developer 

E9 Northampton 
NRDA 

New two form entry 
Primary School at 
Northampton North of 
Whitehills SUE 

Northampton 
North of 
Whitehills 
SUE 

NCC 2019 £7m EFA/ 
Developer 

E10 Northampton 
NRDA 

Two new two form 
entry Primary Schools 
at Northampton North 
SUE. Half a form 
entry extension to 
Overstone Primary, 
and half a form entry 
to another local 
school. 

Northampton 
North SUE 

NCC 1st by 2021 £15m NCC/ 
Developer 

E11 Northampton 
NRDA 

Two new two form 
entry Primary Schools 
at Northampton West 
SUE 

Northampton 
West SUE 

NCC 2022 £14m 
 

NCC/ 
Developer 

E35 Northampton 
NRDA 

New 100 place all-
through SEN Free 
School for 
Northampton at the 
former Green Oaks 
Primary School site in 
Bective Road. The 
new school will be 
called Purple Oaks 

Northampton NCC 2018 £5m Education 
Funding 
Agency 
(EFA) 

E41 Northampton 
NRDA 

New three form entry 
Primary School in 
Collingtree. (Wave 11 
Free School : 
Approved) 

Northampton EFA 2018 £6.5m EFA 

E42 Northampton 
NRDA 

New two form entry 
Primary School in 
Duston (Wave 12 
Free School 

Northampton EFA 2019 £6.5m EFA 

169



135 

 

Ref  Growth 
Location 

Infrastructure 
Requirement  

Required  
for Growth 
at  

Delivery 
Body 

Broad 
Phasing  

Cost 
Est.  

Funding 
Sources 

Proposal) 
 

170



136 

 

APPENDIX H 
SECONDARY EDUCATION PROVISION REQUIREMENTS 
 

Ref  Growth 
Location 

Infrastructure 
Requirement  

Required for 
Growth at  

Delivery 
Body 

Broad 
Phasing  

Cost Est.  Funding 
Sources 

Northampton  
E16 Northampton 

NRDA 
New Secondary 
School (located 
at Northampton 
Kings Heath 
SUE)  8 to 10 
form entry 

Northampton  NCC  
 

 2020 
onwards  

£30m NCC/ 
Developer 

E30 Northampton 
NRDA 

New eight to ten 
form entry 
Secondary 
School to serve 
the South of 
Northampton 
known as 
Houghton Gate 
(Wave 12 Free 
School) 

Northampton NCC 2019 £10m NCC/ 
Developer 

E39 Northampton 
NRDA 

New eight to ten 
form entry 
Secondary 
School in the 
North of 
Northampton 
(Moulton/ 
Overstone – 
Daventry 
Education area) 

Northampton 
and Daventry 

NCC Post 2020 £30m NCC/ 
Developer 

E40 Northampton 
NRDA 

New eight to ten 
form entry 
Secondary 
School in the 
West of 
Northampton 
(Upton area) 

Northampton NCC Post 2020 £30m NCC/ 
Developer 

 
 
 

171



137 

 

 
 
GLOSSARY 
 
Disclaimer 
 
The Glossary is neither a statement of law nor an interpretation of the law, and its 
status is only an introductory guide to planning terminology and should not be used 
as a source for statutory definitions. 
 
Affordable Housing  
Housing for sale or rent, for those whose needs are not met by the market (including 
housing that provides a subsidised route to home ownership and/ or is for essential 
social workers); and which complies with one or more of the following definitions: 
 
Affordable housing for rent: meets all of the following conditions (a) the rent is set in 
accordance with the Government’s rent policy, or is at least 20% below local market 
rents (including service charges where applicable); (b) the landlord is a registered 
provider, except where it is included as part of a Built to Rent scheme (in which case 
the landlord need not be a registered provider) and (c) it includes provision to remain 
at an affordable price for future eligible households, or for the subsidy to be recycled 
for alternative affordable housing provision.  For Build to Rent schemes affordable 
housing for rent is expected to be the normal form of affordable housing provision 
(and, in this context, is known as Affordable Private Rent). 
 
Starter Homes: is as specified in Sections 2 and 4 of the Housing and Planning Act 
2016 and any secondary legislation made under these sections.  The definition of a 
starter home should reflect the meaning set out in statute and any such secondary 
legislation at the time of plan-preparation or decision making.  Where secondary 
legislation has the effect of limiting a householder’s eligibility to purchase a starter 
home to those with a particular maximum level of household income, those 
restrictions should be used. 
 
Discounted market sales housing:  is that sold at a discount of at least 20% below 
local market value.  Eligibility is determined with regard to local incomes and local 
house prices.  Provisions should be in place to ensure housing remains at a discount 
for future eligible households. 
 
Other affordable routes to home ownership: is housing provided for sale that 
provides a route to ownership for those who could not achieve home ownership 
through the market.  It includes shared ownership, relevant equity loans, other low 
cost homes for sale (at a price equivalent to at least 20% below local market value) 
and rent to buy (which includes a period of intermediate rent). Where public grant 
funding is provided, there should be provisions for the homes to remain at an 
affordable price for future eligible households, or for any receipts to be recycled for 
alterative affordable housing provision, or refunded to Government or the relevant 
authority specified in the funding agreement. 
 
 

172



138 

 

Appropriate Assessment 
Under the habitat Regulations Assessment, stakeholders such as developers/ local 
authorities are required to undertake this assessment when a plan or project is likely 
to have an impact on any European Environmental conservation designations (for 
example, Special Protection Areas) 
 
Aged or veteran tree 
A tree which, because of its great age, size or condition is of exceptional value for 
wildlife, in the landscape, or culturally. 
 
Air Quality Management Areas 
Areas designated by local authorities because they are not likely to achieve national 
air quality objectives by the relevant deadlines. 
 
Ancient woodland 
An area that has been wooded continuously since at least 1600 AD. 
 
Archaeological interest 
There will be archaeological interest in a heritage asset if it holds, or potentially may 
hold, evidence of past human activity worthy of expert investigation at some point. 
Heritage assets with archaeological interest are the primary source of evidence 
about the substance and evolution of places, and of the people and cultures that 
made them. 
 
Article 4 direction 
A direction which withdraws automatic planning permission granted by the General 
Permitted Development Order. 
 
Best and most versatile agricultural land 
Land in grades 1, 2 and 3a of the Agricultural Land Classification. 
 
Birds and Habitats Directives 
European Directives to conserve natural habitats and wild fauna and flora. 
 
Brownfield Land 
See previously developed land 
 
Brownfield land registers 
Registers of previously developed land that local planning authorities consider to be 
appropriate for residential development, having regard to criteria in the Town and 
Country Planning (Brownfield Land Registers) Regulation 2017. Local planning 
authorities will be able to trigger a grant of permission in principle for residential 
development on suitable sites in their registers where they follow the required 
procedures.  
 
Climate change adaptation 
Adjustments to natural or human systems in response to actual or expected climatic 
factors or their effects, including from changes in rainfall and rising temperatures, 
which moderate harm or exploit beneficial opportunities. 

173



139 

 

 
Climate change mitigation 
Action to reduce the impact of human activity on the climate system, primarily 
through reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 
 
Coastal Change Management Area 
An area identified in Local Plans as likely to be affected by coastal change (physical 
change to the shoreline through erosion, coastal landslip, permanent inundation or 
coastal accretion). 
 
Conservation (for heritage policy) 
The process of maintaining and managing change to a heritage asset in a way that 
sustains and, where appropriate, enhances its significance. 
 
Community Forest 
An area identified through the England Community Forest Programme to revitalise 
countryside and green space in and around major conurbations. 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy 
A levy allowing local authorities to raise funds from owners or developers of land 
undertaking new building projects in their area. 
 
Community Right to Build Order 
An Order made by the local planning authority (under the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990) that grants planning permission for a site-specific development 
proposal or classes of development. 
 
Competent person (to prepare site investigation information) 
A person with a recognised relevant qualification, sufficient experience in dealing 
with the type(s) of pollution or land instability, and membership of a relevant 
professional organisation. 
 
Decentralised energy 
Local renewable energy and local low-carbon energy usually but not always on a 
relatively small scale encompassing a diverse range of technologies. 
 
Designated heritage asset 
A World Heritage Site, Scheduled Monument, Listed Building, Protected Wreck Site, 
Registered Park and Garden, Registered Battlefield or Conservation Area 
designated under the relevant legislation. 
 
Design code 
A set of illustrated design requirements that provide specific, detailed parameters for 
the physical development of a site or area. The graphic and written components of 
the code should build upon a design vision, such as a masterplan or other design 
and development framework for a site or area. 
 
 
 

174



140 

 

Developable 
To be considered developable, sites should be in a suitable location for housing 
development with a reasonable prospect that they will be available and could be 
viably developed at the point envisaged.  
 
Deliverable 
To be considered deliverable, sites for housing should be available now, offer a 
suitable location for development now, and be achievable with a realistic prospect 
that housing will be delivered within five years. Sites that are not major development, 
and sites with detailed planning permission, should be considered deliverable until 
permission expires, unless there is clear evidence that homes will not be delivered 
within five years (e.g. they are no longer viable, there is no longer a demand for the 
type of units or sites have long term phasing plans). Sites with outline planning 
permission, permission in principle, allocated in the development plan or identified on 
a brownfield register should only be considered deliverable where there is clear 
evidence that housing completions will begin within five years. 
 
Development plan 
This includes adopted Local Plans, neighbourhood plans and the London Plan, and 
is defined in section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
(Regional strategies remain part of the development plan until they are abolished by 
Order using powers taken in the Localism Act. It is the government’s clear policy 
intention to revoke the regional strategies outside of London, subject to the outcome 
of the environmental assessments that are currently being undertaken.) 
 
Developer Contributions 
Contributions made by a developer to remedy the impact of development, either by 
paying money for work to be carried out or by directly providing facilities or works 
either on or off site. 
 
District Centre 
A centre that provides a broad range of retail uses and a number of facilities to 
service the community, such as a group of shops including a supermarket or 
superstore and a range of non-retail services such as banks, building societies and 
restaurants as well as local public services such as a library and healthcare 
provision.  
 
Economic development 
Development, including those within the B Use Classes, public and community uses 
and main town center uses (but excluding housing development). 
 
Ecological networks 
These link sites of biodiversity importance. 
 
Ecosystem services 
The benefits people obtain from ecosystems such as, food, water, flood and disease 
control and recreation. 
 
 

175



141 

 

Edge of centre 
For retail purposes, a location that is well connected and up to 300 meters of the 
primary shopping area. For all other main town center uses, a location within 300 
meters of a town center boundary. For office development, this includes locations 
outside the town center but within 500 meters of a public transport interchange. In 
determining whether a site falls within the definition of edge of center, account 
should be taken of local circumstances. 
 
Environment Agency 
A public body responsible for protecting and improving the environment of England 
and Wales, protecting communities from the risk of flooding and managing water 
resources. 
 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
A procedure to be followed for certain types of project to ensure that decisions are 
made in full knowledge of any likely significant effects on the environment. 
 
European site 
This includes candidate Special Areas of Conservation, Sites of Community 
Importance, Special Areas of Conservation and Special Protection Areas, and is 
defined in regulation 8 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 
2010. 
 
Geodiversity 
The range of rocks, minerals, fossils, soils and landforms. 
 
Green Infrastructure 
A strategically planned and delivered network of high quality green spaces and other 
environmental features.  It is designed and managed as a multifunctional resource 
capable of delivering a wide range of environmental and quality of life benefits for 
local communities.  Green infrastructure includes parks, open spaces, playing fields, 
woodlands, allotments and private gardens. 
 
Heritage asset 
A building, monument, site, place, area or landscape identified as having a degree of 
significance meriting consideration in planning decisions, because of its heritage 
interest. Heritage asset includes designated heritage assets and assets identified by 
the local planning authority (including local listing). 
 
Heritage Coast 
Areas of undeveloped coastline which are managed to conserve their natural beauty 
and, where appropriate, to improve accessibility for visitors. 
 
Historic environment 
All aspects of the environment resulting from the interaction between people and 
places through time, including all surviving physical remains of past human activity, 
whether visible, buried or submerged, and landscaped and planted or managed 
flora. 
 

176



142 

 

Historic environment record 
Information services that seek to provide access to comprehensive and dynamic 
resources relating to the historic environment of a defined geographic area for public 
benefit and use. 
 
Housing Delivery Test 
Measures net additional dwellings provided in a local authority area against homes 
requires, using national statistics and local authority data. The Secretary of State will 
publish the Housing Delivery Test results for each local authority in England ever 
November. 
 
Inclusive design 
Designing the built environment, including buildings and their surrounding spaces, to 
ensure that they can be accessed and used by everyone. 
 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
This identified the necessary social, physical and green infrastructure required to 
support the new development proposed in the Joint Core Strategy for West 
Northamptonshire up to 2029.  The document will be subject to monitoring and 
regular review. 
 
Instrumentation operated in the national interest 
Includes meteorological and climate monitoring installations, satellite and radio 
communication, defence and national security sites and magnetic calibration facilities 
operated by or on behalf of the Government, delegated authorities or for defence 
purposes. 
 
Local Development Scheme 
This sets out a programme for preparing local development documents. 
 
Local Development Order 
An Order made by a local planning authority (under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990) that grants planning permission for a specific development proposal or 
classes of development. 
 
Local Enterprise Partnership 
A body, designated by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government, established for the purpose of creating or improving the conditions for 
economic growth in an area. 
 
Local Nature Partnership 
A body, designated by the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural 
Affairs, established for the purpose of protecting and improving the natural 
environment in an area and the benefits derived from it. 
 
Local Planning Authority 
The public authority whose duty it is to carry out specific planning functions for a 
particular area. All references to local planning authority apply to the district council, 

177



143 

 

London borough council, county council, Broads Authority, National Park Authority 
and the Greater London Authority, to the extent appropriate to their responsibilities. 
 
Local Centre 
A centre which includes a range of small shops and services of a local convenience 
nature, serving a small catchment.  They might typically include a small supermarket, 
a newsagent, a sub post office, a pharmacy and a take-away. 
 
Local Plan 
The plan for the future development of the local area, drawn up by the local planning 
authority in consultation with the community. In law this is described as the 
development plan documents adopted under the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. Current core strategies or other planning policies, which under 
the regulations would be considered to be development plan documents, form part of 
the Local Plan. The term includes old policies which have been saved under the 
2004 Act. 
 
Main Town Center Uses 
Retail development (including warehouse clubs and factory outlet centers); leisure, 
entertainment facilities the more intensive sport and recreation uses (including 
cinemas, restaurants, drive-through restaurants, bars and pubs, night-clubs, casinos, 
health and fitness centers, indoor bowling centers, and bingo halls); offices; and arts, 
culture and tourism development (including theatres, museums, galleries and 
concert halls, hotels and conference facilities). 
 
Major Hazards 
Major hazard installations and pipelines, licensed explosive sites and nuclear 
installations, around which Health and Safety Executive (and Office for Nuclear 
Regulation) consultation distances to mitigate the consequences to public safety of 
major accidents may apply. 
 
Major Development 
For housing, development where 10 or more homes will be provided, or the site has 
an area of 0.5 hectares or more. For non-residential development it means additional 
floorspace of 1,000m2 or more, or a site of 1 hectare or more, or as otherwise 
provided in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015. 
 
Minerals of local and national importance 
Minerals which are necessary to meet society’s needs, including aggregates, 
brickclay (especially Etruria Marl and fireclay), silica sand (including high grade silica 
sands), cement raw materials, gypsum, salt, fluorspar, shallow and deep-mined coal, 
oil and gas (including hydrocarbons), tungsten, kaolin, ball clay, potash and local 
minerals of importance to heritage assets and local distinctiveness. 
 
Mineral Safeguarding Area 
An area designated by Minerals Planning Authorities which covers known deposits of 
minerals which are desired to be kept safeguarded from unnecessary sterilisation by 
non-mineral development. 

178



144 

 

 
National Trails 
Long distance routes for walking, cycling and horse riding. 
 
Nature Improvement Areas 
Inter-connected networks of wildlife habitats intended to re-establish thriving wildlife 
populations and help species respond to the challenges of climate change. 
 
Neighbourhood Development Order 
An Order made by a local planning authority (under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990) through which Parish Councils and neighbourhood forums can grant 
planning permission for a specific development proposal or classes of development. 
 
Neighbourhood plans 
A plan prepared by a Parish Council or Neighbourhood Forum for a particular 
neighbourhood area (made under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004). 
 
National Planning Policy Framework  
This document sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how 
these are expected to be applied.  It provides a framework within which local people 
and their accountable councils can produce their own distinctive local and 
neighbourhood plans, which reflect the needs and priorities of their communities. 
 
Older people 
People over retirement age, including the active, newly-retired through to the very 
frail elderly, whose housing needs can encompass accessible, adaptable general 
needs housing for those looking to downsize from family housing and the full range 
of retirement and specialised housing for those with support or care needs. 
 
Open space 
All open space of public value, including not just land, but also areas of water (such 
as rivers, canals, lakes and reservoirs) which offer important opportunities for sport 
and recreation and can act as a visual amenity. 
 
Original building 
A building as it existed on 1 July 1948 or, if constructed after 1 July 1948, as it was 
built originally. 
 
Out of centre 
A location which is not in or on the edge of a centre but not necessarily outside the 
urban area. 
 
Out of town 
A location out of centre that is outside the existing urban area. 
 
People with disabilities 
People have a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment, and that 
impairment has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on their ability to carry out 

179



145 

 

normal day-to-day activities. These persons include, but are not limited to, people 
with ambulatory difficulties, blindness, learning difficulties, autism and mental health 
needs. 
 
Permission in principle 
A form of planning consent which establishes that a site is suitable for a specified 
amount of housing-led development in principle. Following a grant of permission in 
principle, the site must receive a grant of technical details consent before 
development can proceed. 
 
Planning condition 
A condition imposed on a grant of planning permission (in accordance with the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990) or a condition included in a Local Development 
Order or Neighbourhood Development Order. 
 
Playing field 
The whole of a site which encompasses at least one playing pitch as defined in the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2010. 
 
Pollution 
Anything that affects the quality of land, air, water or soils, which might lead to an 
adverse impact on human health, the natural environment or general amenity. 
Pollution can arise from a range of emissions, including smoke, fumes, gases, dust, 
steam, odour, noise and light. 
 
Priority habitats and species 
Species and Habitats of Principle Importance included in the England Biodiversity 
List published by the Secretary of State under section 41 of the Natural Environment 
and Rural Communities Act 2006. 
 
Previously Developed Land 
Land which is or was occupied by a permanent structure, including the curtilage of 
the developed land (although it should not be assumed that the whole of the 
curtilage should be developed) and any associated fixed surface infrastructure.  This 
excludes: land that is or has been occupied by agricultural or forestry buildings; land 
that has been developed for minerals extraction or waste disposal by landfill, where 
provision for restoration has been made through development control procedures; 
land in built up areas such as residential gardens, parks, recreation grounds and 
allotments; and land that was previously-developed but where the remains of the 
permanent structure or fixed structure have blended into the landscape. 
 
Primary shopping area 
Defined area where retail development is concentrated (generally comprising the 
primary and those secondary frontages which are adjoining and closely related to the 
primary shopping frontage). 
 
 
 

180



146 

 

Planning Obligation 
A legal agreement entered into under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 to mitigate the impacts of a development proposal. 
 
Ramsar sites 
Wetlands of international importance, designated under the 1971 Ramsar 
Convention. 
 
Renewable and low carbon energy 
Includes energy for heating and cooling as well as generating electricity. Renewable 
energy covers those energy flows that occur naturally and repeatedly in the 
environment – from the wind, the fall of water, the movement of the oceans, from the 
sun and also from biomass and deep geothermal heat. Low carbon technologies are 
those that can help reduce emissions (compared to conventional use of fossil fuels). 
 
Rural exception sites 
Small sites used for affordable housing in perpetuity where sites would not normally 
be used for housing. Rural exception sites seek to address the needs of the local 
community by accommodating households who are either current residents or have 
an existing family or employment connection. Small numbers of market homes may 
be allowed at the local authority’s discretion, for example where essential to enable 
the delivery of affordable units without grant funding. 
 
River Nene Regional Park 
An independent community interest company creating a green infrastructure network 
of environmental projects along the River Nene. 
 
Setting of a heritage asset 
The surroundings in which a heritage asset is experienced.  Its extent is not fixed 
and may change as the asset and its surrounding evolve.  Elements of a setting may 
make a positive or negative contribution to the significance of an asset, and may 
affect the ability to appreciate the significance or may be neutral. 
 
Significance (for heritage policy) 
The value of a heritage asset to this and future generations because of its heritage 
interests.  The interest may be archaeological, architectural, artistic or historic.  
Significance derives not only from a heritage asset’s physical presence, but also 
from its setting.  
 
Site of Specific Scientific Interest (SSSI) 
Sites designated by Natural England under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
 
Social Infrastructure 
Includes education, healthcare, sports facilities, cultural and community facilities.  
 
Special Protection Areas 
Areas which have been identified as being of international importance for the 
breeding, feeding, wintering or the migration of rare and vulnerable species of birds 

181



147 

 

found within European Union countries.  They are European designated sites, 
classified under the Birds Directive.  
 
Strategic Environment Assessment 
A procedure set out in the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes 
Regulations 2004, which requires the formal environmental assessment of certain 
plans and programmes which are likely to have significant effects on the 
environment.  This accords with the European SEA Directive (2001/42/EC) requires 
a formal environmental assessment of certain plans and programmes, including 
those in the field of planning and land use. 
 
South East Midlands Local Economic Partnership (SEMLEP) 
This is a locally owned partnership between the local authorities and businesses.  
They are responsible for determining their local economic priorities and undertaking 
activities to drive economic growth and create local jobs. 
 
Sustainability Appraisal 
This examines the impacts of the JCS strategies/ policies against a large number of 
economic, social and environmental sustainability objectives.  It also provides an 
indication of what measures may need to be taken to minimise/ eliminate any 
adverse impacts and promote sustainable development.  The Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act requires an SA to be undertaken for all Local Plans 
throughout the plan making process. 
 
Sustainable Urban Extensions 
Planned expansion of a city or town that can contribute to creating more sustainable 
patterns of development when located in the right place, with well-planned 
infrastructure including access to a range of facilities and when developed at 
appropriate densities. 
 
Safeguarding zone 
An area defined in Circular 01/03: Safeguarding aerodromes, technical sites and 
military explosives storage areas, to safeguard such sites. 
A plan providing a large-scale assessment of the risk to people and to the 
developed, historic and natural environment associated with coastal processes. 
 
Special Areas of Conservation 
Areas given special protection under the European Union’s Habitats Directive, which 
is transposed into UK law by the Habitats and Conservation of Species Regulations 
2010. 
 
Site investigation information 
Includes a risk assessment of land potentially affected by contamination, or ground 
stability and slope stability reports, as appropriate. All investigations of land 
potentially affected by contamination should be carried out in accordance with 
established procedures (such as BS10175 (2001) Code of Practice for the 
Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites). The minimum information that 
should be provided by an applicant is the report of a desk study and site 
reconnaissance. 

182



148 

 

 
Stepping stones 
Pockets of habitat that, while not necessarily connected, facilitate the movement of 
species across otherwise inhospitable landscapes. 
 
Supplementary planning documents 
Documents which add further detail to the policies in the Local Plan. They can be 
used to provide further guidance for development on specific sites, or on particular 
issues, such as design. Supplementary planning documents are capable of being a 
material consideration in planning decisions but are not part of the development 
plan. 
 
Sustainable transport modes 
Any efficient, safe and accessible means of transport with overall low impact on the 
environment, including walking and cycling, low and ultra low emission vehicles, car 
sharing and public transport. 
 
Town Centre 
Area defined on the local authority’s policies map, including the primary shopping 
area and areas predominantly occupied by main town centre uses within or adjacent 
to the primary shopping area.  References to town centre or centres apply to city 
centres, town centres, district centres and local centres but exclude small parades of 
shops of purely neighbourhood significance.  Unless they are identified as centres in 
the development plan, existing out-of-centre developments, comprising or including 
main town centre uses, do not constitute town centres. 
 
Transport assessment 
A comprehensive and systematic process that sets out transport issues relating to a 
proposed development. It identifies what measures will be required to improve 
accessibility and safety for all modes of travel, particularly for alternatives to the car 
such as walking, cycling and public transport and what measures will need to be 
taken to deal with the anticipated transport impacts of the development. 
 
Transport Statement 
A simplified version of a transport assessment where it is agreed the transport issues 
arising out of development proposals are limited and a full transport assessment is 
not required. 
 
Travel Plan 
A long-term management strategy for an organisation or site that seeks to deliver 
sustainable transport objectives through action and is articulated in a document that 
is regularly reviewed 
 
Veteran Tree 
A tree which, because of its great age, size or condition is of exceptional value for 
wildlife, in the landscape, or culturally.  
 
 
 

183



149 

 

Viability Study 
An assessment of a proposed development to ensure all elements for the 
development, including required infrastructure and any required financial 
contributions can be successfully delivered in an economic context. 
 
Wildlife Corridor 
Areas of habitat connecting wildlife populations. 
 
Windfall Sites 
Sites not specifically identified in the development plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

184



 
Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2   March 2019 

 

 

Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local 
Plan Part 2 

 

    
Prepared by LUC 
March 2019 

 

185



 
Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2   March 2019 

 

 

 

Project Title: Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  

Client: Northampton Borough Council 

 

 

 

  

 

Version Date Version Details Prepared by Checked by Approved by 

V2.0 22/3/2019 Revised for client review of 
V1.0  

Jon Pearson 

Natalie Collins 

Olivia Dunham  

Calum 
McCulloch 

Sarah Temple 

Jon Pearson Jeremy Owen 

Reg 19 SA Report  Last saved: 22/03/2019 09:42 

186



 
Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2   March 2019 

 

 

Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local 
Plan Part 2 

 

    
Prepared by LUC 
March 2019 

 

Planning & EIA 
Design 
Landscape Planning 
Landscape Management 
Ecology 
GIS & Visualisation 

LUC LONDON 
43 Chalton Street 
London  
NW1 1JD 
T +44 (0)20 7383 5784 
london@landuse.co.uk 
 

Offices also in: 
Bristol 
Edinburgh 
Glasgow 
Lancaster 
Manchester 
 

 
 
 
 

  FS 566056  EMS 566057 

Land Use Consultants Ltd 
Registered in England 
Registered number: 2549296 
Registered Office: 
43 Chalton Street 
London NW1 1JD 
LUC uses 100% recycled paper 
 

187



 
Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2   March 2019 

Contents 

 

 

 

 

1 Introduction 1 
The Local Plan area 1 
Northampton Local Plan Part 2 1 
Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 5 
Structure of this Report 5 

2 Methodology 7 
Stages of SA 7 
Stage A: Scoping 8 
Stage B: Developing and refining options and assessing effects 10 
Stage C: Preparing the Sustainability Appraisal report 13 
Stage D: Consultation on the Local Plan Part 2 and the SA Report 13 
Stage E: Monitoring implementation of the Local Plan 14 
Overarching approach to the assessment 14 
Approach to the SA of site allocations 15 
Difficulties encountered 17 

3 Sustainability context for development in Northampton Borough 20 
Review of policies, plans, and programmes 20 
Baseline information 22 
Key sustainability issues and their likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2 22 
The SA framework 28 

4 SA findings for the Local Plan Part 2 vision and objectives 33 
Vision 33 
Objectives 34 

5 SA findings for policies and reasonable alternatives 37 
Sustainable development 37 
Quality of new development 38 
Northampton regeneration strategy 43 
Housing 48 
Economy 51 
Centres, services and facilities 53 
Built and natural environmental assets 60 
Movement 65 
Infrastructure 69 

6 SA findings for site specific allocations and reasonable alternatives 70 
SA results for reasonable alternative (unallocated) and allocated sites 70 
SA results for allocation policies 141 

7 Cumulative effects 155 

8 Monitoring 171 
Monitoring 171 

9 Next steps 175 

188



 
Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2   March 2019 

Appendix 1 176 
Review of other relevant policies, plans, and programmes 176 

Appendix 2 234 
Baseline Information 234 

Appendix 3 264 
Consultation comments from earlier stages of SA 264 

Appendix 4 289 
NBC reasons for allocating site options 289 

Appendix 5 297 
Site assessment criteria 297 

Appendix 6 324 
Detailed assessment forms for allocated sites and reasonable alternative unallocated sites 324 

Appendix 7 643 
Findings of the SA of the Options Consultation Paper 643 

 

  

189



 
Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2   March 2019 

Tables 

Table 1.1 Meeting the Requirements of the SEA Regulations 3 
Table 2.1 Key to symbols and colour coding used in the SA of the Local Plan Part 2 15 
Table 2.2 Recommended walking distances by purpose of trip 17 
Table 3.1 Key sustainability issues for Northampton and likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2 23 
Table 3.2 SA framework 29 
Table 4.1 Summary of SA scores for Local Plan Part 2 vision and objectives 36 
Table 6.1 SA results for reasonable alternative (unallocated) residential sites 72 
Table 6.2 SA results for reasonable alternative (unallocated) employment sites 75 
Table 6.3 SA results for allocated residential sites 76 
Table 6.4 SA results for allocated employment sites 83 
Table 6.5: SA results for total areas of reasonable alternative (unallocated) and allocated residential sites85 
Table 6.6:  SA results for total areas of reasonable alternative (unallocated) and allocated employment 
sites 87 
Table 7.1 Summary of SA scores for the Local Plan Part 2 policies 156 
Table 7.2 Summary of in-combination effects 158 
Table 8.1 Proposed monitoring framework for Northampton Borough Local Plan Part 2 171 
Table A2.9.1 Modes of transport for travelling to work in Northampton, Northamptonshire and England 
and Wales 249 
Table A2.9.2 Source of CO2 emissions in Northampton by sector (2005-2013) 251 
Table A2.9.3 Per capita CO2 emissions for Northampton and Northamptonshire from 2010-2016 252 
 

  

190



 
Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2   March 2019 

Figures 

Figure 2.1 Corresponding stages in plan making and SA 8 
Figure 6.1 Site options subject to SA 71 
Figure 6.2 Assessment result for Res1a Housing provision 101 
Figure 6.3 Assessment result for Res2a & Res8a Walking distance to sustainable transport links 102 
Figure 6.4 Assessment result for Res2b & Res8b Walking distance to services and facilities 103 
Figure 6.5 Assessment result for Res3a: Walking distance to schools 104 
Figure 6.6 Assessment result for Res4a: Walking distance to healthcare facilities 105 
Figure 6.7 Assessment result for Res4b: Walking distance to open space sports facilities 106 
Figure 6.8 Assessment result for Res4c: Exposure to low air quality or noise 107 
Figure 6.9 Assessment result for Res7a: Location of sites relative to town centre 108 
Figure 6.10 Assessment result for Res9a: Proximity to designated ecological sites 109 
Figure 6.11 Assessment result for Res10a: Presence of brownfield land, derelict buildings, and open space110 
Figure 6.12 Assessment result for Res11a: Potential impact on heritage significance 111 
Figure 6.13 Assessment result for Res12a:  Contribution to road traffic increases within AQMAs 112 
Figure 6.14 Assessment result for Res13a: Location within an SPZ or on contaminated land 113 
Figure 6.15 Assessment result for Res14a: Flood risk from rivers 114 
Figure 6.16 Assessment result for Res14b: Flood risk from groundwater 115 
Figure 6.17 Assessment result for Res14c:  Surface water flood risk 116 
Figure 6.18 Assessment result for Res15a:  Prioritising use of brownfield land 117 
Figure 6.19 Assessment result for Res15b:  Avoiding loss of greenfield land 118 
Figure 6.20 Assessment result for Res15c: Avoiding loss of high quality agricultural land 119 
Figure 6.21 Assessment result for Res15d:  Avoiding sterilisation of mineral resources 120 
Figure 6.22 Assessment result for Res15e:  Avoiding risk from land instability 121 
Figure 6.23 Assessment result for Res16a: Avoiding conflicts with waste management sites 122 
Figure 6.24 Assessment result for Emp2a & Emp8a: Walking distance to sustainable transport links 123 
Figure 6.25 Assessment result for Emp4a: Noise and light impacts on sensitive receptors 124 
Figure 6.26 Assessment result for Emp6a: Employment provision 125 
Figure 6.27 Assessment result for Emp7a:  Location of sites relative to town centre 126 
Figure 6.28 Assessment result for Emp9a: Proximity to designated ecological sites 127 
Figure 6.29 Assessment result for Emp10a:  Presence of brownfield land, derelict buildings and open 
space 128 
Figure 6.30 Assessment result for Emp11a:  Potential impact on heritage significance 129 
Figure 6.31 Assessment result for Emp12a: Contribution to road traffic increases within AQMAs 130 
Figure 6.32 Assessment result for Emp13a:  Location within an SPZ or on contaminated land 131 
Figure 6.33 Assessment result for Emp14a:  Flood risk from rivers 132 
Figure 6.34 Assessment result for Emp14b:  Flood risk from groundwater 133 
Figure 6.35 Assessment result for Emp14c: Surface water flood risk 134 
Figure 6.36 Assessment result for Emp15a:  Prioritising use of brownfield land 135 
Figure 6.37 Assessment result for Assessment result Emp15b:  Avoiding loss of greenfield land 136 

191



 
Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2   March 2019 

Figure 6.38 Assessment result for Emp15c:  Avoiding loss of high quality agricultural land 137 
Figure 6.39 Assessment result for Emp15d:  Avoiding sterilisation of mineral resources 138 
Figure 6.40 Assessment result for Emp15e: Avoiding risk from land instability 139 
Figure 6.41 Assessment result for Emp16a:  Avoiding conflicts with waste management sites 140 
Figure A2.1 Context 236 
Figure A2.2 Index of Multiple Deprivation 240 
Figure A2.3 Employment areas and educational establishments 242 
Figure A2.4 Greenspace and leisure 245 
Figure A2.5 Transport network 248 
Figure A2.6 Biodiversity and ecology 254 
Figure A2.7 Historic environment 256 
Figure A2.8 Air quality management areas 259 
Figure A2.9 Flood risk 262 
 

 

192



 
Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2   March 2019 

 

 

193



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  1 March 2019 

1 Introduction 

1.1 This Sustainability Appraisal Report has been prepared by LUC to document the integrated 
Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) of the Proposed 
Submission draft of Northampton Local Plan Part 2 being prepared for Regulation 191 consultation. 

1.2 Once the Local Plan Part 2 is adopted, the Northampton Development Plan will consist of the 
following hierarchy of policy documents: 

• West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (JCS) Local Plan Part 1 - covering strategic issues 
across all of West Northamptonshire. 

• Northampton Local Plan Part 2 - covering more detailed issues for Northampton Borough only. 

• ‘Made’ Neighbourhood Plans - covering locally significant issues for particular parts of the 
Borough. 

The Local Plan area 

1.3 Northampton Borough lies adjacent to the districts of Daventry to the north-west, Wellingborough 
to the east and South Northamptonshire to the south.  The Borough is one of the smaller 
administrative areas in Northamptonshire covering approximately 80 km2.  The River Nene rises 
to the west of Northampton and there is a confluence of two of its tributaries in the Borough’s 
central area. 

1.4 Northampton was selected in the mid 1960's for expansion under the New Towns Act and the 
administrative area is the same as the designated area for expansion. The boundary is drawn 
tightly around the urban area of Northampton, but large open spaces associated with the River 
Nene and its tributaries exist together with many parks.  Planned expansion has led to a 
population of over 200,000 and the town is continuing to grow as the major employment, 
residential, shopping and recreational centre for Northamptonshire.  The combination of easy 
access (including by the M1 and the London Midland rail service) and its central position in 
England makes the town attractive to business and increasingly to tourists. 

Northampton Local Plan Part 2 

West Northamptonshire JCS 

1.5 The West Northamptonshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee adopted the West 
Northamptonshire JCS Local Plan (Part 1) on 15th December 2014.  This document sets out the 
planning strategy for the administrative areas of Daventry District, South Northamptonshire, and 
Northampton Borough until 2029.  Now that the JCS is adopted, each of the three administrative 
areas are preparing the following documents which together with the JCS and any neighbourhood 
plans prepared by local communities will complete their Development Plans: 

• Site Allocations & Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents (DPD) 
(Local Plan Part 2). 

• Gypsy & Traveller Sites DPDs. 

                                                
1 Of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 

194



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  2 March 2019 

Northampton Local Plan Part 2 

1.6 When adopted, the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 will replace all the remaining saved policies 
from the previous Northampton Local Plan 1997 and update the policies contained in the 
Northampton Central Area Action Plan which was adopted in 2013.  It will include: 

• Development management policies - provide policy directions for sustainable development, 
housing delivery, retention and expansion of employment opportunities, supporting the growth 
and changing roles of the town centre, providing commercial and leisure enterprises as well as 
protecting and enhancing the built and natural environment. 

• Site specific allocations - for various types of developments and/ or uses that are considered 
suitable for these sites. 

Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Local Plan 

1.7 In addition to the Local Plan Part 2 a separate subject specific Development Plan Document (DPD) 
will be prepared setting out allocated sites for Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople in 
Northampton Borough and associated development management policies.  This DPD will cover the 
entire Borough of Northampton and will cover the period up to 2029. 

1.8 This SA Report does not apply to the Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople DPD, which 
will be subject to a separate plan preparation and assessment process. 

Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment 

1.9 Under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, SA is mandatory for Development Plan 
Documents.  For these documents it is also necessary to conduct an environmental assessment in 
accordance with the requirements of the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Directive 
(European Directive 2001/42/EC), which was transposed into UK law by the Environmental 
Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 (2004 SI 1633), known as the ‘SEA 
Regulations’.  Therefore, it is a legal requirement for the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 to be 
subject to SA and SEA throughout its preparation. 

1.10 The requirements to carry out SA and SEA are distinct, although it is possible to satisfy both using 
a single appraisal process (as advocated in the National Planning Practice Guidance2), whereby 
the requirements of the SEA Regulations can also be met through a single integrated SA process – 
this is the process that is being undertaken for the Northampton Local Plan Part 2.  From here on, 
the term ‘SA’ should therefore be taken to mean ‘SA incorporating the requirements of the SEA 
Regulations’. 

Meeting the requirements of the SEA Regulations 

1.11 This SA Report includes some of the required elements of the final ‘Environmental Report’ (the 
output required by the SEA Regulations).  Table 1.1 signposts the relevant sections of the SA 
Report that are considered to meet the SEA Regulations’ requirements.  This table has been 
included in the SA Report at each stage of the SA process to show how the SEA Regulations’ 
requirements have been met.  

                                                
2 http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/strategic-environmental-assessment-and-sustainability-
appraisal/strategic-environmental-assessment-and-sustainability-appraisal-and-how-does-it-relate-to-strategic-environmental-
assessment/ 

195



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  3 March 2019 

Table 1.1 Meeting the Requirements of the SEA Regulations 

SEA Regulations’ Requirements Covered in this Scoping Report? 

Environmental Report 
 
Where an environmental assessment is required by any provision of 
Part 2 of these Regulations, the responsible authority shall prepare, or 
secure the preparation of, an environmental report in accordance with 
paragraphs (2) and (3) of this regulation.  The report shall identify, 
describe and evaluate the likely significant effects on the environment 
of: 
(a) implementing the plan or programme; and 
(b) reasonable alternatives taking into account the objectives and 

geographical scope of the plan or programme. 
(Regulation 12(1) and (2) and Schedule 2). 

This document constitutes the 
‘Environmental Report’ 

1) An outline of the contents and main objectives of the plan or 
programme, and of its relationship with other relevant plans and 
programmes. 

Chapters 1 and 3 and Appendix 1 

2) The relevant aspects of the current state of the environment and 
the likely evolution thereof without implementation of the plan or 
programme. 

Chapter 3 

3) The environmental characteristics of areas likely to be significantly 
affected. 

Chapter 3 

4) Any existing environmental problems which are relevant to the 
plan or programme including, in particular, those relating to any 
areas of a particular environmental importance, such as areas 
designated pursuant to Directives 79/409/EEC on the conservation 
of wild birds and the Habitats Directive. 

Chapter 3 

5) The environmental protection objectives, established at 
international, Community or Member State level, which are 
relevant to the plan or programme and the way those objectives 
and any environmental, considerations have been taken into 
account during its preparation. 

Chapter 3 and Appendix 1 

6) The likely significant effects on the environment, including short, 
medium and long-term effects, permanent and temporary effects, 
positive effects, and secondary, cumulative and synergistic effects, 
on issues such as: (a) biodiversity; (b) population; (c) human 
health; (d) fauna; (e) flora; (f) soil; (g) water; (h) air; (i) climatic 
factors; (j) material assets; (k) cultural heritage, including 
architectural and archaeological heritage; (l) landscape; and 
(m) the interrelationship between the issues referred to in sub-
paragraphs (a) to (l). 

Chapters 4-7 

7) The measures envisaged to prevent, reduce and as fully as 
possible offset any significant adverse effects on the environment 
of implementing the plan or programme. 

Chapters 4-7 

8) An outline of the reasons for selecting the alternatives dealt with, 
and a description of how the assessment was undertaken including 
any difficulties (such as technical deficiencies or lack of know-how) 
encountered in compiling the required information. 

Chapters 2 and 4-7 and Appendix 4 

9) A description of the measures envisaged concerning monitoring in 
accordance with regulation 17. 

Chapter 8 

10) A non-technical summary of the information provided under 
paragraphs 1 to 9.  

A non-technical summary is 
provided as separate document 

The report shall include such of the information referred to in Schedule 
2 to these Regulations as may reasonably be required, taking account 
of: 
(a) current knowledge and methods of assessment; 
(b) the contents and level of detail in the plan or programme; 

the stage of the plan or programme in the decision-making 
process; and 

(c) the extent to which certain matters are more appropriately 
assessed at different levels in that process in order to avoid 
duplication of the assessment. 

(Regulation 12 (3)) 

This Environmental Report adheres 
to this requirement 

Consultation 

196



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  4 March 2019 

SEA Regulations’ Requirements Covered in this Scoping Report? 

 
When deciding on the scope and level of detail of the information that 
must be included in the environmental report, the responsible 
authority shall consult the consultation bodies. 
(Regulation 12(5)) 

Consultation with the relevant 
statutory environmental bodies on 
the SA Scoping Report was 
undertaken between April and June 
2016 

Every draft plan or programme for which an environmental report has 
been prepared in accordance with regulation 12 and its accompanying 
report (“the relevant documents”) shall be made available for the 
purposes of consultation in accordance with the following provisions of 
this regulation. 
As soon as reasonable practical after the preparation of the relevant 
documents, the responsible authority shall: 
(a) send a copy of those documents to each consultation body; 
(b) take such steps as it considers appropriate to bring the 

preparation of the relevant documents to the attention of the 
persons who, in the authority’s opinion, are affected or likely to 
be affected by, or have an interest in the decisions involved in the 
assessment and adoption of the plan or programme concerned, 
required under the Environmental assessment of Plans and 
Programmes Directive (“the public consultees”); 

(c) inform the public consultees of the address (which may include a 
website) at which a copy of the relevant documents may be 
viewed, and the period within which, opinions must be sent. 

The period referred to in paragraph (2)(d) must be of such length as 
will ensure that the consultation bodies and the public consultees are 
given an effective opportunity to express their opinion on the relevant 
documents. 
(Regulation 13 (1), (2),  and (3)) 

Public consultation on the 
Northampton Local Plan Part 2 and 
accompanying SA reports took 
place as follows: 
• Issues paper and accompanying 

SA Scoping Report: April to 
June 2016 

• Options paper and 
accompanying SA Report: 
September to November 2016 

• Site Options paper and 
accompanying SA Report: 
September to November 2017 

• Proposed Submission Local Plan 
and accompanying SA Report: 
early  2019 (proposed) 

Where a responsible authority, other than the Secretary of State, is of 
the opinion that a plan or programme for which it is the responsible 
authority is likely to have significant effects on the environment of 
another Member State, it shall, as soon as reasonable practicable after 
forming that opinion: 
(a) notify the Secretary of State of its opinion and of the reasons for 

it; and 
(b) supply the Secretary of State with a copy of the plan or 

programme concerned, and of the accompanying environmental 
report. 

(Regulation 14 (1)) 

Not relevant as there will be no 
effects beyond the UK from the 
Northampton Local Plan Part 2 

Taking the environmental report and the results of the consultations into account in decision-
making (relevant extracts of Regulation 16) 
As soon as reasonably practicable after the adoption of a plan or 
programme for which an environmental assessment has been carried 
out under these Regulations, the responsible authority shall: 
(a) make a copy of the plan or programme and its accompanying 

environmental report available at its principal office for inspection 
by the public at all reasonable times and free of charge. 

(Regulation 16(1)) 

Requirement will be met at a later 
stage in the SA process 

As soon as reasonably practicable after the adoption of a plan or 
programme: 
(a) the responsible authority shall inform (i) the consultation bodies; 

(ii) the persons who, in relation to the plan or programme, were 
public consultees for the purposes of regulation 13; and (iii) 
where the responsible authority is not the Secretary of state, the 
Secretary of State, that the plan or programme has been 
adopted, and a statement containing the following particulars: 

(a) how environmental considerations have been integrated into the 
plan or programme; 

(b) how the environmental report has been taken into account; 
(c) how opinions expressed in response to: (i) the invitation in 

regulation 13(2)(d); (ii) action taken by the responsible authority 
in accordance with regulation 13(4), have been taken into 
account; 

(d) how the results of any consultations entered into under regulation 

Requirement will be met at a later 
stage in the SA process 

197



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  5 March 2019 

SEA Regulations’ Requirements Covered in this Scoping Report? 

14(4) have been taken into account; 
(e) the reasons for choosing the plan or programme as adopted, in 

the light of the other reasonable alternatives dealt with; and 
(f) the measures that are to be taken to monitor the significant 

environmental effects of the implementation of the plan or 
programme. 

Monitoring 
 
The responsible authority shall monitor the significant effects of the 
implementation of each plan or programme with the purpose of 
identifying unforeseen adverse effects at an early stage and being able 
to undertake appropriate remedial action. 
(Regulation 17(1)) 

Requirement will be met at a later 
stage in the SA process but a 
monitoring framework is suggested 
in Chapter 8.  

Habitats Regulations Assessment 

1.12 Under Article 6 (3) and (4) of the Directive 92/43/EEC on the Conservation of Natural Habitats 
and of Wild Fauna and Flora (Habitats Directive) land-use plans, including Development Plan 
Documents, are also subject to Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA).  The purpose of HRA is to 
assess the impacts of a land-use plan against the conservation objectives of a European site and 
to ascertain whether it would adversely affect the integrity of that site.  European sites comprise 
Special Areas of Conservation (SACs), Special Protection Areas (SPAs), and under UK Government 
policy Ramsar sites. 

1.13 The HRA for the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 is being undertaken by LUC on behalf of the 
Council.  While the HRA is being reported on separately to the SA, the findings have been taken 
into account in the SA where relevant.  The HRA screening assessment identified the need for 
Appropriate Assessment of the Northampton Local Plan Part 2, as likely significant effects could 
not be ruled out on Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site or Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and 
Ramsar site.  The Appropriate Assessment concluded that the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 will 
not result in adverse effects on the integrity of any European site provided that recommended 
policy safeguards are included before the plan is adopted. 

Structure of this Report 

1.14 This chapter has described the background to the production of the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
and the requirement to undertake SA and other assessment processes.  The remainder of this 
report is structured into the following sections:  

• Chapter 2 describes the method used to carry out the SA, including the sustainability 
objectives and supporting assessment criteria that provide a framework for the assessment 
(supported by more detailed information in Appendix 5), and the difficulties encountered in 
applying that method. 

• Chapter 3 presents the context for the SA, covering sustainability objectives set by other 
policies, plans, and programmes (supported by more detailed information in Appendix 1); 
baseline information (supported by more detailed information in Appendix 2); and the key 
environmental, social and economic issues facing the Borough and their the likely evolution 
without the Local Plan Part 2.  

• Chapters 4 to 6 (supported by more detailed information in Appendix 6) describe the results 
of the SA of each separate component of the Local Plan Part 2 - the vision and objectives, 
policies, and site allocations - and their reasonable alternatives, mirroring the structure of the 
Plan itself.  

198



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  6 March 2019 

• Chapter 7 describes the  sustainability effects of the Local Plan Part 2 as a whole and 
cumulatively with other significant plans. 

• Chapter 8 suggests a set of indicators that can be used to monitor the significant 
sustainability effects of implementing the Local Plan Part 2. 

• Chapter 9 summarises the next steps in the Local Plan and SA processes. 

 

199



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  7 March 2019 

2 Methodology 

Stages of SA 

2.1 In addition to complying with legal requirements, the approach being taken to the SA of the 
Northampton Local Plan Part 2 is based on current best practice and the guidance on SA/SEA set 
out in the National Planning Practice Guidance, which involves carrying out SA as an integral part 
of the plan-making process.  Figure 2.1 sets out the main stages of the plan-making process and 
shows how these correspond to the SA process. 

200



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  8 March 2019 

Figure 2.1 Corresponding stages in plan making and SA 

 

2.2 The methodology set out below describes the approach that has been taken to the SA of the 
Northampton Local Plan Part 2 to date and provides information on the subsequent stages of the 
process.   

Stage A: Scoping 

2.3 The SA process began with production of the SA Scoping Report for the Northampton Local Plan 
Part 2 Issues and Scoping document; both documents being published for consultation in April 
2016.     

2.4 The scoping stage of the SA involved the following tasks.  The outputs of each of these have been 
updated as necessary at each stage of the plan-making and SA process. 

Local Plan 

Step 1: Evidence 
Gathering and 
engagement 

Step 2: Production 

Step 3: Examination 

Step 4 & 5: Adoption 
and Monitoring 

SA 

Stage A: Setting the context and objectives, establishing the 
baseline and deciding on the scope 

1: Reviewing other relevant policies, plans and programmes 
2: Collecting baseline information 
3: Identifying sustainability issues 
4: Developing the SA Framework 
5: Consulting on the scope of the SA 

Stage B: Developing and refining options and assessing effects 
1: Testing the Plan objectives against the SA Framework 
2: Developing the Plan options 
3: Evaluating the effects of the Plan 
4: Considering ways of mitigating adverse effects and maximising beneficial effects 
5: Proposing measures to monitor the significant effects of implementing the Plans 

 

Stage C: Preparing the Sustainability Appraisal Report 
1: Preparing the SA Report 

 

Stage D: Seek representations on the Plan and the Sustainability 
Appraisal Report 

1: Public participation on Plan and the SA Report 
2(i): Appraising significant changes 

2(ii): Appraising significant changes resulting from representations 

3: Making decisions and providing information 
 

Stage E: Monitoring the significant effects of implementing the Plan 
1: Finalising aims and methods for monitoring 
2: Responding to adverse effects 

201



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  9 March 2019 

Review other relevant policies, plans and programmes to establish policy context 

2.5 The Local Plan is not prepared in isolation; rather it is prepared within the context of other 
policies, plans and programmes.  The SEA Regulations require the Environmental Report to 
describe the relationship of the plan with other relevant plans and programmes.  It should also be 
consistent with environmental protection legislation and support attainment of sustainability 
objectives that have been established at the international, national, and regional/sub-regional 
levels.   

2.6 A review was therefore undertaken of other policies, plans, and programmes at the international, 
national, regional and local levels that were considered to be relevant to the scope of the Local 
Plan.  The review is detailed in Appendix 1 and summarised in Chapter 3. 

Collect baseline information to establish sustainability context 

2.7 Information on existing environmental, social and economic conditions in the plan area provides 
the baseline against which the plan’s effects can be assessed in the SA and monitored during the 
plan’s implementation.   

2.8 Baseline information can also be combined with an understanding of drivers of change that are 
likely to persist regardless of the local plan to understand the likely future sustainability conditions 
in the absence of the local plan.   

2.9 The SEA Regulations require the Environmental Report to describe relevant aspects of the current 
state of the environment and how they are likely to evolve without the plan.  An understanding of 
this likely future, together with the assessed effects of the plan itself, additionally allows the SA to 
report on cumulative effects, another requirement of the SEA Regulations. 

2.10 The SEA Regulations require assessment of effects in relation to the following ‘SEA topics’: 
biodiversity, population, fauna, flora, soil, water, air, climatic factors, material assets, cultural 
heritage (including architectural and archaeological heritage), landscape, and the inter-
relationship between these.  Baseline information was therefore collected in relation to the SEA 
topics and additional sustainability topics were also addressed, covering broader socio-economic 
issues such as housing, access to services, crime and safety, education and employment.  This 
reflects the integrated approach that is being taken to the SA and SEA processes.  Baseline 
information for the Borough is presented in Appendix 2 of this report. 

Identify sustainability issues  

2.11 The baseline information also allows the identification of existing sustainability issues, including 
problems as required by the SEA Regulations. 

2.12 Sustainability issues and their likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2 are described in 
Chapter 3. 

Develop the SA framework  

2.13 The relevant sustainability objectives identified by the review of other policies, plans, and 
programmes together with the key sustainability issues facing the Borough, identified by the 
collection and review of baseline information, helped to inform the development of a set of 
sustainability objectives (the ‘SA framework’) against which the effects of the plan would be 
assessed.  These objectives also take into account the types of issues that are capable of being 
affected by the land use planning system.     

2.14 Development of an SA framework is not a requirement of the SEA Regulations but is a recognised 
way in which the likely sustainability effects of a plan can be transparently and consistently 
described, analysed and compared.  An SA framework comprises a series of sustainability 
objectives and supporting criteria that are used to guide the appraisal of the policies and 
proposals within a plan.  The SA framework that has been used in this way throughout the plan-
making process is presented in Chapter 3.   

202



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  10 March 2019 

Consult on the scope of the SA 

2.15 Public and stakeholder participation is an important element of the SA and wider plan-making 
processes.  It helps to ensure that the SA report is robust and has due regard for all appropriate 
information that will support the plan in making a contribution to sustainable development.  The 
Scoping Report for the Local Plan was published for consultation during April to June 2016 with 
the statutory consultees (the Environment Agency, Historic England, and Natural England,), other 
relevant stakeholders and the public.  

2.16 Appendix 3 lists the comments that were received during the scoping consultation and describes 
how each one has been addressed.  In light of the comments received, a number of amendments 
were made to the review of policies, plans, and programmes, the baseline information, key 
sustainability issues, and the SA framework.    

Stage B: Developing and refining options and assessing effects 

2.17 Developing options for a plan is an iterative process, usually involving a number of consultations 
with public and stakeholders.  Consultation responses and the SA can help to identify where there 
may be other ‘reasonable alternatives’ to the options being considered for a plan.   

2.18 In relation to options, the SEA Regulations require the following.   

2.19 Part 3 of the SEA Regulations 12(2) require that:  

‘The report shall identify, describe and evaluate the likely significant effects on the environment 
of:  

(a) Implementing the plan or programme; and  

(b) Reasonable alternatives taking into account the objectives and the geographical scope of the 
Plan or Programme.’ 

2.20 Schedule 2 (h) of the SEA Regulations requires that the Environmental Report includes a 
description of: 

‘(h) an outline of the reasons for selecting the alternatives dealt with’ 

2.21 It should also be recognised that the SA findings are not the only factors taken into account when 
determining a preferred option to take forward in a plan.  Indeed, there will often be an equal 
number of positive or negative effects identified for each option, such that it is not possible to 
‘rank’ them based on sustainability performance in order to select a preferred option.  Factors 
such as public opinion, deliverability, and conformity with national policy will also be taken into 
account by plan-makers when selecting preferred options for their plan. 

2.22 The following sections describe the process that has been undertaken in identifying and 
appraising options for the Local Plan Part 2.   

Identifying and assessing policy options 

2.23 The alternative options for Local Plan Part 2 policies were identified by the Council based on the 
most up-to-date evidence and taking into account information received during the following 
consultation exercises during the evolution of the plan to date.  The stages of option development 
and accompanying SA are outlined below. 

Issues consultation 

2.24 This was the first stage of the plan preparation process and consultation took place in May to June 
2016.  This paper set out the main issues identified at that point by the Council that the Local 
Plan Part 2 should address and provided the opportunity to raise new issues.  This paper did not 
set out policy options or draft policies and, as such, was not subject to SA.  The SA Scoping 
Report was published for consultation alongside the Issues Paper.  

203



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  11 March 2019 

Options consultation 

2.25 This was the second stage of the plan preparation process and consultation took place between 
September and November 2016.  The Options Consultation Paper was a short document 
comprising: 

• A vision of Northampton in 2029. 

• The objectives of the Local Plan Part 2. 

• An overarching statement on the strategy and a series of questions relating to three key 
topics: 

- Providing new homes. 
- Creating a prosperous economy. 
- Our retail centres. 

• Comments on infrastructure. 

• Sections on providing a supply of land to meet housing needs, an assessment of land 
availability, other opportunities, providing supply of land to meet employment needs. 

• A list of example development management policies. 

2.26 The Options Consultation Paper did not detail a range of reasonable alternative approaches to 
issues but sought the public’s views on some key policy directions for the Local Plan Part 2.  For 
most questions posed by the Options Consultation Paper there were only two options – agree or 
not agree.  In this respect, it was a limited form of options consultation.   

2.27 Due to the difficulty of assessing the potential effects of such a high level document it was 
decided that the focus of the SA should be on the objectives, as these would provide the direction 
for the preparation of the Local Plan Part 2, and on the questions, since these were the areas 
where decisions between choices would be made by the Council, and where the Council was 
seeking the views of the public.  The SA also provided comments from a sustainability perspective 
on the overall strategy contained within the Options Consultation Paper and other aspects where 
it was felt helpful to do so.  An extract from the SA report for the Options Consultation Paper 
setting out the results of the appraisal at that stage is reproduced in Appendix 7. 

Policies in the Proposed Submission draft Local Plan Part 2 

2.28 Following the Options consultation the Council refined the vision and objectives for the Local Plan 
Part 2 and drafted the detailed development management policies appearing in the Proposed 
Submission draft of the Local Plan Part 2.  Any alternative policy approaches considered by the 
Council in drafting these policies were also subject to SA. 

2.29 The SA of the reasonable alternative and preferred options for the development management 
policies is presented in Chapter 5, alongside the SA of the Proposed Submission policies.  In some 
cases, the only reasonable alternatives identified were to not include a development management 
policy in the Local Plan Part 2 and to instead rely on existing policy in the NPPF and the adopted 
JCS.  In these instances, the Council considered that there were no other reasonable policy 
approaches, for example because any other policy approach would not be in conformity with the 
requirements of the NPPF or the established policy direction set out in the adopted JCS. 

Identifying and assessing site options 

2.30 The Council considered that the main focus of its approach to reasonable alternatives should 
centre on the identification of development site options.  Similarly, the SA of options focussed on 
assessing reasonable alternative sites for housing, employment and other development proposals 
(not including the strategic development locations such as sustainable urban extensions, which 
have already been subject to SA of the JCS), as these are where significant effects, whether 
positive or negative, are most likely to occur. 

Issues consultation and site identification and selection process 

2.31 This included an invitation to developers and landowners to submit proposals through a Call for 
Sites process. 

204



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  12 March 2019 

2.32 At the Issues consultation stage, the Council also prepared and consulted on a draft methodology 
to assess the sites as part of the work associated with the Land Availability Assessment in 2016.  
The methodology forms part of the formal legislative evidence base for the Local Plan which 
demonstrates how the Council intends to investigate sites for residential and other development 
to meet the housing and job requirements set out in the West Northamptonshire JCS (Local Plan 
Part 1).  Following the consultation exercises, this methodology was updated in 2018. 

2.33 In summary, the Council’s methodology comprised the following key steps: 

Site identification and sources 

2.34 Sources include those originally investigated through the 2012 Strategic Housing and Land 
Availability Assessment (SHLAA) for the JCS, sites promoted through the Call for Sites and 
throughout the consultation process and those subjected to planning decisions.  Over 500 sites 
were identified for investigation. 

Initial sifting 

2.35 Sites were excluded at this stage for a variety of reasons including size and capacity (less than 5 
dwellings or below 0.25 ha/ less than 0.25 ha for employment or capable of delivering less than 
2,500 m2 of employment floorspace).  Following changes to the NPPF, sites of 1 ha and below 
were subsequently investigated, irrespective of the number of houses they could potentially 
accommodate.  Sites wholly within areas of international or national importance for wildlife, 
diversity and national heritage designations were also excluded.  Sites which were built or under 
construction were excluded.  Around 120 sites were identified as requiring detailed investigation 
for allocation.  These were considered to be reasonable alternatives. 

Assessment of suitability, availability and deliverability 

2.36 In undertaking the above assessment, the Council used a variety of sources of information 
including the outcome of the SA, technical evidence base (including transport modelling, flood 
testing, retail/ employment/ open space studies), consultation responses, planning history and 
engagement with statutory undertakers and developers/ promoters.  Sites which were considered 
to be suitable, available and deliverable were taken forward as preferred options and included as 
allocations in the Local Plan.  

Sustainability Appraisal 

2.37 LUC carried out SA of the reasonable alternatives sites.  The findings were considered in the 
investigation, consideration and subsequent selection of the preferred sites for allocation.   

Site Options consultation and additional site options 

2.38 This was the third stage of the plan preparation process and consultation took place during 
September to November 2017.  The purpose of this consultation was to gather views on the 
potential future uses of sites which were initially investigated as part of the Land Availability 
Assessment to deliver the strategy and development required in the Borough by Part 1 of the 
Local Plan. 

2.39 The Site Options Consultation document presented reasonable alternative site options but did not 
yet identify which of these were the Council’s preferred sites for allocation in the Local Plan Part 2.  
For completeness, the document also listed sites not considered reasonable alternatives and not, 
therefore, being taken forward for further consideration. 

2.40 Subsequent to the Site Options consultation and in part to take account of the consultation 
responses received, additional site options were identified by the Council.  These were also 
subject to SA using the same evidence and methodology as for the earlier site options to ensure 
consistency.  The results of the SA of original and additional site options were brought together in 
a paper provided to the Council for consideration alongside other emerging evidence to help 
inform the selection of preferred sites for allocation by the Local Plan Part 2.   

2.41 Site-specific allocation policies and development management policies had not yet been drafted at 
the time site options were assessed.  The SA was therefore limited to providing an assessment of 
the likely sustainability effects of the principle of development for the identified use within the 
boundary of each reasonable alternative site to help inform the site selection process.  The 

205



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  13 March 2019 

assessments identified the effects of each individual site on its own merits and did not consider 
the cumulative effects of site allocations with each other or with other policies in the Plan 
document.  The dwelling capacity figures and potential uses shown for each site option were the 
judgments made by the Council at the time the site options were assessed.  The results of the SA 
of the original and additional site options are summarised together in Table 6.1 (sites considered 
for residential use) and Table 6.2 (sites considered for ‘commercial’ i.e. employment or education 
use) in Chapter 6.   

Sites allocated by the Proposed Submission draft Local Plan Part 2 

2.42 Following the process above, the Council selected some of the site options for allocation in the 
Proposed Submission draft of the Local Plan Part 2.  The Council’s reasons for allocating certain 
reasonable alternative sites and not allocating others are summarised in Appendix 4. 

2.43 The SA results for the sites allocated by the Council are presented in Table 6.3 (sites considered 
for residential use) and Table 6.4 (sites considered for ‘commercial’ i.e. employment or education 
use).  In common with the SA findings for the reasonable alternative site options, the 
assessments of the allocated sites identify the effects of each individual site on its own merits and 
do not consider the cumulative effects of site allocations with each other or with other policies in 
the Local Plan document.   

2.44 As for the SA of reasonable alternative site options, the assessments of allocated sites are also 
based, in general, on the principle of development for the identified use within the site boundary.  
For a limited number of allocated sites, however, site-specific allocation policies within the 
Proposed Submission Local Plan Part 2 provide more detail on the development that will come 
forward within the site boundary, as well as criteria to manage the effects of that development.   
For example, requirements to provide additional infrastructure and facilities could improve site 
option SA scores relating to accessibility while requirements to avoid environmentally sensitive 
parts of a site could improve site option SA scores relating to environmental harm.  In these 
cases, the SA results for the principle of development within the site boundary provided the 
starting point for a more detailed consideration of the likely sustainability effects of the allocation 
policy.  The SA results for the site allocation policies are presented at the end of Chapter 6, after 
those for the principle of development of the allocated sites. 

2.45 In some cases, the boundaries or proposed uses of sites that are now proposed for allocation 
were amended during the Council’s assessment of suitability, availability, and deliverability 
(described above).  In these cases, the site specifications and SA findings may differ from those 
for the corresponding, originally proposed site boundaries and uses that were reported in the 
earlier SA stages described above.  

Stage C: Preparing the Sustainability Appraisal report 

2.46 This SA report describes the process that has been undertaken to date in carrying out the SA of 
Northampton Borough’s Local Plan Part 2.  It sets out the findings of the appraisal of site and 
policy options and the policies and sites now included in the Proposed Submission draft of the 
Local Plan Part 2, highlighting any likely significant effects (both positive and negative, and taking 
into account the likely secondary, cumulative, synergistic, short, medium and long-term and 
permanent and temporary effects), making recommendations for improvements and clarifications 
that may help to mitigate negative effects and maximise the benefits of the policies.  It also 
describes the reasons for selecting or rejecting certain options during the preparation of the Local 
Plan Part 2.   

Stage D: Consultation on the Local Plan Part 2 and the SA Report 

2.47 Information about consultation that has been undertaken previously on the Local Plan Part 2 has 
already been provided earlier in this chapter. 

206



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  14 March 2019 

2.48 Northampton Borough Council is now inviting comments on the Proposed Submission draft of the 
Local Plan Part 2 and this SA Report.  Both documents are being published on the Council’s 
website for consultation under Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations (2012).  The consultation is taking place early in 2019.  Consultation 
comments on both the Local Plan Part 2 and the SA Report will be taken into account prior to the 
submission of the Local Plan Part 2 to the Secretary of State. 

Stage E: Monitoring implementation of the Local Plan 

2.49 Recommendations for monitoring the social, environmental and economic effects of implementing 
Northampton Borough’s Local Plan are presented in Chapter 8. 

Overarching approach to the assessment  

2.50 The SA work for the Local Plan Part 2 takes into account the sustainability issues facing the 
Borough, such as those set out in Chapter 3, and the need to weigh up potentially opposing 
sustainability effects that are often associated with development.  For example, while there may 
be environmental disadvantages associated with some aspects of proposed housing and economic 
development, it is important to strike a balance with the likely social and economic advantages 
of, for example, addressing deprivation and housing need.  Another area where such tensions 
often need to be considered is in weighing up the need to seek support from developers for 
infrastructure and affordable housing against the need to ensure that delivery of housing is not 
threatened by the level of obligations placed on developers. 

Types of effect 

2.51 For those alternatives deemed reasonable, the SA sets out their sustainability effects in 
comparative terms. 

2.52 Schedule 2(6) of the SEA Regulations requires the Environmental Report to consider:  

‘The likely significant effects on the environment, including short, medium and long term effects, 
permanent and temporary effects, positive and negative effects and secondary, cumulative and 
synergistic effects, on issues such as (a) biodiversity, (b) population, (c) human health, (d) fauna, 
(e) flora, (f) soil, (g) water, (h) air, (i) climatic factors, (j) material assets, (k) cultural heritage 
including architectural and archaeological heritage, (l) landscape and (m) the inter-relationship 
between the issues referred to in sub-paragraphs (a)–(l).’   

2.53 Where relevant, the SA has therefore has noted where effects are expected to be short term or 
temporary; in all other cases, effects should be assumed to be medium to long term and 
permanent. 

2.54 Each reasonable alternative policy and site option considered in developing the Local Plan Part 2 
was assessed on its own merits.  However, these effects identified are likely to be mitigated or 
enhanced by other policies in the Local Plan Part 2, and by those set out elsewhere, such as in the 
JCS, national planning policy, or by other regulatory mechanisms.  Once the Local Plan Part 2 
development reached a stage where preferred policies and sites were identified, such cumulative 
effects were also assessed, as set out in Chapter 7. 

Form of assessment and use of SA matrices 

2.55 Each policy and site allocation in the Local Plan Part 2 has been assessed and a judgement made 
as to its likely effect on the baseline in relation to achievement of the sustainability objectives set 
out in the SA framework (Table 3.2).  The findings of the SA have been recorded in SA matrices, 
which include a colour coded score for the alternatives against each of the SA objectives, along 
with a concise justification for the score given.   

2.56 The SA scores differentiate between significant effects and other more minor effects using colour 
coded symbols, as shown in Table 2.1.  Mixed effects were recorded for an SA objective where 

207



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  15 March 2019 

there was potential for positive effects in relation to one aspect of the objective but potential for 
negative effects in relation to another.  Where a potential positive or negative effect was 
identified but there is a considerable degree of uncertainty about the likelihood of the effect 
materialising, the score and relevant colour code for the positive or negative effect was used in 
the appraisal, but a question mark (?) added to the score to indicate that there is uncertainty 
attached to the effect.   

2.57 The dividing line between sustainability scores is often quite small.  Where we have distinguished 
significant effects from more minor effects this was because, in our judgement, the effect of the 
allocation or policy on the SA objective will be of such magnitude that it will have a noticeable 
and measurable effect compared with other factors that may influence the achievement of that 
objective.  

Table 2.1 Key to symbols and colour coding used in the SA of the Local Plan Part 2 

++ Significant positive effect likely 

+ Minor positive effect likely 

0 No or negligible effect likely  

N/A Assessment criterion not applicable 

- Minor negative effect likely 

-- Significant negative effect likely 

+/- Mixed effect likely 

? Likely effect uncertain 

Approach to the SA of site allocations 

2.58 The approach taken to the SA of site options is designed to meet the requirements of the SEA 
Regulations and is: 

• proportionate to the stage of the planning process (i.e. allocation of sites for identified uses 
within a Local Plan as opposed to consideration of detailed planning applications).; and 

• risk-based (i.e. it directs most effort to assessing those site options that would be likely to 
contribute to the Local Plan Part 2 having a significant effect on the environment). 

2.59 The assessments were based on the Council’s view of the suitable use (residential or 
employment) and achievable dwelling capacity of each site option, derived from its Land 
Availability Assessment (LAA) process.  No reference was made to information provided by site 
promoters since this was not available on a consistent basis for all site options and could 
introduce bias to the SA.   

2.60 The SA of site options followed the two step process described below. 

Step 1: GIS-based assessment of all reasonable alternative sites 

2.61 All reasonable alternative sites identified through the Council’s LAA process were subject to a high 
level assessment against the SA objectives.  This was wholly based on spatial analysis carried out 
using Geographical Information Systems (GIS), by reference to the assessment criteria and 
assumptions set out in Appendix 5.  Application of these criteria ensured consistency and 
transparency in the appraisal of the site options and determination of the significance of effects.  

208



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  16 March 2019 

2.62 The first table in Appendix 5 contains the criteria used to assess sites considered by the Council 
for residential use; the second table contains those considered for employment use.  The criteria 
are drawn from the site assessment framework consulted on via the SA Scoping Report.  A few 
adjustments have been necessary, for example to ensure that the criteria are mutually exclusive 
and collectively exhaustive so that they can be automatically applied in GIS, or to take into 
account consultation responses received during the earlier stages of the SA.   

2.63 Where a single site was considered for more than one potential use, each use was assessed as a 
separate option since there are some variations in the assessment criteria, depending on whether 
a site was considered for residential or employment use (other potential uses were assessed using 
professional judgement to modify the criteria in Appendix 5 as necessary). 

2.64 Sites were assessed on the basis of existing services and facilities, i.e.  primary school, secondary 
school, healthcare facility, sports facility, local centre, open space, which are those 
services/facilities being used in the criteria-based assessment framework.  While some sites may 
be large enough to provide new facilities in their own right, no such provision was assumed by the 
SA and any proposals for such provision by site promoters are not included in the SA.  As such, 
the SA of the site options was undertaken on a consistent basis for all sites and serves to 
highlight where current provision is lacking and where it may be appropriate to secure new 
provision, if feasible, via site-specific policy requirements. 

2.65 Other than quality assurance checking, no qualitative assessment was carried out during Step 1 
and no narrative explanation of scores assigned to individual site options was provided as they 
flow directly from application of the criteria set out in Appendix 5.   

Step 2: Additional qualitative assessment of sites likely to contribute to significant 
effects of the Local Plan Part 2 

2.66 Sites likely to contribute to significant effects of the Local Plan Part 2 were defined as those that, 
either: 

• had an area of 2.5 hectares or more (based on the size distribution of reasonable alternative 
LAA sites initially provided by the Council it was estimated that this would account for 
approximately 80% of the total area of all reasonable alternative sites); or 

• were rated by the GIS analysis in Step 1 as having a significant positive or negative effect. 

2.67 The additional, qualitative factors that were considered for these sites are set out in the final 
column of the assessment criteria tables in Appendix 5.     

2.68 For sites that fell below the site area threshold but were flagged as having a significant effect by 
the GIS analysis, the additional qualitative analysis was only carried out in relation to the 
assessment criterion for which a major effect was identified. 

Assumptions applied in the SA of site options 
Assumptions regarding distances 

2.69 Reference is made to ‘easy walking distance’ in the site appraisal assumptions.  There are a 
number of pieces of research that give a variety of recommended guidance distances for walking.  
Guidelines published by the Institute of Highways and Transportation3 states that the average 
length of a walk journey is one kilometre and identifies desirable, acceptable, and preferred 
maximum walking distances, depending upon location and purpose of the trip, as shown in Table 
2.2.  

                                                
3 Guidelines for providing for journeys on foot, Institute of Highways and Transportation, 2000. 

209



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  17 March 2019 

Table 2.2 Recommended walking distances by purpose of trip 

 Town centres (m) Commuting/School
/ Sight-seeing (m) 

Elsewhere (m) 

Desirable 200 500 400 

Acceptable 400 1,000 800 

Preferred maximum 800 2,000 1,200 

2.70 For the purposes of the appraisal, walking distances were measured as the straight line distance 
from the edge of the site option to existing services and facilities.  Actual walking distances are 
likely to be greater, the actual distance depending on factors such as the housing location within a 
larger site and the availability of a direct route.  Professional judgement has been used when 
applying these distances to each site option and the range of services and facilities considered by 
the appraisal, for example where there are significant barriers to straight-line movement, such as 
railway lines.  The straight-line walking distances used in the appraisal varied depending upon the 
type of destination being accessed and the mode of transport, for example: 

• 500 m for primary schools on the basis that parents with young children are unlikely to want 
long distances with young children; 

• 1,000 m for secondary schools as these generally have more pupils and hence larger 
catchments than primary schools; 

• 800 m for town and local centres; 

• 500 m for bus stops, as many people are unlikely to want to walk much further and then catch 
a bus to their destination; and 

• 2,000 m for train stations as these generally provide the fastest mode of travel to more 
distant employment areas. 

2.71 The Northamptonshire Cycling Strategy4 aims to ‘increase the number of people choosing to 
travel by cycle for trips under 5 miles’ (8 km).  Increasing cycling is an important sustainability 
objective for Northampton and positive sustainability scores relating to development sites being 
within convenient walking distance of services and facilities also reflect the fact that such 
allocations are likely to increase the proportion of trips made by bike. 

• In terms of access to cycle routes, a straight-line distance of 500 m was used in the appraisal 
on the assumption that links to cycle routes are likely to use road carriageways. 

2.72 The site assessment criteria include consideration of the proximity of residential areas to areas of 
employment.  Major employment opportunities will be located throughout the Borough, not only 
in the areas allocated for employment, but also in the Town Centre, retail parks, hospitals, and in 
small scale premises around the town as well as large scale businesses concentrated at the 
employment areas.  Although there is no guarantee that people will find jobs at the employment 
areas closest to them, it is considered that provision of homes close to major sources of 
employment would support people in making shorter journeys to work.  The following walking 
assumption has been applied: 

• 2,000 m straight-line walking distance to employment areas. 

Difficulties encountered 

2.73 The SEA Regulations, Schedule 2(8) require the Environmental Report to include:  

                                                
4 Northamptonshire Cycling Strategy, Northamptonshire County Council, January 2013. 

210



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  18 March 2019 

‘…a description of how the assessment was undertaken including any difficulties (such as technical 
deficiencies or lack of know-how) encountered in compiling the required information.’ 

2.74 A number of potential challenges arose in the course of this SA and these are outlined below. 

2.75 The large number of sites that needed to be subject to appraisal and the need to ensure that this 
was done in a consistent manner presented a challenge.  In order to address this issue, detailed 
assumptions relating to each of the SA objectives were developed and applied during the 
appraisal of site options (as described above). 

2.76 Spatial analysis was based on straight line walking distances.  Examination of actual distances via 
the rights of way network was judged inappropriate since digital data were not available to 
indicate the access points of services and facilities or the likely entry and exit points from the 
allocated development sites.    

2.77 The level of detail of the site options appraisal work was commensurate with the level of detail of 
the Local Plan document.  As such, not every local characteristic could be investigated for each 
site option.  For example, in relation to potential effects of the site options on biodiversity assets, 
it was necessary to base the score on proximity to designated biodiversity sites only.  While it was 
recognised that in some cases sites might be close to high value non-designated assets, the 
strategic nature of the SA meant that it was not possible to investigate this potential for each site 
and the score was based on designated sites only.  This approach was considered to be the best 
way of ensuring consistency and a comparable level of detail in each site appraisal.   

2.78 Where site allocations were close to the Borough boundary, the spatial analysis was hampered by 
the fact that some spatial data required for proximity-based assessments were not available for 
neighbouring districts, or for part of them.   

2.79 Not all baseline data are currently available or are possible to collect.  SEA Guidance recognises 
that data gaps will exist but suggests that where baseline information is unavailable or 
unsatisfactory, authorities should consider how it will affect their assessments and determine how 
to improve it for use in the assessment of future plans.  The collection and analysis of baseline 
data is regarded as a continual and evolving process, given that information can change or be 
updated on a regular basis.  Not all the relevant information was available at the local level and 
as a result there are some gaps within the data set, but it is believed that the available 
information provides a sufficiently comprehensive view of the sustainability issues within the plan 
area.  In collating the baseline data, problems encountered included the difficulty of obtaining 
ward or district level data consistently and the difficulty of identifying trends in some data sets. 

2.80 Due to the long time period over which the Local Plan Part 2 was developed, the potential existed 
for data used to carry out the assessments to change during the course of the SA.  Northampton 
Bough Council (NBC) was consulted to help to identify such instances, for example it was 
necessary to update bus route/frequency information when assessing the allocated sites, but it 
cannot be guaranteed that all data were up to date. 

2.81 At the time of appraisal of the Options Consultation Paper, options had not been drafted in detail, 
making it difficult to assess.  The SA therefore focussed on the objectives, as these would provide 
the direction for the preparation of the Local Plan Part 2, and on the questions, since these were 
the areas where decisions between choices would be made by the Council, and where the Council 
was seeking the views of the public.  The SA also provided comments from a sustainability 
perspective on the overall strategy contained within the Options Consultation Paper and other 
aspects where it was felt helpful to do so. 

2.82 The Heritage Assessment undertaken by NBC officers in relation to SA Objective 11: Historic 
Environment was subject to the following limitations: 

• the assessment was desk based; 

• the assessment includes baseline information including data held by NBC, the 
Northamptonshire Historic Environment Record and an overview comment from the County 
Archaeological Advisor; 

• an assessment of current planning applications relevant to each site was not undertaken; 

• the assessment only considered assets within the NBC administrative boundary; 

211



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  19 March 2019 

• the current condition of heritage assets was not included in the assessment process; 

• the assessment did not take account of the potential for cumulative impact of adjacent 
development sites on heritage assets; 

• location, siting, scale, form and appearance of development within each site boundary was 
unknown at the site allocation stage and therefore a full assessment of the potential impact of 
development is not possible at this stage. 

2.83 The assessment carried out by the SA is judged appropriate to the content and level of detail of a 
Local Plan and was taken into account by NBC alongside other relevant information in 
determining the suitability of site options for allocation and in drafting site-specific allocation 
policies.  A more detailed evaluation of the potential impact on heritage assets, both designated 
and non-designated, may be required once specific site proposals from developers come forward 
at the planning application stage. 

212



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  20 March 2019 

3 Sustainability context for development in 
Northampton Borough 

Review of policies, plans, and programmes 

3.1 Northampton Borough’s Local Plan Part 2 is not being prepared in isolation, being greatly 
influenced by other policies, plans, and programmes and by broader sustainability objectives.  It 
needs to be consistent with international, national and sub-regional policies, plans, and 
programmes, both planning documents and others with social, economic, or environmental 
objectives.  It must also conform to environmental protection legislation.  

3.2 There are a wide range of policies, plans, and programmes at the international and national levels 
that are relevant to the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 and a review of these was undertaken.  
This review was amended since it was originally presented in the SA Scoping Report, in light of 
comments received during the scoping consultation.  Further updates have been carried out to 
ensure the information presented in this report is up to date.  The full review of relevant policies, 
plans, and programmes is set out in Appendix 1 and the key findings are summarised below.  

3.3 Schedule 2 of the SEA Regulations requires that the Environmental Report includes descriptions 
of: 

‘(1) An outline of the contents and main objectives of the plan or programme, and of its 
relationship with other relevant plans and programmes.’ 

and 

‘(5) The environmental protection objectives, established at international, Community or Member 
State level, which are relevant to the plan or programme and the way those objectives and any 
environmental considerations have been taken into account during its preparation.’   

Relationship with other plans and programmes 

3.4 A description of the relationship of the Northampton Borough’s Local Plan Part 2, with the West 
Northamptonshire JCS, the Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople DPD, and 
Neighbourhood Plans is provided in Chapter 1. 

Environmental protection and other policy objectives 
 
Key international policies, plans, and programmes 

3.5 At the international level, Directive 2001/42/EC on the assessment of the effects of certain plans 
and programmes on the environment (the ‘SEA Directive’) and Directive 92/43/EEC on the 
conservation of natural habitats and of wild fauna and flora (the ‘Habitats Directive’) are 
particularly significant as they require SEA and HRA to be undertaken in relation to the Local Plan 
Part 2.  These processes should be undertaken iteratively and integrated into the production of 
the Local Plan to ensure that any potential negative environmental effects (including on 
European-level nature conservation designations) are identified and can be mitigated.  Further 
information on how the requirements of the SEA Directive and Habitats Directive are being met 
have already been provided in Chapter 1. 

3.6 There is a wide range of other EU Directives relating to issues such as water quality, waste and 
air quality, most of which have been transposed into UK law through national-level policy; 
however, the international directives have been included in Appendix 1 for completeness. 

213



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  21 March 2019 

Key national policies, plans, and programmes 

3.7 The most significant national policy context for the Local Plan is the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) which was originally published in 2012 and revised in 20185.  The Local Plan 
must be consistent with the requirements of the NPPF, which states: 

‘Succinct and up-to-date plans should provide a positive vision for the future of each area; a 
framework for addressing housing needs and other economic, social and environmental priorities; 
and a platform for local people to shape their surroundings.’ 

3.8 The NPPF sets out information about the purposes of local plan-making, stating that plans should: 

• ‘Be prepared with the objective of contributing to the achievement of sustainable 
development; 

• Be prepared positively, in a way that is aspirational but deliverable; 

• Be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers and 
communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and operators and 
statutory consultees; 

• Contain policies that are clearly written and unambiguous, so it is evident how a decision 
maker should react to development proposals; 

• Be accessible through the use of digital tools to assist public involvement and policy 
presentation; and 

• Serve a clear purpose, avoiding unnecessary duplication of policies that apply to a particular 
area.’ 

3.9 The NPPF requires local planning authorities to set out the strategic priorities for the area in the 
Local Plan.  This should include strategic policies to deliver: 

• ‘Housing (including affordable housing), employment, retail, leisure and other commercial 
development;  

• Infrastructure for transport, telecommunications, security, waste management, water supply, 
wastewater, flood risk and coastal change management, and the provision of minerals and 
energy (including heat); 

• Community facilities (such as health, education and cultural infrastructure); and. 

• Conservation and enhancement of the natural, built and historic environment, including 
landscapes and green infrastructure, and planning measures to address climate change 
mitigation and adaptation.’  

3.10 The NPPF also promotes well-designed places and development, as well as protection and 
enhancing beneficial use of the Green Belt. 

3.11 Non-strategic policies should be used by local planning authorities and communities to set out 
more detailed policies for specific areas, neighbourhoods or types of development, including 
qualitative aspects such as design of places, landscapes, and development.  

3.12 The NPPF also states that: 

‘Local plans and spatial development strategies should be informed throughout their preparation 
by a sustainability appraisal that meets the relevant legal requirements. This should demonstrate 
how the plan has addressed relevant economic, social and environmental objectives (including 
opportunities for net gains). Significant adverse impacts on these objectives should be avoided 
and, wherever possible, alternative options which reduce or eliminate such impacts should be 
pursued. Where significant adverse impacts are unavoidable, suitable mitigation measures should 
be proposed (or, where this is not possible, compensatory measures should be considered).’ 

                                                
5 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (July 2018) National Planning Policy Framework. Available at:  
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728643/Revised_NPPF_2018.pdf  
 

214

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/728643/Revised_NPPF_2018.pdf


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  22 March 2019 

Baseline information 

3.13 Schedule 2 of the SEA Regulations requires that the Environmental Report includes descriptions 
of: 

‘(2) The relevant aspects of the current state of the environment and the likely evolution thereof 
without implementation of the plan or programme.’ 

‘(3) The environmental characteristics of areas likely to be significantly affected.’ 

3.14 Schedule 2(6) of the SEA Regulations requires the likely significant effects of the plan on the 
environment to be assessed in relation to: biodiversity; population; human health; fauna; flora; 
soil; water; air; climatic factors; material assets; cultural heritage including architectural and 
archaeological heritage; landscape; and the inter-relationship between these.  As an integrated 
SA and SEA is being carried out, baseline information relating to other ‘sustainability’ topics has 
also been included; for example information about housing, social inclusiveness, transport, 
energy, waste and economic growth.   

3.15 Information on existing environmental, social and economic conditions in the plan area provides 
the baseline against which the plan’s effects can be assessed in the SA and monitored during the 
plan’s implementation.   

3.16 Baseline information can also be combined with an understanding of drivers of change that are 
likely to persist regardless of the Local Plan to understand the likely future sustainability 
conditions in the absence of the local plan.   

3.17 The baseline information is presented in Appendix 2. 

Key sustainability issues and their likely evolution without the Local 
Plan Part 2 

3.18 Analysis of the baseline information has enabled a number of key sustainability issues facing 
Northampton to be identified.  Identification of the key sustainability issues and consideration of 
how these issues might develop over time if the Local Plan Part 2 is not prepared helps to meet 
the requirements of Schedule 2 of the SEA Regulations to provide information on:  

‘(2) The relevant aspects of the current state of the environment and the likely evolution thereof 
without implementation of the plan.’  

 (4) Any existing environmental problems which are relevant to the plan...’ 

3.19 The key sustainability issues (or “problems”) are presented in Table 3.1, along with the likely 
evolution of the environment in relation to these issues if the Local Plan Part 2 is not 
implemented.   

3.20 The information in Table 3.1 shows that, in general, the current trends in relation to the various 
social, economic and environmental issues affecting Northampton Borough would be more likely 
to continue without the implementation of the Local Plan Part 2, although the policies in the 
adopted JCS will go some way towards addressing many of the issues.  In most cases, the Local 
Plan Part 2 offers opportunities to directly and strongly affect existing trends in a positive way, 
through an up-to-date plan which reflects the requirements of the NPPF, building on the JCS 
policies. 

3.21 Table 3.1 also shows, in the final column, where the sustainability issue is reflected in the 
sustainability objectives that make up the SA framework used to guide the SA of the Local Plan 
Part 2 (see Table 3.2).  It can be seen that many of the issues are relevant to a number of SA 
objectives, indicating the cross-cutting nature of many of the issues identified.  This suggests 
that, if a key sustainability issue is addressed by the Local Plan Part 2, a number of SA objectives 
will be achieved.      

215



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  23 March 2019 

Table 3.1 Key sustainability issues for Northampton and likely evolution without the 
Local Plan Part 2 

Key sustainability issues Likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2 Relevant SA 
objectives 

Due to uncertain levels of 
funding, the delivery of 
affordable housing in 
Northampton is forecast to be 
challenging. 

Pressures to deliver affordable housing are likely 
to continue regardless of the adoption of the Local 
Plan Part 2, although the adopted JCS already 
includes policies seeking to address these 
pressures, including Policy H2: Affordable Housing, 
which states that affordable housing will be 
provided as a proportion of the total number of 
dwellings to be delivered on an individual site 
basis.  Within the Northampton Related 
Development Area, 35% of sites with 15 or more 
dwellings are to be affordable.  While such policies 
would continue to apply in the absence of the 
Local Plan Part 2, there is an opportunity to define 
policies that would address the delivery challenges 
facing Northampton. 

SA objective 1 

SA objective 6 

There are a number of 
communities within Northampton 
that are characterised by 
deprivation. 

The adopted JCS already includes policies seeking 
to create more prosperous communities such as 
Policy RC1: Delivering Community Regeneration 
and Policy RC2: Community Needs, that aim to 
ensure that all members of the community have 
access to improved services, community facilities 
and infrastructure.  While such policies would 
continue to apply in the absence of the Local Plan 
Part 2, there is an opportunity to build on this 
overarching policy through more specific 
development management policies, and by 
seeking to deliver development that meets the 
needs of the more deprived communities in the 
Borough.   

SA objective 1 

SA objective 2 

SA objective 3 

SA objective 4 

SA objective 5 

SA objective 6 

Life expectancy in Northampton 
is lower than national averages, 
and there are significant 
differences in life expectancy 
between the least and most 
deprived communities in the 
Borough. 

The adopted JCS includes a number of policies 
that seek to address health issues within the JCS 
area, including encouraging healthy lifestyles such 
as walking and cycling, and provision for health 
centres as an essential component of new local 
communities.  Local Plan Part 2 offers 
opportunities to provide more specific detail and 
proposals at the local level. 

SA objective 4 

There are high levels of crime 
within the Borough – particularly 
violence and sexual offences. 

The Local Plan Part 2 is unlikely to affect the levels 
of crime directly.  However, by providing for 
development opportunities that generate jobs, 
affordable housing, and community facilities within 
more deprived communities, some of the causes 
of crime can be addressed.  In addition, it is 
possible through good design of developments to 
reduce the opportunities for crime, for example 
through appropriate lighting, natural surveillance 
of pedestrian routes, security measures, etc. 

SA objective 5 

216



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  24 March 2019 

Key sustainability issues Likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2 Relevant SA 
objectives 

There are low levels of 
education attainment in 
Northampton, it is important that 
a local skilled workforce is 
available for employment in 
Northampton’s expanding 
industries. 

The greatest influence on educational attainment 
in the Borough is the provision of quality teaching 
and supportive community and family 
environments.  Planning has a role to play by 
facilitating the delivery of educational 
establishments and capacity to meet anticipated 
growth in demand for places, and that the 
educational establishments are of a high standard 
of design and easy and safe to access.  The 
adopted JCS supports the role of the University of 
Northampton as well encouraging links between 
training, employment and skills development for 
the local workforce as highlighted in Policy E6: 
Education, Skills and Training.   While such 
policies would continue to apply in the absence of 
the Local Plan Part 2, opportunities may exist to 
build on this overarching policy by helping to 
address the specific education and skills gaps in 
Northampton by facilitating proposals for 
appropriate educational facilities.   

SA objective 3 

Northampton has a thriving local 
economy with emerging sectors, 
it is vital that this supported.  

The adopted JCS already includes policies that 
enable the economy to expand, such as Policy E1: 
Existing Employment Areas, which supports the 
retention and development of industrial estates in 
the county, and Policy E2: New Office Floor Space.  
The overall quantum of jobs is determined through 
the adopted JCS.  Without the smaller site 
allocations to be included in the Local Plan Part 2 
there may be less certainty about the delivery of 
that employment land and therefore this could 
undermine current trends.  Similarly, Local Plan 
Part 2 offers opportunities to deliver the quantum 
and range of housing needed to support the 
economy and its expanding workforce. 

SA objective 6 

SA objective 7 

Northampton has many cultural 
and recreational assets 
comprising of natural assets, 
parks and open space, sporting 
facilities, cultural establishments, 
and the quality of the built 
environment.  These need to be 
protected and enhanced. 

The adopted JCS already includes policies that 
encourage recreation, including Policy E7: 
Tourism, Visitor and Cultural Industries, which 
supports tourism, visitor and cultural 
development. While such policies would continue 
to apply in the absence of the Local Plan Part 2, 
there is an opportunity to build on this overarching 
policy to ensure local cultural and recreational 
places and spaces are protected and accessible. 

SA objective 2 

SA objective 7 

SA objective 9 

SA objective 10 

SA objective 11 

Car dependency is high within 
the Borough, particularly for 
commuting, even over short 
distances. The use of 
sustainable modes of 
transport needs to be 
encouraged. 

The adopted JCS already includes policies 
encouraging the use of sustainable modes of 
transport such as Policy C1: Changing Behaviour 
and Achieving Modal Shift, which will prioritise 
schemes that provide access to walking, cycling 
and public transport and Policy C2: New 
Developments, which seeks to maximise travel 
choice from non-car modes.  While such policies 

SA objective 2 

SA objective 3 

SA objective 4 

217



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  25 March 2019 

Key sustainability issues Likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2 Relevant SA 
objectives 

would continue to apply in the absence of the 
Local Plan Part 2, there is an opportunity to tailor 
policies that would address private vehicle use 
within the Borough, and encouraging the use of 
more sustainable modes of transport at the local 
level.  This would also help to address health and 
obesity issues. 

Climate change is likely to 
increase temperatures, affect 
biodiversity, increase hazards 
from fluvial flooding, increase the 
frequency of summer droughts, 
increase the frequency and 
severity of gales and present 
increased threats to property and 
air quality in Northampton.  CO2 
emissions in the Borough have 
been decreasing but this trend 
needs to continue if it is to 
contribute to international and 
national carbon reduction 
targets. 

Climate change is likely to have ongoing effects 
regardless of the adoption of the Local Plan Part 2, 
although the adopted JCS already includes policies 
seeking to respond to this issue, and these could 
continue to apply in the absence of the Local Plan 
Part 2.  These policies include: 

• Policy S10: Sustainable Development 
Principles, which requires development to 
improve environmental performance, be 
energy efficient and adapt to climate 
change; and 

• Policy S11: Low Carbon and Renewable 
Energy, which requires development in 
sustainable urban extensions to 
contribute to reducing carbon emissions, 
maximising energy efficiency including 
the use of decentralised energy, be 
sensitively located to minimise any 
adverse impacts on communities and the 
built and natural environment, new 
residential development (including mixed 
use) to achieve the zero carbon standard 
and for all non-residential development 
over 500m2 of a minimum of ‘very good 
standard’ in BREEAM. 

The Local Plan Part 2 provides opportunities for 
further policy to be developed with respect to 
extreme weather events, such as high 
temperatures or heavy rainfall, through the design 
of development.  This in turn will help to make the 
public realm more attractive to use, supporting 
town centre businesses (e.g. retail) and the use of 
public transport (e.g. bus stations) etc.  

SA objective 2 

SA objective 3 

SA objective 8 

 

Despite being predominantly 
urban, Northampton has areas 
that are of high biodiversity 
value including The Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel Pits which is 
designated as a SSSI, Ramsar 
and a Special Protection Area 
(SPA).  The majority of the site is 
in unfavourable (recovering) 
condition and is suffering from 
the adverse effects associated 

Pressures on the natural environment are likely to 
continue regardless of the adoption of the Local 
Plan Part 2, although the adopted JCS already 
includes policies seeking to address these 
pressures, Particularly Policies BN1 to BN4, which 
relate specifically to green infrastructure, 
biodiversity, woodlands and the SPA.  The Local 
Plan Part 2 offers the opportunity to build on this 
overarching policy through more specific 
development management policies as well as 
including geodiversity into the wording.  It also 

SA objective 9 

218



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  26 March 2019 

Key sustainability issues Likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2 Relevant SA 
objectives 

with built and recreational 
development within and around 
the site.  There are also areas 
with high geodiversity value in 
the Borough. 

offers opportunities to strengthen the green and 
blue infrastructure network of the town, by 
identifying and addressing where gaps exist, and 
essential components for establishing a resilient 
network for the future, and by incorporating 
biodiversity considerations into the design of 
developments (such as open space, green roofs, 
etc.). 

There are areas and sites of 
significant historic 
importance and aesthetic 
quality that should be preserved 
and enhanced including 
conservation areas, listed 
buildings, scheduled monuments, 
a historic battlefield and historic 
landscapes.  In addition there are 
many non-designated heritage 
assets including archaeological 
remains.  Heritage assets are 
continuously facing pressures for 
change, often indirectly, and 
from inappropriate development 
and activity affecting their setting 
and context. 

The adopted JCS already includes policies seeking 
to protect and enhance the historic environment, 
including Policy BN51: The Historic Environment 
and Landscape.  While that policy would continue 
to apply in the absence of the Local Plan Part 2, 
opportunities to address the historic environment 
through specific development management 
policies and site allocations are likely to exist 
taking into account their impacts on the historic 
environment.  Furthermore, the Local Plan Part 2 
will be able to be tailored to unique historic 
townscape and its landscape setting as opposed to 
the more rural landscape that characterises the 
other two authorities covered by the JCS. 

SA objective 7 

SA objective 10 

SA objective 11 

Seven Air Quality Management 
Areas (AQMAs) have been 
declared due to exceedances of 
NO2 derived from road 
transportation. 

The adopted JCS already includes policies seeking 
to protect and enhance air quality including Policy 
BN9: Planning for Pollution Control, which calls for 
maintaining and improving air quality, especially in 
poor air quality areas.  While such policies would 
continue to apply in the absence of the Local Plan 
Part 2, there is an opportunity to tailor policies 
that could address the AQMAs, for example by 
encouraging walking, cycling and public transport 
rather than the private car, particularly for 
development locations that are close to or are 
likely to generate traffic that uses routes covered 
by AQMAs. 

SA objective 4 

SA objective 12 

The River Nene is important for 
both recreation and biodiversity, 
and therefore its water quality 
needs to be protected and 
enhanced. 

The adopted JCS already includes policies seeking 
to protect and enhance water quality including 
Policy BN7A: Water Supply, Quality and 
Wastewater Infrastructure and Policy BN8: The 
River Nene Strategic River Corridor.  While these 
policies would continue to apply in the absence of 
the Local Plan Part 2, there are opportunities to 
build on these overarching policies through site 
allocations that are selected following 
consideration of their impacts on the water 
environment through the SA.  Local Plan Part 2 
also will enable consideration of phasing to be 
taken into account with respect to Wastewater 
Treatment Works capacity, and to encourage 

SA objective 4 

SA objective 9 

SA objective 13 

219



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  27 March 2019 

Key sustainability issues Likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2 Relevant SA 
objectives 

sustainable drainage and green/blue infrastructure 
that enables natural cleaning processes to take 
place (e.g. reed beds) while also serving as a 
habitat for wildlife. 

The River Nene flows through 
Northampton and is subject to 
flooding especially in light of 
climate change increasing the 
frequency of flooding 

The adopted JCS already includes policies seeking 
to reduce flood risk in and around Northampton 
including Policy BN7: Flood Risk.  While that policy 
would continue to apply in the absence of the 
Local Plan Part 2, there is an opportunity to build 
on this overarching policy through more specific 
development management policies and site 
allocations that are selected following 
consideration of their risk of flooding particularly 
in those areas of the Borough that are the most 
vulnerable to flooding areas, such as St James and 
Far Cotton.  Local Plan Part 2 may also offer 
opportunities to encourage flood management 
through the green/blue infrastructure network and 
sustainable drainage systems. 

SA objective 1 

SA objective 4 

SA objective 6 

SA objective 14 

Although largely urban land, 
pockets of high grade 
agricultural land exist around 
the edge of the town within the 
Borough boundaries. 

Policy R2: Rural Economy in the adopted JCS 
already provides protection for the best and most 
versatile agricultural land.  Local Plan Part 2 offers 
opportunities for the existence of best and most 
versatile agricultural land to be taken into account 
when allocating sites for development.  The Local 
Plan Part 2 can also encourage the use of 
previously developed land (subject to any 
biodiversity interest) over greenfield land in 
identifying sites for development. 

SA objective 6 

SA objective 15 

The River Nene Valley is 
associated with high quality 
gravel deposits that need to be 
safeguarded from sterilisation by 
development.  Former gravel pits 
also represent valuable 
recreational and biodiversity 
resource. 

The adopted Northamptonshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan includes policies that seek to 
prevent sterilisation of mineral resources by 
development.  The Local Plan Part 2 offers 
opportunities to take into account Mineral 
Safeguarding Areas and Mineral Consultation 
Areas when allocating development.  Local Plan 
Part 2 also offers opportunities to provide 
guidance on the outcomes the Borough wishes to 
see through the restoration of former mineral 
workings. 

SA objective 6 

SA objective 15 

There are a number of waste 
facilities in the Borough that 
should not be compromised by 
sensitive neighbouring 
development. 

The adopted Northamptonshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan identifies locations within 
Northampton Borough that are suitable for waste 
management facilities.  Although waste 
management facilities are much cleaner than in 
the past, through the use of technology and waste 
recovery and recycling, Local Plan Part 2 offers the 
opportunity to ensure that site allocations for 
other types of development (e.g. housing, 
employment, community facilities) are not 
compromised by, or do not compromise, the 

SA objective 16 

220



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  28 March 2019 

Key sustainability issues Likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2 Relevant SA 
objectives 

operation of nearby waste management facilities, 
whether existing or planned.  In addition, Local 
Plan Part 2 can encourage the incorporation of 
sustainable waste management practices, plus the 
re-use of previously developed land and buildings, 
in site selection and design. 

The SA framework  

3.22 As described in Chapter 2, the relevant objectives established via the review of plans, policies, 
and programmes and the key sustainability issues identified by the baseline review informed 
development of a framework of sustainability objectives, the SA framework, against which the 
plan has been assessed.  The SA framework is presented in Table 3.2.   

221



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  29 March 2019 

Table 3.2 SA framework 

SA Objectives Sub questions: Will the policy or proposal… SEA Regulations 
Topics covered 

1 Help make suitable housing available and 
affordable according to the needs of 
Northampton’s population. 

• Provide for a range of housing type and tenure to meet identified housing 
needs? 

• Provide homes for an ageing population? 

• Provide affordable and social housing to meet identified needs? 

• Improve the housing stock, in particular in more deprived communities? 

Material assets 

2 Reduce the need to travel within, to and from 
Northampton by providing easy access to jobs, 
services and facilities and to sustainable travel 
alternatives to the car. 

• Improve the provision of public transport services? 

• Improve walking and cycling networks? 

• Be within walking and/or cycling distance of the town centre, or on frequent 
public transport routes to, the town centre? 

• Be within walking and/or cycling distance of, or on frequent public transport 
routes to, designated employment areas? 

• Be within walking distance of local centres? 

Air 
Population 
Human health 
Climatic factors 
 

3 Provide easy access to primary and secondary 
schools by sustainable modes. 

• Be within walking distance of primary schools? 

• Be within walking and/or cycling distance of secondary schools? 

Air 
Population 
Human health 
Climatic factors 

4 Improve the health and well-being of 
Northampton’s residents, promoting healthy 
lifestyles and reduce health inequalities. 

• Improve access to health care? 

• Be within walking and/or cycling distance of sport and leisure facilities, or 
open space? 

• Improve access to outdoor and indoor sport and recreation facilities? 

• Improve access to open space and the countryside? 

• Limit the risk of air, noise or light pollution on local people? 

• Improve access to jobs for the most deprived communities in Northampton? 

• Improve access to places of worship? 

Human health 

5 Reduce crime and the fear of crime in 
Northampton.  

• Reduce opportunities for crime? 

• Increase the perception of safety from crime? 

• Encourage access to, and the provision of, community and youth facilities in 

Population 
Human health 

222



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  30 March 2019 

SA Objectives Sub questions: Will the policy or proposal… SEA Regulations 
Topics covered 

more deprived neighbourhoods? 

6 Facilitate the growth of Northampton’s 
economy and the availability of jobs.  

• Ensure a sufficient supply of land to meet local employment needs? 

• Encourage provision of a range of employment opportunities? 

• Provide opportunities for start-up companies and expansion of local 
companies, particularly in high-performance technologies, business and 
professional services?  

• Facilitate take-up of employment land and premises in the Northampton 
Waterside Enterprise Zone? 

• Enable access and improvements to communications technology (e.g. 
broadband)? 

Material assets 

7 Maintain and strengthen the character and 
vitality of Northampton town centre. 

• Safeguard and enhance the historic character and distinctiveness of the town 
centre? 

• Encourage the retention and expansion of town centre commercial and retail 
uses? 

• Provide for a range of homes within the town centre? 

• Facilitate the evening economy (e.g. restaurants, bars, and other leisure 
activity)? 

• Make the public realm safe and attractive to use by pedestrians? 

• Ensure that the town centre is adapted to extreme weather events as a 
result of climate change? 

• Provides for safe cycling routes and parking facilities? 

• Provides for safe and easy access to public transport services, including bus 
and rail? 

Cultural heritage 
Material assets 
Population 
Human health 

8 Minimise Northampton’s greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

• Result in the generation of renewable energy? 

• Encourage energy conservation? 

• Minimise increases in greenhouse gas emissions from vehicles? 

Climatic factors 

9 Protect and enhance Northampton’s 
biodiversity and geodiversity. 

• Maintain the integrity of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SSSI, Ramsar and 
Special Protection Area (SPA)? 

• Protect locally designated biodiversity sites from both the direct and indirect 
adverse effects of development? 

Biodiversity 
Flora 
Fauna 

223



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  31 March 2019 

SA Objectives Sub questions: Will the policy or proposal… SEA Regulations 
Topics covered 

• Safeguard and strengthen local ecological networks both within Northampton 
Borough and their links with ecological networks in neighbouring districts? 

• Ensure that known biodiversity of brownfield sites is given due weight 
reflecting its ecological interest and value?  

• Take into account opportunities to enhance biodiversity in the layout and 
design of development, including allowing species to adapt to climate 
change? 

• Protect Local Geological Sites from both the direct and indirect adverse 
effects of development? 

• Improve access to, and understanding of, nature taking into account its 
sensitivity to human disturbance? 

10 Protect and enhance the quality and character 
of Northampton’s landscape and townscape. 

• Protect sensitive landscapes in and around the Borough of Northampton? 

• Conserve and enhance the quality, character and local distinctiveness of 
Northampton’s townscape 

• Protect and improve Northampton’s open spaces and green infrastructure 
networks? 

Landscape 
Cultural heritage 

11 Conserve and enhance Northampton’s historic 
environment, heritage assets and their 
settings. 

• Protect, maintain and enhance listed buildings and conservation areas, 
including their setting? 

• Protect, maintain and enhance scheduled monuments and archaeological 
sites, and their setting? 

• Protect, maintain and enhance historic parks and gardens, landscapes, and 
the Registered Battlefield for the Battle of Northampton, and their settings? 

• Protect, maintain and enhance the historic pattern and form of development 
that characterises Northampton? 

• Protect, maintain and enhance non-designated heritage assets? 

Cultural heritage 

12 Minimise air pollution in and around 
Northampton, particularly in the AQMAs. 

• Avoid increases in traffic emissions in AQMAs? Air  
 

13 Encourage sustainable water management. • Limit the risk of pollution to the water environment? 

• Conserve water resources? 

Water 

14 Reduce the risk of flooding to people and • Reduce the risk of flooding? Climatic factors 
Material assets 

224



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2  32 March 2019 

SA Objectives Sub questions: Will the policy or proposal… SEA Regulations 
Topics covered 

property in Northampton. • Avoid development within areas of risk of flooding in accordance with 
Government guidance on flood risk? 

15 Encourage the efficient use of land in 
Northampton and protect its soils and mineral 
resources. 

• Involve the re-use of previously developed land and buildings? 

• Encourage the remediation of contaminated land? 

• Avoid the sterilisation of mineral resources? 

• Protect the best and most versatile agricultural land? 

• Avoid inappropriate of unstable land and, where possible, bring it back into 
productive use.  

Soil 
Material assets 

16 Facilitate sustainable waste management. • Encourage the recovery, re-use and recycling of waste materials? 

• Avoid locating sensitive land uses close to waste management facilities? 

Material assets 

225



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 33 March 2019 

4 SA findings for the Local Plan Part 2 vision 
and objectives 

4.1 This section describes the findings of the SA in relation to the overarching vision and supporting 
objectives that set the context for the Local Plan Part 2 policies.   

Vision 

4.2 The vision for the Local Plan Part 2 is: 

‘By 2029 Northampton will be the heart of West Northamptonshire, playing a key role in the 
Oxford – Cambridge Corridor.  Northampton will provide a balanced range of high quality housing 
to meet different housing needs and aspirations and offer an excellent quality of life for its 
communities.  Services, facilities and infrastructure will also support communities, adding to the 
quality of life and supporting residents and visitors.  Based upon a thriving mixed economy and 
associated services, it will be a place where history, innovation and regeneration are mutually 
supportive.   There will be continuing pride in the Royal and Derngate Theatres, museums 
including the Northampton Museum and Art Gallery, and professional sports teams such as 
Northampton Town Football Club, Northampton Saints Rugby Club and Northamptonshire County 
Cricket Club.  Northampton will have strengthened its role as the leading social centre within the 
county for cultural, commerce, leisure and entertainment, employment and health.  Through the 
University of Northampton, there will be first class and modern learning activities and facilities to 
be proud of. 
   
Northampton will be a great UK location for a range of employment opportunities, as well as 
achieving high levels of proficiency in both academic and vocational education.  The Borough will 
build on its economic strengths, including its location at the heart of the county and in the Oxford 
– Cambridge Corridor and as a prime area nationally for high performance engineering and as a 
logistics and distribution centre.  
   
Northampton will blend high quality design choices with outstanding public open spaces, 
distinctive historic character, an enhanced riverside setting and a network of green spaces and 
high quality parks.  The Borough will also be a leading example of low environmental impact and 
resilient development in response to climate change. 
 
Northampton will have a sustainable and highly accessible transport network that is recognised 
locally, regionally and nationally.’   

4.3 The vision is supported by 13 Borough strategic objectives.  The likely sustainability effects of the 
vision and objectives have been appraised and the results are presented in Table 4.1.   

4.4 The vision for Northampton Borough sets out a general aspiration for development in the Borough 
to take place in a sustainable way, supported by social, economic and environmental aspirations, 
which will enable Northampton to be an attractive place to live, work and invest.  

4.5 This vision is therefore likely to have positive effects with uncertainty in relation to the majority of 
the SA objectives set out in the SA Framework.  Minor positive effects are expected in relation to 
SA objectives 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10 and 11, as the vision refers to high quality and sustainable 
economic, housing, educational and green infrastructure developments that will likely have 
positive effects in relation to those SA objectives.  However, the vision’s contribution to the 
achievement of the following objectives is likely to be negligible: SA objective 5: ‘Crime’, SA 
objective 9: ‘Biodiversity & Geodiversity’, SA objective 12: ‘Air Quality’, SA objective 13 ‘Water 
management’, SA objective 14: ‘Flood risk’, SA objective 15: ‘Soils & minerals’ and SA objective 
16: ‘Waste management.’  The vision is unlikely to have any significant adverse effects in relation 
to the SA objectives.  Most of the effects of the vision and many of the objectives are subject to 
some uncertainty since their achievement will depend on the details of the Local Plan Part 2 

226



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 34 March 2019 

policies and site allocations which are designed to implement them.  The effects of the policies 
and site allocations are examined later in the SA report.  

Objectives 

4.6 The vision is supported by 13 strategic objectives: 

1. To achieve high quality design that takes account of and improve local character and 
heritage and provides a safe, healthy and attractive place for residents, visitors and 
businesses. 

2. To provide a range of housing in sustainable locations, seeking to ensure all residents have 
access to a home they can afford, and that meets their needs. 

3. To drive the regeneration of Northampton’s town centre and improve visitor and investor 
experience by making it the focus of social networking, where people have access to 
commerce, leisure and culture, heritage, wide ranging employment opportunities and retail 
options at the heart of Northamptonshire in an attractive environment. 

4. To strengthen and diversify Northampton’s economy by taking advantage of our 
internationally well placed location, strategic transport network and proximity to London and 
Birmingham. To capitalise on the opportunities offered by the Oxford to Cambridge Arc. 

5. To support and develop opportunities for specialist employment clusters and business 
development focused on a low carbon economy. To maximise the opportunities offered by a 
regenerated town centre and the Enterprise Zone.   

6. To conserve, and where possible, enhance through carefully managed change, the heritage 
assets and their settings, and to recognise and elevate their role in providing a sense of 
place and local distinctiveness. 

7. To ensure new development in urban areas actively supports and links new and existing 
communities physically and socially, to achieve social cohesion and address the areas of 
deprivation identified in parts of the Borough. 

8. To promote healthier and safer communities by supporting the creation of and protecting 
shared facilities, improving connectivity and securing high quality design. 

9. To raise educational achievement and the skills base of our communities through supporting 
the development of our learning infrastructure and strengthening links between local 
businesses and local schools, Moulton and Northampton Colleges and the University of 
Northampton. 

10. To protect natural species and enhance the existing strategic green infrastructure network by 
incorporating and designing these into sustainable urban extensions. 

11. To reduce the need to travel, shorten travel distances and make sustainable travel a priority 
and an attractive option across Northampton by maximising the use of alternative travel 
modes.  In so doing, the Plan will combat congestion, reduce carbon emissions and address 
social exclusion for those who do not have access to a private car. 

12. To minimise demand for resources and mitigate and adapt to climate change by: 

• Promoting sustainable design and construction in all new development; 

• Ensuring strategic development allocations are located and designed so as to be resilient 
to future climate change and risk of flooding; 

• Encouraging renewable energy production in appropriate locations; and  

• Ensuring new development promotes the use of sustainable travel modes. 

13. To protect and enhance local services and to ensure social, physical, green and technology 
infrastructure is adequately provided to meet the needs of people and business in a timely 
and sustainable manner in response to regeneration and new development.  To ensure that 
the relevant utilities are provided prior to occupancy. 

227



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 35 March 2019 

4.7 The plan objectives are unlikely to have any significant negative effects.  Most of the plan 
objectives are likely to have significant positive or minor positive effects in relation to the SA 
objectives, or negligible effects.  All of the plan objectives have at least one significant positive 
effect in relation to the SA objectives.  Objective 1 focuses on achieving a high quality of design 
that takes into account local character and heritage and provides a safe, healthy and attractive 
Northampton, therefore a significant positive effect is likely in relation to SA objectives 4, 6, 10 
and 11.   

4.8 Objective 2 focuses on providing affordable and accessible housing that meets the needs of all 
residents, therefore a significant positive effect is likely in relation to SA objectives 1 and 4.  

4.9 Objective 3 focuses on the regeneration of Northampton’s town centre by improving the 
experience of visitors and investors by highlighting the importance of access to commerce, leisure 
and culture, heritage and a wide range of retail and employment options, therefore a significant 
positive effect is likely in relation to SA objectives 6 and 7.  

4.10 Objective 4 focuses on strengthening and diversifying Northampton’s economy, therefore a 
significant positive effect is likely in relation to SA objective 6.  

4.11 Objective 5 focuses on supporting and developing opportunities for specialist employment clusters 
and business development focused on a low carbon economy.  It also seeks to maximise the 
opportunities offered by a regenerated town centre and Enterprise Zone.  Therefore, a significant 
positive effect is likely in relation to SA objectives 6, 7, 8 and 12.  

4.12 Objective 6 focuses on the conservation and enhancement of heritage assets and their settings, 
and seeks to recognise and strengthen their role in providing local distinctiveness; therefore a 
significant positive effect is likely in relation to SA objective 11.  

4.13 Objective 7 focuses on ensuring new development in urban areas actively supports and links new 
and existing communities physically and socially, to achieve social cohesion and improve 
deprivation levels, therefore a significant positive effect is likely in relation to SA objective 4.  

4.14 Objective 8 focuses on promoting healthier and safer communities by supporting community 
facilities, improving connectivity and securing high quality design, therefore a significant positive 
effect is likely in relation to SA objectives 4 and 5. 

4.15 Objective 9 focuses on raising educational achievement and the skills base of Northampton’s 
communities through supporting the development of learning infrastructure and strengthening 
links between schools and businesses within the area, therefore a significant positive effect is 
likely in relation to SA objective 3. 

4.16 Objective 10 focuses on enhancing existing green infrastructure networks, therefore a significant 
positive effect is likely in relation to SA objectives 4, 8 and 12.  The objective could be 
strengthened by widening its focus from natural species to both habitats and species and by 
seeking to provide net gains in biodiversity where possible, in line with national planning policy.  

4.17 Objective 11 focuses on the need to reduce travel distances and make sustainable travel a priority 
and in doing so, reduce traffic congestion and greenhouse gas emissions and address social 
exclusion.  Therefore, a significant positive effect is likely in relation to SA objectives 2 and 4.   

4.18 Objective 12 focuses on minimising the demand for resources and mitigating and adapting to 
climate change by promoting sustainable design and construction in new development, ensuring 
development employs climate and flood resilient designs, encouraging renewable energy 
production and ensuring new development promotes more sustainable modes of travel, therefore 
a significant positive effect is likely in relation to SA objectives 2, 4, 8, 12 and 14.  

4.19 Objective 13 focuses on protecting and enhancing local services and ensuring social, physical, 
green and technology infrastructure is adequately provided to meet the needs of people and 
businesses in a timely and sustainable manner, therefore a significant positive effect is likely in 
relation to SA objectives 4 and 6. 

4.20 It is noted that none of the Local Plan Part 2 objectives explicitly address SA objective 15
 ‘Encourage the efficient use of land in Northampton and protect its soils and mineral resources’ or 
SA objective 16 ‘Facilitate sustainable waste management’. 

 

228



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 36 March 2019 

 

Table 4.1 Summary of SA scores for Local Plan Part 2 vision and objectives 

SA objective 

Vision Obj. 1 Obj. 2 Obj. 3 Obj. 4 Obj. 5 Obj. 6 Obj. 7 Obj. 8 Obj. 9 Obj. 
10 

Obj. 
11 

Obj. 
12 

Obj. 
13 

SA1: Housing +? + ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 + 

SA2: Sustainable travel  +? 0 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ + 

SA3: Schools +? 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 + 0 + 

SA4: Health & well-being +? ++ ++ + + + + ++ ++ + ++ ++ ++ ++ 

SA5: Crime 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

SA6: Economy +? ++ 0 ++ ++ ++ 0 0 0 + 0 + + ++ 

SA7: Town Centre +? + 0 ++ + ++ + 0 0 0 0 0 0 + 

SA8: Climate change mitigation +? 0 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 ++ + ++ + 

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes +? ++ 0 + 0 0 + 0 0 0 + 0 0 + 

SA11: Historic environment  +? ++ 0 + 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SA12: Air quality 0 0 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 ++ + ++ + 

SA13: Water  management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 + 0 + 0 

SA14: Flood risk 0 0 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 + 0 ++ 0 

SA15: Soils & minerals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SA16: Waste management  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

229



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 37 March 2019 

5 SA findings for policies and reasonable 
alternatives 

5.1 This chapter of the SA Report describes the findings of the SA in relation to the effects of the 
Proposed Submission Local Plan Part 2 policies and reasonable alternatives. The policies appraised 
below are in the order in which they appear in the Proposed Submission Local Plan Part 2 
document. 

5.2 The policy approaches considered by the Council and a summary of their likely sustainability 
effects are shown in the matrices below.  The effects are then described in the following text, 
focussing on those effects which are likely to be significant.  As noted in Chapter 2, following the 
Options consultation the Council drafted the detailed development management policies appearing 
in the Proposed Submission draft of the Local Plan Part 2; these are the ‘Proposed’ policies in the 
matrices below.  Any reasonable alternative development management policy approaches 
considered by the Council were also assessed; these are the numbered policy alternatives 
assessed in the matrices below.   

5.3 A summary of the likely effects of the preferred approaches set out in the Proposed Submission 
Local Plan Part 2 as a whole, by SA objective, can be found in Chapter 7. 

Sustainable development 

Policy 1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Sustainable development will be promoted by the Council when reviewing 
development applications.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: This is compulsory because it is a national requirement. The Council 
has no reasonable alternative. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed    

  

SA1: Housing +    
  

SA2: Sustainable travel  +    
  

SA3: Schools +    
  

SA4: Health & well-being +    
  

SA5: Crime +    
  

SA6: Economy +    
  

SA7: Town Centre +    
  

SA8: Climate change mitigation +    
  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity +    
  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes +    
  

SA11: Historic environment  +    
  

230



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 38 March 2019 

SA12: Air quality +    
  

SA13: Water  management +    
  

SA14: Flood risk +    
  

SA15: Soils & minerals +    
  

SA16: Waste management  +    
  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach 

5.4 This policy seeks to ensure that sustainable development proposals will be approved and 
developments that improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area are 
secured. This policy is expected to have a minor positive effect in relation to all of the SA 
objectives.  This is because pursuing sustainable development practices will benefit all economic, 
social and environmental factors within an area. 

Quality of new development 

Policy 2: Placemaking 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Good design is fundamental to the creation of high quality places in which to live 
and work. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: This Option uses the Townscape Study 2016 guidelines on how to 
ensure that design principles are encapsulated in any proposals that come forward.  It takes these principles 
on board and formulate a policy which planning applications can be determined and proposals will contribute 
to place shaping and place making within the urban context of Northampton. 
2: This Option is to prepare a generic policy.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: This is not considered useful for planning applicants nor is it likely 
to contribute towards place shaping in an area which is expected to deliver a huge amount of growth over 
the plan period. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  ++  +  

SA3: Schools ++  +  

SA4: Health & well-being +  0  

SA5: Crime +  0  

SA6: Economy +  0  

SA7: Town Centre ++  +  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes ++  +  

SA11: Historic environment  ++  +  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

231



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 39 March 2019 

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.5 The Proposed Submission approach promotes development that contributes to good placemaking 
through high quality, innovative and sustainable design which encourages the creation of a 
strong, locally distinctive sense of place.  Therefore, this policy is likely to have a significant 
positive effect on SA objectives 2, 3, 10 and 11.  This is because the policy encourages people to 
walk and cycle to local facilities through the creation of healthy environments and incorporating a 
mix of easily accessible facilities, which could include schools.  The policy also promotes the 
enhancement of local distinct townscape, landscape and historic environment characteristics.  The 
inclusion of a healthy quality public realm for streets and public spaces incorporating features 
such as public art is likely to have a significant positive effect on SA objective 7. 

5.6 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 4, 5 and 6.  This policy encourages 
good placemaking though high quality, innovative and sustainable design which could support the 
reduction of crime and creates the potential for an increase in visitors to Northampton.  
Additionally, active travel, such as walking and cycling, can improve the health and wellbeing of a 
community.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.7 A policy (Option 2) promoting place making in general terms rather than one that draws on the 
place specific evidence of the Townscape Study 2016 is likely to be less effective therefore the 
significant positive effects identified for Option 1 are judged to be minor positive effects for this 
option. 

Policy 3: Design 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: To complement the placemaking policy, it is necessary to have detailed design 
criteria as set out in Policy 3. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: 
2: Prepare a generic policy.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: This is not considered useful for planning applicants nor is it likely 
to contribute towards place shaping in an area which is expected to deliver a huge amount of growth over 
the plan period. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing +  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  ++  +  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health & well-being +  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre +  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation ++  +  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes ++  +  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality +  0  

232



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 40 March 2019 

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.8 This policy is likely to incorporate positive design criteria for new developments, including Building 
for Life (or successor advice) and create legible street layouts and public spaces with good 
pedestrian/cycle routes and public transport access and high quality landscaping.  This will help to 
conserve and enhance the local landscape and townscape and encourage sustainable travel.  A 
significant positive effect is therefore likely for SA objectives 2 and 10.  In addition, new 
developments are required to demonstrate how they respond to and incorporate climate change 
and adaptation into the design process.  As such, a significant positive effect is also expected in 
relation to SA objective 8.  

5.9 Due to the policy’s incorporation of Design Coding, in the case of major developments, the town 
centre and housing supply may be positively affected, so a minor positive effect is expected in 
relation to SA objectives 1 and 7.  In addition, minor positive effects are expected in relation to 
SA objectives 4 and 12.  This is because the policy encourages new developments to create street 
layouts and public spaces with good walking and cycling routes which can improve health and 
wellbeing and reduce air pollution.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.10 A policy (Option 2) promoting place making in general terms rather than one that draws on the 
place specific evidence of the Townscape Study 2016 is likely to be less effective therefore the 
significant positive effects identified for Option 1 are judged to be minor positive effects for this 
option.  

Policy 4: Amenity and Layout 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Development will be required to create and protect a high standard of amenity 
for buildings and external open space. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: There are standards which have been nationally prescribed, and 
standards which the Council prepared for houses in multiple occupations.  Formulating this policy will ensure 
that new occupants will have the right level of space and amenity so as not to adversely affect their 
wellbeing and that of their neighbours. 
2: Rely on nationally described standards alone.  
Council’s reason for not preferring option: there is no guarantee that the wellbeing of occupants and their 
neighbours will be safeguarded, particularly in houses in multiple occupations.   
3: Rely on nationally described standards or any other criteria.  
Council’s reason for not preferring option: there is no guarantee that the wellbeing of occupants and their 
neighbours will be safeguarded, particularly in houses in multiple occupations.   
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  3 

SA1: Housing +  0  0 

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  0 

SA3: Schools 0  0  0 

SA4: Health & well-being +  0  0 

SA5: Crime 0  0  0 

SA6: Economy 0  0  0 

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  0 

233



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 41 March 2019 

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  0 

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  0 

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes +  0  0 

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  0 

SA12: Air quality 0  0  0 

SA13: Water  management 0  0  0 

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  0 

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  0 

SA16: Waste management  0  0  0 

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.11 This policy is not expected to have any significant effects in relation to the SA objectives.  
However, minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 1, 4 and 10.  This policy 
ensures new development meets the reasonable needs of its users, including the provision of 
communal garden areas, therefore improving health and wellbeing.  Landscaping must also be 
considered when accounting for visual amenity.   

SA findings for Option 2 

5.12 This policy option is expected to have a negligible effect on all SA objectives.  

SA findings for Option 3 

5.13 This policy option is expected to have a negligible effect on all SA objectives.  

Policy 5: Sustainable Construction  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: The Council is committed to tackling climate change by reducing energy 
consumption and thereby reducing carbon emissions, through the process of sustainable development and 
design and the encouragement of the use of low carbon energy technologies.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: Although the JCS provides strategic policies which are quite detailed 
for sustainable construction, the Council has the option to prepare a local policy which adds to and 
strengthens the strategic policy.  This will ensure that planning applicants take into consideration these 
requirements and contribute towards reducing the adverse impact on global climate change. 
2: Prepare a generic policy 
Council’s reasons for not preferring option: this is considered to be repeating strategic policy and will not 
add value to the local plan. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing ++  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation ++  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

234



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 42 March 2019 

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes +  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management ++  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.14 A significant positive effect is expected in relation to SA objectives 1, 8 and 13 as the policy 
encourages sustainable design from the beginning of the development process and actively 
promotes energy efficiency, use of renewable energy sources and higher water efficiency 
standards. 

5.15 This policy also ensures renewable energy design and installation does not create a negative 
effect on the local area and its views, character or residential amenity.  As such, a minor positive 
effect is expected in relation to SA objective 10. 

SA findings for Option 2 

5.16 This policy option repeats the requirements set out in the West Northamptonshire JCS, so 
negligible effects are expected against all SA objectives because this SA report is assessing the 
policies and their corresponding options that are not included within the JCS.   

Policy 6: Flood Risk and Water Management 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: The Council is committed to supporting proposals that assist in the management 
of flood risk.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: will ensure that planning applicants take into consideration these 
requirements and ensure that their schemes will not worsen any potential flood risk within the affected area. 
2: The Council can prepare a generic policy 
Council’s reason for not preferring option: considered to be repeating strategic policy and will not add value 
to the local plan. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

235



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 43 March 2019 

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management ++  0  

SA14: Flood risk ++  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.17 A significant positive effect is expected in relation to SA objectives 13 and 14 as this policy 
supports proposals that assist in the management of flood risk and ensure flood risk is not 
increased elsewhere.  In addition, this policy ensures that for all new development, suitable 
access must be provided and maintained for water supply and drainage infrastructure.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.18 This policy option repeats the requirements set out in the West Northamptonshire JCS, so 
negligible effects are expected against all SA objectives because this SA report is assessing the 
policies and their corresponding options that are not included within the JCS.   

Northampton regeneration strategy 

Policy 7: Supporting Northampton Town Centre 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
Proposed Submission: In the town centre, the Council will continue to support proposals and schemes 
which contribute positively towards the range of retail, leisure and service based offers, to accommodate the 
changing role of the town centre.   
Council’s reason for preferring option: The 2018 Retail study, which was used to inform the Local Plan, 
recommended that the Council support town centre use proposals within the town centre.  This is an 
acceptable option, taking into account the changing roles of Northampton Town Centre. 
2: There are changes to permitted development rights which could have the effect of changing the mix of 
uses in the town centre.  The Council could rely on a Town Centre Strategy which will not have a 
development plan policy status.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: This could however result in the Council losing the ability to 
manage positively the changes to the mix of uses in the town centre and its direction in terms of its role and 
offer. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy ++  -  

SA7: Town Centre ++  -  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

236



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 44 March 2019 

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.19 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 6 and 7 as this policy supports 
proposals and schemes which contribute positively towards the range of retail, leisure and service 
based offers, to accommodate the changing role of Northampton’s town centre and to improve 
visitor experience.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.20 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 6 and 7, as this policy option 
could result in the Council losing the ability to positively manage the changes to the mix of uses in 
the town centre and its direction of its role and what it offers to residents and visitors.  

Policy 8: Regeneration Opportunities 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: The Council will continue to support schemes which will contribute positively 
towards the regeneration of the town centre.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: There are sites within the Central Area, which incorporates the town 
centre, which are capable of regeneration, some of which are relatively large scale.  The policy aims to 
ensure that these schemes are supported, provided they take into consideration all the key considerations in 
a balanced manner. 
2: Masterplans could be prepared for each site.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: the sites could be regenerated in a manner which may not be 
complementary to their surrounding areas and may, for example, be detrimental to heritage assets. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing ++  ++  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy ++  ++  

SA7: Town Centre ++  ++  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  +  +  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

237



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 45 March 2019 

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.21 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 6 and 7 as this policy supports 
schemes which will contribute positively towards the regeneration of the town centre.  In addition, 
this policy particularly supports schemes that provide a balanced mix towards meeting the 
requirements for housing delivery, which is expected to have a significant positive effect on SA 
objective 1.  

5.22 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 11 as this policy supports 
regeneration of the town centre while respecting and enhancing the heritage assets.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.23 This policy option is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the 
Proposed Submission approach for the reasons described above.  . 

Policy 9: Supporting and Safeguarding the University of Northampton Waterside 
Campus 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
Proposed Submission: The role and contribution of Northampton University will be supported.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: This policy was formulated to ensure that any future educational 
related plans which the University wishes to promote will be supported. 
2: The University can themselves come forward with any plans and proposals they may have in the future 
and these will be determined in accordance with the development management principles on design and any 
other relevant and current policies.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this does not offer the degree of support and endorsement for 
any future University plans which may need to change in accordance with student demand. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools ++  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy +  0  

SA7: Town Centre +  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

238



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 46 March 2019 

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.24 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 3, as this policy is centred on 
supporting Northampton University through the safeguarding of the site for education purposes.  

5.25 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 6 and 7 as this policy supports 
improving connectivity to the town centre provided the schemes meet the design and sustainable 
construction requirements of the Draft Plan.  In addition, by supporting the University of 
Northampton, the economy of the area is likely to improve as jobs are likely to increase as well as 
attract more visitors to the area.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.26 This policy option notes that the University itself can create plans and proposals, but these would 
be determined in accordance with national policy, JCS and other development management 
policies in the Local Plan Part 2.  This policy option is expected to have negligible effects with 
against all of the SA objectives, as reliance on national policy and the JCS represent the baseline 
against which the effects of the Local Plan Part 2 are being assessed.  

 

Policy 10: Managing Hotel Growth  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Proposals for new hotel development will be supported in certain locations.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: A Hotel Study was completed in 2016 to inform the local plan.  The 
study recommended that this policy be formulated, to demonstrate support for hotel development within the 
town centre and the Enterprise Zone. 
2: The Council could opt for using the study as a justification for determining planning applications.  
Council’s reason for not preferring option: the policy carries more weight and will give investors the 
assurance of the Council’s support. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy ++  +  

SA7: Town Centre ++  +  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 

239



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 47 March 2019 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.27 This policy is expected to have a significant positive effect on SA objectives 6 and 7.  This is 
because developments for hotels will be supported in certain locations, one being the Town 
Centre, and will attract new leisure and business tourism.   

SA findings for Option 2 

5.28 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 6 and 7.  This is because lack of 
policy support would most likely mean that proposals are less likely to come forward. 

Policy 11: Development of Main Town Centre Uses 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
Proposed Submission: The Council supports the development of an appropriate mix of main town centre 
and residential uses in the town centre and central area.   
Council’s reason for preferring option: This policy seeks to reassert the sequential test and its application.  
This gives applicants and investors a clear steer on how and where this national requirement is to be 
applied, not just through policy but in the Policies Map.  The Retail Study 2018 provided some justifications 
for minor changes to the boundaries for the purposes of sequential testing. 
2: The national policy applies, but relying on the strategic plan will not make the application of the 
sequential test and the boundaries affected any clearer, particularly since updated evidence in the Retail 
Study 2018 advocated some minor changes to the policy boundaries.    
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing ++  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy ++  0  

SA7: Town Centre ++  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.29 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 1, 6 and 7, as this policy 
supports the development of an appropriate mix of main town centre and residential uses in the 
town centre and the Central Area which could provide for local employment opportunities and the 
diversification of the uses and the businesses on offer in the main employment areas.  

240



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 48 March 2019 

SA findings for Option 2 

5.30 This policy option is expected to have negligible effects against all of the SA objectives, as 
reliance on national policy and the JCS represent the baseline against which the effects of the 
Local Plan Part 2 are being assessed.  

Housing 

Policy 12: Housing and Other Housing Led Allocation 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
Proposed Submission: Proposals for allocated sites.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: This policy was formulated to confirm the sites which are allocated for 
housing and housing led development and to provide reassurance that the requirements of the JCS will be 
met. 
2: The policy could be simplified to state that housing requirements will be supported, without specifying 
which sites will deliver the schemes.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this would not provide the evidence that the requirements of the 
JCS will be met. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing ++ +  

SA2: Sustainable travel  N/A N/A  

SA3: Schools 0 0  

SA4: Health and well-being + +  

SA5: Crime 0 0  

SA6: Economy + +  

SA7: Town Centre N/A N/A  

SA8: Climate change mitigation - -  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity N/A N/A  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes N/A N/A  

SA11: Historic environment  N/A N/A  

SA12: Air quality - -  

SA13: Water  management - -  

SA14: Flood risk N/A N/A  

SA15: Soils & minerals N/A N/A  

SA16: Waste management  N/A N/A  

 
 SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.31 The housing requirement for 2011-2029 set for Northampton Borough by the JCS is 18,870 
dwellings.  This Local Plan Part 2 policy confirms the sites allocated to meet that need plus a 20% 
buffer on top of that part of the requirement that has not already been met in 2011-2018.  This 
buffer is required because of under-delivery against the JCS housing delivery trajectory during 
2011-2018. 

5.32 Policy 12 thereby provides assurance that the total housing requirement for 2011-2029 will still 
be met with significant positive effects in relation to SA objective 1.  Meeting the housing 
requirement will also make it easier for people, including employees, to find a suitable home in 

241



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 49 March 2019 

the Borough, with minor positive effects in relation to their health and wellbeing (SA objective 4) 
and the local economy (SA objective 6).   

5.33 The large scale of development proposed will result in more people living and working in the 
Borough and inevitably result in increased greenhouse gas emissions, increased air pollution from 
a higher volume of road traffic, and increased demand on water resources, resulting in minor 
negative effects in relation to SA objectives 8, 12 and 13.    

5.34 This scale of housing delivery is also likely to place pressure on many other aspects of the natural 
and built environment but most of the potential effects will depend on where the development 
takes places.  These effects are therefore assessed in relation to the individual allocations and 
reported elsewhere in this SA and marked as ‘N’A’ (not assessed) for Policy 12. 

SA findings for Option 2 

5.35 The sustainability effects of policy Option 2 are judged to be similar to those for the Proposed 
Submission approach except that the not specifying development sites reduces certainty of 
housing delivery, resulting in a minor positive rather than significant positive effect in relation to 
SA objective 1. 

Policy 13: Type and Mix of Housing  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Housing need will be met by providing a mix of dwelling types and sizes to meet 
current forecast accommodation needs.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: The Housing Market Study of 2017 provides a clear distinction 
between the types of housing which should be delivered by developers in order to meet housing needs.  This 
policy seeks to outline the requirements which will make it clear to planning applicants and developers about 
what needs to be provided. 
2: A generic policy, which may at the outset appear more flexible than prescriptive, can be prepared.  
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this is not considered to be effective or helpful as the level may 
be negotiated down.  This will result in the needs not being met. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing ++  +  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

242



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 50 March 2019 

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.36 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 1 as this policy provides for a 
range of housing types, including affordable housing, self-build and custom build housing, 
specialist accommodation and accessible housing, to meet the identified housing needs.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.37 This policy option is expected to have a minor positive effect in relation to SA objective 1 as this 
policy option could result in the needs not being met since it is more flexible than prescriptive.  

Policy 14: Delivering Houses in Multiple Occupation  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Houses in multiple occupation (HMOs) continue to contribute towards the 
Borough’s housing supply and perform a vital role within the community. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: The Houses in Multiple Occupation study 2018 was commissioned to 
inform the local plan.  The policy seeks to outline its recommendation to make sure that the requirements 
are set out in a clear and concise manner.  This will provide clarity for both planning applicants and property 
owners regarding the concentration of HMOs which is considered acceptable within the affected area.   
2: A policy could be prepared which does not provide a clear percentage and radius for HMOs.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: This could result in the concentration of HMOs to increase, leading 
to more issues for both occupants and neighbours with regard to amenity and wellbeing. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing ++  ++  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being +  -  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0 0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk +  +  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  +  +  

 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.38 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 1 as this policy supports the 
delivery of houses in multiple occupations (HMOs), provided that less than 10% of the dwellings 
within a 50 m radius of the application site are HMOs.  

243



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 51 March 2019 

5.39 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 4, 14 and 16.  This is because 
HMOs help to create, support and maintain a balanced, mixed and inclusive community which 
increases the health and wellbeing of its residents.  In addition, the policy states that the delivery 
of HMOs should not result in an increase in flood risk and should provide sufficient refuse storage.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.40 This policy is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the Proposed 
Submission approach for the reasons described above, however for SA objective 4 is expected to 
have minor negative effects for this option.  This is because without providing a clear percentage 
and radius for HMOs, development might be concentrated, leading to issues for both occupants 
and neighbours resulting in adverse effects on health and well-being.  

Economy 

Policy 15: Safeguarding Existing Employment Sites 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: The Council places significant weight on supporting economic growth and 
productivity.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: The Northampton Employment Land Study 2018 was prepared to 
inform the Local Plan Part 2.   The study recommended which sites should be safeguarded for employment 
purposes following detailed assessments of each site and an independent commercial property market 
assessment.  This policy and the Policies Map will ensure that planning applicants are clear about which sites 
will be safeguarded and how they are required to demonstrate and justify proposals which will depart from 
delivering and sustaining jobs. 
2: A generic policy could be prepared to state that employment use will be safeguarded on the existing 
sites.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this does not confirm where the allocated employment sites are.  
Nor will it demonstrate how people need to meet the requirements for viability. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy ++ +  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation - -  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality - -  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

244



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 52 March 2019 

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.41 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 6 as this policy supports 
safeguarding all existing employment sites to effectively and facilitate the creation of new jobs, 
attract inward investment and deliver economic prosperity to Northampton residents and 
investors.  

5.42 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 8 and 12 as this policy could 
attract more employees and customers to Northampton resulting in an increase of air pollution, 
traffic congestion and greenhouse gas emissions.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.43 This policy is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the Proposed 
Submission approach for the reasons described above, however SA objective 6 is expected to 
have minor positive effects against this option.  This is because without confirming where the 
allocated employment sites are the sites may not be placed in the best areas for economic 
prosperity. 

Policy 16: Supporting New Employment Developments and Schemes within and outside 
Safeguarded Sites 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: New employment related developments within the safeguarded employment 
sites will be positively welcomed.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: This policy seeks to support new employment developments within 
existing and outside safeguarded sites, to ensure that the JCS requirement for job creation is met.  The 
policy also specifies the strategic sites for clarity. 
2: A generic policy could be drafted which expresses support for employment schemes within and outside 
safeguarded sites.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this will not provide the direction necessary in terms of where the 
Council would most welcome additional employment opportunities. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy ++ +  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation - -  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality - -  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

245



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 53 March 2019 

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.44 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 6 as this policy supports the 
inclusion of new employment related developments within the safeguarded employment sites, 
which could create new jobs, attract inward investment and deliver economic prosperity to 
Northampton residents and investors.  

5.45 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 8 and 12 as this policy could 
attract more employees and customers to Northampton resulting in an increase of air pollution, 
traffic congestion and greenhouse gas emissions.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.46 This policy is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the Proposed 
Submission approach for the reasons described above; however SA objective 6 is expected to 
have minor positive effects against this option.  This is because without confirming the direction of 
the Council development coming forward may not be placed in the best areas for economic 
prosperity. 

Centres, services and facilities 

Policy 17: New Retail Developments and Retail Impact Assessments  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: The Council aims to maintain and enhance the vitality and viability of the 
borough’s town centre, district centres and local centres.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: The Retail Study 2018 updates the capacity requirements for 
Northampton’s comparison and convenience needs.  It also recommends the boundaries for district and local 
centres, and the Primary Shopping Area, based on updated assessments.  The policy seeks to specify 
support for retail schemes which will meet Northampton’s needs.  It also confirms the application of the 
sequential test. 
2: A generic policy could be prepared, allowing for more flexibility for new retail schemes.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this will not provide the necessary direction for development 
management purposes particularly in light of granting approval to meet the right capacity of retail.  It will 
not clarify the defined boundaries for sequential testing purposes. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy ++ +  

SA7: Town Centre ++ +  

SA8: Climate change mitigation -  -  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality - -  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

246



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 54 March 2019 

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.47 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 6 and 7 as this policy supports 
the provision of between 7,000 m2 and 8,900 m2 net of convenience retail floorspace and between 
5,300 m2 and 7,300 m2 net of convenience floorspace to meet forecast retail expenditure to 2029, 
which could create new jobs and deliver economic prosperity.  In addition, this policy directs retail 
growth to the centres, supporting the vitality of the Town Centres.   

5.48 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 8 and 12 as this policy could 
attract more visitors to Northampton resulting in an increase of air pollution, traffic congestion 
and greenhouse gas emissions.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.49 This policy is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the Proposed 
Submission approach for the reasons described above; however SA objectives 6 and 7 are 
expected to have minor positive effects against this option.  This is because a more flexible policy 
without the confirmation of the necessary direction could result in a fragmented and 
uncoordinated approach to retail development, possibly not in accordance with the sequential 
approach, and therefore reduce economic prosperity. 

Policy 18: Residential Development on Upper Floors 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Evidence shows that residential provision in the town centre would assist in 
introducing a resident customer base into these centres, increasing footfall, vitality and viability.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: Northampton’s designated centres are facing an increasing number of 
challenges.  By supporting residential accommodation on upper floors, the Council is encouraging more 
people to live in the town centre and other designated centres, therefore encouraging more people to 
contribute to the economy of the areas. 
2: No other option could be considered other than to not have a policy on this topic.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: This is not supported because upper floors could be converted for 
alternative uses apart from residential and minimise the number of opportunities to bring residents into the 
centres. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing ++  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being 0  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy + 0  

SA7: Town Centre +  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation -  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality -  0  

247



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 55 March 2019 

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.50 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 1, as this policy supports 
proposals that seek to deliver residential accommodation, in suitable locations, on upper floors in 
the town centre, district centres and local centres, contributing to housing supply to meet local 
needs.  

5.51 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 6 and 7, as this policy could 
increase footfall, vitality and viability in the town centre and therefore contributing to the 
economy of the area.  

5.52 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 8 and 12 as this policy could 
attract more residents and visitors to Northampton resulting in an increase of air pollution, traffic 
congestion and greenhouse gas emissions. 

SA findings for Option 2 

5.53 This policy option is expected to have negligible effects against all of the SA objectives, as 
reliance on national policy and the JCS represent the baseline against which the effects of the 
Local Plan Part 2 are being assessed. 

Policy 19: Neighbourhood Centres 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Supporting the retention of neighbourhood centres. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: This policy seeks to secure the retention of neighbourhood parades, 
which have a key role to play in meeting the day to day needs of people within their catchment areas.  Peter 
Brett Associates, in their capacity as a critical friend for the Retail Centres Study in 2013, followed by 
updated assessments by the Council in 2016, confirmed that these parades continue to play a positive role 
in people’s lives and in the community. A criteria based policy supporting their retention is considered to be 
justified. 
2: The Council could formulate a generic policy which supports the retention of the parades  
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this will not provide the strength necessary to prevent the loss of 
neighbourhood parades without acceptable evidence. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being ++  +  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy +  +  

SA7: Town Centre 0 0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation +  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

248



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 56 March 2019 

SA12: Air quality +  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.54 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 4, as this policy supports the 
retention of neighbourhood centres which provide vital space for communities to interact and 
come together.  As such, positive implications for health and well-being are likely.  

5.55 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 6, as this policy could retain 
neighbourhood centres which provide local economic opportunities and therefore contribute to the 
economy of the area.  In addition, minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 
8 and 12, as this policy provides retail and other facilities close to where people live, which should 
reduce the need to travel.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.56 This policy option is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the 
Proposed Submission approach for the reasons described above; however SA objective 4 is 
expected to have minor positive effects against this option.  This is because by not being based on 
robust evidence, this policy option may not have the desired effect and may, overall, undermine 
the importance of neighbourhood centres on health and well-being.  

Policy 20: Community Services and Facilities 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: The need for community services and facilities can be met in a variety of ways 
including extension of existing facilities, maximising the opportunities offered by vacant units, conversion of 
buildings and from new developments.   
Council’s reason for preferring option: This criteria-based policy seeks to endorse support for new and 
extended community facilities.  Evidence base, including the Northampton Faith Study, concluded that with 
an increase in the number of Northampton’s population, and diversity, there is a need to cater for their 
requirements.   
2: There is the option to not specify any criteria in the policy and offer support to community facilities.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this is not considered to be acceptable because the facility 
provided may not necessarily meet the requirements of the community.  The proposals could also potentially 
cause adverse impacts on the road networks. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  ++  ++  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being ++  ++  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation +  +  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

249



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 57 March 2019 

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality +  +  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.57 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2 and 4, as this policy 
supports proposals for new or extended community facilities that consider accessibility by public 
transport and other more sustainable modes of transport, such as cycling and walking.  As such, 
this policy will help to promote sustainable transport links to community facilities, reduce air 
pollution and greenhouse gas emissions from vehicles, and facilitate improved health and 
wellbeing through encouraging greater physical activity and the creation of new or extended 
community facilities.  

5.58 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 8 and 12 as this policy supports 
the inclusion of more sustainable modes of transport within new community facilities proposals 
and they must consider residential amenity of the area. 

SA findings for Option 2 

5.59 This policy option is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the 
Proposed Submission approach for the reasons described above. 

Policy 21: Childcare Provision  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: To ensure the supply of childcare within Northampton is strategically managed, 
and to ensure that there is sufficient, high quality, flexible childcare that is affordable and meets the needs 
of the parents and carers.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: With an expected increase in the number of jobs, and therefore 
employees, it is important to ensure that childcare facilities are catered for.  Northamptonshire County 
Council provided the evidence that Northampton, and other Northamptonshire authorities, are providing 
childcare facilities at a rate below the regional and national rates.  This policy therefore not only seeks to 
support additional childcare provision in Northampton but to support them in the right location. 
2: There is an option to prepare a policy which is generic and not criteria based.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this is likely to cause problems at development management 
because there will be a lack of clarity in terms of what is considered acceptable and in which location.  As 
childcare facilities can cause traffic issues, lack of policy direction is not supported. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  ++  +  

SA3: Schools ++  ++  

SA4: Health and well-being ++  +  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

250



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 58 March 2019 

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  -  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  -  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.60 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2 and 4, as this policy ensures 
that childcare premises are within sustainable locations, with good public transport facilities, 
access to cycling and walking routes, and away from major roads.  As such, this policy will help to 
promote sustainable transport links to childcare facilities, reduce air pollution and greenhouse gas 
emissions from vehicles, and facilitate improved health and wellbeing through encouraging 
greater physical activity and through the creation of accessible and affordable childcare facilities.   

5.61 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 3 as this policy supports the 
increased use of current educational establishments as childcare facilities.  In addition, childcare 
facilities provide pre-school education.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.62 This policy option is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objective 3 as the 
Proposed Submission approach for the reasons described above; however SA objectives 2 and 4 
are expected to have minor positive effects against this option.  This is because by not including 
criteria, this policy option will not have the same effect and may, overall, undermine the 
importance of sustainable travel and health and well-being.  

5.63 Minor negative effects are also expected against SA objectives 8 and 12 as this policy option 
would not ensure that childcare facilities are in sustainable and acceptable locations, therefore 
increased air pollution, traffic congestion and greenhouse gas emissions is likely.   

Policy 22: Sites for Burial Space 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Policy safeguards land for cemetery extensions at Land adjoining Kingsthorpe 
cemetery and Land adjoining Dallington cemetery.  Northampton’s population has grown significantly from 
212,500 (2011) to 225,500 (2016).  This growth is set to continue, with the West Northamptonshire JCS’s 
target of 18,870 homes to be delivered in Northampton by 2029.  This means that demand for burial space 
and cremations will also increase over the plan period. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: The 2018 Burial Provision Study, used to inform the local plan, 
provides recommendation on the sites which should be allocated for additional burial space to meet the 
needs of the population.  This policy seeks to allocate the sites for this provision as well as ensure that 
adequate facilities are provided on site. 
2: The option is to state that the Council will support these provisions without specifying where.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this will not give the necessary assurance to the community that 
their needs will be met since there will be no commitment to any sites for this specific use.  
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  +  ?  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

251



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 59 March 2019 

SA4: Health and well-being +/--?  +  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation +  ?  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity --?  +  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  +  ?  

SA12: Air quality -?  ?  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals --  ?  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.64 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2 and 8, as the locations of the two 
Cemeteries, and each of the proposed extensions, are within close proximity to two types of 
sustainable transport links.  As such, access to sustainable modes of transport is available within 
the area.  

5.65 By planning for the future of burial spaces this could also result in a minor positive effect for SA 
objective 4 as assurance of adequate local provision for burial space would be likely to reduce a 
potential source of stress.  However, a significant negative effect with uncertainty is also identified 
in relation to SA objective 4 because the proposed extensions of Dallington Cemetery fall within 
allotments and community gardens and it is unclear from whether the policy requirement to give 
consideration to greenspace and amenity values would preserve these facilities. 

5.66 Similarly, a significant negative effect with uncertainty is also identified in relation to SA objective 
9 as a proposed extension of Dallington Cemetery is within a Local Wildlife Site (Dallington Brook 
Field) and it is unclear from the policy requirement to give consideration to ecological values, 
whether this would preserve this asset.  Additionally, the site is adjacent to Dallington Old Tennis 
Courts & Ponds Local Wildlife Site, with a potential for adverse effects on this.   

5.67 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 11, as neither allocation overlays 
any designated heritage assets and the policy supports the consideration of heritage values when 
extending burial spaces. 

5.68 Minor negative effects with uncertainty are expected in relation to SA objective 12 as the 
proposed extensions of Dallington Cemetery could increase the proportion of private vehicles 
traveling to and from the site.  Increased traffic could adversely impact the Zone 3 St James' 
Road AQMA since it leads into the centre of Northampton.  However, these effects are uncertain 
since it depends on which routes are actually used and the degree to which modes of sustainable 
travel are used. 

5.69 Negligible effects are expected in relation to SA objective 14.  Although a portion of the Dallington 
Cemetery allocation is within Flood Zones 2 and 3 and at very high risk of groundwater flood risk, 
it is assumed that burial space represents a water-compatible development, similar to amenity 
open space.  

5.70 Significant negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 15 as the allocated extension 
of Dallington Cemetery is within Grade 3 agricultural land, of which more than 1 ha would be lost 
to development for burial space.  In addition, all of the allocated extension at Kingsthorpe 

252



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 60 March 2019 

cemetery is within a ‘Preventing Land Use Conflict Consultation Buffer’ relating to crushed rock 
extraction. 

SA findings for Option 2 

5.71 This policy option is expected to have mainly uncertain effects where effects are dependent on the 
location of development as the option does not identify specific sites.  A minor positive effect is 
expected in relation to SA objective 4 for the same reasons as for the proposed policy. 

Built and natural environmental assets 

Policy 23: Sustaining and Enhancing Existing and Supporting the Creation of 
Northampton’s Green Infrastructure 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: New development must ensure that existing green infrastructure assets will be 
protected, managed, maintained and connected to enhance their multi-functionality. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: The Green Infrastructure Plan 2016 was commissioned to inform the 
preparation of the Local Plan.  The policy seeks to ensure that any proposals will contribute to the 
enhancement or creation of green infrastructure, which itself will improve people’s health and wellbeing as 
well as have a positive impact on the environment and climate change.  The policy sets out the criteria and 
threshold. 
2: A generic policy could be prepared.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this does not however provide clarity to applicants as to whether 
they should meet this requirement and how. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being ++  +  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation ++  +  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity ++  +  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes ++  +  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality ++  +  

SA13: Water  management ++  +  

SA14: Flood risk ++  +  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.72 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 9 and 10 as this policy 
encourages the protection and enhancement of existing green infrastructure and the creation of 

253



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 61 March 2019 

additional green infrastructure projects.  As such, by enhancing green infrastructure in 
Northampton this could enhance the landscape and townscape and protect biodiversity.  

5.73 Significant positive effects are also expected in relation to SA objectives 4, 8, 12, 13 and 14, as 
enhancing green infrastructure is likely to have a number of associated benefits including 
improving the quality of the landscape and water quality, reducing the risk of flooding by reducing 
surface water runoff, reducing air pollution and helping to create a healthy living and working 
environment.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.74 This policy option is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the 
Proposed Submission approach for the reasons described above; however the SA objectives are 
expected to have minor positive effects against this option.  This is because by not including 
specific details, this policy option is less certain to have the same positive effect. 

Policy 24: Providing Open Spaces 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: New development must ensure that open spaces defined on the Policies Map are 
sustained or enhanced.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: The Open Space Report 2018 provides the standards required to 
ensure that the needs of existing and future residents in terms of the various open space typologies will be 
met through development proposals that come forward.  The policy seeks to ensure that these requirements 
are met.   
2: A generic policy supporting the delivery of open spaces in new developments could be prepared.  
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this does not provide planning applicants with the clarity needed 
to ensure that the right quantity is provided, nor does it assist in negotiating developer contribution in an 
effective manner. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being ++  +  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation +/-  +/-  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity +  +  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes +  +  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality +/-  +/-  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 

254



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 62 March 2019 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.75 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 4 as this policy requires all new 
housing development of 0.2 ha or sites accommodating 6 dwellings or more to contribute to open 
space provision.  As such, increasing provision and enhancing open space helps to create a 
healthy living environment and improves quality of life for all.  

5.76 Minor positive effects are also expected in relation to SA objectives 9 and 10, as provision of open 
space could provide habitats to support biodiversity and enhance the quality and character of the 
townscape and landscape.  

5.77 Mixed minor negative and minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 8 and 
12 as this policy could attract more residents and visitors to Northampton resulting in an increase 
of air pollution, traffic congestion and greenhouse gas emissions. However, by providing 
additional open space this could encourage people to use local open space rather than travelling 
elsewhere.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.78 This policy option is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the 
Proposed Submission approach for the reasons described above; however the SA objectives are 
expected to have minor positive effects against this option.  This is because by not including 
specific quantities, this policy option is less certain to have the same positive effect. 

Policy 25: Supporting and Enhancing Biodiversity  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: The Council will expect major development proposals to conserve, enhance and 
increase the net gain for biodiversity. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: There is no option 2.  This is a new requirement which local 
authorities are required to cater for. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed   

SA1: Housing 0   

SA2: Sustainable travel  0   

SA3: Schools 0   

SA4: Health and well-being +   

SA5: Crime 0   

SA6: Economy 0   

SA7: Town Centre 0   

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0   

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity ++   

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes +   

SA11: Historic environment  0   

SA12: Air quality 0   

SA13: Water  management 0   

SA14: Flood risk 0   

SA15: Soils & minerals 0   

SA16: Waste management  0   

 

255



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 63 March 2019 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.79 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 9 as this policy requires all 
major development proposals to conserve, enhance and increase the net gain for biodiversity, 
particularly for Northampton’s SSSI and SPA and Ramsar site at the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
and LNRs and LWSs, thereby helping to protect biodiversity by preserving the ecological integrity 
of these sites.   

5.80 Minor positive effects are also expected in relation to SA objectives 4 and 10, as protecting and 
enhancing biodiversity help to protect the biodiversity sites as a recreational and landscape 
assets.  

Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: All new development proposals within 3 km of the SPA must demonstrate that 
their proposals will not contribute to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the bird species. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: Natural England recommended that this policy be formulated, even 
though the JCS has a policy in place on this, through the local plan consultation exercise.  A policy has been 
formulated to reinforce the significance of protecting the bird species within the SPA.    
2: The option is to ignore Natural England’s advice and rely on the JCS.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this is not considered acceptable because the Northampton Local 
Plan needs to reinforce and strengthen the requirement for mitigation measures, particularly in light of 
additional developments that will be forthcoming in the vicinity of the area. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being +  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity ++  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes +  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.81 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 9 as this policy requires all new 
development proposals within 3 km of the SPA to demonstrate that their proposals will not 
contribute to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the bird species for which the site is 
designated, thereby helping to protect biodiversity by preserving the ecological integrity of the 
site.   

256



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 64 March 2019 

5.82 Minor positive effects are also expected in relation to SA objectives 4 and 10, as protecting and 
enhancing biodiversity help to protect the biodiversity sites as a recreational and landscape 
assets.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.83 This policy option is expected to have negligible effects against all of the SA objectives, as 
reliance on national policy and the JCS represent the baseline against which the effects of the 
Local Plan Part 2 are being assessed. 

Policy 27: Protection and Enhancements of Designated and Non-designated Heritage 
Assets 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: The Council will expect development proposals to conserve and enhance the 
historic environment and designated and non-designated heritage assets, including historic landscapes. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: Northampton is a compact town with a vast number of heritage 
assets.  To ensure that any development proposals will not result in detrimental impacts on these assets, 
the policy seeks to ensure that the proposals conserve and enhance these assets.  The Landscape Character 
Assessment 2018 provides details on historic landscapes.  
2: The Council could rely on the JCS’s heritage policies to determine planning applications.  Council’s reason 
for not preferring option: this is not considered acceptable because a local Northampton based policy will 
strengthen this requirement and ensure that the assets, and their significance, are protected as much as 
possible. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being +  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes ++  0  

SA11: Historic environment  ++  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.84 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 10 and 11 as this policy 
requires that development proposals: demonstrate a clear understanding of the significance of the 
asset and its setting, and the impact the scheme will have on the significance; consider and 
incorporate this understanding to demonstrate how the scheme preserves and/or enhances the 
asset; provide a clear and convincing justification for any harm or loss of an asset; and are 

257



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 65 March 2019 

consistent with guidance from Historic England.  It also supports high quality proposals which 
positively consider the local distinctiveness of Northampton.   

5.85 Minor positive effects are also expected in relation to SA objective 4, as this policy supports 
proposals that increase and/or improve accessibility to heritage assets.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.86 This policy option is expected to have negligible effects against all of the SA objectives, as 
reliance on national policy and the JCS represent the baseline against which the effects of the 
Local Plan Part 2 are being assessed. 

Movement 

Policy 28: Designing Sustainable Transport and Travel 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: The Council will support planned growth and existing development with 
appropriate transport infrastructure, including for sustainable modes of travel and safety improvements.   
Council’s reason for preferring option: With the huge amount of growth expected in Northampton within the 
plan period, it is important that a policy is formulated which seeks to secure the appropriate infrastructure 
for the areas affected as well as encourage sustainable travel and not rely heavily on cars.  This policy will 
also contribute towards reducing the adverse impacts of climate change.  
2: There is an opportunity to rely on the JCS which provides a clear development management policy on this 
matter. 
Council’s reason for not preferring option: with the amount of houses and other developments that 
Northampton is expected to deliver, there is a need to specify how these schemes will be supported and 
what they are expected to deliver to ensure that future and existing residents / investors / visitors are able 
to opt for sustainable travel both for climate change and for their wellbeing. 
SA Objective Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  ++  0  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being ++  0  

SA5: Crime +  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation ++  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality ++  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

258



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 66 March 2019 

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.87 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2, 4, 8 and 12 as this policy 
ensures that developments incorporate, demonstrate and achieve sustainable travel principles, 
including improving accessibility by, and usability of, public transport, maximise opportunities for 
integrated secure and safe walking and cycling routes and to promote sustainable travel to day-to 
day destinations.  As such, this policy will help to promote sustainable transport links, reduce 
pollution and greenhouse emissions from vehicles, and facilitate improved health and well-being 
through encouraging greater physical activity.   

5.88 Minor positive effects are also expected in relation to SA objective 5, as this policy supports 
developments that secure a high quality design of the street scene which creates a safe, secure 
and pleasant environment.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.89 This policy option is expected to have negligible effects against all of the SA objectives, as 
reliance on national policy and the JCS represent the baseline against which the effects of the 
Local Plan Part 2 are being assessed.  

Policy 29: Highway Network and Safety  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: When considering the design of new developments, there is a need to take into 
consideration the impacts on the highway network in terms of safety. 
Council’s reason for preferring option: This policy seeks to ensure that any developments will not have an 
adverse impact on the road network, sufficient to compromise highway safety.   The amount of growth 
expected can potentially cause a problem, without proper and effective management of impacts and 
mitigation. Since safety on the road network is very important, there is no option 2.  A policy addressing this 
is necessary.  
SA Objective 1. Proposed   

SA1: Housing 0   

SA2: Sustainable travel  0   

SA3: Schools 0   

SA4: Health and well-being +   

SA5: Crime 0   

SA6: Economy 0   

SA7: Town Centre 0   

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0   

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0   

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0   

SA11: Historic environment  0   

SA12: Air quality 0   

SA13: Water  management 0   

SA14: Flood risk 0   

SA15: Soils & minerals 0   

SA16: Waste management  0   

259



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 67 March 2019 

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.90 Minor positive effects are also expected in relation to SA objective 4, as this policy, subject to 
consideration of all other relevant plan policies and material considerations, supports 
developments that are designed to allow safe and suitable means of access and site operation.  As 
such, this policy will help to promote safety therefore improving health and well-being.  

Policy 30: Transport Schemes and Mitigation 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: In order to deliver a high quality, accessible sustainable transport network, the 
Council will require developers to fund and financially contribute towards a range of transport schemes.  The 
policy also signals the Council’s intention to safeguard land for transport and sustainable travel.  
Council’s reason for preferring option: This policy seeks to ensure that developers fund and contribute to 
transport schemes, which are necessary to support the population and development growth within 
Northampton. These schemes are outlined in the latest Infrastructure Delivery Plan.  This confirms to 
developers what and why these contributions are needs. 
2: A generic policy can be formulated  
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this will not provide the necessary direction and justification for 
potential applicants.  This can potentially lengthen the time needed to negotiate and justify developer 
contributions, which itself could result in the delay of the scheme. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing 0  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  ++  +  

SA3: Schools 0  0  

SA4: Health and well-being ++  +  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre 0  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation ++  +  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality ++  +  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.91 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2, 4, 8 and 12 as this policy 
requires developers to fund and financially contribute to a range of transport schemes to mitigate 
the impacts of developments and to ensure that they create a high quality, sustainable, accessible 
development that is well connected to the rest of the Borough.  It also signals the Council’s 
intention to safeguard land for transport and sustainable travel, once their precise alignment has 
been defined.  As such, this policy will help to promote sustainable transport links, reduce 

260



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 68 March 2019 

pollution and greenhouse emissions from vehicles, and facilitate improved health and well-being 
through encouraging active travel.   

SA findings for Option 2 

5.92 This policy option is expected to have the same scores in relation to the SA objectives as the 
Proposed Submission approach for the reasons described above; however the SA objectives are 
expected to have minor positive effects against this option.  This is because a generic policy will 
not provide the desired direction and justification for sustainable transport schemes; therefore 
this policy option will not have the same positive effect. 

Policy 31: Parking Standards  
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: Planning permission will be granted for proposals that meet the County Council’s 
parking standards and any replacement standards formulated over the plan period.   
Council’s reason for preferring option: The County Council adopted a Supplementary Planning Document 
containing parking standards in 2016.  It is important for this to be supported in the local plan until such 
time as new standards are formulated.  Additional requirements affecting electric and hybrid vehicles are 
also included in the policy to reflect the evidence found in Northampton’s Low Emission Strategy 2017. 
There is no option 2.  Parking facilities need to be provided and these standards are required.  There are no 
other options to supporting electric and hybrid vehicles since this is currently a Government objective. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed   

SA1: Housing 0   

SA2: Sustainable travel  +   

SA3: Schools 0   

SA4: Health and well-being 0   

SA5: Crime 0   

SA6: Economy 0   

SA7: Town Centre 0   

SA8: Climate change mitigation +   

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0   

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes 0   

SA11: Historic environment  0   

SA12: Air quality +   

SA13: Water  management 0   

SA14: Flood risk 0   

SA15: Soils & minerals 0   

SA16: Waste management  0   

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.93 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2, 8 and 12 as this policy requires 
new residential and commercial developments to cater for the provision and use of electric and 
hybrid vehicles.  As such, this policy will help to promote sustainable transport links and reduce 
pollution and greenhouse emissions from vehicles.  

261



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 69 March 2019 

Infrastructure 

Policy 32: Infrastructure Delivery and Contributions 
Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects 
 
Summary of policy options: 
1. Proposed Submission: All new development proposals will be required to contribute towards the 
delivery of any new infrastructure associated with and resulting from the scheme.   
Council’s reason for preferring option: This policy seeks to ensure that developer contributions will be 
expected to be delivered in a timely manner.  
2: The alternative option is to rely on the JCS policy on infrastructure delivery.   
Council’s reason for not preferring option: this is not considered to be acceptable because there will be a 
need to ensure that the right level of developer contributions is secured for Northampton based schemes. 
SA Objective 1. Proposed  2  

SA1: Housing ++  0  

SA2: Sustainable travel  0  0  

SA3: Schools ++  0  

SA4: Health and well-being ++  0  

SA5: Crime 0  0  

SA6: Economy 0  0  

SA7: Town Centre +  0  

SA8: Climate change mitigation 0  0  

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity 0  0  

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes +  0  

SA11: Historic environment  0  0  

SA12: Air quality 0  0  

SA13: Water  management 0  0  

SA14: Flood risk 0  0  

SA15: Soils & minerals 0  0  

SA16: Waste management  0  0  

 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1) 

5.94 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 1, 3, 4 and 6 as this policy 
requires all new development proposals to contribute towards the delivery of any new 
infrastructure associated with and resulting from the scheme.  As such, this policy will help 
provide for the infrastructure needs associated with new development, such as schools, affordable 
housing, and healthcare facilities.  

5.95 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 7 and 10.  This is because this 
policy could help to enhance the town centre and the townscape.  

SA findings for Option 2 

5.96 This policy option is expected to have negligible effects against all of the SA objectives, as 
reliance on national policy and the JCS represent the baseline against which the effects of the 
Local Plan Part 2 are being assessed. 

 

262



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 70 March 2019 

6 SA findings for site specific allocations and 
reasonable alternatives  

6.1 The Council’s approach to identifying reasonable alternative site options and for assessing these 
and selecting preferred sites for allocation in the Proposed Submission Local Plan has already 
been described in Chapter 2.  Chapter 2 also describes how the SA ran alongside and informed 
this site selection process and the methodology used in the SA of sites. 

6.2 This chapter presents the results of the SA of sites and is structured as follows: 

• Reasonable alternative (unallocated) sites - results of the SA of the reasonable alternative 
sites, based on the principle of development within the site boundary and assessing each site 
individually on its own merits. 

• Allocated sites - results of the SA of the allocated sites on the same basis and using the same 
assessment assumptions and methodology as for the SA of reasonable alternative sites. 

• Allocation policies - results of the SA of the site-specific allocation policies, taking the results 
of the SA of the principle of development of the related allocated sites as a starting point and 
then considering how these are modified by the requirements for the site set out within the 
allocation policy. 

SA results for reasonable alternative (unallocated) and allocated 
sites 

6.3 A summary of the SA results for the reasonable alternative sites that were not allocated by the 
Council are presented in Table 6.1 (sites considered for residential use) and Table 6.2 (sites 
considered for ‘commercial’ i.e. employment use).   

6.4 The SA results for the sites allocated by the Council are summarised in Table 6.3 (sites considered 
for residential use) and Table 6.4 (sites considered for ‘commercial’ i.e. employment use).   

6.5 The SA results for the total area of allocated and reasonable alternative sites are provided in 
Table 6.5 (sites considered for residential use) and Table 6.6 (sites considered for ‘commercial’ 
i.e. employment use).   

6.6 As described above, the SA of both the unallocated and allocated sites was carried out using the 
same methodology and assumptions, allowing direct comparison between the two sets of results.  
The further effects of the requirements of site-specific allocation policies on the SA scores for 
allocated sites are set out later in this chapter. 

6.7 An overview of the locations of all reasonable alternative sites, both allocated and unallocated, is 
provided by Figure 6.1.  A series of figures, one for each assessment criterion, then illustrates the 
SA results achieved by all reasonable alternative sites, both allocated and unallocated.  In 
addition to the site SA scores against an assessment criterion, each map also shows the 
environmental constraints or other features relevant to the GIS-based assessment against that 
criterion.  Figure 6.2 to Figure 6.23 show the SA results for the sites considered for residential 
use.  These are followed by Figure 6.24 to Figure 6.41 which provide the same information for 
sites considered for employment use.   

6.8 A detailed assessment sheet for each site is provided in Appendix 7.

263



South
Northamptonshire

District

Daventry
District

Wellingborough
District (B)

35

114

51

109

16

85
62

8

80

48

60

46

120

14

57

12

59

78

10

97

14455

90

32

124

137

115

143

56

91

42

82

15

68

121

135
136

101

72

128

100

102

127

41

106

22

11

139

53
66

79

70
71

76

10533

37

5

89

123

138

116

52

40

146
2

3

99

4

110

95

74

26

104
131

132

43

138

20

125

34

23

67

122

58

63
140

65
69

17

118

133

30

86

94

113

29

7

1

145

18

27

73

126

28

107

81

44

49

92

108

39

61

47

6

134

112

137

87
84

64

103

13

129

21

117
111

130

19

25

98

31

36

24

75

50

119

38

77

9
96

83
88

54

45

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIG6_1_5823_2019r2_SitesOverview_A4L  21/03/2019
Map Scale @ A4:   1:35,000

Source: Northampton BC, LUC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Other Local Authority
Allocated residential site
Allocated employment site
Unallocated residential site
Unallocated employment site

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.1: Site options
subject to SA

35

51

109

8562

80 93
48

60

46

57 59

78

97

55

90

56

91

42

82
101

72

100

41

106

71

52

99

110

95

74

86

94

73

81
49

92

39

61

112

64

98

38

77

96

83
88

54

1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
8 - LAA0208
9 - LAA0629r
10 - LAA0629c
11 - LAA1079
12 - LAA0870
13 - LAA1140
14 - LAA1112
15 - LAA1027
16 - LAA0594c
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
32 - LAA0169c
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
35 - LAA0180
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
46 - LAA1005
47 - LAA1131
48 - LAA0333c
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
51 - LAA0288c
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
55 - LAA0665c
56 - LAA0665r
57 - LAA0931
58 - LAA1108
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
61 - LAA1010r
62 - LAA0818
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
78 - LAA1113c
79 - LAA1050
80 - LAA0598
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
85 - LAA1134c
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
90 - LAA0744c
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
93 - LAA0336c
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
97 - LAA0335c
98 - LAA0903

99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078
102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
109 - LAA0915c
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
114 - LAA0590
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
120 - LAA1101
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
124 - LAA0593c
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
137 - LAA0326c
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
144 - LAA0615
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Allocated sites are shown in bold.

264



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 72 March 2019 

Table 6.1 SA results for reasonable alternative (unallocated) residential sites 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA0153 Lex Autocare & Kwikfit 0.24 8 + ++ ++ - - + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? -- - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 --? 

LAA0169r Railway Line 2.23 71 + + ++ - + + - 0 0 0 + ++ - -- -- -? 0 -- - -- 0 -- - --? 0 0 

LAA0181 Ransome Road/ Nunn 
Mills Road 15.93 400 ++ ++ ++ - + ++ - 0 0 + ++ ++ -- -- ? --? -? -- - - ++ -- 0 0 0 -- 

LAA0204 The Farm, The Green 2.17 100 ++ + ++ + - + 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 0 -- --? 0 - 0 

LAA0326r Orchard Hill 1.49 47 + + ++ + - + 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- N/A -- -? -? 0 0 - + 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA0327 Martins Farm 3.65 115 ++ - + -- - + 0 0 0 0 - + -- - -- -? 0 0 0 0 0 -- --? 0 0 --? 

LAA0593r North of Bedford Road 19.89 398 ++ - + - - + - 0 0 0 - + -- - -- --? 0 0 - - 0 -- --? --? 0 --? 

LAA0659 Great Meadow Road 0.82 26 + + ++ + - + - 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0665r 190-199 St Andrews 
Road 0.14 5 + ++ ++ ++ + + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ - N/A N/A -? 0 - - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

LAA0673 Delapre Middle School 
Annexe 0.50 20 + ++ ++ + - + 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ - N/A N/A -? 0 -- - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0674 Depot Cotton End 0.70 28 + ++ ++ - - + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? -- - 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0675 GTMR Depot Cotton End 
East 0.36 16 + ++ ++ - - + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? 0 -- - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

265



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 73 March 2019 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA0689 Nene Enterprise Centre, 
Freehold Street 0.36 14 + ++ ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0740 Exeter Place/ Kettering 
Road 0.33 13 + ++ ++ - + ++ - 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0744r 
The Ridings Arcade, 61-
63 St Giles Street (upper 
floors) 

0.14 21 + ++ ++ - + ++ 0 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0749 Compton House, 83-85 
Abington Street 0.06 94 + ++ ++ - + ++ - 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0767 46 Spencer Street 0.14 25 + ++ ++ - - + 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ - N/A N/A -? -? - - 0 N/A N/A 0 -? 0 --? 

LAA0771 
Jewsons and Continental 
Coachworks, Gladstone 
Road 

0.87 31 + ++ ++ ++ + + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 - N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

LAA0827 Bus Depot Cotton End 0.22 8 + ++ ++ - + + - 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? -- - 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0831 Perrett Scrap Cotton End 0.17 8 + ++ ++ - - + - 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A -- -? 0 -- - 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

LAA1023 East Island 0.42 42 + ++ ++ - + ++ 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1024 Great Houghton 
Independent School 6.92 240 ++ - + -- - + - 0 0 0 - + -- - -- -? 0 0 0 0 ++ -- --? -? 0 --? 

LAA1027 Harlestone Road 2.80 71 + - ++ + - ++ - 0 0 0 - ++ - -- ? --? 0 0 0 0 0 -- --? 0 0 0 

LAA1033 Toms Close 0.52 16 + - + + - + 0 0 0 0 - + - N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

266



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 74 March 2019 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA1050 Queen's Crescent 0.15 6 + - ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 - ++ 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1054 Land adj to Treetops in 
Goldings 0.13 5 + + ++ - - + 0 0 0 0 + ++ - N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1055 
Land on the corner of 
Norman Road/ 
Wellingborough Road 

0.13 5 + - ++ - + + - 0 0 0 - ++ -- N/A N/A -? 0 0 -- 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1059B Land off Birds Hill Road 0.31 12 + + ++ ++ + ++ 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1059C Land off Birds Hill Road 0.15 5 + + ++ ++ + ++ 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1063 Land adj Flats in 
Newnham Road 2.35 73 + + ++ - + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 0 -- - 0 -- 0 0 0 0 

LAA1064 Land off Eastern Avenue 
North 0.22 8 + - ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 - ++ 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1075 North Oval 0.16 8 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1078 Land at Chapel Place 0.08 12 + + ++ - + ++ - 0 0 ? + ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1079 Ryehill Estate 1.04 32 + + ++ - - ++ 0 0 0 0 + ++ - -- N/A -? 0 0 0 - + - --? 0 0 --? 

LAA1080 Duston (north of 
Hopping Hill School) 0.15 8 + + ++ + + ++ 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

 

  

267



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 75 March 2019 

Table 6.2 SA results for reasonable alternative (unallocated) employment sites 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA0169c Railway Line 2.23 0 0 + 0 -? 0 ++ 0 + - -- -- -? 0 -- - -- 0 -- - --? 0 0 

LAA0326c Orchard Hill 1.49 0 0 + 0 -? 0 ++ 0 + -- N/A -- -? -? 0 0 - + 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA0593c North of Bedford Road 19.89 0 0 + 0 -? 0 ++ 0 + -- - -- --? 0 0 - - 0 -- --? --? 0 --? 

LAA0615 Crow Lane North 2.92 0 0 - 0 -? 0 ++ 0 - -- - ? -? 0 -- - - 0 -- -- --? 0 -- 

LAA0665c 190-199 St Andrews 
Road 0.14 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 + 0 ++ - N/A N/A -? 0 - - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

LAA0744c 
The Ridings Arcade, 61-
63 St Giles Street (upper 
floors) 

0.14 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 + ? ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

 

 

 

  

268



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 76 March 2019 

Table 6.3 SA results for allocated residential sites 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA0168 Rowtree Road 6.06 131 ++ -- + -- - + - 0 0 0 -- + 0 - - -? 0 0 0 0 0 -- --? --? 0 0 

LAA0171 Quinton Road 1.16 19 + + ++ - + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 - 0 - 0 -- --? --? 0 0 

LAA0174 Ransome Road Gateway 0.15 6 + ++ ++ - - + - 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? -- 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

LAA0195 Hunsbury School, 
Hunsbury Hill 2.82 50 + ++ ++ + + + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- -- - --? 0 0 0 - 0 -- --? 0 0 0 

LAA0205 Parklands Middle School, 
Devon Way 5.39 132 ++ - ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 - ++ - -- - --? 0 0 0 0 ++ -- 0 0 0 --? 

LAA0288r Railway Station car park 2.12 68 + ++ ++ ++ + + - 0 0 ? ++ ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 --? 

LAA0328 Cattle Market Road 1.31 42 + ++ ++ - + ++ - 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? -- - - ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA0333r Castle Station Railfreight 5.68 200 ++ ++ ++ ++ + ++ - 0 0 + ++ ++ 0 - ? --? -? - - - ++ -- 0 0 0 -- 

LAA0335r Great Russell Street / 
Chronicle & Echo North 0.88 28 + ++ ++ - + ++ 0 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0336r Chronicle & Echo South 1.17 19 + ++ ++ - + ++ - 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA0338 Countess Road 2.49 33 + ++ ++ ++ - + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? -- - -- ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA0403 Studland Road 
Allotments 2.30 74 + ++ ++ - + + 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- -- -- -? -? - 0 - N/A N/A - 0 0 -- 

269



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 77 March 2019 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA0496 57 Artizan Road 0.05 10 + ++ ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0508 Fishponds Road 2.46 20 + + ++ - + ++ - 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 - 0 - 0 -- --? 0 0 0 

LAA0594r Sixfields East 10.18 255 ++ ++ ++ - + + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ - - ? --? -? 0 0 - ++ -- --? -? - -- 

LAA0629r British Timken Site 5.83 140 ++ + ++ + + ++ 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 ++ 0 --? -? 0 0 - ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA0657 Fraser Road 4.37 140 ++ + ++ + + + - 0 0 0 + ++ 0 -- - --? 0 0 - 0 0 -- 0 0 0 --? 

LAA0666 171 - 180 St Andrews 
Road 0.16 22 + ++ ++ - + + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ - N/A N/A -? -? - - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

LAA0672 Tunnel Hill Cottages, 
Rothersthorpe Road 4.75 139 ++ ++ ++ ++ + ++ 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ - - 0 -? -? 0 0 - 0 -- --? 0 0 0 

LAA0685 Adj 12 Pennycress Place 0.30 12 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 0 0 - N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

LAA0719 Car garages workshops, 
409 Harlestone Road 1.09 35 + + ++ + - ++ - 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 - ++ 0 0 0 0 --? 

LAA0720 Ryland Soans Ford 
garage, Harlestone Road 1.94 62 + + ++ + - ++ - 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 - ++ 0 0 0 - --? 

LAA0814 32 Great Russell Street 0.15 12 + ++ ++ - + ++ 0 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0903 Hawkins Shoe Factory, 
Overstone Road 0.26 105 ++ ++ ++ - + ++ - 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- N/A -- -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0910 379 Harlestone Road 0.53 17 + + ++ + - ++ - 0 0 0 + ++ 0 -- N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 - --? 

270



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 78 March 2019 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA0915r 118-122 Wellingborough 
Road 0.10 12 + + ++ + + ++ - 0 0 ? + ++ -- N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0932 Southbridge Site 1 0.17 44 + ++ ++ - + ++ 0 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? - - 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0933 Southbridge Site 2 0.09 50 + ++ ++ - + ++ 0 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? - 0 - N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

LAA1001 Former Emmanuel 
Middle School 2.24 83 + + ++ ++ + ++ 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA1006 Pineham 3.32 106 ++ - + -- - + 0 0 0 0 - + - - 0 -? 0 - 0 0 0 -- --? --? 0 0 

LAA1007 
Land south of Wooldale 
Road, east of Wootton 
Road 

5.04 44 + - ++ - + + 0 0 0 0 - ++ 0 - -- --? 0 - - - 0 -- --? --? 0 0 

LAA1009 

Land west of Policy N5 
Northampton South 
Sustainable Urban 
Extension 

8.46 271 ++ - + - - + - 0 0 0 - + - - ? -? 0 0 - 0 0 -- --? --? 0 0 

LAA1010r 
Land at St Peter's Way/ 
Court Road/ Freeschool 
Street 

1.17 37 + ++ ++ + + ++ - 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A -- -? -? 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA1013 
University of 
Northampton, Park 
Campus 

27.50 800 ++ + ++ ++ + ++ 0 0 0 0 + ++ - - ? --? 0 0 0 - ++ -- --? 0 0 --? 

LAA1014 
University of 
Northampton Avenue 
Campus 

6.02 200 ++ ++ ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- + ? --? -? 0 -- - ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA1022 Belgrave House 0.21 99 + ++ ++ ++ + ++ 0 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1025 Land to the west of 
Towcester Road 8.86 180 ++ + + - - + - 0 0 0 + + - - - -? 0 - - - 0 -- --? --? 0 0 

271



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 79 March 2019 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA1026 Eastern Land parcel 0.88 24 + - ++ + + + - 0 0 0 - ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 -- 

LAA1034 Witham Way garage site 0.15 4 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1035 West Oval garage site 0.17 7 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ - N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1036 Derwent Drive garage 
site 0.19 8 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1037 Swale Drive garage site 
and rear/ unused land 0.16 6 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1041 Newnham Road 0.37 15 + + ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? -? 0 -- - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1048 Stenson Street 0.14 6 + ++ ++ - - + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 -- - 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 --? 

LAA1049 Land off Arbour Court 0.39 11 + + ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 0 - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1051A Waterpump Court and 
Billing Brook Road 0.74 24 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1051B 
Land between 
Waterpump Court and 
Billing Brook Road 

0.91 29 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 --? 

LAA1052 Coverack Close, rear of 
garages 0.32 12 + + ++ - + ++ 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 - N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1058 Land off Oat Hill Drive 0.28 11 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1060 Hayeswood Road 0.15 6 + + ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ - -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

272



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 80 March 2019 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA1068 The Briars garage site 0.13 5 + ++ ++ + - + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 - 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1069 Farmclose Road garage 
site 0.15 6 + + ++ ++ + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1071 Medway Drive (rear of 
Medway Close) 0.24 9 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1086A Cosgrove Road 0.15 6 + + ++ - + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1086B Chalcombe Avenue 0.17 7 + + ++ - + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1094 Land off Holmecross 
Road 0.67 10 + + ++ ++ + + - 0 0 0 + ++ - -- N/A -? 0 0 0 - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1096 Land off Mill Lane 1.19 14 + ++ ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- -- N/A -? -? - -- - 0 -- 0 0 0 0 

LAA1097 Gate Lodge 1.11 30 + + ++ - - + - 0 0 0 + ++ 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 - - 0 -- 0 0 0 --? 

LAA1098 The Green, Great 
Houghton 42.84 771 ++ - + - - + 0 0 0 0 - + -- - ? -? 0 0 0 0 0 -- -- -? 0 --? 

LAA1099 Upton Park (Upton 
Reserve Site) 1.39 40 + + + + + + 0 0 0 0 + + - N/A N/A -? 0 -- - 0 + - --? --? 0 0 

LAA1100 Hill Farm Rise 5.65 90 + + ++ ++ - ++ - 0 0 0 + ++ -- - ? -? -? 0 0 - + -- --? 0 - 0 

LAA1102 Site east of Towcester 
Road 2.58 50 + - + - - + - 0 0 0 - + 0 - 0 -? 0 0 0 0 0 -- --? --? 0 0 

LAA1104 Watering Lane 11.04 250 ++ -- + + - + - 0 0 0 -- + - - - --? 0 0 0 - 0 -- -- --? 0 0 

273



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 81 March 2019 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA1107 
Former Abington Mill 
Farm, land off Rushmere 
Road 

5.02 125 ++ - ++ - + + - 0 0 0 - ++ -- -- ? -? 0 - - - 0 -- - --? 0 0 

LAA1108 Horsley Road 1.10 35 + + ++ - + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ - N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 - ++ 0 0 0 0 -- 

LAA1109 Mill Lane 0.71 6 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1113r Greyfriars 1.75 261 ++ ++ ++ ++ + ++ 0 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- -- -- -? -? 0 0 - + - 0 0 0 0 

LAA1114 
Cedarwood Nursing 
Home, 492 Kettering 
Road 

0.19 2 + + ++ ++ + + - 0 0 0 + ++ - N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1116 194-200 Kingsthorpe 
Grove 0.15 14 + - ++ ++ + + - 0 0 0 - ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1117 133 Queens Park Terrace 0.06 18 + + ++ ++ + + - 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 -- N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1118 135 Harlestone Road 0.71 7 + ++ ++ + + + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1119 Silver Coronet, Welland 
Way 0.16 14 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1121 Upton Valley Way East 1.64 34 + + ++ -- + + - 0 0 0 + ++ - -- N/A -? 0 0 0 - + -- - -? 0 0 

LAA1123 83 - 103 Trinity Avenue 0.19 9 + - ++ ++ + + - 0 0 0 - ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 -- - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1124 41-43 Derngate 0.08 7 + ++ ++ - + ++ 0 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

274



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 82 March 2019 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

4
c 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
b

 S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA1126 5 Primrose Hill 0.04 6 + ++ ++ - + + - 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1127 32 Connaught Street 0.03 6 + ++ ++ ++ + ++ 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1131 The Leys Close, 39 Mill 
Lane 0.57 6 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ - N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1133 Eastern District Social 
Club, Crestwood Road 0.20 5 + + ++ + + + 0 0 0 0 + ++ - -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1134r St John's Railway 
Embankment 0.30 12 + ++ ++ - + ++ - 0 0 ? ++ ++ -- N/A N/A -? -? - 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1137 Land at Wootton Fields 2.77 89 + - + ++ - + 0 0 0 0 - + 0 -- - -? 0 0 0 - 0 -- --? 0 0 0 

LAA1138 
Land south of Bedford 
Road/ north of sports 
ground 

0.21 7 + + ++ - + + - 0 0 0 + ++ -- -- N/A -? 0 -- - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 --? 

LAA1139 Ransome Road 15.57 250 ++ ++ ++ - + ++ - 0 0 + ++ ++ -- -- -- --? -? -- - - ++ -- 0 0 0 -- 

LAA1140 Land north of Milton 
Ham 6.99 224 ++ + + - - + - 0 0 0 + + - - - --? 0 - - - 0 -- --? -? 0 0 

 

  

275



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 83 March 2019 

Table 6.4 SA results for allocated employment sites 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA0167 Tanner Street 0.38 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 + ? ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? - 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0180 St James Road (former 
bus depot) 1.78 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 ++ 0 ++ - N/A N/A -? -? - -- - ++ 0 0 -? 0 --? 

LAA0208 Swan Valley Gateway 13.11 0 0 -- 0 -? 0 ++ 0 -- -- - ? --? 0 - - - + -- --? --? 0 0 

LAA0288c Railway Station car park 2.12 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 ++ ? ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 --? 

LAA0333c Castle Station Railfreight 5.68 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 ++ + ++ 0 - ? --? -? - - - ++ -- 0 0 0 -- 

LAA0335c Great Russell Street / 
Chronicle & Echo North 0.88 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 + ? ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0336c Chronicle & Echo South 1.17 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 ++ ? ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA0590 
Nationwide Building 
Society (adjacent car 
park) 

2.08 0 0 + 0 -? 0 ++ 0 + 0 -- N/A -? 0 0 0 0 0 -- 0 0 0 --? 

LAA0594c Sixfields East 10.18 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 ++ 0 ++ - - ? -? -? 0 0 - ++ -- --? -? - -- 

LAA0598 Car park, Victoria Street 0.63 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 + ? ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0629c British Timken Site 5.83 0 0 + 0 --? 0 ++ 0 + 0 ++ 0 -? -? 0 0 - ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA0818 St Peter's Way 2.11 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 ++ ? ++ 0 N/A -- -? -? -- - - ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

276



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 84 March 2019 

Site ID Site name 
Site 
area 
(ha) 

D
w

el
lin

g
 C

ap
ac

it
y 

S
A

1
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

2
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

3
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

4
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

5
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

6
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

7
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

8
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

9
a 

S
co

re
 

S
A

1
0

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
1

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
2

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
3

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
4

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

a 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

b 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

c 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

d 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
5

e 
S

co
re

 

S
A

1
6

a 
S

co
re

 

LAA0870 Sixfields, Upton Way 2.17 0 0 + 0 -? 0 ++ 0 + - N/A N/A -? 0 - 0 - ++ - 0 --? 0 0 

LAA0915c 118-122 Wellingborough 
Road 0.10 0 0 + 0 -? 0 + ? + -- N/A N/A -? 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA0931 Sites in Green Street 0.51 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 + ? ++ 0 N/A -- -? -? - 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 --? 

LAA1005 
Land north of Martins 
Yard, Spencer Bridge 
Road 

7.34 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 ++ 0 ++ -- -- 0 --? -? -- 0 - 0 -- - 0 0 -- 

LAA1010c 
Land at St Peter's Way/ 
Court Road/ Freeschool 
Street 

1.17 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 ++ ? ++ 0 N/A -- -? -? 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

LAA1101 Land at Waterside Way 0.98 0 0 + 0 -? 0 + 0 + -- N/A N/A -? 0 -- - - N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

LAA1112 Milton Ham 9.88 0 0 + 0 0 0 ++ 0 + - - ? --? 0 0 - 0 + -- --? -? 0 0 

LAA1113c Greyfriars 1.75 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 ++ ? ++ 0 -- -- -? -? 0 0 - + - 0 0 0 0 

LAA1134c St John's Railway 
Embankment 0.30 0 0 ++ 0 -? 0 + ? ++ 0 N/A N/A -? -? - 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 0 0 

 

 

 

 

277



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 85 March 2019 

Table 6.5: SA results for total areas of reasonable alternative (unallocated) and 
allocated residential sites 

SA 
Criteria Residential Site Type 

Score 

++ + 0 ? -? - --? -- N/A 

SA1a 
Allocated Sites 76% 24% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 74% 26% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA2a 
Allocated Sites 26% 34% 0% 0% 0% 32% 0% 7% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 31% 17% 0% 0% 0% 52% 0% 0% 0% 

SA2b 
Allocated Sites 60% 40% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 53% 47% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA3a 
Allocated Sites 29% 16% 0% 0% 0% 50% 0% 5% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 3% 13% 0% 0% 0% 68% 0% 16% 0% 

SA4a 
Allocated Sites 0% 55% 0% 0% 0% 45% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 37% 0% 0% 0% 63% 0% 0% 0% 

SA4b 
Allocated Sites 34% 66% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 32% 68% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA4c 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 52% 0% 0% 48% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 21% 0% 0% 79% 0% 0% 0% 

SA5a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA6a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA7a 
Allocated Sites 0% 9% 87% 4% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 24% 75% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA8a 
Allocated Sites 26% 34% 0% 0% 0% 32% 0% 7% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 31% 17% 0% 0% 0% 52% 0% 0% 0% 

SA8b 
Allocated Sites 60% 40% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 53% 47% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA9a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 39% 0% 41% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 5% 0% 0% 11% 0% 84% 0% 

SA10a 
Allocated Sites 2% 3% 0% 0% 0% 63% 0% 22% 10% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 46% 0% 39% 15% 

SA11a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 7% 47% 0% 20% 0% 11% 15% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 0% 28% 0% 0% 0% 52% 20% 

SA12a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 0% 0% 55% 0% 45% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 0% 0% 41% 0% 59% 0% 0% 

SA13a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 69% 0% 31% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 69% 0% 31% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA14a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 73% 0% 0% 18% 0% 9% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 69% 0% 0% 0% 0% 31% 0% 

SA14b 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 68% 0% 0% 28% 0% 3% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 35% 0% 0% 61% 0% 4% 0% 

278



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 86 March 2019 

SA 
Criteria Residential Site Type 

Score 

++ + 0 ? -? - --? -- N/A 

SA14c 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 38% 0% 0% 61% 0% 1% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 31% 0% 0% 66% 0% 3% 0% 

SA15a 
Allocated Sites 38% 4% 51% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 6% 

Reasonable Alternatives 35% 4% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 11% 

SA15b 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 11% 0% 0% 1% 0% 81% 6% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 2% 0% 0% 2% 0% 85% 11% 

SA15c 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 31% 0% 0% 4% 42% 23% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 41% 0% 0% 3% 55% 0% 0% 

SA15d 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 52% 0% 26% 0% 22% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 56% 0% 11% 0% 34% 0% 0% 

SA15e 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 92% 0% 0% 8% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 97% 0% 0% 3% 0% 0% 0% 

SA16a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 48% 0% 0% 0% 37% 15% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 25% 0% 0% 0% 48% 26% 0% 

 

  

279



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 87 March 2019 

Table 6.6:  SA results for total areas of reasonable alternative (unallocated) and 
allocated employment sites 

SA 
Criteria Employment Site Type 

Score 

++ + 0 ? -? - --? -- N/A 

SA1a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA2a 
Allocated Sites 51% 30% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 19% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 1% 88% 0% 0% 0% 11% 0% 0% 0% 

SA3a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA4a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 29% 0% 63% 0% 8% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA5a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA6a 
Allocated Sites 95% 5% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 99% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA7a 
Allocated Sites 0% 8% 76% 16% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 99% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA8a 
Allocated Sites 51% 30% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 19% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 1% 88% 0% 0% 0% 11% 0% 0% 0% 

SA9a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 35% 0% 0% 34% 0% 31% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 9% 0% 91% 0% 

SA10a 
Allocated Sites 8% 0% 0% 0% 0% 55% 0% 16% 20% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 85% 0% 8% 7% 

SA11a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 19% 55% 0% 0% 0% 8% 18% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 0% 11% 0% 0% 0% 88% 1% 

SA12a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 0% 0% 49% 0% 51% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 0% 0% 26% 0% 74% 0% 0% 

SA13a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 40% 0% 60% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 94% 0% 6% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA14a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 51% 0% 0% 34% 0% 15% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 80% 0% 0% 1% 0% 19% 0% 

SA14b 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 52% 0% 0% 45% 0% 3% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 6% 0% 0% 94% 0% 0% 0% 

SA14c 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 27% 0% 0% 73% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 91% 0% 8% 0% 

SA15a 
Allocated Sites 46% 35% 13% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 5% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 6% 93% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 1% 

SA15b 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 20% 0% 0% 6% 0% 69% 5% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 6% 0% 0% 0% 0% 93% 1% 

SA15c 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 42% 0% 0% 10% 47% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 7% 0% 0% 8% 74% 11% 0% 

280



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 88 March 2019 

SA 
Criteria Employment Site Type 

Score 

++ + 0 ? -? - --? -- N/A 

SA15d 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 47% 0% 31% 0% 22% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 7% 0% 0% 0% 93% 0% 0% 

SA15e 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 85% 0% 0% 15% 0% 0% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

SA16a 
Allocated Sites 0% 0% 58% 0% 0% 0% 9% 33% 0% 

Reasonable Alternatives 0% 0% 14% 0% 0% 0% 74% 11% 0% 

 

  

281



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 89 March 2019 

SA objective 1: Housing provision 

6.9 In relation to SA objective 1: Help make suitable housing available and affordable according to 
the needs of Northampton’s population, allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed 
against a single criterion as follows.   

1a: Housing provision 

6.10 Assessment against this criterion considered the estimated dwelling capacity of the site and hence 
the contribution to meeting housing and affordable housing need.  Of the 84 sites allocated for 
residential use, 19 had an estimated dwelling capacity of 100 or more dwellings and received a 
significant positive score.  This equates to 76% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  The 
remainder of sites scored minor positive.   

6.11 Conversely, only five of the 35 sites considered as reasonable alternative sites for residential use 
had an estimated dwelling capacity of 100 or more dwellings.  However, this equates to 74% of 
the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites.  The remainder of sites scored minor 
positive.   

6.12 The large (100+ dwelling capacity) and small residential sites are illustrated in Figure 6.2, which 
shows that the majority of the larger residential sites are located outside of the town centre. 

6.13 The 21 sites allocated and the six sites considered as reasonable alternatives for employment 
uses scored zero against this criterion.  Therefore, no figure is provided for assessment against 
this SA objective. 

SA objective 2: Sustainable travel 

6.14 In relation to SA objective 2: Reduce the need to travel within, to and from Northampton by 
providing easy access to jobs, services and facilities and to sustainable travel alternatives to the 
car, allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed against the following criteria. 

2a: Walking distance to sustainable transport links 

6.15 Allocated and reasonable alternative sites for all proposed uses were assessed for their proximity 
to sustainable transport links.  Thirty of the 84 sites allocated for residential use received a 
significant positive score as they were within walking distance of all three types of sustainable 
transport link set out in the assessment criteria.  This equates to 26% of the total area of 
allocated sites.  Just two sites allocated for residential use received a significant negative score as 
they are not within walking distance of any sustainable transport links.  This equates to 7% of the 
total area of allocated residential sites.  Minor scores were identified for the remainder of allocated 
residential sites. 

6.16 Fifteen of the 35 sites considered as reasonable alternatives for residential use received a 
significant positive score, equating to 31% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential 
sites, and minor scores were identified for the remainder of reasonable alternative residential 
sites. 

6.17 Fourteen of the 21 sites allocated for employment use received a significant positive score, 
equating to 51% of the total area of allocated sites.  Just one allocated employment site received 
a significant negative score, however this equates to 19% of the total area of allocated 
employment sites.  Minor scores were identified for the remainder of allocated employment sites. 

6.18 Conversely, of the six reasonable alternative employment sites, two received a significant positive 
score, which equates to 1% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  Minor 
scores were identified for the remainder of reasonable alternative employment sites. 

6.19 Figure 6.3 and Figure 6.24 illustrate that the majority of residential and employment sites within 
walking distance of all three types of sustainable transport link set out in the assessment criteria 
are located within or close to the town centre, and that the majority of sites that are not within 
walking distance of sustainable transport links are located in the south of Northampton Borough. 

Res2b: Walking distance to services and facilities 

6.20 The residential sites were also assessed for their proximity to services and facilities.  Of the 84 
sites allocated for residential use, 74 received a significant positive score as a result of being 
within walking distance of either the town centre or a local centre plus an employment area.  This 

282



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 90 March 2019 

equates to 60% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  The remaining ten allocated 
residential sites received a minor positive score. 

6.21 Similarly, 31 of the 35 reasonable alternative sites for residential use received a significant 
positive score, equating to 53% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites.  The 
remaining reasonable alternative residential sites received a minor positive score. 

6.22 Figure 6.4 illustrates that the majority of residential sites within walking distance of either the 
town centre or a local centre plus an employment area are located in the centre and north of 
Northampton Borough. 

SA objective 3: Access to schools 

6.23 In relation to SA objective 3: Provide easy access to primary and secondary schools by 
sustainable modes, allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed against a single 
criterion; their proximity to primary and secondary schools. 

3a: Walking distance to schools 

6.24 Of the 84 sites allocated for residential use, 23 received a significant positive score in relation to 
this criterion as a result of being within walking distance of both a primary and a secondary 
school.  This equates to 29% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  Three sites, equating 
to 5% of the total area of allocated residential sites, received a significant negative score as they 
are not within walking distance of any state school.  Minor scores were identified for the other 
sites allocated for residential use. 

6.25 Conversely, seven of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received a significant positive 
score, equating to just 3% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites.  Two sites, 
equating to 16% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites received a significant 
negative score.  Minor scores were identified for the other reasonable alternative residential sites.  

6.26 Figure 6.5 illustrates that the majority of residential sites not located within walking distance of 
schools are located in the centre and south of the town centre, and in the southeast and 
southwest of Northampton Borough. 

6.27 The allocated and reasonable alternative sites for employment use scored zero against this 
criterion.  Therefore, no figure is provided for assessment against this SA objective. 

SA objective 4: Health and well-being 

6.28 In relation to SA objective 4: Improve the health and well-being of Northampton’s residents, 
promoting healthy lifestyles and reduce health inequalities, allocated and reasonable alternative 
residential sites were assessed against the following three criteria: 

Res4a: Walking distance to healthcare facilities 

6.29 Sixty-six of the 84 sites allocated for residential use received a minor positive score in relation to 
this criterion as a result of being within walking distance of healthcare facilities.  This equates to 
55% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  The remaining 18 allocated residential sites, 
equating to 45% of the total area of allocated residential sites, received a minor negative score in 
relation to this criterion as a result of not being within walking distance of healthcare facilities. 

6.30 Of the 35 reasonable alternative sites for residential use, 19 sites received a minor positive score 
and the remaining 16 sites received a minor negative score, equating to 37% and 63% of the 
total area of reasonable alternative residential sites respectively. 

6.31 Figure 6.6 illustrates that the majority of residential sites not located within walking distance of 
healthcare facilities are located in the south westernmost and south easternmost parts of 
Northampton Borough. 

Res4b: Walking distance to open space and sports facilities 

6.32 Of the 84 allocated residential sites, 26 received significant positive scores as they are within 
walking distance of both an open space and a sports facility.  This equates to 34% of the total 
area of allocated residential sites.  The remaining allocated residential sites scored minor positive. 

283



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 91 March 2019 

6.33 Similarly, eleven of the 35 reasonable alternative sites for residential use received significant 
positive scores, equating to 32% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites.  The 
remaining reasonable alternative residential sites scored minor positive. 

6.34 The relationship of the residential sites to open spaces and leisure centres is illustrated in Figure 
6.7, which shows there are clusters of residential sites within walking distance to both open space 
and sports facilities in the northwest of Northampton Borough and in and around the town centre. 

Res4c: Exposure to low air quality or noise 

6.35 Forty of the 84 sites allocated for residential use received a minor negative score against this 
criterion, being partly within an AQMA or in proximity to an A-road, motorway, railway line or 
industrial area.  This equates to 48% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  Negligible 
scores were identified for the remaining allocated residential sites. 

6.36 Conversely, 17 of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received a minor negative score, 
equating to 79% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites.  Negligible scores 
were identified for the remaining reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.37 Figure 6.8 illustrates that residential sites that received minor negative effects are located along 
A-roads and railway lines. 

6.38 Allocated and reasonable alternative employment sites were assessed against a single criterion in 
relation to SA objective 4: 

Emp4a: Noise and light impacts on sensitive receptors 

6.39 Of the 21 allocated employment sites, one site received a significant negative score with 
uncertainty as it is adjacent to residential receptors on nearly all sides, which could be disturbed 
by commercial development on the site.  This equates to 8% of the total area of allocated 
employment sites.  Two allocated employment sites received a zero score against this criterion, 
equating to 29% of the total area of allocated employment sites, as these sites are not adjacent 
to sensitive receptors.  The remaining 18 sites received minor negative scores with uncertainty.   

6.40 All six of the reasonable alternative employment sites received minor negative scores with 
uncertainty. 

6.41 The large number of minor negative scores with uncertainty partly reflects that this was the 
default score given to smaller sites (less than 2.5 ha) for which qualitative assessment of the 
presence of sensitive receptors was not carried out; 14 of the 21 allocated and 5 of the 34 
reasonable alternative employment sites fell into this ‘smaller sites’ category.   

6.42 Figure 6.25 illustrates that the majority of employment sites that received minor negative scores 
with uncertainty are located within and around the town centre. 

SA objective 5: Crime 
5a: Reduce crime 

6.43 In relation to SA objective 5: Reduce crime and the fear of crime in Northampton, all allocated 
and reasonable alternative residential and employment sites were assessed as having a negligible 
score as this will not typically be influenced by the location of development sites but rather by the 
design of development proposals that come forward.  Therefore, no figure is provided for 
assessment against this SA objective. 

SA objective 6: Economy 

6.44 Residential and employment sites were assessed against the following criteria in relation to SA 
objective 6: Facilitate the growth of Northampton’s economy and the availability of jobs. 

Res6a: Growth of economy and availability of jobs 

6.45 While provision of new housing within Northampton should have positive effects on the economy 
by supporting temporary growth in the construction sector and by bringing a pool of labour into 
proximity with local businesses, the particular location of individual site allocations within the 
Borough was assumed not to significantly alter this effect therefore the scores of the residential 
sites were assumed to be negligible.  Therefore, no figure is provided for assessment against this 
SA objective. 

284



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 92 March 2019 

Emp6a: Employment provision 

6.46 All employment sites are expected to have positive effects on this objective, due to the nature of 
the proposed development.  Larger sites will provide opportunities for generating larger numbers 
of jobs and the greatest economic benefits.  Of the 21 allocated sites for employment use, 14 
received significant positive scores, as these sites are above 1 hectare in size.  This equates to 
95% of the total area of allocated employment sites.  The remaining allocated employment sites 
received a minor positive score. 

6.47 Four of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received significant positive scores, 
equating to 99% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  The remaining 
reasonable alternative employment sites received a minor positive score. 

6.48 As illustrated in Figure 6.26, the majority of smaller employment sites below 1 hectare in size are 
located within the town centre. 

SA objective 7: Northampton Town Centre 

6.49 In relation to SA objective 7: Maintain and strengthen the character and vitality of Northampton 
town centre, allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed against a single criterion as 
follows.   

7a: Location of sites relative to town centre 

6.50 All sites outside of the town centre were assessed as having negligible scores.   

6.51 Of the 84 allocated sites for residential use, 14 are located in the town centre and are assessed as 
having uncertain scores, due to the site areas being below the significance threshold of 2.5 ha, 
meaning that no qualitative assessment took place.  This equates to only 4% of the total area of 
allocated residential sites.  Two allocated residential sites were assessed as having minor positive 
scores, as these were above the significance threshold of 2.5 ha and would provide a range of 
homes within the town centre on brownfield land.  This equates to only 9% of the total area of 
allocated residential sites. 

6.52 Five of the 35 reasonable alternative sites for residential use are assessed as having uncertain 
scores, equating to just 1% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites.  One 
reasonable alternative residential site was assessed as having a minor positive score, equating 
equates to 24% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.53 Of the 21 allocated employment sites, 11 are assessed as having uncertain scores, as these are 
located within the town centre and are below 2.5ha.  This equates to 16% of the total area of 
allocated employment sites.  One allocated employment site is located within the town centre and 
is above 2.5ha.  Therefore, a minor positive score is expected as this large site would provide 
commercial use within the town centre.  This equates to 8% of the total area of allocated 
employment sites. 

6.54 One of the six reasonable alternative sites for employment use are assessed as having uncertain 
scores.  This equates to only 1% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites. 

6.55 The remaining allocated and reasonable alternative residential and employment sites are assessed 
as having negligible scores as these are located outside of the town centre. 

6.56 Figure 6.9 and Figure 6.27 illustrate the scores achieved by sites within the town centre. 

SA objective 8: Greenhouse gas emissions 

6.57 In relation to SA objective 8: Minimise Northampton’s greenhouse gas emissions, allocated and 
reasonable alternative sites were subject to the same assessment criteria as for SA objective 2, 
i.e. 2a/8a: Walking distance to sustainable transport links, and 2b/8b: Walking distance to 
services and facilities, since factors that support use of sustainable transport modes will also 
mitigate the greenhouse gas emissions associated with car travel.  The results are the same as 
those described under SA objective 2 above. 

285



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 93 March 2019 

SA objective 9: Biodiversity and geodiversity 

6.58 In relation to SA objective 9: Protect and enhance Northampton’s biodiversity and geodiversity, 
allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed against a single criterion as follows. 

9a: Proximity to designated ecological sites 

6.59 Of the 84 allocated residential sites, 32 were assessed as having a significant negative score in 
relation to this criterion.  This equates to 41% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  In 
most cases, this was due to the residential sites being within the 3km consultation zone around 
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA within which recreational disturbance is assumed to be capable 
of a significant effect, with smaller numbers of sites containing optimal supporting habitat areas 
for the SPA’s Golden Plover and Lapwing populations or overlapping a locally designated site.  The 
potential likely significant score of all allocated and reasonable alternative sites on European sites 
are considered in more detail in the separate HRA of the Local Plan.  A further 19 sites received a 
minor negative score, equating to 39% of the total area of allocated residential sites, as these 
sites are in close proximity to locally designated biodiversity sites.   

6.60 In comparison, nineteen of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites were assessed as 
having a significant negative score.  This equates to 84% of the total area of reasonable 
alternative residential sites.  Eight sites received a minor negative score, equating to 11% of the 
total area of reasonable alternative residential sites.   

6.61 Of the 21 allocated sites for employment use, four were assessed as having a significant negative 
score, equating to 31% of the total area of allocated employment sites.  In most cases, this was 
due to the employment sites being within the 2km consultation zone for large commercial/ 
industrial development around Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA.  A further four sites received a 
minor negative score, equating to 34% of the total area of allocated employment sites. 

6.62 Three of the six reasonable alternative employment sites, equating to 91% of the total area of 
reasonable alternative employment sites, were assessed as having a significant negative score.  
Two reasonable alternative employment sites received minor negative scores, equating to 9% of 
the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites. 

6.63 The remainder of allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed as having negligible 
scores as these are not located in proximity to designated sites. 

6.64 Figure 6.10 illustrates that the majority of residential sites that received a significant negative 
score are located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA to the southeast of 
Northampton Borough. 

6.65 Figure 6.28 illustrates that the majority of reasonable alternative employment sites that received 
a significant negative score are located within 2km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA in 
the southeast of Northampton Borough, but that the majority of allocated employment sites that 
received a significant negative score overlap a locally designated site. 

SA objective 10: Landscape and townscape 

6.66 In relation to SA objective 10: Protect and enhance the quality and character of Northampton’s 
landscape and townscape, allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed against a 
single criterion as follows. 

10a: Presence of brownfield land, derelict buildings, and open space 

6.67 No GIS data were available to distinguish between greenfield and brownfield land or to judge the 
status of previously developed land (in current use, derelict, whether current uses are detracting 
from landscape and townscape).  GIS data were available to assess the location of sites in relation 
to open space.  The absence of GIS data for elements of the assessment against this criterion 
necessitated a qualitative approach but this was only carried out for sites exceeding the 
significance thresholds described in Chapter 2, therefore the scores of many of the allocated and 
reasonable alternative sites were recorded N/A (not assessed).   

6.68 Of the 84 allocated sites for residential use, one site received a significant positive score, as it 
would represent redevelopment of a derelict or disused brownfield site, equating to 2% of the 
total area of allocated residential sites.  A further one allocated residential site, equating to 3% of 
the total area of allocated sites, received a minor positive score, as it would represent 

286



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 94 March 2019 

redevelopment of a site that is currently in use.  Twenty-six of the allocated residential sites 
scored significant negative as their development could result in loss of all or part of a designated 
open space, equating to 22% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  Fifteen allocated 
residential sites, equating to 63% of the total area of allocated residential sites, received minor 
negative scores as their development could result in loss of undesignated greenfield land.  The 
remainder of allocated residential sites were not assessed. 

6.69 In comparison, 12 of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received a significant negative 
score, equating to 39% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites.  Minor 
negative scores were identified for three of the reasonable alternative residential sites, equating 
to 46% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites.  The remainder of reasonable 
alternative residential sites were not assessed. 

6.70 Of the 21 allocated sites for employment use, one site received a significant positive score, 
equating to 8% of the total area of allocated employment sites.  Three allocated employment sites 
scored significant negative, equating to 16% of the total area of allocated employment sites.  
Minor negative scores were identified for four of the allocated employment sites, equating to 55% 
of the total area of allocated employment sites.  The remainder of allocated employment sites 
were not assessed. 

6.71 In comparison, one of the six reasonable alternative employment sites scored significant negative, 
equating to 8% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  Minor negative 
scores were identified for two of the reasonable alternative employment sites, equating to 85% of 
the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  The remainder of reasonable 
alternative employment sites were not assessed. 

6.72 Figure 6.11 and Figure 6.29 illustrate that the majority of residential and employment sites that 
would result in the loss of designated open spaces are located in the north and south of 
Northampton Borough. 

SA objective 11: Historic environment 

6.73 In relation to SA objective 11: Conserve and enhance Northampton’s historic environment, 
heritage assets and their settings, qualitative assessment of the potential impact of allocated and 
reasonable alternative sites on assets of heritage significance was carried out by NBC officers by 
reference to Historic England guidance and incorporated directly into the SA report. 

11a: Qualitative assessment of potential impact on heritage significance carried out by NBC 
officers by reference to Historic England guidance 

6.74 The absence of GIS data for elements of the assessment against this criterion necessitated a 
qualitative approach but this was only carried out for sites exceeding the significance thresholds 
described in Chapter 2, therefore the scores of many of the allocated and reasonable alternative 
sites were recorded N/A (not assessed).   

6.75 Six of the 84 allocated residential sites received significant negative scores, equating to 11% of 
the total area of allocated residential sites.  Eight allocated residential sites received minor 
negative and a further eight received uncertain scores, equating to 20% and 47% of the total 
area of allocated residential sites respectively.  Four allocated residential sites received negligible 
scores, equating to 7% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  The remainder of allocated 
residential sites were not qualitatively assessed by the SA. 

6.76 In comparison, six of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant negative 
scores, equating to 52% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites, and two sites 
received uncertain scores, equating to 28% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential 
sites.  The remainder of reasonable alternative residential sites were not assessed. 

6.77 Of the 21 allocated sites for employment use, four received significant negative scores, equating 
to 8% of the total area of allocated employment sites.  Four allocated employment sites received 
uncertain scores and two received negligible scores, equating to 55% and 19% of the total area of 
allocated employment sites respectively.  The remainder of allocated employment sites were not 
qualitatively assessed by the SA. 

6.78 In comparison, three of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received significant 
negative scores, equating to 88% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites, 

287



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 95 March 2019 

and one site received an uncertain score, equating to 11% of the total area of reasonable 
alternative employment sites.  The remainder of reasonable alternative employment sites were 
not qualitatively assessed by the SA. 

6.79 Figure 6.12 and Figure 6.30 illustrate the residential and employment sites and their scores with 
regard to this assessment criterion. 

SA objective 12: Air pollution 

6.80 In relation to SA objective 12: Minimise air pollution in and around Northampton, particularly in 
the AQMAs, allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed against a single criterion as 
follows. 

12a: Contribution to road traffic increases within AQMAs 

6.81 The absence of GIS data for elements of the assessment against this criterion necessitated a 
qualitative approach but this was only carried out for sites exceeding the significance thresholds 
described in Chapter 2, therefore many of the allocated and reasonable alternative sites received 
the default score of minor negative with uncertainty. 

6.82 Of the 84 allocated residential sites, 12 received significant negative scores with uncertainty as 
they were judged likely to generate traffic that would use road routes through an AQMA.  This 
equates to 45% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  Minor negative scores with 
uncertainty were expected for the remaining allocated residential sites.  

6.83 In comparison, three of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant 
negative scores with uncertainty, equating to 59% of the total area of reasonable alternative 
residential sites.  Minor negative scores with uncertainty were expected for the remaining 
reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.84 Four of the 21 allocated employment sites received significant negative effects with uncertainty, 
equating to 51% of the total area of allocated employment sites.  Minor negative scores with 
uncertainty were expected for the remaining allocated employment sites. 

6.85 One of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received a significant negative score with 
uncertainty, equating to 74% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  Minor 
negative scores with uncertainty were expected for the remaining reasonable alternative 
employment sites. 

6.86 Figure 6.13 and Figure 6.31 illustrate the location of residential and employment sites and their 
scores with regard to this criterion. 

SA objective 13: Water resources and water quality 

6.87 In relation to SA objective 13: Encourage sustainable water management, allocated and 
reasonable alternative sites were assessed against a single criterion as follows. 

13a: Location within a Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or on contaminated land 

6.88 Of the 84 allocated sites for residential use, 32 received minor negative scores with uncertainty, 
indicating that the site overlaps the one SPZ (Inner Zone 1) in the plan area or a known area of 
contaminated land.  This equates to 31% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  The 
remaining allocated residential sites received negligible scores. 

6.89 In comparison, 10 of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received minor negative 
scores with uncertainty, equating to 31% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential 
sites.  The remaining reasonable alternative residential sites received negligible scores. 

6.90 Fifteen of the 21 allocated employment sites received minor negative scores with uncertainty, 
equating to 60% of the total area of allocated employment sites.  The remaining allocated 
employment sites received negligible scores. 

6.91 One of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received minor negative scores with 
uncertainty, equating to 6% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  The 
remaining reasonable alternative employment sites received negligible scores. 

288



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 96 March 2019 

6.92 Figure 6.14 and Figure 6.32 illustrate that the majority of residential and employment sites 
overlapping the SPZ (Inner Zone 1) or a known area of contaminated land are located in the town 
centre and northwest of Northampton Borough. 

SA objective 14: Flooding 

6.93 In relation to SA objective 14: Reduce the risk of flooding to people and property in Northampton, 
allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed against the following three criteria. 

14a: Flood risk from rivers 

6.94 Of the 84 sites allocated for residential use, seven received significant negative scores with regard 
to this criterion, as these sites are mainly within Flood Zone 3 where there is either a 1 in 100 or 
greater annual probability of river flooding (associated with the River Nene and its tributaries) or 
the location is in the functional floodplain.  This equates to 9% of the total area of allocated 
residential sites.  Fourteen allocated residential sites received minor negative scores, equating to 
18% of the total area of allocated residential sites, as they are either located partially within Flood 
Zone 3 or mainly within Flood Zone 2.  Negligible scores were identified for the remaining 
allocated residential sites. 

6.95 In comparison, eight of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant 
negative scores and two received minor scores, equating to 31% and 0.4% of the total area of 
reasonable alternative residential sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for the 
remaining reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.96 Three of the 21 allocated employment sites received significant negative scores and seven 
received minor negative scores, equating to 15% and 34% of the total area of allocated 
employment sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for the remaining allocated 
employment sites. 

6.97 In comparison, two of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received significant 
negative scores and one received a minor negative score, equating to 19% and 0.5% of the total 
area of reasonable alternative employment sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for 
the remaining reasonable alternative employment sites. 

6.98 Figure 6.15 and Figure 6.33 illustrate that many of the residential and employment sites subject 
to flood risk from rivers are located in and around the town centre, through which the River Nene 
flows, the others being associated with its tributaries. 

14b: Flood risk from groundwater 

6.99 Four of the 84 sites allocated for residential use received significant negative scores with regard to 
this criterion, indicating that the majority of the site is within a 'very high' or 'high' risk area for 
groundwater flooding.  This equates to 3% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  
Nineteen sites received minor negative scores, equating to 28% of the total area of allocated 
residential sites, indicating that part of the site is within a 'very high' or 'high' risk area for 
groundwater flooding or the majority of the site is within a ‘moderate’ risk area.  Negligible scores 
were identified for the remaining allocated residential sites. 

6.100 In comparison, two of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant negative 
scores and 11 received minor negative scores, equating to 3.8% and 61% of the total area of 
reasonable alternative residential sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for the 
remaining reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.101 One of the 21 allocated employment sites received a significant negative score and five received 
minor negative scores, equating to 3% and 45% of the total area of allocated employment sites 
respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for the remaining allocated employment sites. 

6.102 In comparison, four of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received minor negative 
scores, equating to 94% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  Negligible 
scores were identified for the remaining reasonable alternative employment sites. 

6.103 Figure 6.16 and Figure 6.34 illustrate the location of residential and employment sites and their 
scores with regard to this criterion. 

289



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 97 March 2019 

14c: Surface water flood risk 

6.104 Two of the 84 allocated residential sites received significant negative scores with regard to this 
criterion, indicating that the majority of each site is within an area having a 1 in 100 or greater 
annual probability of surface water flooding.  This equates to 1% of the total area of allocated 
residential sites.  A further 37 allocated residential sites, equating to 61% of the total area of 
allocated residential sites, receive minor negative scores, as parts of these sites are within an 
area having a 1 in 100 or greater annual probability of surface water flooding.  Negligible scores 
were identified for the remaining allocated residential sites. 

6.105 In comparison, one of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant negative 
scores and 11 received minor negative scores, equating to 3% and 66% of the total area of 
reasonable alternative residential sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for the 
remaining reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.106 Ten of the 21 allocated employment sites received minor negative scores, equating to 73% of the 
total area of allocated employment sites.  Negligible scores were identified for the remaining 
allocated employment sites. 

6.107 In comparison, one of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received a significant 
negative score and four received minor negative scores, equating to 8% and 91% of the total 
area of reasonable alternative employment sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for 
the remaining reasonable alternative employment sites. 

6.108 Figure 6.17 and Figure 6.35 illustrate the location of residential and employment sites and their 
scores with regard to this criterion. 

SA objective 15: Soils and minerals 

6.109 In relation to SA objective 15: Encourage the efficient use of land in Northampton and protect its 
soils and mineral resources, allocated and reasonable alternative sites were assessed against the 
following five criteria.  The absence of GIS data for elements of the assessment against this 
criterion necessitated a qualitative approach but this was only carried out for sites exceeding the 
significance thresholds described in Chapter 2, therefore the scores of many of the allocated and 
reasonable alternative sites were recorded N/A (not assessed).   

15a: Prioritising use of brownfield land 

6.110 Significant positive scores were identified in relation to this criterion for sites that contained 1 ha 
or more of brownfield land, and minor positive scores identified for allocated and reasonable 
alternative sites that contained less than 1ha of brownfield land.  Sixteen of the 84 allocated 
residential sites received significant positive scores and four received minor positive scores, 
equating to 38% and 4% of the total area of allocated residential sites respectively.  Negligible 
scores were identified for 18 allocated residential sites, equating to 51% of the total area of 
allocated residential sites, indicating these did not contain any brownfield land.  The remainder of 
allocated residential sites were not assessed. 

6.111 In comparison, two of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant positive 
scores and two received minor positive scores, equating to 35% and 4% of the total area of 
reasonable alternative residential sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for six of 
the reasonable alternative residential sites, equating to 50% of the total area of reasonable 
alternative residential sites.  The remainder of reasonable alternative residential sites were not 
assessed. 

6.112 Nine of the 21 allocated employment sites received significant positive scores and three received 
minor positive scores, equating to 46% and 35% of the total area of allocated employment sites 
respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for two of the allocated employment sites, equating 
to 13% of the total area of allocated employment sites.  The remainder of allocated employment 
sites were not assessed. 

6.113 In comparison, one of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received a minor positive 
score, equating to 6% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  Negligible 
scores were identified for three of the reasonable alternative employment sites, equating to 93% 
of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  The remainder of reasonable 
alternative employment sites were not assessed. 

290



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 98 March 2019 

6.114 Figure 6.18 and Figure 6.36 indicated that many of the large brownfield residential and 
employment sites are located in and around the town centre. 

15b: Avoiding loss of greenfield land 

6.115 Significant negative scores were identified in relation to this criterion for sites that contained 1 ha 
or more of greenfield land, and minor negative scores identified for allocated and reasonable 
alternative sites that contained less than 1ha of greenfield land.  Twenty-five of the 84 allocated 
residential sites received significant negative scores and two received minor negative scores, 
equating to 81% and 1% of the total area of allocated residential sites respectively.  Negligible 
scores were identified for 11 allocated residential sites, equating to 11% of the total area of 
allocated residential sites, indicating these did not contain any greenfield land.  The remainder of 
allocated residential sites were not assessed. 

6.116 In comparison, eight of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant 
negative scores and one received a minor negative score, equating to 85% and 2% of the total 
area of reasonable alternative residential sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for 
one of the reasonable alternative residential sites, equating to 2% of the total area of reasonable 
alternative residential sites.  The remainder of reasonable alternative residential sites were not 
assessed. 

6.117 Six of the 21 allocated employment sites received significant negative scores and two received 
minor negative scores, equating to 69% and 6% of the total area of allocated employment sites 
respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for six of the allocated employment sites, equating 
to 20% of the total area of allocated employment sites.  The remainder of allocated employment 
sites were not assessed. 

6.118 In comparison, three of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received significant 
negative scores, equating to 93% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  
Negligible scores were identified for one of the reasonable alternative employment sites, equating 
to 6% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  The remainder of reasonable 
alternative employment sites were not assessed. 

6.119 Figure 6.19 and Figure 6.37 illustrate the location of residential and employment sites and their 
scores with regard to this criterion. 

15c: Avoiding loss of high quality agricultural land 

6.120 Of the 84 allocated sites for residential use, two received significant negative scores, indicating 
that they contain 1 ha or more of Grade 1 (Excellent) or Grade 2 (Very Good) agricultural land.  
This equates to 23% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  A further 16 allocated 
residential sites received significant negative scores with uncertainty, indicating that they contain 
1 ha or more of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.  This equates to 42% of the total 
area of allocated residential sites.  Three allocated residential sites received minor negative 
scores, as these sites contain 1 ha or more of Grade 4 (Poor) agricultural land.  This equates to 
4% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  Negligible scores were identified for the 
remaining allocated residential sites.  

6.121 In comparison, six of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant negative 
scores with uncertainty and one received a minor negative score, equating to 55% and 3% of the 
total area of reasonable alternative residential sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified 
for the remaining reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.122 Three of the 21 allocated employment sites received significant negative scores with uncertainty 
and one received a minor negative score, equating to 47% and 10% of the total area of allocated 
employment sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for the remaining allocated 
employment sites. 

6.123 One of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received a significant negative score, one 
received a significant negative score with uncertainty and one received a minor negative score, 
equating to 11%, 74% and 8% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites 
respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for the remaining reasonable alternative 
employment sites. 

291



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 99 March 2019 

6.124 Figure 6.20 and Figure 6.38 illustrate that most of the agricultural land in the borough is of 
Moderate to Very Good (Grade 2 or 3) quality, creating a potential for loss on most development 
sites outside of the town centre. 

15d: Avoiding sterilisation of mineral resources 

6.125 Significant negative scores with uncertainty were identified in relation to this criterion for sites 
that are either wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area, or any part of the site is 
within a ‘Preventing Land Use Conflict Consultation Buffer’ relating to a mineral extraction site as 
defined in the Minerals and Waste Local Plan, and minor negative scores with uncertainty were 
identified for sites partly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area. 

6.126 Of the 84 sites allocated for residential use, ten received significant negative scores with 
uncertainty and four received, minor negative scores with uncertainty, equating to 22% and 26% 
of the total area of allocated residential sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for 
the remaining allocated residential sites. 

6.127 In comparison, two of the 34 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant negative 
scores with uncertainty and a further two received, minor negative scores with uncertainty, 
equating to 34% and 11% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites respectively.  
Negligible scores were identified for the remaining reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.128 Of the 21 sites allocated for employment use, two received significant negative scores with 
uncertainty and three received, minor negative scores with uncertainty, equating to 22% and 
31% of the total area of allocated employment sites respectively.  Negligible scores were 
identified for the remaining allocated employment sites. 

6.129 In comparison, three of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received significant 
negative scores with uncertainty, equating to 93% of the total area of reasonable alternative 
employment sites.  Negligible scores were identified for the remaining reasonable alternative 
employment sites. 

6.130 Figure 6.21 and Figure 6.39 illustrate that the majority of the allocated and reasonable alternative 
residential and employment sites within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area of a ‘Preventing 
Land Use Conflict Consultation Buffer’ relating to a mineral extraction site are located in the 
southeast and southwest of Northampton Borough. 

15e: Avoiding risk from land instability 

6.131 As set out in the site assessment criteria (Appendix 5) five categories of land instability in the 
Borough have been identified from Category E ‘areas where slope instability problems are almost 
certainly present and may be active’ down to Category A ‘slope instability problems are not 
thought to occur’.   

6.132 Of the 84 residential site allocations, four received minor negative scores, equating to 8% of the 
total area of allocated residential sites, as these options contain areas of Category C ‘areas where 
slope instability problems may be present or anticipated’.  Negligible scores were identified for the 
remaining allocated residential sites. 

6.133 Of the 35 reasonable alternative sites, one received minor negative scores, equating to 3% of the 
total area of  reasonable alternative residential sites.  Negligible scores were identified for the 
remaining reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.134 Only one of the 21 allocated employment sites received minor negative scores, equating to 15% 
of the total area of allocated employment sites.  Negligible scores were identified for the 
remaining allocated employment sites. 

6.135 All six reasonable alternative sites for employment use received negligible scores. 

6.136 Figure 6.22 and Figure 6.40 illustrate the location of residential and employment sites and their 
scores with regard to this criterion. 

SA objective 16: Waste 

6.137 In relation to SA objective 16: Facilitate sustainable waste management, allocated and reasonable 
alternative sites were assessed against the following criterion. 

292



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 100 March 2019 

16a: Avoiding conflicts with waste management sites 

6.138 Ten of the 84 allocated sites for residential use received significant negative scores for this 
criterion, indicating that the sites are in proximity to an active or committed waste management 
facility.  This equates to 15% of the total area of allocated residential sites.  A further 12 allocated 
residential site received significant negative scores with uncertainty, as these sites are in 
proximity to an industrial area in which the Minerals and Waste Local Plan considers waste 
management uses to be acceptable.  This equates to 37% of the total area of allocated residential 
sites.  Negligible scores were identified for the remaining allocated residential sites. 

6.139 In comparison, five of the 35 reasonable alternative residential sites received significant negative 
scores and a further six received significant negative scores with uncertainty, equating to 26% 
and 48% of the total area of reasonable alternative residential sites respectively.  Negligible 
scores were identified for the remaining reasonable alternative residential sites. 

6.140 Three of the 21 allocated employment sites received significant negative scores and a further four 
received significant negative scores with uncertainty, equating to 33% and 9% of the total area of 
allocated employment sites respectively.  Negligible scores were identified for the remaining 
allocated employment sites. 

6.141 In comparison, two of the six reasonable alternative employment sites received significant 
negative scores and one received a significant negative score with uncertainty, equating to 11% 
and 74% of the total area of reasonable alternative employment sites.  Negligible scores were 
identified for the remaining reasonable alternative employment sites. 

6.142 Figure 6.23 and Figure 6.41 illustrate the location of allocated and reasonable alternative 
residential and employment sites and their scores with regard to this criterion.

293



115

116

40

95

67

12217

128

30

102

127

29

1

126

107

49

103

13

130

19

98
77

9

123

52

143

56

1462
3

91

42 99

4

110
74 82

15

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

101

20

125

34

23

58

63
140

65

72

69

100

118

133

86

94

113

7

41

145

18

106

27

73

22
11

28

139

53
66

79

70

81

71

44

76

105

92

108

39

61

47

6

134

112

33

137

87 84

64

37

129

21

117
111

25

5

31

36

24

75

50

119

89

38
96

83
88

54

45

138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Res1a Scores

++
+

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.2: Res1a - Housing
provision

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

294



52

56

40

91

42 99

95

74 82

20 72

17

100

86

102

94

41

18

106

27

73

53
66 70

81

71

76

49

9239

61

112

64

103

37

98

36
75

38 77
96

83
88

54

45

115

143

1462
3

4

110

26

104 131

132

43

135
136

101

125

34

58

63
140

65
69

118

133

113

7

145

126

22
11

28

139
107

44

105

47

6

134

33

137

13

129

21

111

19

25

5

31

24

119

9

138

116

15

68

121

23

122

128

30

1271

79

108

87 84

117

130

50

89

123

67

29

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Sustrans

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of sustainable 
transport network
Assessment criterion 
zone of influence

SA2a and SA8a Scores
++
+
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.3: Res2a & Res8a -
Walking distance to
sustainable transport links

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: The same spatial test is relevant
to performance against Res2a and Res8a
therefore a single map is provided for
both results. Bus service frequency
taken into account in qualitative
assessment is not mapped.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

295



115

116

52

143

56

40

1462
3

91

42 99

4

110

95

74 82

15

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

101

20

125

34

122

58

63
140

65

72

69

17

100

118

133

86

102

94

113

41

145

18

106

27

73

126

22
11

28

139

53

107

66

79

70

81

71

44

76

49

105

92

108

39

61

47

6

134

112

33

137

87 84

64

103

37

129

21

111

25

98

5

31

36

24

75

50

119

89

38 77
9 96

83
88

54

45

138

68

23

67

128

30

127

29

7

1

13

117

130

19

123

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of services and facilities
Assessment criterion zone of 
influence

SA2b Scores
++
+

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.4: Res2b & Res8b -
Walking distance to services
and facilities

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: The same spatial test is relevant
to performance against Res2b and Res8b
therefore a single map is provided for
both results. Visually inspected base
mapping and aerial imagery for physical
barriers to sustainable travel (e.g.
rivers, 'A' roads).
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

296



116

52

56

40

42

95

74

104 131
135

136
138

34

63

72

118

107

79

81
49

134

112

87 84

129

117
111

89

38 77

115

143

1462
3

4

110

15

68

26

132

20

67

133

7

145

18

27

126

22
28

53

44

61

47

137

21

25

5

31

36

24

50

9

138

91

99

82

43

121

101

125

23

122

58

140

65
69

17

100

30

86

102

94

113

41

106

73

11

139

66 70
71

76

105

92

108

39

33

64

103

13

37

130

19

98

75 119

96

123

83
88

54

45

128

127

29

1 6

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
! School location

Assessment criterion zone of 
influence

SA3a Scores
++
+
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.5: Res3a - Walking
distance to schools

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Visually inspected base mapping
and aerial imagery for physical barriers
to sustainable travel (e.g. rivers, 'A'
roads).
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

297



116

52

56

40

146

91

42 99

110

95

74 82

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

138

101

20

122

58

63
140

65

72

69

17

100

118

133

86

102

94

113

7

145

18

106

27

73

126

22
28

107

79

81

71

44

49

105

92

108

61

47

6

134

112

33

137

87 84

64

103

129

21

111

25

98

5

31

24

50

119

89

77
9 96

8388

54

45

115

143

2
3

4

15

68

125

34

23

67

128

30

127

29

41

1

11

139

53
66 70

76

39

13

37

117

130

19

36
75

38

123

138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Healthcare facility
Assessment criterion zone of 
influence

SA4a Scores
+
-

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.6: Res4a - Walking
distance to healthcare facilities

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Visually inspected base mapping
and aerial imagery for physical barriers
to sustainable travel (e.g. rivers, 'A'
roads).
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

298



40

2
3

91

99

4

110
74 82

15

43

135
136

101

34

140

100

86

102

94 106

73

11

107

81
49

92
61

134

103

98

5

77
9 96

8388

115

116

52

143

56

146

42

95

68

26

104 131

132

12120

125

23

67

122

58

63

65

72

69

17

128

118

133

30

127

113

29

7

41

1

145

18

27

126

22
28

139

53
66

79

70
71

44

76

105

108

39

47

6

112

33

137

87 84

64

13

37

129

21

117
111

130

19

25
31

36

24

75

50

119

89

38

123

54

45

138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of open space and 
sports facilities
Assessment criterion zone of 
influence

SA4b Scores
++
+

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.7: Res4b - Walking
distance to open space sports
facilities

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Visually inspected base mapping
and aerial imagery for physical barriers
to sustainable travel (e.g. rivers, 'A'
roads).
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

299



52

143

56

2
3

42

4

110

15 121

101

125

34

23

67

122

63
140

17

128

100

118

30

86

102

94

29

41

18

106

27

73

126

66 70
71

76

49
39

61

6

33

87 84

64

103

13

129

19

98

36
75

50

119

38

123

54

115

116

40

146

91

99

95

74 82

68

26

104 131

132

43

135
136

20
58

65

72

69
133

127

113

7

1

14522
11

28

139

53

107

79

81

44

105

92

108

47 134

112

137

37

21

117
111

130

25

5

31

24 89

77
9 96

83
88

45

138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Transport corridor
Assessment criterion zone of 
influence

SA4c Scores
0
-

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.8: Res4c - Exposure to
low air quality or noise

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Spatial data on industrial areas
unavailable - indentified by visual
inspection of base mapping and aerial
imagery.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

300



102

49

103

115

116
143

56

40

1462
3

42

4

95

82

15

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

20

125

34

23

67

122

58

63
140

65

72

69

17

128

118

133

30

127

113

29

7

41

1

145

18

106

27

126

22
11

28

139

53

107

66

79

70

81

44

105

108

39

47

6

134

112

33

137

87 84

64

13

37

129

21

117
111

130

19

25

98

5

31

36

24

50

119

89

38
9

123

54

45

138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of town centre

SA7a Scores
+
0
?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.9: Res7a - Location of
sites relative to town centre

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Qualitative indicators, type of
development option and its locational
context within the town centre, are not
mapped.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

301



116

56

40

15

68

138

67

58

17

118

30

7

1

11

139

53

107

47

6

33

137

13

37

129

19

25

54

52

143

2
3

42

4
26

132

43

125

23

63

65

72

69
133

113

29

41

18

126

22
28 79

49

108

39

87 84

64

21

117
111

5

31

36

24

50

89

38
9

115

146

91

99

110

95

74 82

104 131

121

135
136

101

20

34

122

140

128

100

86

102

127

94

145

106

27

73

66 70

81

71

44

76

105

92
61

134

112

103

130

98

75 119

77
96

123

83
88

45

138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Natural England

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of designated 
ecological sites
Assessment criterion zone of 
influence

SA9a Scores
0
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.10: Res9a - Proximity
to designated ecological sites

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Qualitative indicators, e.g. current
use, existing physical barriers, potential
for increased human disturbance and
trampling, are not mapped.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

302



9

115

52

143

56

2
3

91

42 99

110
74 82

68

121

101

58

63

65

72

69

100

118

86

94

113

7

41

18

73

28

139

53
66 70

81

71

76

9239

61

47 134

112

87 84

64

37

21

25

98

31

36

24

75

50

38
96

83
88

54 13895

40
43

34

23

67

17

128

30

127

29

1

107

49

108

13

130

19

123

116

146
4

15

26

104 131

132

135
136

138

20

125

122

140

133

102

145

106

27

126

22
11

7944

105

6

33

137

103

129

117
111

5

119

89

77

45

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of open space

SA10a Scores
++
+
N/A
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.11: Res10a - Presence
of brownfield land, derelict
buildings, and open space

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Spatial data of brownfield and
greenfield land unavailable - identified
by visual inspection of base mapping
and aerial imagery.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

303



115

52

143

56

1462
3

91

42 99

4

110
74 82

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

138

101

20

125

58

63
140

65

72

69

100

118

133

86

94

113

7

41

145

18

106

73

22
11

28

139

53
66

79

70

81

71

44

105

9239

47

6

134

112

137

87 84

64

37

129

21

111

25

5

31

36

24

75

50

119

89

38
96

8388

54

40

23

1

9

116

67

29

27

126

13

117

19

9515

34

12217

30

102

107

49

130

128

127

76

108

61

33

103

98
77

123

45

138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Historic England

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of cultural heritage 
of significance

SA11a Scores
0 and N/A
?
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.12: Res11a - Potential
impact on heritage significance

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Assessment has been undertaken
qualitatively  by Northampton Borough
Council based on a variety of baseline
data, not just the historic assets shown.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

304



115

52

143

56

40

1462
3

91

42 99

4

110
74 82

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

101

20

125

34

23

122

58

63
140

65

72

69

128

100

118

133

30

86

127

94

113

29

7

41

1

145

18

106

73

22
11

28

139

53
66

79

70

81

71

44

76

105

9239

61

47

6

134

112

33

137

87 84

64

37

129

21

117
111

130

19

25

98

5

31

36

24

75

50

119

89

38 77
96

83
88

54

45

138

116

9515

67

17

102

27

126

107

49

108

103

13

9

123

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, ONS

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of AQMAs

SA12a Scores
-?
--?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.13: Res12a -
Contribution to road traffic
increases within AQMAs

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Professional judgment and 2011
Census data on commuting patterns
(http://commute.datashine.org.uk) were
used to assess the likelihood of larger
sites generating traffic that would use
road routes through an AQMA.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

305



52

40

3

42

4

95

74 82

104

101

20

34

58
72

17
86

102

94

41

73

66

81

71

49

92
61

112

87 84

103

37

98

75

38 77
9 96

8388

54

45

138

115

116
143

56

1462

91

99

110

15

68

26

131

132

43

121

135
136

138

125

23

67

122

63
140

65
69

128

100

118

133

30

127

113

29

7

1

145

18

106

27

126

22
11

28

139

53

107

79

70

44

76

105

108

39

47

6

134

33

137

64

13

129

21

117
111

130

19

25

5

31

36

24

50

119

89

123

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Environment Agency

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of contaminated land 
and Source Protection Zones

SA13a Scores
0
-?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.14: Res13a - Location
within an SPZ or on
contaminated land

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

306



115

116

52

143

40

1462
3

91

42 99

4

110

95

74 82

15

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

101

125

34

23

67

58

63

65

72

69

17

128

100

118

133

30

127

94

29

145

18

106

27

126

22
11

28

139
107

79

81

44

105

92
61

47

6

134

112

137

87 84

64

129

21

117
111

130

25

98

5

31

36

24

50

89

77
9 96

123

138
56

20

122

140

86

113

1

49

108

13

37

19

8388

54

45

102
7

41

73

53
66 70

71

76

39

33

103
75 119

38

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Environment Agency

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of Flood Zone 3
Extent of Flood Zone 2

SA14a Scores
0
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.15: Res14a - Flood
risk from rivers

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

307



115

116

52

143

40

1462
3

91

42 99

4

110
74 82

15

68

26

132

43

135
136

101

34

23

67

58

63
140

65

72

69

17

128

100

118

133

86

127

94

113

29

1

145

18

106

27

22
11

28

139
107

79

81

44

92
61

47

6

134

112

137

64

129

21

117
111

130

25

98

5

31

24

75

50

89

77
9 96

88

45

138
56

131

125

122

30

102
7

41

73

126

53
66 70

71

76

49

108

39

33

87

103

13

37

19

36

119

38

123

83

54
95

104

12120

105

84

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Environment Agency

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of ground water flood risk

Very high or high risk
Moderate risk

SA14b Scores
0
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.16: Res14b - Flood
risk from groundwater

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

308



115

116

52

143

91

99

4

110
74 82

15

26

132

43

121

135
136

138

101

23

65

72

69

128

100

118

133

30

86

127

94

29

7

1

145

106

126

22
28

139

66

79

81

71

44

76

39

61

47 134

112

137

64

37

21

111

130

25

98

5

31

36

24

75

50

89

96

83

56

40

1462
3

42

95

68

104 131

20

125

34

67

122

58

140

17

102

113

41

18

27

73

11

53

107

70

49

105

92

108

6

87 84

103

13

129

117

19

119

77
9

123
88

54

45

138

63
33

38

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Environment Agency

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of surface water 
flood risk (1:100 years)

SA14c Scores
0
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.17: Res14c -  Surface
water flood risk

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

309



115

143

56

40

146

91

42 99

4

110
74 82

15

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

138

101

20

125

23

67

122

63
140

65

72

69

100

118

133

30

86

127

113

29

41

1

145

18

106

27

126

22
28

139

53
66

79

70

81

71

44

76

105

92

108

39

47

112

33

137

87 84

64

13

37

129

21

117
111

130

19

25

98

5

31

36

24

75

50

119

89

96

123

83
88

54

45

34

7

11

6

77

138

116

52

2
3

95
58

17

128

102

94

73

107

49

61

134

103

38
9

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
SA15a Scores

++
+
0 or N/A

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.18: Res15a -
Prioritising use of brownfield
land

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Spatial data on brownfield land
unavailable - identified by visual
inspection of base mapping and aerial
imagery.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

310



52

143

56

1462
3

91

42 99

4

110

95

74 82

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

101

58

63

65

72

69

100

118

133

86

94

41

145

18

106

73

22
28

139

53
66

79

70

81

71

44

76

9239

61

47 134

112

137

87 84

64

37

129

21

111

25

98

5

31

36

24

75

50

119

89

38
9 96

83
88

54

45

138

7

11

77

115

116

40

15 20

125

34

23

67

122

140

17

128

30

102

127

113

29

1
27

126

107

49

105

108

6

33

103

13

117

130

19

123

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
SA15b Scores

0 and N/A
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.19: Res15b -  Avoiding
loss of greenfield land

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Spatial data on greenfield land
unavailable - identified by visual
inspection of base mapping and aerial
imagery.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

311



116

52

143

56

1462
3

91

42 99

4

110

95

74 82

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

101

20

125

58

63

65

72

69

100

118

133

86

102

94

41

145

18

106

73

126

22
28

139

53
66

79

70

81

71

44

76

49

105

9239

61

47 134

112

137

87 84

64

103

37

129

21

111

25

98

5

31

36

24

75

50

119

89

38 77
9 96

83
88

54 138

122

6

33

45

115

40

15

34

23

67

140

17

128

30

127

113

29

7

1
27

11

107

108

13

117

130

19

123

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Natural England

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of agricultural land

Grade 2 and 3
Grade 4

SA15c Scores
0
-
-- / --?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.20: Res15c - Avoiding
loss of high quality agricultural
land

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: There is no grade 1 agricultural
land within the study area.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

312



115

116

52

143

56

40

1462
3

91

42 99

4

110

95

74 82

15

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

101

20

125

34

58

63
140

65

72

69

100

118

133

86

102

127

94

41

145

18

106

27

73

126

22
11

28

139

53

107

66

79

70

81

71

44

76

49

105

9239

61

47 134

112

137

87 84

64

103

129

21

117
111

25

98

5

31

36

24

75

50

119

89

38 77
9 96

83
88

54

45

138

17

128

6

13

37

130

23

67

122

30

113

29

7

1

108

33

19

123

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of sand and gravel 
safeguarding area / mineral 
extraction site consultation 
buffer

SA15d Scores
0
-?
--?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.21: Res15d -  Avoiding
sterilisation of mineral
resources

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

313



116

52

143

56

40

1462

91

42 99

110

95

74 82

15

68

26

104 131

132

43

121

135
136

101

20

125

23

67

122

58

63
140

65

72

69

128

100

118

133

30

86

102

127

94

113

29

7

41

1

145

18

106

27

73

126

22
11

28

139

53

107

66

79

70

81

71

44

76

49

105

92

108

39

61

47

6

134

112

33

137

87 84

64

103

13

37

129

21

117
111

130

19

25

98

5

31

36

24

75

50

119

89

38 77
9 96

123

83
88

54

45

138

115

3
4

34

17

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, BGS

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of land instability 
problems

D: Pprobably present or have 
occurred in the past
C: Maybe present or 
anticipated

SA15e Scores
0
-

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.22: Res15e -  Avoiding
risk from land instability

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

Note: Reproduced from BGS50K map
data. Licence 2010/054B British
Geological Survey ©NERC. All rights
reserved. No land with category E
instability was present in the plan area.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

314



115

143

40

91

99

110

95

74 82

15

68

26

104 131

43

121

135
136

101

20

34

23

67

122

63
140

65

72

69

100

118

133

30

86

94

113

29

7

1

145

18

106

27

73

22
28

139

53
66

79

81

71

44

105

92

108

61

47

6

134

112

33

137

87 84

64

13

129

21

117
111

19

25

98

5

31

36

24 89

38
77

9
96

83

138

116

52

56

1462
3

42

4

132

125

58

17

128

102

127

41

126

11

107

70 76

49
39

103

37

130

75

50

119 123
88

54

45

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesResSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of waste management 
sites and buffers

SA16a Scores
0
--? / --

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.23: Res16a - Avoiding
conflicts with waste
management sites

Housing site options*
1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
5 - LAA1080
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
9 - LAA0629r
11 - LAA1079
13 - LAA1140
15 - LAA1027
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
22 - LAA1075
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
33 - LAA0169r
34 - LAA1100
36 - LAA1068
37 - LAA0767
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
41 - LAA0153
42 - LAA0771
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
47 - LAA1131
49 - LAA0333r

50 - LAA1026
52 - LAA0288r
53 - LAA0673
54 - LAA0666
56 - LAA0665r
58 - LAA1108
61 - LAA1010r
63 - LAA1117
64 - LAA1126
65 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA0674
67 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1033
69 - LAA1086B
70 - LAA0675
71 - LAA0827
72 - LAA0689
73 - LAA0328
74 - LAA1022
75 - LAA0174
76 - LAA0831
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA1050
81 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1023
83 - LAA0932
84 - LAA1123
86 - LAA1134r
87 - LAA1116
88 - LAA0933
89 - LAA1064
91 - LAA0744r
92 - LAA1124
94 - LAA0336r
95 - LAA1014
96 - LAA0335r
98 - LAA0903
99 - LAA0814
100 - LAA0749
101 - LAA1078

102 - LAA0181
103 - LAA1139
104 - LAA1041
105 - LAA1063
106 - LAA0740
107 - LAA1013
108 - LAA1007
110 - LAA0915r
111 - LAA1069
112 - LAA0496
113 - LAA0171
115 - LAA0204
116 - LAA0205
117 - LAA1137
118 - LAA1114
119 - LAA1138
121 - LAA1055
122 - LAA1107
123 - LAA0593r
125 - LAA1097
126 - LAA0657
127 - LAA0327
128 - LAA1024
129 - LAA1094
130 - LAA1098
131 - LAA1049
132 - LAA1051B
133 - LAA1051A
134 - LAA1001
135 - LAA1059B
136 - LAA1059C
137 - LAA1133
138 - LAA1060
138 - LAA0326r
139 - LAA1054
140 - LAA0508
143 - LAA0659
145 - LAA1058
146 - LAA0685

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

315



35
51

55

90

16 8562

80
93

48

60

46

57
59

78

97

114

109

32

120

14

12

10

124

137

144

8

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Sustrans

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of sustainable 
transport network
Assessment criterion 
zone of influence

SA2a and SA8a Scores
++
+
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.24: Emp2a & Emp8a -
Walking distance to
sustainable transport links

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: The same spatial test is relevant
to performance against Emp2a and
Emp8a therefore a single map is
provided for both results.  Bus service
frequency taken into account in
qualitative assessment is not mapped.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

316



16

14

35

114

144

51

55

90

109

8562

8

80
93

48

60

32

46

120

57

12

59

78

97

124

137

10

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Healthcare facility

! School location
SA4a Scores

0
-?
--?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.25: Emp4a - Noise and
light impacts on sensitive
receptors

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: Visually inspected base mapping
to identify sites adjacent to residential
areas and inspected healthcare and
schools data to identify sites adjacent to
these.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

317



55

90

109

85

80

120

57
59

97

35

114

144

51

16 62

8

93
48

60

32

46

14

12

78

10

124

137

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
SA6a Scores

++
+

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.26: Emp6a -
Employment provision

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

318



48

35

114

144
55

16

8

32

46

120

14

12

10

124

137

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of town centre

SA7a Scores
+
0
?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.27: Emp7a -  Location
of sites relative to town centre

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: Qualitative indicators, type of
development option and its locational
context within the town centre, are not
mapped.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

319



35

55

16

32

14

12

114

51 90

8562

80
93

48

6057
59

78

10 97
144

109

8

46

120
124

137

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Natural England

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of designated 
ecological sites
Assessment criterion zone of 
influence

SA9a Scores
0
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.28: Emp9a - Proximity
to designated ecological sites

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: Qualitative indicators, e.g. current
use, existing physical barriers, potential
for increased human disturbance and
trampling, are not mapped.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

320



35
51

55

90

109

8562

80
93

60

120

57

12

59

97

137

144

16

8

48

14

124

114

32

46

78

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of open space

SA10a Scores
++
N/A
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.29: Emp10a -
Presence of brownfield land,
derelict buildings and open
space

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: Spatial data of brownfield and
greenfield land unavailable - identified
by visual inspection of base mapping
and aerial imagery.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

321



35

114

51

55

90

109

85

80
93

12012

59

97

46

10
144

16

8

48

14

62

60

32

57

78

124

137

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Historic England

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of cultural heritage 
of significance

SA11a Scores
0 and N/A
?
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.30: Emp11a -
Potential impact on heritage
significance

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: Assessment has been undertaken
qualitatively  by Northampton Borough
Council based on a variety of baseline
data, not just the historic assets shown.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

322



35

114

144

51

55

90

109

16 8562

80
93

60

32

120

57

12

59

78

10 97

137

8

48

46

14

124

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, ONS

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of AQMAs

SA12a Scores
-?
--?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.31: Emp12a -
Contribution to road traffic
increases within AQMAs

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: Professional judgment and 2011
Census data on commuting patterns
(http://commute.datashine.org.uk) were
used to assess the likelihood of larger
sites generating traffic that would use
road routes through an AQMA.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

323



35
51

16 8562

80
93

48

60

46

57
59

78

10 97

137

114

144
55

90

109

8

32

120

14

12

124

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Environment Agency

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of contaminated land 
and Source Protection Zones

SA13a Scores
0
-?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.32: Emp13a -
Location within an SPZ or on
contaminated land

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

324



114

51 90

109

16

80
93

60

14

78

10 97

124

137

35

55

85

8

48

57

12

59

144

62

32

46

120

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Environment Agency

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of Flood Zone 3
Extent of Flood Zone 2

SA14a Scores
0
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.33: Emp14a -  Flood
risk from rivers

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

325



114

51 90

109

16 85

80
93

60

46

57

12

59

78

10 97

137

144
55

62

8

48

32

120

14

124

35

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Environment Agency

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of ground water flood risk

Very high or high risk
Moderate risk

SA14b Scores
0
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.34: Emp14b -  Flood
risk from groundwater

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

326



114

51 90

109

85

80
93

60

14

57
59

97

35

144
55

16 62

8

48

46

12012

78

10

124

137

32

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Environment Agency

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of surface water 
flood risk (1:100 years)

SA14c Scores
0
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.35: Emp14c - Surface
water flood risk

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

327



114

144
55

90

109

85

80

32

46

120

57
59

97

124

8
14

78

137

35
51

16 62

93
48

60

12

10

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
SA15a Scores

++
+
0 or N/A

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.36: Emp15a -
Prioritising use of brownfield
land

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: Spatial data on brownfield land
unavailable - identified by visual
inspection of base mapping and aerial
imagery.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

328



35
51

55

90

109

8562

80
93

60

120

57
59

10 97

137

12

78

114

144

16

8

48

32

46

14

124

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
SA15b Scores

0 and N/A
-
--

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.37: Emp15b -
Avoiding loss of greenfield land

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: Spatial data on greenfield land
unavailable - identified by visual
inspection of base mapping and aerial
imagery.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

329



35

114

51

55

90

109

8562

80
93

48

60

120

57

12

59

78

10 97

137

32

46
144

16

8
14

124

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, Natural England

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of agricultural land

Grade 2 and 3
Grade 4

SA15c Scores
0
-
-- / --?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.38: Emp15c -
Avoiding loss of high quality
agricultural land

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: There is no grade 1 agricultural
land within the study area.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

330



114

51

55

90

109

8562

80
93

48

60

46

120

57
59

78

10 97

137

35
16

14

144

8

32

12

124

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of sand and gravel 
safeguarding area / mineral 
extraction site consultation 
buffer

SA15d Scores
0
-?
--?

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.39: Emp15d -
Avoiding sterilisation of
mineral resources

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

331



35

114

144

51

55

90

109

8562

8

80
93

48

60

32

46

120

14

57

12

59

78

10 97

124

137

16

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC, BGS

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of land instability 
problems

D: Pprobably present or have 
occurred in the past
C: Maybe present or 
anticipated

SA15e Scores
0
-

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.40: Emp15e - Avoiding
risk from land instability

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

Note: Reproduced from BGS50K map
data. Licence 2010/054B British
Geological Survey ©NERC. All rights
reserved. No land with category E
instability was present in the plan area.
* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

332



90

109

8562

8

80
93

60

32

120

14

12

59

78

10 97

137

35

114

144

51

55

16

48

46

57

124

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. 
Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUC  FIGX_5823_2019r2_SAobjectivesEmpSCR_A4L  21/03/2019

Map Scale @ A4:   1:60,000

Source: Northampton BC

SA of Northampton 
Local Plan (Part 2)

Northampton Borough Council
Extent of waste management 
sites and buffers

SA16a Scores
0
--? / --

0 2 4 kmE

Figure 6.41: Emp16a -
Avoiding conflicts with waste
management sites

Employment site options*
8 - LAA0208
10 - LAA0629c
12 - LAA0870
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
32 - LAA0169c
35 - LAA0180
46 - LAA1005
48 - LAA0333c

51 - LAA0288c
55 - LAA0665c
57 - LAA0931
59 - LAA0167
60 - LAA1010c
62 - LAA0818
78 - LAA1113c
80 - LAA0598
85 - LAA1134c

90 - LAA0744c
93 - LAA0336c
97 - LAA0335c
109 - LAA0915c
114 - LAA0590
120 - LAA1101
124 - LAA0593c
137 - LAA0326c
144 - LAA0615

* Allocated sites are shown in bold.

333



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 141 March 2019 

SA results for allocation policies 

6.143 The Proposed Submission Local Plan has now allocated a number of the previously assessed site 
options for development.   

6.144 Sites allocated within the Proposed Submission LP are shown in Policy 12: Housing and Other 
Housing Led Allocation, and Policy 33: Development Allocations.  The allocations listed in these 
two policies have been individually assessed and the results reported earlier in Chapter 6.  Since 
the two policies do not place any additional requirements on the allocated sites, they have not 
been separately assessed. 

6.145 In addition, the Proposed Submission Local Plan provides a number of site-specific policies which 
provide more detailed guidance in relation to some of the allocated sites.  This section assesses 
each of these site-specific policies, taking into account both the GIS-based assessment scores for 
the related site allocations reported earlier in Chapter 6 and the provisions of the allocation 
policies.  The SA commentary focuses on significant effects plus effects that have changed 
between the GIS-based assessment and the assessment of the allocation policy because of 
requirements within the allocation policy. 

6.146 The reasonable alternatives to these policies are represented by the reasonable alternative sites 
that were not allocated; the assessments of these are presented earlier in this chapter. 

Policy 34: Northampton Railway Station (LAA0288), Railfreight and adjoining sites 
(LAA0333) 

 
Summary of policy  

On site LAA0288, the Council will support the delivery of mixed-use development including a 
multi-storey car park, offices, residential and ancillary Class A uses. 
 
On site LAA0333, the Council will support the delivery of at least 200 dwellings, subject to 
analysis of capacity, on the residual areas not required for commercial and/ or passenger rail 
services.  
SA Objective SA Sub-

Objective 
Initial 

SA 
asses
sment 
(LAA0
288r) 

Initial 
SA 

assess
ment 

(LAA02
88c) 

Initial 
SA 

asses
sment 
(LAA0
333r) 

Initial 
SA 

asses
sment 
(LAA0
333c) 

Proposed 
Submission 
Local Plan 

Assessment  

SA1: Housing SA1a ++ 0 ++ 0  ++ 

SA2: Sustainable travel  
SA2a  ++ ++ ++ ++ 

 ++ 
SA2b ++  ++  

SA3: Schools SA3a ++ 0 ++ 0  ++ 

SA4: Health and well-
being 

SA4a + -? + -? 

 ++/- SA4b +  ++  

SA4c -  -  

SA5: Crime SA5a 0 0 0 0  0 

SA6: Economy SA6a 0 ++ 0 ++  ++ 

SA7: Town Centre SA7a ? ? + +   ++  

334



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 142 March 2019 

SA Objective SA Sub-
Objective 

Initial 
SA 

asses
sment 
(LAA0
288r) 

Initial 
SA 

assess
ment 

(LAA02
88c) 

Initial 
SA 

asses
sment 
(LAA0
333r) 

Initial 
SA 

asses
sment 
(LAA0
333c) 

Proposed 
Submission 
Local Plan 

Assessment  

SA8: Climate change 
mitigation 

SA8a ++ ++ ++ ++ 
++ 

SA8b ++  ++  

SA9: Biodiversity & 
geodiversity SA9a 0 0 0 0  0 

SA10: Landscapes & 
townscapes SA10a N/A N/A - - ++ 

SA11: Historic 
environment  SA11a  N/A N/A ? ?  0 

SA12: Air quality SA12a -? -? --? --?  --? 

SA13: Water  
management SA13a -? -? -? -? -?  

SA14: Flood risk  

SA14a 0 0 -? - 

+/-  SA14b 0 0 - - 

SA14c 0 0 - - 

SA15: Soils & minerals 

SA15a ++ ++ ++ ++ 

 ++ 

SA15b 0 0 -- -- 

SA15c 0 0 0 0 

SA15d 0 0 0 0 

SA15e 0 0 0 0 

SA16: Waste management 
SA16a  --? --? -- -- -- 

 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach 

6.147 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 1 as this policy supports the 
delivery of 200 dwellings on site LAA033, as well as homes integrated into a mixed use scheme on 
site LAA0288, which will help to deliver Northampton’s identified housing need.   

6.148 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2 and 8 as both sites are in 
proximity to three types sustainable transport link, including the Northampton Railway Station, 
which is adjacent to the site.  Both sites are also within 2,000m of employment areas and within 
800m of local centres.  This will help to reduce the need to travel within, to and from 
Northampton by providing easy access to jobs, services and facilities and to sustainable travel 
alternatives.   

6.149 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 3 as both sites are within 300m 
of Spring Lane Primary School and within 2,000m of Northampton International Academy. 

6.150 Overall this policy is judged to have significant positive effects mixed with minor negative effects 
in relation to SA objective 4.  Sites LAA0333 and LAA0288 are both within 800m of healthcare 
facilities and within 800m of open spaces, including Victoria Park located on the western side of 
the railway.  LAA0333 is also within 800m of Mount Baths Leisure Centre.  However, the location 
of both sites near to the railway could result in some negative impacts on residents from noise.  

335



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 143 March 2019 

6.151 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 6 as site LAA0288 will support 
the delivery of mixed-use development including offices.  This will help to help facilitate the 
growth of Northampton’s economy and the availability of jobs. 

6.152 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 7 as the redevelopment of 
LAA0288 will help to improve the vitality of this part of the town centre.  The design principles 
supporting this policy will help to facilitate this vitality through the requirement to create a high 
quality integrated development with improved and safe connectivity, including direct pedestrian 
routes with the Spring Boroughs area and the town centre. 

6.153 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 10 as development of both 
sites will be on brownfield land.  In addition, there will be significant improvement to site LAA0333 
which is currently brownfield and disused.  Based on the design principles shown in the Figure 
supporting this policy, the area of greenfield land in the north-west of the site will be retained and 
subject to enhancement, including the site’s relationship to the Brampton Arm of the River Nene.  

6.154 Prior to drafting of the allocation policy, uncertain effects were assessed by NBC in relation to SA 
objective 11.  This site is historically sensitive as it may reveal remains of Northampton castle.  
The setting of the Listed Postern gate and walls will be an important consideration as will the 
setting of other listed buildings in the vicinity with may be inter-visible with the site.  However, 
the allocation policy requires that development secures the protection, enhancement and 
enjoyment of the character and setting of the adjacent listed building and its two adjoining listed 
walls that are located within the existing railway station site, and a public realm will be created 
between the heritage assets and the station building as shown in the development principles 
figure.  This mitigation results in a negligible effect.   

6.155 Significant negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 12 as it appears likely from 
2011 Census data and layout of the road network that a significant number of car commuters to 
and from the area of site LAA0333 would pass through the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA.  
The new multi-storey car park provided for by the policy would also be likely to attract large 
numbers of vehicle movements to the site by those commuting further afield by rail.  This would 
be likely to worsen air quality close to the site but, by making long distance rail commuting more 
convenient and help to avoid long distance commuting by car would have positive effects for 
wider air quality.  In addition, proposals to provide additional capacity to facilitate improved 
passenger railway services at Northampton station will be supported, which will help to encourage 
more people to utilise public transport rather than private vehicles.  However, these effects are 
uncertain subject to which routes are actually used and the degree to which modes of sustainable 
travel are used. 

6.156 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 13 as parts of both sites contain 
contaminated land, which could adversely affect groundwater.  However, effects are uncertain 
dependent on protective measures taken during construction and operation of the employment 
site. 

6.157 Mixed minor positive and minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 14 as the 
majority of the site LAA0333 is located within Flood Zone 2.  The majority of the site LAA0333 is 
located within an area of 'moderate risk' to Groundwater Flooding.  Parts of the site LAA0333 
(<50%) are within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.  However, this policy encourages 
the use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) which could help reduce the risk of flooding by 
reducing the risk of surface water runoff.  

6.158 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 15 the development of these 
sites will occur on brownfield land.  Based on the supporting design principles shown in the Figure 
supporting this policy, the area of greenfield land to the northwest of the site will be subject to 
green infrastructure improvement.   

6.159 Significant negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 16 as the northern half of site 
LAA0333 is located within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.  
Residential use of LAA0333 could conflict and sterilise this waste facility. In addition, 
approximately two thirds of the site LAA0288 is located within 300m of an industrial area in which 
the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable. 

6.160 Negligible effects are expected in relation to the remaining SA objectives.   

336



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 144 March 2019 

Policy 35: Martin’s Yard Extension (LAA1005) – employment 
 

Summary of policy  

Extension to existing employment area of Martin’s yard, which is predominantly occupied by 
local light engineering, waste disposal and recycling companies. The area which is proposed for 
extension is a vacant site of around 1.4 ha, which was previously used for landfill. 

SA Objective SA Sub-
objective 

Initial SA 
assessment of 

LAA1005c 

Proposed 
Submission  
Local Plan 

Assessment 

SA1: Housing SA1a: 0 0 

SA2: Sustainable travel  SA2a  ++ ++ 

SA3: Schools SA3a 0 0 

SA4: Health and well-being SA4a -? 0 

SA5: Crime SA5a 0 0 

SA6: Economy SA6a ++ ++ 

SA7: Town Centre SA7a 0 0 

SA8: Climate change mitigation SA8a ++ ++ 

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity SA9a -- ++/-- 

SA10: Landscapes & townscapes SA10a -- ++/-- 

SA11: Historic environment  SA11a  0 0 

SA12: Air quality SA12a --? --? 

SA13: Water  management SA13a -? -? 

SA14: Flood risk 

SA14a -- 

0 SA14b 0 

SA14c - 

SA15: Soils & minerals 

SA15a 0 

0 

SA15b -- 

SA15c - 

SA15d 0 

SA15e 0 

SA16: Waste management SA16  -- 0 

 

337



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 145 March 2019 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach 

6.161 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2 and 8 as the site is located 
in proximity to three kinds of sustainable transport link.  As such, the location of this employment 
site could help to facilitate sustainable modes of travel and minimise greenhouse gas emissions.  

6.162 Negligible effects are expected in relation to SA objective 4 as, based on the supporting design 
principles outlined in the Figure supporting this policy, the area to be developed for employment 
is located more than 100m away from sensitive receptors.  

6.163 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 6 as the site is larger than 1ha 
and will allow the ongoing requirements of existing occupiers of adjacent land and other 
interested occupiers to invest and expand in the area, which is likely to improve employment 
opportunities.   

6.164 Mixed significant negative and significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 
9 as the site forms part of the Kingsthorpe Mire Local Wildlife Site.  As such, development in this 
area could adversely impact biodiversity due to loss of part of the wildlife site.  However, based 
on the supporting design principles outlined in the Figure supporting this policy, the north-east of 
the site will be subject to ecological enhancement and improvements in biodiversity.   

6.165 Mixed significant negative and significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 
10 as development of this site would lead to loss of part of Lyncroft Way Natural Space.  As such 
development in this area could adversely impact Northampton’s open spaces and green 
infrastructure networks.  However, based on the supporting design principles outlined in the 
Figure supporting this policy, the north-east of the site will be subject to ecological enhancement 
and improvement biodiversity, which would improve the quality of open space and green 
infrastructure in this particular part of the site. 

6.166 Significant negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 12 as it appears likely from 
2011 census data and the layout of the road network that a significant proportion of car 
commuters to the site would pass through the Zone 3 St James' Road AQMA and the Zone 6 
Campbell Square AQMA.  However, these effects are uncertain since it depends on which routes 
are actually used and the degree to which modes of sustainable travel are used.  

6.167 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 13 as the site contains 
contaminated land, which could adversely affect groundwater.  However, this effect is uncertain 
since it is dependent on protective measures taken during construction and operation of the 
employment site.  

6.168 Negligible effects are expected in relation to SA objective 14 as, based on the supporting design 
principles outlined in the Figure supporting this policy, the area to be developed for employment 
is not located within Flood Zone 2 or 3.  Furthermore, Policy 5 notes the development should 
maximise the use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) subject to detailed assessment, which 
would help to mitigate any increased risk in flooding.  

6.169 Negligible effects are expected in relation to SA objective 15.  Although the site contains more 
than 1ha of greenfield land and agricultural land, negative effects in relation to SA15b and SA15c 
have not been carried through to the assessment score for the allocation policy as, based on the 
supporting design principles in the Figure supporting this policy, the area to be developed does 
not include any areas of agricultural land and is restricted to a former landfill site.  

6.170 Negligible effects are expected in relation to SA objective 16 as the nature of the employment use 
will be similar to adjacent areas.  This use consists of local light engineering, waste disposal and 
recycling companies.  These employment uses are unlikely to conflict with active or committed 
waste management sites within 300m of the development and the allocation will bring a former 
landfill site into positive use.  

6.171 Negligible effects are expected in relation to the remaining SA objectives.   

338



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 146 March 2019 

Policy 36: The Green, Great Houghton (LAA1098) – housing  
Summary of policy 

Housing development of up to 800 dwellings. 

SA Objective  SA Sub-
Objective 

Initial SA 
assessment of 

LAA1098r 

Proposed Submission  
Local Plan 

Assessment 

SA1: Housing SA1a ++ ++ 

SA2: Sustainable travel  
SA2a  - 

+ 
SA2b + 

SA3: Schools SA3a - - 

SA4: Health and well-being 

SA4a - 

+/- SA4b + 

SA4c 0 

SA5: Crime SA5a 0 0 

SA6: Economy SA6a 0 0 

SA7: Town Centre SA7a 0 0 

SA8: Climate change mitigation 
SA8a - 

+ 
SA8b + 

SA9: Biodiversity & geodiversity SA9a -- +/-- 

SA10: Landscapes & 
townscapes SA10a - +/- 

SA11: Historic environment  SA11a  ? 0 

SA12: Air quality SA12a -? -? 

SA13: Water  management SA13a 0 0 

SA14: Flood risk 

SA14a 0 

0 SA14b 0 

SA14c 0 

SA15: Soils & minerals 

SA15a 0 

-- 

SA15b -- 

SA15c -- 

SA15d -? 

SA15e 0 

339



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 147 March 2019 

SA Objective  SA Sub-
Objective 

Initial SA 
assessment of 

LAA1098r 

Proposed Submission  
Local Plan 

Assessment 

SA16: Waste management SA16a  --? --? 

 

SA findings for the Proposed Submission Local Plan  

6.172 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 1 as this development site will 
deliver up to 800 homes helping cater to the needs of Northampton’s growing population.  

6.173 Minor positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2 and 8.  Although the site is only 
in proximity to one type of sustainable transport link the minor negative effect is not carried 
through to the SA score for the allocation policy due to the policy requirements for development 
to provide suitable transport links to neighbouring developments, including neighbourhood centres 
and community facilities and improved pedestrian and cycling connections to the employment 
area to the north and the proposed residential areas to the west (as also indicated in supporting 
design principles in the Figure supporting this policy).  The site is also within 2000m of an existing 
employment area. As such, the location of this residential site could help to facilitate sustainable 
modes of travel and minimise greenhouse gas emissions.  

6.174 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 3 as this site is not within walking 
distance of primary schools.  

6.175 Mixed minor effects are expected in relation to SA objective 4 as the site is more than 800m from 
a healthcare facility but within 800m of open space, including Brackmills Country Park adjacent to 
the north of site. 

6.176 Mixed minor positive and significant negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 9.  
The site is within the 3km zone of influence of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site 
and SSSI for recreational disturbance.  In addition, approximately two thirds of the site (to the 
north and east) contains optimal supporting habitat for the Golden Plover population of Upper 
Nene Valley Gravel Pits with most of the remainder of the site containing sub-optimal habitat for 
the Golden Plover.  However, based on policy text and supporting design principles outlined in the 
Figure supporting this policy, a significant area in the north-east of the site will be subject to 
ecological enhancement and a net increase in biodiversity.  This issue was considered in more 
detail in the HRA which concluded that the Local Plan Part 2 would not result in adverse effects on 
integrity of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site, on condition that the 
recommendations in the HRA are taken into account in the Local Plan. 

6.177 Mixed minor effects are expected in relation to SA objective 10.  Although the site is greenfield 
land as, based on policy text and supporting design principles outlined in the Figure supporting 
this policy, a significant area in the north-east of the site will be subject to ecological 
enhancement, which is also likely to benefit the landscape.  The development will not lead to any 
loss of designated open space.  

6.178 Prior to drafting of the allocation policy, uncertain effects were assessed by NBC in relation to SA 
objective 11.  The form of development has potential to impact on heritage assets. The setting of 
listed buildings (including views) will need to be taken into consideration as will the character of 
the conservation area, in any development proposals. There is potential to impact adversely on 
setting/character causing harm to heritage assets.  However, mitigation is provided by the policy 
which requires the scheme to be of high quality design and take into account and be sensitive to 
the significance and the setting of the Great Houghton conservation area, evident through a 
Heritage Impact Assessment.  This mitigation results in a negligible effect overall. 

6.179 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 12 as the large nature of this site 
could lead to a significant increase in commuters by car occupying the Northampton road network 
leading to air pollution around Northampton.  However, it appears unlikely from 2011 Census data 
and layout of road network that a significant number of car commuters from the area of this site 
would be likely to pass through an AQMA.  In addition, the policy states that any proposal that 
comes forward should include suitable measures to mitigate the impact of additional traffic 
generated by the development.  However, effects are uncertain as the actual routes that will be 

340



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 148 March 2019 

used by new residents are unknown and the actual implementation of effective suitable mitigation 
measures is unclear.  

6.180 Significant negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 15 as the site contains 
significant amounts (more than 1ha) of greenfield land and Grade 2 (Very Good) agricultural land.  
Furthermore, the southern part of the site is located within a Sand and Gravel safeguarding area.  

6.181 Significant negative effects with uncertainty are expected in relation to SA objective 16 as the 
north-western fringe of the site is partially within 300m of an industrial area in which the MLP 
considers waste management uses to be acceptable, with potential adverse effects on residential 
amenity.   

6.182 Negligible effects are expected in relation to the remaining SA objectives.  

341



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 149 March 2019 

Policy 37: Greyfriars (LAA1113) 
Summary of policy  

Proposals for high density mixed use development 

 SA Sub-
Objective 

Initial SA 
assessment 
(LAA1113r) 

Initial SA 
assessment 
(LAA1113c) 

Proposed 
Submission  
Local Plan 

Assessment 

SA1: Housing SA1a ++ 0  ++  

SA2: Sustainable 
travel  

SA2a  ++ ++ 
 ++ 

SA2b ++  

SA3: Schools SA3a ++ 0  ++ 

SA4: Health and 
well-being 

SA4a + -? 

 ++/- SA4b ++  

SA4c 0  

SA5: Crime SA5a 0 0  0 

SA6: Economy SA6a 0 ++ ++ 

SA7: Town Centre SA7a ? ? ++ 

SA8: Climate 
change mitigation 

SA8a ++ ++ 
++  

SA8b ++  

SA9: Biodiversity & 
geodiversity SA9a -- 0 --  

SA10: Landscapes 
& townscapes SA10a -- -- ++/-- 

SA11: Historic 
environment  SA11a  -- --  -? 

SA12: Air quality SA12a -? -?  -? 

SA13: Water  
management SA13a -? -?  -? 

SA14: Flood risk 

SA14a 0 0 

- SA14b 0 0 

SA14c - - 

  

342



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 150 March 2019 

 

 SA Sub-
Objective 

Initial SA 
assessment 
(LAA1113r) 

Initial SA 
assessment 
(LAA1113c) 

Proposed 
Submission  
Local Plan 

Assessment 

SA15: Soils & 
minerals 

SA15a + + 

+/- 

SA15b - - 

SA15c 0 0 

SA15d 0 0 

SA15e 0 0 

SA16: Waste 
management SA16a  0 0 0 

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission Local Plan  

6.183 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 1 as the allocation will facilitate 
the creation of a high-density, high quality housing development, which will help to deliver 
Northampton’s identified housing need.   

6.184 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2 and 8 as the site is in 
proximity to three types of sustainable transport links.  The site is also within Northampton Town 
Centre, and within 2,000m of employment areas.  As such, the location of this mixed use site 
could help to reduce the need to travel within, to and from Northampton by providing easy access 
to jobs, services and facilities and to sustainable travel alternatives. 

6.185 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 3 as the site is within walking 
distance of the Northampton International Academy Secondary School and the western half of the 
site is within 500m of primary schools.   

6.186 Mixed significant positive and minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 4.  
Positive effects arise from the site being within 800m of sports facilities and open space, including 
Wellington St Amenity Greenspace located across the road to the east of site, and within walking 
distance of a healthcare facility.  However, development of the site would lead to the loss of 
Lady's Lane Amenity Green Space and the policy and supporting development principles figure do 
not indicate that any green space will be conserved or provided.  Note that the minor negative 
effect within uncertainty assigned to employment use of the site was an assumption for all smaller 
employment sites in the absence of qualitative assessment.  However, the allocation policy 
stipulates town centre uses and this form of employment development would be unlikely to 
negatively affect nearby residential development or other sensitive receptors.  

6.187 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 6 and 7 as the site will 
incorporate town centre development, as well as residential which complements, expands and 
seeks to enhance the town centre. As such the development will increase the availability of jobs 
and growth of Northampton’s economy.  It will also serve to increase the vitality of the town 
centre such as through provision of active frontages, as shown in the design principles Figure 
supporting this policy.  

6.188 Significant negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 9 as the site is within 3km of 
the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.  This issue was considered in more 
detail in the HRA which concluded that the Local Plan Part 2 would not result in adverse effects on 
integrity of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site, on condition that the 
recommendations in the HRA are taken into account in the Local Plan. 

6.189 Mixed significant positive and significant negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 
10 as development of this site could result in the loss of Lady’s Land Amenity Green Space.  
However, the policy requires development of this site to be of high quality design and include the 
creation of key, unique landmark buildings that reflect the location of this site and Northampton 

343



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 151 March 2019 

town centre.  As such, this policy could help to enhance the quality and character of 
Northampton’s townscape.  

6.190 Minor negative effects with uncertainty are expected in relation to SA objective 11 as 
development of this site has potential to impact on a number of designated and non-designated 
heritage assets, including Holy Sepulchre Church, other listed buildings, All Saints Conservation 
Area and Holy Sepulchre Conservation Area.  However, mitigation is provided by the policy 
requirements for high quality design and development to be well related and sympathetic to the 
characterisation and heritage assets of the surrounding areas.   

6.191 Minor negative effects with uncertainty are expected in relation to SA objective 12 as it appears 
likely from 2011 census data and the layout of the road network that a significant proportion of 
car commuters to and from the site would pass through Zone 6 Campbell Square AQMA, Zone 8 
St Michael’s Road AQMA and Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA and the allocation policy provides 
for vehicle parking.  However, these effects are uncertain since they are subject to the routes 
actually used and the degree to which modes of sustainable travel are used.  

6.192 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 13 as parts of the site contain 
contaminated land, which could have minor negative effect on groundwater quality.   However, 
these effects are uncertain subject to the protective measures taken during construction and 
operation, and the nature of any land contamination. 

6.193 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 14 as a small proposition of the 
site is within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area and the allocation policy does not 
provide for SUDS. 

6.194 Mixed minor positive and negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 15 as the 
majority of the site contains previously developed land.  However, the site also contains some 
greenfield land in the form of amenity greenspace.  

6.195 Negligible effects are expected in relation to the remaining SA objectives.   

344



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 152 March 2019 

Policy 38: Ransome Road (LAA1139)  
Summary of policy  

Development of up to 250 dwellings on this site which is located within an area that will be 
experiencing a high amount of regeneration activity and change.  It lies immediately to the south 
of the Enterprise Zone, and is accessible to all the leisure activity and open spaces associated 
with the River Nene.  The eastern section of the site is a Registered Battlefield site, and the 
southern and south eastern boundaries borders onto Delapre Park Conservation Area and its 
historic park.  There are areas of historic landfill and contamination on the site, particularly 
within the southern and eastern areas. 
SA Objective SA Sub-

Objective 
Initial SA assessment 

(LAA1139r) 
Proposed Submission 

Local Plan 
Assessment    

SA1: Housing SA1 ++ ++  

SA2: Sustainable travel  
SA2a  ++ 

++  
SA2b ++ 

SA3: Schools SA3a -  - 

SA4: Health and well-
being 

SA4a + 

 ++/- SA4b ++ 

SA4c - 

SA5: Crime SA5a 0  0 

SA6: Economy SA6a 0  0 

SA7: Town Centre SA7a +  + 

SA8: Climate change 
mitigation 

SA8a ++ 
 ++ 

SA8b ++ 

SA9: Biodiversity & 
geodiversity SA9a -- +/-- 

SA10: Landscapes & 
townscapes SA10a -- 0 

SA11: Historic 
environment  SA11a  --  -? 

SA12: Air quality SA12a --? --?  

SA13: Water  
management SA13a -? -?  

SA14: Flood risk 

SA14a -- 

 - SA14b - 

SA14c - 

  

345



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 153 March 2019 

 

SA Objective SA Sub-
Objective 

Initial SA assessment 
(LAA1139r) 

Proposed Submission 
Local Plan 

Assessment    

SA15: Soils & minerals 

SA15a ++ 

++ 

SA15b -- 

SA15c 0 

SA15d 0 

SA15e 0 

SA16: Waste management SA16a  -- -- 

 
SA findings for the Proposed Submission Local Plan  

6.196 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 1 as the site will help deliver 
up to 250 dwellings, which will help to deliver Northampton’s identified housing need.  

6.197 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objectives 2 and 8 as the development 
site is in proximity to three types of sustainable transport, within 800m of a local centre and 
within 2,000m of an employment area.  As such, the location of this residential site could help to 
reduce the need to travel within, to and from Northampton by providing easy access to jobs, 
services and facilities and to sustainable travel alternatives. 

6.198 Minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 3 as the site is located within 
2,000m of Abbeyfield Secondary School but not located within walking distance of a primary 
school.  

6.199 Mixed significant positive with minor negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 4 as 
a small part of the site is located within 50m of a railway track, so residents could be adversely 
affected by noise pollution.  However, the site is within 800m of healthcare facilities and open 
spaces, including Cripps Recreation Centre.  

6.200 A minor positive effect is expected in relation to SA objective 7 as the site is located within 
Northampton town centre.  The site is predominantly brownfield, therefore development of the 
site for residential use would not result in the loss of commercial and retail uses within the town 
centre, but would contribute to the provision of a range of homes within the town centre and 
increase footfall within the town centre which could also strengthen the vitality. 

6.201 Significant negative effects mixed with a minor positive effect are expected in relation to SA 
objective 9 as the site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar 
Site.   This issue was considered in more detail in the HRA which concluded that the Local Plan 
Part 2 would not result in adverse effects on integrity of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 
and Ramsar Site, on condition that the recommendations in the HRA are taken into account in the 
Local Plan.  The eastern half of the site is also located within 250m of Delapre Lake Local Wildlife 
Site and Barnes Meadow Local Nature Reserve.  However, the policy supports the delivery of a 
strategic green corridor that would run through the development site which could link green 
spaces and have a positive impact on biodiversity. 

6.202 Although the eastern end of this site overlays part of the designated open space of Delapre Park, 
a negligible effect is expected in relation to SA objective 10 as, based on supporting design 
principles in the Figure supporting this policy, development will not occur on the designated open 
space of Delapre Park.  

6.203 Prior to drafting of the allocation policy, NBC’s heritage assessment identified significant negative 
effects from development of this site as the development has potential to impact on setting and 
character of the historic environment resulting in a level of harm to designated heritage assets, 
including loss of part of the registered battlefield within the eastern part of the site.  However, the 

346



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 154 March 2019 

policy requires development to respect the historic integrity and significance of on-site and nearby 
heritage assets, as well as appropriately address the site’s location within and adjacent to the 
registered battlefield of the Battle of Northampton and also make an appropriate contribution to 
supporting its interpretation to the local area.   This is judged to reduce the effect to a minor 
negative one with uncertainty. 

6.204 Significant negative effects with uncertainty are expected in relation to SA objective 12 as it 
appears likely from 2011 census data and layout of the road network that a significant proportion 
of car commuters from this site would pass through the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA.  
However, these effects are uncertain since they are subject to the routes actually used and the 
degree to which modes of sustainable travel are used. 

6.205 A minor negative effect is expected in relation to SA objective 13 as areas of the site contain 
contaminated land, which could adversely affect groundwater.  However, this effect is uncertain 
since it depends on protective measures taken during construction and operation of this 
residential site. 

6.206 A minor positive effect is expected in relation to SA objective 14 as the majority of the site falls 
within Flood Zone 3.  Furthermore, a small proportion of the site  (<50%) falls within a 1 in 100 
year surface water flood risk area, and the majority of the site falls within moderate groundwater 
flood risk area.  However, the policy requires development on this site to incorporate appropriate 
measures to mitigate against flood risk both within the area and downstream of the sites, 
particularly taking account of the role of Hardingstone Dyke and residual risk associated with 
River Nene fluvial flood defences.  The policy also requires development to incorporate use of 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) subject to detailed assessment.  

6.207 Significant positive effects are expected in relation to SA objective 15 as, based on the supporting 
design principles in the Figure supporting this policy, the area to be developed would be wholly 
brownfield with existing greenfield areas remaining within the east of the site.  

6.208 Significant negative effects are expected in relation to SA objective 16 as approximately one third 
(to the west) of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility 
with the potential for negative effects on residential amenity. 

6.209 Negligible effects are expected for the remaining SA objectives.  

 

347



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 155 March 2019 

7 Cumulative effects 

7.1 Preceding sections of this SA Report have described the likely effects of the individual policies and 
site allocations set out in the Proposed Submission Draft Local Plan Part 2.   

7.2 The effects of the Local Plan Part 2 site allocations have already been summarised in Table 6.3 
and Table 6.4.  Those of the Local Plan Part 2 policies are summarised in Table 7.1. These effects 
of the separate components of the plan are considered alongside the likely evolution of the 
baseline without the Local Plan Part 2 to provide an assessment of cumulative effects, as required 
by the SEA Regulations.     

348



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 156 March 2019 

Table 7.1 Summary of SA scores for the Local Plan Part 2 policies 

Local Plan Policy 

S
A
1:

 H
ou

si
ng

 

S
A
2:

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
tr

av
el

  

S
A
3:

 S
ch

oo
ls

 

S
A
4:

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
l-

be
in

g 

S
A
5:

 C
ri
m

e 

S
A
6:

 E
co

no
m

y 

S
A
7:

 T
ow

n 
C
en

tr
e 

S
A
8:

 C
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 

S
A
9:

 B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 &
 

ge
od

iv
er

si
ty

 

S
A
10

: 
La

nd
sc

ap
es

 &
 

to
w

ns
ca

pe
s 

S
A
11

: 
H

is
to

ri
c 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

 

S
A
12

: 
A
ir
 q

ua
lit

y 

S
A
13

: 
W

at
er

  
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

S
A
14

: 
Fl

oo
d 

ri
sk

 

S
A
15

: 
S
oi

ls
 &

 
m

in
er

al
s 

S
A
16

: 
W

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

Policy 1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + 
Policy 2: Placemaking 0 ++ ++ + + + ++ 0 0 ++ ++ 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 3: Design + ++ 0 + 0 0 + ++ 0 ++ 0 + 0 0 0 0 
Policy 4: Amenity and Layout + 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 5: Sustainable Construction  ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 ++ 0 + 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 
Policy 6: Flood Risk and Water Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 0 
Policy 7: Supporting Northampton Town Centre 0 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 8: Regeneration Opportunities ++ 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 9: University of Northampton Waterside Campus 0 0 ++ 0 0 + + 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 10: Managing Hotel Growth  0 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 11: Development of Main Town Centre Uses ++ 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 12: Housing and Other Housing Led Allocation ++ N/A 0 + N/A + N/A - N/A N/A N/A - - N/A N/A N/A 
Policy 13: Type and Mix of Housing ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 14: Delivering House in Multiple Occupation ++ 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 + 0 + 
Policy 15: Safeguarding Existing Employment Sites 0 0 0 0 0 ++ 0 - 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 
Policy 16: New Employment Developments and Schemes 0 0 0 0 0 ++ 0 - 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 
Policy 17: New Retail Developments and Retail Impact Assessments 0 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ - 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 
Policy 18: Residential Development on Upper Floors ++ 0 0 0 0 + + - 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 
Policy 19: Neighbourhood Centres 0 0 0 ++ 0 + 0 + 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 
Policy 20: Community Services and Facilities 0 ++ 0 ++ 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 
Policy 21: Childcare Provision 0 ++ ++ ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 22: Sites for Burial Space 0 + 0 +/--? 0 0 0 + --? 0 + -? 0 0 -- 0 
Policy 23: Northampton’s Green Infrastructure 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 ++ ++ ++ 0 ++ ++ ++ 0 0 
Policy 24: Providing Open Spaces 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 +/- + + 0 +/- 0 0 0 0 
Policy 25: Supporting and Enhancing Biodiversity 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 ++ + 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 ++ + 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 27: Protection and Enhancements of Heritage Assets 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 ++ ++ 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 28: Designing Sustainable Transport and Travel 0 ++ 0 ++ + 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 
Policy 29: Highway Network and Safety 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 30: Transport Schemes and Mitigation 0 ++ 0 ++ 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 

349



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 157 March 2019 

Local Plan Policy 

S
A
1:

 H
ou

si
ng

 

S
A
2:

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
tr

av
el

  

S
A
3:

 S
ch

oo
ls

 

S
A
4:

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
l-

be
in

g 

S
A
5:

 C
ri
m

e 

S
A
6:

 E
co

no
m

y 

S
A
7:

 T
ow

n 
C
en

tr
e 

S
A
8:

 C
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 

S
A
9:

 B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 &
 

ge
od

iv
er

si
ty

 

S
A
10

: 
La

nd
sc

ap
es

 &
 

to
w

ns
ca

pe
s 

S
A
11

: 
H

is
to

ri
c 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

 

S
A
12

: 
A
ir
 q

ua
lit

y 

S
A
13

: 
W

at
er

  
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

S
A
14

: 
Fl

oo
d 

ri
sk

 

S
A
15

: 
S
oi

ls
 &

 
m

in
er

al
s 

S
A
16

: 
W

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

Policy 31: Parking Standards 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 
Policy 32: Infrastructure Delivery and Contributions ++ 0 ++ ++ 0 0 + 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Policy 33: Development Allocations N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Policy 34: Northampton Railway Station, Railfreight & adjoining sites ++ ++ ++ ++/- 0 ++ ++ ++ 0 ++ 0 --? -? - ++ -- 
Policy 35: Martin’s Yard Extension (LAA1005) – employment 0 ++ 0 0 0 ++ 0 ++ ++/-- ++/-- 0 --? -? 0 0 0 
Policy 36: The Green, Great Houghton (LAA1098) – housing ++ + - +/- 0 0 0 + +/-- +/- 0 -? 0 0 -- --? 
Policy 37: Greyfriars (LAA1113) ++ ++ ++ ++/- 0 ++ ++ ++ -- ++/-- -? -? -? - +/- 0 
Policy 38: Ransome Road (LAA1139) ++ ++ - ++/- 0 0 + ++ +/-- 0 -? --? -? - ++ -- 

350



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 158 March 2019 

7.3 In addition to the potential effects arising from development in Northampton provided by the 
Local Plan Part 2, there is also potential for cumulative effects with other development planned in 
neighbouring boroughs and districts as well as county-wide initiatives such as transport 
infrastructure projects and mineral and waste development within and adjacent to Northampton 
Borough.  Table 7.2 below sets out the current status regarding the amount of growth planned 
by each local authority and the relative stage in plan preparation.  

Table 7.2 Summary of in-combination effects 

Plan Progress Objectives 

West 
Northamptonshire Joint 
Core Strategy (JCS) 

Adopted December 2014. Forms 
Part 1 of the suite of Local Plans 
in the West Northamptonshire 
region, which includes 
Northampton Borough, and is 
therefore part of the 
Development Plan for 
Northampton.  

Makes provisions for a total of 
47,620 net additional dwellings 
across the plan area. These are 
distributed between: Daventry 
District (12,730); Northampton 
(18,870); South Northamptonshire 
District (11,020).  

Eight Sustainable Urban Extensions 
(SUEs)  are allocated by the JCS 
within or adjoining Northampton 
Borough’s boundary.  13,350 
dwellings are distributed between 
Northampton West SUE (2,550), 
Northampton South SUE (1,000), 
Northampton South of Brackmills 
SUE (1,300), Northampton Kings 
Heath SUE (3,000), Northampton 
North of Whitehills SUE (1,000), 
Northampton Upton Park SUE 
(1,000), and Northampton Norwood 
Farm/Upton Lodge SUE (3,500) 

The SUEs proposed within the 
districts surrounding Northampton 
are not located in close proximity of 
the boundary of Northampton 
Borough, however, they are located 
on or near major roads that lead 
into Northampton, so effects could 
be felt within the Borough.  

North 
Northamptonshire Joint 
Core Strategy (JCS) 

Adopted July 2016 and forms the 
strategic guidance for the Local 
Plans for Corby, East 
Northamptonshire, Kettering and 
Wellingborough. North 
Northamptonshire borders the 
West Northamptonshire region to 
the north. 

The JCS outlines the need for 
housing of 34,900 net additional 
dwellings over the plan period 
2011-31. Policy 28 sets out the 
distribution of these dwellings 
between districts - with Kettering 
Borough to absorb 10,400 dwellings 
and Wellingborough 7,000. 

One of the most significant 
proposals is for the sustainable 
urban extension with around 2,500 
homes to the East of Rushden.  

South 
Northamptonshire Part 

Emerging. Public consultation on 
the Draft Plan concluded in 

The Draft Plan provides for 11,020 
net additional dwellings over the 

351



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 159 March 2019 

Plan Progress Objectives 

2 Local Plan  November 2018 and adoption is 
projected for late 2019. South 
Northamptonshire falls within the 
West Northamptonshire region 
and borders the southern half of 
Northampton Borough. 

plan period for 2011-2029, 
reflecting the provisions in Policy S3 
of the West Northamptonshire JCS. 
However South Northamptonshire 
carried out their own Housing Needs 
Assessment in line with the revised 
NPPF (2018), giving a lower 
‘housing need’ figure of 6,320.  

The distribution of housing provision 
allocates new dwellings relatively 
evenly – 2,160 in Brackley; 2,650 in 
Towcester town; 2,360 in the South 
Northamptonshire rural area; and 
3,850 in the Northampton Related 
Development Area (NRDA).  

Daventry District 
Settlements and 
Countryside (Part 2) 
Local Plan  

Emerging. Consultation on the 
Draft Plan concluded in October 
2018 and, according to the Local 
Development Scheme, the Part 2 
Local Plan is projected for 
adoption in July 2019. Daventry 
District falls within the West 
Northamptonshire region and 
borders the northern half of 
Northampton Borough. 

Policy S3 of the West 
Northamptonshire JCS sets out that 
over 2011-2029, 12,730 net 
additional dwellings will be delivered 
in Daventry District, with Daventry 
town accounting for 4,620 
dwellings. As of April 2018, 2,581 
dwellings had been delivered 
against this requirement, with the 
majority in rural areas. 

The Plan for the 
Borough of 
Wellingborough (PBW)  

Adopted February 2019. The Plan 
is now formally part of the 
Development plan forming Part 2 
of the Local Plan for the borough. 
This Part 2 Plan fully supersedes 
the policies in the Town Centre 
Area Action Plan (2009) and 
saved policies from Borough of 
Wellingborough Local Plan (1999-
2004).  

Policy 28 the North 
Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy (JCS) allocates 7,000 net 
additional dwellings to 
Wellingborough over the plan period 
of 2011-31. The Draft Plan for 
Wellingborough reaffirms that scale 
of growth, detailing that the 
majority of these dwellings will be 
provided in the Growth Town of 
Wellingborough (5,750), with the 
remainder distributed across 
villages. 

Anglian Water – Water 
Resource Management 
Plan (2015) / Water 
Resources 
Management Plan 
Revised Draft (2019) 

The WRMP 2015 sets out how 
Anglia Water plan to maintain the 
water supply-demand balance 
from 2015-2040.  

The 2019 WRMP is currently in 
draft version, following public 
consultation in March-June 2018.  
It presents the Preferred Plan of 
Anglia Water.  

The 2015 plan develops a number 
of feasible options for maintaining 
the supply-demand balance in the 
region.  Key features include: 
demand management in all Water 
Resource Zones (WRZs), a river 
augmentation scheme, the transfer 
of resources from areas of surplus 
to areas of deficit, the selection of a 
trading option, and the deferral of 
resource development to the end of 
the forecast period (including water 
reuse schemes and the 
recommissioning of a reservoir).  

352



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 160 March 2019 

Plan Progress Objectives 

The priority of the 2019 plan is 
demand management, supported by 
targeted supply-side investment.  It 
also promotes transfers across the 
region from areas of surplus to 
areas of deficit.  It plans to deliver 
environmental benefits by reducing 
abstraction from the environment 
and ensuring no deterioration in the 
ecological status of water bodies.  
The Ruthamford North WRZ is 
designated for a new pumping 
station and new potable water 
transfer to the South Fenland WRZ. 

Northamptonshire 
Transportation Plan 
(2012) 

The Northamptonshire 
Transportation Plan was adopted 
in 2012. 

The plan aligns with the statutory 
West and North Northamptonshire 
Joint Core Strategies.  It sets out 
strategic aims and goals for the 
region, and is accompanied by a 
number of daughter documents on 
specific modes and areas, including 
Northampton Town Transport 
Strategy (2013) and thematic 
strategies for bus, rail, cycling, 
walking, major roads, highway 
development, parking, and road 
freight. 

The Joint Core Strategy and 
Transportation Plan between them 
define the transport schemes for 
Northampton. 

Northamptonshire 
Minerals and Waste 
Local Plan (2017) 

The Northamptonshire Minerals 
and Waste Local Plan was 
adopted in 2017 as an updated 
version of the previously-adopted 
2014 plan. 

The plan provides the basis for 
determining planning applications 
for waste and minerals-related 
development in Northamptonshire, 
and allocates specific sites for waste 
and minerals development. 

Minerals development can include 
the extraction of primary 
aggregates and the use of 
secondary (e.g. recycled) 
aggregates.  

Waste development can include the 
collection, processing and disposal 
of waste, including hazardous 
waste.   

353



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 161 March 2019 

 

SA Objective 1: Help make suitable housing available and affordable according to the 
needs of Northampton’s population 

7.4 The Local Plan Part 2 seeks to define how the overall housing requirement defined by the adopted 
JCS will be met and a number of the Local Plan Part 2 policies are likely to give rise to significant 
positive effects in relation to this SA objective (Policies 5, 8, 10, 11, 13, 14, 18, 32, 34, 36, 37, 
38).  Some allocate sites for residential development; others provide more generic support for 
housing delivery or provide for a range of housing types, including affordable housing, self-build 
and custom build housing, specialist accommodation, accessible housing and houses in multiple 
occupations.  In addition 20 of the allocated residential sites received a significant positive score 
in relation to housing provision because they allocate 100 or more dwellings. 

7.5 Three policies (Policies 1, 3 and 4) were assessed as having a minor positive effect on this 
objective, mainly due to the fact they give consideration to the design and amenity of new 
housing.  No significant negative and minor negative effects were identified. 

7.6 The delivery of affordable housing in Northampton is forecast to be challenging, particularly given 
that a number of communities within Northampton are characterised by deprivation.  As well as 
defining the overall housing provision for Northampton Borough, the adopted JCS includes policies 
that allocate sustainable urban extensions (SUEs) on the Borough boundary and policies that seek 
to address the need to increase the delivery of housing, in particular affordable housing.  For 
example, Policy H2 sets out the percentage requirements and site size thresholds for the on-site 
provision of affordable housing in Northampton, based on the findings of the SHMA and Viability 
Assessment.  Policies N3 to N9A of the JCS explain the provisions of each of the SUE within and 
bordering Northampton Borough and each provide the amount of dwellings for each.  The total 
amount of dwellings is 13,350.  All of the SUEs are contiguous with the urban area of 
Northampton and serve Northampton’s housing needs; therefore the SUEs help to positively meet 
SA objective 1.  In addition, the Local Plans of the surrounding districts, mentioned above in Table 
7.2, contain policies that provide for significant amounts of additional housing development to be 
provided in those surrounding districts.  The Local Plan Part 2 builds on these and overall it is 
considered that there will be a significant positive cumulative effect in relation to SA 
Objective 1. 

SA Objective 2: Reduce the need to travel within, to and from Northampton by providing 
easy access to jobs, services and facilities and to sustainable travel alternatives to the 
car. 

7.7 Four of the five site-specific allocation policies (34, 35, 37, 38) achieved a significant positive 
score in relation to this SA objective because of their proximity to existing sustainable transport 
links, employment area, and/or service centres, thereby reducing the need to travel.  The 
remaining site allocation policy (36) at The Green, Great Houghton scored a minor positive effect, 
being less well located in this regard. 

7.8 Considering all of the residential allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 60% by area achieved a 
significant or minor positive score in relation to this SA objective compared to 40% having a 
negative score.  For allocated employment sites, 81% by area achieved a positive SA score with 
just 19% scoring negatively. 

7.9 The Local Plan Part 2 development management policies (1-33) generally scored positively in 
relation to this SA objective.  This is because they give consideration to more active and 
sustainable modes of transport such as walking and cycling, as well as the incorporation of easily 
accessible services and facilities.  Six development management policies (2, 3, 20, 21, 28 and 30) 
scored a significant positive effect, and a further three (Policies 1, 22 and 31) scored a minor 
positive effect.  No significant negative and minor negative effects were identified.   

7.10 Car dependency is high within the Borough, particularly for commuting, even over short 
distances.  JCS policies encourage walking, cycling and the use of public transport (e.g. Policies 
C1 and C2).  Each of the policies that correspond to the eight Northampton’s SUEs will make 
provision for an integrated transport network focused on sustainable transport modes, including 
public transport, walking and cycling with strong links to the surrounding areas including the town 
centre and employment areas.  In addition, the Strategic Policy 2 of the Northamptonshire 

354



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 162 March 2019 

Transportation Plan sets two targets for modal shift, to achieve by 2031, a reduction of 5% in 
single occupancy car journeys to work from the existing built up areas of the towns and a 
reduction of 20% in single occupancy car journeys to work from new developments.  Also, 
Strategic Policy 3 seeks to ensure that all new developments are well connected to public 
transport and walking, cycling and motor vehicle routes, to the existing transport network.  Policy 
19 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan seeks to minimise transport 
movements and maximise the use of sustainable or alternative transport modes.  Policy ST1 of 
the Settlements and Countryside Local Plan (Part 2) for Daventry District states that measures to 
promote walking and cycling will be supported.  The Local Plan Part 2 builds on each of these so 
as to reduce the need to travel and further encourage the use of more sustainable modes of 
transport at the local level.  Overall it is considered that there will be a significant positive 
cumulative effect in relation to SA Objective 2. 

SA Objective 3: Provide easy access to primary and secondary schools by sustainable 
modes  

7.11 Two of the site-specific allocation policies for residential development (34 and 37) scored a 
significant positive effect because the proposed residential developments set out in these policies 
are within walking distance of existing educational establishments.  The remaining two (Policies 
36 and 38) scored a minor negative effect because they are not within walking distance of 
educational establishments. 

7.12 Considering all of the residential allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 51% by area achieved a 
significant positive score in relation to this SA objective with the remainder achieving a minor 
positive score.   

7.13 A small number of the Local Plan Part 2 development management policies scored positive effects 
in relation to this SA objective because they promote the development and enhancement of new 
and existing educational establishments.  Most of these positive effects were significant (Policies 
2, 9, 21, 32).   

7.14 There are low levels of education attainment in Northampton, it is important that a local skilled 
workforce is available for employment in Northampton’s expanding industries.  Existing JCS 
policies support the role of the University of Northampton, at the same time as encouraging links 
between training, employment and skills development.  Each policy that corresponds to the eight 
SUEs of Northampton states that it will make provision for one or two primary schools (depending 
on the SUE).  In addition, Policy N7 (Northampton Kings Heath SUE) provides 10ha for a 
secondary school.   All of these school provisions, but particularly the secondary schools which 
have larger catchments, could help to meet the educational needs of Northampton.   The Local 
Plan Part 2 builds on this resulting in a significant positive cumulative effect on SA Objective 
3. 

SA Objective 4: Improve the health and well-being of Northampton’s residents, 
promoting healthy lifestyles and reduce health inequalities  

7.15 Three of the site-specific allocation policies (34, 37, 38) scored a mixed significant positive and 
minor negative effect in relation to this SA objective because, although they are located close to 
sports and healthcare facilities, they would also suffer from noise pollution or result in loss of 
green space.  Allocation policy 36 scored a mixed minor positive and minor negative effect. 

7.16 Considering all of the residential allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 54% by area scored minor 
positive for access to healthcare facilities (46% minor negative) and 100% significant or minor 
positive for access to open space and sports facilities.  47% by area scored minor negative in 
relation to exposure to low air quality or noise (53% negligible effect).  70% of employment 
allocations gave rise to potential negative noise or light pollution effects on sensitive receptors 
(30% negligible effect). 

7.17 A number of the policies scored positive effects in relation to SA objective 4 because they 
encourage high quality design and placemaking that require consideration to be given to active 
travel, people’s safety, the provision of open space to facilitate interaction, green infrastructure 
and the protection and enhancement of biodiversity.  All of these considerations are likely to have 
a positive effect on health and wellbeing through such factors as reductions in air pollution and 
greenhouse gas emissions from vehicles, improvements to people’s health and wellbeing through 

355



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 163 March 2019 

greater physical activity, and minimising risk of flooding.  Many of these positive effects were 
recorded as significant (Policies 19, 20, 21, 23, 24, 28, 30, 32).  A significant negative effect with 
uncertainty was identified for Policy 22 because of the potential loss of allotments and community 
gardens, combined with minor positive effects. 

7.18 There are significant differences in life expectancy between the least and most deprived 
communities in the Borough and number of communities within Northampton are characterised by 
deprivation.  JCS policies seek to improve the health and well-being of Northampton’s residents 
including policies encouraging healthy lifestyles such as walking and cycling, and provision for 
health centres.  The SUEs of Northampton Kings Heath, Upton Lodge/Norwood Farm and 
Northampton South all allocate significant green space near the border of Northampton Borough 
which could benefit the residents of Northampton.  Additionally, each of the policies that 
correspond to the eight Northampton’s SUEs include either sports and leisure provision, sport and 
recreation provision or open space and leisure provision.  Each policy also provides a local centre 
that includes health care services and community facilities, all of which could also benefit 
Northampton’s residents.   Policy CW1 of the Settlements and Countryside Local Plan (Part 2) for 
Daventry District promote health and wellbeing and active healthier lifestyles for all age groups.  
Also, allocations of local green space for the Daventry District are along and close to the border of 
Northampton, potentially providing additional green space to benefit the residents.  In addition, 
Policy SDP3 of the South Northamptonshire Part 2 Local Plan  states that the health and wellbeing 
of communities will be maintained and improved by requiring developments to contribute to 
creating an, healthy and equitable living environment.  The Local Plan Part 2 builds on these, but 
with some negative effects, resulting in a minor positive cumulative effect in relation to SA 
Objective 4. 

SA Objective 5: Reduce crime and the fear of crime in Northampton 

7.19 Three policies (1, 2, 28) scored a minor positive effect in relation to this SA objective due to the 
fact they promote the development of a safe and secure pleasant environment.  No significant 
positive, significant negative and minor negative effects were identified.  Site allocations are not 
intended to address this objective and have negligible effects. 

7.20 There are high levels of crime within the Borough but the Local Plan Part 2 has limited 
opportunities to address this directly other than by development management policies such as 
those above that encourage appropriate design features.  However, by providing for development 
opportunities that generate jobs, affordable housing, and community facilities within more 
deprived communities, some of the causes of crime are indirectly addressed by the JCS and the 
Local Plan Part 2.  Overall, a minor positive cumulative effect on SA Objective 5 is likely. 

SA Objective 6: Facilitate the growth of Northampton’s economy and the availability of 
jobs 

7.21 Three of the site-specific allocation policies (34, 35, 37) were assessed as having a significant 
positive effect in relation to this SA objective because of their provision of employment space. 

7.22 Considering all of the employment site allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 95% by area achieved 
a significant positive score due to their size, with the remaining smaller allocations scoring minor 
positive. 

7.23 A number of development management policies scored a significant positive effect in relation to 
this SA objective (7, 8, 10, 11, 15, 16, 17) as they provide more general support for the 
provision, safeguarding and diversification of employment uses, including town centre 
regeneration.  Other development management policies scored minor positive effects in relation 
to this SA objective because they are indirectly expected to attract more residents and visitors to 
the area through such things as supporting the development of the University of Northampton.  
No significant negative or minor negative effects were identified. 

7.24 Northampton has a thriving local economy with emerging sectors and it is vital that this 
supported.  The adopted JCS includes policies that define the number of new jobs to be provided 
for and which support the retention and development of employment space. Policy N3 
(Northampton North SUE) provides for a total of approximately 10ha of land for local employment 
opportunities.  Each of the policies that correspond to the eight Northampton’s SUEs also states 
that a local centre including local retail facilities of an appropriate scale will be provided.  In 

356



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 164 March 2019 

addition, each of the Local Plans of the surrounding districts, within Table 7.2 above (other than 
the Revised Draft Water Resources Management Plan), includes policies that explore how they will 
support economic development within their Local Plan areas, specifically potential employment 
allocations that could help to provide employment opportunities to the residents of Northampton 
Borough.  The Local Plan Part 2 builds on these through its employment allocations and more 
locally specific support for local employment opportunities.  Overall a significant positive 
cumulative effect on this SA objective is likely. 

SA Objective 7: Maintain and strengthen the character and vitality of Northampton town 
centre 

7.25 Two of the site-specific allocation policies (34, 37) were assessed as having a significant positive 
effect in relation to this SA objective because of their focus on high quality town centre 
development. 

7.26 Considering all of the site allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 9% by area of residential allocations 
and 8% by area of employment allocations achieved a minor positive score as they would provide 
a range of homes or employment opportunities within the town centre on brownfield land, with 
the remaining allocations having uncertain or negligible effects. 

7.27 Several of the development management policies (2, 7, 8, 10, 11, 17) scored a significant positive 
effect in relation to this SA objective because they support development (including regeneration 
schemes) that will improve the vitality of the town by contributing towards the range of services 
on offer.  Design principles including enhancements to the public realm will also improve and 
complement the existing town centre.  A number of other development management policies 
scored a minor positive effect because they support high quality design in the town, improved 
connectivity, or residential development on upper floors in the town centre, contributing to the 
town centre’s vibrancy and vitality.  No significant negative or minor negative effects were 
identified. 

7.28 Northampton Borough town centre contains a number of sites requiring redevelopment.  Its retail 
offer is poor relative to the size of the town, office development in the centre has been 
suppressed due to lack of available, modern office space, and the evening economy requires 
strengthening.   The JCS seeks to address these issues (Policy N2) by targeting the central area 
for increases in comparison shopping and office floorspace in particular, and by directing for 
example with policies designed to would apply.  It also directs major office, leisure, and cultural 
development to the central area, with retail in the town centre.  The Local Plan Part 2 builds on 
this with both significant allocations and supportive development management policies.  There is a 
risk that growth in the size and range of services and jobs provided for by neighbouring Local 
Plans and further afield at Milton Keynes could dilute some of the positive effects of the 
Northampton Local Plan Part 2 by acting as a draw to employers and service providers that might 
otherwise upgrade their offer in Northampton town centre.  Overall, a mixed significant positive 
and minor negative cumulative effect on SA Objective 7 is likely. 

SA Objective 8: Minimise Northampton’s greenhouse gas emissions 

7.29 Four of the five site allocation policies (34, 35, 37 and 38) scored a significant positive effect 
because they are located close to three existing sustainable transport links.  The remaining site 
allocation policy (Policy 36) scored a minor positive effect, being close to two sustainable 
transport links. 

7.30 Considering all of the residential allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 60% by area achieved a 
significant or minor positive score in relation to this SA objective compared to 40% having a 
negative score.  For allocated employment sites, 81% by area achieved a positive SA score with 
just 19% scoring negatively. 

7.31 Five development management policies scored a significant positive effect in relation to this SA 
objective because they encourage sustainable development from the start of the design process 
as a way of responding to climate change.  Furthermore, many of the policies promote more 
sustainable, active modes of transport (e.g. walking, cycling) that are likely to minimise 
Northampton’s greenhouse gas emissions.  A similar number of policies achieved a minor positive 
score. 

357



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 165 March 2019 

7.32 A number of development management policies received a minor negative score in relation to this 
SA objective because they will increase the number of residents, employees and visitors in the 
area (e.g. through housing development), which is likely to increase transport emissions.  One of 
these (Policy 24) also gave rise to minor positive effects.  No significant negative effects were 
identified. 

7.33 Climate change is an international scale issue and will have negative effects in Northampton, as 
elsewhere, such as increased fluvial flood risk, the threat of extreme weather events, and 
droughts and overheating in the summer.  While UK and Borough greenhouse gas emission have 
been falling, more work needs to be done if emissions reduction targets are to be met.  The 
adopted JCS (e.g. Policies S10 and S11), Local Plan Part 2, Settlements and Countryside Local 
Plan (Part 2) for Daventry District, South Northamptonshire Part 2 Local Plan and Revised Draft 
Water Resources Management Plan contain policies that seek to respond to this issue.  However, 
the large amount of housing and other development proposed by the JCS and the Local Plans of 
the surrounding districts and allocated by the JCS and the Local Plan Part 2 is likely to be 
associated with a net increase in greenhouse gas emissions.  Overall, mixed minor positive and 
minor negative cumulative effects on SA Objective 8 are likely. 

SA Objective 9: Protect and enhance Northampton’s biodiversity and geodiversity 

7.34 Four of the five site-specific allocation policies were assessed as having a potential significant 
negative effect in relation to this SA objective (Policies 35, 36, 37, 38) because of their location 
within the relevant zone of influence for effects on the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and 
Ramsar site.  All of these except Policy 37 also achieved a significant or minor positive effect in 
relation to proposed biodiversity enhancements.   A significant negative effect with uncertainty 
was also identified for the allocation of burial sites (Policy 22) due to the potential loss of a Local 
Wildlife Site. 

7.35 Considering all of the residential allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 79% by area were awarded a 
significant or minor negative score in relation to this SA objective.  66% of allocated employment 
sites also scored negatively, with remaining allocations having a negligible effect. 

7.36 Positive effects were identified from the development management policies, these being 
significant for Policies 23, 25 and 26.  These positive effects related to the importance of green 
spaces, net gains in biodiversity and protection of the ecological integrity of designated sites.   

7.37 Regardless of the adoption of the Local Plan (Part 3), pressures on the natural environment are 
likely to continue.  However, the adopted JCS already includes policies seeking to address these 
pressures, particularly Policies BN1-BN4.  The Local Plan Part 2 provides an opportunity to build 
on these four policies through more specific development management policies.  It also offers 
opportunities to strengthen the green and blue infrastructure network of the town, by identifying 
and addressing where gaps exist, and essential components for establishing a resilient network 
for the future, and by incorporating biodiversity considerations into the design of developments.   

7.38 Many of the potential significant negative effects identified resulted from the allocated 
development site being within the relevant zone of influence for effects on the Upper Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site.  However, the protection afforded by Policy BN4 of the JCS, 
Policy 26 of the Local Plan Part 2, and the requirements of the Habitats Regulations for individual 
proposals that come forward should ensure no significant negative effects on this site.  In addition 
it is noted that the separate HRA of the Local Plan concludes that the Local Plan Part 2 will not 
result in adverse effects on the integrity of any European site provided that recommended 
additional policy safeguards are included before the plan is adopted. 

7.39 Where the SA has identified potential significant negative effects from loss of areas of locally 
designated wildlife sites, some comfort can be taken from the requirement of Local Plan Policy 25 
for all proposals to achieve biodiversity net gain.  It should be noted, however, that the benefits 
of offsetting measures can take considerable time to be realised and are inherently more 
uncertain than the loss that would arise from development of an existing valued biodiversity site.  
Other aspects of parts 1 and 2 of the Local Plan are likely to produce positive effects.  Each of the 
policies that correspond to the eight Northampton’s SUEs includes provision for wildlife corridors 
which could provide additional habitats for local biodiversity.  In addition, the development 
proposed by each Local Plan mentioned in Table 7.2 above is likely to add to the pressure on 
biodiversity described for the Northampton Local Plan Part 2, including pressures on Upper Nene 

358



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 166 March 2019 

Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site which extends into Wellingborough and East 
Northamptonshire districts.  It is also noted that, other than the Northamptonshire Transportation 
Plan and Revised Draft Water Resources Management Plan, the plans mentioned in Table 7.2 
contain policies that seek to conserve and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity in order to 
provide measureable net gains and enhance green infrastructure assets to create comprehensive 
biodiversity networks.  Overall, a mixed minor positive and minor negative cumulative 
effect on SA Objective 9 is likely. 

SA Objective 10: Protect and enhance the quality and character of Northampton’s 
landscape and townscape 

7.40 Four of the site-specific allocation policies were assessed as having potential significant effects in 
relation to this objective.  Significant positive score components (Policies 34, 35, 37) related to 
regeneration of disused brownfield sites, design principles requiring site enhancement, and the 
creation of location-sensitive landmark buildings.  Significant negative score components (Policies 
35, 37) related to the loss of natural or amenity green space. 

7.41 Considering all of the residential allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 5% by area achieved a minor 
or significant positive score by redeveloping brownfield or disused land with 85% remainder being 
awarded a minor or significant negative score due to loss of greenfield land or open space.  The 
proportion of employment allocations falling into these scoring categories was similar for the same 
reasons. 

7.42 The remaining development management policies achieved positive scores in relation to this SA 
objective.  A number of policies scored a significant positive effect because they promote high 
quality design with the intention to create a strong, locally distinctive sense of place through 
legible street layouts and public spaces with good sustainable transport links.   

7.43 As Northampton is predominantly urban, much of its character is associated with its historic 
townscape, which is separately addressed under SA objective 11.  However, areas of woodland 
have been retained as landscape features and the landscape potential of streams and lakes has 
been realised with associated amenity areas to create the structured urban landscape which now 
exists within the town.  The adopted JCS (Policy BN5) provides for the conservation and 
enhancement of the historic environment and landscape in general terms.  However, there is the 
potential for intervisibility between the landscape surrounding the Borough and the proposed 
SUEs, which could adversely affect the landscape, depending on the quality of their design.  The 
Local Plan Part 2 provides local implementation of these principles but the scale of development 
allocated also means that some greenfield land and open space will be lost.  In addition, multiple 
policies within the Settlements and Countryside Local Plan (Part 2) for Daventry District consider 
the impact of development on the landscape.  Overall, a mixed minor positive and minor 
negative cumulative effect is likely in relation to SA Objective 10. 

SA Objective 11: Conserve and enhance Northampton’s historic environment, heritage 
assets and their settings 

7.44 Minor negative effects with uncertainty were identified for two of the site-specific allocation 
policies (37, 38).   While the potential for significant effects exist for these policies, mitigation 
provided by requirements within the allocation policies should ensure that any negative effects 
are minor. 

7.45 Considering all of the allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, many did not reach the significance 
thresholds identified in the methodology and were therefore not qualitatively assessed as part of 
the SA.  Of the qualitatively assessed residential allocations, 10% by area received significant 
negative scores, the remainder having minor or negligible effects.  For the qualitatively assessed 
employment allocations, 8% by area received significant negative scores, the remainder having 
minor or negligible effects.     

7.46 Two development management policies (Policies 2, 27) scored a significant positive effect in 
relation to SA Objective 11 because they promote good placemaking and seek to conserve and 
enhance the historic environment.  Three other policies scored minor positive. 

7.47 The Borough has many designated and undesignated heritage assets.  These are continuously 
facing pressures for change, often indirectly, and from inappropriate development and activity 

359



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 167 March 2019 

affecting their setting and context.  The adopted JCS includes policies seeking to protect and 
enhance the historic environment (e.g. Policy BN51).  The JCS also proposes multiple SUEs along 
the boundary of the Borough which could put additional pressure on the historic environment 
within the area.  However, each of the policies that correspond to the eight Northampton’s SUEs 
requires an archaeological assessment of the site, which should help to avoid issues that could 
arise for heritage assets.  The Local Plan Part 2 adds further generic policy protection that will 
apply to all development in the Borough but also identifies where sensitivities in the historic 
environment exist in relation to its major development allocations and sets out requirements in 
relation to these.  Policy ENV7 of the Settlements and Countryside Local Plan (Part 2) for 
Daventry District and Policy HE1 of South Northamptonshire Part 2 Local Plan support proposals 
that assess the impact of the proposals through heritage appraisals and high quality proposals 
that respond positively to their context.  In addition, Policy 22 of the Northamptonshire Minerals 
and Waste Local Plan seeks to conserve and enhance Northamptonshire’s historic environment 
though careful management, avoidance and mitigation of adverse effects and enhancement. 
Overall, the Local Plan Part 2 is likely to have a mixed minor positive and minor negative 
cumulative effect on SA Objective 11. 

SA Objective 12: Minimise air pollution in and around Northampton, particularly in the 
AQMAs. 

7.48 Three of the site-specific allocation policies (Policies 34, 35 and 38) scored a significant negative 
effect in relation to this SA Objective because it appears that a significant proportion of car 
commuters to and from each of these sites would pass through AQMAs.  The effect is uncertain 
subject to the routes actually used and the degree to which modes of sustainable travel are used.  
The remaining two site allocation policies (Policies 36 and 37) scored minor negative with 
uncertainty. 

7.49 Considering all of the allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 45% by area of the residential 
allocations and 52% by area of the employment allocations scored significant negative with 
uncertainty for the same reasons as the allocations with site-specific allocation policies.  The 
remaining site allocations scored minor negative with uncertainty. 

7.50 Three of the development management policies (Policies 23, 28 and 30) scored a significant 
positive effect because they support the provision of green infrastructure and more sustainable, 
active modes of transport that are likely to reduce air pollution.   

7.51 A large number of the development management policies scored a minor negative effect because 
they each seek to increase the number of visitors and residents in the area which could result in 
increased air pollution, traffic congestion and greenhouse gas emissions.  Others scored a minor 
positive effect because they seek to promote sustainable transport and/or reduce air pollution.  
One (Policy 24) received a mixed minor effect score. 

7.52 The adopted JCS includes policies seeking to protect and enhance air quality (e.g. Policy BN9).  
The Local Plan Part 2 seeks to build on this principle but in the shorter term at least, the scale of 
development and associated road traffic growth may lead to a worsening of air quality.  However, 
as benefits are realised from national policies to introduce less polluting vehicle and fuel 
technologies air quality should improve.  The SUEs within and along the border of Northampton 
Borough, proposed by the JCS, could greatly increase air pollution and traffic movements and 
congestion within Northampton.  Furthermore, there are SUEs proposed within Towcester and 
Brackley along the A43, which leads into the centre of Northampton.  Both of these could also 
increase air pollution and traffic congestion.  However, Policy N3 (Northampton North SUE) makes 
provision for A43 corridor mitigation measures which could help to address air pollution and 
congestion issues, although the effectiveness of these measures is uncertain.  It should also be 
noted that additional development within South Northamptonshire District is planned for 
Towcester, which borders the southern edges of Northampton, therefore air pollution and traffic 
movements and congestion could increase further.  However, Strategic Policy 23 of the 
Northamptonshire Transportation Plan states that an Air Quality Strategy will be developed to 
reduce the number of AQMAs in the county to zero and maintain that position.  Overall, a minor 
negative short term cumulative effect is predicted, becoming a minor positive long term 
cumulative effect. 

360



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 168 March 2019 

SA Objective 13: Encourage sustainable water management 

7.53 All but one of the site-specific allocation policies scored a minor negative effect because they 
contain contaminated land, which could adversely affect groundwater quality.  All effects are 
uncertain dependent on protection measures taken during construction and operation of each site. 

7.54 Considering all of the residential allocations in the Local Plan Part 2, 29% by area scored minor 
negative (71% negligible); for the employment allocations, 59% by area scored minor negative 
(41% negligible).  These negative effects indicated that the site overlaps the one SPZ (Inner Zone 
1) in the plan area or a known area of contaminated land. 

7.55 Three policies (5, 6 and 23) scored a significant positive effect in relation to this SA Objective 
because they seek to maintain suitable access for water supply in new developments, and actively 
promote higher water efficiency.  A minor positive effect was identified from Policy 1 due to its 
provision for sustainable development.  A minor negative effect was identified from Policy 12 
because of the increased water demand from the amount of housing provided for.  

7.56 Both the surface waters of the River Nene and groundwater resources in the Borough require 
protection and water resources will come under greater pressure with climate change.  The 
adopted JCS includes policies seeking to protect and enhance water resources and water quality 
(e.g. Policy BN7A and BN8).  The SA of the JCS did not identify any negative effects on the water 
environment from the overall distribution of housing (Chapter 5 of JCS), the policies relating to 
Northampton Borough (Chapter 10 of JCS), or the cumulative effects of JCS taken together, 
providing comfort that the scale of development provided for in the Borough can be 
accommodated in relation to the available water resources and capacity for wastewater 
treatment.  The Local Plan Part 2 builds on these and together with other regulatory protection, 
notably the discharge and abstraction regimes operated by the Environment Agency, should 
ensure that significant negative effects on water resources and quality are avoided.  In addition, 
the Revised Draft Water Resources Management Plan for Anglian Water highlights water efficiency 
measures that should be put into place.  However, none of the Local Plans of the surrounding 
districts, featured in Table 7.2 above, includes policies directly addressing sustainable water 
management.  Despite mitigation policies, development provided by each of the Local Plans and 
by the JCS in the SUEs could put additional pressure on the water table and increase growing 
concern over water scarcity. Overall, a mixed minor positive and minor negative cumulative 
effect is predicted in relation to SA Objective 13. 

SA Objective 14: Reduce the risk of flooding to people and property in Northampton 

7.57 Three of the site-specific allocation policies (34, 37 and 38) gave rise to a minor negative effect 
either because they are within Flood Zones 2 or 3, are within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood 
risk area, or both. 

7.58 Considering all of the residential allocations in the Local Plan Part 2 in relation to flood risk from 
rivers, 25% by area give rise to minor or significant negative effects; for the employment 
allocations, 50% give rise to minor or significant negative effects.  In relation to flood risk from 
groundwater, 32% by area of residential allocations and 49% by area of employment allocations 
gave rise to minor or significant negative effects.  In relation to surface water flood risk, 61% by 
area of residential allocations and 74% by area of employment allocations gave risk to minor or 
significant negative effects.  All other allocations gave rise to negligible effects in relation to flood 
risk. 

7.59 Two of the development management policies (Policies 6 and 23) received a significant positive 
score because they support the management of flood risk, including through green infrastructure 
provision.  Two other development management policies received a minor positive score. 

7.60 Flood risk is a recognised issue in Northampton Borough, including that associated with the River 
Nene corridor, and this is likely to worsen from extreme rainfall events associated with climate 
change.   The adopted JCS includes policies seeking to reduce flood risk in and around 
Northampton (e.g. Policy BN7).  While the Local Plan Part 2 seeks to build on this, the tightly 
drawn borough boundary together with the extensive areas of flood risk mean that a significant 
proportion of the allocated development is in areas of relatively high flood risk.  Design measures 
are likely to be able to mitigate some but not all of this risk.  Each of the policies that correspond 
to the eight Northampton’s SUEs state that flood risk management including surface water 

361



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 169 March 2019 

management and from other sources will be provided.  It should be noted that Policy ENV11 of 
the Settlements and Countryside Local Plan (Part 2) for Daventry District seeks to comply with the 
Northamptonshire Local Flood Risk Management Strategy, the Local Standards and Guidance for 
Surface Water Drainage in Northamptonshire and Anglian Water’s Surface Water Drainage Policy.  
However, the remaining Local Plans do not include flood risk specific policies.  Therefore, 
depending on the location of housing and employment sites of the surrounding district Local 
Plans, flood risk could increase and continue to be an issue within the county.  Overall, assuming 
that suitable and effective mitigation measures are in place, a minor negative cumulative 
effect on SA Objective 14 is likely. 

SA Objective 15: Encourage the efficient use of land in Northampton and protect its 
soils and mineral resources. 

7.61 One of the site-specific allocation policies (Policy 36) and the burial sites policy (Policy 22) were 
assessed as having a significant negative effect in relation to SA Objective 15 because they 
contain a significant amount of higher quality agricultural land which could be lost to 
development.  Two of the other site allocation policies (Policies 34 and 38) scored a significant 
positive effect in relation to SA Objective 15 because they direct development to brownfield land. 

7.62 Considering the residential allocations in the Local Plan Part 2 which passed the significance 
thresholds defined in the SA methodology and were therefore assessed in relation to prioritising 
use of brownfield land, 41% by area of residential allocations and 81% by area of employment 
allocations achieved a minor or significant positive effect score because of their use of brownfield 
(remainder negligible effect or not assessed).  Of the sites assessed in relation to avoiding loss of 
greenfield land, 84% by area of residential locations and 76% by area of employment sites 
resulted in a minor or significant negative effect score (remainder negligible effect or not 
assessed). 

7.63 In relation to avoiding loss of high quality agricultural land, 66% by area received a minor or 
significant negative score due to loss of Grade 3 or better agricultural land; for employment 
allocations 59% by area received a minor or significant negative score (remaining effects were 
negligible). 

7.64 In relation to avoiding sterilisation of mineral resources, 46% by area of residential allocations 
received a minor or significant negative score; for employment allocations 54 scored minor or 
significant negative (remaining effects were negligible). 

7.65 In relation to avoiding risk from land instability, 9% by area received a minor negative score; for 
employment allocations, 15% by area scored minor negative (remaining effects were negligible). 

7.66 Other than the minor positive effect arising from Policy 1, all other policies received a negligible 
effect score. 

7.67 Although largely urban land, pockets of high grade agricultural land exist around the edge of the 
town within the Borough boundaries and the River Nene Valley is associated with high quality 
gravel deposits that need to be safeguarded from sterilisation by development.  Policy R2 in the 
adopted JCS seeks to protect high quality agricultural land and as summarised above, a 
significant proportion of land allocated for development by the Local Plan Part 2 is brownfield.  
However, the amount of development provided for by the plan means that it will also lead to the 
loss of significant amounts of higher quality agricultural land, as well as some potential 
sterilisation of mineral resources unless these resources can be extracted prior to development. 
The large amount of development proposed by the JCS and neighbouring district Local Plans is 
likely to lead to the loss of agricultural land.  For example, most of the allocated SUEs for 
Northampton are within Grade 3 agricultural land and one is within Grade 2.  However, it should 
be noted that Policy 26 of the Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan seeks to utilise the 
efficient use of resources in both its construction and its operation.  In addition, Policy SS2 of the 
South Northamptonshire Local Plan (Part 2) ensures development will not result in the loss of the 
best and most versatile agricultural land or valued soils.  Overall, it is concluded that mixed 
significant positive and significant negative cumulative effects are likely in relation to SA 
objective 15.  

362



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 170 March 2019 

SA Objective 16: Facilitate sustainable waste management 

7.68 Three of the site allocation policies (Policies 34, 36 and 38) scored a significant negative effect in 
relation to this SA Objective.  This is because these sites are located close to a waste 
management facility or an area considered suitable for waste management uses.  The negative 
effect of Policy 36 is uncertain subject to the nature of nearby industrial uses and their effect on 
amenity. 

7.69 Considering all of the residential allocations made by the Local Plan Part 2, 53% result in a 
significant negative effect (in some cases with uncertainty); for the employment allocations, 41% 
result in a significant negative effect (in some cases with uncertainty).  All other sites received a 
negligible effect score. 

7.70 Policies 1 and 14 scored minor positive, the former because of its generic support for sustainable 
development; the latter because it requires that houses in multiple occupation provide sufficient 
refuse storage. 

7.71 The adopted Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan identifies locations within 
Northampton Borough that are suitable for waste management facilities.  Although waste 
management facilities are much cleaner than in the past, the Local Plan Part 2 offers the 
opportunity to ensure that site allocations for other types of development (e.g. housing, 
employment, community facilities) are not compromised by, or do not compromise, the operation 
of nearby waste management facilities.  The locations of the Local Plan Part 2 site allocations 
appear to give rise to significant potential conflicts with waste management facilities and as such, 
a significant negative cumulative effect on SA Objective 16 is possible, although in practice it 
is common for modern waste management facilities to be located within the urban areas that they 
serve without significant conflicts between uses arising. 

Recommendations 

7.72 The SA process has run alongside the development of the Local Plan Part 2, identifying the 
sustainability advantages and disadvantages of the options under consideration and helping to 
inform the selection of those included in the Proposed Submission draft of the plan. 

7.73 At this latest stage of plan development the following recommendations are made to further 
improve the sustainability of the plan: 

• Widen the focus of Objective 10 of the Local Pan Part 2 from protecting natural species to 
conserving both natural habitats and species and seek to provide net gains in biodiversity 
where possible, in line with national planning policy.  

• Adopt the changes to the Local Plan Part 2 recommended by the separate HRA to ensure that 
adverse effects on the integrity of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site are 
avoided. 

363



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 171 March 2019 

8 Monitoring 

Monitoring 

8.1 The SEA Regulations require that ‘the responsible authority shall monitor the significant 
environmental effects of the implementation of each plan or programme with the purpose of 
identifying unforeseen adverse effects at an early stage and being able to undertake appropriate 
remedial action’ and that the environmental report should provide information on ‘a description of 
the measures envisaged concerning monitoring’.   

8.2 Although National Planning Practice Guidance states that monitoring should be focused on the 
significant environmental effects of implementing the Local Plan, the reason for this is to enable 
local planning authorities to identify unforeseen adverse effects at an early stage and to enable 
appropriate remedial actions.  Since effects which the SA expects to be minor may become 
significant and vice versa, monitoring measures have been proposed in this SA Report in relation 
to all of the SA objectives in the SA framework.  As the Local Plan is implemented and the likely 
significant effects become more certain, the Council may wish to narrow down the monitoring 
framework to focus on those effects of the Local Plan likely to be significantly adverse. 

Table 8.1 sets out a number of suggested indicators for monitoring the potential sustainability 
effects of implementing the Local Plan.  The data used for monitoring in many cases will be 
provided by outside bodies, for example the Environment Agency.  It is therefore recommended 
that the Council remains in dialogue with statutory environmental consultees and other 
stakeholders and works with them to agree the relevant sustainability effects to be monitored and 
to obtain information that is appropriate, up to date and reliable.   

Table 8.1 Proposed monitoring framework for Northampton Borough Local Plan Part 2 

SA objectives Proposed monitoring indicators 

1) Help make suitable housing available and 
affordable according to the needs of 
Northampton’s population 

House prices to income ratios 

Indices of Multiple Deprivation Score – particularly Housing 
and Services Domain and the Living Environment 
Deprivation Domain 

Number of affordable dwelling completions 

Annual dwelling completions 

Population projections and forecasts 

2) Reduce the need to travel within, to and 
from Northampton by providing easy access 
to jobs, services and facilities and to 
sustainable travel alternatives to the car 

Access to services by public transport 

Indices of Multiple Deprivation – sub-domain scores 

Recorded traffic flows 

Killed or Seriously Injured (KSI) casualty figures for adults 
and children 

Car ownership 

Delivery of relevant transport schemes to timescales set out 
in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan 

3) Provide easy access to primary and 
secondary schools by sustainable modes 

School capacity in relation to identified need 

Investment secured for educational facilities through 
developer contributions 

Average minimum travel time to schools by public transport 

364



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 172 March 2019 

SA objectives Proposed monitoring indicators 

4) Improve the health and well-being of 
Northampton’s residents, promoting healthy 
lifestyles and reduce health inequalities 

Life Expectancy 

Indices of Multiple Deprivation – Health and Disability sub-
domain scores 

Location and extent of accessible open space to 
development site 

Natural England Accessible Natural Greenspace Standards 
(ANGSt) 

Location and extent of recreational facilities to development 
site 

Location and extent of accessible greenspace to 
development site 

Proximity of site to healthcare facilities  

Percentage of population obese 

Number or % of open spaces receiving Green Flag Award 

% planning permissions for new residential and commercial 
development making adequate provision for community 
facilities and public open space 

5) Reduce crime and the fear of crime in 
Northampton 

Recorded key offences 

Killed or Seriously Injured (KSI) casualty figures for adults 
and children 

Street level crime statistics 

6) Facilitate the growth of Northampton’s 
economy and the availability of jobs 

Employment land availability 

Typical amount of job creation (jobs per ha) within different 
use classes 

Percentage change and comparison in the total number of 
VAT registered businesses in the area 

Businesses by industry type 

Amount of vacant industrial floorspace 

Employment status by residents and job type 

Job densities 

Economic activity of residents 

Average gross weekly pay 

Implemented and outstanding planning permissions for 
retail, office and commercial use 

Number of minerals sites safeguarded for extraction 

Current and planned broadband coverage 

% and type of commercial development delivered in rural 
areas 

7) Maintain and strengthen the character and 
vitality of Northampton town centre. 

Amount of retail, leisure and office floorspace in town 
centres 

Implemented and outstanding planning permissions for 
retail, office and commercial use 

Pedestrian footfall count 

8) Minimise Northampton’s greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

Carbon emissions from transport 

Access to services and businesses by public transport 

Travel to work methods and flows 

Car ownership 

Network performance on roads 

Public transport punctuality and efficiency 

365



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 173 March 2019 

SA objectives Proposed monitoring indicators 

Length of Public Rights of Way created/enhanced 

Number of Rights of Way Improvement Plans implemented 

9) Protect and enhance Northampton’s 
biodiversity and geodiversity 

Spatial extent and condition assessments of designated sites 
within the Borough 

Achievement of Biodiversity Action Plan targets 

Number and % of permitted developments providing: 

a) features of biodiversity value e.g. green/brown 
roof, living wall, native planting; and 

b) net gain in biodiversity 

10) Protect and enhance the quality and 
character of Northampton’s landscape and 
townscape. 

Number and % of new and converted dwellings on 
previously developed land 

Number and extent of field boundaries affected  

Number of permitted developments within Conservation 
Areas 

11) Conserve and enhance Northampton’s 
historic environment, heritage assets and 
their settings 

Number and % of Listed Buildings (all grades), Scheduled 
Monuments, Registered Parks and Gardens, Registered 
Battlefields, Places of Worship, conservation areas, locally 
listed heritage assets ‘At Risk’ 

% of Conservation Areas with an up-to-date character 
appraisal 

% of Conservation Areas with published management 
proposals 

Number of historic buildings repaired and brought back into 
use 

% of local authority area covered by historic characterisation 
studies 

Area of highly sensitive historic landscape characterisation 
type(s) which have been altered and their character eroded 

Number of major development projects that enhance the 
significance of heritage assets or historic landscape 
character 

Number of major development projects that detract from 
the significance of heritage assets or historic landscape 
character 

Improvements in the management of historic and 
archaeological sites and features 

% of planning applications where archaeological 
investigations were required prior to approval 

% of planning applications where archaeological mitigation 
strategies (were developed and implemented) 

Number of actions taken in response to breach of listed 
building control 

12) Minimise air pollution in and around 
Northampton, particularly in the AQMAs 

NO2 emissions  

NO2 levels at existing designated AQMAs  

PM10 emissions  

Recorded traffic flows on A12 and A120 

13) Encourage sustainable water 
management 

Water cycle study capacity in sewerage and resources. 

Water use per household 

14) Reduce the risk of flooding to people and 
property in Northampton 

Residential properties flooded from main rivers  

Planning permission in identified flood zones granted 
permission contrary to advice from the Environment Agency  

Incidences of flood warnings in site area  

366



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 174 March 2019 

SA objectives Proposed monitoring indicators 

Number or % of permitted developments incorporating 
SuDS 

15) Encourage the efficient use of land in 
Northampton and protect its soils and mineral 
resources 

Area of best and most versatile agricultural land in District 

Number or area of contaminated sites remediated 

Number and % of new and converted dwellings on 
previously developed land 

16) Facilitate sustainable waste management Non-recyclable waste generation per capita 

Recycling rates per capita 

Re-use of construction and demolition waste 

Number of planning applications for development within the 
‘Preventing land use conflict consultation buffer, Policy 30 
Minerals and Waste Allocations of the adopted 
Northamptonshire Minerals & Waste Local Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

367



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 175 March 2019 

9 Next steps 

9.1 Following consultation on the Submission Draft Local Plan Part 2, it will be submitted to the 
Secretary of State to be examined by an independent Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Secretary of State.  Assuming that the Local Plan Part 2 is found sound, and subject to 
modifications which may need to be subject to further SA work and public consultation, the 
Council will then adopt the Local Plan Part 2. 

 

LUC 
March 2019

368



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 176 March 2019 

Appendix 1  
Review of other relevant policies, plans, and 
programmes

369



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 177 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

International/European Plans and Programmes  

The Cancun Agreement- UNFCCC (2011) 

Shared vision to keep global temperature rise to 
below two degrees Celsius, with objectives to be 
reviewed as to whether it needs to be 
strengthened in future on the basis of the best 
scientific knowledge available. 

No targets or indicators. • The Local Plan should aim to reduce emissions. 
• The SA assessment framework should include 

greenhouse gas emissions. 

The Convention for the Protection of the Architectural Heritage of Europe (Granada Convention 1985) 

The main purpose of the convention is to 
reinforce and promote policies for the 
conservation and enhancement of Europe’s 
heritage and to foster closer European co-
operation in defence of heritage. Recognition 
that conservation of heritage is a cultural 
purpose and integrated conservation of heritage 
is an important factor in the improvement of 
quality of life. 

No measureable targets or indicators. 

 

The SA Framework should include an objective on 
the conservation and enhancement of heritage and 
decision making criteria on architectural heritage. 

The European Convention on the Protection of Archaeological Heritage (Valetta Convention 1992) 

Agreement that the conservation and 
enhancement of an archaeological heritage is 
one of the goals of urban and regional planning 
policy. It is concerned in particular with the need 
for co-operation between archaeologists and 
planers to ensure optimum conservation of 
archaeological heritage. 

No measureable targets or indicators. The SA Framework should include an objective on 
the conservation and enhancement of heritage and 
decision making criteria on archaeological heritage. 

Council Directive 91/271/EEC for Urban Waste-Water Treatment  

370



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 178 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

Its objective is to protect the environment from 
the adverse effects of urban waste water 
discharges and discharges from certain industrial 
sectors and concerns the collection, treatment 
and discharge of: 

• Domestic waste water  

• Mixture of waste water  

Waste water from certain industrial sectors 

The Directive includes requirement with specific: 

• Collection and treatment of waste water 
standards for relevant population thresholds 

• Secondary treatment standards  

• A requirement for pre-authorisation of all 
discharges of urban wastewater  

Monitoring of the performance of treatment plants 
and receiving waters and Controls of sewage sludge 
disposal and re-use, and treated waste water re-use 

SA Objectives should include priorities to minimise 
adverse effects on ground and/or surface water. 

European Commission (EC) (2011) A Resource- Efficient Europe- Flagship Initiative Under the Europe 2020 Strategy, Communication from the 
Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions (COM 
2011/21) 

This flagship initiative aims to create a 
framework for policies to support the shift 
towards a resource-efficient and low-carbon 
economy which will help to: 

• Boost economic performance while reducing 
resource use; 

• Identify and create new opportunities for 
economic growth and greater innovation and 
boost the EU's competitiveness; 

• Ensure security of supply of essential 
resources; and 

• Fight against climate change and limit the 
environmental impacts of resource use. 

Each Member State has a target calculated according 
to the share of energy from renewable sources in its 
gross final consumption for 2020. The UK is required 
to source 15 per cent of energy needs from 
renewable sources, including biomass, hydro, wind 
and solar power by 2020.  

From 1 January 2017, biofuels and bioliquids share in 
emissions savings should be increased to 50 per 
cent.   

• The Local Plan policies should take into account 
the objectives of the Flagship Initiative. 

• The SA assessment framework should include 
objectives, indicators and targets that relate to 
resource use. 

European Landscape Convention 2000 (became binding March 2007) 

371



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 179 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

Convention outlined the need to recognise 
landscape in law, to develop landscape policies 
dedicated to the protection, management and 
creation of landscapes, and to establish 
procedures for the participation of the general 
public and other stakeholders in the creation and 
implementation of landscape policies.  It also 
encourages the integration of landscape into all 
relevant areas of policy, including cultural, 
economic and social policies. 

Specific measures include:  

• raising awareness of the value of landscapes 
among all sectors of society, and of society's role 
in shaping them;  

• promoting landscape training and education 
among landscape specialists, other related 
professions, and in school and university 
courses;  

• the identification and assessment of landscapes, 
and analysis of landscape change, with the active 
participation of stakeholders;  

• setting objectives for landscape quality, with the 
involvement of the public; and 

• the implementation of landscape policies, 
through the establishment of plans and practical 
programmes. 

SA objectives must consider the outcomes of the 
convention should feed into the Local Plan and 
associated documents. 

European Union (EU) Nitrates Directive (91/676/EEC) 

This Directive has the objective of: 

• reducing water pollution caused or induced 
by nitrates from agricultural sources; and 

• preventing further such pollution. 

Provides for the identification of vulnerable areas. • Local Plan should consider impacts of 
development upon any identified nitrate 
sensitive areas where such development fails to 
be considered within its scope. 

• Policies should consider objective to promote 
environmentally sensitive agricultural practices. 

EU Directive on the Conservation of Natural Habitats and of Wild Fauna and Flora (92/43/EEC) & Subsequent Amendments 

Directive seeks to conserve natural habitats.  
Conservation of natural habitats requires 
member states to identify special areas of 
conservation and to maintain, where necessary, 

There are no formal targets or indicators.   • Local Plan policies should seek to protect 
features of habitat importance. 

• SA Framework Objectives should include 

372



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 180 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

landscape features of importance to wildlife and 
flora. 

The amendments in 2007: 

• simplify the species protection regime to 
better reflect the Habitats Directive;  

• provide a clear legal basis for surveillance 
and monitoring of European protected 
species (EPS);  

• toughen the regime on trading EPS that are 
not native to the UK; and 

• ensure that the requirement to carry out 
appropriate assessments on water 
abstraction consents and land use plans is 
explicit. 

priorities for the protection of habitats for 
ecological benefit. 

EU Packaging and Packaging Waste Directive (94/62/EC) 

This Directive aims to harmonize national 
measures concerning the management of 
packaging and packaging waste in order, on the 
one hand, to prevent any impact thereof on the 
environment of all Member States as well as of 
third countries or to reduce such impact, thus 
providing a high level of environmental 
protection, and, on the other hand, to ensure 
the functioning of the internal market and to 
avoid obstacles to trade and distortion and 
restriction of competition within the Community. 

To this end this Directive lays down measures 
aimed, as a first priority, at preventing the 
production of packaging waste and, as additional 
fundamental principles, at reusing packaging, at 

No later than five years from the date by which this 
Directive must be implemented in national law 
(1996), between 50 % as a minimum and 65 % as a 
maximum by weight of the packaging waste will be 
recovered. 

Within this general target, and with the same time 
limit, between 25 % as a minimum and 45 % as a 
maximum by weight of the totality of packaging 
materials contained in packaging waste will be 
recycled with a minimum of 15 % by weight for each 
packaging material.   

• Again, while this directive dictates national 
legislation, the Local Plan itself can play an 
important role in controlling or providing a basis 
for better waste management.  

• These targets are incorporated in national 
legislation – so Local Plan must adhere to them 
as appropriate. 

373



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 181 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

recycling and other forms of recovering 
packaging waste and, hence, at reducing the 
final disposal of such waste. 

EU Drinking Water Directive (98/83/EC) 

Provides for the quality of drinking water. Standards are legally binding. • Local Plan should recognise that development 
can impact upon water quality and include 
policies to protect the resources. 

• SA Framework should consider objectives 
relating to water quality 

EU Directive on the Landfill of Waste (99/31/EC) 

Sets out requirements ensuring that where 
landfilling takes place the environmental impacts 
are understood and mitigated against. 

By 2006 biodegradable municipal waste going to 
landfills must be reduced to 75% of the total amount 
(by weight) of biodegradable municipal waste 
produced in 1995 or the latest year before 1995 for 
which standardised Eurostat data is available. 

• Local Plan should take into consideration 
landfilling with respect to environmental factors. 

• SA Objectives should include priorities to 
minimise waste, increased recycling and re-use. 

EU Water Framework Directive (2000/60/EC) 

Establishes a framework for the protection of 
inland surface waters, transitional waters, 
coastal waters and groundwater which: 

• Prevents further deterioration and protects 
and enhances the status of aquatic 
ecosystems and, with regard to their water 
needs, terrestrial ecosystems and wetlands 
directly depending on the aquatic 
ecosystems; 

• Promotes sustainable water use based on a 
long-term protection of available water 

The achievement of “good status” for chemical and 
biological river quality.  Production of River Basin 
Management Plans. 

• The Local Plan policies should consider how the 
water environment can be protected and 
enhanced.  This will come about through 
reducing pollution and abstraction. 

• SA Framework should consider effects upon 
water quality and resource. 

• Protection and enhancement of water courses 
can be can also come about through physical 
modification.  Spatial planning will need to 
consider whether watercourse enhancement can 
be achieved through working with developers. 

374



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 182 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

resources; 

• Aims at enhanced protection and 
improvement of the aquatic environment, 
inter alia, through specific measures for the 
progressive reduction of discharges, 
emissions and losses of priority substances 
and the cessation or phasing-out of 
discharges, emissions and losses of the 
priority hazardous substances; 

• Ensures the progressive reduction of 
pollution of groundwater and prevents its 
further pollution, and  

• Contributes to mitigating the effects of 
floods and droughts. 

EU on the Assessment of the Effects of Certain Plans and Programmes on the Environment (SEA Directive) (2001/42/EC) 

The SEA Directive provides the following 
requirements for consultation: 

• Authorities which, because of their 
environmental responsibilities, are likely to 
be concerned by the effects of implementing 
the plan or programme, must be consulted 
on the scope and level of detail of the 
information to be included in the 
Environmental Report.  These authorities are 
designated in the SEA Regulations as the 
Consultation Bodies (Consultation Authorities 
in Scotland). 

• The public and the Consultation Bodies must 
be consulted on the draft plan or programme 
and the Environmental Report, and must be 
given an early and effective opportunity 

Directive contains no formal targets. Directive sets the basis for SEA as a whole and 
therefore indirectly covers all objectives. 

375



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 183 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

within appropriate time frames to express 
their opinions. 

• Other EU Member States must be consulted 
if the plan or programme is likely to have 
significant effects on the environment in 
their territories.  

• The Consultation Bodies must also be 
consulted on screening determinations on 
whether SEA is needed for plans or 
programmes under Article 3(5), i.e.  those 
which may be excluded if they are not likely 
to have significant environmental effects. 

EU Directive 2010/31/EU  on the Energy Performance of Buildings 

This Directive is the amended version of the 
2002 Directive. The overall objective of the 
Directive is to promote the improvement of the 
energy performance of buildings within the 
Union, taking into account outdoor climatic and 
local conditions, as well as indoor climate 
requirements and cost effectiveness.  

The Directive highlights how the residential and 
tertiary sectors, the majority of which are based 
in buildings, accounts for 40% of EU energy 
consumption. 

It aims to reduce the energy consumption of 
buildings by improving efficiency across the EU 
through the application of minimum requirements 
and energy use certification. 

The Directive will help manage energy demand and 
thus reduce consumption.  As a result it should help 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and ensure future 
energy security.   

EU Environmental Noise Directive (Directive 2002/49/EC) 

The underlying principles of the Directive are 
similar to those underpinning other overarching 
environment policies (such as air or waste), i.e.: 

• Monitoring the environmental problem; by 

No targets or indicators, leaving issues at the 
discretion of the competent authorities. 

• The Local Plan will need to have regard to the 
requirements of the Environmental Noise 
Directive. 

• The SA framework should include the protection 

376



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 184 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

requiring competent authorities in Member 
States to draw up "strategic noise maps" for 
major roads, railways, airports and 
agglomerations, using harmonised noise 
indicators Lden (day-evening-night 
equivalent level) and Lnight (night 
equivalent level). These maps will be used to 
assess the number of people annoyed and 
sleep-disturbed respectively throughout 
Europe; 

• Informing and consulting the public about 
noise exposure, its effects, and the 
measures considered to address noise, in 
line with the principles of the Aarhus 
Convention; 

• Addressing local noise issues by requiring 
competent authorities to draw up action 
plans to reduce noise where necessary and 
maintain environmental noise quality where 
it is good. The directive does not set any 
limit value, nor does it prescribe the 
measures to be used in the action plans, 
which remain at the discretion of the 
competent authorities; 

Developing a long-term EU strategy, which 
includes objectives to reduce the number of 
people affected by noise in the longer term, and 
provides a framework for developing existing 
Community policy on noise reduction from 
source. With this respect, the Commission has 
made a declaration concerning the provisions 
laid down in Article 1.2 with regard to the 
preparation of legislation relating to sources of 
noise. 

against excessive noise. 

377



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 185 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

EU Bathing Waters Directive 2006/7/EC 

Sets standards for the quality of bathing waters 
in terms of: 

• the physical, chemical and microbiological 
parameters;  

• the mandatory limit values and indicative 
values for such parameters; and  

• the minimum sampling frequency and 
method of analysis or inspection of such 
water. 

Standards are legally binding. • Local Plan should recognise that development 
can impact upon water quality and include 
policies to protect the resources. 

• SA Framework should consider objectives 
relating to water quality. 

EU (2006) European Employment Strategy 

The European Employment Strategy dates back 
to 1997, when the EU Member States undertook 
to establish a set of common objectives and 
targets for employment policy.  It seeks to 
engender full employment, quality of work and 
increased productivity as well as the promotion 
of inclusion by addressing disparities in access to 
labour markets. 

No formal targets. • The Local Plan should deliver policies which 
support these aims. 

• The SA assessment framework should assess 
employment levels, quality of work and social 
inclusion. 

EU (2009) Renewed EU Sustainable Development Strategy 

In June 2001, the first European sustainable 
development strategy was agreed by EU Heads 
of State.  The Strategy sets out how the EU can 
meet the needs of present generations without 
compromising the ability of future generations to 
meet their needs.  The Strategy proposes 
headline objectives and lists seven key 
challenges: 

The overall objectives in the Strategy are to: 

• Safeguard the earth's capacity to support life in 
all its diversity, respect the limits of the planet's 
natural resources and ensure a high level of 
protection and improvement of the quality of the 
environment.  Prevent and reduce environmental 
pollution and promote sustainable consumption 
and production to break the link between 
economic growth and environmental 

The Local Plan should aim to create a pattern of 
development consistent with the objectives of the 
Strategy and in turn promote sustainable 
development. 

378



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 186 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

• Climate change and clean energy;  

• Sustainable transport;  

• Sustainable consumption and production;  

• Conservation and management of natural 
resources;  

• Public health; 

• Social inclusion, demography and migration; 
and  

• Global poverty. 

degradation; 
 

• Promote a democratic, socially inclusive, 
cohesive, healthy, safe and just society with 
respect for fundamental rights and cultural 
diversity that creates equal opportunities and 
combats discrimination in all its forms; 
 

• Promote a prosperous, innovative, knowledge-
rich, competitive and eco-efficient economy 
which provides high living standards and full and 
high-quality employment throughout the 
European Union, and 
 

• Encourage the establishment and defend the 
stability of democratic institutions across the 
world, based on peace, security and freedom.  
Actively promote sustainable development 
worldwide and ensure that the European Union’s 
internal and external policies are consistent with 
global sustainable development and its 
international commitments. 

EU Floods Directive 2007/60/EC 

Aims to provide a consistent approach to 
managing flood risk across Europe. 

The approach is based on a 6 year cycle of planning 
which includes the publication of Preliminary Flood 
Risk Assessments, hazard and risk maps and flood 
risk management plans. The Directive is transposed 
into English law by the Flood Risk Regulations 2009. 

• Local Plan should recognise that development 
can impact vulnerability to flooding and increase 
risk due to climate change. 

• SA Framework should consider objectives 
relating to flood risk. 

EU Air Quality Directive (2008/50/EC) and previous directives (96/62/EC; 99/30/EC; 2000/69/EC & 2002/3/EC) 

New Directive provided that most of existing 
legislation be merged into a single directive 

• No targets or indicators. • Local Plan policies should consider the 
maintenance of good air quality and the 

379



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 187 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

(except for the fourth daughter directive) with 
no change to existing air quality objectives. 

Relevant objectives include: 

• Maintain ambient air quality where it is good 
and improve it in other cases; and 

• Maintain ambient-air quality where it is good 
and improve it in other cases with respect to 
sulphur dioxide, nitrogen dioxide and oxides 
of nitrogen, particulate matter and lead. 

• Includes thresholds for pollutants. measures that can be taken to improve it 
through, for example, an encouragement to 
reduce vehicle movements.   

• SA Framework should include objectives relating 
to air quality. 

EU Directive on Waste (Directive 75/442/EEC, 2006/12/EC 2008/98/EC as amended) 

Seeks to prevent and reduce the production of 
waste and its impacts.  Where necessary waste 
should be disposed of without creating 
environmental problems 

Seeks to protect the environment and human 
health by preventing or reducing the adverse 
impacts of the generation and management of 
waste and by reducing overall impacts of 
resource use and improving the efficiency of 
such use. 

Promotes the development of clean technology to 
process waste, promoting recycling and re-use. 

The Directive contains a range of provision including: 

• The setting up of separate collections of waste 
where technically, environmentally and 
economically practicable and appropriate to meet 
the necessary quality standards for the relevant 
recycling sectors – including by 2015 separate 
collection for at least paper, metal, plastic and 
glass5.  

• Household waste recycling target – the preparing 
for re-use and the recycling of waste materials 
such as at least paper, metal, plastic and glass 
from households and possibly other origins as far 
as these waste streams are similar to waste from 
households, must be increased to a minimum of 
50% by weight by 2020.  

• Construction and demolition waste recovery 
target – the preparing for re-use, recycling and 
other material recovery of non-hazardous 

• Local Plan policies should seek to minimise 
waste, and the environmental effects caused by 
it.  Policies should promote recycling and re-use. 
   

• SA Objectives should include priorities to 
minimise waste, increased recycling and re-use. 

380



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 188 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

construction and demolition waste must be 
increased to a minimum of 70% by weight by 
2020. 

EU Directive on the Conservation of Wild Birds (09/147/EC) (codified version of Council Directive 79/409/EEC as amended) 

Identifies 181 endangered species and sub-
species for which the Member States are 
required to designate Special Protection Areas.  

Makes it a legal requirement that EU countries 
make provision for the protection of birds.  This 
includes the selection and designation of Special 
Protection Areas.   

Target Actions include: 

• Creation of protected areas; 

• Upkeep and management; and  

• Re-establishment of destroyed biotopes. 

• Local Plan should include policies to protect and 
enhance wild bird populations, including the 
protection of SPAs. 
   

• SA Framework should consider objectives to 
protect and enhance biodiversity including wild 
birds. 

EU Renewable Energy Directive (2009/28/EC) 

This Directive establishes a common framework 
for the use of energy from renewable sources in 
order to limit greenhouse gas emissions and to 
promote cleaner transport. It encourages energy 
efficiency, energy consumption from renewable 
sources and the improvement of energy supply. 

Each Member State to achieve a 10% minimum 
target for the share of energy from renewable 
sources by 2020. 

• The Local Plan should contribute towards 
increasing the proportion of energy from 
renewable energy sources where appropriate. 

• The SA assessment framework should include 
consideration of use of energy from renewable 
energy sources. 

EU (2011) EU Biodiversity Strategy to 2020 – towards implementation 

The European Commission has adopted an 
ambitious new strategy to halt the loss of 
biodiversity and ecosystem services in the EU by 
2020. 

The strategy provides a framework for action 
over the next decade and covers the following 
key areas: 

• Conserving and restoring nature; 

There are six main targets, and 20 actions to help 
Europe reach its goal. The six targets cover: 

1. Full implementation of EU nature legislation to 
protect biodiversity  

2. Better protection for ecosystems, and more use of 
green infrastructure  

3. More sustainable agriculture and forestry  

The Local Plan should seek to protect and enhance 
biodiversity.   

381



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 189 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

• Maintaining and enhancing ecosystems and 
their services; 

• Ensuring the sustainability of agriculture, 
forestry and fisheries; 

• Combating invasive alien species; and 

• Addressing the global biodiversity crisis. 

4. Better management of fish stocks  

5. Tighter controls on invasive alien species  

6. A bigger EU contribution to averting global 
biodiversity loss 

United Nations (2015) United Nations Climate Change Conference (COP 21) Paris Agreement 

The agreement’s main aim is to keep a global 
temperature rise this century well below 2 
degrees Celsius and to drive efforts to limit the 
temperature increase even further to 1.5 
degrees Celsius above pre-industrial levels. 

The 1.5 degree Celsius limit is a significantly 
safer defence line against the worst impacts of a 
changing climate. 

Additionally, the agreement aims to strengthen 
the ability to deal with the impacts of climate 
change.   

Each Member State to ensure temperature rise this 
century is below 2 degrees Celsius. 

• The Local plan should positively contribute to a 
low carbon economy. 

• The SA Framework should include an objective 
on climatic factors. 

UNESCO World Heritage Convention (1972) 

Countries are required to: 

• Ensure that measures are taken for the 
protection, conservation and presentation of 
cultural and natural heritage 

• Adopt a general policy that gives cultural 
and natural heritage a function in the life of 
the community 

Integrate the protection of heritage into 

Designation of UNESCO World Heritage Sites. The SA Framework should include an objective on 
heritage and archaeological issues. 

382



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 190 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

comprehensive planning programmes. 

UNFCCC (1997) The Kyoto Protocol to the UNFCCC 

The Kyoto Protocol to the UNFCCC established 
the first policy that actively aims to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions by industrialised 
countries. 

Construction is a significant source of greenhouse 
gas emissions due to the consumption of materials 
and use of energy.  The Kyoto Protocol aims to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions of the UK by 
12.5%, compared to 1990 levels, by 2008 – 2012. 

The Kyoto Protocol is influential to achieving 
sustainable development as it encourages transition 
to a low carbon economy.  Therefore it is an integral 
factor in planning documents.   

World Commission on Environment and Development (1987) Our Common Future (The Brundtland Report) 

The Brundtland Report is concerned with the 
world's economy and its environment.  The 
objective is to provide an expanding and 
sustainable economy while protecting a 
sustainable environment.  The Report was a call 
by the United Nations: 

• to propose long-term environmental 
strategies for achieving sustainable 
development by the year 2000 and beyond;   

• to recommend ways concern for the 
environment may be translated into greater 
co-operation among countries of the global 
South and between countries at different 
stages of economic and social development 
and lead to the achievement of common and 
mutually supportive objectives that take 
account of the interrelationships between 
people, resources, environment, and 
development;   

• to consider ways and means by which the 
international community can deal more 

The report issued a multitude of recommendations 
with the aim of attaining sustainable development 
and addressing the problems posed by a global 
economy that is intertwined with the environment. 

The Brundtland Report provided the original 
definition of sustainable development.  The 
accumulated effects of the SA objectives seek to 
achieve sustainable development. 

383



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 191 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

effectively with environment concerns; and   

• to help define shared perceptions of long-
term environmental issues and the 
appropriate efforts needed to deal 
successfully with the problems of protecting 
and enhancing the environment, a long term 
agenda for action during the coming 
decades, and aspirational goals for the world 
community. 

The World Summit on Sustainable Development (WSSD), Johannesburg, September 2002  

Commitments arising from Johannesburg 
Summit: 

Sustainable consumption and production 
patterns. 

Accelerate the shift towards sustainable 
consumption and production - 10-year 
framework of programmes of action; Reverse 
trend in loss of natural resources.  

Renewable Energy and Energy efficiency. 

Urgently and substantially increase [global] 
share of renewable energy. 

Significantly reduce rate of biodiversity loss by 
2010.   

No targets or indicators, however actions include:  

• Greater resource efficiency; 

• Support business innovation and take-up of best 
practice in technology and management; 

• Waste reduction and producer responsibility; and 

• Sustainable consumer consumption and 
procurement. 

Create a level playing field for renewable energy and 
energy efficiency.  

• New technology development  

• Push on energy efficiency  

• Low-carbon programmes 

• Reduced impacts on biodiversity. 

• The Local Plan can encourage greater efficiency 
of resources.  Ensure policies cover the action 
areas. 

• The Local Plan can encourage renewable energy.  
Ensure policies cover the action areas. 

• The Local Plan can protect and enhance 
biodiversity.  Ensure policies cover the action 
areas. 

National Plans and Programmes  

Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) (2001) The Historic Environment: A Force for our Future 

384



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 192 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

Report sets the following objectives: 

• public interest in the historic environment is 
matched by firm leadership, effective 
partnerships, and the development of a 
sound knowledge base from which to develop 
policies; 

• the full potential of the historic environment 
as a learning resource is realised; 

• the historic environment is accessible to 
everybody and is seen as something with 
which the whole of society can identify and 
engage; 

• the historic environment is protected and 
sustained for the benefit of our own and 
future generations; and 

• the historic environment’s importance as an 
economic asset is skilfully harnessed. 

No key targets. Local Plan policies should ensure the historic 
environment is utilised as both a learning resource 
and an economic asset, while ensuring it is 
sustained for future generations.   

DCMS (2008) Heritage Protection for the 21st Century: White Paper 

The Consultation Paper has three core 
principles: 

• Developing a unified approach to the historic 
environment; 

• Maximising opportunities for inclusion and 
involvement; and 

• Supporting sustainable communities by 
putting the historic environment at the heart 
of an effective planning system. 

No formal targets, but a number of 
measures/recommendations. 

The SA Framework should include objectives which 
take into account the White Paper’s principles. 

385



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 193 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

DCMS (2008) Play Strategy for England 

Strategy aims that: 

• In every residential area there are a variety 
of supervised and unsupervised places for 
play, free of charge; 

• Local neighbourhoods are, and feel like, safe, 
interesting places to play; 

• Routes to children’s play space are safe and 
accessible for all children and young people; 

• Parks and open spaces are attractive and 
welcoming to children and young people, and 
are well maintained and well used; 

• Children and young people have a clear stake 
in public space and their play is accepted by 
their neighbours; 

• Children and young people play in a way that 
respects other people and property; 

• Children and young people and their families 
take an active role in the development of 
local play spaces; and 

• Play spaces are attractive, welcoming, 
engaging and accessible for all local children 
and young people, including disabled 
children, and children from minority groups in 
the community. 

Every local authority will receive at least £1 million in 
funding, to be targeted on the children most in need 
of improved play opportunities. 

SA Objectives should seek to promote sport and 
physical activity and promote healthy lifestyles. 

DCLG (2011) Planning for Schools Development 

The Government is firmly committed to ensuring 
there is sufficient provision to meet growing 

There are no specific targets or indicators of SA Framework should include a guide question 

386



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 194 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

demand for state-funded school places, 
increasing choice and opportunity in state-
funded education and raising educational 
standards.  

It is the Government’s view that the creation 
and development of state-funded schools is 
strongly in the national interest and that 
planning decision-makers can and should 
support that objective, in a manner consistent 
with their statutory obligations. 

relevance. relating to schools. 

MHCLG (2018) National Planning Policy Framework 

MHCLG (2018) National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

The general thrust of the NPPF is aimed at 
contributing towards sustainable development 
through the planning system. There is a presumption 
in favour of sustainable development “which should 
be seen as a golden thread running through both 
plan-making and decision-taking.” There are three 
dimensions as to how the government aims to 
achieve sustainable development which gives rise to 
the need for the planning system to perform in a 
number of roles. These roles are based around 
economic, environmental and social objectives. 

The NPPF is supported by National Planning Practice 
Guidance which expands upon and provides 
additional guidance in respect of national planning 
policy. 

The SA Framework should include objectives 
covering aspects of sustainable development. 

NPPF – Biodiversity, Geodiversity and Soil  The NPPF sets out core planning principles for plan 
and decision making, including: ‘Conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment’. Planning policies 
and decisions should contribute and enhance the 
natural and local environment by: 

SA Framework should include objectives which seek 
to protect geological sites and improve biodiversity. 

387



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 195 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

• Protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites 
of biodiversity or geological value and soils; 

• Recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of 
the countryside, and the wider benefits from 
natural capital and  ecosystem services; 

• Maintaining the character of the undeveloped 
coast, while improving public access to it where 
appropriate; 

• Minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing 
net gains in biodiversity where possible, including 
by establishing coherent ecological networks that 
are more resilient to current and future pressures; 

• Preventing both new and existing development 
from contributing to, being put at unacceptable 
risk from, or being adversely affected by 
unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise 
pollution or land instability. Development should, 
wherever possible, help to improve local 
environmental conditions such as air and water 
quality, taking into account relevant information 
such as river basin management plans; and 

• Remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, 
derelict, contaminated and unstable land, where 
appropriate. 

Plans and decisions should: distinguish between the 
hierarchy of international, national and locally 
designated sites; allocate land with the least 
environmental or amenity value, where consistent 
with other policies in this Framework; take a 
strategic approach to maintaining and enhancing 
networks of habitats and green infrastructure; and 
plan for the enhancement of natural capital at a 
catchment or landscape scale across local authority 

388



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 196 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

boundaries.  

Local planning authorities should apply the following 
principles: if significant harm to biodiversity resulting 
from a development cannot be avoided, adequately 
mitigated or, as a last resort, compensated for, then 
planning permission should be refused; development 
on land within or outside a SSSI, and which is likely 
to have an adverse effect on it, should not normally 
be permitted; development resulting in the loss of. 

NPPF – Landscape  The NPPF sets out core planning principles for plan 
and decision making, including: ‘Conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment’. The planning 
system should contribute and enhance the natural 
and local environment by; 

• Protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites 
of biodiversity or geological value and soils ; 

• Recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of 
the countryside, and the wider benefits from 
natural capital and  ecosystem services; 

• Maintaining the character of the undeveloped 
coast, while improving public access to it where 
appropriate; 

• Minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing 
net gains in biodiversity where possible, including 
by establishing coherent ecological networks that 
are more resilient to current and future pressures; 

• Preventing both new and existing development 
from contributing to, being put at unacceptable 
risk from, or being adversely affected by 
unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise 
pollution or land instability. Development should, 
wherever possible, help to improve local 

SA Framework should include objectives which seek 
to protect and improve landscapes for both people 
and wildlife and to protect and maintain vulnerable 
assets. 389



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 197 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

environmental conditions such as air and water 
quality, taking into account relevant information 
such as river basin management plans; and 

• Remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, 
derelict, contaminated and unstable land, where 
appropriate. 

Plans and decisions should distinguish between the 
hierarchy of international, national and locally 
designated sites; allocate land with the least 
environmental or amenity value, where consistent 
with other policies in this Framework; take a 
strategic approach to maintaining and enhancing 
networks of habitats and green infrastructure; and 
plan for the enhancement of natural capital at a 
catchment or landscape scale across local authority 
boundaries. 

Local planning authorities should plan positively for 
creation, protection, enhancement and management 
of networks of biodiversity and green infrastructure. 
Planning and decision making should occur at a 
landscape scale across local authority boundaries and 
assess noise, air and light pollution, considering 
cumulative impacts. Local planning authorities should 
protect and enhance biodiversity specifically 
regarding priority species/habitats, protected sites 
and potential/proposed/possible protected sites. 

NPPF – Cultural Environment  One of the NPPF’s core planning principles for plan 
and decision making is the conservation and 
enhancement of the historic environment. Local 
planning authorities are required to set out a positive 
strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the 
historic environment, including heritage assets most 
at risk through neglect, decay or other threats. The 

SA Framework should include objectives which seek 
to maintain vulnerable assets including built and 
historic. 

390



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 198 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

strategy should take into account: the desirability of 
sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets, and putting them to viable uses consistent 
with their conservation; the wider, social, cultural, 
economic and environmental benefits that 
conservation of the historic environment can bring; 
the desirability of new development making a 
positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness; and opportunities to draw on the 
contribution made by the historic environment to the 
character of the place.  

In determining applications, local authorities should 
take account of: the positive contribution that 
conservation of heritage assets can make to 
sustainable communities including their economic 
vitality; and the desirability of new development 
making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness. 

NPPF – Water  Among the NPPF’s core principles are ‘conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment’ and ‘meeting the 
challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 
change’; In fulfilling these objectives, the planning 
system should contribute to and enhance the natural 
and local environment by: preventing both new and 
existing development from contributing to or being 
put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely 
affected by unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or 
noise pollution or land instability. 

In preparing plans to meet development needs, the 
aim should be to minimise pollution and other 
adverse effects on the local and natural environment. 

Local planning authorities should adopt proactive 
strategies to mitigate and adapt to climate change, 

SA Framework should include objectives which aim 
to maintain quality of water and reduce the risk of 
flooding. 

391



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 199 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

taking full account of flood risk, coastal change and 
water supply and demand considerations.  

Inappropriate development in areas at risk of 
flooding should be avoided by directing development 
away from areas at highest risk, but where 
development is necessary, making it safe without 
increasing flood risk elsewhere. Local Plans should be 
informed by a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and 
develop policies to manage flood risk from all 
sources, taking account of advice from the 
Environment Agency and other relevant flood risk 
management bodies, such as lead local flood 
authorities and internal drainage boards. Local Plans 
should apply a sequential, risk-based approach to the 
location of development – taking into account the 
current and future impacts of climate change-- to 
avoid where possible flood risk to people and 
property and manage any residual risk, by: 

• applying the Sequential Test; 

• if necessary, applying the Exception Test; 

• safeguarding land from development that is 
required for current and future flood 
management; 

• using opportunities offered by new development 
to reduce the causes and impacts of flooding; and 

• where climate change is expected to increase 
flood risk so that some existing development may 
not be sustainable in the long-term, seeking 
opportunities to facilitate the relocation of 
development, including housing, to more 
sustainable locations. 

392



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 200 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

NPPF – Climate Change  One of the core principles of the NPPF is meeting the 
challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 
change and encourages the adoption of proactive 
strategies to mitigate and adapt to climate change, 
taking into account the log-term implications for 
flood risk, coastal change, water supply, biodiversity 
and landscapes, and the risk of overheating from 
rising temperatures. The NPPF also supports the 
transition to a low carbon future by helping to 
increase the use of renewable and low carbon energy 
sources.  

Plans should: provide a positive strategy for energy 
from these sources, that maximises the potential for 
suitable development, while ensuring that adverse 
impacts are addressed satisfactorily; consider 
identifying suitable areas for renewable and low 
carbon energy sources, and supporting 
infrastructure; and identify opportunities for 
development to draw its energy supply from 
decentralised, renewable or low carbon energy 
supply systems and for co-locating potential heat 
customers and suppliers. 

• SA Framework should include objectives which 
seek to reduce the causes and impacts of climate 
change. 

• SA Framework should include objectives which 
seek to ensure the prudent use of natural 
resources and the sustainable management of 
existing resources. 

NPPF – Air Quality  Sets out that planning policies should sustain and 
contribute towards compliance with relevant limit 
values or national objectives for pollutants, taking 
into account the presence of Air Quality Management 
Areas and Clean Air Zones, and the cumulative 
impacts on air quality from individual sites in local 
areas. Planning decisions should ensure that any new 
development in Air Quality Management Areas and 
Clean Air Zones is consistent with the local air quality 
action plan. 

SA Framework should include objectives which seek 
to improve air quality. 

393



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 201 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

NPPF – Minerals and Waste One of the core principles of the NPPF is facilitating 
the sustainable use of minerals.  Planning policies 
should: provide for the extraction of mineral 
resources of local and national importance, but no 
identify new sites or extensions to existing sites for 
peat extraction; so far as practicable, take account of 
the contribution that substitute or secondary and 
recycled materials and minerals waste would make to 
the supply of materials; safeguard mineral resources 
by defining Mineral Safeguarding Areas; set out 
policies to encourage the prior extraction of minerals, 
where practical and environmentally feasible, if it is 
necessary for non-mineral development to take 
place; safeguard existing, planned and potential sites 
for: the bulk transport, handling and processing of 
minerals; the manufacture of concreate and concrete 
products; and the handling, processing and 
distribution of substitute, recycled and secondary 
aggregate material; set out criteria or requirements 
to ensure that permitted and proposed operations do 
not have unacceptable adverse impacts on the 
natural and historic environment or human health, 
taking into account the cumulative effects of multiple 
impacts from individual sites and/or a number of 
sites in a locality; when developing noise limits, 
recognise that some noisy short-term activities, 
which may otherwise be regarded as unacceptable, 
are unavoidable to facilitate minerals extraction; and 
ensure that worked land is reclaimed at the earliest 
opportunity, taking account of aviation safety, and 
that high quality restoration and aftercare of mineral 
sites takes place.   

• SA Framework should include objectives which 
seek to reduce the quantity of minerals extracted 
and imported. 

• SA Framework should include objectives which 
seek to reduce the generation and disposal of 
waste and for its sustainable management. 

NPPF - Economy One of the NPPF’s core planning principles for plan 
and decision making is building a strong competitive 

SA Framework should include objectives which seek 
for the district to achieve a strong and stable 

394



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 202 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

economy. The NPPF highlights the Government’s 
commitment to securing economic growth to create 
jobs and prosperity, ensuring the planning system 
does everything it can to support sustainable 
economic growth.  

Economic growth in rural areas should be supported 
to create sustainable growth, including expansion of 
all types of businesses, diversification of agriculture, 
supporting sustainable rural tourism and retention of 
local services, community facilities and character. 

In drawing up local plans, local authorities should; 

• Set out a clear economic vision and strategy for 
their area which positively and proactively 
encourages sustainable economic growth; 

• Set criteria, or identify strategic sites, for local 
and inward investment to match the strategy and 
to meet anticipated needs over the plan period; 

• Seek to address potential barriers to investment, 
such as inadequate infrastructure, services or 
housing, or a poor environment;  

• Be flexible enough to accommodate needs not 
anticipated in the plan, allow for new and flexible 
working practices, and to enable a rapid response 
to changes in economic circumstances; and 

• Plan positively for the location, promotion and 
expansion of clusters or networks of knowledge 
driven, creative or high technology industries. 

economy which offers rewarding and well located 
employment opportunities to everyone. 

NPPF – Housing  One of the NPP’Fs core principles is the delivery of a 
sufficient supply of homes. It is important that a 
sufficient amount and variety of land can come 
forward where it is needed, that the needs of groups 

SA Framework should include objectives which 
encourage the availability, availability and 
affordability of housing to everyone. 

395



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 203 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

with specific housing requirements are addressed and 
that land with permission is developed without 
unnecessary delay.  

Provision of affordable housing should not be sought 
for residential developments that are not major 
developments, other than in designated rural areas. 
To support the re-use of brownfield land, where 
vacant buildings are being reused or redeveloped, 
and affordable housing contribution due should be 
reduced by a proportionate amount. 

Where major development involving the provision of 
housing is proposed, planning policies and decisions 
should expect at least 10% of the homes to be 
available for affordable home ownership. Unless this 
would exceed the level of affordable housing required 
in the area. 

Local planning authorities should establish a housing 
requirement figure for the entire area, which shows 
the extent to which their identified housing need can 
be met over the plan period.  

Planning policies should identify a supply of: specific, 
deliverable sites for years one to five of the plan 
period, and specific, developable sites or broad 
location for growth, for years 6-10 and where 
possible, for years 11-15 of the plan.  

To promote the development of a good mix of sites 
local planning authorities should: identify land to 
accommodate at least 10% of their housing 
requirement on sites no larger than one hectare; use 
tools such as area-wide design assessments and 
Local Development Orders to help bring small and 
medium sized sites forward; support the 
development of windfall sites; and work with 

396



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 204 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

developers to encourage the sub-division of large 
sites where this could help to speed up the delivery 
of homes.  

To promote sustainable development in rural areas, 
housing should be located where it will enhance or 
maintain the vitality of rural communities. 

NPPF – Health  Amongst the planning principles of the NPPF is the 
promotion of healthy and safe communities.  

Planning policies and decision should aim to achieve 
health, inclusive and sage places which: promote 
social interaction, including opportunities for 
meetings between people who might not otherwise 
come into contact with each other; are safe and 
accessible, so that crime and disorder, and the fear 
of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or 
community cohesion; and enable and support healthy 
lifestyles, especially where this would address 
identified local health and well-being needs. 

To provide the social, recreational and cultural 
facilities and services the community needs, planning 
policies and decisions should: plan positively for the 
provision and use of shared spaces, community 
facilities, and other local services to enhance the 
sustainability of communities and residential 
environments; taking into account and support the 
delivery of local strategies to improve health, social 
and cultural well-being for the entire community; 
guard against the unnecessary loss of valued 
facilities and services; ensure that established shops, 
facilities and services are able to develop and 
modernise and are retained for the benefit of the 
community; and ensure an integrated approach to 
considering the location of housing, economic uses 

SA Framework should include objectives which 
promote healthy communities and healthy living. 

397



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 205 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

and community facilities and services. 

Access to a network of high quality open spaces and 
opportunities for sport and physical activity is 
important for the health and well-being of 
communities.  

Planning policies and decisions should protect and 
enhance public rights of way and access, including 
taking opportunities to provide better facilities for 
users.  

Local and neighbourhood plans should identify 
community green spaces of particular importance 
(including recreational and tranquillity) to them, 
ensuring any development of these areas is ruled out 
in a majority of circumstances. 

NPPF – Transport and Accessibility  Amongst the planning principles of the NPPF is 
promoting sustainable transport. 

Transport issues should be considered from the 
earliest stages of planning, so that: the potential 
impacts of development on transport networks can 
be addressed; opportunities from existing or 
proposed transport infrastructure, and changing 
transport technology and usage, are realised; 
opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public 
transport use are identified and pursued; the 
environmental impacts of traffic and transport 
infrastructure can be identified assessed and taken 
into account; and patterns of movement, streets, 
parking and other transport considerations are 
integral to the design of schemes, and contribute to 
making high quality places. 

Planning policies should: support an appropriate mix 
of uses across an area to minimise the number and 

SA Framework should include objectives which seek 
to reduce road traffic and its impacts and promote 
sustainable modes of transport. 

 

398



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 206 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

length of journeys needed for employment, shopping, 
leisure, education and other activities; be prepare d 
with the active involvement of local highways 
authorities, other transport infrastructure providers 
and operators and neighbouring councils, so that 
strategies and investments for supporting sustainable 
transport and development patterns are aligned; 
identify and protect, where there is robust evidence, 
sites and routes which could be critical in developing 
infrastructure to widen transport choice and realise 
opportunities for large scale development; provide 
for high quality walking and cycling networks and 
supporting facilities such as cycle parking; provide 
for any large scale transport facilities that need to be 
located in the  area, and the infrastructure and wider 
development required to support their operation, 
expansion and contribution to the wider economy; 
recognise the importance of maintaining a national 
network of general aviation airfield, and their need to 
adapt and change over time.   

All developments that will generate significant 
amounts of movement should be required to provide 
a travel plan.   

NPPF – Quality of Life Two of the  core planning principles of the NPPF are:  
Promoting healthy and safe communities, and 
Supporting high quality communications. The NPPF 
argues that the planning system can play an 
important role in facilitating social interaction and 
creating healthy, inclusive communities. Local 
planning authorities should create a shared vision 
with communities of the residential environment and 
facilities they wish to see. Local policies and decisions 
should therefore promote: 

• Safe and accessible environments and 

SA Framework should include objectives which seek 
to improve the quality of life for those living and 
working within the district. 

399



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 207 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

developments; 

• Opportunities for members of the community to 
mix and meet; 

• Plan for development and use of high quality 
shared public space; 

• Guard against loss of facilities; 

• Ensure established shops can develop in a 
sustainable way; and  

• Ensure integrated approach to housing and 
community facilities and services. 

The framework sets out open space, sport and 
recreation considerations for neighbourhood planning 
bodies. These include an assessment of needs and 
opportunities; setting local standards; maintaining an 
adequate supply of open space and sports and 
recreational facilities; planning for new open space 
and sports and recreational facilities; and planning 
obligations. 

Advanced, high quality and reliable communications 
infrastructure is essential for economic growth and 
social well-being. Planning policies should support the 
expansion of electronic communications networks. 

MHCLG (2018) Planning Practice Guidance 

Planning Practice Guidance is designed to 
support the NPPF.  It reflects the objectives of 
the NPPF which are not repeated here. 

No formal targets identified. • The Local Plan should reflect the Planning 
Practice Guidance. 

• The SA Framework should reflect the principles 
of the NPPF and the Planning Practice Guidance. 

DCLG (2014) National Planning Policy for Waste 

400



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 208 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

Sets out detailed waste planning policies for 
local authorities. States that planning authorities 
need to:  

• Use a proportionate evidence base in 
preparing Local Plans 

• Identify sufficient opportunities to meet the  
needs of their area for the management of 
waste streams 

• Identifying suitable sites and areas. 

The overall objective of the policy is to deliver 
sustainable development by protecting the 
environment and human health by producing less 
waste and by using it as a resource wherever 
possible. 

• Local Plan should consider opportunities to 
reduce waste and encourage recycling and 
composting e.g.  integration of recycling and 
composting facilities into new development and 
use of recycled materials in new buildings. 

• SA Framework should consider objectives which 
relate to re-use, recycle and reduce. 

DCLG (2014) House of Commons: Witten Statement on Sustainable Drainage Systems 

Under these arrangements, in considering 
planning applications, local planning authorities 
should consult the relevant lead local flood 
authority on the management of surface water; 
satisfy themselves that the proposed minimum 
standards of operation are appropriate and 
ensure through the use of planning conditions or 
planning obligations that there are clear 
arrangements in place for ongoing maintenance 
over the lifetime of the development. The 
sustainable drainage system should be designed 
to ensure that the maintenance and operation 
requirements are economically proportionate. 

There are no specific targets or indicators of 
relevance. 

SA Framework should include a guide question 
relating to Sustainable Drainage Systems. 

DCLG (2015) Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 

This document sets out the Government’s 
planning policy for traveller sites.  It identifies 
the following aims: 

• that local planning authorities should make 
their own assessment of need for the 

No formal targets are identified. • The Local Plan will need to make appropriate 
provision for traveller sites, in accordance with 
national planning policy. 

• SA Framework should include a specific guide 

401



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 209 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

purposes of planning 

• to ensure that local planning authorities, 
working collaboratively, develop fair and 
effective strategies to meet need through 
the identification of land for sites 

• to encourage local planning authorities to 
plan for sites over a reasonable timescale 

• that plan-making and decision-taking should 
protect Green Belt from inappropriate 
development 

• to promote more private traveller site 
provision while recognising that there will 
always be those travellers who cannot 
provide their own sites 

• that plan-making and decision-taking should 
aim to reduce the number of unauthorised 
developments and encampments and make 
enforcement more effective 

• for local planning authorities to ensure that 
their Local Plan includes fair, realistic and 
inclusive policies 

• to increase the number of traveller sites in 
appropriate locations with planning 
permission, to address under provision and 
maintain an appropriate level of supply 

• to reduce tensions between settled and 
traveller communities in plan making and 
planning decisions 

• to enable provision of suitable 
accommodation from which travellers can 
access education, health, welfare and 

question relating to provision for travellers. 

402



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 210 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

employment infrastructure, and 

• for local planning authorities to have due 
regard to the protection of local amenity 
and local environment. 

Department for Education (2014) Home to School Travel and Transport Guidance 

There are five main elements to the duty which 
local authorities must undertake: 

• an assessment of the travel and transport 
needs of children, and young people within 
the authority’s area; 

• an audit of the sustainable travel and 
transport infrastructure within the 
authority’s area that may be used when 
travelling to and from, or between 
schools/institutions; 

• a strategy to develop the sustainable travel 
and transport infrastructure within the 
authority so that the travel and transport 
needs of children and young people are best 
catered for; 

• the promotion of sustainable travel and 
transport modes on the journey to, from, 
and between schools and other institutions; 
and 

• the publication of Sustainable Modes of 
Travel Strategy. 

There are no specific targets or indicators of 
relevance. 

SA Framework should include a guide question 
relating to accessibility to Schools and Transport. 

Department of Energy and Climate Change (DECC) (2009) The UK Low Carbon Transition Plan: National Strategy for Climate and Energy 

This Paper plots out how the UK will meet the Sets out a vision that by 2020: • Strategy covers a number of SA objectives 
including climate change, energy and air quality; 

403



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 211 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

cut in emissions set out in the budget of 34% on 
1990 levels by 2020.  The Plan includes: 

• New money for a ‘smart grid’, and to help 
regions and local authorities prepare for and 
speed up planning decisions on renewable 
and low carbon energy while protecting 
legitimate environmental and local concerns; 

• Funding to significantly advance the offshore 
wind industry in the UK; 

• Funding to cement the UK’s position as a 
global leader in wave and tidal energy; 

• Funding to explore areas of potential “hot 
rocks” to be used for geothermal energy;  

• Challenging 15 villages, towns or cities to be 
testbeds for piloting future green initiatives; 

• Support for anaerobic digestion; 

• Encouraging private funding for woodland 
creation; and 

• Reducing the amount of waste sent to 
landfill, and better capture of landfill 
emissions etc. 

• More than 1.2 million people will be in green 
jobs; 

• 7 million homes will have benefited from whole 
house makeovers, and more than 1.5 million 
households will be supported to produce their 
own clean energy; 

• Around 40 percent of electricity will be from low-
carbon sources, from renewables, nuclear and 
clean coal; 

• We will be importing half the amount of gas that 
we otherwise would; and 

• The average new car will emit 40% less carbon 
than now.   

landscape; geology and biodiversity; and waste. 
 

• Local Plan & associated documents must 
recognise the importance to cut emissions in line 
with national targets. 

Defra (2018) A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment 

Sets out goals for improving the environment 
within the next 25 years.  It details how the 
Government will work with communities and 
businesses to leave the environment in a better 
state than it is presently.  

To develop policies that encourages the protection 
and enhancement of the natural environment. 

Include sustainability objective / appraisal question 
that relates to the protection and enhancement of 
the natural environment. 

Defra (2007) The Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland 

404



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 212 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

This document provides an overview and outline 
of the UK Government and devolved 
administrations’ ambient (outdoor) air quality 
policy. It sets out a way forward for work and 
planning on air quality issues, details objectives 
to be achieved, and proposes measures to be 
considered further to help reach them. 

Strategy details various targets and limits relating 
emissions from a variety of sources. 

The Local Plan should look to positively enhance the 
air quality of the District. 

Defra (2007) Strategy for England's Trees, Woods and Forests 

Key aims for government intervention in trees, 
woods and forests are:  

• to secure trees and woodlands for future 
generations;  

• to ensure resilience to climate change;  

• to protect and enhance natural resources;  

• to increase the contribution that trees, woods 
and forests make to our quality of life; and 

• to improve the competitiveness of woodland 
businesses and products.  

These aims will form the basis on which the 
Delivery plan will be developed by Natural 
England and the Forestry Commission England 
(FCE).  The strategy provides a national policy 
direction, which can be incorporated alongside 
regional priorities within regional forestry 
frameworks. 

Strategy aims to create 2,200 hectares of wet 
woodland in England by 2010. 

Plan policies to protect and enhance trees, woods 
and forests.  In turn ensuring resilience to climate 
change. 

 

Defra (2009) Safeguarding Our Soils: A Strategy for England 

The strategy is underpinned by the following No further targets identified. • The Local Plan should seek to protect soil quality 

405



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 213 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

vision:  

By 2030, all England’s soils will be managed 
sustainably and degradation threats tackled 
successfully. This will improve the quality of 
England’s soils and safeguard their ability to 
provide essential services for future generations. 

Achieving this vision will mean that:  

• agricultural soils will be better managed and 
threats to them will be addressed; 

• soils will play a greater role in the fight 
against climate change and in helping us to 
manage its impacts; 

• soils in urban areas will be valued during 
development, and construction practices will 
ensure vital soil functions can be 
maintained; and 

• pollution of our soils is prevented, and our 
historic legacy of contaminated land is being 
dealt with. 

where appropriate.    

• The SA Framework should include an 
objective/guide question relating to the effects 
of policies/proposals on soils. 

Defra (2011) Biodiversity 2020: A Strategy for England’s Wildlife and Ecosystem Services 

The Strategy is designed to help to deliver the 
objectives set out in the Natural Environment 
White Paper. 

The strategy includes the following priorities: 

• Creating 200,000 hectares of new wildlife 
habitats by 2020;  

• Securing 50% of SSSIs in favourable condition, 
while maintaining at least 95% in favourable or 
recovering condition; 

• Encouraging more people to get involved in 
conservation by supporting wildlife gardening and 

Develop policies that support the vision emphasising 
biodiversity. 

406



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 214 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

outdoor learning programmes; and 

• Introducing a new designation for local green 
spaces to enable communities to protect places 
that are important to them. 

Defra (2011) Natural Environment White Paper: The Natural Choice: Securing the Value of Nature 

The Natural Environment White paper sets out 
the Government’s plans to ensure the natural 
environment is protected and fully integrated 
into society and economic growth. 

The White Paper sets out four key aims: 

• protecting and improving our natural 
environment; 

• growing a green economy; 

• reconnecting people and nature; and 

• international and EU leadership, specifically to 
achieve environmentally and socially sustainable 
economic growth, together with food, water, 
climate and energy security and to put the EU on 
a path towards environmentally sustainable, low-
carbon and resource-efficient growth, which is 
resilient to climate change, provides jobs and 
supports the wellbeing of citizens. 

Develop policies that support the vision emphasising 
biodiversity. 

Defra (2012) UK post 2010 Biodiversity Framework 

The Framework is to set a broad enabling 
structure for action across the UK between now 
and 2020: 

• To set out a shared vision and priorities for 
UK- scale activities, in a framework jointly 
owned by the four countries, and to which 
their own strategies will contribute; 

• To identify priority work at a UK level which 
will be needed to help deliver the Aichi 

The Framework sets out 20 new global ‘Aichi targets’ 
under 5 strategic goals: 

• Address the underlying causes of biodiversity loss 
by mainstreaming biodiversity across 
government and society; 

• Reduce the direct pressures on biodiversity and 
promote sustainable use; 

• To improve the status of biodiversity by 
safeguarding ecosystems species and genetic 

• Local Plan policies should seek to protect 
biodiversity.  

• The SA framework should ensure that the 
objectives of biodiversity are taken into 
consideration. 

407



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 215 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

targets and the EU Biodiversity Strategy; 

• To facilitate the aggregation and collation of 
information on activity and outcomes across 
all countries of the UK, where the four 
countries agree this will bring benefits 
compared to individual country work; and 

• To streamline governance arrangements for 
UK- scale activity. 

diversity; 
• Enhance the benefits to all from biodiversity and 

ecosystem services; and  
• Enhance implementation through participatory 

planning, knowledge management and capacity 
building. 

Defra (2018) The National Adaptation Programme and the Third Strategy for Climate Adaptation Reporting– Making the Country Resilient to a 
Changing Climate 

This Programme contains a mix of policies and 
actions to help adapt successfully to future 
weather conditions, by dealing with the risks and 
making the most of the opportunities. 

It sets out six priority areas of climate change 
risks for the UK:   

• Flooding and coastal change risks to 
communities, businesses and infrastructure; 

• Risks to health, well-being and productivity 
from high temperatures; 

• Risks of shortages in the public water supply 
for agriculture, energy generation and 
industry; 

• Risks to natural capital including terrestrial, 
coastal, marine and freshwater ecosystems, 
soil and biodiversity; 

• Risks to domestic and international food 
production and trade; and 

• New and emerging pests and diseases and 

Local Planning Authorities are required under the 
Planning Act 2008 to adopt proactive strategies to 
mitigate and adapt to climate change. The 
Programme identifies a number of actions although 
no formal targets are identified. 

• Local Plan proposals should seek to mitigate and 
adapt to the effect of climate change. 

• The SA Framework should include and 
objective/guide question relating to climate 
change adaptation. 

408



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 216 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

invasive non-native species affecting people, 
plants and animals. 

Defra (2013) Waste Management Plan for England 

Sets out the Government’s ambition to work 
towards a more sustainable and efficient 
approach to resource use and management. 

The document includes measures to: 

• Encourage reduction and management of 
packaging waste; 

• Promote high quality recycling; 

• Encourage separate collection of bio-waste; 
and 

• Promote the re-use of products and 
preparing for re-use activities. 

The Plan seeks to ensure that by 2020 at least 50% 
of weight waste from households is prepared for re-
use or recycled and at least 70% by weight of 
construction and demolition waste is subject to 
material recovery. 

The Local Plan should consider opportunities to 
reduce waste and encourage recycling and 
composting. 

Environment Agency (2013) Managing Water Abstraction 

Managing Water Abstraction (2013) sets out 
how the Environment Agency will manage water 
resources in England and Wales. It is the 
overarching document that links together its 
abstraction licensing strategies. The availability 
of water resources for abstraction is assessed 
through the Catchment Abstraction Management 
Strategy (CAMS) approach. 

No targets identified. The Local Plan should consider the objectives 
relating to water abstraction. 

Environment Agency (2013) Water Stress Areas - Final Classifications 

This report sets out the revised methodology 
developed by the Environment Agency and 
Natural Resources Wales for the classification of 

No targets identified.  The Local Plan and SA should consider the impacts 
of proposals on water resources. 

409



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 217 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

areas of water stress in England and Wales.  The 
Anglian Water area is designated as being in 
‘serious water stress.’ 

Forestry Commission (2005) Trees and Woodlands Nature's Health Service 

An advisory document which provides detailed 
examples of how the Woodland Sector (trees, 
woodlands and green spaces) can significantly 
contribute to people’s health, well-being 
(physical, psychological and social) and quality 
of life. Increasing levels of physical activity is a 
particular priority. 

No targets identified. The SA Framework should include objectives which 
relate to providing more equal access to 
opportunities, services and facilities for recreation. 

Historic England (2015) Historic Environment Good Practice Advice in Planning Note 1 

The purpose of this Historic England Good 
Practice Advice note is to provide information on 
good practice to assist local authorities, planning 
and other consultants, owners, applicants and 
other interested parties in implementing historic 
environment policy in the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) and the related 
guidance given in the National Planning Practice 
Guide (PPG). 

There are no specific targets or indicators of 
relevance. 

SA Framework should include an objective relating 
to the historic environment. 

HM Government (1979) Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 

This is the main legislation concerning 
archaeology in the UK. This Act, building on 
legislation dating back to 1882, provides for 
nationally important archaeological sites to be 
statutorily protected as Scheduled Ancient 
Monuments. Section 61(12) defines sites that 
warrant protection due to their being of national 

There are no specific targets or indicators of 
relevance.  

The SA framework should aim to: 

• Include objectives relating to the protection of 
the historic environment. 

• Assess how the NPS should seek to avoid 
adverse impacts on Ancient Monuments and 
Areas of Archaeological Importance. 

410



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 218 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

importance as 'ancient monuments'. These can 
be either Scheduled Ancient Monuments or "any 
other monument which in the opinion of the 
Secretary of State is of public interest by reason 
of the historic, architectural, traditional, artistic 
or archaeological interest attaching to it". 

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (JNCC, 1981) 

The main UK legislation relating to the 
protection of named animal and plant species 
includes legislation relating to the UK network of 
nationally protected wildlife areas: Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs). Various 
amendments have occurred since the original 
enactment. 

Under this Act, Natural England has responsibility for 
identifying and protecting SSSIs in England. 

• Develop policies that identify and continue the 
protection of SSSIs within the district. 

• Consider targets that require 95% of SSSI’s 
within region to be of a favourable condition. 

HM Government (1990) Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 

This Act was passed to better regulate the way 
in which large and small scale developments 
were approved by local authorities in England 
and Wales. It provides local planning authorities 
the power to take steps requiring land to be 
cleaned up when conditions adversely affect the 
amenity of an area. 

There are no specific targets or indicators of 
relevance. 

The SA should aim to: 

• Consider the impacts of network improvements 
on towns/cities where relevant 

HM Government (2000) Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 

This Act: 

• gives people greater freedom to explore open 
country on foot;  

• creates a duty for Highway Authorities and 
National Park Authorities to establish Local 

Act seeks to protect sites of landscape and wildlife 
importance. 

SA objectives should seek to protect areas of 
landscape and wildlife importance. 

411



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 219 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

Access Forums;  

• provides a cut-off date of 1 January 2026 for 
the recording of certain rights of way on 
definitive maps and the extinguishment of 
those not so recorded by that date;  

• offers greater protection to wildlife and 
natural features, better protection for Sites of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) and more 
effective enforcement of wildlife legislation; 
and  

• protects Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
with legislation similar to that for National 
Parks. 

HM Government (2005) Securing the future - delivering UK sustainable development strategy 

The Strategy has 5 guiding principles: 

• Living within environmental limits 

• Ensuring a strong, healthy and just society 

• Achieving a sustainable economy  

• Promoting good governance 

• Using sound science responsibly 

and 4 strategic priorities: 

• sustainable consumption and production 

• natural resource protection and 
environmental enhancement 

• building sustainable communities 

• climate change and energy. 

The Strategy contains a new set of indicators to 
monitor progress towards sustainable development in 
the UK.  Those most relevant at the district level 
include: 

• Greenhouse gas emissions 
• Road freight (CO2 emissions and tonne km, 

tonnes and GDP) 
• Household waste (a) arisings (b) recycled or 

composted 
• Local environmental quality 

• Consider how the Local Plan can contribute to 
Sustainable Development Strategy Objectives.  
Consider using some of the indicators to monitor 
the effects of the Local Plan and as basis for 
collecting information for the baseline review. 

• The SA Framework should reflect the guiding 
principles of the Strategy.   

412



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 220 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

HM Government (2006) The Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006 (as amended) 

The Act: 

• makes provision about bodies concerned with 
the natural environment and rural 
communities;  

• makes provision in connection with wildlife, 
sites of special scientific interest, National 
Parks and the Broads;  

• amends the law relating to rights of way;  

• makes provision as to the Inland Waterways 
Amenity Advisory Council; and 

• provides for flexible administrative 
arrangements in connection with functions 
relating to the environment and rural affairs 
and certain other functions; and for 
connected purposes. 

Act contains no formal targets. SA objectives must consider the importance of 
conserving biodiversity and landscape features as 
set out in the Act. 

HM Government (2008) The Climate Change Act 2008 (as amended) 

This Act aims: 

• to improve carbon management and help the 
transition towards a low carbon economy in 
the UK; and  

• to demonstrate strong UK leadership 
internationally, signalling that the UK is 
committed to taking its share of responsibility 
for reducing global emissions in the context 
of developing negotiations on a post-2012 
global agreement at Copenhagen next year. 

The Act sets: 

• Legally binding targets - Greenhouse gas 
emission reductions through action in the UK and 
abroad of at least 80% by 2050, and reductions 
in CO2 emissions of at least 26% by 2020, 
against a 1990 baseline.  The 2020 target will be 
reviewed soon after Royal Assent to reflect the 
move to all greenhouse gases and the increase in 
the 2050 target to 80%.  

Further the Act provides for a carbon budgeting 
system which caps emissions over five year periods, 

Act sets out a clear precedent for the UK to lead in 
responding to the threats climate change provides.  
The Local Plan and associated documents must 
ensure that greenhouse gases are reduced or 
minimised and that energy use comes increasingly 
from renewable sources. 

413



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 221 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

with three budgets set at a time, to set out our 
trajectory to 2050.  The first three carbon budgets 
will run from 2008-12, 2013-17 and 2018-22, and 
must be set by 1 June 2009. 

HM Government (2009) The UK Renewable Energy Strategy 

Strategy sets out to: 

• Put in place the mechanisms to provide 
financial support for renewable electricity and 
heat worth around £30 billion between now 
and 2020; 

• Drive delivery and clear away barriers; 

• Increase investment in emerging 
technologies and pursue new sources of 
supply; and 

• Create new opportunities for individuals, 
communities and business to harness 
renewable energy. 

A vision is set out in the document whereby by 2020: 

• More than 30% of our electricity generated from 
renewables; 

• 12% of our heat generated from renewables; and 
• 10% of transport energy from renewables. 

The SA Framework should include objectives which 
seek to provide support for renewable energy. 

HM Government (2010) The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 

This is the UK transposition of EC Directive 
92/43/EC on the conservation of natural habitats 
and of wild fauna and flora. 

The Regulations provide for the designation and 
protection of 'European sites', the protection of 
'European protected species', and the adaptation of 
planning and other controls for the protection of 
European Sites. 

The SA Framework should include objectives which 
seek to conserve the natural environment. 

HM Government (2010) Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (as amended) 

The Flood and Water Management Act 2010 
makes provisions about water, including 
provision about the management of risks in 

Those related to water resources, include: 

• To widen the list of uses of water that water 
companies can control during periods of water 

The SA Framework should include an objective 
and/or guide questions relating to flood risk. 

414



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 222 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

connection with flooding and coastal erosion. 

 

shortage, and enable Government to add to and 
remove uses from the list. 

• To encourage the uptake of sustainable drainage 
systems by removing the automatic right to 
connect to sewers and providing for unitary and 
county councils to adopt SUDS for new 
developments and redevelopments. 

• To reduce ‘bad debt’ in the water industry by 
amending the Water Industry Act 1991 to provide 
a named customer and clarify who is responsible 
for paying the water bill. 

• To make it easier for water and sewerage 
companies to develop and implement social tariffs 
where companies consider there is a good cause 
to do so, and in light of guidance that will be 
issued by the Secretary of State following a full 
public consultation. 

HM Government (2011) Carbon Plan: Delivering our Low Carbon Future 

This sets out how the UK will achieve 
decarbonisation within the framework of energy 
policy: 

• To make the transition to a low carbon 
economy while maintaining energy security, 
and minimising costs to consumers, 
particularly those in poorer households. 

No key targets. • The Local Plan should consider policies in term of 
access by low-carbon means and also the 
capacity for sites to use low carbon sources of 
energy. 

• The SA needs to ensure that the plan is 
embracing the low carbon agenda and 
appropriate sustainability objectives are utilised 
to assess the plan’s credentials in terms of a low 
carbon future and the impact it could have on 
climate change. 

HM Government (2011) UK Marine Policy Statement 

415



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 223 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

This document provides the framework for 
marine planning and taking decisions affecting 
the UK marine area. It outlines the UK 
Administrations’ vision for the UK marine area, 
general principles for decision making and the 
high level approach to marine planning that will 
contribute to delivering this vision and so 
achievement of sustainable development. It sets 
out the environmental, social and economic 
considerations that need to be taken into 
account. 

No specific indicators or targets. The SA should aim to: 

• Include objectives for the protection of water 
resources; 

• Include objectives relating to access to 
employment and regeneration areas and access 
to services. 

HM Government (2011) Water for Life, White Paper 

Water for Life describes a vision for future water 
management in which the water sector is 
resilient, in which water companies are more 
efficient and customer focused and in which 
water is valued as the precious and finite 
resource it is. 

There are no formal targets or indicators.   Local Plan should take into account the vision of this 
document as a means of protecting existing water 
resources. 

 

HM Government (2013) The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2013 

The Community Infrastructure Level (CIL) is a 
charge which may be applied to new 
developments by local authorities. The money 
can be used to support development by funding 
infrastructure that the council, local community 
and neighbourhoods want. 

No key targets. • The Local Plan should make some reference to 
the possibility of a Charging Schedule, as per the 
regulations. 

• The SA should make some reference to how 
proposed development will improve the social, 
economic and environmental issues that exist in 
areas that will accommodate housing. 

NHS England (2014) Five Year Forward View 

The NHS Five Year Forward View was published No specific indicators or targets. SA Framework should include a question relating to 

416



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 224 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

on 23 October 2014 and sets out a new shared 
vision for the future of the NHS based around 
the new models of care. It has been developed 
by the partner organisations that deliver and 
oversee health and care services including Care 
Quality Commission, Public Health England and 
NHS Improvement (previously Monitor and 
National Trust Development Authority). 

Patient groups, clinicians and independent 
experts have also provided their advice to create 
a collective view of how the health service needs 
to change over the next five years if it is to close 
the widening gaps in the health of the 
population, quality of care and the funding of 
services. 

health. 

Regional Plans and Programmes  

Anglian Water (2015) Water Resources Management Plan 

The 2015 Water Resource Management Plan 
(WRMP) describes how Anglian Water will 
manage the balance between supply and 
demand over the 25 year period from 2015 to 
2040. This includes: 

• Using cost-effective demand management, 
transfer, trading and resource development 
schemes to meet growth in demand from 
new development and to restore abstraction 
to sustainable levels ('sustainability 
reductions'), and 

• In the medium to long term, ensuring that 
sufficient water continues to be available for 
growth and that our supply systems are 

Government policy for the water sector is described 
in the water white paper “Water for Life”. This paper 
makes clear that the goal of the water industry is to 
deliver a reliable, affordable and sustainable system 
of supply, which is resilient to the possible future 
effects of climate change and population growth. The 
outcomes that are desired include: 

• High quality drinking water; 

• Secure supplies to households and business; 

• Effective removal of wastewater; and  

• A flourishing water environment. 

• The Local Plan should consider opportunities to 
reduce water use and increase water efficiency 
and take account of infrastructure requirements 
arising from new development. 

• SA Framework should consider objectives which 
seek to minimise the use of water and ensure 
the delivery of appropriate infrastructure to 
accommodate new development. 

417



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 225 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

flexible enough to adapt to climate change. 

Defra and the Environment Agency (2015) Water for Life and Livelihoods: Anglian River  Basin District River Basin Management Plan 

The Plan focuses on the protection, 
improvement and sustainable use of the water 
environment.  

The overall objective is to ensure sufficient 
water supplies for future generations especially 
in the face of climate change, housing growth 
and an increase in individual water use.  

The plan sets out actions to improve the water 
environment by 2021. 

• The Local Plan should seek to reduce water use 
and maintain/improve water quality. 

• The SA Framework should include 
objectives/guide questions which seek to 
minimise the use of water and conserve and 
improve water quality. 

East Midlands Airport (2015) Sustainable Development Plan 

Sets out four detailed plans relating to Land Use, 
Community, Environment and Economy and 
Surface Access. 

Identify the land, uses and facilities required to 
support the operation capable of handling annually 
10 million passengers and 1.2 million tonnes of 
cargo. 

The Local Plan should not compromise the safe 
operation of the Airport. 

Environment Agency (2016) Anglian River Basin District Flood Risk Management Plan 2015 – 2021 

Flood risk management plans (FRMPs) set out 
how organisations, stakeholders and 
communities will work together to manage flood 
risk.   

The FRMP contains the following objectives: 

• SOC 1: Understanding Flood Risk and 
Working in Partnership 

• SOC 2: Community Preparedness and 
Resilience 

• SOC 3: Reduce Community Disruption 

• SOC 4: Adapt to Coastal erosion 

The FRMP summarises the WFD outcomes expected 
to be delivered through flood risk management by 
2021.    

The SA Framework should include an objective 
and/or guide questions relating to flood risk. 

418



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 226 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

• SOC 5: avoid inappropriate development in 
areas of flood and coastal erosion 

• SOC 6: Reduce risk to life and property 

• SOC 7: Maintain existing assets minimise the 
risk of flooding to residential properties  

• SOC 8: continue river, watercourse and tidal 
defence maintenance  

• ECON 1: Reduce economic damage 

• ECON 2: Maintenance of main river and 
existing assets 

• ECON 3: Economic, regeneration and funding 
opportunities 

• ECON 4: Transport Services 

• ECON 5: Flood risk to agricultural land 

• ECON 6: understanding flood risk and 
working in partnership with landowners 

• ECON 7: Tourism 

• ENVI1: Water Framework Directive 

• ENVI 2: Designated Nature Conservation 
Sites 

• ENVI 3: Designated Heritage sites 

• RES 1: Reservoir flood risk 

Natural England (2009) East Midlands Landscape Character Assessment 

The Landscape Character Assessment presents a 
comprehensive analysis of the character of the 
East Midlands landscape and  draws together 

No formal targets identified. • The Local Plan should promote the conservation 
and enhancement of landscape character and 
respond to aims identified in the Landscape 

419



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 227 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

information about the natural, historic and built 
environment to facilitate the protection, 
management and planning of the East Midlands 
Region. 

Character Assessment. 

• The SA Framework should include a specific 
objective relating to landscape. 

Network Rail (2010) East Midlands Route Utilisation Strategy 

The strategy seeks to address the following; 

• network capacity and railway service 
performance 

• train and station capacity including crowding 
issues 

• the trade-offs between different uses of the 
network 

• rolling stock issues  

• how maintenance and renewals work can be 
carried out while minimizing disruption to 
the network 

• opportunities from using new technology 

• opportunities to improve safety 

The plan sets out actions to cope with the 
implications and levels of growth over 30 years. 

The Local Plan should consider the objectives set out 
in the Route Utilisation Strategy. 

Sub-Regional Plans and Programmes  

West Northamptonshire JCS Local Plan (Part 1) (2014) 

This JCS provides a strategic framework to guide 
the preparation of Part 2 Local Plans. 

18,870 net additional dwellings between 2011-2029 

Provision will be made for about 28,470 net 
additional dwellings within the Northampton related 
development area in the period 2011 to 2029. 

The majority of new job growth will be concentrated 

• The Local Plan will need to ensure that site 
allocations and policies take account of the 
spatial and strategic policies outlined in the 
strategy.  

• The SA Framework should include sustainability 
objectives that cover a spectrum of sustainable 

420



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 228 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

within the principal urban area of Northampton.  

Sustainable urban extensions will be provided at: 

• Northampton Kings Heath (3,000 dwellings, 10 ha 
Employment) 

• Northampton North (3,500 dwellings, 10 ha 
employment) 

• Northampton North of Whitehills (1,000 dwellings, 
Local employment opportunities) 

• Northampton South (1,000 dwellings, local 
employment Opportunities) 

• Northampton South of Brackmills (1,300 dwellings, 
Local employment opportunities) 

• Northampton Upton Park (1,000 dwellings, local 
• Employment opportunities) 
• Northampton West (2,550 dwellings, local 

employment 
• Opportunities) 
• Northampton Norwood farm/ Upton lodge (3,500 
• Dwellings, local employment opportunities) 

35% proportion of affordable housing for 
Northampton related development area (15 or more 
dwellings site size threshold). 

development issues. [Addressed by all SA 
objectives] 

Northamptonshire Strategic Economic Plan (2014) 

The plan sets out an ambitious strategy to 
deliver accelerated economic growth and to 
meet the housing and employment needs of one 
of the fastest growing populations in the 
country. 

During the 2021 plan period, a total of 37,000 new 
homes will be built and 2,500 jobs created; this will 
rise to 80,000 homes and 70,000 jobs by 2031. 

• The Local Plan should ensure that site allocations 
and policies aim to contribute to the economic 
visions outlined in the plan. 

• The SA framework should include sustainability 
objective that relates to economic growth 
[Addressed by SA objectives 1 and 6] 

Northamptonshire Biodiversity Action Plan (2015-2020) 

421



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 229 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

The plan aims to conserve and enhance the 
biodiversity in Northamptonshire, prioritising 
Northamptonshire’s most threatened and 
declining habitats and species. 

No formal targets identified. • The Local Plan should ensure policies that 
promote conservation and enhancement of 
biodiversity and ensure that site allocations take 
account of the objectives of the strategy. 

• The SA Framework should include sustainability 
objective that relates to biodiversity. [Addressed 
by SA objective 9] 

Northamptonshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2016-2020) 

The strategy focuses on the key health and 
wellbeing issues throughout Northamptonshire, 
focusing on four priorities: 

1. Every child gets the best start; 
2. Taking responsibility and making 

informed choices; 
3. Promoting independence and quality of 

life for older adults; and 

Creating an environment for all people to 
flourish. 

No formal targets identified. • The Local Plan should ensure that policies reflect 
the objectives of the strategy. 

• The SA framework should include a sustainability 
objective relating to health and well-being. 
[Addressed by SA objective 4] 

South East Midlands Strategic Economic Plan (2017-2050) 

The aim of SEMLEP’s Strategic Economic Plan is 
to deliver the necessary infrastructure to enable 
the new homes to be built; to provide support to 
new and existing businesses to enable them to 
grow; to encourage inward investment; to 
ensure that young people improve their skill 
levels to offer what businesses in the area are 
seeking; and to ensure that growth is 
undertaken in a manner that promotes social 
inclusion and environmental sustainability. The 

Build 130,000  new homes by 2025/26 

Create new jobs by 10% by 2025 

Increase the number of apprenticeships by 170,000 
by 2025/26. 

 

• The Local Plan should ensure that site allocations 
and policies aim to contribute to the economic 
visions outlined in the plan. 

• The SA framework should include sustainability 
objective that relates to economic growth. 
[Addressed by SA objectives 1 and 6] 

 

422



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 230 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

Plan sets out in detail the evidence in each of 
the key topics. 

Northamptonshire Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (2012) 

The strategy sets out the strategic approach of 
the Northamptonshire Authorities to managing 
local authority collected municipal solid waste 
between 2012/13 and 2025/26. It sets out the 
current position for the Northamptonshire 
Authorities. It also charts a way forward for the 
future, setting out a vision for the Strategy, and 
the principles which will guide further actions. 

County wide recycling/composting rate of 54% by 
2019/2020 and 56%by 2025/2026. 

County Wide Landfill Diversion Rate of 78% by 
2019/2020 

• The Local Plan Policies should reflect the 
objectives of the Waste Management Strategy 
and promote sustainable waste management. 

• The SA Framework should include SA objectives 
that relate to waste reduction. [Addressed by SA 
objective 16] 

Northamptonshire Local Flood Risk Management Strategy and Action Plan (2016) 

The plan provides a robust local framework that 
employs a full range of complementary 
approaches towards managing and 
communicating the risks and consequences of 
flooding arising from surface runoff, 
groundwater and ordinary watercourses in 
Northamptonshire.  A specific focus on local 
sources of flood risk will be provided (flooding 
from surface water runoff, groundwater and 
flooding from ordinary watercourses).   

No formal targets identified. • The Local Plan Policies should seek to manage 
and improve flood risk across the borough, and 
prevent development from being exposed to 
high levels of flood risk. 

• The SA Framework should include SA objective 
which seeks to prevent inappropriate new 
development in high flood risk areas and ensure 
that new development does not cause flooding. 
[Addressed by SA objective 14] 

Northamptonshire Local Transport Plan (2012) 

The plan contributes towards making 
Northamptonshire a great place to live and 
work, through creating tangible transport 
options to satisfy individual needs and to 
encourage more sustainable travel. 

No formal targets identified. 

 

• The Local Plan should ensure that site allocations 
and policies will enhance public transport 
provision and encourage active modes of travel 
such as walking and cycling. 

• The SA framework should include a relevant 
sustainability objective relating to sustainable 

423



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 231 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

transport. [Addressed by SA objectives 2, 3, 4 
and 7] 

Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (2017) 

The plan sets out a vision and twelve objectives 
with an emphasis on developing sustainable 
communities and sustainable mineral extraction 
practices. 

No formal targets identified. • The Local Plan should consider the priorities set 
out in the Plan. 

• The SA framework should include a relevant 
objective relating to reducing waste and 
safeguarding minerals. [Addressed by SA 
objectives 15 and 16] 

Northamptonshire Sustainable Community Strategy (2008-2011) 

The ambitions of the strategy are: 

• To be successful through sustainable growth 
and regeneration 

• To develop through having a growing 
economy and more skilled jobs 

• To have safe and strong communities 
• Healthy people who enjoy a good quality of 

life 

No formal targets identified. • The Local Plan should promote the aims set out 
in the Strategy. 

• The SA Framework should include specific 
objectives relating to health and well-being. 
[Addressed by SA objective 4] 

Northamptonshire Current Landscape Character Assessment (2003) 

The Assessment has the following main 
objectives: 

• To provide an assessment of the character 
and distinctiveness of the Northamptonshire 
landscape and describe the county’s 
component landscape character types and 
landscape character areas; 

• To summarise the key characteristics 
associated with each landscape type; and 

No specific targets or indicators identified. The Local Plan should consider the objectives set out 
in the assessment as well as including reference to 
the assessment and its findings. 

 

424



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 232 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

To promote awareness of landscape character in 
the county, and the importance of landscape 
conservation and enhancement. 

Local Plans and Programmes  

Northampton Central Area Action Plan (2013) 

The overall objective of the Action Plan is to 
provide a consistent strategic framework for the 
improvement and extension of the town centre 
while seeking to protect and enhance its intrinsic 
historic built character and green spaces. 

No specific targets or indicators identified. • The Local Plan should ensure that site allocations 
and policies reflect the objectives of the plan. 

• The SA framework should include SA objectives 
which seek to retain and enhance the character 
of the built environment and green spaces. 
[Addressed by SA objectives 7, 10 and 11] 

Northampton Community Strategy (2008-2011) 

The strategy sets out the following objectives: 

• Allow local communities (based on geography 
and/or interest) to articulate their aspirations, 
needs and priorities. 

• Co-ordinate the actions of the council, and of 
the public, private, voluntary and community. 

• Focus and shape existing and future activity of 
those organisations so that they effectively 
meet community needs and aspirations. 

• Contribute to the achievement of sustainable 
development both locally and more widely. 

No specific targets or indicators identified. • The Local Plan should ensure that site allocations 
and policies reflect the objectives of the 
strategy. 

• The SA framework should include SA objectives 
that relate to a range of social, economic and 
environmental matters. [Addressed by a range 
of SA objectives] 

Northampton Community Safety Plan (2017-2020) 

The principle aim of the plan is to ‘deliver a safe, 
confident Northampton by working together to 
improve the quality of life for local people.’ 

No specific targets or indicators identified. • The Local Plan should be aware of the aims set 
out in the plan. 

• The SA framework should include SA objectives 
that relate to reducing crime and increasing the 

425



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 233 March 2019 

Key Objectives relevant to Local Plan & SA Key Targets and indicators relevant to Local 
Plan and SA  

Commentary (how the SA Framework should 
incorporate the documents’ requirements) 

quality of life within Northampton. [Addressed 
by SA objectives 4 and 5] 

Northampton Low Emission Strategy (2017-2025) 

The strategy has three main themes:  

• Evidence for change 
• Creating a low emission future 

• Northampton vehicle emission framework 

No specific targets or indicators identified. • The Local Plan should ensure the site allocations 
and policies reflect the objectives of the 
strategy. 

• The SA framework should include SA objectives 
that relate to sustainable transport, air quality 
and health and well-being. [Addressed by SA 
objectives 2, 4, 8 and 12] 

426



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 234 March 2019 

Appendix 2  
Baseline Information 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

427



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 235 March 2019 

Geography 

Northampton lies on the River Nene and is the county town of Northamptonshire, situated in the 
East Midlands within the southern part of central England (see Figure A2.1).  The predominantly 
urban Borough covers approximately 80km2 and is located approximately 67 miles north-west of 
London and around 50 miles south-east of Birmingham – with each city within an hour’s train 
commute. 

The Borough is surrounded by open countryside and shares its boundary with Daventry to the 
north and west, Wellingborough to the east and South Northamptonshire to the south.  There are 
substantial commuter links between Northampton, Daventry and South Northamptonshire as well 
as strong household and travel to work movements to Milton Keynes. Additionally, there are 
strong commuter and entertainment links between London and Northampton.  

As the County town, Northampton is the main centre for employment, housing, retail, leisure and 
services in Northamptonshire.   

Population 

Northampton contains approximately a third of Northamptonshire’s residents.  The resident 
population of Northampton Borough in 2017 was 225,700 and was almost split evenly between 
females (50.3 %) and males (49.6%)6.  

According to the 2011 Census data, Northampton Borough has a younger population compared to 
England and Wales as a whole as the mean average age of the Borough’s population was 37.1 
years compared to the English and Welsh average of 39.4 years7.  In 2011, 13.4% of the 
population of Northampton was of retirement age (65 and over) compared with 16.3% in England 
and Wales.   

The 2011 Census data revealed that the population density of Northampton Borough was 26.3 
persons per hectare which was significantly higher than the England and Wales average of 3.7 
persons per hectare8; reflecting the largely urban nature of the Borough. 

The scale and location of growth within the county of Northamptonshire will emphasise that the 
population focus will be along the Northampton – Wellingborough / Rushden – Kettering – Corby 
axis.9 

  

                                                
6 Nomis – Labour Market Profile – Northampton. Accessed 10th December 2018 
7 ONS (2011) Table KS102UK Age Structure.  Accessed 10th December 2018 
8 ONS (2011) Table KS101UK Usual Resident Population.  Accessed 10th December 2018 
9 Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan, Northamptonshire County Council, adopted July 2017 

428



South
Northamptonshire

East
Northamptonshire

Daventry

Wellingborough

Kettering

Northampton

Corby

LINCOLNSHIRE

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

OXFORDSHIRE

NORTHAMPTONSHIRE

LEICESTERSHIRE

WARWICKSHIRE

HERTFORDSHIRE
BUCKINGHAMSHIRE

© Crown Copyright 2018. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655. CB:MNi EB:Nicholson_M LUCGLA 5823-01_FigA2-1_Context  17/01/2019

Map Scale @ A4: 1:450,000

Source: OS

Northampton
Local Plan SA

Northampton Borough
District Boundary
County boundary

0 5 10kmE

Figure A2.1: Context

429



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 237 March 2019 

Housing 

In 2011, Northampton had around 88,731 dwellings10.  The 2011 data shows that 25.1% of all 
homes in Northampton were owned outright, 37.5% were owned with a mortgage or a loan, 
12.8% were socially rented and 16.5% were privately rented11.  This compares to national 
averages of 30.8% of households owned outright, 32.7% owned with a mortgage or a loan, 
17.6% social renters and 15.3% rented privately.   

Northampton therefore has lower than the national average for dwellings owned outright, higher 
than national average with dwellings with a mortgage or a loan.  The Borough has less than the 
national average for socially rented properties, but higher than the national average for privately 
rented properties. 

Of the homes included in the 2011 Census for Northampton, 21% were detached, 28.7% were 
semi-detached, 31.9% were terraced, 15.3% were flats and 0.1% were caravans or other mobile 
or temporary structure12.   

In 2015, the average house price in Northampton was £164,000, which is less than the county 
average of £182,124.  Both are significantly lower than the national average of £209,750 in the 
same period13. 

Northampton Borough is unable to physically accommodate it owns housing needs.  This has been 
identified since January 1992 when the Northamptonshire County Structure Plan Alteration No 1 
was approved.  This showed 1,000 dwellings to be provided by both Daventry District and South 
Northamptonshire related to the growth of Northampton.  Between 2011 and 2029 Northampton 
Borough is expected to complete 25,758 of the Objectively Assessed Housing Need for West 
Northamptonshire. Significant levels of development have continued to be provided for and built 
within Northampton Borough’s administrative area, however, the Borough’s housing needs are 
being, and will increasingly be, met outside its administrative area.14 

The Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) 2016/17 records that out of the 1,174 houses delivered 
that year, 335 (42.4%) were affordable15.  Overall there has been an increase in affordable 
housing in Northampton.  In terms of completions, Northampton is the only area within West 
Northamptonshire to achieve higher than their affordable housing target.    

During 2016 and 2017, 0.2 per 1,000 households were classed as homeless compared to the 
national average of 0.8 per 1,000 households16.   

Social inclusion and deprivation 
 
Health 

Life expectancy in Northampton for females is 82.6 years and 78.5 years for males which are both 
lower than the national average of 83.1 years and 79.5 years respectively.  However, life 
expectancy in the Borough is 10.2 years lower for men and 6.6 years lower for women in the 
most deprived areas of Northampton compared to the least deprived areas17.  Between 2016 and 

                                                
10 ONS (2011) Table KS402EW Tenure, local authorities in England and Wales 
11 ONS (2011) Table KS402EW Tenure, local authorities in England and Wales. 
12 ONS (2011) Table KS401EW Dwellings, household spaces and accommodation type 
13 Office for National Statistics, Ratio of house price to earnings (lower quartile and median) by local authority district, England and 
Wales, 1997 to 2015 (2017) 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/housing/adhocs/006557ratioofhousepricetoearningslowerquartileandmedianby
localauthoritydistrictenglandandwales1997to2015 Accessed  10th of December 2018 
14 West Northamptonshire JCS Local Plan (Part 1) (2014) West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
15 Joint Authorities Monitoring Report For The Local Development Framework in West Northamptonshire (2016-2017) West 
Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit.  http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648 Accessed 
on 10th December 2018 
16 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December 2018  
17 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December 

430

http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 238 March 2019 

201718, infant mortality was also high within in the Borough with 4.6 per 1,000 live births 
compared to 3.9 per 1,000 live births nationally. 

Child obesity (in children aged 10-11) in the Borough during 2016/17 was 20.8% which was 
higher than the national average of 20.0%19.  Estimated levels of adult excess weight and 
smoking are worse than the England average.  The percentage of excess weight in adults is 
66.2% for Northampton compared to the national average of 61.3%.  Smoking in adults in the 
Borough during 2017 was 21.5% which was higher than the national average of 14.9%. 20 

Suicide rates within the Borough were higher at 11.1 per 100,000 of the population compared to 
the national average of 9.9 per 100,000 between 2014 and 201621.  

In 2016, the under-18 conception rate in the Borough was 25.9 per 1,000 females which is 
significantly higher than the national average of 18.8 per 1,000 females22. 

There are three hospitals in Northampton: the Northampton General Hospital (NHS); the Three 
Shires Hospital (private); and the Berrywood Hospital (NHS) which provides mental health 
services for adults.  

Deprivation 

The English Indices of Deprivation 201523 is a measure of multiple deprivation in small areas or 
neighbourhoods, called Lower-layer Super Output Areas (LSOA), in England.  Seven domains of 
deprivation are measured: Income Deprivation; Employment Deprivation; Health Deprivation and 
Disability; Education, Skills and Training Deprivation; Crime; Barriers to Housing and Services; 
and Living Environment Deprivation.  Each domain contains a number of indicators.  The seven 
domains are combined to give a multiple deprivation score.  There are 32,844 LSOAs nationally 
and 133 LSOAs in Northampton24.   

For Local Authority areas, Northampton is ranked 93rd for the multiple deprivation score (rank of 
average score) out of the 326 local authority areas in England (where 1 is most deprived and 326 
is least deprived)25.   

Two LSOAs within Northampton (011A - Riverside Park West, Billing Aquadrome and Bellinge 
area; and 021F - Rail Station, St James Retail Park, St Peter’s Way, Drapery, Bus Station) fall 
within the 1% most deprived in England (see Figure A2.2)26.  Furthermore, the English Indices of 
Deprivation show that nearly a third (27.9%) of Northampton’s residents live in areas that fall 
into the top 20% nationally deprived areas27.  In 2015, 15.8% of children under 16 in 
Northampton were living in low income families which is just slightly less than the national 
average of 16.8%28. 

The latest fuel poverty statistics29 show that 10.8% of Northampton’s households were classified 
as being fuel poor in 2016.  A fuel poor household is defined as one which needs to spend more 
than 10% of its income on all fuel use and to heat its home to an adequate standard of warmth30.   

                                                
18 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December 
19 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December  
20 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December 
21 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December 
22 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December  
23 The English Indices of Deprivation (2015), DCLG 
24 The English Indices of Deprivation (2015), DCLG: File 1: Index of multiple deprivation  
25 The English Indices of Deprivation (2015), DCLG: File 10: Local authority district summaries  
26 Place Statistical Bulletin 2015/02 English Indices of Deprivation (2015) Northamptonshire County Council 
27 Place Statistical Bulletin 2015/02 English Indices of Deprivation (2015) Northamptonshire County Council 
28 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December 
29  Sub-regional fuel poverty data 2018, 2016 data, Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 
30 DECC, Fuel Poverty Statistics, 2013 

431



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 239 March 2019 

Crime 

The latest crime statistics31 show that the crime rate in Northampton is 101.37 per 1,000 of the 
population for all types of crime, which is about the same as the average crime rate across similar 
areas.  However, Northampton has the highest crime rate in all of Northamptonshire which on 
average has a force average crime rate of 75.00 per 1,000 of the population. 

In the year ending in June 2018, Northampton had a higher than average violence and sexual 
offences crime rate of 35.05 police recorded crimes per 1,000 of the population compared to the 
Northamptonshire Force average of 25.61 police recorded crimes per 1,000 of the population32. 

  

                                                
31 Police.UK Compare Your Area - Crime in Northampton compared with crime in other similar areas 
https://www.police.uk/northamptonshire/SCT162/performance/compare-your-area/  Accessed on 10th December 2018 
32 Police.UK. Compare Your Area - Crime in Northampton compared with crime in other similar areas. 
https://www.police.uk/northamptonshire/SCT162/performance/compare-your-area/violent-crime/#msg_comparison Accessed on 10th 
December 2018 

432

https://www.police.uk/northamptonshire/SCT162/performance/compare-your-area/
https://www.police.uk/northamptonshire/SCT162/performance/compare-your-area/violent-crime/#msg_comparison


South
Northamptonshire

Daventry
Wellingborough

© Crown Copyright 2018. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655. CB:MNi EB:Nicholson_M LUCGLA 5823-01_FigA2-2_IMD  17/01/2019

Map Scale @ A4: 1:65,000

Source: DCLG

Northampton
Local Plan SA

Northampton Borough 
boundary

Index of Multiple Deprivation
0 - 10% (most deprived)
10 - 20%
20 - 30%
30 - 40%
40 - 50%
50 - 60%
60 - 70%
70 - 80%
80 - 90%
90 - 100% (least deprived)

0 1 2
kmE

Figure A2.2: Index of
Multiple Deprivation

433



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 241 March 2019 

Education 

Recent statistics33 state that 7.4% of the Northampton Borough population aged 16-64 have no 
qualifications which is lower than the East Midlands average of 8.2% and the national average of 
7.7%. 

During 2015 and 2016, 53.4% of key stage 4 pupils in Northampton achieved 5 GCSEs grades 
A*-C (including English and Maths), which is below the national average of 57.8%34.  The 
proportion of adults in Northampton who have attained qualification levels equivalent to NVQ level 
4 (HND, Degree and Higher Degree level qualifications or equivalent) and above was 38.9% which 
is higher than both the regional average of 32.1% and the national average of 38.6%35.   

The University of Northampton is located to the north-east of the Borough and is ranked 113 out 
of 131 in the University League Table 201936.  Of the 12,984 students who enrolled in the 
academic year of 2013/14, 77% were full time and 23% were part time, the majority of students 
(82%) were at undergraduate level and 18% were postgraduate level37.  In 2012, the University’s 
Business School was recognised as England’s top University for Employability38. 

Employment and economic activity 

As the county town, Northampton is the area's main employment centre (see Figure A2.3).  There 
is a concentration of major services and facilities which serve surrounding settlements including 
Wellingborough, Kettering and Rushden39.  Its town centre and retail parks are in competition 
with those in Milton Keynes, Banbury and Rugby.  Northampton’s modern development is largely 
attributed to its designation as a new town during the 1960’s which led to a rapid population 
increase as a consequence of planned expansion.   

Northampton’s geographical location, being in central England, and within easy access of the M1, 
makes it an ideal position for businesses to operate.  This is particularly so for those within the 
strategic distribution and logistics sectors, modern manufacturers particularly those undertaking 
High Performance Technology (HPT) / Engineering associated with the motorsport industry, as 
well as office headquarters.  The Borough accommodates a range of leading world brand 
organisations / employers including Barclaycard (Brackmills), Nationwide (Moulton Park), 
Carlsberg (town centre), Coca Cola (Brackmills), Panasonic (Brackmills), Cosworth High 
Performance Engines (Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone), and Avon Headquarters 
(Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone). This reflects the town’s manufacturing past and a 
move towards distribution, warehousing and service industries.   

However, the concentration of businesses and levels of entrepreneurship per capita is generally 
higher in the rural area of South Northamptonshire, Daventry and East Northamptonshire, with 
lower concentrations in Corby and Northampton.40  In addition, much of the growth in office jobs 
is attributed to growth in the public sector rather than that of the private commercial sector41, yet 
the Borough is recognised as one of the most enterprising location in the UK and sectors currently 
being targeted for investment include high-performance technologies including engineering, low-
carbon and sustainable technology, business and professional services and new enterprise start-
ups42.  It has been reported that Northampton is making the UK’s fastest economic recovery since 
the most recent economic recession43. 

  

                                                
33 Nomis Labour Market Profile – Northampton Jan 2017-Dec 2017. Accessed on 10th December 2018 
34 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December 
35 Nomis Labour Market Profile – Northampton Jan 2017-Dec2017. Accessed 10th December 2018 
36 University League Tables 2019. The Complete University Guide. http://www.thecompleteuniversityguide.co.uk/league-
tables/rankings Accessed on 10th December 2018 
37 The University of Northampton. The Complete University Guide. http://www.thecompleteuniversityguide.co.uk/northampton 
Accessed on 2nd February 2016 
38 Northamptonshire’s Economic Plan (2014) Northampton Enterprise Partnership 
39 West Northamptonshire JCS Local Plan (Part 1) (2014) West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
40 Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan, Northamptonshire County Council, adopted July 2017 
41 West Northamptonshire JCS Local Plan (Part 1) (2014) West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
42 Northamptonshire’s Economic Plan (2014) Northampton Enterprise Partnership 
43 Northamptonshire’s Economic Plan (2014) Northampton Enterprise Partnership 

434

http://www.thecompleteuniversityguide.co.uk/league-tables/rankings
http://www.thecompleteuniversityguide.co.uk/league-tables/rankings
http://www.thecompleteuniversityguide.co.uk/northampton


South
Northamptonshire

Daventry
Wellingborough

© Crown Copyright 2018. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655. CB:MNi EB:Nicholson_M LUCGLA 5823-01_FigA2-3_Employment  17/01/2019

Map Scale @ A4: 1:65,000

Source: Northampton Borough Council

Northampton
Local Plan SA

Northampton Borough 
boundary
Employment site
Hospital
University

! Site of new University of 
Northampton Waterside 
Campus
College

!( Primary School
!( Secondary School
!( Other School

Central Area Action 
Plan boundary
Retail park

0 1 2
kmE

Figure A2.3: Employment
Areas, Other
Concentrations of
Employment, and
Educational Establishments

435



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 243 March 2019 

The designation of an Enterprise Zone for Northampton Waterside in August 2011 demonstrates 
the Government’s confidence in Northampton’s Waterside area which aims to simplify planning 
rules to secure an enterprising hub where businesses have the flexibility to flourish and a new 
technology realm can be created. The NWEZ stretches from the Avon Nunn Mills site to Sixfields 
Stadium, generally following the course of the River Nene. There are 21 sites within NWEZ, 
covering an area of about 120 hectares. 

Access to good quality housing, choice in dwelling type and sufficient range of employment sites is 
vital to the success of a community’s economy and the well-being of its residents.  Northampton, 
through ‘Northampton Alive’ 44 and the Waterside Enterprise Zone45, is creating a positive 
economic impact for new and existing businesses, landowners and residents.   

The University of Northampton is a driving force behind the county’s well established social 
enterprise sector as it is one of only 25 universities in the world designated as a ‘Changemaker 
Campus’ by the Ashoka U organisation46.  The University has also carried out research on public 
sector spin-outs and social enterprises enabling local authorities to transform their services which 
reduces disadvantage and the costs of social problems, and increases the number of people 
employed in delivering innovative services47.  Furthermore, the University is creating a new £330 
million campus in the Enterprise Zone, as well as a £8m innovation centre for large scale social 
enterprises48, with development underway for the new campus. 

Of the 10,715 enterprises in the Borough, 90.6% were micro enterprises (0-9 employees) which 
is almost comparable to the regional average of 88.9% and 7.3% were small enterprises (10 to 
49 employees) which is just slightly lower than the regional average of 9.1%49. 

The three main employment sectors in Northampton in 2017were Wholesale and Retail Trade 
(15.4%), Human Health and Social Work Activities (15.4%) and Administrative & Secretarial 
(11.8%)50. 

Between July 2017 to June 2018, 81.7% of Northampton’s residents aged 16-74 were 
economically active, which is above the national average of 78.4%.  4.1% were unemployed 
which is slightly below the national average of 4.2%.51   

The number of people claiming Jobseeker’s Allowance as a percentage of the working age (aged 
16-64) resident population was 1.2% in Northampton as of November 2016, which is comparable 
to both the regional average (1.0%) and national average (1.1%)52.   

The gross weekly earnings in Northampton in 2018 were £512.70 which was lower than the 
national average of £570.9053.  

Religion  

Northampton’s faith communities play a major role in the voluntary and community sector, and 
are crucial in the provision of local and neighbourhood services, often in areas of long-term 
disadvantage.  

The Census suggests that despite falling numbers, Christianity remains the largest religion in 
Northampton.  Muslims are the next biggest religious group and their numbers have more than 
doubled in size since 2001, reaching almost 9,000 in 2011.  There has also been growth in the 
numbers of Buddhists, Hindus and Sikhs.54  

                                                
44 Northampton Alive, the collective name for the town’s regeneration projects 
45 The Zone is composed of more than 20 sites along the River Nene, stretching from Sixfields in the west and across the town centre. 
It incorporates a range of brownfield development opportunities, growing industrial estates and expanding sports stadium sites 
46 Northamptonshire’s Economic Plan (2014) Northampton Enterprise Partnership 
47 Northamptonshire’s Economic Plan (2014) Northampton Enterprise Partnership 
48 Northamptonshire’s Economic Plan (2014) Northampton Enterprise Partnership 
49 Nomis Labour Market Profile – Northampton 2018. Accessed 10th December 2018 
50 Nomis Labour Market Profile – Northampton 2018. Accessed 10th December 2018 
51 Nomis Labour Market Profile – Northampton 2018 Accessed 10th December 2018 
52 Nomis Labour Market Profile – Northampton 2018. Accessed 10th December 2018 
53 Nomis Labour Market Profile – Northampton 2018. Accessed 10th December 2018 
54 Northampton  Faith Communities Profile and Places of Worship Audit & Needs Assessment (2013) CAG Consultants 

436



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 244 March 2019 

A large majority of Christian groups in Northampton meet in purpose-built religious buildings. 
Newer Christian churches (e.g. African-led Pentecostal churches and Evangelical churches) tend to 
meet in other types of buildings, including community centres and schools.  Many of these groups 
report a need for additional space or facilities.55  

Culture, leisure and recreation 

All leisure activities contribute to the quality of life of residents, providing amenity and 
opportunities for enhancing intellectual, spiritual and physical wellbeing.  Additionally, they 
represent a tourism asset and their provision can result in economic benefits to the Borough. 

Northampton has a range of cultural, leisure and recreational facilities which are used by both 
residents and visitors.  Cultural facilities in the town include three museums (Abington Park 
Museum, Northampton Museum and Art Gallery and Northampton Ironstone Railway Trust), two 
theatres and gallery space.  

Northampton’s leisure and recreational facilities include 20 identified Parks, 496 Amenity Green 
spaces, 111 Natural or Semi Natural areas, over 100 children or young peoples equipped play 
spaces and 178 Outdoor Sports Facilities. Northampton’s open spaces also include 23 Allotment 
Sites and 45 cemeteries and churchyards. These make up over 1,670 hectares of green space.56  

  

                                                
55 Northampton  Faith Communities Profile and Places of Worship Audit & Needs Assessment (2013) CAG Consultants 
56 Parks and Open Space Strategy for Northampton (2013) Northampton Borough Council 

437



South
Northamptonshire

Daventry
Wellingborough

Grand UnionCanal

River Nene

© Crown Copyright 2018. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655. CB:MNi EB:Nicholson_M LUCGLA 5823-01_FigA2-4_Greenspace_Leisure  17/01/2019

Map Scale @ A4: 1:65,000

Source: Northampton Borough Council

Northampton
Local Plan SA

Northampton Borough 
boundary

!( Leisure centre
Sports ground

¡¾ Museum
River / canal

0 1 2
kmE

Figure A2.4: Greenspace
and Leisure

438



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 246 March 2019 

There are many properties of interest such as 78 Derngate – an early 20th century house designed 
by Charles Rennie Mackintosh.  Delapre Abbey is a Grade II * listed building in Northampton and 
its parkland is a Registered Battlefield.   

There are over 170 parks and open spaces around Northampton.  54 play areas are managed and 
maintained within Northampton’s parks.  These open spaces make up over 1,880 hectares in 
total57 and are shown in Figure A2.4.   

The Northampton Leisure Trust works under the Trilogy brand, in partnership with Northampton 
Borough Council and Duston Parish Council, who run five Sporting Leisure Centres (three of which 
have swimming pools accessible to the public), a children soft play centre and a cinema 
complex58.  Trilogy also co-ordinates the booking for 16 sport pitches and sporting facilities within 
parks.  

Northampton is home to an assortment of highly regarded sporting clubs59 such as Northampton 
Town F.C (Football League), Northampton Saints (Rugby Union Premiership) and 
Northamptonshire County Cricket Club (County Championship).  

The location of Northampton provides for pastime activities as the River Nene is used for water 
sports, angling and informal recreation.  The Grand Union Canal is also a cultural, recreational and 
wildlife asset60. 

Transport 
 
Road 

The M1 passes through the south-eastern boundary of Northampton providing good links to the 
north including, Birmingham, Coventry, Leicester and Nottingham and to the south of the Borough 
including London, Milton Keynes and Luton.  There are also a number of strategic and primary 
roads within the Borough as shown in Figure A2.5. 

According to the 2011 Census data61, Northampton generally reflects the national average for car 
ownership categories. Nearly a quarter (24.4%) of residents in Northampton had no cars or vans 
in household, with the national average being 25.6%, 43.1% of Northampton residents had one 
car or van in household with the national average being 42.2%, and 25.7% had two cars or vans 
in household and the national average being 24.7%. 

Between 2014 and 2016, Northampton experienced lower than national average of road fatalities 
and injuries with 32.1 per 100,000 of the population compared to the national average of 39.7 
per 100,000 of the population62. 

Bus  

Northampton is served by several bus companies with Stagecoach and Centrebus being the 
predominant providers and Uno providing a service to the University of Northampton63.  There 
has been a decrease in the overall number of bus passenger journeys between 2012/13 to 
2015/16 in Northamptonshire.  By 2026-31 there is an anticipated increase in bus patronage; 
therefore the Northamptonshire Bus Strategy has set out a number of policies to achieve this.64  

                                                
57 Northampton’s Parks and Open Spaces. Northampton Borough Council http://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200244/parks-and-
open-spaces/148/northamptons-parks-and-open-spaces Accessed on 10th December 2018 
58 About. Trilogy. http://www.trilogyleisure.co.uk/about Accessed on 10th December 2018 
59 West Northamptonshire JCS Local Plan (Part 1) (2014) West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
60 West Northamptonshire JCS Local Plan (Part 1) (2014) West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
61 ONS (2011) Table KS404EW Car or Van availability, local authorities in England and Wales 
62 Health Profile 2018 – Northampton District.  Public Health England.  https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/area-search-
results/E07000154?place_name=Northampton&search_type=parent-areaAccessed on 10th December 
63 Bus Timetables. Northamptonshire County Council https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/northamptonshire-
highways/buses/Pages/bus-timetables.aspx Accessed on 11th December 2018 
64 Northamptonshire Bus Strategy, Northamptonshire County Council (2017) 
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/northamptonshire-highways/transport-plans-and-
policies/Documents/Revised%20Bus%20Strategy%20October%202017%20compressed_v2.pdf  Accessed on 11th December 2018 

439

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200244/parks-and-open-spaces/148/northamptons-parks-and-open-spaces
http://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200244/parks-and-open-spaces/148/northamptons-parks-and-open-spaces
http://www.trilogyleisure.co.uk/about
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/northamptonshire-highways/buses/Pages/bus-timetables.aspx
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/northamptonshire-highways/buses/Pages/bus-timetables.aspx
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/northamptonshire-highways/transport-plans-and-policies/Documents/Revised%20Bus%20Strategy%20October%202017%20compressed_v2.pdf
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/northamptonshire-highways/transport-plans-and-policies/Documents/Revised%20Bus%20Strategy%20October%202017%20compressed_v2.pdf


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 247 March 2019 

Cycling 

Norbital (route 539) is an 18 mile (29 km) circular cycle route around Northampton, which 
connects residential areas with areas of employment and education such as the University, 
Brackmills and Moulton Park. 

Connect 2 (route 536) is a National Lottery funded project, developed with Sustrans.  The 
Northampton section runs on 3 miles of brand new off-road cycle-way along a picturesque area of 
the River Nene, joining up Beckets Park to Upton, with links off to Nene Valley Retail Park, St 
James Mill Road, Sixfields, Briar Hill and the Norbital circular cycle route. 

  

440



South
Northamptonshire

Daventry
Wellingborough

A508

A5095

A43

A5076
A5199

A5123 A4500

A5101

A4501

A5123(T)

A428

A43(T)

A45(T)

M1

© Crown Copyright 2018. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655. CB:MNi EB:Nicholson_M LUCGLA 5823-01_FigA2-5_Transport  17/01/2019

Map Scale @ A4: 1:65,000

Source: Northampton Borough Council,
Ordnance Survey

Northampton
Local Plan SA

Northampton Borough 
boundary

!( Northampton Station
Railway line
Motorway
Main road
National Cycle Route 6
Bus route

0 1 2
kmE

Figure A2.5: Transport
Network

441



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 249 March 2019 

The National Cycle Network Route 6 passes through the centre of Northampton utilising a mixture 
of on and off-road facilities.  

There are also a number of local cycle ‘tracks’ comprising paths or bridleways with tarmac or 
stone all weather surfaces.  These tend to be limited in their length and provide local safer cycling 
links. 

Rail 

Northampton Station is the only railway station in the Borough and is situated on the 
Northampton loop of the West Coast Main Line.  There are southbound services to London 
(Euston) and northbound to Birmingham New Street.  The station is managed by London Midland 
and in January 2015, its £20 million refurbishment was completed.   The station has three 
platforms and 700 car parking spaces. 

Mainland Europe is accessible from Northampton station in just over two and a half hours by 
train. 

The implications of the HS2 line are uncertain within the county.  Its construction and operation 
may present both opportunities and challenges to communities and businesses in 
Northamptonshire65.  The HS2 line will not enter the Borough’s boundaries. 

Air 

There are no commercial airports in Northampton itself.  There is a general aviation airport at 
Sywell.  However, there are five international airports within one and a half hours' drive66 
including Luton airport 40 miles to the south-east and Birmingham Airport is approximately 50 
miles to the northwest of the Borough. 

Travel to work patterns 

Due to its urban nature, Northampton is a destination for commuters and it is estimated67 that 
37,457 commute into the Borough with 10,168 travelling in from neighbouring Wellingborough, 
7,381 from South Northamptonshire, 5,419 from Daventry, 4,445 from Kettering and 3,493 from 
Milton Keynes.  There is also an outward flow of 24,952 commuters from Northampton with 4,338 
journeys to Daventry, 4,000 to Wellingborough and 3,983 to Milton Keynes68. 

However, 80% of Northampton’s population work within its boundary.  It is reported that the 
majority of trips are less than 5km and 61% of these journeys are made by car adding almost 
59,000 trips on the road network69.  These findings are reflected in Table A2.9.1 , which shows 
that Northampton has a significantly higher proportion of its population using private vehicles to 
travel to work compared to the national average.  Northamptonshire has an even higher average 
than Northampton, however this can be attributed to the county’s predominantly rural nature. 

Table A2.9.1 Modes of transport for travelling to work in Northampton, 
Northamptonshire and England and Wales70 

Method of travel to work Northampton 
(%) 

Northamptonshire 
(%) 

England and 
Wales (%) 

Driving a car or van 42.6 45.8 35.1 

On foot 7.1 6.1 6.3 

Work mainly at or from home 5.4 7.1 6.6 

Passenger in a car or van 4.9 4.5 3.2 

                                                
65 Northamptonshire’s Economic Plan (2014) Northampton Enterprise Partnership 
66 Northamptonshire’s Economic Plan (2014) Northampton Enterprise Partnership 
67 Commuting flows from the Annual Population Survey, Great Britain, (2011) 
http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/HTMLDocs/Commute_APS_Map/Index.html Accessed 2nd February 2016 
68 Commuting flows from the Annual Population Survey, Great Britain, (2011) 
http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/HTMLDocs/Commute_APS_Map/Index.html Accessed 2nd February 2016 
69 West Northamptonshire JCS Local Plan (Part 1) (2014) West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
70 ONS (2011) Table CT0015 Method of travel to work (2001 specification), local authorities in England and Wales.  Accessed 5th 
February 2016 

442

http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/HTMLDocs/Commute_APS_Map/Index.html
http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/HTMLDocs/Commute_APS_Map/Index.html


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 250 March 2019 

Method of travel to work Northampton 
(%) 

Northamptonshire 
(%) 

England and 
Wales (%) 

Bus, minibus or coach 4.7 2.6 4.6 

Bicycle 1.8 1.3 1.8 

Train 1.1 1.2 3.2 

Taxi 0.3 0.3 0.3 

Motorcycle, scooter or moped 0.3 0.4 0.5 

In light of significant amounts of development in the next couple of decades planned for the 
Borough, and as the county town, transport investment is required to secure economic progress.  
The Northamptonshire Local Transport Plan (2012)71 seeks to improve and develop Park and Ride 
services, new car parking and bus strategies in the Borough.  In addition, there are planned 
upgrades to the radial road routes in Northampton as well as investment in low carbon modes and 
‘smarter choices’. 

A number of key projects have already been delivered to improve the efficiency of Northampton’s 
transport infrastructure.  These include: 

• Castle Station redevelopment. 

• Delivery of North Gate Bus Station. 

• Completion of Becket’s Park Marina 

The West Northamptonshire Infrastructure Delivery Plan (updated in 2014) identifies the strategic 
priorities for infrastructure.  It identifies key primary infrastructure projects that will impact on the 
Strategic Road Network of Northampton.  These include: 

• The North West Bypass, Northampton. 

• Sandy Lane Relief Road, Northampton. 

• Northampton Growth Management Scheme. 

Climate change and energy 

Climate change has the potential not only to affect the environment, but also the social and 
economic aspects of life in Northampton.  Although the precise nature of environmental changes 
is not fully understood, changes to precipitation patterns (and river flow) could have significant 
implications in the Borough.  It is predicted in Northamptonshire that the onset of Climate Change 
will increase72: 

• Average temperatures. 

• Rainfall intensity and risk of flooding. 

• The frequency and severity of gales. 

• The frequency of summer droughts. 

• Threats to property, habitats and species and air quality. 

The Northamptonshire Climate Change Strategy has been designed to “tackle climate change and 
its impacts within Northamptonshire”73.  The strategy is a response to the Government’s call for 
organisations and authorities across the country, to take action to ensure that places are able to 
deal with the unavoidable impacts of climate change and initiate steps in order to reduce its 
progress.  The Strategy sets out three main objectives:  

                                                
71 Northamptonshire Transportation Plan - Fit for Purpose (2012) Northamptonshire County Council 
72 Northamptonshire Climate Change Strategy 2017 – 2020. Northamptonshire County Council 
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/environment-and-planning/climate-
change/Documents/Northamptonshire%20CCS%202017-2020.pdf Accessed on 11th December 2018 
73 Northamptonshire Climate Change Strategy 2017 – 2020. Northamptonshire County Council 
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/environment-and-planning/climate-
change/Documents/Northamptonshire%20CCS%202017-2020.pdf Accessed on 11th December 2018 

443

https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/environment-and-planning/climate-change/Documents/Northamptonshire%20CCS%202017-2020.pdf
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/environment-and-planning/climate-change/Documents/Northamptonshire%20CCS%202017-2020.pdf
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/environment-and-planning/climate-change/Documents/Northamptonshire%20CCS%202017-2020.pdf
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/environment-and-planning/climate-change/Documents/Northamptonshire%20CCS%202017-2020.pdf


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 251 March 2019 

• Raise awareness of the issues of climate change; 

• Reduce emissions of greenhouse gases; and  

• Plan and adapt to the impacts of climate change.74 

DECC figures75 are set out in Table A2.9.2 and show generally gradually decreasing trends for CO2 
emissions (tonnes) per capita by sector in Northampton from 2005 to 2013 with a 26% reduction 
overall.  The decreasing trend in emissions reflects the decrease in overall emissions for the UK 
during this period driven mainly by reductions in emissions from power stations, industrial 
combustion and passenger cars.  During the period 2005 to 2013 total emissions per capita in 
Northamptonshire fell from 9.7t CO2 to 7.7t CO2.  The reduction from power stations is driven by 
change in the fuel mix used for electricity generation with a reduction in the amount of coal which 
is a carbon intensive fuel.  The reduction in industrial combustion is largely driven by the closure 
or reduced activity of industrial plants, a large portion of which occurred during 2009 likely due to 
economic factors.  Emissions for many local authorities are heavily influenced by activities at 
industrial sites, and changes at a single site can have a big impact on emissions trends76. 

Table A2.9.2 Source of CO2 emissions in Northampton by sector (2005-2013)77 

Year Industry and 
Commercial 

(t CO2 per person) 

Domestic 
(t CO2 per person) 

Transport 
(t CO2 per person) 

2005 3.0 2.5 1.6 

2006 2.9 2.4 1.6 

2007 2.7 2.3 1.6 

2008 2.7 2.3 1.5 

2009 2.2 2.0 1.4 

2010 2.2 2.1 1.4 

2011 2.0 1.9 1.3 

2012 2.3 2.0 1.3 

2013 2.1 1.9 1.3 

Table A2.9.3 highlights the recent trends for CO2 emissions (tonnes) per capita in Northampton 
from 2010 to 2016 with a 29.3% reduction overall.  Compared to the regional CO2 emissions per 
person, Northampton has had a lower rate of CO2 emissions overall.  

                                                
74 Northamptonshire Climate Change Strategy 2017 – 2020. Northamptonshire County Council 
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/environment-and-planning/climate-
change/Documents/Northamptonshire%20CCS%202017-2020.pdf Accessed on 11th December 2018 
75 2005-2013 UK local and regional CO2 emissions full dataset. DECC. (https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-
and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-2013) (Published June 2015).  
76 Local Authority carbon dioxide emissions estimates 2013.  Statistical Release.  DECC, June 2015. 
77 Sub-national total final energy consumption statistics: 2005-2013. DECC (https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-
sets/total-final-energy-consumption-at-regional-and-local-authority-level-2005-to-2010) Last updated September 2015  

444

https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/environment-and-planning/climate-change/Documents/Northamptonshire%20CCS%202017-2020.pdf
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/environment-and-planning/climate-change/Documents/Northamptonshire%20CCS%202017-2020.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-2013
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-2013
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/total-final-energy-consumption-at-regional-and-local-authority-level-2005-to-2010
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/total-final-energy-consumption-at-regional-and-local-authority-level-2005-to-2010


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 252 March 2019 

Table A2.9.3 Per capita CO2 emissions for Northampton and Northamptonshire from 
2010-201678 

Year Northampton (t CO2 per 
person) 

Northamptonshire (t CO2 per 
person) 

2010 5.8 8.1 

2011 5.2 7.4 

2012 5.6 7.7 

2013 5.3 7.5 

2014 4.7 6.9 

2015 4.4 6.6 

2016 4.1 6.3 

  

Landscape 

At the county level, Northamptonshire has no landscape designations, such as National Parks or 
Areas of Outstanding Beauty.79   

Much of Northampton’s landscape character has been shaped by a range of human activities such 
as the Grand Union Canal, the current and past railway and road networks and the historical 
relationship with agricultural and leather related industries80.  As Northampton is predominantly 
urban, much of its character is associated with townscape, which is covered in the historic 
environment section. 

Northampton sits in a ‘bowl’ encircled by higher land.  These ridges of higher land form the 
setting and landscape context of Northampton.  The River Nene is the most significant ‘natural 
feature of Northampton, flowing west to east through the town with its associated floodplain.  
Near Carlsberg brewery it is joined by the Brampton arm which flows from the north through 
Kingsthorpe and St James.  Traditionally the flood plain of the valley has remained free from 
development and the meadows have been used for grazing thus retaining an open green corridor 
through the town from west to east and from the centre to the north.  The Northampton Arm of 
the Grand Union Canal also occupies the edge of the valley providing an important feature in the 
landscape. 

On both sides of the river, the land rises gently to reach a height of about 100 metres. South of 
the river there is a defined ridge line, seen from the town centre, which extends from Hunsbury 
Hill through Hardingstone to Great Houghton in the east. To the north, the higher ground at 
Boughton Green, Moulton Park, Parklands and Spinney Hill has been concealed for the most part 
by development, as it has at Duston and Dallington to the west. 

Important areas of woodland at Billing Arbours and Lings Wood have been retained as landscape 
features and the landscape potential of streams and lakes has been realised with associated 
amenity areas to create the structured urban landscape which now exists within the town.  The 
natural and man-made corridors following the River Nene are valuable natural and historic assets 
of great importance for biodiversity, along with the town’s legacy of over 1,670ha of parks, open 

                                                
78 UK Local Authority and Regional Carbon Dioxide Emissions National Statistics 2005-2016, 
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-2016 
Accessed 11th December 2018 
79 Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan, Northamptonshire County Council, adopted July 2017 
80 Joint Authorities Monitoring Report For The Local Development Framework in West Northamptonshire (2013-2014) West 
Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit.  Accessed http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648 
Accessed on 2nd February 2016 

445

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-2016
http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 253 March 2019 

spaces and other green areas within the Borough, including historic private and civic landscapes 
(e.g. Abington Park, Delapre Park, Hunsbury Hill Country Park and the Racecourse).  

Biodiversity and geology 

Northampton contains many areas of high ecological value including sites of international and 
national importance, as outlined below and shown in Figure A2.6.  While the Borough is 
predominantly urban, parks and open spaces are just as much part of the local environment and 
provide important habitats for wildlife.  The valley of the River Nene is a Nature Improvement 
Area (NIA)81 and includes important areas of woodland, rural landscapes, and sites of historical 
importance.   

Northampton contains a number of strategic and local Green Infrastructure corridors, as well as 
two connective networks: the West Northamptonshire Biodiversity Network and the Sustainable 
Movement Network for West Northamptonshire.  The West Northamptonshire Biodiversity Network 
seeks to connect fragmented habitats displayed across the county in order to assist species 
persistence and habitat function.  The Sustainable Movement Network for West Northamptonshire 
on the other hand, identifies the principal networks and opportunities for sustainable people 
movement from centres of settlement to the countryside.  

There are two woodland habitat corridors within Northampton and continuing beyond it. To the 
west of Northampton is a corridor including Nobottle Ancient Woodland, and to the east and 
south-east is a woodland corridor linking parkland at Overstone with Yardley Chase and Salcey 
Forest.  A narrower woodland corridor runs to the south of the Nene Valley, and includes 
Hunsbury Hill.  

Special Protection Areas (SPAs) are strictly protected sites classified in accordance with Article 4 
of the EC Birds Directive and are of international importance.  Sites of national importance 
comprise Sites of Special Scientific interest (SSSIs) and National Nature Reserves.  Northampton 
Borough has one SSSI but does not contain any National Nature Reserves.   

The Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits is designated as a SSSI, Ramsar site and a Special Protection 
Area (SPA), which comprises several components, one of which is within Northampton.  The 
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits comprises of a mix of broadleaved, mixed and yew woodland 
(lowland) habitats, and standing open water and canals82.  The site also has assemblages of 
breeding bird and aggregations of non-breeding birds such as the Tufted duck (Aythya fuligula), 
Shoveler (Aythya farina) and Golden Plover (Pluvialis apricaria)83.  The Natural England SSSI 
condition assessment states that 41.6% of the site is in favourable condition and 58.4% is in 
unfavourable (recovering) condition.  There continues to be an increase in built and recreational 
development within and around the site leading to loss and fragmentation of habitat, and 
increased disturbance.84  These issues are examined further in the separate Habitats Regulations 
Assessment of the Local Plan Part 2.   

According to the latest AMR85, Northampton contains six LNRs, 46 Local Wildlife sites, seven 
Wildlife Trust Nature Reserves and eight LGSs.  Since 2014/15 there has been an increase of 3.45 
ha, from 405.32 to 408.77ha.  It should be noted that some sites might have multiple 
designations.  For example, Bradlaugh Fields is an LNR, an LGS, and an LWS and is situated 
within the Nature Improvement Area.  Sites of regional/local importance also include the habitats 
of those species of principal importance for biodiversity (as identified in Section 41 of the NERC 
Act). 

  

                                                
81 Nene Valley Nature Improvement Area http://www.nenevalleynia.org/ Accessed 4th February 2016 
82 Designated Sites View - Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits. Natural England 
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteDetail.aspx?SiteCode=s2000494 Accessed 17th January 2019 
83 Designated Sites View - Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits. Natural England 
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteDetail.aspx?SiteCode=s2000494 Accessed 17th January 2019 
84 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 Habitat Regulations Assessment (January 2019) Accessed 17th January 2019 
85 Joint Authorities Monitoring Report For The Local Plans in West Northamptonshire (2016-2017) West Northamptonshire Joint 
Planning Unit.  Accessed http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648 Accessed on 11th 
December 2018 

446

http://www.nenevalleynia.org/
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteDetail.aspx?SiteCode=s2000494
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/SiteDetail.aspx?SiteCode=s2000494
http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648


South
Northamptonshire

Daventry
Wellingborough

© Crown Copyright 2018. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655. CB:MNi EB:Nicholson_M LUCGLA 5823-01_FigA2-6_Biodiversity_Ecology  17/01/2019

Map Scale @ A4: 1:65,000

Source: Northampton Borough Council,
Natural England

Northampton
Local Plan SA

Northampton Borough 
boundary
Ramsar
SPA
SSSI
LNR
Ancient Woodland
Local Wildlife Site
Nature Improvement Area

0 1 2
kmE

Figure A2.6: Biodiversity
and Ecology

Upper Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits 

SPA & Ramsar

447



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 255 March 2019 

Historic environment 

The settlement known as Northampton developed on higher ground above the confluence of the 
rivers Nene and Brampton.  The earliest written reference to Northampton occurred in AD 914 
and archaeological evidence suggests that the castle was occupied in the Romano-British and 
Anglo-Saxon periods86.  Northampton’s status as a County Borough can be traced back to 
Doomsday and owing to its central geographical location it commanded one of the main roads 
from London to the north and therefore played a role in the many civil wars.  Today, the oldest 
part of the town is situated on a hill which rises from 194 ft. above sea level at the west bridge 
near Castle station to 294 ft. at the prison near the site of the old north gate87. 

The medieval market place remains in the centre of the town and from this point roads radiate 
out forming part of the streetscape and transport infrastructure.  The town’s medieval political 
importance led to a strong ecclesiastical presence which has left behind Abington Abbey and 
Delapre Abbey and the presence of other monasteries such as Greyfriars preserved in street 
names. Outlying villages like Kingsthorpe, Western Favell and Great Billing became surrounded by 
later development as the town grew. 

Northampton contains a number of historic and cultural assets as shown in Figure A2.7.  The 
Borough contains over 500 locally and statutory listed buildings, and seven scheduled 
monuments: 

• Multivallate hillfort at Hunsbury Hill. 

• Clifford Hill motte castle. 

• Eleanor Cross base in St Michaels churchyard. 

• Northampton Castle, remains of. 

• Saxon Palace complex and Saxon and medieval urban deposits in the centre of Northampton. 

• Upton medieval village and C 17th garden earthworks. 

• Upton bowl barrow. 

The Council has designated 21 Conservation Areas in order to protect their character and 
appearance – information on these is available from the Council’s website88.  In addition there are 
79 Locally Listed Buildings, seven Scheduled Ancient Monuments (completely or partly within the 
Borough) and 439 Nationally Listed Buildings (entries on statutory list)89 together with 
archaeological remains and other non-designated heritage assets90.  Delapre Abbey is a Grade II* 
listed building and its parkland includes a registered historic battlefield, marking the Battle of 
Northampton (1460) 91.  Other well preserved historic landscapes exist such as the medieval rural 
landscape and post medieval parkland at Upton.  There are no Historic Parks and Gardens in the 
Borough92. 

Northampton has 43 Listed Buildings (16 Grade I and 27 Grade II*) at risk on the Historic 
England’s Register.93  The percentage of listed buildings at risk has increase from 2011/12 to 
2016/17, 2.3% to 4.7% respectively.  

  

                                                
86 'The borough of Northampton: Introduction', in A History of the County of Northampton: Volume 3, ed. William Page (London, 
1930), pp. 1-26 http://www.british-history.ac.uk/vch/northants/vol3/pp1-26 Accessed 3rd February 2016 
87 'The borough of Northampton: Introduction', in A History of the County of Northampton: Volume 3, ed. William Page (London, 
1930), pp. 1-26 http://www.british-history.ac.uk/vch/northants/vol3/pp1-26 Accessed 3rd February 2016 
88 Conservation Areas.  Accessed  http://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200207/building_conservation_and_trees/1446/conservation-
home on 27th January 2017. 
89 Joint Authorities Monitoring Report For The Local Development Framework in West Northamptonshire (2013-2014) West 
Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit.  Accessed http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648 
Accessed on 2nd February 2016 
90 The Northamptonshire County Council Historic Environment Record database states that there are over 65,000 monuments on the 
database for the county as a whole 
91 West Northamptonshire JCS Local Plan (Part 1) (2014) West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
92 Joint Authorities Monitoring Report For The Local Development Framework in West Northamptonshire (2013-2014) West 
Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit.  Accessed http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648 
Accessed on 2nd February 2016 
93 Joint Authorities Monitoring Report For The Local Plans in West Northamptonshire (2016-2017) West Northamptonshire Joint 
Planning Unit. http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648 Accessed on 11th  December 2018 

448

http://www.british-history.ac.uk/vch/northants/vol3/pp1-26
http://www.british-history.ac.uk/vch/northants/vol3/pp1-26
http://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200207/building_conservation_and_trees/1446/conservation-home
http://www.northampton.gov.uk/info/200207/building_conservation_and_trees/1446/conservation-home
http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648
http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648
http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2737648


South
Northamptonshire

Daventry
Wellingborough

© Crown Copyright 2018. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655. CB:MNi EB:Nicholson_M LUCGLA 5823-01_FigA2-7_Historic  17/01/2019

Map Scale @ A4: 1:65,000

Source: Northampton Borough Council,
Historic England

Northampton
Local Plan SA

Northampton Borough 
boundary
Registered Battlefield
Scheduled Monument

!( Grade I Listed Building
!( Grade II* Listed Building
! Grade II Listed Building

Site of archaeological 
significance
Conservation area

0 1 2
kmE

Figure A2.7: Historic
Environment

449



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 257 March 2019 

Air 

The Environment Act 1995 introduced the National Air Quality Strategy and the requirement for 
local authorities to determine if statutory air quality objectives (AQOs) are likely to be exceeded.  
All local authorities now report to DEFRA on an annual basis, and have the obligation to declare 
Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) and develop action plans for improvement of air quality if 
objectives are likely to be exceeded. 

There were 11 AQMAs in Northampton but four were revoked in 2011 as their NO2 objectives were 
being met.  Northampton Borough’s latest Air Quality Annual Status Report (2018)94 identifies 
seven AQMAs within its administrative area due to exceedances of the annual mean objective for 
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2).  These areas are shown in Figure A2.8.   These are mainly concentrated 
around Northampton’s town centre and / or located near to significant arterial road routes.  All 
AQMAs have been declared due to exceedances from road transportation sources.  The main 
source of air pollution in the borough is road traffic emissions from major roads, notably M1, A43, 
A45, A4500, A5101 and A5123.  During 2017, 32 of the 27 monitoring locations reported to 
exceed the AQS annual mean objective for NO2.  In addition, 10 sites outside of the declared 
AQMAs reported exceedance of the AQS annual mean objective, with six of these reporting 
exceedances in previous years, highlighting the need to review current AQMA boundaries in line 
with the changing demands of air quality.   

The Northampton Low Emission Strategy lays out an integrated, year on year plan to improve air 
quality over the period until 2025 through a reduction in vehicle emissions by accelerating the 
uptake of cleaner fuels and technologies and forms part of the Northampton Air Quality Action 
Plan.95 

Water 

The River Nene rises to the west of Northampton and is the predominant water body that is 
associated with the Borough.  It is the 10th longest river in the country at 169km in length and 
has a catchment area of 1,630 km2.  

The Water Framework Directive (WFD) objectives are to prevent deterioration of waterbodies and 
to improve them such that they meet the required status for that given waterbody (rivers, lakes, 
estuaries, coastal and groundwaters).  Northampton’s responsibility in delivering the WFD for the 
River Nene lies with its involvement with the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit. 

From where the River Nene enters Northampton to its confluence with the Brampton Arm, a 
tributary from the north, and the Grand Union Canal tributary to the south, the River is classified 
as having ‘moderate’ Ecological Quality.  Downstream from this point however, the River Nene is 
classified as having ‘poor’ Ecological Quality.  In contrast, the whole of the River Nene has ‘good’ 
chemical quality in the entire Borough.  There are 63 water bodies within the Nene Management 
catchment area.96  The priority river basin management issues to tackle in this catchment are 
water quality, habitat quality and hydromorphology.97  

The River Nene Integrated Catchment Management Plan98 identifies eight water quality issues for 
the River: 

• Point source pollution from sewage treatment works. 

• Physical modification of water bodies. 

• Diffuse pollution from agriculture and other rural activities. 

                                                
94 Air Quality Annual Status Report for Northampton Borough Council (2018) Northampton Borough Council  
95 Northampton Low Emission Strategy 2017-2025, Northampton Borough Council  
96 Catchment Data Explorer, Nene –Summary, The Environment Agency (2018) https://environment.data.gov.uk/catchment-
planning/ManagementCatchment/3059/Summary Accessed 11th December 2018 
97 Water for life and livelihoods. Part 1 Anglian River basin district, River basin Management Plan (2015), DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/718327/Anglian_RBD_Part_1_river
_basin_management_plan.pdf Accessed on 11th December 2018 
98 River Nene Integrated Catchment Management Plan (2014) River Nene Regional Park CIC 
http://www.riverneneregionalpark.org/publications/management-plans/ncp-management-plans/nicp-management-plan-june-2014.pdf 
Accessed 3rd February 2016 

450

https://environment.data.gov.uk/catchment-planning/ManagementCatchment/3059/Summary
https://environment.data.gov.uk/catchment-planning/ManagementCatchment/3059/Summary
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/718327/Anglian_RBD_Part_1_river_basin_management_plan.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/718327/Anglian_RBD_Part_1_river_basin_management_plan.pdf
http://www.riverneneregionalpark.org/publications/management-plans/ncp-management-plans/nicp-management-plan-june-2014.pdf


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 258 March 2019 

• Diffuse pollution from urban sources. 

• Water abstraction. 

• Non–native invasive species. 

• Growth and development. 

• Climate change. 

  

451



South
Northamptonshire

Daventry
Wellingborough

Harborough
Road

St Michaels
Road

Campbell
Square

A45 London
Road

M1

St James

Victoria
Promenade

© Crown Copyright 2018. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655. CB:MNi EB:Nicholson_M LUCGLA 5823-01_FigA2-8_AQMAs  17/01/2019

Map Scale @ A4: 1:65,000

Source: Northampton Borough Council

Northampton
Local Plan SA

Northampton Borough 
boundary
AQMA

0 1 2
kmE

Figure A2.8: Air Quality
Management Areas
(AQMAs)

452



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 260 March 2019 

Flood risk 

Areas of the Borough adjacent to the River Nene and its associated tributaries are subject to 
flooding as they lie in Flood Zones 2 and 3 as shown in Figure A2.9. 

Northampton has a history of flooding, with the most notable events occurring in April 1998, 
November 2012 and March 2016.  During the April 1998 flood, over 2,500 properties were 
flooded, two people died and 150 people were treated in hospital for flood related injuries and 
hypothermia.  This was a result of very heavy rainfall, channel exceedance, flood defence 
malfunction, surface water flooding and canal overtopping with the worst of flooding occurring in 
the St James and Far Cotton areas99. 

Northampton responded to the significant flood event by upgrading its central area flood defences 
to one of the highest design specifications in the country100.  These defences helped protect the 
town from the widespread surface water and fluvial flooding that occurred due to the 20-30mm of 
rain fell across Northamptonshire on 21st November 2012 and a further 20mm of rain that fell on 
the night of 24th November 2012.  A total of 207 flooding incidents were recorded in March 2016.  
Approximately 71 properties were affected internally by flooding and this has resulted in the need 
to undertake eighteen formal Section 19 (of the Act) Flood Investigations.  However, overall, the 
flood defence improvements have helped to protect several communities from flooding.   

Due to Northamptonshire’s susceptibility to flooding from a wide range of sources and as the Lead 
Local Flood Authority (LLFA) the County Council has taken a risk-based approach which prioritises 
wards that are at greatest risk and that will gain the most benefit from flood risk management 
work.  The Nene Valley Ward in Northampton has been identified as the 8th highest priority wards 
in the county when considering surface water flooding. 

Soils 

The Agricultural Land Classification (ALC)101 system provides a framework for classifying land 
according to the extent to which its physical or chemical characteristics impose long-term 
limitations on agricultural use.  The principal factors influencing agricultural production are 
climate, site and soil.  These factors together with the interactions between them form the basis 
for classifying land into one of five grades, where 1 describes land as excellent (land of high 
agricultural quality and potential) and 5 describes land as very poor (land of low agricultural 
quality and potential).  Land falling outside of these scores is deemed to be ‘primarily in non-
agricultural use’, or ‘land predominantly in urban use’. 

As Northampton is predominantly an urban area, the Borough is mainly classified as ‘Land 
predominantly in urban use’.  However, some of the Borough’s peripheral areas are not 
developed.  Northampton is surrounded by large tracts of high quality (Grade 2 and 3a) 
agricultural land to the west, south east and north.  For example, a report102 covering 17.6 ha of 
agricultural grassland off Bedford Road, Brackmills, to the south of Northampton comprising three 
fields used for cattle grazing found some areas at Grade 2 and Grade 3a quality.   

Northampton Borough contains multiple types of soils.  These include: loamy and clayey 
floodplain soils with naturally high groundwater, freely draining slightly acid loamy soils, freely 
draining slightly acid but base-rich soils, slowly permeable seasonally wet slightly acid but base-
rich loamy and clayey soils, freely draining lime-rich loamy soils, lime-rich and clayey soils with 
impeded drainage and slightly acid loamy and clayey souls with impeded drainage.103 

                                                
99 Northamptonshire Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (2016) Northamptonshire County Council  
https://www3.northamptonshire.gov.uk/councilservices/fire-safety-and-
emergencies/emergencies/Documents/Northants%20Local%20Flood%20Risk%20Management%20Strategy%20Nov%202016.pdfAcces
sed 11th December 2018 
100 Northamptonshire Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (2013) Northampton County Council https://www.floodtoolkit.com/wp-
content/uploads/2015/10/Northamptonshire-LFRMS-Report.pdf Accessed 3rd February 2016 
101 Natural England, Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) system, 2013 
102 Agricultural Use and Quality Of Land At Brackmill, Northampton (2013) Land Research Consultants 
103 Soilscapes, Cranfield Soil and Agrifood Institute http://www.landis.org.uk/soilscapes/ Accessed 11th December 2018 

453

https://www.floodtoolkit.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Northamptonshire-LFRMS-Report.pdf
https://www.floodtoolkit.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Northamptonshire-LFRMS-Report.pdf
http://www.landis.org.uk/soilscapes/


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 261 March 2019 

Minerals 

Post-glacial river terraces of sand and gravel are found in the Nene Valley.  These fluvial deposits 
of sand and gravel are generally of a higher quality than glacial gravels because they are better 
washed and sorted. The Nene Valley gravels are of particularly good quality, giving a high yield 
per hectare. Further reserves can be found elsewhere around Northampton, particularly north of 
Moulton and to the west, south and east of Wootton, acting as a potential constraint to 
development.   

  

454



South
Northamptonshire

Daventry
Wellingborough

© Crown Copyright 2018. Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655. CB:MNi EB:Nicholson_M LUCGLA 5823-01_FigA2-9_Flood_Risk  17/01/2019

Map Scale @ A4: 1:65,000

Source: Environment Agency

Northampton
Local Plan SA

Northampton Borough 
boundary
Flood zone 2
Flood zone 3

0 1 2
kmE

Figure A2.9: Flood Risk

455



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 263 March 2019 

In a county where minerals resources permitted for extraction are not in ample supply (as 
evidenced by a historically low land bank of permissions for sand and gravel extraction), the issue 
of safeguarding known minerals resources from other development that could sterilise its eventual 
extraction is an important issue, especially as Northamptonshire is a growing county. Other forms 
of development may impact on minerals and waste development, either through surface 
development sterilising mineral resources or encroachment of incompatible development affecting 
the operational viability of the minerals or waste development. As such the existence of 
committed or allocated sites for minerals and waste development should be taken into 
consideration with regard to the determination of proposals for other forms of development. 

The adopted Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan104 includes policies relating to 
Minerals Safeguarding Areas, particularly sand and gravel, that aim to prevent the unnecessary 
sterilisation of mineral resources.  Although there are not minerals extraction sites allocated 
within the Borough in the Minerals and Waste Local Plan, there are some sites located very close 
to the Borough boundary.  These sites have ‘Preventing Land Use Conflict Consultation Buffers’ 
shown on the Proposals Map, some of which fall within Northampton.  Past gravel extraction in 
the River Nene Valley has created a series of waterbodies and associated habitats that are 
important for recreation and nature conservation.  In regard to sand and gravel extraction, 
Northampton contains multiple safeguarding areas.  However, the currently worked river valleys 
of the Nene between Northampton and Wellingborough and of the Great Ouse, will play a 
significant role in delivering the provision to be met.    

It is also important that the former gravel pits in the Nene Valley, now a SPA, will be protected 
from adverse effects on the integrity of this designation from further extraction from allocated 
sites in the valley.   

Waste 

Waste planning is the responsibility of the waste planning authorities, such as Northamptonshire 
County Council.  Local planning authorities such as Northampton Borough Council need to: 

• Ensure the likely impact of proposed, non-waste related development on existing waste 
management facilities, and on sites and areas allocated for waste management, is acceptable 
and does not prejudice the implementation of the waste hierarchy and/or the efficient 
operation of such facilities. 

• Ensure that new, non-waste development makes sufficient provision for waste management 
and promotes good design to secure the integration of waste management facilities with the 
rest of the development and, in less developed areas, with the local landscape. This includes 
providing adequate storage facilities at residential premises, for example by ensuring that 
there is sufficient and discrete provision for bins, to facilitate a high quality, comprehensive 
and frequent household collection service. 

• Ensure the handling of waste arising from the construction and operation of development 
maximises reuse/recovery opportunities, and minimises off-site disposal. 

The adopted Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan identifies one site in Northampton 
for an integrated waste management facility: 

• WS1: Northampton – East. 

It also identified five industrial areas within the Borough suitable for waste management uses 
(Policy 13): 

• WL5: Northampton - Lodge Farm. 

• WL6: Northampton - St. James / Far Cotton. 

• WL7: Northampton - Moulton Park. 

• WL8: Northampton – Brackmills. 

• WL9: Northampton - Round Spinney. 

                                                
104 Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan, Northamptonshire County Council, adopted July 2017 

456



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 264 March 2019 

Appendix 3  
Consultation comments from earlier stages of SA

457



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 265 March 2019 

Responses to consultation comments on April 2016 SA Scoping Report 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

Environment Agency 
(Kerrie Ginns)   

SA objective 13 The Environment Agency have reviewed the Sustainability Appraisal and 
considers a section could be included that refers to land contamination 
and groundwater protection to ensure that potential risk posed to 
controlled waters is assessed on a site by site basis. Where development 
is proposed on a site which is known or has the potential to be affected by 
contamination, a preliminary risk assessment should be undertaken by 
the developer as the first stage in assessing the risk. Developers should 
follow the risk management framework provided in CLR11 'Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination', when dealing 
with land affected by contamination. Guidance document GP3 
Groundwater Protection: Principles and Practice is a useful reference for 
ensuring groundwater is protected during development. It describes how 
to manage and protect groundwater in the most sensitive locations. 
Protect and minimise impact on water quality.  

The potential risk to controlled waters from 
development of contaminated land will primarily be 
addressed by the Council through development 
management procedures however an assessment 
criterion has been added under SA objective 13: 
‘Encourage sustainable water management’ to highlight 
the potential for negative effects for development sites 
located on contaminated land.   

SA objective 13 The assessment criteria refers to sewerage provision. In addition, some 
developments can cause physical modification of water bodies, for 
instance affecting the flood plain can lead to deterioration of the water 
quality. Urban run-off has the potential to cause poor water quality, 
therefore these impacts need assessment and mitigation where 
appropriate. Conserve water resources - this can mainly be achieved by 
adopting water efficiency standards. 

Noted.  The SA assessment criteria have been designed 
to identify any potential issues at the strategic scale in 
order to help inform site selection. 

More detailed matters regarding individual sites are 
more appropriately dealt with at the application stage. 

SA objective 14 There is updated guidance on how climate change could affect flood risk 
to new development - ‘Flood risk assessments: climate change 
allowances’ was published on gov.uk on 19 February 2016. The flood risk 
vulnerability classification and lifetime of your proposed development 
should be confirmed in line with the National Planning Policy Framework 
and the appropriate allowances applied. It should be noted that the Nene 
river catchment falls within the Anglian River Basin District. If hydraulic 
modelling is proposed, additional model runs may be required to ensure 
that all the correct scenarios are considered. 

Noted.  Government guidance in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance will be used to determine the 
significance of effects with respect to flood risk and will 
be taken into account in the SFRA, the findings of which 
will inform the SA. 

Historic England 
(Emilie Carr) 

 Historic England have produced guidance entitled ‘Strategic 
Environmental Assessment, Sustainability Appraisal and The Historic 
Environment’ which it is considered will be helpful in this instance. Where 
we have made comment, further information can be found here: 
https://historicengland.org.uk/images-books/publications/strategic-
environassessmentsustainability-appraisal-historic-environment/  

Noted. 

 Reference to cultural infrastructure within paragraph 2.21 and to the 
historic environment within paragraph 2.22 is welcomed. Although 
reference to the historic environment within paragraphs 3.43 – 3.44 is 

Noted. Paras 3.43 and 3.44 have been updated as 
requested. 

458



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 266 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

welcomed, it is considered that greater importance should be shown with 
dedicated paragraphs at this stage, in relation to both designated and 
non-designated heritage assets, such as:- Northampton contains a wealth 
of designated and non-designated heritage assets including 22 
Conservation Areas, 1 registered Battlefield, 10 Scheduled Monuments, 
43 Grade 1 and II* Listed Buildings and a further 399 Grade II Listed 
Buildings together with archaeological remains and other non-designated 
heritage assets. As a summary of paragraph 3.80 for example. 

 For clarity, Historic England’s records show the following scheduled 
ancient monuments:- 1003176 Northampton Castle, remains of 1006620 
Saxon palace complex and Saxon and medieval urban deposits in the 
centre of Northampton 1010742 Upton Bowl Barrow 1012150 Multivallate 
hillfort at Hunsbury Hill 1012328 Clifford Hill motte castle 1015536 
Eleanor Cross base in St Michaels churchyard 1006639 Upton medieval 
village and C17 garden earthworks 

Noted.  The SA Scoping Report references to scheduled 
monuments have been clarified. 

 Reference to the Grand Union Canal as a cultural asset within paragraph 
3.48 is welcomed. Paragraphs 3.78 to 3.81 are welcomed. Reference to 
locally listed buildings is supported; reference to other non-designated 
assets including archaeological remains is also suggested. Reference to 
baseline data should be included to ensure a sound evidence base.  

Reference to non-designated historic assets has now 
been included in the baseline. 

 Within table 4.1 ‘key sustainability issue for Northampton’ in relation to 
‘areas and sites of significant historic importance’, the inclusion of non-
designated heritage assets including archaeological remains would 
strengthen this sustainability issue.  

Reference to non-designated historic assets including 
archaeological remains has now been included to 
strengthen this sustainability issue. 

 Within table 5.1 the inclusion of an objective (No. 11) in relation to the 
historic environment is welcomed. The guidance referenced above 
suggests the following objective:- “conserve and enhance the historic 
environment, heritage assets and their settings”. It is considered that this 
would provide a more robust and comprehensive objective in relation to 
the historic environment.  

SA objective 11 had been revised to read ‘Conserve and 
enhance Northampton’s historic environment, heritage 
assets and their settings’ in accordance with Historic 
England’s recommendation. 

 On page 93, Table A2.1, it is considered that an additional question 
should be included in relation to non-designated heritage assets. The 
need for individual assessment rather than blanket measurements within 
the assessment criteria is strongly welcomed. It is therefore suggested 
that the proximity to designated heritage assets bullet point criteria listed 
below is deleted in order to allow for specific assessment in relation to 
each site. It is acknowledged that the final paragraph goes on to state 
that assessment scores may need to be adjusted to take into account the 
relationship of the development site option and the designated site using 
Historic England’s advice which is welcomed, however, it would be clearer 
to delete reference to distance to allow for accurate and individual 
assessment of each site. Historic England do not support the use of such 
means to identify impacts as distance is not a measure of harm. While it 
is acceptable to use distance as an identifier of assets in the area around 

Noted. Reference to non-designated heritage assets will 
be included. 

The Council has considered the advice given by Historic 
England in deciding upon a revised approach that is 
judged to be appropriate and proportionate within 
resource constraints. 

 

459



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 267 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

a potential site, it should not be extrapolated as an impact assessment – 
for example there may be sites within a conservation area which could be 
an enhancement.  

 A number of our comments call into question the strategy employed by 
the council. As described above, there are particular concerns in relation 
to the Sustainability Appraisal site appraisal methodology. We consider 
that this would not meet the requirements of the SEA directive, nor would 
it ensure that site allocations are sound 

Noted.  The amendments made to the assessment 
criteria and approach are considered to meet the 
requirements of the SEA Regulations. 

Natural England 
(Kayleigh Cheese) 

Sustainability 
Appraisal Scoping 
Report for 
Northampton Local 
Plan Part 2 

Natural England is broadly satisfied with the proposed scope of the 
Sustainability Appraisal. We generally welcome the SA Objective to 
‘Protect and enhance Northampton’s biodiversity and Geodiversity’, 
however we are concerned by the presence of ‘?’ in the ‘Assessment 
Criteria’. Where elements of uncertainty exist Natural England would 
expect to see evidence that negative effects on important environmental 
assets can be avoided before sites and policies are committed to, in Local 
Plan documents. All relevant constraints should be clearly identified prior 
to assessment to allow informed decisions to be made.  

The ‘?’ representing uncertain effects has been 
removed and the description of assessment criteria 
amended to make clear that the potential effects 
identified by this method are prior to mitigation.  The 
initial assessment of potential effects of each allocation 
prior to mitigation will be based on the proximity 
criteria stated.  Where these highlight the potential for 
major effects and for larger development sites the GIS-
generated scores will be adjusted for other relevant 
factors (such as those described in Table A2.1) where 
these are known.  The assessment approach described 
is judged to provide an appropriate degree of certainty 
at this strategic level of assessment and be capable of 
highlighting where there is potential for an allocation to 
have a significant effect; greater certainty will be 
possible once more specific proposals are developed 
and submitted as part of a planning application.   

 We also disagree with the distance criteria used to determine negative 
effects on the Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA. Current evidence suggests 
that recreational disturbance can have a significant effect where 
developments are located up to 3km from the site. The distance criteria 
used to determine significant effects therefore needs to reflect this.  

The distance assessment criteria have been amended 
to reflect Natural England’s comments. 

 Habitats Regulation Assessment.  We note that a HRA will be undertaken 
for the local plan part 2 in due course, and reported on separately to the 
SA. Natural England agrees with this approach, given the level of detail 
required to assess potential impacts to the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
Special Protection Area. 

Noted. 

 Central Area Action Plan (CAAP) - Natural England currently has no 
comments to make on the CAAP.  

Noted. 

 Draft Methodology for Land Availability Assessment - We would wish to 
see the methodology changed to ensure sites are excluded which are 
partially or completely within a SSSI or European protected site. In other 
words any site which involves a direct land take should be excluded. 
Under the stage 2 of the assessment process the assessment should also 
consider the presence of priority habitats as well as designated local 

This comment refers to the Borough Council’s Land 
Availability Assessment rather than the SA Scoping 
Report. 

460



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 268 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

wildlife sites. 
Town Centre 
Conservation Areas 
Advisory Committee 
(Ann Plackett) 

3.64 The stated ‘improvements’ are debatable, e.g. the new bus station leaves 
many travellers standing out on the Drapery in all weathers, and the 
spread between stops makes changes between buses difficult for the 
infirm. It could therefore have discouraged public transport use. Reviews 
of each of these ‘improvements’ would be useful. 

Comments noted. 

3.80 and 3.81 3.80 states there are 7 scheduled monuments, 3.81 says there are 8 
scheduled ancient monuments. Which is the extra one? 

The correct figure is 7 scheduled monuments.  The 
Scoping Report has been updated accordingly. 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 1 
Housing 

The objectives should include a balance between different types of 
housing.  
 
The reference should be to a range of housing, not just ‘housing’.  

Noted.  The requirement for housing is determined by 
the identified housing need.  This is addressed in the 
first question: ‘Will the policy or proposal provide for a 
range of housing type and tenure to meet identified 
housing needs?’ 

Table 5.1 7 Character and vitality of town centre. We need to strengthen the 24hr 
economy not just the evening economy. 

The Council is of the view that the evening economy is 
the priority for the town centre.  Other SA questions 
refer to other aspects of the economy. 

Table 5.1 The objectives should include facilitating travel, and the desire to travel, 
into the town centre.  

Noted.  This is covered by the question ‘Will the policy 
or proposal be within walking and/or cycling distance of 
the town centre, or on frequent public transport routes 
to, the town centre?’  Sites that provide easy access by 
sustainable modes to the town centre will score more 
positively than those that don’t. 

Table 5.1 9 Biodiversity – should include important green sites which support 
biodiversity but which do not have a designation, e.g. Billing Road 
Cemetery.  

The primary purpose of the SA/SEA is to identify 
‘significant’ effects. It is reasonable to assume that all 
biodiversity sites of value have been designated for 
their interest, and the SA/SEA takes into account sites 
designated at the local level. 

Table A2.1 explains that: ” The potential impacts on 
undesignated habitats and species cannot be 
determined with certainty at this strategic level of 
assessment.  This would be determined once more 
specific proposals are developed and submitted as part 
of a planning application. 

“Where the biodiversity interest of brownfield sites is 
known, this will be taken into account in coming to 
judgements of the likely effects.” 

Table 5.1 11 Protect and enhance the historic environment. Generally good, but it 
should include the local list and non-designated assets, as required by the 
NPPF.  

Noted. Amendments have been made in response to 
recommendations from Historic England. 

461



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 269 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

Table A2.1 Table A2.1 Effects on objectives 1 Housing – the document states that all 
housing developments will have a positive effect, but while they will all 
have a positive effect on the amount of housing, they will not necessarily 
have an equally positive impact on the ‘range’ of housing, increased social 
housing and improved stock of housing. Therefore housing developments 
should be measured against these wider housing objectives.  

The assessment criteria are to be used for assessing 
individual sites.  The SA will look to see if Local Plan 
Part 2 includes separate policy (non-site specific) that 
addresses the type and range of housing to be 
delivered by way of criteria. 

Table A2.1 10 Townscape and landscape and 11 Heritage - Contrary to the 
assessment’s statement, we cannot assume that redeveloping a 
brownfield site will always be positive. The existing buildings or site may 
make a positive contribution to the character of the area, and the 
redevelopment may be inappropriate in character. Similarly we cannot 
assume that it will always be beneficial to redevelop a brownfield site in a 
built-up area (11) – the existing site may make a positive contribution, or 
may provide a much needed open space. 

Noted. The Council is considering the advice given by 
Historic England with respect to heritage assets in order 
to decide upon the most appropriate approach within 
resource constraints. 

Northamptonshire 
County Council Public 
Health (Stephen 
Marks) 

 Welcome strong references to health and wellbeing.  Should be included 
in local plan part 2 consultation. 

Noted. 

Northamptonshire 
Police (Sharon Henley) 

Page 36 Reference to “it is possible through good design to reduce opportunities 
for crime” and SA Objective 5 is referenced.  When looking at SA5, this 
sentiment appears to have been lost.  SA Objective 5 does not seek to 
address the sustainability issue for Northampton of high levels of crime. 
How these 2 things which are crossed referenced could be explained. 

Noted.  The points raised are acknowledged. 

The SA objective and supporting questions will be used 
to determine whether the Local Plan Part 2 addresses 
the points raised (e.g. through the inclusion of policies 
that seek to design out crime and the opportunities for 
crime). 

SA Objective 5. Reduce crime and fear of crime in Northampton 
Take issue with the rather simplistic assessment of the factors on which 
levels of crime will depend.  Levels of crime will increase on any 
development site which has previously been a greenfield regardless of 
where that greenfield is located. The use of measures like CPTED and SBD 
which are proven to reduce opportunities for crime by up to 50% will 
reduce the effect of new development on crime levels – but cannot 
understand how the effects of potential sites on this objective can be 
deemed to be “negligible”.  Any building where there has not been a 
building is bound to generate crime and opportunities for anti-social 
behaviour unless detailed design work is carried out to design out 
opportunities for such behaviour. 

Noted.  The points raised are acknowledged. 

The SA objective and supporting questions will be used 
to determine whether the Local Plan Part 2 addresses 
the points raised (e.g. through the inclusion of policies 
that seek to design out crime and the opportunities for 
crime). 

With respect to the site assessment criteria, it is 
acknowledged that new development in any location 
can increase the opportunity to crime, but that at the 
strategic level it is difficult to determine whether any 
particular site is likely to lead to such outcomes more 
than any other, hence the reliance on other policies in 
the Local Plan Part 2 to address such issues wherever 
development is built. 

Bovis Homes Ltd Table 4.1 - Key 
Sustainability 

It is acknowledged that the delivery of affordable housing is a challenge 
for the Borough. As stated in our answers to Question 3 and 4, the site to 

Noted. 

462



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 270 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

(Gavin Gallagher) Issues for 
Northampton 
Affordable Housing 

the west of the South Northampton SUE as part of a comprehensive 
development would provide for a mix of housing in accordance with the 
Framework. Car Dependency. The site to the west of the South 
Northampton SUE would form part of a comprehensive development with 
a local centre and choice of sustainable modes of transport and therefore 
contribute to a reduction in car dependency. 

Whitehills & Spring 
Park RA (Patrick Cross) 

Housing: 1 Help make housing available and affordable - WASPRA questions the 
definition of affordable housing. There is no affordable housing in Buckton 
Fields East. Which member and Department in the Council monitors this 
provision. Developers can move their allocation to another of their 
developments, who keeps the register. 

The Government’s definition of affordable housing is 
“social rented, affordable rented and intermediate 
housing, provided to eligible households whose needs 
are not met by the market”.  The Government defines 
intermediate housing as “homes for sale and rent 
provided at a cost above social rent, but below market 
levels subject to the criteria in the Affordable Housing 
definition”. 

Use of the Car: 2 Improve Public Transport Services - How is it intended to improve the 
provision of public transport. Northampton now has a reduced bus station 
and no obvious joined up thinking, we have no bus and rail HUB, despite 
changes to both facilities. The Railway Station is not access friendly to the 
elderly, disabled, travellers with luggage and mums and dads with 
buggies. WASPRA contacted the Rail Users Group when it first opened 
with its comments. Another lift was promised, we have not yet checked 
that it materialised. 

Noted. Comments have been fed back to the Council. 

Access to schools: 
3 

Be within walking distance of schools - WASPRA cannot understand how 
this could be achieved. As a guess at least 30% of children are collected 
by car from our local primary. Some children from Buckton Fields will 
perhaps go to Boughton, not within walking distance. 

The purpose of SA/SEA is to assess the ‘strategic’ 
effects (i.e. effects at a higher level of detail than can 
be expected at the project level).  It is reasonable to 
assume, therefore, that locating housing within walking 
distance of schools is more likely to result in children 
walking or being walked to school than sites that don’t 
fall within such walking distances. 

Health: 4 Improve access to healthcare - With a failing NHS and longer and longer 
waits to get a GP appointment, to say nothing of an overstretched 
Hospital, we will be interested in specifics as to how this can be achieved 
especially with our increased population. 

Noted.   

Northampton town: 
7 

Maintain the character of the Town Centre - (WASPRA assumes this is the 
old character, not the current character) WASPRA wonders when the 
author of this last visited the Town Centre. Pound shops, Pawn Shops, 
Cash converters, Charity Shops, a Nail Bar and a closed shop are all 
directly serviced by the expensive non-pedestrian area of Abington Street. 
Northampton is well known for its drinking culture. A 2013 newspaper 
article wrote a piece titled "Drunk and Disorderly in Britain" about the 
"gloriously incoherent" young men and women who dominate 
Northampton's high street after dark. This is a big Objective, one we 

Noted.  There are a number of SA objectives that will 
be used to assess likely outcomes from the Local Plan 
Part 2 that address the issues listed.  These include SA 
objective 4 (Improve the health and well-being of 
Northampton’s residents, promoting healthy lifestyles 
and reduce health inequalities), SA objective 5 (Reduce 
crime and the fear of crime in Northampton), and SA 
objective 10 (Protect and enhance the quality and 

463



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 271 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

would dearly love to be achieved but How please will it? Will the licencing 
hours be changed? WASPRA asks to see a list of priorities that will enable 
this Objective to be addressed. How is Northampton attracting retail 
companies. How is Northampton going to clean its backstreets. This 
situation is not improved by the quantity of Multiple Occupation Houses in 
the Borough, these houses tend not to be maintained. Excessive cars 
parked results in lack of street sweeping. Northampton has beautiful 
areas but we need more investment and more pride. The Cultural area 
and Guildhall are our role models. 

character of Northampton’s landscape and townscape). 

Protect 
Northampton's 
townscape: 10 

Conserve the townscape (on the assumption that the townscape is in 
good shape) 

See above. 

Flooding: 14 Reduce the risk of flooding, avoid development of the flood plain Noted.  See response to the Environment Agency’s 
consultation comments re flood risk. 

Waste: 16 Encourage recycling and avoid locating waste management facilities near 
sensitive areas - 41 houses to be built on the Welford Road, in an area 
where water gathers after rainfall?? The 1998 event is a warning to 
Northampton and with the anticipated housing developments to surround 
our Town, this is crucial to our Health and Safety. How please? There are 
areas of our Townscape, Towcester Road bridge, that are shameful. 
Rubbish, overgrown shrubs, weeds, and generally filthy. We have no 
pride. How will this change and stay changed. One benefit of summer 
growth is that the majority of the rubbish is hidden. WASPRA asks about 
the use of food bins. 84 houses in Fallow Walk, average of 19 food bins 
used. Houses may be composting but this is still a poor %. How is this to 
improve to avoid food and peelings going to landfill. Avoid locating waste 
management facilities near sensitive areas - St James, in the middle of 
town and residential areas? Please explain how approving this will meet 
your objective. We consider heavily residential areas to be sensitive. 

Noted.  It is possible and feasible for modern 
developments to include clean and secure waste 
management facilities to encourage residents to recycle 
their waste. 

Mr A Clarke Favell 
Gospel Hall Trust 

Mr John Shephard  

J & J Design 

SA Scoping Report Favell Gospel Hall Trust welcomes the opportunity to comment on the SA 
Scoping Report. The Trust welcomes the recognition of NPPF core 
planning principles as summarised at paragraph 2.20. The references at 
paragraphs 2.21 to 'health, security, community and cultural 
infrastructure and other local facilities' is welcomed, together with the 
recognition of the voluntary and private sector (paragraph 2.22).  

Noted. 

 The Trust notes the social inclusion and deprivation data alongside the 
population data, which indicates a younger population, lower life 
expectancy and areas of deprivation. In response to these factors, the 
Trust suggests that the SA and in turn the emerging Local Plan should 
ensure adequate consideration of social and community infrastructure 
together with meaningful engagement with the voluntary and private 

Added ‘well-being’ to the wording of Objective 4 (which 
addresses health issues) and a new sub-question ‘Will 
the policy or proposal improve access to places of 
worship?’   

464



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 272 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

sector, including local faith communities.  

 The SA scoping report records high crime levels but concludes that this is 
unlikely to be directly affected by the Local Plan. We support the 
identification of indirect influences on crime and fear of crime and urge 
that the SA ensures that adequate weight is given to such considerations 
i.e. economic, social and environmental impacts, to ensure that 
Northampton Borough progresses further towards a truly sustainable 
community. For all these reasons, we suggest that Table 5.1 should be 
expanded to reflect the sentiments of NPPF paragraphs 70, 162 and 171 
and expressly include references to the range of community facilities. 

Noted.  One of the questions in support of SA objective 
4 is ‘Will the policy or proposal Encourage access to, 
and the provision of, community and youth facilities in 
more deprived neighbourhoods?’ 

 The SA should also draw on the findings of the CAG Report 'Northampton 
Faith Communities Profile and Places of Worship Audit & Needs 
Assessment' which forms an important element of the Local Plan Evidence 
Base. The SA may also usefully refer to 'Faith Groups and the Planning 
System' : AHRC Faith and Place Network: October 2015'. 

Noted.  These documents have been reviewed and 
relevant information included in the baseline section. 

Anglian Water Services 
Limited (Stewart 
Patience) 

 Reference is made to building on policies in the adopted Core Strategy 
and the Borough Council consider the phasing of development in relation 
waste water treatment capacity. It would be helpful if this issue was 
considered further by the Borough Council as part of the Part 2 Local Plan. 
We would welcome further discussions with the Borough Council and the 
Environment Agency relating to any additional evidence which is required 
to support the preparation of the Local Plan Part 2. 

Noted. Comments have been fed back to the Council. 

West Hunsbury PC 
(Sandra Guest) 

 No comments. Noted. 

GTNP (Peter Strachan)  No comments. Noted. 

CC Town Planning (Ian 
Taylor) 

 No comments. Noted. 

Dr R Alexander  No comments. Noted. 

Hardingstone Parish 
Council (Mrs Sally 
Willis) 

2.13 
Supplementary 
Planning 
Documents 

The Affordable Housing Interim Statement SPD will need updating 
following proposed changes from the government on affordable housing. 
The SA should also consider the Parks and Open Space Strategy for 
Northampton, and the conservation area management plans. 

Noted.  We have reviewed these documents and 
relevant information has been included in the baseline 
section. 

3.6 (Geography) should include strong links - commuter and entertainment - 
to London. 

Noted.  Added to the baseline section. 

3.61 & 2 Patterns of travel / commuting need to be broken down into different 
areas of the borough, to understand the needs of the different areas. 

Noted. Transport assessments will be undertaken by 
the Council as necessary, which will inform the SA. 

465



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 273 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

3.64 The stated improvements are debatable – the bus station, for instance, 
which leaves many travellers standing out on the Drapery in all weathers 
waiting for their bus, and could well have discouraged public transport 
use. Reviews of each of these ‘improvements’ would be useful, to 
determine what new requirements they have brought, and what old 
requirements remain to be fulfilled. 

Noted.  Comments have been fed back to the Council. 

3.71-76 
Biodiversity 

Biodiversity section should take note of the green networks identified in 
the Northamptonshire Landscape Sensitivity and Green Infrastructure 
Study, e.g. the green / woodland network from NE to SW leading to 
Salcey Forest. 

Noted.  Added to the baseline section. 

3.80 3.80 says there are 7 scheduled monuments, 3.81 says there are 8 
scheduled ancient monuments. Which is the extra one? 

The correct figure is 7 scheduled monuments.  The 
Scoping Report has been updated accordingly. 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

1 Housing – needs a question about balance between different types of 
housing. 

Noted.  The requirement for housing is determined by 
the identified housing need.  This is addressed in the 
first question: ‘Will the policy or proposal provide for a 
range of housing type and tenure to meet identified 
housing needs?’ 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

2 ‘Reduce the need to travel in Northampton by providing easy access to 
jobs, services and facilities without the need to travel by car’. This sounds 
like the aim is to dissuade people from travelling into N-ton for services, 
which won’t help its economic vibrancy. This objective would be better 
phrased as ‘reduce the need to travel by car within, to and from 
Northampton, by providing easy access to sustainable travel alternatives’. 

Noted.  The SA objective has been amended to read: 

‘To reduce the need to travel by car within, to and from 
Northampton, by providing easy access to jobs, 
services and facilities and to sustainable travel 
alternatives to the car’. 

 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

3 Siting residential developments and schools to reduce travel is really 
part of 2. Should also refer to access to schools with sufficient places to 
absorb the children living in the new development. 

It is agreed that there is an argument to place 
Objective 3 within Objective 2 but access to schools is 
sufficiently important at the local level, and involves 
travel by children (which the others do not) to be 
separated out. 

School capacity will be considered along with other 
infrastructure provision. 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

4 Improve health. This should explicitly include physical and mental 
health and wellbeing, and access to countryside should be given more 
priority. Links to Northamptonshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-
2016. 

‘Well-being’ now inserted as part of the objective. 

The Northamptonshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2013-2016 has been included in the review of relevant 
policies, plans, and programmes (Appendix 1 of the SA 
Scoping Report). 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 

6 Employment and economy. Tying a 13 year plan into broadband is 
short-sighted. 4G is already taking over. It would be better to say 

Recommended amendment has been made. 

466



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 274 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

questions ‘communication technology, e.g. broadband’. 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

7 Character and vitality of town centre. We need to strengthen the 24hr 
economy not just the evening economy.  

The Council is of the view that the evening economy is 
the priority for the town centre.   

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

7 The reference should be to a range of housing, not just to housing.  Recommended amendment has been made. 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

7 I would add something about facilitating travel and the desire to travel 
into the town centre. 

Noted.  This is covered by the question ‘Will the policy 
or proposal be within walking and/or cycling distance of 
the town centre, or on frequent public transport routes 
to, the town centre?’  Sites that provide easy access by 
sustainable modes to the town centre will score more 
positively than those that don’t. 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

9 Biodiversity – include important green sites which support biodiversity 
but have not been designated, e.g. Hardingstone’s Cherry Orchard. 

The primary purpose of the SA/SEA is to identify 
‘significant’ effects. It is reasonable to assume that all 
biodiversity sites of value have been designated for 
their interest, and the SA/SEA takes into account sites 
designated at the local level. 

Table A2.1 explains that: ” The potential impacts on 
undesignated habitats and species cannot be 
determined with certainty at this strategic level of 
assessment.  This would be determined once more 
specific proposals are developed and submitted as part 
of a planning application. 

“Where the biodiversity interest of brownfield sites is 
known, this will be taken into account in coming to 
judgements of the likely effects.” 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

11 Protect and enhance the historic environment. Generally good, but no 
mention of the local list and non-designated assets, which require 
protection in NPPF. 

Noted. Amendments have been made in response to 
recommendations from Historic England. 

Table 5.1 – 
Objectives and 
questions 

12 Air pollution – it is not ambitious enough to just limit an increase in air 
pollution, we should be aiming for reduction. The DEFRA 2007 paper on 
air quality stresses improvement (p71 / 120 of committee paper) 

Agree the aim should be to reduce air pollution.  
However, it is highly unlikely for new development to 
be able to do this – other traffic management measures 
will be required.  Therefore, the objective is to minimise 
air pollution, and sites will be assessed on this basis. 

Appendix 1 NPPF – The scoping document doesn’t pull out the objective of 
maintaining assets which the community holds as important – it mentions 
green belt but nothing more. Also it doesn’t mention social sustainability, 

Para 2.20 of the SA Scoping Report states that: “One of 
the core planning principles set out in the NPPF is that 
planning should take account of and support local 

467



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 275 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

or building sustainable communities. strategies to improve health, social and cultural 
wellbeing for all, and deliver sufficient community and 
cultural facilities and services to meet local needs.  
Other core planning principles are linked to health – 
such as design and transportation.  Section 8 of the 
NPPF recognises that the planning system can play an 
important role in facilitating social interaction and 
creating healthy, inclusive communities.” 

A number of the SA objectives, if achieved by the Local 
Plan, will in-combination make a positive contribution to 
social sustainability and building sustainable 
communities.  

Appendix 1 White Paper on Natural Environment – The document mentions the aim of 
reconnecting people and nature but doesn’t translate this into an 
objective – the objective is about enhancing natural environment (9 and 
10) not enhancing access to it. This needs to be included in the objective. 

One of the questions in support of this SA objective is 
‘Will the policy or proposal improve access to and 
understanding of nature, taking into account its 
sensitivity to human disturbance?’  

Appendix 2 Assumptions regarding walking distances – there is no justification for 
taking the straight-line distance from edge to edge. The distances are 
used to judge likely human behaviour and so should reflect human 
experience, which is more likely to be centre to centre, and which would 
follow paths and roads. Also, why assume that people would be willing to 
walk further to school, work and a railway station than to town? ‘It is 
considered that this is a reasonable approach’ is not good enough 
justification for a methodology; it looks more like ‘this will make it easier’. 

The distances have been carefully defined using the 
Institute of Highways and Transportation guidance as a 
starting point.  The explanatory note states that 
professional judgement will be used when applying 
these distances to each site option and the range of 
services and facilities considered by the appraisal (e.g. 
where there are significant barriers to straight-line 
movement, such as railway lines).  This has been used 
in SAs elsewhere and has been deemed acceptable as 
an approach for a strategic assessment. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

1 Housing – the document states that all housing developments will have 
a positive effect, but while it will have a positive effect on the amount of 
housing, this is not necessarily the case for ‘range’ of housing, increased 
social housing and improved stock of housing. 

The assessment criteria are to be used for assessing 
individual sites.  The SA will look to see if Local Plan 
Part 2 includes separate policy (non-site specific) that 
addresses the type and range of housing to be 
delivered by way of criteria. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

2 and 3 Reducing travel – there are problems with distance assumptions 
(see above). Otherwise these sections are generally ok, but it also needs 
to take into account whether the site would give easy access to longer 
distance services and employment. For example, development near M1 
may encourage commuting to London, MK, Birmingham by car. 

Noted.  See comment above re definition of distances. 

The point regarding some development locations 
potentially encouraging longer journeys elsewhere will 
be considered in the SA as it progresses. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

4 Health – it should consider open space separately from sport, as open 
space can contribute to wellbeing, reconnecting people with nature. 
Employment sites are measured only by proximity to residential 
developments, but they should also be considered for proximity to 

Noted.  They key priority is to address these needs 
close to homes.  However, being an urban area, if such 
facilities are provided close to homes in Northampton, 

468



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 276 March 2019 

Respondent Section of SA 
Scoping Report  

Consultation comment LUC response  

facilities for health. If employment sites are close to open space or sports 
facilities, workers can make the most of these for a healthy lifestyle in 
breaks and before and after work. 

then workers should benefit too. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

5 Crime – it states that location is not important for crime, but links to the 
surrounding areas can increase the fear of crime. For example, 
Hardingstone’s pedestrian links to town are through underpasses only, 
which many may fear to use after dark. 

Design responses regarding crime are discussed in the 
text.     

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

6 Economy and jobs – No comments. Noted. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

7 Vitality of Northampton town centre. It claims that residential 
development won’t have an impact on the town centre’s vitality, but it 
could do if it is sited for easy access to other commercial sites, e.g. 
residential developments to the south of the town may encourage 
residents to use London and MK; to the east may encourage the use of 
Raunds; and to the north residents may prefer Market Harborough and 
Leicester. 

Noted.  These points regarding some development 
locations potentially encouraging longer journeys 
elsewhere will be considered in the SA as it progresses. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

8 Greenhouse Gas emissions – No comments. Noted. 

 9 Biodiversity and geodiversity – No comments. Noted. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

10 Townscape and landscape and 11 Heritage. Contrary to the 
assessment, we can’t assume that redeveloping a brownfield site will 
always be positive – it may have been a positive contribution to the 
character of the area, and be replaced by a completely inappropriate 
development. Similarly we can’t assume that it will always be beneficial to 
redevelop a brownfield site in a built-up area (11) – the site may make a 
positive contribution, or may be a much needed open space. 

Noted. The Council is considering the advice given by 
Historic England with respect to heritage assets in order 
to decide upon the most appropriate approach within 
resource constraints. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

12 Air pollution – No comments Noted. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

13 Water management – No comments Noted. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

14 Flooding – No comments Noted. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

15 Soils and Minerals – No comments Noted. 

Table A2.1 Effects 
on objectives 

16 Waste Management – No comments Noted. 

469



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 277 March 2019 

Responses to consultation comments on September 2016 SA of Local Plan Part 2 Options paper 

Respondent 
ID 

Respondent 
organisation/Name 

Consultation comment LUC response 

0032 Natural England SA objectives 9 and 10 (biodiversity and landscape) have resulted in a couple 
of Local Plan Part 2 objectives showing a potential minor negative effect and 
uncertain (-?), stating it will depend on how and where the housing and 
employment development is delivered across the Borough.  As previously 
commented at the SA Scoping stage, where elements of uncertainly exist, NE 
would expect to see evidence that negative effects on important environmental 
assets can be avoided before sites and policies are committed to in Local Plan 
documents.  All relevant constraints should be clearly identified prior to 
assessment to allow informed decisions to be made.  Expect to see this 
addressed in the SA which accompanies the Draft Plan. 

Noted.  The purpose of the SA is to identify 
potential significant effects at the strategic (i.e. 
plan) level.  In some instances uncertainty will 
remain at the site level because it will be a matter 
for detailed design when development proposals 
come forward.  However, where the potential 
effects are considered to be significant (as opposed 
to minor), we will ensure that any uncertainty is 
minimised. 

0034 Pegasus Group No comment Noted 
0035 Historic England Guidance produced entitled “Strategic Environmental Assessment, 

Sustainability Appraisal and the Historic Environment” which HE considers 
helpful.  More information can be found here: 
https://historicengland.org.uk/images-books/publications/strategic-environ-
assessment-sustainability-appraisal-historic-environment/ 
 
The inclusion of a key sustainability issue in relation to heritage assets on page 
8 is welcomed. 
 
Objective 11 of Table 3.1 is welcomed.  Within the sub questions, reference 
should also be made to non-designated heritage assets.  The third bullet point 
should also be amended to reference the designation of the battlefield as 
“Registered” such as: “Protect, maintain and enhance historic parks and 
gardens, and landscapes and the Registered Battlefield for the Battle of 
Northampton, and their settings?” 
 
Note that no table is included for assumptions to be applied during the SA of 
site options (previously proposed as Table A2.1 in the earlier consultation 
regarding scoping).  What criteria are to be used for site assessments, in order 
to ensure a sound plan?  Please refer to HE’s previous response on this issue.  
HE happy to advise further. 
 
 
 
Note that the Central Area Action Plan is not included in the current 
consultation.  HE very happy to continue to engage including to discuss the 
contents of HE letter dated 9 June 2016. 
 
While it is understood that the Plan is at an early stage, a number of HE’s 
comments call into question the strategy employed by the Council.  

Noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Noted.  Reference to non-designated heritage 
assets are now included. 
 
Noted.  Reference to ‘Registered Battlefield’ with 
respect to the Battle of Northampton is now 
included. 
 
 
The options consultation did not include specific 
sites, and the criteria for assessment was included 
in the SA Scoping Report.  It was therefore not 
considered necessary or appropriate to repeat 
consultation already undertaken.  Consultation 
comments on the criteria will be taken into account 
in the SA of site alternatives. 
 
Noted. 
 
 
 
Historic England’s concerns have been forwarded to 
Northampton Borough Council. 

0060 Northamptonshire Police No Noted. 

470

https://historicengland.org.uk/images-books/publications/strategic-environ-assessment-sustainability-appraisal-historic-environment/
https://historicengland.org.uk/images-books/publications/strategic-environ-assessment-sustainability-appraisal-historic-environment/


 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 278 March 2019 

Respondent 
ID 

Respondent 
organisation/Name 

Consultation comment LUC response 

0062 Northamptonshire 
County Council (Public 
Health) 

Para 4.11 states that while there is no Local Plan Part 2 objective directly 
relating to health and wellbeing, a number of the other Local Plan Part 2 
objectives should give rise to minor positive effects overall on SA objective 4: 
Health and wellbeing. 
 
This is a recognition that the Local Plan Part 2 does not address the issues of 
health and wellbeing in a direct enough way and therefore health and wellbeing 
issues will not be addressed through the planning process as effectively as they 
could be.  This content of the sustainability appraisal supports our responses to 
questions 4, 5 and 6 which request that health and wellbeing features much 
more prominently in the Local Plan Part 2. 

SA objective 4 directly addresses health and well-
being and will be used to assess how well the Local 
Plan addresses these issues. 
 
 
The concerns of the County Council (Public Health) 
with respect to how health and well-being are dealt 
with in the Local Plan have been forwarded to 
Northampton Borough Council. 

0074 Northamptonshire 
County Council (Project 
Officer) 

No Noted. 

0075 Town Centre 
Conservation Advisory 
Committee 

1. The Sustainability Appraisal generally tends towards an optimistic rather 
than a balanced assessment.  It isn’t realistic to assess that development on 
this scale will have no significant impacts e.g. on biodiversity, emissions and 
air pollution, and yet this is what is asserted in 4.3.  Where it finds the 
possibility of a negative impact, the SA classes it as uncertain, arguing that it 
will depend on how the plan is implemented, yet it doesn’t apply the same 
caution when making positive impact assessments.  E.g.: in 4.8, the impact on 
heritage is assessed as (++) because of Objective 9 for High Quality Design – 
despite the fact that we don’t know how this will be implemented. In contrast, 
in 4.18 the impact on biodiversity and the historic environment is assessed as 
having potentially negative effects but is shown as uncertain (?) because it will 
depend on where the housing is delivered. 
 
2. The SA assesses the proposed higher density development in town centres 
as helping town centre vitality (4.15). However, there is no discussion of the 
possibility that high density housing may reduce residential amenity and 
increase social deprivation in these communities. 

The part of the SA process referred to is the 
objectives of the Local Plan – these are inevitably 
high level and are appraised as such.  The 
objectives aim to deliver positive outcomes for 
Northampton, which is why many of the SA scores 
are positive.  Uncertainty is attached to as many of 
the positive scores as the negative ones. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Noted.  It is the view of the SA consultants that 
town centres are better placed to accommodate 
higher density development than, for example, 
suburban areas, and that higher density 
development can help to support town centre 
vitality, particularly where these also act as public 
transport hubs. 

0076 Queens Park Residents 
Association 

No comments at the moment, but would welcome the opportunity to review 
and comment on this in the future. 

Noted. 

0078 Frances Jones No. The respondent understands that these have to be applied. Noted. 
0083 Springs Voice Table 2.1: affordable house/ deprivation/ crime/ areas and sites of significant 

historic importance.    
 
All these areas and many others – if the related objectives are achieved, they 
will enhance the lives of those living in Spring Boroughs, one of the most 
deprived areas in England. If the objectives are not achieved, further harm will 
be brought to Spring Boroughs. 

Noted. 

471



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 279 March 2019 

Respondent 
ID 

Respondent 
organisation/Name 

Consultation comment LUC response 

0084 Persimmon Homes 
Midlands 

Para 4.14: frontloading the plan with smaller, deliverable sites enables the 
Council to achieve its 5 year land supply early on in the plan and take pressure 
from the Sustainable Urban Extensions that are achievable and deliverable but 
more complex to implement due to the scale of infrastructure etc. involved.  
This frontloading is not to the detriment of the SUEs. 
 
Para 4.17: this comment is with regards to uncertainty of the specific sites that 
will come forward as part of the Local Plan Part 2. 

Noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Correct. 

0086 Environment Agency A section could be included in the Sustainability Appraisal that refers to land 
contamination and groundwater protection to ensure that risk potential posed 
to controlled waters is assessed on a site by site basis.   
 
Where development is proposed on a site which is known or has the potential 
to be affected by contamination, a preliminary risk assessment should be 
undertaken by the developer as the first stage in assessing the risk. 
 
Developers should follow the risk management framework provided in CLR11 
“Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination” when dealing 
with land affected by contamination.   
 
Guidance document GP3 Groundwater Protection: principles and practice is a 
useful reference for ensuring groundwater is protected during development.  It 
describes how to manage and protect groundwater in the most sensitive 
locations.  
 
This may help achieve Sustainability Objectives 4, 9 and 13 as described in the 
Scoping Report.  Water efficiency standards could be used for policy indicators. 

The Council does not have a full register of 
contaminated land in the Borough and therefore 
the data are not available for use in the SA in site 
assessment.  However, contamination issues will 
be addressed through development management 
procedures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Groundwater vulnerability will be taken into 
account in the appraisal of site allocations by 
reference to Source Protection Zones.   

0092 BSH Projects Ltd Page 14: Sustainability Appraisal Objective 10 – protect and enhance the 
quality and character of Northampton’s landscape and townscape. Protect and 
improve Northampton’s open and green spaces? 
 
This is an ambiguous definition of green and open space.  Importance should 
be placed upon Strategic Green infrastructure and areas of landscape and 
biodiversity value.  The quality and function of green spaces needs to be 
captured within any objective to strengthen this objective and its function, 
rather than seeking to protect all green spaces simply because they are 
vacant. 

 
 
 
 
Noted.  The biodiversity value of potential 
development land will be taken into account via 
assessment of the Local Plan Part 2 against SA 
objective 9.  No national landscape designations 
are present within the plan area.  Loss of 
designated open space will be assessed as likely to 
have a greater adverse effect in relation to SA 
objective 10 than loss of other greenfield land.   

0093 (Construction Futures) 
Fusion21 Ltd 

Not at present. Noted. 

0100 A D Hiam (not duly 
made) 

The Council has to listen to its electorate who are more in contact with realistic 
business needs and requirements than they are.  The business rates on 
properties for entrepreneurs and SME start-ups have less than £12,000 

Comments noted. 

472



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 280 March 2019 

Respondent 
ID 

Respondent 
organisation/Name 

Consultation comment LUC response 

whether retail outlets or the office units above ground floor retail units (town 
centre only).  This will cause businesses and customers to increase full footfall 
and buying options to change quite dramatically within town centre locations.  
Green spaces have to be tackled with a Victorian attitude towards agricultural 
husbandry.  All hedgerow work has to be manually laid down and not flailed by 
tractor add on units in order to reduce costs and hours of work.  All hedgerow 
work has to be manually intensive so that indigenous wildlife (plants and 
animals) are properly looked after with regards to future prospects.  The Upton 
Medieval Village can be properly rebuilt as a “living history project” and future 
tourism attraction through “Time Team Projects” which have already occurred 
within this country in the past 10 years.  Respondent have to be involved in all 
such projects. 

 
  

473



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 281 March 2019 

Responses to consultation comments on September 2017 SA of Local Plan Part 2 Site Options paper 

Site ref. Respondent Comment on SA NBC response per Councils Feb 2018 
consultation report 

LUC additional response on 
implications for the SA 

General - 
Housing 
Delivery 

Pegasus Group for 
Gallagher Estates 

The SA of the Sites Consultation has failed to 
consider the reasonable alternative of provision 
for larger development sites adjoining the urban 
area through the Duty to Cooperate: the 
sustainability of these options compared with the 
option of developing a large number of small site 
opportunities should have been properly 
appraised. 

Comment noted. The Northampton Local Plan 
Part 2 is being prepared for the Northampton 
administrative boundary and not beyond. 
Notwithstanding this the Council will continue to 
engage with neighbouring authorities on Duty to 
Cooperate matters, including housing delivery. 

Nothing to add to NBC 
response. 

General - 
Housing 
Delivery 

Pegasus Group for 
Miller Homes 

The SA of the Sites Consultation has failed to 
consider the reasonable alternative of provision 
for larger development sites adjoining the urban 
area through the Duty to Cooperate: the 
sustainability of these options compared with the 
option of developing a large number of small site 
opportunities should have been property 
appraised. 

Comment noted. The Northampton Local Plan 
Part 2 is being prepared for the Northampton 
administrative boundary and not beyond. 
Notwithstanding this the Council will continue to 
engage with neighbouring authorities on Duty to 
Cooperate matters, including housing delivery. 

Nothing to add to NBC 
response.  

General - 
Heritage 

Rosamund Worrall, 
Historic England 

The absence of any evaluation to address 
‘uncertainty’ outcomes in the evidence base for 
the Plan must bring into question the 
deliverability of a number of those particular sites 
and, for some, the amount of development they 
can accommodate. 

Sites have also been subject to a Sustainability 
Appraisal: this makes clear that in respect of the 
historic environment sites have been subject to 
an initial screening and evaluation only and that 
a more detailed evaluation of the potential impact 
on heritage assets both designated and non-
designated will be required as sites are taken 
forward. This will enable a more robust 
assessment of the historic significance of the 
assets to be identified and the potential impact of 
proposed development. 

The assessment carried out by 
the SA is judged appropriate 
to the content and level of 
detail of a Local Plan and was 
taken into account by NBC 
alongside other relevant 
information in determining the 
suitability of site options for 
allocation. 

General - SA Ross Holdgate, 
Natural England 

We welcome the clear inclusion of 
biodiversity and landscape within the 
assessment criteria. We note the 
consideration given to areas of nature 
conservation value and public open space. 
In relation to the SPA we note that 
different types of development, i.e. 
residential and employment land may 
affect the site in different ways and this  
needs to be reflected in how the sites are 

Noted. Sites will be investigated further 
and assessed against additional 
information; information supplied through 
the Sites Consultation responses and from 
the existing and emerging technical 
evidence base. These investigations will 
determine the site's suitability for 
allocation in the Local Plan Part 2. 

The assessment criteria set 
out in Appendix 2 of the Sep 
2017 SA of Site Options apply 
a 3km zone of influence (ZoI) 
for residential sites, the 
consultation zone for “All 
applications with net gain in 
residential units”, as set out in 
the Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits SPA SPD 105.  The SA 

                                                
105 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA Supplementary Planning Document, 2015 

474



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 282 March 2019 

Site ref. Respondent Comment on SA NBC response per Councils Feb 2018 
consultation report 

LUC additional response on 
implications for the SA 

assessed. applies a 2km ZoI for 
employment sites in line with 
the consultation zone for 
“Large commercial / industrial 
development with internal 
floor space > 1000m2”.  In 
addition, the Local Plan Part 2 
will be subject to HRA and the 
findings of the HRA 
summarised in the SA Report   

LAA0205 Michel Kerrou The SA treats the site in isolation from its 
context, which is that it is situated in the 
heart of an existing housing development 
which is served by a spine road that has only 
one way out, which also accesses the main 
A43 Kettering Road, and where normal traffic 
movements that a popular housing estate of 
some 2500 residents generate is exacerbated 
by the traffic associated with the exponential 
growth of schools in the area, which now 
take a large number of pupils from a much 
wider catchment such that the majority of 
these need to use either public transport, 
school buses, taxis or private cars. It is in 
this context that the proposals should be 
considered. 

The SA also only looks at the positive side of 
SA policies/ objectives and ignores the 
negative effects that development would 
impose. For example the proximity to schools 
may be a positive aspect but, as referred to 
above, this results in problems from the 
traffic generated, the loss of Parklands Park 
is not a positive, residents would not find it 
easy to get to local GP surgeries and 
archaeological impacts have not been fully 
assessed. 

The documents are not the easiest to access 
on a home PC or tablet so it is both time 
consuming and frustrating to learn of the 
studies following a very low level consultation 

Noted. The Sustainability Appraisal is an 
iterative process and further assessments 
will be undertaken as part of the overall 
need to investigate further the site's 
suitability for allocation in the new Local 
Plan. Consultation with the appropriate 
organisations will be undertaken as 
necessary to consider and mitigate traffic 
related concerns. 

The comment on the accessibility of the 
documents is noted. Discussions will be 
undertaken to identify how the information 
and assessment can be presented in a 
manner that would be easier to access and 
read. 

 

The assessment carried out by 
the SA is judged appropriate 
to the content and level of 
detail of a Local Plan and was 
taken into account by NBC 
alongside other relevant 
information in determining the 
suitability of site options for 
allocation. 

475



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 283 March 2019 

Site ref. Respondent Comment on SA NBC response per Councils Feb 2018 
consultation report 

LUC additional response on 
implications for the SA 

by NCC/ TEP on the former Parklands Middle 
School site. Their document is at odds with 
the SA on a number of issues, particularly in 
relation to environmental studies on the 
potential impacts on nature conservation, 
wildlife and heritage.  Neither this or the 
NCC/ TEP document acknowledge that major 
issue affecting all the existing residents of 
Parklands and the surrounding area, which 
need to be addressed at a strategic level. For 
example if the Northampton School for Girls 
was to be relocated to the soon to be 
redundant University of Northampton site on 
Boughton Green Road, that would open up 
the potential for a truly more sustainable 
residential development on Parklands that 
would allow the Girls School to grown and 
fulfil its potential. 

LAA0208; 
LAA0598; 
LAA1005; 
LAA1006; 
LAA1007; 
LAA1010 

Rosamund Worrall, 
Historic England 

It is not clear where the Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA) information for this addendum 
site is located 

Comment noted. The site was omitted 
from the initial SA of site options in error. 
However, along with all other sites it will 
be subject to SA as part of the next stage 
of plan making. 

Information on these site 
options was received 
subsequent to the 2017 SA of 
Site Options report; they were 
subsequently assessed and 
the information, which is also 
included in this SA Report, 
was provided to NBC to inform 
the site selection process. 

LAA0288; 
LAA0659; 
LAA0689; 
LAA0749; 
LAA0814; 
LAA1009; 
LAA1014; 
LAA1022; 
LAA1023; 
LAA1027; 
LAA1100; 
LAA1107; 
LAA1112 

Rosamund Worrall, 
Historic England 

The SA raises an 'uncertainty outcome' in 
respect of this site and suggest further work 
is required prior to the next iteration of the 
Sites document in order to provide clarity 
about any potential impact on the historic 
environment 

Noted. As part of the next stage of plan 
making and the assessment process to 
determine the suitability of a site for 
allocation there will be a need to 
undertake further technical work, 
including in respect of heritage and 
archaeology, and the comments made by 
the respondent, along with those made by 
others, will be used to inform this process. 
This will also inform the next iteration of 
the SA. 

The assessment carried out by 
the SA is judged appropriate 
to the content and level of 
detail of a Local Plan and was 
taken into account by NBC 
alongside other relevant 
information in determining the 
suitability of site options for 
allocation. 

476



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 284 March 2019 

Site ref. Respondent Comment on SA NBC response per Councils Feb 2018 
consultation report 

LUC additional response on 
implications for the SA 

LAA0629 Clowes 
Developments, CC 
Town Planning 

Site presents a suitable, immediately 
available and achievable residential 
development opportunity capable of 
accommodating several dwellings of all sizes, 
types and tenures. Site sits against a 
backdrop of sites of land interests on land at 
the former British Timken site, Banis Lane. 
Elements of the wider site have been 
developed for residential. Site can deliver 
dwellings within 5 years. When the 
Sustainability Appraisal is revisited, the site 
should be assessed against the criteria for a 
residential site. 

These comments will be taken into 
consideration at the next stage of plan 
making and the assessment process to 
determine the suitability of a site for 
allocation. 

 

Subsequent to the 2017 SA of 
Site Options report, this site 
was assessed for potential 
residential use (see site ref. 
LAA0629r) in addition to 
potential commercial use (site 
ref. LAA0629r).  

LAA0804 Travis Perkins and 
Montagu Evans 

The Milton Ham North site forms a part of 
the Teal Close site (LM0804) that was 
considered but rejected for residential 
development. TP considers that the Milton 
Ham North site should be allocated for 
housing development in the forthcoming 
Local Plan Part 2. The land is owned by 
Travis Perkins who would be a willing 
seller for residential development (subject 
to securing an implementable planning 
permission for the commercial use of 
Milton Ham), therefore site is considered 
available and viable for residential 
development. It is noted that site 
LAA1025 (land to the west of Towcester 
Road) is a preferred option site in terms of 
the Sustainability Appraisal. It is 
considered that Milton Ham North would 
score at least as well as land to the west 
of Towcester Road when scoring is applied 
to it in a comparable way. 

Noted. The comments and supporting 
information submitted by the respondent 
will be used to inform the assessment 
process to determine the suitability of a 
site for allocation. 

 

Part of the site was forwarded 
for consideration as part of 
the September 2017 
consultation exercise and was 
subsequently assessed as 
additional site option 
LAA1140. 

LAA1006 DLP Planning for 
Lagan Homes  

The Sustainability Appraisal assesses a 
number of sites. The findings are 
summarised in Table 3.1. It does not 
however assess LAA1006 Pineham. It is a 
sustainable location well connected to 
public transport. The site also links to a 
new neighbourhood (N/2007/1570) of 650 

The site was omitted from the initial SA of 
site options in error. However, along with 
all other sites it will be subject to SA as 
part of the next stage of plan making. 

Information on this site option 
was received subsequent to 
the 2017 SA of Site Options 
report; it was subsequently 
assessed and the information, 
which is also included in this 
SA Report, was provided to 

477



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 285 March 2019 

Site ref. Respondent Comment on SA NBC response per Councils Feb 2018 
consultation report 

LUC additional response on 
implications for the SA 

units which is well underway to the south. NBC to inform the site 
selection process. 

LAA1009 David Lock 
Associates for Bovis 
Homes 

Bovis Homes welcomes the inclusion of this 
site among those sites assessed as being 
suitable for further consideration as 
potential allocations. 

Development of the site would be a logical 
extension to the Northampton South SUE 
allocated in the JCS and which benefits 
from an outline planning permission. 
Taking account of the westerly extension to 
Collingtree Park Golf Course forming part 
of the outline planning permission and land 
required for surface water attenuation in 
association with any development within 
site LAA1009, its capacity is around 100 
homes rather than the 264 dwellings 
specified in the consultation document. 

Consider that this amount of development 
can be accommodated safely on the area's 
highway network, taking into account 
planned improvements, and the site can be 
accessed via the planned new junction on 
Rowtree Road committed through the outline 
permission for the SUE and thence via routes 
within the approved SUE. Development would 
also increase the catchment population for 
facilities in the planned local centre within 
the SUE, increasing the prospect of their 
delivery and retention. 

The site's development within years 6-10 of 
the Plan period is realistic, by which time the 
planned access via Rowtree Road would have 
been delivered. Control of the site by Bovis 
underlines the conclusion that the site is 
developable within this period. Although the 
area bordered by the railway line and the M1 
motorway to the south of site LAA1009 is not 
under the control of Bovis, any allocation or 
development of that southerly land would not 

Noted. The information submitted by the 
respondent will be used to investigate further 
the suitability of this site for allocation. 

 

The assessment carried out by 
the SA is judged appropriate 
to the content and level of 
detail of a Local Plan and was 
taken into account by NBC 
alongside other relevant 
information in determining the 
suitability of site options for 
allocation. 

478



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 286 March 2019 

Site ref. Respondent Comment on SA NBC response per Councils Feb 2018 
consultation report 

LUC additional response on 
implications for the SA 

be prejudiced by the development of either 
site LAA1009 or the Outline-permitted SUE. 

The site's containment to the west by the 
Northampton Loop railway line adds to its 
suitability for allocation in the Plan, while the 
impact of noise from trains on that line can 
be assessed appropriately at the planning 
application stage and any necessary 
mitigation put forward at that time. To the 
north, the site's bordering and overlooking 
of the planned extension to the golf course 
presents the opportunity for a high quality 
development, enhancing its viability and 
therefore the prospect of its timely delivery. 

Development within site LAA1009 would 
benefit from services and facilities delivered 
in association with the adjacent Northampton 
South SUE (see our response to Q4 above). 
As such, the performance of the site's 
development in the Sustainability Appraisal 
would be enhanced still further, including 
with particular reference to objectives SA2a 
and SA2b within the Appraisal. 

LAA1009 Kathleen Rivett, 
North Northants 
Badger Group 

It is noted that the sites have not been 
surveyed for the presence of badgers nor 
other protected species as part of the site 
assessment process. The presence of 
protected species on such sites can 
considerably hinder deliverability as 
mitigation measures are not always 
feasible or difficult to achieve. This is 
especially the case with badgers where 
large areas of foraging land must be 
retained or access corridors to such 
foraging land. All relevant constraints 
should be identified as part of the plan 
process particularly with regard to 
protected species. 

Noted. As part of the next stage of plan 
making and the assessment process to 
determine the suitability of a site for 
allocation there will be a need to 
undertake further technical work, 
including in respect of heritage and 
archaeology, and the comments made by 
the respondent, along with those made 
by others, will be used to inform this 
process. 

 

The 2017 SA of Site Options 
did not take into account the 
protected species likely to be 
present at each site since this 
evidence was not available on 
a consistent basis for all site 
options.  Instead, the SA 
considered the presence of 
designated wildlife sites, 
which provided the best 
available information and is 
appropriate to the content and 
level of detail of a Local Plan. 

LAA1096 Althorp Estate The appropriate residential site area is 
smaller than shown on the consultation 

Comments noted. The site will be 
assessed on the basis of the revised 

SA9a: Proximity of designated 

479



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 287 March 2019 

Site ref. Respondent Comment on SA NBC response per Councils Feb 2018 
consultation report 

LUC additional response on 
implications for the SA 

site plan and consequently the numbers of 
units or the site yield might be 
significantly less; there might be scope for 
a type of mixed flatted development on a 
smaller site area which might improve the 
housing yield. Consider part of the site to 
be brownfield (former tennis courts and 
clubhouse), site is wholly within Flood 
Zone 1 and while agree potentially nature 
conservation issues have been updating 
and reviewing ecological work to inform 
developable area. 

Make number of points of clarification in 
respect of the SA assessment of the site. 
In particular concern regarding comment 
that two thirds of the site (the north-east 
part) is located within the LWS is incorrect 
and needs to be reviewed. Think referring 
to wider locality including the lake and 
adjacent woodland not the actual 
representation site and potential 
residential site. Concerned about negative 
comment made when information on this 
aspect is with the Borough Council not any 
other body. 

information regarding the site submitted 
by the respondent. 

It should be noted, however, that Local 
Wildlife Site boundaries are determined 
and provided to the Borough Council by 
the Wildlife Trust and the SA has been 
produced independently to ensure 
impartiality. Proximity to designated sites 
provides an initial indication of the 
potential for an adverse effect. The SA 
recognises this by applying a 250m buffer 
around locally designated sites. LAA1096 
falls within the buffer zone indicating a 
minor negative effect, illustrated in SA 
Fig. 3.10 'Proximity to designated 
ecological sites'. It is recognised that 
appropriate mitigation may avoid adverse 
effects or result in beneficial effects. 

sites 

According to the Local Wildlife 
Site boundaries determined 
and provided to the Borough 
Council by the Wildlife Trust, 
the northern two thirds of the 
site are within the LWS 
boundary, with the remainder 
within a 250m buffer of it.  
Even if the whole site was 
only within the 250m buffer, 
the minor negative effect vs. 
SA criterion 9a would be 
unchanged. 

SA10a: Presence of 
Brownfield land, derelict 
buildings and open space and 
SA15a: Prioritising use of 
brownfield land 

Presence/absence of 
brownfield land identified by 
reference to Council’s LAA 
plus mapping and aerial 
imagery. These sources did 
not reveal brownfield part but 
assuming this is accurate, 
then the SA scores would be 
amended to ‘++/-’ for SA10a 
and ‘+’ for SA15a. 

SA14a: Flood risk from rivers 

Environment Agency flood risk 
data indicates that the 
northern part of the site is 
within Flood Zone 3. 

LAA1098 Rosamund Worrall, 
Historic England 

The LAA 2017 indicates 'no existing 
designations' for the site in its 'built 
environment' section. However, it is noted 
that the SA offers more information on the 
site in respect of the historic environment. 
The proposed inverted L-shape part of the 

Noted. As part of the next stage of plan 
making and the assessment process to 
determine the suitability of a site for 
allocation there will be a need to 
undertake further technical work, 
including in respect of heritage and 

The assessment carried out by 
the SA is judged appropriate 
to the content and level of 
detail of a Local Plan and was 
taken into account by NBC 
alongside other relevant 

480



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 288 March 2019 

Site ref. Respondent Comment on SA NBC response per Councils Feb 2018 
consultation report 

LUC additional response on 
implications for the SA 

preferred allocation will cause substantial 
harm to the historic environment which 
cannot be mitigated against and we would 
reiterate concerns raised in respect of 
planning applications N/2014/0068 and 
N/2016/0412. Archaeological work 
indicated high potential for the 
preservation of archaeological remains. In 
addition the coalescence of settlements 
would cause harm to the Conservation 
Area and Listed Buildings. As such this 
brings into question the potential for the 
delivery of No.840 dwellings on the overall 
collection of sites included in LAA1098. 

Site raises an 'uncertainty outcome' in the 
Sustainability Appraisal. We suggest 
further work is required prior to the next 
iteration of the Sites document in order to 
provide clarity about any potential impact 
on the historic environment. 

archaeology, and the comments made by 
the respondent, along with those made by 
others, will be used to inform this 
process. This will also inform the next 
iteration of the SA. 

 

information in determining the 
suitability of site options for 
allocation. 

 

481



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 289 March 2019 

Appendix 4  
NBC reasons for allocating site options

482



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 290 March 2019 

Site 
Reference 

Address Proposed Use NBC Conclusion NBC reason for allocating / not allocating 

LAA0153 Lex Autocare & Kwikfit Residential Do not allocate No evidence of availability or operation ceasing 

LAA0167 Tanner Street Commercial Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation/ in Enterprise Zone 

LAA0168 Rowtree Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation  

LAA0169 Railway Line Commercial/ 
Residential 

Do not allocate Constraints include flooding, local designation, access and availability 

LAA0171 Quinton Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation 

LAA0174 Ransome Road Gateway Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation 

LAA0176 Sixfields (EP) Commercial Do not allocate Part of allocated site LAA0870 

LAA0177 Sixfields (PCT) Commercial Do not allocate Part of allocated site LAA0870 

LAA0180 St James Road (former bus depot) Commercial Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation 

LAA0181 Ransome Road/ Nunn Mills Road Residential Do not allocate Following Call for Sites, the area being investigated for development 
has widened.  A new allocated site, LAA1139, was created to merge 
all the sites in this ownership 

LAA0195 Hunsbury School, Hunsbury Hill Residential Allocate No constraints identified.  Outline permission granted 

LAA0204 The Farm, The Green Residential Allocate Site not available  

LAA0205 Parklands Middle School, Devon Way Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation 

LAA0208 Swan Valley Gateway Commercial Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation, and heritage will be a key 
consideration in future proposal.  Part of the site is being considered 
for a live planning application 

LAA0278 National Tyre/ Oddbins, Abington, St Peter's 
Way 

Commercial Do not allocate Part of allocated site LAA0167 

LAA0288 Railway Station car park Commercial/ 
Residential 

Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation.  Site is available for 
development 

LAA0326 Orchard Hill Commercial/ 
Residential 

Do not allocate The original site area included areas which have already been 
developed for housing, and buildings that were still in operation and 
are listed.  The original site area was therefore reduced and having 
assessed the potential of the residual land, and its potential impact 
on heritage, it was considered unsuitable for development. 

LAA0327 Martins Farm Residential Do not allocate Site adjoins Great Houghton Village.  Issues associated with heritage, 
transport and coalescence.  Site not considered suitable for 
development 

483



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 291 March 2019 

Site 
Reference 

Address Proposed Use NBC Conclusion NBC reason for allocating / not allocating 

LAA0328 Cattle Market Road Residential Do not allocate Site has various operations and there are no indications of these 
ceasing.  No evidence of availability.  Site already safeguarded for 
employment use 

LAA0333 Castle Station Railfreight Residential/ 
Commercial 

Allocate Site will become available for development during the lifetime of the 
Local Plan.  Site considered suitable for development, taking into 
account its sustainable location by a public transport node 

LAA0335 Great Russell Street / Chronicle & Echo 
North 

Residential/ 
Commercial 

Allocate Part of site has planning permission for residential 

LAA0336 Chronicle & Echo South Residential/ 
Commercial 

Do not allocate Site now developed 

LAA0338 Countess Road Residential Allocate Part of the site has planning permission for housing and some of the 
remaining units are vacant 

LAA0403 Allotments, Studland Road Residential Allocate Site no longer in full use for allotments 

LAA0496 57 Artizan Road Residential Allocate Site has planning approval for housing 

LAA0508 Fishponds Road Residential Allocate Only part of the site is considered suitable for development.  The 
residual land can be used for enhancements to open space or green 
infrastructure 

LAA0579 Bedford Road South Residential Do not allocate Issues associated with its location adjoining Great Houghton village, 
issues with coalescence and no evidence of the site being available 

LAA0590 Nationwide Building Society (adjacent car 
park) 

Commercial Allocate No constraints on the site 

LAA0593 North of Bedford Road Commercial Do not allocate Not considered suitable for development due to its allocation close to 
commercial areas and the SPA.  Residential areas are considered to 
be more likely to cause disturbance to the bird colony 

LAA0594 Sixfields East Commercial/ 
Residential 

Allocate Outline application for housing in progress 

LAA0598 Car park, Victoria Street Commercial Allocate No constraints on the site 

LAA0615 Crow Lane North Commercial Do not allocate Majority of site in Flood Zone 3b and the remainder in FZ3 

LAA0629 British Timken Site Commercial/ 
Residential 

Allocate No evidence of deliverability for commercial.  Planning application in 
progress for housing 

LAA0657 Fraser Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation 

LAA0659 Great Meadow Road Residential Do not allocate Part of the Blackthorn Neighbourhood Plan allocation 

484



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 292 March 2019 

Site 
Reference 

Address Proposed Use NBC Conclusion NBC reason for allocating / not allocating 

LAA0665 190-199 St Andrews Road Commercial Do not allocate No evidence of availability 

LAA0665 190-199 St Andrews Road Residential Do not allocate No evidence of availability 

LAA0672 Tunnel Hill Cottages, Rothersthorpe Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation 

LAA0673 Delapre Middle School Residential Do not allocate No evidence of availability 

LAA0674 Depot Cotton End Residential Do not allocate No evidence of availability 

LAA0675 GTMR Depot Cotton End East Residential Do not allocate No evidence of availability 

LAA0685 Adj 12 Pennycress Place Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation 

LAA0689 Nene Enterprise Centre, Freehold Street Residential Do not allocate No evidence of availability 

LAA0719 Car garages workshops, 409 Harlestone 
Road 

Residential Allocate Vacancies on site 

LAA0720 Ryland Soans Ford garage, Harlestone Road Residential Allocate Vacancies on site 

LAA0740 Exeter Place/ Kettering Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of mitigation 

LAA0744 The Ridings Arcade, 61-63 St Giles Street 
(upper floors) 

Commercial/ 
Residential 

Do not allocate Vacancies on site and marketed.  Site on upper floors suitable for 
conversion as part of windfall application 

LAA0749 Compton House, 83-85 Abington Street Residential Do not allocate This site is under construction 

LAA0767 46 Spencer Street Residential Do not allocate The site is under construction 

LAA0771 Jewsons and Continental Coachworks, 
Gladstone Road 

Residential Do not allocate This site is now operational for business use.  Not considered 
available 

LAA0814 32 Great Russell Street Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA0818 St Peter's Way Commercial Allocate In Enterprise Zone, suitable for commercial 

LAA0827  Bus Depot Cotton End Residential Do not allocate No evidence of availability 

LAA0831 Perrett Scrap Cotton End Residential Do not allocate No evidence of availability 

LAA0870 Sixfields, Upton Way Commercial Allocate In Enterprise Zone, suitable for commercial.  No constraints 
incapable of being mitigated 

LAA0903 Hawkins Shoe Factory, Overstone Road Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA0910 379 Harlestone Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA0915 118-122 Wellingborough Road Commercial/ 
Residential 

Allocate Planning approval for residential 

485



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 293 March 2019 

Site 
Reference 

Address Proposed Use NBC Conclusion NBC reason for allocating / not allocating 

LAA0931 Sites in Green Street Commercial Allocate In Enterprise Zone, suitable for commercial 

LAA1001 Former Emmanuel Middle School Residential Allocate Planning approval for residential 

LAA1005 Land north of Martins Yard, Spencer Bridge 
Road 

Commercial Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated on the 1.4 ha site the 
extension to the operations is being proposed.  The residual area will 
be used for ecological enhancement 

LAA1006 Pineham Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1007 Land south of Wooldale Road, east of 
Wootton Road 

Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated.  Developable area 
reduced 

LAA1009 Land west of Policy N5 Northampton South 
Sustainable Urban Extension 

Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1010 Land at St Peter's Way/ Court Road/ 
Freeschool Street 

Commercial/ 
Residential 

Allocate Heritage needs to form a significant part of any proposals being 
considered for the site.  Sites could be available for development  

LAA1013 University of Northampton, Park Campus Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1014 University of Northampton Avenue Campus Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1022 Belgrave House Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1023 East Island Residential Do not allocate Part of allocated site LAA1113 

LAA1024 Great Houghton Independent School Residential Do not allocate Heritage constraints with significant adverse impacts identified 

LAA1025 Land to the west of Towcester Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1026 Eastern Land parcel Residential Allocate Suitable for extension to existing residential area 

LAA1027 Harlestone Road Residential Do not allocate Site safeguarded for burial provision 

LAA1033 Toms Close Residential Do not allocate Existing housing site 

LAA1034 Witham Way garage site Residential Allocate Site has planning approval for housing 

LAA1035 West Oval garage site Residential Allocate Site has planning approval for housing 

LAA1036 Derwent Drive garage site Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1037 Swale Drive garage site and rear/ unused 
land 

Residential Allocate Site has planning approval for housing 

LAA1041 Newnham Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1048 Stenson Street Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

486



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 294 March 2019 

Site 
Reference 

Address Proposed Use NBC Conclusion NBC reason for allocating / not allocating 

LAA1049 Land off Arbour Court Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated, provided the woodland 
designated area is excluded 

LAA1050 Queen's Crescent Residential Do not allocate Loss of open space assessed to be detrimental 

LAA1051a Waterpump Court and Billing Brook Road  Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1051b Land between Waterpump Court and Billing 
Brook Road 

Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1052 Coverack Close, rear of garages Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1054 Land adj to Treetops in Goldings Residential Do not allocate Site in use as play area. Loss assessed to be detrimental 

LAA1055 Land on the corner of Norman Road/ 
Wellingborough Road 

Residential Do not allocate Site designated as woodland 

LAA1058 Land off Oat Hill Drive Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1059b Land off Birds Hill Road Residential Do not allocate Loss of open space assessed to be detrimental 

LAA1059c Land off Birds Hill Road Residential Do not allocate Loss of open space assessed to be detrimental 

LAA1060 Hayeswood Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1063 Land adj Flats in Newnham Road Residential Allocate Loss of open space assessed to be detrimental 

LAA1064 Land off Eastern Avenue North Residential Do not allocate Loss of open space assessed to be detrimental 

LAA1068 The Briars garage site Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1069 Farmclose Road garage site Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1071 Medway Drive (rear of Medway Close) Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1075 North Oval Residential Do not allocate Loss of open space assessed to be detrimental 

LAA1078 Land at Chapel Place Residential Do not allocate Heritage and access constraints 

LAA1079 Ryehill Estate (within Tresham Green play 
area) 

Residential Do not allocate Flood risk  

LAA1080 Duston (north of Hopping Hill School) Residential Do not allocate Loss of open space assessed to be detrimental 

LAA1086a Cosgrove Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1086b Chalcombe Avenue Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1094 Land off Holmecross Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1096 Land off Mill Lane Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

487



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 295 March 2019 

Site 
Reference 

Address Proposed Use NBC Conclusion NBC reason for allocating / not allocating 

LAA1097 Gate Lodge Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1098 The Green, Great Houghton Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated.  Northern section will be 
used as buffer to Great Houghton Village 

LAA1099 Upton Park (Upton Reserve Site) Residential Allocate Flood mitigation and improvements to car park required 

LAA1100 Hill Farm Rise Residential Allocate Developable area excludes the woodland areas and the Local Nature 
Reserve 

LAA1101 Land at Waterside Way Commercial Allocate SPA constraints, mitigation required 

LAA1102 Site east of Towcester Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1104 Watering Lane Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1107 Former Abington Mill Farm, land off 
Rushmere Road  

Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1108 Horsley Road Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1109 Mill Lane Residential Allocate Outline planning permission 

LAA1112 Milton Ham Commercial Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1113 Greyfriars Commercial/ 
Residential 

Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1114 Cedarwood Nursing Home, 492 Kettering 
Road 

Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1116 194-200 Kingsthorpe Grove Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1117 133 Queens Park Terrace Residential Allocate Planning approval  

LAA1118 135 Harlestone Road Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1119 Silver Coronet, Welland Way Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1121 Upton Valley Way East Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1123 83 - 103 Trinity Avenue Residential Allocate Planning application 

LAA1124 41-43 Derngate Residential Allocate Planning approval  

LAA1126 5 Primrose Hill Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1127 32 Connaught Street Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1131 The Leys Close, 39 Mill Lane Residential Allocate Planning approval 

488



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 296 March 2019 

Site 
Reference 

Address Proposed Use NBC Conclusion NBC reason for allocating / not allocating 

LAA1133 Eastern District Social Club, Crestwood 
Road 

Residential Allocate Planning approval 

LAA1134 St John's Railway Embankment Commercial/ 
Residential 

Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated  

LAA1137 Land at Wootton Fields Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1138 Land south of Bedford Road/ north of sports 
ground 

Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated 

LAA1139 Ransome Road  Residential Allocate No constraints incapable of being mitigated.  Area to the west is a 
Registered Battlefield and will not be developed 

LAA1140 Land north of Milton Ham Residential Allocate No constraint incapable of being mitigated 

489



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 297 March 2019 

Appendix 5  
Site assessment criteria

490



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 298 March 2019 

Assessment criteria for residential sites 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

Res1a: Housing provision 
 
All of the potential residential sites 
are expected to have positive 
effects on this objective, due to the 
nature of the proposed 
development.  It is assumed that all 
housing sites with capacity for more 
than 15 dwellings will make 
provision for affordable housing 
(either on site or by way of financial 
contribution).  Larger sites (100+ 
dwelling capacity) will provide 
opportunities for developing greater 
numbers of both new market and 
affordable homes, and therefore 
are assumed to have a significant 
positive effect.  
 

Large sites 
(100+ dwelling 

capacity) 

Smaller sites 
(1-99 dwelling 

capacity)  

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A   

Res2a: Walking distance to 
sustainable transport links 
Within… 
- 500m of bus stops with services 
at least every 15 mins during 
weekday peak travel times 
- 2,000m of a railway station 
- 500m of a cycle route 
 
The proximity of residential sites to 
public transport links will affect the 
extent to which residents are able 
to make use of non-car based 
modes of transport to access 
services, facilities and job 
opportunities.  It is possible that 
new transport links such as bus 
routes or cycle paths may be 
provided as part of larger-scale 
housing developments but this 
cannot be assumed. 

In proximity to 
all three types 
of sustainable 
transport link 

In proximity to 
two types of 
sustainable 

transport link 

N/A N/A N/A In proximity 
to only one 

type of 
sustainable 
transport 

link 

N/A Not in 
proximity to 
any types of 
sustainable 
transport 

link 

Bus service frequency 
(available from County 
Council bus routes map) 
 
Presence of physical 
barriers between site 
option and service centre/ 
employment area 

491



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 299 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

Res2b: Walking distance to 
services and facilities 
 
The location of housing sites will 
not directly affect the number or 
range of services in a particular 
location (although a large scale 
housing development could 
potentially stimulate the provision 
of new services).  However, the 
location of housing sites could 
affect this objective by influencing 
people’s ability to access existing 
services and facilities, particularly 
by walking.  
 

Within 800m of 
the town 
centre 

or 
within 800m of 
a local centre, 
and 2,000m of 

an 
employment 

area  

Within 800m of 
a local centre 

or 
within 2,000m 

of an 
employment 

area  

N/A N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A More than 
800m from 
the town 
centre 
and 

more than 
800m from a 
local centre 

and 
more than 

2,000m from 
an 

employment 
area  

Presence of physical 
barriers between site 
option and service centre/ 
employment area 
 

Res3a: Walking distance to 
schools 
 
The proximity to residential sites to 
schools and public transport links to 
schools will affect the extent to 
which residents are able to make 
use of non-car based modes of 
transport to access educational 
services.  It is possible that new 
transport links such as bus routes 
or cycle paths may be provided as 
part of larger-scale housing 
developments but this cannot be 
assumed.  
 

Within 1,000m 
of a secondary 

school 
and 

500m of a 
primary school  

Within 500m of 
a primary 

school 
and 

more than 
1,000m from a 

secondary 
school 

N/A N/A N/A More than 
500m from 
a primary 

school 
and 

within 
2,000m of a 
secondary 

school 

N/A More than 
500m from a 

primary 
school 
and 

more than 
2,000m from 
a secondary 

school  

Presence of physical 
barriers between site 
option and school 
 

Res4a: Walking distance to 
healthcare facilities  
 
Housing sites that are within 
walking distance (800m) of GP 
surgeries or hospitals will ensure 
that residents have good access to 
healthcare facilities.   
 

N/A Within 800m of 
a healthcare 

facility  

N/A N/A N/A More than 
800m from 
a healthcare 

facility 

N/A N/A Presence of physical 
barriers between site 
option and healthcare 
facility 

Res4b: Walking distance to 
open space and sports facilities 

Within 800m of 
an area of 

Within 800m of 
an area of 

N/A N/A N/A More than 
800m from 

N/A N/A Presence of physical 
barriers between site 

492



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 300 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

 
Housing sites that are within 
walking distance (800m) of open 
spaces and sport facilities will offer 
opportunities for residents to take 
part in physical activity and 
encourage healthy lifestyles. 
 

open space  
and 

within 800m of 
a sports facility  

open space  
or 

within 800m of 
a sports facility  

any area of 
open space 
or sports 
facility  

option and open space or 
sports facility 

Res4c: Exposure to low air 
quality or noise 
 
If a housing site is wholly or partly 
within an Air Quality Management 
Area (AQMA) there could be an 
impact on health, particularly if 
vehicle movements associated with 
the new development (including 
potentially HGVs) compound 
existing air quality problems.  New 
residential development within 
close proximity of existing major 
roads or railways or industrial areas 
may result in noise pollution 
affecting the new residents in the 
longer term. 
 

N/A N/A Not within an 
AQMA or 

within 50m 
of  an A-

road, 
motorway, 

railway line, 
or industrial 

area 

N/A N/A Partly within 
an AQMA 

or 
within 50m 
from an A-

road, 
motorway, 

railway line, 
or industrial 

area  

N/A Wholly 
within an 

AQMA 
and 

within 50m 
from an A-

road, 
motorway, 
railway line, 
or industrial 

area  

Presence of industrial 
areas within 50m of site, 
based on base map and 
aerial imagery 
 

Res5a: Reduce crime 
 
The effects of new developments on 
levels of crime and fear of crime 
will depend on factors such as the 
incorporation of green space within 
developments which, depending on 
design and the use of appropriate 
lighting, could have an effect on 
perceptions of personal safety, 
particularly at night.  However, 
such issues will not typically be 
influenced by the location of 
development sites (rather they will 
be determined through the detailed 
proposals for each site).  Therefore, 
the effects of the potential sites on 

N/A N/A All housing 
sites 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A   

493



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 301 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

this SA objective will be assumed to 
be negligible (0). 
 
Res6a: Growth of economy and 
availability of jobs 
 
While provision of new housing 
within Northampton should have 
positive effects on the economy by 
supporting temporary growth in the 
construction sector and by bringing 
a pool of labour into proximity with 
local businesses the particular 
location of individual site allocations 
within the Borough is assumed not 
to significantly alter this effect 
therefore the effects of the 
potential sites on this SA objective 
will be assumed to be negligible 
(0). 
 

N/A N/A All housing 
sites 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A   

Res7a: Location of sites relative 
to town centre 
 
For the purposes of this SA 
objective, the town centre will be 
assumed to be the town centre 
area defined in the Northampton 
Central Area Action Plan.   
 
It is unlikely that sites outside the 
Northampton Central Area (as 
defined in the Northampton Central 
Area Action Plan) will have an effect 
on the town centre and all sites 
outside the town centre will initially 
be assumed to have a negligible 
effect (0).  Further qualitative 
assessment will be made for larger 
sites as set out in the final column 
of this table. 
 
All sites within the town centre will 

N/A N/A Housing sites 
outside of 

Northampton 
town centre  

Housing 
sites within 

Northampton 
town centre 

N/A N/A N/A N/A Qualitative assessment of 
the effects of development 
of site options within the 
town centre will be 
undertaken with reference 
to each of the SA objective 
7 sub-questions (see 
Table 3.2), taking into 
account the type of 
development option and 
its locational context 
within the town centre (as 
defined in the 
Northampton Central Area 
Action Plan).   

494



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 302 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

initially be assessed as having 
uncertain (?) effects as assessment 
of locational context requires 
qualitative assessment which will 
not be carried out for smaller sites.  
Further qualitative assessment will 
be made for larger sites as set out 
in the final column of this table. 
 
Res8a: Walking distance to 
sustainable transport links 
Within… 
- 500m of bus stops with services 
at least every 15 mins during 
weekday peak travel times  
- 2,000m of a railway station 
- 500m of a cycle route 
 
[same as Res2a] 

In proximity to 
all three types 
of sustainable 
transport link 

In proximity to 
two types of 
sustainable 

transport link 

N/A N/A N/A In proximity 
to only one 

type of 
sustainable 
transport 

link 

N/A Not in 
proximity to 
any types of 
sustainable 
transport 

link 

Bus service frequency 
(available from County 
Council bus routes map) 
 
Presence of physical 
barriers between site 
option and service centre/ 
employment area 

Res8b: Walking distance to 
services and facilities 
 
[same as Res2b] 

Within 800m of 
the town 
centre 

or 
within 800m of 
a local centre, 
and 2,000m of 

an 
employment 

area  

Within 800m of 
a local centre 

or 
within 2,000m 

of an 
employment 

area  

N/A N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A More than 
800m from 
the town 
centre 
and 

more than 
800m from a 
local centre 

and 
more than 

2,000m from 
an 

employment 
area  

Presence of physical 
barriers between site 
option and service centre/ 
employment area 

Res9a: Proximity to designated 
sites 
 
Site options that are close to an 
international, national or locally 
designated conservation site have 
the potential to affect the 
biodiversity or geodiversity of those 
sites, e.g. through habitat 
damage/loss, fragmentation, 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Within 
250m of a 

locally 
designated 
biodiversity 

site 

N/A Within 3km 
of the Upper 
Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits 
SPA and 

Ramsar site 
(also a 
SSSI) 

or 
contains 

The GIS-based assessment 
scores may need to be 
adjusted to take into 
account relevant 
qualitative factors where 
these are known, for 
example: 
- the relationship of the 
development site option 
and the designated site 

495



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 303 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

disturbance to species, air 
pollution, increased recreation 
pressure etc.   Recreational 
disturbance can have a significant 
effect on Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits SPA where developments are 
located up to 3km from the 
designated site.  Proximity to 
designated sites therefore provides 
an initial indication of the potential 
for an adverse effect.  However, as 
a built up area, Northampton 
already includes urban 
development close to nature 
conservation sites. Appropriate 
mitigation may avoid adverse 
effects or result in beneficial 
effects. 

optimal 
supporting 
habitat for 

that 
designation 

or 
overlaps a 

locally 
designated 
biodiversity 

or 
geodiversity 

site 

(including by reference to 
the Upper Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits consultation 
zones set out in the SPD 
for this site); 
- the allocated use; 
- the current use, including 
whether site is brownfield 
and has any known 
biodiversity interest; 
- existing barriers between 
the development site and 
the designated site (e.g. 
existing built 
development); 
- the potential for human 
disturbance and trampling 
(e.g. from recreation and 
dog walking, or from noise 
or light) and any existing 
measures in place to 
manage these. 

Res10a: Presence of brownfield 
land, derelict buildings, and 
open space 
 
As a primarily urban area, with no 
national landscape designations, 
the effects may often be uncertain 
because they will depend upon the 
design of the new development.  
For the purposes of this SA 
objective, it is assumed that all new 
development will be of a high 
design standard.   
 

Redevelopment 
of derelict 

and/or disused 
brownfield site 

Redevelopment 
of a brownfield 
site currently 

in use 

N/A N/A N/A  Loss of 
greenfield 
land that is 

not 
designated 

as open 
space 

N/A Loss of all or 
part of a 

designated 
open space 

Where a brownfield site is 
redeveloped, a qualitative 
assessment will be made 
of whether the GIS-based 
score needs to be adjusted 
to take into account the 
existing character of the 
site, e.g. whether current 
uses are detracting from 
the landscape and 
townscape.  
 

Res11a: Qualitative assessment 
of potential impact on heritage 
significance  
 
Carried out by NBC officers by 
reference to Historic England 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Qualitative assessment of 
potential impact on 
heritage significance 
carried out by NBC officers 
by reference to Historic 

496



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 304 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

guidance. 
 

England guidance 

Res12a: Contribution to road 
traffic increases within AQMAs 
 
All sites will initially be assumed to 
give rise to a minor negative but 
this will be uncertain (-?) as 
assessment of likely road routes for 
traffic generated by development 
requires qualitative assessment 
which will be not carried out for 
smaller sites.  Larger sites will be 
subject to qualitative assessment 
as described in last column of table. 
 

N/A N/A N/A N/A Initial score 
for all sites, 

based on GIS 
only 

N/A N/A N/A While all site options could 
generate traffic, and hence 
air pollution, the main 
issue in Northampton is 
the air quality of the seven 
AQMAs.  Professional 
judgment and 2011 
Census data on 
commuting patterns were 
used to assess the 
likelihood of larger sites 
generating traffic that 
would use road routes 
through an AQMA.  Larger 
sites judged likely to 
generate traffic that uses 
an AQMA route as its 
primary access into or out 
of Northampton were 
assessed as having a 
significant negative effect 
but with uncertainty about 
actual routes that will be 
used (--?). 

Res13a: Location within a 
Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or 
on contaminated land 
 
The location of housing and 
employment sites could affect 
water quality, depending on 
whether they are in an area where 
there is capacity at the local 
sewage treatment works to treat 
additional wastewater generated by 
the overall scale of development 
proposed.  However, the overall 
quantum of development was 
determined through the adopted 
JCS and consideration was given to 
the capacity of sewage treatment 

N/A N/A Allocation 
not within a 
SPZ or area 

of 
contaminated 

land 

N/A Allocation 
within a SPZ 
or area of 

contaminated 
land 

N/A N/A N/A   

497



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 305 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

works serving Northampton at that 
time.  The Local Plan Part 2 will 
only determine the specific location 
of that development within the Plan 
area.   
 
There is one Source Protection 
Zones (SPZ) (Inner Zone 1) within 
Northampton Borough and a 
numbers of areas of contaminated 
land.  Therefore, where a site 
option is located within the SPZ or 
an area of contaminated land, there 
may be a minor negative effect on 
groundwater quality although this is 
uncertain, depending on the nature 
of development, protective 
measures taken during construction 
and operation, and the nature of 
any land contamination.   
 
Res14a: Flood risk from rivers 
 
Residential or employment 
development on greenfield land 
would increase the area of 
impermeable surfaces and could 
therefore increase overall flood risk, 
particularly where the sites are 
within high risk flood zones.  While 
new development in any location 
may offer good opportunities to 
incorporate SuDS, and therefore 
have a positive effect on reducing 
flood risk, this would depend on the 
design of the proposed 
development and not on the 
location of the site. 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance 
identifies residential properties as a 
‘more vulnerable use’, which is 
suitable in areas of flood zone 1 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Majority 
(>50%) 

within Flood 
Zone 2 

or 
smaller 

proportion 
(1-50%) 

within Flood 
Zone 3 

N/A Majority 
(>50%) 

within Flood 
Zone 3 

  

498



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 306 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

and 2 but would require an 
exception test in flood zone 3a, and 
is unsuitable in flood zone 3b. 
 
Res14b: Flood risk from 
groundwater 
 
Parts of Northampton are 
vulnerable to groundwater flooding.  
Groundwater flood risk can occur 
via permeable superficial deposits 
(PSD) (these generally occur in the 
flood plain, and can be mistaken for 
fluvial flooding), via high spring 
flows (spring lines are common in 
Northamptonshire), and via high 
bedrock groundwater levels (not a 
major issue in Northampton due to 
lack of big aquifers).  There are five 
categories of risk that take into 
account the duration of flooding: 
Very High; High; Moderate; Low; 
and Very Low. 
 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Majority 
(>50%) 
within 

'moderate' 
groundwater 

flood risk 
area 
or 

smaller 
proportion 
(1-50%) 

within 'high' 
or 'very 

high' 
groundwater 

flood risk 
area 

N/A Majority 
(>50%) 

within 'high' 
or 'very 

high' 
groundwater 

flood risk 
area 

  

Res14c: Surface water flood 
risk 
 
Surface water flooding occurs when 
intense rainfall overwhelms 
drainage systems.  Parts of 
Northampton have been subject to 
surface water flooding during 
historic flood events, including in 
November 20132 and April 1998.  
Environment Agency data 'Risk of 
Flooding from Surface Water 
(Basic)' identifies areas with a 1 in 
100 years or greater risk of surface 
water flooding. 
 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Smaller 
proportion 
(1-50%) 

within 1 in 
100 year 
surface 

water flood 
risk area 

N/A Majority 
(>50%) 

within 1 in 
100 year 
surface 

water flood 
risk area 

  

Res15a: Prioritising use of 
brownfield land 
 

Site contains 
1ha or more of 
brownfield land  

Site contains 
up to 1ha of 

brownfield land  

Site contains 
no brownfield 

land 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A No brownfield data 
available in GIS. 
Qualitatively assessed all 

499



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 307 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

Prioritising the development of 
previously developed (brownfield) 
land can help to ensure that 
greenfield land is protected from 
unnecessary development.  It 
represents a more efficient use of 
land providing that it is not of high 
environmental value (e.g. for 
biodiversity). 
 

site options >=1.0ha, 
based on LAA form (if 
recorded), or OS and 
aerial imagery  

Res15b: Avoiding loss of 
greenfield land 
 
Discussed under Res15a. 

N/A N/A Site contains 
no greenfield 

land 

N/A N/A Site 
contains up 
to 1ha of 
greenfield 

land 

N/A Site contains 
1ha or more 
of greenfield 

land 

No greenfield data 
available in GIS. Planners 
to manually assess all site 
options >=1.0ha, based 
on LAA form (if recorded), 
or OS and aerial imagery  

Res15c: Avoiding loss of high 
quality agricultural land 
 
Development of high quality 
agricultural land would result in 
that land being lost to farming and 
food production. 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Contains 1 
ha or more 
of Grade 4 

(Poor) 
agricultural 

land but 
less than 1 

ha of 
Grades 1-3 

Contains 1 
ha or more 
of Grade 3 
(Good to 

Moderate) 
agricultural 

land but less 
than 1 ha of 
Grade 1 or 
Grade 2 

Contains 1 
ha or more 
of Grade 1 
(Excellent) 
or Grade 2 

(Very Good) 
agricultural 

land 

  

Res15d: Avoiding sterilisation 
of mineral resources 
 
All new development will result in 
the increased consumption of 
minerals for construction but this 
will not be influenced by the 
location of development sites.  
However, the location of 
development sites can influence the 
efficient use of minerals by their 
proximity to Sand and Gravel 
Safeguarding Areas as defined in 
the Northamptonshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan as development in 
those areas may sterilise mineral 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A Partly within 
a Sand and 

Gravel 
Safeguarding 

Area  

N/A Wholly 
within a 

Sand and 
Gravel 

Safeguarding 
Area  
or 

any part 
within a 

‘Preventing 
Land Use 
Conflict 

Consultation 
Buffer’ 

relating to a 
mineral 

N/A   

500



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 308 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

resources and restrict the 
availability of resources in the 
districts. 

extraction 
site as 

defined in 
the Minerals 
and Waste 
Local Plan  

Res15e: Avoiding risk from land 
instability 
 
There are areas in Northampton 
that are prone to ground instability 
issues due to underlying geology 
and geomorphology.  The 
combination of the Northampton 
Sand overlying Upper Lias Clay can 
cause the formation of landslides 
particularly where slopes have 
angles greater than seven degrees. 
 
Five categories of instability have 
been identified.  Categories A and B 
include areas where slope 
instability problems are either not 
thought to occur or not likely to 
occur. Category C includes areas 
where slope instability problems 
may be present or anticipated, and 
it is recommended that site 
investigation at the planning 
application stage should consider 
specifically the slope stability of the 
site. Category D includes areas 
where slope instability problems are 
likely to be present of have 
occurred in the past.  Category E 
covers areas where slope instability 
problems are almost certainly 
present and may be active. This 
category is considered to be a 
significant constraint on land use.  
Therefore, sites in the higher 
categories could have a negative 
effect on preventing both new and 
existing development from 

N/A N/A None of site 
contains 

Category C, 
D or E 
Ground 

Instability 

N/A N/A Sites that 
include 
areas of 

Category C 
Ground 

Instability 

N/A Sites that 
include 
areas of 

Category D 
or E Ground 
Instability  

  

501



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 309 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

contributing to or being put at 
unacceptable risk from land 
instability. 
 
Res16a: Avoiding conflicts with 
waste management sites 
 
All new development will inevitably 
involve an increase in waste 
generation, but it may also offer 
good opportunities for incorporating 
sustainable waste management 
practices, regardless of the 
location.   
 
Levels of recycling will not be 
influenced by the location of site 
options, as the whole of 
Northampton is covered by 
kerbside recycling collections for 
residential properties and levels of 
recycling within employment 
developments will depend on the 
practices of the businesses that 
locate there. 
 
The Northamptonshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan (MWLP) identifies 
sites for waste management 
facilities in Northampton.  The 
allocation of sites, particularly 
residential sites, in or close to such 
sites could affect the ability of the 
waste management facilities to 
come forward.  Waste management 
facilities can give rise to noise, 
traffic, odour and light pollution 
during construction and operation.  
The effects are very dependent on 
the type of facility, its design and 
potential mitigation measures 
proposed, which would be assessed 
at the planning application stage. It 
is assumed that the facility will be 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A N/A Within 300m 
of an 

industrial 
area in 

which the 
MWLP 

considers 
waste 

management 
uses to be 
acceptable 

Within 300m 
of an active 

or 
committed 

waste 
management 

facility 

  

502



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 310 March 2019 

GIS-based assessment criteria 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
major 

negative 
- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional qualitative/ 
non-GIS factors 
considered for larger 
(>=2.5 ha) sites 

well run and that mitigation 
measures implemented should be 
sufficient to avoid any potential 
amenity effects. The Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan requires local 
planning authorities to consult the 
Minerals Planning Authority 
(Northamptonshire County Council) 
on proposals for major 
development that is considered to 
be incompatible with the affected 
waste development within 300 m.  
Residential and offices are 
considered to be of medium 
sensitivity and industrial and 
outdoor storage as low sensitivity 
uses. 
 

  

503



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 311 March 2019 

Assessment criteria for employment sites 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

Emp1a: Housing provision 
 
The locations of employment sites 
are unlikely to have a direct effect on 
this SA objective and all sites will 
therefore have a negligible (0) effect. 
 

N/A N/A All 
employment 

sites 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A   

Emp2a: Walking distance to 
sustainable transport links 
Within… 
- 500m of bus stops with services at 
least every 15 mins during weekday 
peak travel times 
- 2,000m of a railway station 
- 500m of a cycle route 
 
As Northampton is primarily a built-
up area, it is likely that employment 
locations will be relatively close to 
residential areas meaning that some 
people are likely to be within walking 
distance, although there is no 
guarantee that they will work at the 
nearest employment site.  Therefore, 
accessibility to employment sites by 
sustainable modes of transport will 
be particularly important.  Where 
employment sites are located in close 
proximity to sustainable transport 
links there are more likely to be good 
opportunities for people to commute 
to and from the site using non-car 
based modes of transport. 
 

In proximity to 
all three types 
of sustainable 
transport link 

In proximity to 
two types of 
sustainable 

transport link 

N/A N/A N/A In proximity 
to only one 

type of 
sustainable 
transport 

link 

N/A Not in 
proximity to 
any types of 
sustainable 
transport 

link 

  

Emp3a: Walking distance to 
schools 
 
The location of employment sites will 
not have a direct effect on this SA 
objective and all sites will therefore 

N/A N/A All 
employment 

sites 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A   

504



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 312 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

have a negligible (0) effect. 
Emp4a: Noise and light impacts 
on sensitive receptors 
 
Where new employment development 
is proposed in close proximity to 
existing sensitive receptors (e.g. 
houses, schools, hospitals etc.) there 
may be negative effects on amenity 
as a result of increased noise and 
light pollution depending on the 
nature of commercial activities at the 
site.  All employment sites will 
initially be assumed to give rise to a 
minor negative effect but this will be 
uncertain (-?) effect as assessment 
of sensitivity of surrounding 
receptors requires qualitative 
assessment which will be not carried 
out for smaller sites.  Larger sites will 
be subject to qualitative assessment 
as described in last column of table. 

N/A N/A N/A N/A All smaller 
employment 

sites 

N/A N/A N/A Where new employment 
development is 
proposed on larger sites 
within close proximity to 
existing sensitive 
receptors (e.g. houses, 
schools, hospitals etc.) 
there may be negative 
effects on amenity as a 
result of increased noise 
and light pollution 
depending on the nature 
of commercial activities 
at the site. 

• Employment sites that 
are not directly adjacent 
to residential 
development or other 
sensitive receptors but 
which have such 
receptors within 100m 
may have a minor 
negative (-?) effect 
although this is 
uncertain. 

• Employment sites that 
are directly to 
residential development 
or other sensitive 
receptors may have a 
significant negative (--?) 
effect although this is 
uncertain. 

• All other employment 
sites are assumed to 
have a negligible effect 

505



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 313 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 
(0).  

Emp5a: Reduce crime 
 
The effects of new developments on 
levels of crime and fear of crime will 
depend on factors such as the 
incorporation of green space within 
developments which, depending on 
design and the use of appropriate 
lighting, could have an effect on 
perceptions of personal safety, 
particularly at night.  However, such 
issues will not typically be influenced 
by the location of development sites 
(rather they will be determined 
through the detailed proposals for 
each site).  Therefore, the effects of 
the potential sites on this SA 
objective will be assumed to be 
negligible (0). 
 

N/A N/A All 
employment 

sites 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A   

Emp6a: Employment provision 
 
All of the potential employment sites 
are expected to have positive effects 
on this objective, due to the nature 
of the proposed development.  Larger 
sites will provide opportunities for 
generating larger numbers of jobs 
and the greatest economic benefits, 
and therefore are assumed to have a 
significant positive effect.   
 

Large sites (1 
ha and above)  

Smaller sites 
(below 1 ha)  

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A   

Emp7a: Location of sites relative 
to town centre 
 
For the purposes of this SA objective, 
the town centre will be assumed to 
be the town centre area defined in 
the Northampton Central Area Action 

N/A N/A Employment 
sites outside 

of 
Northampton 
town centre  

Employment 
sites within 

Northampton 
town centre 

N/A N/A N/A N/A Qualitative assessment 
of the effects of 
development of site 
options within the town 
centre will be 
undertaken with 
reference to the SA 

506



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 314 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

Plan.   
 
It is unlikely that sites outside the 
Northampton Central Area (as 
defined in the Northampton Central 
Area Action Plan) will have an effect 
on the town centre and all sites 
outside the town centre will initially 
be assumed to have a negligible 
effect (0).  Further qualitative 
assessment will be made for larger 
sites as set out in the final column of 
this table. 
 
All sites within the town centre will 
initially be assessed as having 
uncertain (?) effects as assessment 
of locational context requires 
qualitative assessment which will not 
be carried out for smaller sites.  
Further qualitative assessment will be 
made for larger sites as set out in the 
final column of this table. 
 

objective 7 sub-
questions (see Table 
3.2), taking into 
account the type of 
development option and 
its locational context 
within the town centre 
(as defined in the 
Northampton Central 
Area Action Plan).   

Emp8a: Walking distance to 
sustainable transport links 
Within… 
- 500m of bus stops with services at 
least every 15 mins during weekday 
peak travel times  
- 2,000m of a railway station 
- 500m of a cycle route 
[same as test 2(a)] 
 
While new employment development 
will inevitably lead to an increase in 
greenhouse gas emissions (both 
through emissions from buildings and 
the increased vehicle traffic 
associated with commuting and 
commercial activities), the location of 
individual employment sites will not 

In proximity to 
all three types 
of sustainable 
transport link 

In proximity to 
two types of 
sustainable 

transport link 

N/A N/A N/A In proximity 
to only one 

type of 
sustainable 
transport 

link 

N/A Not in 
proximity to 
any types of 
sustainable 
transport 

link 

  

507



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 315 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

have an effect on levels of energy 
consumption and the potential for 
renewable energy use.  These factors 
would be influenced more by the 
specific design and construction 
methods used, and whether 
renewable energy infrastructure is to 
be incorporated in the development, 
which will not be known until 
planning applications come forward.  
The likely levels of emissions from 
commercial activities cannot be 
assessed at this stage as this will 
depend largely on the nature of 
businesses that eventually locate at 
the employment sites. 
 
Therefore, the location of 
employment development will 
influence the achievement of this SA 
objective primarily through the likely 
impacts on levels of car use amongst 
employees; the same assessment 
criteria as those listed under SA 
objective 2 are therefore applicable. 
 
Emp9a: Proximity to designated 
sites 
 
Site options that are close to an 
international, national or locally 
designated conservation site have 
the potential to affect the biodiversity 
or geodiversity of those sites, e.g. 
through habitat damage/loss, 
fragmentation, disturbance to 
species, air pollution, increased 
recreation pressure etc. Proximity to 
designated sites therefore provides 
an initial indication of the potential 
for an adverse effect.  However, as a 
built up area, Northampton already 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Within 
250m of a 
designated 
biodiversity 

site 

N/A Within the 
relevant 

consultation 
zones (2km) 

for the 
Upper Nene 

Valley 
Gravel Pits 
SPA and 

Ramsar site 
(also a 
SSSI),  

or 
contains 
optimal 

supporting 

The GIS-based 
assessment may need to 
be adjusted to take into 
account relevant 
qualitative factors where 
these are known, for 
example: 
 
- the relationship of the 
development site option 
and the designated site 
(including by reference 
to the Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel Pits 
consultation zones set 
out in the SPD for this 

508



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 316 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

includes urban development close to 
nature conservation sites. 
Appropriate mitigation may avoid 
adverse effects or result in beneficial 
effects. 

habitat for 
that 

designation 
or 

overlaps a 
locally 

designated 
biodiversity 

or 
geodiversity 

site 

site); 
 
- the allocated use; 
 
- the current use, 
including whether site is 
brownfield and has any 
known biodiversity 
interest; 
 
- existing barriers 
between the 
development site and 
the designated site (e.g. 
existing built 
development); 
 
- the potential for 
disturbance  from  noise 
or light and any existing 
measures in place to 
manage these. 
 

Emp10a: Presence of brownfield 
land, derelict buildings, and open 
space 
 
As a primarily urban area, with no 
national landscape designations, the 
effects may often be uncertain 
because they will depend upon the 
design of the new development.  For 
the purposes of this SA objective, it 
is assumed that all new development 
will be of a high design standard.  
  

Redevelopment 
of derelict 

and/or disused 
brownfield site 

Redevelopment 
of a brownfield 
site currently 

in use 

N/A N/A N/A  Loss of 
greenfield 
land that is 

not 
designated 

as open 
space 

N/A Loss of all or 
part of a 

designated 
open space 

Where a brownfield site 
is redeveloped, the 
score may need to be 
adjusted to take into 
account the existing 
character of the site, 
e.g. whether current 
uses are detracting from 
the landscape and 
townscape.  

Emp11a: Qualitative assessment 
of potential impact on heritage 
significance  
 
Carried out by NBC officers by 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Qualitative assessment 
of potential impact on 
heritage significance 
carried out by NBC 
officers by reference to 

509



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 317 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

reference to Historic England 
guidance 

Historic England 
guidance 
 

Emp12a: Contribution to road 
traffic increases within AQMAs 
 
All sites will initially be assumed to 
give rise to a minor negative but this 
will be uncertain (-?) as assessment 
of likely road routes for traffic 
generated by development requires 
qualitative assessment which will be 
not carried out for smaller sites.  
Larger sites will be subject to 
qualitative assessment as described 
in last column of table. 

N/A N/A N/A N/A Initial score 
for all sites, 

based on GIS 
only 

N/A N/A N/A While all site options 
could generate traffic, 
and hence air pollution, 
the main issue in 
Northampton is the air 
quality of the seven 
AQMAs.  Professional 
judgment and 2011 
Census data on 
commuting patterns 
were used to assess the 
likelihood of larger sites 
generating traffic that 
would use road routes 
through an AQMA.  
Larger sites judged 
likely to generate traffic 
that uses an AQMA 
route as its primary 
access into or out of 
Northampton were 
assessed as having a 
significant negative 
effect but with 
uncertainty about actual 
routes that will be used 
(--?). 

Emp13a: Location within a 
Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or 
on contaminated land 
 
The location of housing and 
employment sites could affect water 
quality, depending on whether they 
are in an area where there is capacity 
at the local sewage treatment works 

N/A N/A Allocation 
not within a 
SPZ or area 

of 
contaminated 

land 

N/A Allocation 
within a SPZ 
or area of 

contaminated 
land 

N/A N/A N/A   

510



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 318 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

to treat additional wastewater 
generated by the overall scale of 
development proposed.  However, 
the overall quantum of development 
was determined through the adopted 
JCS and consideration was given to 
the capacity of sewage treatment 
works serving Northampton at that 
time.  The Local Plan Part 2 will only 
determine the specific location of that 
development within the Plan area.   
 
There is one Source Protection Zones 
(SPZ) (Inner Zone 1) within 
Northampton Borough and a number 
of areas of contaminated land.  
Therefore, where a site option is 
located within the SPZ or an area of 
contaminated land, there may be a 
minor negative effect on groundwater 
quality although this is uncertain, 
depending on the nature of 
development, protective measures 
taken during construction and 
operation, and the nature of any land 
contamination.  
 
Emp14a: Flood risk from rivers 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance 
identifies offices and general industry 
as a ‘less vulnerable use’, which is 
suitable in areas of flood zone 1, 2 
and 3a but is unsuitable in flood zone 
3b. 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Majority 
(>50%) 

within Flood 
Zone 2 

or 
smaller 

proportion 
(1-50%) 

within Flood 
Zone 3 

N/A Majority 
(>50%) 

within Flood 
Zone 3 

  

Emp14b: Flood risk from 
groundwater 
 
Parts of Northampton are vulnerable 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Majority 
(>50%) 
within 

'moderate' 

N/A Majority 
(>50%) 

within 'high' 
or 'very 

  

511



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 319 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

to groundwater flooding.  Therefore 
the appraisal needs to include 
assessment criteria to reflect this 
type of flood risk. 

groundwater 
flood risk 

area 
or 

smaller 
proportion 
(1-50%) 

within 'high' 
or 'very 

high' 
groundwater 

flood risk 
area 

high' 
groundwater 

flood risk 
area 

Emp14c: Surface water flood risk 
 
Surface water flooding occurs when 
intense rainfall overwhelms drainage 
systems.  Parts of Northampton have 
been subject to surface water 
flooding during historic flood events, 
including in November 20132 and 
April 1998.  Environment Agency 
data 'Risk of Flooding from Surface 
Water (Basic)' identifies areas with a 
1 in 100 years or greater risk of 
surface water flooding. 
  

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Smaller 
proportion 
(1-50%) 

within 1 in 
100 year 
surface 

water flood 
risk area 

N/A Majority 
(>50%) 

within 1 in 
100 year 
surface 

water flood 
risk area 

  

Emp15a: Prioritising use of 
brownfield land 
 
Prioritising the development of 
previously developed (brownfield) 
land can help to ensure that 
greenfield land is protected from 
unnecessary development.  It 
represents a more efficient use of 
land providing that it is not of high 
environmental value (e.g. for 
biodiversity). 
 

Site contains 
1ha or more of 
brownfield land  

Site contains 
up to 1ha of 

brownfield land  

Site contains 
no brownfield 

land 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A No brownfield data 
available in GIS. 
Planners to manually 
assess all site options 
>=1.0ha, based on LAA 
form (if recorded), or 
OS and aerial imagery  

Emp15b: Avoiding loss of N/A N/A Site contains N/A N/A Site N/A Site contains No greenfield vs. 

512



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 320 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

greenfield land 
 
Discussed under Emp15a. 

no greenfield 
land 

contains up 
to 1ha of 
greenfield 

land 

1ha or more 
of greenfield 

land 

brownfield data 
available in GIS. 
Planners to manually 
assess all site options 
>=1.0ha, based on LAA 
form (if recorded), or 
OS and aerial imagery  

Emp15c: Avoiding loss of high 
quality agricultural land 
 
Development of high quality 
agricultural land would result in it 
being lost to farming and food 
production. 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A Contains 1 
ha or more 
of Grade 4 

(Poor) 
agricultural 

land but 
less than 1 

ha of 
Grades 1-3 

Contains 1 
ha or more 
of Grade 3 
(Good to 

Moderate) 
agricultural 

land but less 
than 1 ha of 
Grade 1 or 
Grade 2 

Contains 1 
ha or more 
of Grade 1 
(Excellent) 
or Grade 2 

(Very Good) 
agricultural 

land 

  

Emp15d: Avoiding sterilisation of 
mineral resources 
 
All new development will result in the 
increased consumption of minerals 
for construction but this will not be 
influenced by the location of 
development sites.  However, the 
location of development sites can 
influence the efficient use of minerals 
by their proximity to Sand and Gravel 
Safeguarding Areas as defined in the 
Northamptonshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan as development in 
those areas may sterilise mineral 
resources and restrict the availability 
of resources in the districts. 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A Partly within 
a Sand and 

Gravel 
Safeguarding 

Area  

N/A Wholly 
within a 

Sand and 
Gravel 

Safeguarding 
Area  
or 

any part 
within a 

‘Preventing 
Land Use 
Conflict 

Consultation 
Buffer’ 

relating to a 
mineral 

extraction 
site as 

defined in 
the Minerals 
and Waste 
Local Plan  

N/A   

Emp15e: Avoiding risk from land N/A N/A None of site N/A N/A Sites that N/A Sites that   

513



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 321 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

instability 
 
There are areas in Northampton that 
are prone to ground instability issues 
due to underlying geology and 
geomorphology.  The combination of 
the Northampton Sand overlying 
Upper Lias Clay can cause the 
formation of landslides particularly 
where slopes have angles greater 
than seven degrees. 
 
Five categories of instability have 
been identified.  Categories A and B 
include areas where slope instability 
problems are either not thought to 
occur or not likely to occur. Category 
C includes areas where slope 
instability problems may be present 
or anticipated, and it is 
recommended that site investigation 
at the planning application stage 
should consider specifically the slope 
stability of the site. Category D 
includes areas where slope instability 
problems are likely to be present of 
have occurred in the past.  Category 
E covers areas where slope instability 
problems are almost certainly 
present and may be active. This 
category is considered to be a 
significant constraint on land use.  
Therefore, sites in the higher 
categories could have a negative 
effect on preventing both new and 
existing development from 
contributing to or being put at 
unacceptable risk from land 
instability. 
 

contains 
Category C, 

D or E 
Ground 

Instability 

include 
areas of 

Category C 
Ground 

Instability 

include 
areas of 

Category D 
or E Ground 
Instability  

Emp16a: Avoiding conflicts with 
waste management sites 

N/A N/A All other 
sites 

N/A N/A N/A Within 300m 
of an 

Within 300m 
of an active 

  

514



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 322 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

 
All new development will inevitably 
involve an increase in waste 
generation, but it may also offer 
good opportunities for incorporating 
sustainable waste management 
practices, regardless of the location.   
 
Levels of recycling will not be 
influenced by the location of site 
options, as the whole of Northampton 
is covered by kerbside recycling 
collections for residential properties 
and levels of recycling within 
employment developments will 
depend on the practices of the 
businesses that locate there. 
 
The Northamptonshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan identifies sites for 
waste management facilities in 
Northampton.  The allocation of sites, 
particularly residential sites, in or 
close to such sites could affect the 
ability of the waste management 
facilities to come forward.  Waste 
management facilities can give rise 
to noise, traffic, odour and light 
pollution during construction and 
operation.  The effects are very 
dependent on the type of facility, its 
design and potential mitigation 
measures proposed, which would be 
assessed at the planning application 
stage. It is assumed that the facility 
will be well run and that mitigation 
measures implemented should be 
sufficient to avoid any potential 
amenity effects. The Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan requires local 
planning authorities to consult the 
Minerals Planning Authority 

industrial 
area in 

which the 
MWLP 

considers 
waste 

management 
uses to be 
acceptable 

or 
committed 

waste 
management 

facility 

515



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 323 March 2019 

Initial quantitative/ GIS-based 
assessment for all site options; 
larger sites (>=2.5 ha) will also 
be subject to the qualitative 
assessment described in the last 
column 

Significant 
positive 

++ 

Minor 
positive 

+ 
Negligible 

0 

Uncertain 
effects 

? 

Uncertain 
minor 

negative 
-? 

Minor 
negative 

- 

Uncertain 
significant 
negative 

- -? 

Significant 
negative 

- - 

Additional 
qualitative/ non-GIS 
factors considered for 
larger (>=2.5 ha) 
sites 

(Northamptonshire County Council) 
on proposals for major development 
that is considered to be incompatible 
with the affected waste development 
within 300 m.  Residential and offices 
are considered to be of medium 
sensitivity and industrial and outdoor 
storage as low sensitivity uses. 
 

 

516



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 324 March 2019 

Appendix 6  
Detailed assessment forms for allocated sites and 
reasonable alternative unallocated sites 
 

Note: This appendix presents the detailed site assessment forms and therefore the page numbering 
differs from the remainder of this report. 

 

 

517



LAA0153 Lex Autocare & Kwikfit

Site area (m2): 2414Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 8

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus route 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency in summer vacation).

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

-

-

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus route 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency in summer vacation).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

518



0

N/A

-?

-?

--

The whole of the site lies within Flood Zone 3.

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

Site is within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

519



LAA0167 Tanner Street

Site area (m2): 3769Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

+

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

520



0

N/A

-?

-?

-

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

521



LAA0168 Rowtree Road

Site area (m2): 60557Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 131

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 195 dwellings for this site.

--

The western half of the site is located within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 
minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

--

The site is within 2,000m of Wotton Hall Park Secondary School. However, it is judged open fields and the river to the north-
east of the site creates a significant barrier to access which increases the walking distance significantly beyond 2,000m to 
reach this school. Therefore, the score for SA3a has been amended from minor negative '-' to significant negative '--'.

-

Site is more than 800m from healthcare facilities.

+

Site is within 800m of open space, namely the Counties Crematorium to the west of the site.

-

Site within 50m of railway line to the west and an A road to the south.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

522



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0

Site is not in proximity to any designated biodiversity or geodiversity site.

-

Development of site will lead to loss greenfield land that is not designated open space.

-

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Ridge & Furrow detected across site. Rail line in tunnel. Possible Iron Age, Romano British settlement. Possible undated 
pits. Possible iron Age pits. Adjacent to an area of archaeological activity identified during the evaluation of the area in 
conjunction with the Collingtree SUE This area has  potential for archaeological activity. MNN133004 Open Fields Ridge and 
furrow.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Historic O/S (up to 1900) shows a predominantly agricultural landscape. Field barn to N boundary  show on 1900 map.
SUMMARY
This site has the potential to be sensitive from a heritage point of view.

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters from the 
area of this site would bypass through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

0

None of the site falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1 ha of greenfield land.

--?

The site is wholly located within an area of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

--

The western half of the site is located within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 
minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

523



0

None of the site falls within 300m of within an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which 
the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

524



LAA0169c Railway Line

Site area (m2): 22340Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

+

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

Site is above 1 hectare.

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

525



--

Development of this site would lead to loss of part of Kingsthorpe natural and semi-natural (NSN) open space.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Flood plain of River Nene. Some disturbance from the construction of the railway bridge. The 2006 Dallington grange 
geophysical survey did not extend this far. HLC identifies other known archaeological.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
The site within the open valley.  The Kingsthorpe appraisal highlights the views as important to the semi rural character of 
the CA which development of the site would impact upon. River Nene contains possible Paleochannels which could provide 
environmental information.
SUMMARY
The recently adopted CA appraisal identifies the views north from Kingsthorpe Village towards the countryside as important, 
emphasising the semi-rural location. Views to the village from the river valley reinforce the separate identity from the built 
up area.

-?

0

--

The site is wholly within Flood Zone 3.

-

--

The majority of the site >50% lies within an 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

-

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

526



LAA0169r Railway Line

Site area (m2): 22340Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 71

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is within 2,000m of employment areas. Kingsthorpe Local Centre is located within 800m to the east of the site, it is 
judged the railway line creates a barrier to access which increases walking distance significantly beyond 800m to this 
particular local centre. However, approximately one third of the site (southern part) is located within 800m of a local centre 
to the south-west of the site.

-

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is within 2,000m of employment areas. Kingsthorpe Local Centre is located within 800m to the east of the site, it is 
judged the railway line creates a barrier to access which increases walking distance significantly beyond 800m to this 

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

527



-

--

Development of this site would lead to loss of part of Kingsthorpe open space.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Flood plain of River Nene. Some disturbance from the construction of the railway bridge. The 2006 Dallington grange 
geophysical survey did not extend this far. HLC identifies other known archaeological.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
The site within the open valley.  The Kingsthorpe appraisal highlights the views as important to the semi rural character of 
the CA which development of the site would impact upon. River Nene contains possible Paleochannels which could provide 
environmental information.
SUMMARY
The recently adopted CA appraisal identifies the views north from Kingsthorpe Village towards the countryside as important, 
emphasising the semi-rural location. Views to the village from the river valley reinforce the separate identity from the built 
up area.

-?

0

--

Site wholly lies within Flood Zone 3.

-

--

The majority of the site >50% lies within an 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

-

--?

The site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

particular local centre. However, approximately one third of the site (southern part) is located within 800m of a local centre 
to the south-west of the site.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

528



LAA0171 Quinton Road

Site area (m2): 11591Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 19

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Approximately half the site (northern part) is located within 800m of local centres. The majority of the site, with exception 
of parts of the south, is located within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Approximately half the site (northern part) is located within 800m of local centres. The majority of the site, with exception 
of parts of the south, is located within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

529



0

The south-east of the site partially contains optimal habitat for Golden Plover population of the Upper Nene Gravel Pits SPA. 
However, it is judged the very small overlap is the result of a digitisation error and there negligible "0".

N/A

-?

0

-

0

-

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

Site is wholly within an area of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

530



LAA0174 Ransome Road Gateway

Site area (m2): 1470Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by route 3 (15min frequency Mon-Sat).

++

Site is within 800m of a local centre and within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

-

+

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of a local centre and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by route 3 (15min frequency Mon-Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

531



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

-?

--

Site is wholly within Flood Zone 3.

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

Site is within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

532



LAA0180 St James Road (former bus depot)

Site area (m2): 17820Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus routes 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat) and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

Site is above 1ha.

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus routes 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat) and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

533



-

N/A

-?

-?

-

--

The majority (>50%) of site is within ‘Very High Risk’ groundwater risk areas, predominantly in the southwest, south east 
and northeast of site.  The remainder of site is within a ‘Moderate Risk’ groundwater risk area.

-

++

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly previously developed land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of brownfield 
land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

-?

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

Site is wholly within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

534



LAA0181 Ransome Road/ Nunn Mills Road

Site area (m2): 159331Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 400

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 400 dwellings for this site.

++

The site is within 500m of bus route 2, which has a 15 minute frequency Monday - Saturday. The site is also within 2km of 
Northampton railway station and is within 500m of cycle routes.

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of an employment area.

-

The site is located within 2,000m of Abbeyfield Secondary School.

+

The site is located within 800m of a doctor’s surgery and St Andrews Hospital.

++

The northern half of the site is located within 800m of Cripps Recreation Centre. It is also located within 800m of other 
open spaces including Delapre Park and Far Cotton Recreation Ground.

-

A small part of the site is located within 50m of a railway track.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

535



+

The site is located within Northampton town centre. The site is predominantly brownfield, therefore development of the site 
for residential use would not result in the loss of commercial and retail uses within the town centre, but would contribute to 
the provision of a range of homes within the town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site. Eastern parts of the site are also 
located within 250m of Delapre Lake Local Wildlife Site and Barnes Meadow Local Nature Reserve.

--

Aerial imagery and an online research indicates that majority of the site is disused brownfield land however, the eastern 
corner of the site falls within Delapre Park. Therefore development of this site could lead to loss of part of a designated 
open space.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Possible early church related to Delapre Abbey - can be seen on 1940's aerial photos. Possible prehistoric settlement ?. 
Disused rail line forms part of setting of listed engine shed. The HER has identified the possible presence of a cruciform 
church which may have been related to Delapre Abbey and have an association with the battlefield. The extent of the 
battlefield is unknown and as such could potentially be within the area. 
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Eastern part of the site is within the Registered Battlefield boundary. The Battle of Northampton 1460 conservation 
management plan will be an important consideration.  The site is identified as one of three potential locations for the 
Lancastrian entrenchments and the management plan identifies as an action, establishing the depth of the 1460 surface to 
determine whether any archaeology from the Battle may survive beneath the current surface. It is understood that there is 
extensive made ground on the site. This however maybe preserving any archaeological remains. In light of the difficulty in 
putting in evaluation trenches a condition was requested to evaluate when the ground level has  been reduced. The ground 
reduction would need to undertaken in an archaeologically sensitive manner.   Footpath across the site (N/S) forms part of 
a historic footpath linking the town centre with Hardingstone village shown on 1883 map.  Setting of the complex of 
building at Delapre and the Delapre Abbey conservation area will be important considerations.  The setting of the engine 
shed to the north will be an important consideration.
SUMMARY
There is potential for development  to further understanding with regard to the Battle of Northampton 1460 and the 
historical development of the Delapre Abbey complex.  The form of development  has the potential to impact on setting and 
character resulting in a level of harm. There is potential to retain/enhance and establish links between the town centre and 
associated heritage sites.

--?

It appears likely from 2011 census data and layout of the road network that a significant number of car commuters from 
this site would pass through the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA.

-?

A small area of the site contains contaminated land.

--

The majority of the site falls within Flood Zone 3.

-

The majority of the site falls within an area at ‘moderate’ risk to groundwater flooding. The remainder of the site falls within 
areas at ‘negligible’, ‘low’ and ‘very low’ risk to groundwater flooding.

-

A small proportion of the site (<50%) falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

++

The majority of the site has been identified as brownfield land. The site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is within 500m of bus route 2, which has a 15 minute frequency Monday - Saturday. The site is also within 2km of 
Northampton railway station and is within 500m of cycle routes.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

536



--

Part of the site has been identified as greenfield land. The site contains more than 1 ha of greenfield land.

0

Site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of Grade 4 or higher quality.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

--

Approximately one third of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

537



LAA0195 Hunsbury School, Hunsbury Hill

Site area (m2): 28234Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 50

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

NBC has identified a capacity of 50 dwellings for this site.

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops including those served by route 3 (15-minute frequency 
Mon-Sat). Approximately two thirds of the site is within 2,000m of a railway station.

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

Site is within 500m of Hunsbury Park Primary School located adjacent to the site. The site is more than 1,000m away from 
Abbeyfield Secondary School.

+

Site is within 800m of a healthcare facility.

+

Site is within 800m of open spaces, including Hunsbury Hill Park located adjacent to the site.

-

Site is within 50m of the A5076.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

538



--

The majority of the site overlaps with Hunsbury Hill Country Park.

--

Development of this site would lead to loss of Hunsbury Hill Park green space.

-

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Northamptonshire Archaeology conducted an archaeological desk-based heritage assessment of land at Camp Hill, 
Northampton. There are no designated assets within the site boundary, although Hunsbury Hill, an Iron Age Hillfort, is a 
Scheduled Monument and lies 50m to the south-west of the site. The surrounding area is rich in evidence of occupation and 
other activity dating from the Mesolithic to the Saxon periods, including the Neolithic causewayed enclosure 350m to the 
north, the Iron Age hillfort to the south-west and a Roman villa 450m to the south-west. However, the site lies on an 
outcrop of Northampton Ironstone which was quarried extensively from the late 19th century until the 1920’s.. The site lies 
within the former area of the quarry known as Camp Pit, which was worked from 1882 until 1887. The quarry will have 
destroyed any archaeological remains that may have existed within the site. There will therefore be no impact upon any 
below-ground archaeological remains
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Hunsbury Hill Iron Age Hill fort on close proximity, Ironstone railway and country park. ENN107836 Walker C., 2013, 
Archaeological desk-based heritage assessment of land at Camp Hill, Northampton.  The scheduled monument sits within a 
country park which could be considered  local heritage asset.   Consideration of impact of development on the scheduled 
monument and other non-designated assets.  -Impact on setting of adjacent Listed buildings and character of Hardingstone 
conservation area
SUMMARY
There is potential for development to impact o n the setting of the SM resulting in harm to historic significance as well as 
other heritage assets

--?

It appears likely from Census 2011 data and layout road network that a significant number of commuters from the area of 
this site would pass through the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

A small proportion of the site (<50%) falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

Site is wholly located within an area of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops including those served by route 3 (15-minute frequency 
Mon-Sat). Approximately two thirds of the site is within 2,000m of a railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

539



0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of within an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which 
the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

540



LAA0204 The Farm, The Green

Site area (m2): 21736Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 100

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 100 dwellings for this site.

+

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

-

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

541



--

Site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI. In addition a very small section 
of the southern corner of the site is located on optimal supporting habitat for the Golden Plover Population of the Upper 
Nene Valley Gravel Pits. The majority of the site contains unsuitable fields and the remainder contains no suitable habitat 
for the Golden Plover population of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits.

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. The site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

Site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land. Therefore site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 agricultural 
land.

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

-

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

542



LAA0205 Parklands Middle School, Devon Way

Site area (m2): 53944Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 132

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 172 dwellings for this site.

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes. It is noted that site is also within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by 
buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

++

Approximately half the site (eastern part) is within 500m of Parklands Primary School. The site is also within 1,000m of 
three secondary schools; Thomas Becket Catholic School , Kingsthorpe College and Northampton School for Girls.

+

Site is within 800m of a healthcare facility.

+

Site is within 800m of a number of open spaces, including Bradlaugh Fields located adjacent to the west of the site. It is 
noted that the site also partially contains Parklands Park which could be lost to development. However, if this were lost the 
site would still be within 800m of open space.

0

Site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of  an ‘A’ road, motorway, railway line, or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

543



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

The western half of the site is located within 250m of Bradlaugh Fields LWS.

--

Development of site will lead to loss of all or part of Parkland Park Amenity Green Space.

-

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
MNN137022 Moulton Park-Documentary references to the medieval deer park of Moulton Park.  It was in existence during 
the reign of Henry II and was probably formed out of two small estates in Moulton. The park was probably appended to 
Northampton Castle. There are references to the park throughout the medieval period; by 1560 the park was in decay. 
Historically undeveloped land.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Moulton Park medieval Deer Park.  No archaeological assessment has taken place in this area. To the north within the 
Moulton Business Park an Iron Age Romano British settlement was identified at Pond Wood Close indicating the potential for 
pre park activity. There are significant trees on the site which may be associated with the deer park although there is no 
current TPO. Views to and from the site may be significant.
SUMMARY
The site forms part of a wider historic landscape which may have a level of significance.

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant number of car commuters from the 
area of this site would  pass through  the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA and the Zone 4 Harborough Road AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

0

Parts of the southern and eastern sections of the site (<50%) are within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

++

Site identified by NBC's LAA as part previously developed land. The site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC's LAA as part previously developed land. The site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

0

Site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of Grade 4 or higher quality.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes. It is noted that site is also within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by 
buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

544



--?

Site is wholly within 300m of an industrial area in which the MLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

545



LAA0208 Swan Valley Gateway

Site area (m2): 131067Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

--

Site is within 500m of bus stops, including those served by route 3 (15-minute frequency Mon-Sat), and approximately one 
third of the site is within 500m of cycle routes.  However, the A5123 acts as a significant barrier to access and as such, 
distance to bus stops served by frequent bus services and cycle routes is judged more than 500m.  The site is located 
within 500m of accessible bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 minute frequency during 
weekday peak travel times.

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

-?

Site is located in proximity to residential receptors to the north of the site.

N/A

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

Site is more than 1ha.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

546



--

The Grand Union Canal (Northampton Arm) Local Wildlife Site overlaps with the site.

-

Development of this site would lead to loss of greenfield land that is not designated as open space.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Survival of R&F in NW area. Cropmarks of x2 iron age enclosures, probable iron age settlement. LCA - other known 
archaeological. Rugby Cement Chalk Slurry Pipeline runs through the middle of the site.  However HER has references to 
iron age activity within the site. MNN 25149 activity identified in advance of junction work at Rothersthorpe Service Station.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
 Grand Union Canal Lock and drawbridge are both Listed Buildings .  The canal and associated listed structures form and 
important part of the development of Northampton and its industrial heritage and links with other parts of the Country.   
Setting of listed structures will be a valid consideration  Footpath across site is historic shown on 1883 O/STPO 's on site. 
Development has potential to result in harm to the heritage assets.
SUMMARY
The form of development is unknown and could have a significant impact on  the setting of the listed buildings. 

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant number of car commuters from the 
area of this site would pass through three AQMAs. These include the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade, Zone 6 Campbell Square 
and Zone 8 St. Michael's Road AQMAs.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

-

A smaller proportion of the site is located within Flood Zone 3  (9%). The eastern half the site is located within Flood Zone 

-

Approximately 50% of the site is located within an area at 'very high risk' to groundwater flooding. A small proportion of 
the site is within an area of 'moderate risk' to groundwater flooding. The remainder of the site is located within an area of 
'negligible', 'low' or 'very low' risk to groundwater flooding.

-

A smaller proportion of the site (44%) is within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

+

Site contains up to 1ha of brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

Site wholly contains Grade 3  (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

--?

The majority of the site (96%) is within a sand and gravel safeguarding area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

--

Site is within 500m of bus stops, including those served by route 3 (15-minute frequency Mon-Sat), and approximately one 
third of the site is within 500m of cycle routes.  However, the A5123 acts as a significant barrier to access and as such, 
distance to bus stops served by frequent bus services and cycle routes is judged more than 500m.  The site is located 
within 500m of accessible bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 minute frequency during 
weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

547



0

None of the site falls within 300m of within an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which 
the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

548



LAA0288c Railway Station car park

Site area (m2): 21212Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Northampton Railway Station is adjacent to the west of site and the site is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also 
within 500m of North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency 
Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

Site is above 1ha.

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Northampton Railway Station is adjacent to the west of site and the site is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also 
within 500m of North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency 
Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

549



0

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

++

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of 
brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

Approximately two thirds of the site is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste 
management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

550



LAA0288r Railway Station car park

Site area (m2): 21212Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 68

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Northampton Railway Station is adjacent to the west of site and the site is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also 
within 500m of North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency 
Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within Northampton town centre. The site is also within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment 
areas, including one adjacent to the north of site.

++

Site is within 500m of Spring Lane Primary School. Approximately two thirds of the site (north-eastern part) is within 
1,000m and the remainder within 2,000m of Northampton International Academy Secondary School.

+

+

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Northampton Railway Station is adjacent to the west of site and the site is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also 
within 500m of North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min 

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

551



0

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

++

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of 
brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

Approximately two thirds of the site is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste 
management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within Northampton town centre. The site is also within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment 
areas, including one adjacent to the north of site.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency 
Mon to Sat).

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

552



LAA0326c Orchard Hill

Site area (m2): 14859Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

+

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

Site is above 1ha.

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

553



N/A

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
The site is within an area which has potential for medieval settlement. To the south is All Saints Church II* with 14th 
century origins. The Priory is described as medieval manor house also with 14th century origins. To the west MNN21465 
medieval activity was identified in the 1970's.   Historic O/S refer to site of castle/remains of castle.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
 Listed buildings on site -  setting of LB's both on and adjacent to the site.  The site is likely to be within an  area of 
medieval settlement as demonstrated by the church, the manor house and the medieval finds. Little recent archaeological 
investigation has been undertaken and as such our information on the archaeological potential is limited.  The open nature 
of the site forms part of the setting of the listed buildings as is the visual relationship between the buildings. and the 
historic village.
SUMMARY
The development of the site is likely to impact on the setting of the listed buildings, and significantly disrupt their 
relationship with each other resulting in harm to the heritage assets

-?

-?

0

0

-

+

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land and that part of the site has now been developed for 
housing.  The remainder of the site yet to be developed contains up to 1ha of brownfield land.

0

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land and that part of the site has now been developed for 
housing.  The remainder of the site yet to be developed contains no greenfield land.

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

554



LAA0326r Orchard Hill

Site area (m2): 14859Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 47

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment sites. It is noted that an employment area is 
located at the site which could be lost to development. However, if this employment land were to be lost the site would still 
be located within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

-

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment sites. It is noted that an employment area is 
located at the site which could be lost to development. However, if this employment land were to be lost the site would still 
be located within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

555



--

The site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
The site is within an area which has potential for medieval settlement. To the south is All Saints Church II* with 14th 
century origins. The Priory is described as medieval manor house also with 14th century origins. To the west MNN21465 
medieval activity was identified in the 1970's.   Historic O/S refer to site of castle/remains of castle.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
 Listed buildings on site -  setting of LB's both on and adjacent to the site.  The site is likely to be within an  area of 
medieval settlement as demonstrated by the church, the manor house and the medieval finds. Little recent archaeological 
investigation has been undertaken and as such our information on the archaeological potential is limited.  The open nature 
of the site forms part of the setting of the listed buildings as is the visual relationship between the buildings. and the 
historic village.
SUMMARY
The development of the site is likely to impact on the setting of the listed buildings, and significantly disrupt their 
relationship with each other resulting in harm to the heritage assets

-?

-?

0

0

-

+

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land and that part of the site has now been developed for 
housing.  The remainder of the site yet to be developed contains up to 1ha of brownfield land.

0

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land and that part of the site has now been developed for 
housing.  The remainder of the site yet to be developed contains no greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

556



LAA0327 Martins Farm

Site area (m2): 36485Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 115

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 115 dwellings for this site.

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 500m of bus stops however these are not served by bus stops 
with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

+

Site is within 2,000m of an employment area.

--

Site is More than 500m from a primary school and more than 2,000m away from a secondary school.

-

Site is more than 800m from a healthcare facility

+

Site is within 800m of open spaces, including Brackmills Country Park located to the south-west of the site.

0

Site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of  an ‘A’ road, motorway, railway line, or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

557



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI. In addition, the majority of the site 
contains sub-optimal supporting habitat for the Golden Plover population of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits.

-

Development of this site would lead to loss of greenfield land that is not designated open space.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Excavations in the adjacent area have identified extensive Iron Age, Romano British and Saxon activity which are likely to 
extend into this area.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
The N & W areas have identified Ridge & Furrow. Part of the N and East boundaries boarder the Great Houghton 
Conservation Area  and in proximity to LB's. Setting of these heritage assets will be a principle consideration. Informal 
footpath across site. Historic mapping shows building on north boundary which may have been associated with the 
Rectory - LB. Not clear if this survives in any form. Possible prehistoric, Romano British activity. HLC - other known 
archaeological. 
SUMMARY
Development of this site has potential to result in the coalescence  of the built up area with Great Houghton, impacting 
adversely on the village character and therefore the CA. The appraisal identified is current detachment from the build up 
area as part of is special interest. The site has potential to be archaeologically sensitive.

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant number of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

0

None of the site falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

Site is wholly located within an area of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

+

Site is within 2,000m of an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 500m of bus stops however these are not served by bus stops 
with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

558



--?

The western quarter of the site is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste 
management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

559



LAA0328 Cattle Market Road

Site area (m2): 13066Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 42

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 2,000m of a railway station and within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 500m of bus stops 
including those served by routes 2 (15 minute frequency Mon-Sat) and route 19 (12 minute frequency Mon-Fri and 15 
minute frequency in summer vacation).

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of Cripps Recreation Centre and within 800m of open spaces, including Beckets Park located to the east 
of the site.

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of a railway station and within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 500m of bus stops 
including those served by route 2 (15 minute frequency Mon-Sat) and route 19 (12 minute frequency Mon-Fri and 15 
minute frequency in summer vacation).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

560



--

The southern half of the site is within 250m of the Grad Union Canal - Northampton Arm LWS. The site is also within 3km of 
the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

-?

--

The majority of the site (approx. 70%) is located within Flood Zone 3 with the remainder located within Flood Zone 2.

-

-

++

Site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

561



LAA0333c Castle Station Railfreight

Site area (m2): 56788Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

-?

Site is located in proximity to sensitive receptors including a school and residential development. However, these are not 
located directly adjacent to the site as the A5095 acts as a separating feature.

N/A

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

Site is more than 1ha.

+

The site is located within Northampton town centre. The site is predominantly brownfield, therefore development of the site 
for commercial use would contribute to the provision of commercial use within the town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

562



0

Site is not in proximity to any designated biodiversity or geodiversity site.

-

Online research and aerial imagery indicates development of this site would lead to loss of greenfield land to the north-west 
of the site, which is not designated open space.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Site may contains the remains of Northampton Castle  - SM. The HER also projects the line of the former medieval and civil 
war defences cutting through the site. Archaeological remains associated with the castle were identified during works along 
St Andrew's Road.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Whilst this site has seen much change over time, it remains historically very sensitive.     The SM  - Northampton castle, 
and LB's will require vey careful consideration in development proposals including their setting. The LCA refers to other 
known archaeological.     Historic England will need to be involved in development proposals - they manage the Scheduled 
Monument Consent process.   Listed Building - Postern Gate and walls.   - there are adjacent LB's and SM thus setting will 
be important.  Other listed buildings and sites in the vicinity, including  St Peters Church c1160 and the Saxon Palace 
complex SM
SUMMARY
This site is very historically sensitive as it may reveal remains of Northampton castle. The setting of the Listed Postern gate 
and  walls will be an important consideration as will the setting of other listed building s in the vicinity with may be 
intervisible with the site. Form of a proposed development will be an important consideration. There is some potential for a 
development proposal to better understand and reveal the historic significance of the site but this will need detailed early 
evaluation to adequately inform the development proposals.

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and layout of the road network that a significant number of car commuters from 
the area of this site would pass through three AQMAs. These include Zone 2 Victoria Promenade, Zone 6 Campbell Square, 
Zone 3 St James and Zone 8 St Michael's Road.

-?

Central parts of the site contains contaminated land.

-

The majority of the site is located within Flood Zone 2. In addition, a small part of the site (approx. 10%) is located within 
Flood Zone 3.

-

The majority of the site is located within an area of 'moderate risk' to Groundwater Flooding. The remainder of the site is 
within areas of 'negligible', 'low risk' and 'very low risk' to groundwater flooding.

-

Parts of the site (<50%) are within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

++

Site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land in the north-west of the site.

0

Site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of Grade 4 or higher quality.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

563



0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

--

The northern half of the site is within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

564



LAA0333r Castle Station Railfreight

Site area (m2): 56788Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 200

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has identified a capacity of 682 dwellings for this site.

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

++

Site is within 300m of Spring Lane Primary School and within2,00m of Northampton International Academy.

+

Site is within 800m of a healthcare facility.

++

Site is within 800m of open spaces, including Victoria Park located on the western side of the railway. The Site is also within 
800m of Mount Baths Leisure Centre.

-

Site is within 50m of A Roads to the north and east. Site is also within 50m of a railway line to the west.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

565



+

The site is located within Northampton town centre. The site is predominantly brownfield, therefore development of the site 
for residential use would not result in the loss of commercial and retail uses within the town centre, but would contribute to 
the provision of a range of homes within the town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0

Site is not in proximity to any designated biodiversity or geodiversity site.

-

Online research and aerial imagery indicates development of this site would lead to loss of greenfield land to the north-west 
of the site, which is not designated open space.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Site may contains the remains of Northampton Castle  - SM. The HER also projects the line of the former medieval and civil 
war defences cutting through the site. Archaeological remains associated with the castle were identified during works along 
St Andrew's Road.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Whilst this site has seen much change over time, it remains historically very sensitive.     The SM  - Northampton castle, 
and LB's will require vey careful consideration in development proposals including their setting. The LCA refers to other 
known archaeological.     Historic England will need to be involved in development proposals - they manage the Scheduled 
Monument Consent process.   Listed Building - Postern Gate and walls.   - there are adjacent LB's and SM thus setting will 
be important.  Other listed buildings and sites in the vicinity, including  St Peters Church c1160 and the Saxon Palace 
complex SM
SUMMARY
This site is very historically sensitive as it may reveal remains of Northampton castle. The setting of the Listed Postern gate 
and  walls will be an important consideration as will the setting of other listed building s in the vicinity with may be 
intervisible with the site. Form of a proposed development will be an important consideration. There is some potential for a 
development proposal to better understand and reveal the historic significance of the site but this will need detailed early 
evaluation to adequately inform the development proposals.

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and layout of the road network that a significant number of car commuters from 
the area of this site would pass through the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA.

-?

Central parts of the site contains contaminated land.

-

The majority of the site is located within Flood Zone 2. In addition, a small part of the site (approx. 10%) is located within 
Flood Zone 3.

-

The majority of the site is located within an area of 'moderate risk' to Groundwater Flooding. The remainder of the site is 
within areas of 'negligible', 'low risk' and 'very low risk' to groundwater flooding.

-

Parts of the site (<50%) are within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

++

Site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land to the north-west of the site.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

566



0

Site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of Grade 4 or higher quality.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

--

The northern half of the site is within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

567



LAA0335c Great Russell Street / Chronicle & Echo North

Site area (m2): 8763Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Approximately half of the site (northern part) is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 2,000m of Northampton 
Railway Station and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to 
Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 and 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

+

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Approximately half of the site (northern part) is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 2,000m of Northampton 
Railway Station and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to 
Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 and 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

568



0

N/A

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL

HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY

SUMMARY

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

569



LAA0335r Great Russell Street / Chronicle & Echo North

Site area (m2): 8763Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 28

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Approximately half of the site (northern part) is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 2,000m of Northampton 
Railway Station and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to 
Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 and 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of open spaces, including The Racecourse located to the north of the site. The site is also within 800m 
of Mounts Baths Leisure Centre.

0

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Approximately half of the site (northern part) is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 2,000m of Northampton 
Railway Station and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to 
Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 and 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

570



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL

HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY

SUMMARY

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

571



LAA0336c Chronicle & Echo South

Site area (m2): 11709Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. Approximately one third of the site is within 500m of cycle routes. 
The Site is within 500m of bus stops, including those served by routes 1 (10 min freq. Mon-Sat), 16 (12 min. freq. Mon-
Fri), 31 (15 min freq. Mon-Sat), 21 (15 min freq. Mon-Fri) and 19 (12 min freq. Mon-Fri and 15 min freq. in summer 
vacation).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

Site is above 1ha

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. Approximately one third of the site is within 500m of cycle routes. 
The Site is within 500m of bus stops, including those served by routes 1 (10 min freq. Mon-Sat), 16 (12 min. freq. Mon-
Fri), 31 (15 min freq. Mon-Sat), 21 (15 min freq. Mon-Fri) and 19 (12 min freq. Mon-Fri and 15 min freq. in summer 
vacation).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

572



0

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

++

Site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

573



LAA0336r Chronicle & Echo South

Site area (m2): 11709Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 19

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. Approximately one third of the site is within 500m of cycle routes. 
The Site is within 500m of bus stops, including those served by routes 1 (10 min freq. Mon-Sat), 16 (12 min. freq. Mon-
Fri), 31 (15 min freq. Mon-Sat), 21 (15 min freq. Mon-Fri) and 19 (12 min freq. Mon-Fri and 15 min freq. in summer 
vacation).

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of open spaces, including Holy Sepulchre Churchyard to the west of the site.

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. Approximately one third of the site is within 500m of cycle routes. 
The Site is within 500m of bus stops, including those served by routes 1 (10 min freq. Mon-Sat), 16 (12 min. freq. Mon-
Fri), 31 (15 min freq. Mon-Sat), 21 (15 min freq. Mon-Fri), 19 (12 min freq. Mon-Fri and 15 min freq. in summer vacation).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

574



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

++

Site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

575



LAA0338 Countess Road

Site area (m2): 24929Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 33

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). 
The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre and local centres and is within 2,000m of employment sites.

++

The site is located within 500m of St James Church of England Voluntary Aided Primary School and the eastern part of the 
site is within 1,000m of Northampton International Academy.

-

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). 
The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

576



0

N/A

-?

-?

--

The majority of the site is located within Flood Zone 3.

-

--

The majority of the site (>50%) is within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

++

The site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

0

The site contains no greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre and local centres and is within 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

577



LAA0403 Studland Road Allotments

Site area (m2): 22995Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 74

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes and the majority of the site is located within 500m of bus stops that are 
served by route 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). The south of the site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton 
railway station.

++

The site is located within 2,000m of employment sites and is within 800m of a local centre.

-

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes and the majority of the site is located within 500m of bus stops that are 
served by route 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). The south of the site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton 
railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

578



--

The north of the site partially contains Kingsthorpe Meadows Local Wildlife Site and Local Nature Reserve.

--

The site is partially located on Studland Road allotments and on Kingsthorpe Nature Reserve. Development would lead to 
loss of part of the allotments and nature reserve.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
No known archaeological sites within the plot however the HER identifies a possible Romano British site to the south. 
Archaeological potential unknown. MNN6383. 
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Historic mapping shows predominantly agricultural landscape.  Spring shown at centre of site, truncated by 1925. HLC - 
other known archaeological. The site forms part of a green finger of land in the Brampton valley reaching from the heart of 
the town, north to Brampton heath and offers an important link between assets.
SUMMARY
The site is green field and whilst has been used for allotments the site has potential from an archaeological point of view.

-?

-?

-

0

-

N/A

N/A

-

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

The southernmost part of the site is located within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is located within 2,000m of employment sites and is within 800m of a local centre.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

579



LAA0496 57 Artizan Road

Site area (m2): 469Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 10

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes and bus stops served by routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 
min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).The site is also located within 
2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre and local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

++

The eastern half of the site is located within 500m of Barry Primary School and is also within 1km of Northampton School 
for Boys.

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes and bus stops served by routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 
min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).The site is also located within 
2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

580



--

The site is located within 2km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site.

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre and local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

581



LAA0508 Fishponds Road

Site area (m2): 24647Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 20

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas, including one adjacent to the southwest of 
site.

-

+

++

The site is located within 800m of Lings Forum Leisure Centre and within 800m of a number of open spaces, including Lings 
Park located across the road to the north of site and Little Billing Park located across the road to the south of site.  It is 
noted that the site partially contains Bellinge Park which could be lost to development on the site. However, if this were lost 
the site would still be within 800m of open space.

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

582



--

Site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Gravel Pits, SPA, Ramsar Site and SSI. The majority of the site is located 
within 250m of Little Billing LWS. A small proportion of the site (north-eastern corner) is located within 250m of Lings Wood 
LWS and Lings LNR.

--

Development of the site would lead to loss of all or part of Bellinge Park Natural/Semi natural Open Space.

-?

0

-

0

-

0

The site does not appear to contain any brownfield land.

--

The site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The majority of the site (south-eastern part) contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate agricultural land. The 
remainder of the site is classified as non-agricultural land.

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

The site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas, including one adjacent to the southwest of 
site.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

583



LAA0590 Nationwide Building Society (adjacent car park)

Site area (m2): 20754Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

+

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

Site is above 1ha.

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

584



--

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield land. Development of site will lead to loss of all or part of Kings Park Road 
Natural/Semi-natural Open Space.

-?

0

0

0

0

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

Site is wholly within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

585



LAA0593c North of Bedford Road

Site area (m2): 198946Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

+

The west of the site is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also located within 500m of bus stops but these are not 
served by routes with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekdays. The site is not within 2,000m of a railway station.

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

-?

site is located within 100m of residential receptors to the southeast of the site.

N/A

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

Site is more than 1ha.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

586



--

The site is located adjacent to the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA/Ramsar and SSSI and the Hardingstone Flood Storage 
Area LWS. In addition, the site contains optimal supporting habitat for Golden Plover.

-

Development of this site will lead to loss of greenfield land that is not designated as open space.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Ridge and furrow within the area. It lies adjacent to areas of known archaeological activity such as that identified in 
advance of the construction of the Decathlon building. The potential for archaeological activity is  unclear. The adjacent 
areas contain archaeological activity. MNN13299 Ridge and furrow identified in Open Fields project Once part of a larger 
area. HLC - Other known archaeological.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Historic O/S shows agricultural landscape  and it remains undeveloped - greenfield site. Development of the site has 
potential to impact on the setting of the Great Houghton Conservation Area - the appraisal identifies its current detachment 
from the built up area as part of its special interest. 
SUMMARY
Development of this  site has potential to result in the coalescence with Great Houghton Village impacting adversely on the 
character and setting of the village. The appraisal identified its current detachment from the build up area as part of is 
special interest.  

--?

It appears likely from 2011 census data and the layout of the road network that a significant number of car commuters 
from the site would pass through the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA and Zone 5 A45 London Road AQMA.

0

The site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

-

The majority of the site falls within an area at ‘moderate’ risk to groundwater flooding. The remainder of the site falls within 
areas at ‘negligible’, ‘low’ and ‘very low’ risk to groundwater flooding.

-

A small proportion of the site (<50%) falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

The site is entirely greenfield and so contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land in the south of the parcel. The remainder 
of the site contains Grade 4 (Poor) agricultural land.

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

The west of the site is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also located within 500m of bus stops but these are not 
served by routes with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekdays. The site is not within 2,000m of a railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

587



--?

The majority of the site (western part) is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste 
management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

588



LAA0593r North of Bedford Road

Site area (m2): 198946Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 398

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 398 dwellings for this site.

-

The west of the site is within 500m of cycle routes.  The site is also located within 500m of bus stops but these are not 
served by routes with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekdays. The site is not within 2,000m of a railway station.

+

The site is adjacent to an employment area.

-

The site is located within 2,000m of Northampton School For Boys. The site is more than 500m from of a primary school.

-

The site is not located within 800m of a healthcare facility.

+

Site is within 800m of open spaces, including Flood Plain Natural/Semi-natural Green Space located adjacent to the site.

-

The southern edge of the site is located within 50m of the A428 Bedford Road.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

The site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

589



--

The site is located adjacent to the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA/Ramsar and SSSI and the Hardingstone Flood Storage 
Area LWS. In addition, the site contains optimal supporting habitat for Golden Plover.

-

Development of this site will lead to loss of greenfield land that is not designated as open space.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Ridge and furrow within the area. It lies adjacent to areas of known archaeological activity such as that identified in 
advance of the construction of the Decathlon building. The potential for archaeological activity is  unclear. The adjacent 
areas contain archaeological activity. MNN13299 Ridge and furrow identified in Open Fields project Once part of a larger 
area. HLC - Other known archaeological.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Historic O/S shows agricultural landscape  and it remains undeveloped - greenfield site. Development of the site has 
potential to impact on the setting of the Great Houghton Conservation Area - the appraisal identifies its current detachment 
from the built up area as part of its special interest. 
SUMMARY
Development of this  site has potential to result in the coalescence with Great Houghton Village impacting adversely on the 
character and setting of the village. The appraisal identified its current detachment from the build up area as part of is 
special interest.  

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and the layout of the road network that a significant number of car commuters 
from the site would pass through the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA.

0

The site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

-

The majority of the site falls within an area at ‘moderate’ risk to groundwater flooding. The remainder of the site falls within 
areas at ‘negligible’, ‘low’ and ‘very low’ risk to groundwater flooding.

-

A small proportion of the site (<50%) falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

The site is entirely greenfield and so contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land in the south of the parcel.  The remainder 
of the site contains Grade 4 (Poor) agricultural land.

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

+

The site is adjacent to an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

The west of the site is within 500m of cycle routes.  The site is also located within 500m of bus stops but these are not 
served by routes with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekdays. The site is not within 2,000m of a railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

590



--?

The majority of the site (western part) is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste 
management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

591



LAA0594c Sixfields East

Site area (m2): 101832Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 
9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat).  The majority of site is also within 500m of cycle routes, with the exception of the 
north-easternmost corner of site.

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is not adjacent to or within 100m of existing sensitive receptors.

N/A

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

The site is above 1ha.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

592



-

The majority of site, with the exception of the north-easternernmost and north-westernmost parts of the site, is within 
250m of locally designated biodiversity or geodiversity sites. These include the Storton's Pits LNR, Storton's Gravel Pits LWS 
and Duston Mill Meadow LWS.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land which could therefore be redeveloped at this site.  The 
majority of the site (southern part) is a former landfill site and therefore considered undeveloped, even though it is unclear 
as to whether the site was restored in compliance with development management procedures.  Therefore, development of 
this site could result in some loss of greenfield land.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Duston Roman town. The archaeological investigation carried out in part this area has identified the potential for Roman 
activity. The recent construction and development will have had an impact on survival but it  shouldn't be discounted. Much 
of the southern portion of the site is currently undeveloped
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Duston Roman town southern extent. Partially investigated by J Williams 1970-79. The EUS Duston  shows the areas which 
were investigated. These identified a Roman settlement, road and cemetery. ENN103405,MNN115547 
SUMMARY
The potential of this site is not currently known

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters to the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

-?

Parts of site are within areas of contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

Parts of the site (>50%) are within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk areas. These are primarily confined to the 
southwest of the site.

++

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of 
brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of 
greenfield land.

--?

The eastern part of site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.  Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha 
of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

-?

Southern half of site is within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 
9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat).  The majority of site is also within 500m of cycle routes, with the exception of the 
north-easternmost corner of site.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

593



-

Parts of the west of site contain Grade C Ground Instability.  The remainder of site contains Grade B Ground Instability.

--

Site is wholly within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.  It is  noted that a waste management 
facility present in the north of site and may be lost due to development on this site. However, if this facility were to be lost 
due to development on this site, the majority of site, with the exception of the northernmost and westernmost parts, would 
still be located within 300m of active or committed waste management facilities.

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

594



LAA0594r Sixfields East

Site area (m2): 101832Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 255

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 255 dwellings for this site.

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 
9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat).  The majority of site is also within 500m of cycle routes, with the exception of the 
north-easternmost corner of site.

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas, including the Weedon Road Industrial Estate located adjacent to the east of 
site, and within 800m of local centres.

-

Site is further than 500m from primary schools and parts of the north and west of site are within 2,000m of The Duston 
Secondary School.  The remainder of site is located further than 2,000m from secondary schools.

+

The northwest of site is within 800m of healthcare facilities. The remainder of the site is located further than 800m from 
healthcare facilities.

+

Site is within 800m of open space, including Duston Mill Reservoir located across the road to the south of site.

-

Site is located adjacent to the Weedon Road Industrial Estate to the east of site, which includes a motor centre. Site is also 
within 50m of the A4500 to the north of site.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

595



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

The majority of site, with the exception of the northernmost and easternmost parts of site, is within 250m of locally 
designated biodiversity or geodiversity sites. These include the Storton's Pits LNR, Storton's Gravel Pits LWS and Duston Mill 
Meadow LWS.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land which could therefore be redeveloped at this site.  The 
majority of the site (southern part) is a former landfill site and therefore considered undeveloped, even though it is unclear 
as to whether the site was restored in compliance with development management procedures.  Therefore, development of 
this site could result in some loss of greenfield land.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Duston Roman town. The archaeological investigation carried out in part this area has identified the potential for Roman 
activity. The recent construction and development will have had an impact on survival but it  shouldn't be discounted. Much 
of the southern portion of the site is currently undeveloped
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Duston Roman town southern extent. Partially investigated by J Williams 1970-79. The EUS Duston  shows the areas which 
were investigated. These identified a Roman settlement, road and cemetery. ENN103405,MNN115547 
SUMMARY
The potential of this site is not currently known

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through two AQMAs. These are Zone 3 St James and Zone 6 Campbell Square.

-?

Parts of site are within areas of contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

Parts of the site (>50%) are within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk areas. These are primarily confined to the 
southwest of the site.

++

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of 
brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of 
greenfield land.

--?

The eastern part of site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.  Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha 

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas, including the Weedon Road Industrial Estate located adjacent to the east of 
site, and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 
9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat).  The majority of site is also within 500m of cycle routes, with the exception of the 
north-easternmost corner of site.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

596



of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

-?

Southern half of site is within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

-

Parts of the west of site contain Grade C Ground Instability.  The remainder of site contains Grade B Ground Instability.

--

Site is wholly within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.  Its noted that a waste management 
facility present in the north of site and may be lost due to development on this site. However, if this facility were to be lost 
due to development on this site, the majority of site, with the exception of the northernmost and westernmost parts, would 
still be located within 300m of active or committed waste management facilities.

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

597



LAA0598 Car park, Victoria Street

Site area (m2): 6251Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

+

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

598



0

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

599



LAA0615 Crow Lane North

Site area (m2): 29177Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes. It is noted that the site is also within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served 
by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

-?

The site is not located within close proximity to existing sensitive receptors such as houses, schools or hospitals however, 
the site is located close to the Billing Aquadrome Holiday Park. As the exact use of the site is unknown the effects on this 
are uncertain.  Therefore it is judged that development at the site could have minor negative uncertain effects “-?” with 
regard to this SA Objective.

N/A

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

Site is above 1ha.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

600



--

Site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

-

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Development of site could lead to loss of greenfield land not designated 
as open space.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
The archaeological activity identified to the northwest and south east of the study area suggests that there is a high 
potential for archaeological activity
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
MNN4510 A Roman pottery scatter has been noted and to the north Roman pottery and shallow ditches were discovered 
during pipe-laying in 1972.MNN916 An area of Iron Age and Roman settlement was identified during gravel digging from 
1956 onwards. A number of kilns, as well as kiln furniture, were also identified
SUMMARY
The heritage potential of the site is currently not known

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 census data and layout of road network that a significant number of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

--

The majority of the site (>50%) is within Flood Zone 3. A small part of the site, along the eastern edge is within Flood Zone 
2.

-

The site is wholly within an area at 'Moderate Risk' to groundwater flooding.

-

Parts of the site (<50%) is within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area. These risk areas are predominantly in the 
south of the site.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Therefore, site contains more then 1ha of greenfield land.

--

The site is wholly located within an area of Grade 2 agricultural land therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of Grade 2 
(very good) agricultural land.

--?

The site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

--

Part of the site (south-east corner) is located within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes. It is noted that the site is also within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served 
by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

601



LAA0629c British Timken Site

Site area (m2): 58318Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 9/9a/9b (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

--?

Site is adjacent to residential receptors all on sides.

N/A

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

The site is above 1ha.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

602



0

Site is not in proximity to any designated biodiversity or geodiversity site.

++

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land. Aerial imagery and online research indicates that the 
site is disused.

0

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
The site was evaluated and no archaeological activity was identified
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
SNN105349 Archaeological Evaluation: British Timken Works, Main Road, Duston, Northampton ASC 2005.  The Duston 
conservation area is in close proximity
SUMMARY
Although scale and massing has potential to impact on the CA

-?

It appears likely from 2011 census data and layout of the road network that a significant number of car commuters from 
the site would pass through the Zone 3 St James' Road AQMA, Zone 6 Campbell Square AQMA and Zone 2 Victoria 
Promenade AQMA.

-?

The site is wholly located within an area of contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

A small proportion of the site (<50%) falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

++

The site contains more than 1 ha of brownfield land.

0

The site contains no greenfield land.

0

Site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of Grade 4 or higher quality.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of within an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which 
the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 9/9a/9b (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

603



LAA0629r British Timken Site

Site area (m2): 58318Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 140

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 226 dwellings for this site.

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 9/9a/9b (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of an employment site.

+

The east of the site is located within 500m of Chiltern Primary School and the site is within 2km of The Duston School.

+

The site is located within 800m of a doctors surgery.

++

The site is located within 800m of Duston Sports Centre and open spaces including Mendip Road Playing Field and Bants 
Lane Allotments.

0

Site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of  an ‘A’ road, motorway, railway line, or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

604



0

Site is not in proximity to any designated biodiversity or geodiversity site.

++

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land. Aerial imagery and online research indicates that the 
site is disused.

0

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
The site was evaluated and no archaeological activity was identified
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
SNN105349 Archaeological Evaluation: British Timken Works, Main Road, Duston, Northampton ASC 2005.  The Duston 
conservation area is in close proximity
SUMMARY
Although scale and massing has potential to impact on the CA

--?

It appears likely from 2011 census data and layout of the road network that a significant number of car commuters from 
the site would pass through the Zone 3 St James' Road AQMA, Zone 6 Campbell Square AQMA and Zone 2 Victoria 
Promenade AQMA.

-?

The site is wholly located within an area of contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

A small proportion of the site (<50%) falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

++

The site contains more than 1 ha of brownfield land.

0

The site contains no greenfield land.

0

Site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of Grade 4 or higher quality.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of within an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which 
the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of an employment site.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 9/9a/9b (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

605



LAA0657 Fraser Road

Site area (m2): 43662Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 140

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 140 dwellings.

+

The site is within 500m of a cycle route and within and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by routes 1 (10 
min frequency Mon to Sat) and 2 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and within 2,000m of an employment area.

+

The south-eastern half of the site is located within 500m of Thorplands Primary School and more than 1,000m from Weston 
Favell Academy.

+

Site is within 800m of a health care facility.

+

Site is within 800m of Thorplands park adjacent to the north-east of the site.

-

The A43 lies adjacent to the west of the site.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

606



0

Site is not in proximity to any designated biodiversity or geodiversity site.

--

Redevelopment of this would lead to loss of part of Thorplands Park Amenity Green Space.

-

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Adjacent to an area of known Roman activity identified by excavation by Northamptonshire Archaeology in 2013. To the 
south west lies the site of a  Roman building. This area has a high  potential for archaeological activity. MNN 8140,104556 
Unstratified Roman finds.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Historic O/S shows a largely agricultural landscape with a building in the SW area which may had subsequently become 4 
cottages. Unclear if any evidence of buildings remain. Tree cover significant and may justify a TPO.
SUMMARY
The site will be sensitive from a heritage point of view. The setting of the hexagonal cottages will be an important 
consideration. The site is archaeologically sensitive. 

--?

It appears likely from Census 2011 data and layout road network that a significant number of commuters are likely to pass 
through a number of AQMAs. These include Zone 2 Victoria Promenade and Zone 8 St. Michael's Road.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

-

Approximately 1 quarter of the site (north-western part) is located within an area High Risk to groundwater flooding. The 
remainder of the site is located within areas at Negligible or Very Low Risk to groundwater flooding.

0

A small proportion of the site <10% is located within an area at high risk from surface water flooding.

0

Aerial imagery and online research indicates the site has no brownfield land.

--

The Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

0

Site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of Grade 4 or higher quality.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

--?

Approximately one third of the site (north-eastern part) is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP 
considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and within 2,000m of an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

The site is within 500m of a cycle route and within and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by routes 1 (10 
min frequency Mon to Sat) and 2 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

607



LAA0659 Great Meadow Road

Site area (m2): 8223Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 26

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat), 2 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat), and 21 (15 min frequency Mon to Fri).

+

-

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat), 2 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat), and 21 (15 min frequency Mon to Fri).

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

608



0

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

609



LAA0665c 190-199 St Andrews Road

Site area (m2): 1398Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops including those served by bus routes 16 (12min frequency Mon-Fri), 19 (12min frequency Mon to Fri), and 21 (15 
min frequency Mon to Fri).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

+

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops including those served by bus routes 16 (12min frequency Mon-Fri), 19 (12min frequency Mon to Fri), and 21 (15 
min frequency Mon to Fri).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

610



-

N/A

-?

0

-

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

Site is wholly within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

611



LAA0665r 190-199 St Andrews Road

Site area (m2): 1398Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 5

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops including those served by bus routes 16 (12min frequency Mon-Fri), 19 (12min frequency Mon to Fri), and 21 (15 
min frequency Mon to Fri).

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

++

Site is within 500m of Castle Academy Primary School and within 1,000m of Northampton International Academy 
Secondary School.

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops including those served by bus routes 16 (12min frequency Mon-Fri), 19 (12min frequency Mon to Fri), and 21 (15 
min frequency Mon to Fri).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

612



-

N/A

-?

0

-

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

Site is wholly within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

613



LAA0666 171 - 180 St Andrews Road

Site area (m2): 1629Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 22

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 2,000m of a railways station and within 500m of bus stops that are served by route 4 (15 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).  The east of the site is also within 500m of cycle routes.

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre, within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre, within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 2,000m of a railways station and within 500m of bus stops that are served by route 4 (15 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).  The east of the site is also within 500m of cycle routes.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

614



-

N/A

-?

-?

-

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

The site is wholly located within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

615



LAA0672 Tunnel Hill Cottages, Rothersthorpe Road

Site area (m2): 47460Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 139

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 139 dwellings for this site.

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station.  The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

North-eastern corner of site is within 800m of Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment 
areas within 800m of local centres.

++

Over half of the site (northeast and western parts) is within 500m of primary schools.  Site is also within 1,000m of 
Abbeyfield Secondary School.

+

The majority of site, with the exception of part of the west of site, is within 800m of healthcare facilities.

++

Site is within 800m of open space and the southern fringe of site is within 800m of Danes Camp Leisure Centre.

0

Site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of  an ‘A’ road, motorway, railway line, or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

616



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

Southwest corner of site is within 250m of the Hunsbury Hill Country Park LWS.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land which could therefore be lost due to development of this site.

0

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Romano-British well, probable romano-british settlement, reference to Banbury Lane No2 quarry, EH parks enhancement 
register, Camp Pit? - relates to hillfort. DBA 2003 Tunnel Hill farm. LCA identifies other know archaeological. Our records 
show that the area has been quarried  potentially removing any archaeological remains.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
TPO in south east of site. There are no designated heritage assets in the vicinity, the cottages are later than the railway but 
may have an association wit the use of the land as allotments
SUMMARY
There is limited historical potential with regard to this site

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

-?

Part of the northeast of the site is within an area of contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

Parts of the site (<50%) are within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk areas. These are primarily confined to the north-
eastern corner, western edge and centre of site.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land.  Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The majority of site, with the exception of the easternmost fringe, contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.  
Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

++

North-eastern corner of site is within 800m of Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment 
areas within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station.  The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

617



0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

618



LAA0673 Delapre Middle School Annexe

Site area (m2): 4971Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 20

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 2 which has a 15 minute frequency Monday 
to Saturday.  The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre and a local centre, and is adjacent to an employment site.

+

-

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre and a local centre, and is adjacent to an employment site.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 2 which has a 15 minute frequency Monday 
to Saturday.  The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

619



-

N/A

-?

0

--

The site is wholly located within Flood Zone 3.

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

620



LAA0674 Depot Cotton End

Site area (m2): 7028Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 28

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 2 which has a 15 minute frequency 
Monday to Saturday.  The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is adjacent to the town centre and a local centre and is within 2,000m of employment sites.

-

-

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is adjacent to the town centre and a local centre and is within 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 2 which has a 15 minute frequency 
Monday to Saturday.  The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

621



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site and is also within 250m of the 
Grand Union Canal Local Wildlife Site.

N/A

-?

-?

--

Apart from a small area in the centre of the site, the site is almost wholly located within Flood Zone 3.

-

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

622



LAA0675 GTMR Depot Cotton End East

Site area (m2): 3642Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 16

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 2 which has a 15 minute frequency 
Monday to Saturday. The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is located adjacent to the town centre and another local centre and is within 2,000m of employment sites.

-

-

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located adjacent to the town centre and another local centre and is within 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 2 which has a 15 minute frequency 
Monday to Saturday. The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

623



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site and is within 250m of the Grand 
Union Canal Local Wildlife Site.

N/A

-?

0

--

The site is wholly located within Flood Zone 3.

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

The site is located within 300m of an active or committed waste management site.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

624



LAA0685 Adj 12 Pennycress Place

Site area (m2): 3035Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 12

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSI. Approximately two thirds of the site 

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

625



(western part) is within 250m of Ecton Brook Park LWS.

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Development of site would lead to loss of part of Ecton Brook Playing 
Fields Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

Approximately 20% of the site (south western corner) is within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

626



LAA0689 Nene Enterprise Centre, Freehold Street

Site area (m2): 3624Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 14

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of a 
number of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 16 (12 min frequency Mon-Fri), 21 (15 min frequency 
Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency during university summer vacation).

++

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres. The site is also located within 2,000m of several employment areas, 
including one adjacent to the northwest of site. It is noted that the site partially contains an employment area that could be 
lost to development on the site. However, if this were lost the site would still be within 2,000m of employment areas.

++

Approximately half the site (eastern part) is within 500m of Malcolm Arnold Preparatory School. The entire site is within 
1,000m of Malcolm Arnold Academy Secondary School.

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of a 
number of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 16 (12 min frequency Mon-Fri), 21 (15 min frequency 

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

627



0

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres. The site is also located within 2,000m of several employment areas, 
including one adjacent to the northwest of site. It is noted that the site partially contains an employment area that could be 
lost to development on the site. However, if this were lost the site would still be within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency during university summer vacation).

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

628



LAA0719 Car garages workshops, 409 Harlestone Road

Site area (m2): 10896Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 35

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is within 800m of local centres.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas, including one across the road 
to the north of site.  It is noted that the site partially contains an employment area that could be lost to development on the 
site. However, if this were lost the site would still be within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

-

++

Site is within 800m of Duston Sports centre and a number of open spaces.

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is within 800m of local centres.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas, including one across the road 
to the north of site.  It is noted that the site partially contains an employment area that could be lost to development on the 

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

629



0

N/A

-?

0

0

0

-

++

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of 
brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

Site is within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

site. However, if this were lost the site would still be within 2,000m of employment areas.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

630



LAA0720 Ryland Soans Ford garage, Harlestone Road

Site area (m2): 19409Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 62

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is within 800m of local centres.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas, including one across the road 
to the north of site.  It is noted that the site partially contains an employment area that could be lost to development on the 
site. However, if this were lost the site would still be within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

-

++

Site is within 800m of Duston Sports centre and within 800 a number of open spaces, including Circus End Natural/Semi-
natural Green Space adjacent to the southwest and southeast of site.

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is within 800m of local centres.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas, including one across the road 

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

631



0

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

-

++

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as Wholly Previously Developed Land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of 
brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

-

--?

Site is within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

to the north of site.  It is noted that the site partially contains an employment area that could be lost to development on the 
site. However, if this were lost the site would still be within 2,000m of employment areas.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

632



LAA0740 Exeter Place/ Kettering Road

Site area (m2): 3306Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 13

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The northern half of the site is located within 500m of a cycle route and the site is located within 500m of bus stops served 
by routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 (15 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The site is located adjacent to the town centre and other local centres and is within 2,000m of employment sites.

-

The site is located more than 500m from a primary school but is located within 1,000m of Northampton International 
Academy.

+

++

The site is located within 800m of Mounts Baths Leisure Centre and other open spaces including Kettering Road Amenity 
Green Space and The Racecourse Park.

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The northern half of the site is located within 500m of a cycle route and the site is located within 500m of bus stops served 
by routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 (15 min 

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

633



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site.

--

The site is located on Kettering Road Amenity Green Space.  Development of the site will lead to loss of the majority of this 
open space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is located adjacent to the town centre and other local centres and is within 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

frequency Mon to Sat).

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

634



LAA0744c The Ridings Arcade, 61-63 St Giles Street (upper floors)

Site area (m2): 1433Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 2 and 31 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 and 21 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min 
frequency in summer vacation).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

+

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 2 and 31 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 and 21 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min 
frequency in summer vacation).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

635



0

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

636



LAA0744r The Ridings Arcade, 61-63 St Giles Street (upper floors)

Site area (m2): 1433Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 21

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 2 and 31 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 and 21 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min 
frequency in summer vacation).

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  Site is also within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of open space and sports facilities.

0

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 2 and 31 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 and 21 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min 
frequency in summer vacation).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

637



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  Site is also within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

638



LAA0749 Compton House, 83-85 Abington Street

Site area (m2): 598Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 94

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 2 and 31 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 and 21 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min 
frequency in summer vacation).

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  Site is also within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas, 
including the employment area located adjacent to the north and west of site.  It is noted that part of an employment area 
is located at the site which could be lost to development. However, if this employment land were to be lost the site would 
still be located within 2,000m of other employment areas.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of open space and is within 800m of Mounts Baths Leisure Centre and Cripps Recreation Centre.

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

639



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  Site is also within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas, 
including the employment area located adjacent to the north and west of site.  It is noted that part of an employment area 
is located at the site which could be lost to development. However, if this employment land were to be lost the site would 
still be located within 2,000m of other employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 2 and 31 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 and 21 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min 
frequency in summer vacation).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

640



LAA0767 46 Spencer Street

Site area (m2): 1436Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 25

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 19 which has a 12 minute frequency 
Monday to Friday. The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and almost adjacent to a couple of employment centres.

-

-

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and almost adjacent to a couple of employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops served by route 19 which has a 12 minute frequency 
Monday to Friday. The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

641



-

N/A

-?

-?

-

-

0

N/A

N/A

0

-?

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

The site is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

642



LAA0771 Jewsons and Continental Coachworks, Gladstone Road

Site area (m2): 8719Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 31

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway station, within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including 
those served by route 31 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

++

Approximately two thirds of the site (northwest part) is located within 500m of Spring lane Primary School. The site is also 
within 1,000m of Northampton International Academy Secondary School.

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway station, within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including 
those served by route 31 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

643



0

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

Site is within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

644



LAA0814 32 Great Russell Street

Site area (m2): 1501Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 12

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Approximately three quarters of the site (northern part) is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 2,000m of 
Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 (15 min frequency Mon to 
Sat).

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.  It is noted that the site partially contains an 
employment area that could be lost to development on the site.  However, if this were lost the site would still be within 
2,000m of employment areas.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of Mounts Baths Leisure Centre and within 800m of a number of open spaces.

0

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Approximately three quarters of the site (northern part) is within 500m of cycle routes. The site is also within 2,000m of 
Northampton Railway Station and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min 

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

645



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.  It is noted that the site partially contains an 
employment area that could be lost to development on the site.  However, if this were lost the site would still be within 
2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 (15 min frequency Mon to 
Sat).

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

646



LAA0818 St Peter's Way

Site area (m2): 21132Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

Site is more than 1ha.

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

647



0

N/A

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Projected route of the Saxon defences runs through the north of the site. The test pits undertaken as part of the MOLA 
2014 works revealed extensive disturbance as one would expect on the former gas works. However, the northern part was 
less disturbed and so we could still have evidence of the Saxon defences. Figure 1 of the Wessex DBA shows where they 
might be. HLC - other known archaeological.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
The former gas works building is included on the local list of important building and therefore will need to be retained.  Built 
of red brick under a slate roof and largely unaltered. Significant building benefiting from a highly prominent location. Good 
quality railings to front which should be retained. Possible medieval road surface.
SUMMARY
Existing  building should be retained and brought back into sensitive use - its setting will also be an important 
consideration. Site has been a gas works since 1883 - shown on Historic O/S. Building heights, views to and from Town 
Centre and to/from other assets will be important considerations.

-?

-?

--

The majority of the site (>50%) is located within Flood Zone 3.

-

-

++

The site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

648



LAA0827 Bus Depot Cotton End

Site area (m2): 2168Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 8

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of the Norbital cycle route and bus stops served by route 2 which has a 15 minute 
frequency Monday to Saturday.  The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment sites.

-

+

+

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 500m of the Norbital cycle route and bus stops served by route 2 which has a 15 minute 
frequency Monday to Saturday.  The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

649



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site and is within 250m of the Grand 
Union Canal Local Wildlife Site.

N/A

-?

-?

--

The site is wholly located within Flood Zone 3.

-

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

650



LAA0831 Perrett Scrap Cotton End

Site area (m2): 1677Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 8

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of the Norbital cycle route and bus stops served by route 1 which has a 15 minute 
frequency Monday to Saturday.  The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment sites.

-

-

+

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 500m of the Norbital cycle route and bus stops served by route 1 which has a 15 minute 
frequency Monday to Saturday.  The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

651



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site. It is also located within 250m of 
the Grand Union Canal Local Wildlife Site.

N/A

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Site developed but ground works may impact on burials. Archaeological potential. HLC - other known archaeological.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Prominent site on a principle entry into the town. Scale & massing will be important considerations.  Frontage building dates 
from before 1883 and may be associated with the railway. Other buildings date from 1925. St Leonards Hospital, Church, 
farm. London - Derby Road. Towcester to Cotton End turnpike. Cotton End laundry. London & NW railway.
SUMMARY
The site is sensitive and development proposals have the potential to impact on designated and non-designated heritage 
assets.

-?

0

--

The site is wholly located within Flood Zone 3.

-

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

The site is located within 300m of an active or committed waste management site.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

652



LAA0870 Sixfields, Upton Way

Site area (m2): 21663Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

Site is above 1ha.

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

653



-

N/A

-?

0

-

0

-

++

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  Aerial imagery indicates that over 1ha of the site is 
brownfield land.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  Aerial imagery indicates that less than 1ha of the site is 
greenfield land.

0

Site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of Grade 4 or higher quality.

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

654



LAA0903 Hawkins Shoe Factory, Overstone Road

Site area (m2): 2593Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 105

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 105 dwellings for this site.

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times The 
south of site is within 500m of a cycle routes. The site is also within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 
500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency 
Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat)..

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

-

+

++

The site is located within 800m of Mount Baths Leisure Centre and other open spaces including The Racecourse and 
Kettering Road Amenity Green Space.

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

655



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site.

N/A

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Building Impact Assessment before any development followed by recording if appropriate
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Grade II Listed Building located with a conservation area.  DNN 6584 Former GT Hawkins Factory English Heritage 
Northamptonshire Boot and Shoe Industry Report, 2000, pp.4, 35 & 39, and Site Report No.48.  Formed by a cluster of 
buildings gradually combined to form one larger factory site. Conversion of  buildings to appropriate use retaining features 
which are important to their character as  former boot and shoe factories, including the iron windows. GT Hawkins benefited 
from  'Royal Appointment' - sign above main entrance survives. Forms part of a cluster of former factories on the street.  
The property has previously been granted consent for conversion to residential which has not ben implemented
SUMMARY
These building have a prominent location in the conservation area and holds a significant position in the history of the boot 
& shoe industry. A sensitive reuse and conversion would have a positive influence. It will be important to recognise and be 
sensitive to the detailing of each of the buildings which have subtle differences in the design detailing if character is no to 
be harmed by development proposals. Iron windows are of importance.

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times The 
south of site is within 500m of a cycle routes. The site is also within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station and within 
500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency 
Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat)..

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

656



LAA0910 379 Harlestone Road

Site area (m2): 5261Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 17

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres. The site is also located is also within 2,000m of employment areas, 
including one adjacent to the west of site.

+

-

++

The site is within 800m of open space and within 800m of Duston Sports Centre.  It is noted that Circus End Natural/Semi-
natural Green Space is partially contained on the site and may be lost to development.  However, if this were to be lost the 
site would still be within 800m of open space.

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres. The site is also located is also within 2,000m of employment areas, 

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

657



0

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land which could therefore be lost due to development of this site. Site 
also contains part of Circus End Natural/Semi-Natural Open Space.  Therefore, development of this site could cause loss of 
designated open space.

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

-

--?

Site is within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

including one adjacent to the west of site.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

658



LAA0915c 118-122 Wellingborough Road

Site area (m2): 973Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

+

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

+

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar site and SPA.

N/A

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

659



-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

660



LAA0915r 118-122 Wellingborough Road

Site area (m2): 973Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 12

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is located within Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of 
local centres.  It is noted that the site partially contains a local centre which could be lost to development at the site.  
However, if this were lost the site would still be within 800m of local centres.

+

+

++

Site is located within 800m of Cripps Recreation Centre and Mounts Baths Leisure Centre.  The site is also within 800m of 
open space.

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is located within Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of 

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

661



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

local centres.  It is noted that the site partially contains a local centre which could be lost to development at the site.  
However, if this were lost the site would still be within 800m of local centres.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

662



LAA0931 Sites in Green Street

Site area (m2): 5093Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

+

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

663



0

N/A

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
MNN 13879 Area south of Bakewell Street & north of River Nene;{4}Area south of Bakewell Street & north of River Nene; 
by this time tenement contains orchards & gardens MNN8778 Saxon defences run along the south of the site. MNN 8778 
Medieval and post medieval defences. Evaluation at Green Street indicates the potential for medieval activity and this may 
continue into this area. Suggestion that the area inside defensive ditch given over to tanning in the late C13th; tannery 
locate just outside the western extent of the site
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
1883 Historic mapping shows tannery on site. Adjacent to SM  and close to designated and non-designated heritage 
assets,   Evaluation at Green Street indicates the potential of medieval activity and this may continue into this area. 
Suggestion that the area inside defensive ditch given over to tanning in late C13th; Tannery located just outside the 
western extent of the site MNN19965. Mill race to rear of the site has significance with regard to historic use of the area  
(malting) as does the meadow behind.  Consideration of impact of development on the scheduled monument Saxon Palace 
Complex and Saxon and Medieval Urban Deposits in the Centre of Northampton. Impact on setting of  St Peters Church and 
other designated and non-designated heritage assets in the locality. The site appears to have been cleared.
SUMMARY
This site has the potential to be very sensitive from a heritage point of view even though there has been disturbance. It 
would appear that the site has been cleared. The site is within the enterprise zone and has been identified as suitable  for 
development.

-?

-?

-

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

664



LAA0932 Southbridge Site 1

Site area (m2): 1685Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 44

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes, within 2,000m of a railway stations, and within 500m of bus stops that are 
served by route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The site is located within Northampton town centre, within 2,000m of employment sites, and within 800m of local centres.

-

+

++

The site is located within 800m of Cripps Recreation Centre and within 800m of open space.

0

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes, within 2,000m of a railway stations, and within 500m of bus stops that are 
served by route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

665



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site.

N/A

0

-?

-?

-

-

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

The site is located within Northampton town centre, within 2,000m of employment sites, and within 800m of local centres.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

666



LAA0933 Southbridge Site 2

Site area (m2): 946Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 50

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes, within 2,000m of a railway stations, and within 500m of bus stops that are 
served by route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The site is located within Northampton town centre, adjacent to an employment site, and within 800m of local centres.

-

+

++

The site is located within 800m of Cripps Recreation Centre and within 800m of open space.

0

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes, within 2,000m of a railway stations, and within 500m of bus stops that are 
served by route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

667



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site.

N/A

0

-?

-?

-

0

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

The south of the site is located within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

The site is located within Northampton town centre, adjacent to an employment site, and within 800m of local centres.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

668



LAA1001 Former Emmanuel Middle School

Site area (m2): 22383Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 83

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is located adjacent to a local centre and employment site.

++

The site is located within 500m of Lumbertubs Primary School and within 1,000m of Northampton Academy.

+

++

The site is located within 800m of Lings Forum Leisure Centre and other open spaces including Lings Park Natural Space 
and Lumbertubs Park.

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located adjacent to a local centre and employment site.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

669



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site.

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

++

The site contains more than 1 ha of brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

670



LAA1005 Land north of Martins Yard, Spencer Bridge Road

Site area (m2): 73445Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

The site is within 500m of a cycle route and is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station.  The site is also within 500m 
of several bus stops, including those served by bus route 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

-?

Site is not directly adjacent to residential development or other sensitive receptors, but is within 100m of residential 
development. The site is separated from the nearest residential development to the east by a recreation ground and rugby 
ground and to the west by the railway tracks.

N/A

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

The site is above 1ha.

0

The site is not located within Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

671



--

The site is located on Kingsthorpe Mire Local Wildlife Site.

--

Development of the site would lead to loss of Lyncroft Way Natural Space.

0

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Records of unstratified finds but former Brickyard and rubbish dump. Impact of railway construction.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
The development of the site from 1883 to 1937 is clear from historic O/S maps with a brickworks being a significant part of 
the development of the site with a tramway leading up to approximately the pond which is shown as the clay pit
SUMMARY
The heritage potential of the site appears limited

--?

It appears likely from 2011 census data and the layout of the road network that a significant proportion of car commuters 
to the site would pass through the Zone 3 St James' Road AQMA and the Zone 6 Campbell Square AQMA.

-?

Parts of the site along the western edge are located on contaminated land.

--

The majority of the site (>50%) along the western edge is located in Flood Zone 3, the remainder of the site is located 
outside of Flood Zones 2 and 3.

0

The majority of the site is within a negligible groundwater flood risk area, part of the site along the eastern edge is located 
within a moderate groundwater flood risk area.

-

Parts of the east of the site (<50%) are located in a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

The site contains more than 1 ha of greenfield land.

-

The site contains more than 1ha of Grade 4 (poor) agricultural land but does not contain any Grade 1-3 agricultural land.

0

None of the site falls within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area and minerals extraction conflict consultation buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of category C, D or E ground instability.

--

The site is located within 300m of an active or committed waste management site.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is within 500m of a cycle route and is within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station.  The site is also within 500m 
of several bus stops, including those served by bus route 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

672



LAA1006 Pineham

Site area (m2): 33158Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 106

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 106 dwellings for this site.

-

The site is located within 500m of a cycle route however, it is not located within 500m of bus stops served by routes with a 
15 minute frequency or more, or within 2,000m of a railway station.

+

The site is adjacent to an employment area.

--

The site is located further than 500m from a primary school and 2km from a secondary school.

-

The site is located further than 800m from a healthcare facility.

+

The eastern end of the site is located within 800m of Upper Nene Country Park and Banbury Lane Amenity Green Space.

0

The site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of an A road, motorway, railway line or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

The site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

673



-

The site is located within 250m of Upton Mill South Lake, Upton Mill North Lake and Camp Lane and Drain Local Wildlife 
Sites.

-

Aerial imagery indicates that the site is greenfield.

0

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Quarried ?
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Ridge & Furrow survives in NW corner. Historic field boundary runs N/S through the site. Line of trees to the west of site 
may signify a historic survival
SUMMARY
The heritage potential of the site appears limited

-?

It appears unlikely that traffic generated from the site will pass through an AQMA.

0

The site is not located within a Source Protection Zone or on contaminated land.

-

A small proportion (<50%) of the site, along the eastern edge is located in Flood Zone 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

0

The site is not located within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

The site does not appear to contain any brownfield land.

--

The site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The site is located entirely on Grade 3 agricultural land and therefore contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 (good to 
moderate) agricultural land.

--?

The site is wholly located within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of category C, D or E ground instability.

0

The site is not located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP  considers waste management uses to be 
acceptable, or an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

+

The site is adjacent to an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

The site is located within 500m of a cycle route however, it is not located within 500m of bus stops served by routes with a 
15 minute frequency or more, or within 2,000m of a railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

674



LAA1007 Land south of Wooldale Road, east of Wootton Road

Site area (m2): 50407Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 44

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

-

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes.  However, it is not located within 500m of bus stops served by routes with a 
15 minute frequency, or within 2,000m of a railway station.

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment centres.

-

The site is located within 1km of Caroline Chisholm Secondary School but is more than 500m from a primary school.

+

The site is located within 800m of Wootton Medical Centre.

+

The site is located within 800m of a number of open spaces including Wooldale Road Amenity Green Space and Wootton 
Recreation Ground.

0

The site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of an A road, motorway, railway line or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

The site is not within the town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

675



0

The site is not located within 250m of a locally designated biodiversity site, it is not within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site, and does not contain optimal supporting habitat for Golden Plover.

-

Aerial imagery indicates that the site is greenfield.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Probable Iron Age/ Romano British Site
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
MNN170486 Probable IA/RB site identified by geophysical survey ENN107839 MOLA 2014 geophysical survey.  Historic 
footpath runs N/S through approximately the middle of the site linking Wootton and Quinton. Ridge and furrow survives 
across a significant part of the site.
SUMMARY
The site is sensitive from and archaeological point of view and with the remains of ridge and furrow.  The historic footpath 
route could be incorporated into development proposals as has happened to the north of Wooldale Road

--?

It appears likely from 2011 census data and the layout of the road network that a significant number of car commuters 
from this site would pass through the Zone 5 A45 AQMA.

0

The site is not located within an SPZ or an area of contaminated land.

-

The southern edge of the site (<50%) is located within Flood Zone 3.

-

The eastern end of the site (<50%) is within 'high' or 'very high' groundwater flood risk areas.

-

The southern edges of the site (<50%) are within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

The site contains no brownfield land.

--

The site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 (good to moderate) agricultural land.

--?

The site is located entirely within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of category C, D or E ground instability.

0

The site is not within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable, or 
within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes.  However, it is not located within 500m of bus stops served by routes with a 
15 minute frequency, or within 2,000m of a railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

676



LAA1009 Land west of Policy N5 Northampton South Sustainable Urban Extension

Site area (m2): 84623Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 271

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 264 dwellings for this site.

-

Approximately half of site (north-eastern part) is within 500m of cycle routes.  It is noted that site is also within 500m of 
bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

Site is located more than 500m from primary schools. The site is within 2,000m of Abbeyfield and Wootton Hall Park 
Secondary Schools.

-

Site is more than 800m from healthcare facilities.  It is noted that the north-easternmost corner of site is within 800m of a 
healthcare facility.  As this is such a small proportion of site (<1%) the score for this SA Objective has been downgraded 
from minor positive “+” to minor negative “-“ effects.

+

Site is within 800m of open space.

-

The western fringe of site is within 50m of the railway line.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

677



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

Eastern part of site (approximately a third of site) is within 500m of Collingtree Golf Course Local Wildlife Site.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land. Therefore, development of this site could lead to loss of greenfield 
land that is not designated as open space.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Probable Iron Age/ Romano British Site extending into the area from the south. Impact of slurry pipe needs to be considered
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
MNN164472 IA/RB settlement to the south ENN103288 Rugby Cement Line 2001 Watching Brief ENTEC no archaeology 
observed. Ridge & Furrow survives along the southern boundary
SUMMARY
The site has potential to be sensitive from an archaeological point of view

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zone 3 and a smaller proportion of site (1-50%) falls within Flood Zone 2.

-

Approximately 20% of site falls within 'High Risk' or 'Very High Risk' groundwater flood risk areas and approximately 20% 
of site falls within a 'Moderate Risk' groundwater flood risk area.  The remainder of site falls within ‘Negligible Risk’, ‘Low 
Risk’ and ‘Very Low Risk’ groundwater flood risk areas.

0

None of the site falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land. Therefore the site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The entire site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land. Therefore the site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 
agricultural land.

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

Approximately half of site (north-eastern part) is within 500m of cycle routes.  It is noted that site is also within 500m of 
bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

678



0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

679



LAA1010c Land at St Peter's Way/ Court Road/ Freeschool Street

Site area (m2): 11742Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

The site is above 1 ha.

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

680



0

N/A

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Site of nationally significant archaeological deposits and also within the medieval core.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
NN21 Saxon Palace Complex and medieval urban deposits - forms part of a wider site which is a Scheduled Monument.  
Setting of St Peter's Church and Hazelrigg House will be a consideration. More recently associated with the boot & shoe 
industry.  Reference made to foundry on the site.
SUMMARY
This site is very heritage sensitive and the form of a development proposal has potential to have a significant impact.  

-?

-?

0

0

0

++

The site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

681



LAA1010r Land at St Peter's Way/ Court Road/ Freeschool Street

Site area (m2): 11742Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 37

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The western half of the site is within 800m of a local centre, and the site is within 2,000m of employment centres.

+

The northern third of the site is located within 500m of Spring Lane Primary School and the site is more than 1,000m from 
a secondary school.

+

++

The north eastern corner of the site is located within 800m of Mounts Baths Leisure Centre and other open spaces including 
Narrowtoe Lane Amenity Green Space and Foot Meadow Natural Space.

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

682



--

The eastern half of the site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site.

N/A

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Site of nationally significant archaeological deposits and also within the medieval core.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
NN21 Saxon Palace Complex and medieval urban deposits - forms part of a wider site which is a Scheduled Monument.  
Setting of St Peter's Church and Hazelrigg House will be a consideration. More recently associated with the boot & shoe 
industry.  Reference made to foundry on the site.
SUMMARY
This site is very heritage sensitive and the form of a development proposal has potential to have a significant impact.  

-?

-?

0

0

0

++

The site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The western half of the site is within 800m of a local centre, and the site is within 2,000m of employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

683



LAA1013 University of Northampton, Park Campus

Site area (m2): 274998Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 800

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 800 dwellings

+

The site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including  those served by bus route 4 (15 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The eastern and western thirds of the site are within 800m of Local Centres. The site is also within 2,000m of employment 
areas including one to the north-east of the site.

++

The site is within 500m of All Saints Primary School, with the exception of the south-eastern corner. The site is also within 
1,000m of Kingsthorpe College Secondary School.

+

A healthcare facility is located within the site, which is judged likely to remain were the site to be redeveloped.

++

The site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including  those served by bus route 16 (12 min 
frequency Mon to Fri) and bus route 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency in summer vacation).

0

Site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of  an ‘A’ road, motorway, railway line, or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

684



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

The south-eastern half of the site is within 250m of Scrub Field LNR and Bradlaugh Field LWS.

-

Development of this site will lead to loss of greenfield land that is not designated as open space.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
 Site of former Moulton Park House .  Part of the former Moulton Park House and its landscape survive, including Ha-Ha, 
lodge, boundary wall, tree lined drive. Part of the former house may also exist. HLC identify non-registered P&G and close 
to other known archaeology. The boundary wall and Lodge survive and make an important contribution to the locality.  Part 
of the former drive and Ha-Ha remain on site and have been highlighted as important in redevelopment discussions. The 
site was evaluated by Cotswold Archaeology in 2014. No significant areas of archaeological activity were identified. County 
Archaeological Advisor highlights the C19 landscape value as important. There is an extensive TPO across the site
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
O/L Planning permission has been granted for the construction of UP TO 800 Houses. The surviving component parts of the 
heritage assets offer the opportunity of making a positive contribution to local character and sense of place in a proposed 
new development and should be safeguarded and incorporated into a development proposal. Should the heritage assets not 
be incorporated there is potential for harm in heritage terms.
SUMMARY
There is the opportunity for new development to protect and better reveal the remaining non-designated heritage assets 
which also has the potential of having a positive impact on the form of any new development. However, the loss of or 
damage to the remaining heritage assets will cause a level of harm.

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and layout road network that a significant number of car commuters from the area 
of this site will pass through four AQMAs. These include Zone 4 Harborough Road,  Zone 2 Victoria Promenade, Zone 6 
Campbell Square and  Zone 8 St Michael's Road.

0

A small proportion of the site (>10%) contains contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

Parts of the site (>50%) are within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk areas. These are dispersed throughout the site.

++

Aerial imagery and online research indicates the site has more than 1ha of brownfield land.

--

Aerial imagery and online research indicates the site has more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 agricultural land  but less than 1ha of Grade 1 or Grade 2 agricultural land.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

++

The eastern and western thirds of the site are within 800m of Local Centres. The site is also within 2,000m of employment 
areas including one to the north-east of the site.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

The site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including  those served by bus route 4 (15 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

685



0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

--?

Approximately one quarter of the site (north-western part) is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP 
considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

686



LAA1014 University of Northampton Avenue Campus

Site area (m2): 60167Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 200

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 200 dwellings for this site.

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and approximately 75% of the site (eastern part) is within 2,000m of a Northampton 
Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus route 4 (15 min frequency 
Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres. The site is also within 2,000m of several employment areas, including one 
adjacent to the west of site.

++

Site is within 500m of Malcolm Arnold Preparatory School and within 1,000m of Malcolm Arnold Academy.

+

Site is within 800m of a healthcare facility.

+

Site is located within 800m of several open spaces including the Racecourse recreation ground adjacent to the south of site.

0

Site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of  an ‘A’ road, motorway, railway line, or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

687



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Approximately one third of the site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

+

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land. Aerial imagery and online research indicates that the 
site is currently in use by Northampton University for educational purposes.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
HLC shows adjacent to non-registered P&G and other known archaeology.  Possible evidence of brick kilns/brick works. TPO 
on part of site
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
 Local list buildings - pavilion buildings,  Kingsley CA, adjacent to former Kingsley Park Middle School - Grade II listed 
building.    Local List buildings important, their relationship to each other and the park is significant and changes to this and 
their setting may be harmful in heritage terms. There is a current live application for O/L planning permission for residential 
development. Adjacent to LB - setting and character and appearance of CA valid consideration.  The two pavilion buildings 
forming part of the site are important in terms of their relationship to each other and the park
SUMMARY
The form of the development will significantly influence the setting of the heritage assets.  It will be important to take this 
into account to ensure the opportunity to preserve or better reveal the historic significance of the site is taken.

--?

It appears likely from Census 2011 data and layout road network that a significant number of commuters from the area of 
this site would pass through two AQMA. These are Zone 6 Campbell Square and Zone 8 St. Michael's Road.

-?

The western and north-eastern parts of the site are within areas of contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

--

Approximately two thirds of the site (>50%) (western part) is within an area of 'High Risk' to groundwater flooding. The 
remainder of the site is within an area of 'Negligible' or 'Low Risk' to groundwater flooding.

-

A number of areas spread throughout the site are in within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk areas.

++

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of 
brownfield land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

Site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of Grade 4 or higher quality.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

++

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres. The site is also within 2,000m of several employment areas, including one 
adjacent to the west of site.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and approximately 75% of the site (eastern part) is within 2,000m of a Northampton 
Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus route 4 (15 min frequency 
Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

688



0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

689



LAA1022 Belgrave House

Site area (m2): 2093Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 99

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local 
centres.

++

Site is within 1,000m of the Northampton International Academy Secondary School and the western half of the site is within 
500m of a primary school.

+

++

Site is within 800m of open space and within 800m of Mounts Baths Leisure Centre.

0

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

690



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local 
centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

691



LAA1023 East Island

Site area (m2): 4165Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 42

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 2 and 31 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 and 21 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min 
frequency in summer vacation).

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  Site is also within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment areas, 
including the employment site located across the road to the north of site.  It is noted that an employment site is located at 
the site which could be lost to development. However, if this employment land were to be lost the site would still be located 
within 2,000m of employment sites.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of sports facilities and open space, including Wellington St Amenity Greenspace located across the road 
to the east of site.

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

692



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  Site is also within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment areas, 
including the employment site located across the road to the north of site.  It is noted that an employment site is located at 
the site which could be lost to development. However, if this employment land were to be lost the site would still be located 
within 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 2 and 31 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 and 21 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri) and 19 (12 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min 
frequency in summer vacation).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

693



LAA1024 Great Houghton Independent School

Site area (m2): 69198Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 240

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 240 dwellings for this site.

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes.  It is noted that the site is also within 500m of bus stops however these are not served 
by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

--

Site is located more than 500m from primary schools and more than 2,000m from secondary schools.

-

Site is more than 800m from healthcare facilities.

+

Site is within 800m of open space, including Great Houghton Churchyard adjacent to the southeast of site.

-

The northern border of site is adjacent to the A428.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

694



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.  In addition, approximately two thirds 
of the site contains optimal supporting habitat for the Golden Plover population of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits with the 
remainder unsuitable for Golden Plover or not included in the GIS analysis.

-

Site identified by NBC's LAA as part previously developed land.  The majority of this site is greenfield which could therefore 
be lost to development.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
HLC identifies other know archaeology, turnpike road to north.  Close to R&F.  Possible romano-british settlement. North of 
school there are earthworks associated with the shrunken medieval village which are clearly visible from aerial photos. 
County Archaeological Officer has highlighted the former medieval earthworks, mainly destroyed but potential for activity to 
survive below ground, ridge and furrow earthworks, possible prehistoric/RB activity to south, excavations in advance of 
brackmills extension have identified iron age/ RB and Saxon activity.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Setting of listed building and character of the conservation area valid considerations.  Elevated position in valley which may 
reflect the position of the village historically.  
SUMMARY
This site is very sensitive historically for a number of reasons

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

0

None of the site falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

++

Site identified by NBC's LAA as part previously developed land.  Site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC's LAA as part previously developed land.  Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The entire site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.  Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of Grade 
3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

-?

The majority of site, with the exception of approximately a third of site to the southeast, is within a Sand and Gravel 
Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes.  It is noted that the site is also within 500m of bus stops however these are not served 
by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

695



--?

Approximately a quarter of site (to the northwest) is within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste 
management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

696



LAA1025 Land to the west of Towcester Road

Site area (m2): 88556Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 180

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 180 dwellings for this site.

+

The majority of site is within 500m of cycle routes, with the exception of a small part of the south western corner of site.  
The site is also within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

Site is located more than 500m from primary schools. With the exception of the southwestern corner of site, site is within 
2,000m of Abbeyfield and Wootton Hall Park Secondary Schools.

-

Site is more than 800m from healthcare facilities.

+

Site is within 800m of open space, including the Counties Crematorium Cemetery adjacent to site.

-

Southwestern portion of site is within Zone 1: The M1 Corridor AQMA and southern edge of site is within 50m of the M1 
itself.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

697



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

A small part of the site (north-east corner) is within 250m of the Wootton Railway Embankments LWS.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land. Therefore, development of this site could lead to loss greenfield land 
that is not designated as open space.

-

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Potential for archaeological activity based on the known sites to the east and west. However the impact of the slurry pipe 
needs to be considered
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
 Rugby Cement Chalk Slurry line ENN103288 Rugby Cement Line 2001 Watching Brief ENTEC no archaeology 
observed.MNN133798  Ridge and furrow earthworks.  Existing tree belts follow historic routes across the site (see 1883 
O/S map)  R+F survives across a proportion of the site
SUMMARY
Using existing features on the site (tree belts, historic routes) offers the opportunity of creating a sense of place.  

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

-

Parts or the site (<50%) are within Flood Zones 2 and 3. These areas are confined to the north-eastern and north-western 
corners of site as well as along the stream on site.

-

The majority (>50%) of site is within ‘Moderate Risk’ groundwater risk areas, predominantly in the centre and east of site. 
Parts of the site (<50%) are also within ‘High Risk’ and ‘Very High Risk’ groundwater flood risk areas, confined 
predominantly to the southwest and northwest of site.

-

Parts of the site (<50%) are within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk areas. These are primarily confined to the west 
and northeast of site.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land, therefore site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The entire site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of Grade 
3 agricultural land.

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

The majority of site is within 500m of cycle routes, with the exception of a small part of the south western corner of site.  
The site is also within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

698



0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

699



LAA1026 Eastern Land parcel

Site area (m2): 8808Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 24

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

-

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

700



N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

Approximately 15% of the site (northern part) is located within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

701



LAA1027 Harlestone Road

Site area (m2): 27951Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 71

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

NBC has estimated a capacity of 71 dwellings for this site.

-

The site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops. However, it is judged that Darlington Brook to the 
north of the site creates a barrier to access which increases walking distance significantly beyond 500m to reach bus route 
31 (15 min frequency Mon to Fri). But stop within 500m to the south of site are not served by buses with at least a 15 
minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.  Therefore, the score for this SA Objective has been amended from 
minor positive “+” to minor negative “-“.

++

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres and within 2,000m of a number of employment areas.

+

Approximately two thirds of the site (southern part) is located within 500m of Hopping Hill Primary School. The site is also 
within 2,000m of Duston Secondary School.

-

Approximately one third of the site (northern part) is located within 800m of a healthcare facility. However, it is judged that 
Darlington Brook to the north of the site creates a barrier to access which increases walking distance to the facility 
significantly beyond 800m.  Therefore the score for this SA Objective has been amended from minor positive “+” to minor 
negative “-“.

++

Site is within 800m of Duston Sports Centre and within 800m a number of open spaces, including Dallington Cemetery 
adjacent to the southeast of site. It is noted that part of Harlestone Allotments is located on site and may be lost to 
development. However, it this were lost the site would still be within 800m of open space.

-

South of site is adjacent to and within 50m of the A428.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

702



0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

Site is within 250m of Darlington Brook Field LWS.

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield land. Development of this site would lead to loss of all or part of 
Harlestone Road Allotments.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Potential for archaeological activity unknown
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
MNN24855 unstratified Mesolithic flint core NN14548 Hopping Hill Allotments
SUMMARY
The heritage potential of the site is unknown

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and layout road network that a significant number of car commuters from the area 
of this site will pass through four AQMAs. These are Zone 3 St James, Zone 6 Campbell Square, Zone 8 St Michaels Road 
and Zone 2 Victoria Promenade.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

0

None of the site falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield land. Therefore, the site contains no brownfield land.

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield land. Therefore,  site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

Approximately 80% of the site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land. The remainder of the site is classified 
as non-agricultural land.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

++

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres and within 2,000m of a number of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

The site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops. However, it is judged that Darlington Brook to the 
north of the site creates a barrier to access which increases walking distance significantly beyond 500m to reach bus route 
31 (15 min frequency Mon to Fri). But stop within 500m to the south of site are not served by buses with at least a 15 
minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.  Therefore, the score for this SA Objective has been amended from 
minor positive “+” to minor negative “-“.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

703



0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

704



LAA1033 Toms Close

Site area (m2): 5210Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 16

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

-

+

+

-

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

Site is located within 250m of the Collingtree Golf Course LWS.

N/A

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

+SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

705



-?

0

0

0

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

706



LAA1034 Witham Way garage site

Site area (m2): 1520Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 4

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of a number of bus stops, including those served by bus route 8 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat). It is noted that a very small part of the south of site (<1% of the site) is within 2,000m of 
Northampton Railway Station. However, as this is such as small part of site, less that 1m2, this has not been taken into 
consideration when calculating the score for this SA objective and it is judged the site is in proximity only to two types of 
sustainable transport link.

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of a number of bus stops, including those served by bus route 8 (15 
min frequency Mon to Sat). It is noted that a very small part of the south of site (<1% of the site) is within 2,000m of 
Northampton Railway Station. However, as this is such as small part of site, less that 1m2, this has not been taken into 
consideration when calculating the score for this SA objective and it is judged the site is in proximity only to two types of 

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

707



0

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as Wholly Previously Developed Land. However, GIS and aerial Site identified by NBC’s LAA 
as partially previously developed land which could therefore be redeveloped at this site.  The site also partially contains 
Kings Heath Derwent Drive Open Space.  Therefore, development of this site could cause loss of designated open space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

sustainable transport link.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

708



LAA1035 West Oval garage site

Site area (m2): 1730Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 7

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

709



N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

710



LAA1036 Derwent Drive garage site

Site area (m2): 1947Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 8

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

711



N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

712



LAA1037 Swale Drive garage site and rear/ unused land

Site area (m2): 1570Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

713



N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

714



LAA1041 Newnham Road

Site area (m2): 3674Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 15

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

++

Approximately half the site (northeast) is located within 500m of Green Oaks Primary School. The site is also within 1,000m 
of two secondary schools; Kingsthorpe College and Northampton School for Girls.

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

715



--

Site is within 250m of Bradlaugh Fields LWS.

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly previously developed land.  Development of site would lead to loss of all or part of 
St David's Amenity Green Space.

-?

-?

0

--

The site is wholly within an area of 'Very High Risk' to groundwater flooding.

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

716



LAA1048 Stenson Street

Site area (m2): 1430Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops including those served by routes 9/9a/9b (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat) and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). The site is also within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment centres.

-

-

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 500m of a national cycle route and bus stops including those served by routes 9/9a/9b (10 min 
frequency Mon to Sat) and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). The site is also within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

717



0

N/A

-?

0

--

The site is located entirely in Flood Zone 3.

-

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

The site is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

718



LAA1049 Land off Arbour Court

Site area (m2): 3923Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 11

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

++

Site is within 500m of Lumbertubs Primary School and within 1,000m of two secondary schools; Weston Favell Academy 
and Northampton Academy.

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

719



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits, SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI. Approximately one third of the site 
(northern part) is within 250m of Billing Arbours LWS.

--

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield land. Development of site will lead to loss of all or part of Arbour Court 
Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

720



LAA1050 Queen's Crescent

Site area (m2): 1483Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

-

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

++

Site is within 500m of The Good Shepherd Primary School and Kingsthorpe Grove Primary School. The site is also within 
1,000m of  Malcolm Arnold Academy Secondary School.

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

721



0

--

Development of this site would lead to loss of part of Queens Crescent AGS.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

722



LAA1051A Waterpump Court and Billing Brook Road 

Site area (m2): 7372Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 24

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

723



--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land, which could therefore be redeveloped at this site.  
However, the site also partially contains Billing Brook Lake Natural / Semi-natural Open Space which could be lost to 
development on the site.  Therefore it is judged that development at this site could have significant negative “--“ effects 
with regards to this SA objective.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

724



LAA1051B Land between Waterpump Court and Billing Brook Road

Site area (m2): 9074Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 29

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres, including one adjacent to the west of site. The site is also within 2,000m of 
employment areas.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of local centres, including one adjacent to the west of site. The site is also within 2,000m of 
employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

725



0

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as part previously developed land as the site currently contains a hard sports pitch and play 
equipment.  Development of site would lead to loss of all or part of Thorplands Play Park Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

Approximately one third of the site (north-eastern part) is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP 
considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

726



LAA1052 Coverack Close, rear of garages

Site area (m2): 3230Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 12

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of open space, including the Towcester Road Cemetery adjacent to the south of site, and is within 800m 
of Danes Camp Leisure Centre.

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

727



0

-

It is assumed that this site does not contain existing designated open space and that the overlap of Towcester Road 
Cemetery and the site boundary is due to a digitising error.  Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly partially previously 
developed land, with the majority being greenfield. Therefore, it is judged that development at this site would lead to loss 
of greenfield land that is not designated as open space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

728



LAA1054 Land adj to Treetops in Goldings

Site area (m2): 1328Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 5

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

-

-

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 2,00m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

729



N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

730



LAA1055 Land on the corner of Norman Road/ Wellingborough Road

Site area (m2): 1346Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 5

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

-

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

-

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar and SSSI.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

731



N/A

-?

0

0

--

Site is wholly within an area of 'High Risk' to groundwater flooding.

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

732



LAA1058 Land off Oat Hill Drive

Site area (m2): 2847Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 11

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment centres.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

733



--

The southern half of the site is located on Greendale Square Amenity Greenspace and children's play area.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

734



LAA1059B Land off Birds Hill Road

Site area (m2): 3076Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 12

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

++

Site is within 500m of primary schools and within 1,000m of Northampton Academy Secondary School.

+

++

Site is within 800m of open space and within 800m of Lings Forum Leisure Centre. It is noted that Birds Hill Road Amenity 
Greenspace is partially contained on the site and may be lost to development.  However, if this were to be lost the site 
would still be within 800m of open space.

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

735



--

Site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Development of this site would lead to loss of part of Birds Hill Road 
Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

736



LAA1059C Land off Birds Hill Road

Site area (m2): 1481Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 5

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

++

Site is within 500m of Lumbertubs Primary School and within 1,000m of Northampton Academy Secondary School.

+

++

Site is within 800m of open space, including Birds Hill Road Open Space 1 Amenity Green Space located across the road to 
the north of site. It is noted that Birds Hill Road Amenity Greenspace is partially contained on the site and may be lost to 
development.  However, if this were to be lost the site would still be within 800m of open space. The site is also within 
800m of Lings Forum Leisure Centre.

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

737



--

Site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSI.

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Development of this site would lead to loss of all or part of Birds Hill 
Road Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

Site is within 800m of a number of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

738



LAA1060 Hayeswood Road

Site area (m2): 1452Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

++

Site is within 500m of Lings Primary School and within 1,000m of Northampton Academy Secondary School.

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

739



--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield land. Development of this site would lead to loss of part of Hayeswood 
Road Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

740



LAA1063 Land adj Flats in Newnham Road

Site area (m2): 23483Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 73

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

The site is within 1,000m of Malcolm Arnold Academy, Kingsthorpe College and Northampton School for Girls Secondary 
Schools. The majority of the site is not within 500m of Green Oaks Primary School therefore the score has been amended 
from significant positive '++' to minor negative for this objective '-'.

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is located within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

741



--

The entirety of the site overlaps with Bradlaugh Fields LWS.

--

Development of this site would lead to loss of part of Bradlaugh Fields LWS.

-?

0

0

--

The western half of the site is within an area at 'Very High Risk' to groundwater Flooding. The remainder of the site is within 
an area of 'Negligible' or 'Very Low Risk' to groundwater flooding.

-

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Aerial imagery and online research indicates the site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

742



LAA1064 Land off Eastern Avenue North

Site area (m2): 2172Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 8

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

-

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

++

Site is within 500m of The Good Shepherd Primary School and Kingsthorpe Grove Primary School. The site is also within 
1,000m of Malcolm Arnold Academy Secondary School.

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

743



0

--

Development of this site would lead to loss of part of Auckland Close AGS.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

744



LAA1068 The Briars garage site

Site area (m2): 1314Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 5

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within 800m of Northampton town centre and local centres. The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

-

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of Northampton town centre and local centres. The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

745



0

N/A

-?

0

0

-

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

746



LAA1069 Farmclose Road garage site

Site area (m2): 1527Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of a local centre.

++

Site is within 1,000m of Caroline Chisholm Secondary School and is within 500m of primary schools.

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of a local centre.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

747



--

The site is described by NBC's LAA as partially previously developed land. The eastern edge of the site is within Off Quinton 
Road Amenity Green Space. Therefore, development of this site could result in some loss of designated open space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

748



LAA1071 Medway Drive (rear of Medway Close)

Site area (m2): 2435Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 9

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

749



N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

750



LAA1075 North Oval

Site area (m2): 1647Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 8

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of an employment area.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

751



--

The site is located on the North Oval Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

752



LAA1078 Land at Chapel Place

Site area (m2): 818Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 12

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local 
centres.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of open space and sports facilities.

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local 
centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

753



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

754



LAA1079 Ryehill Estate

Site area (m2): 10431Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 32

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment centres.

-

-

++

The southern half of the site is located within 800m of Duston Sports Centre and other open spaces including Harlestone 
Road Allotments and Montague Crescent Amenity Green Space.

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

755



-

--

The site is located on Tresham Green Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

-

+

The site contains up to 1ha of brownfield land.

-

The site contains up to 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 (good to moderate) agricultural land.

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

The site is within 300m of an area in which the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

756



LAA1080 Duston (north of Hopping Hill School)

Site area (m2): 1512Site status: Reasonable alternative

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 8

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment areas.

+

+

++

The site is located within 800m of Duston Sports Centre and other open spaces including Newton Road Open Space and 
Cotswold Avenue Amenity Green Space.

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

757



0

--

The site is located on Heydown Green Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

758



LAA1086A Cosgrove Road

Site area (m2): 1450Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

759



N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

760



LAA1086B Chalcombe Avenue

Site area (m2): 1724Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 7

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres, including one adjacent to the east of site. The site is also within 2,000m of employment 
areas.

-

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of local centres, including one adjacent to the east of site. The site is also within 2,000m of employment 
areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

761



0

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

762



LAA1094 Land off Holmecross Road

Site area (m2): 6703Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 10

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

++

Site is within 500m of Thorplands Primary School. Approximately two thirds of the site (southern part) is within 1,000m of 
Weston Favell Academy Secondary School.

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

763



-

--

Site has been identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Development of this site would lead to loss of part of Homecross 
Surgery Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

764



LAA1096 Land off Mill Lane

Site area (m2): 11860Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 14

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus route 8 (15 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).  The east of the site is also within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

Site is within 800m of employment sites and local centres.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of employment sites and local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus route 8 (15 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).  The east of the site is also within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

765



--

Approximately two thirds of the site (north-east part) is located within the Dallington Old Tennis Courts & Ponds LWS.

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield land. Development of site could lead to loss of all or part of Dallington 
Natural/Semi-natural Open Space.

-?

-?

-

--

Approximately 60% of the site (north-eastern part) is located within an area of 'Very High Risk' to groundwater flooding. 
The remainder of the site is located within an area of 'Very Low Risk' to groundwater flooding.

-

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

766



LAA1097 Gate Lodge

Site area (m2): 11145Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 30

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres (with the exception of the north-westernmost corner of site) and within 2,000m of 
employment areas.

-

-

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of local centres (with the exception of the north-westernmost corner of site) and within 2,000m of 
employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

767



0

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Development of this site would lead to loss of all or part of Thorpeville 
Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

-

-

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site is identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

Approximately 25% of the site (northern part) is located within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers 
waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

768



LAA1098 The Green, Great Houghton

Site area (m2): 428445Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 771

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 840 dwellings for this site.

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and the north of the site is within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by 
buses with at least 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

+

Site is within 2000m of an employment area.

-

The southwest of site (approximately a third of site) is within 2,000m of Caroline Chisholm Secondary School.

-

Site is more than 800m from a healthcare facility.

+

Site is within 800m of open space, including Brackmills Country Park adjacent to the north of site.

0

Site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of  an ‘A’ road, motorway, railway line, or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

769



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.  In addition, approximately two thirds 
of the site (to the north and east) contains optimal supporting habitat for the Golden Plover population of Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel Pits with most of the remainder sub-optimal for Golden Plover.

-

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. It is assumed that this site does not contain existing designated open 
space and that the overlap of Brackmills Country Park and the site boundary is due to a digitising error. Therefore it is 
judged that no designated open space will be lost as a result of development of this site.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Adjacent to Great Houghton Conservation Area and Listed Building close by. County Archaeological Advisor has highlighted 
the potential for High-Saxon cemetery, iron age settlement, medieval pits.  There is an area of crop marks visible on aerial 
photos. 
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
 HER refers to Iron Age settlement, cropmark of medieval/post medieval windmill mound, middle Saxon cemetery, middle 
Saxon inhumations, medieval extractive pits, possible iron age enclosure, crop marks of iron age settlement, post medieval 
activity, possible iron age farmstead. There is potential for archaeological remains on the site.  Grade II Listed Buildings, 
including views to and from and character of conservation area.  The proximity of listed building and the Great Houghton 
Conservation area means there is potential for setting changes which could be harmful. - 
SUMMARY
The form of development has potential to impact on heritage assets. The setting of listed buildings (including views) will 
need to be taken into consideration as will the character of the conservation area, in any development proposals. There is 
potential to impact adversely on setting/character causing harm to heritage assets

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant number of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

0

None of the site falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--

Site contains more than 1ha of Grade 2 (Very Good) agricultural land in the south of the site. The remainder and majority 
of this site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

-?

The southern part of site (approximately a third of site) is within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

+

Site is within 2000m of an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and the north of the site is within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by 
buses with at least 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

770



0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

--?

The north western fringe of site is partially within 300m of an industrial area in which the MLP considers waste management 
uses to be acceptable.

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

771



LAA1099 Upton Park (Upton Reserve Site)

Site area (m2): 13877Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 40

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

+

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

N/A

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

+SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

772



-?

0

--

The site is located entirely within Flood Zone 3.

-

0

+

The site contains up to 1ha of brownfield land.

-

The site contains up to 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 (good to moderate) agricultural land.

--?

The site falls entirely within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

773



LAA1100 Hill Farm Rise

Site area (m2): 56534Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 90

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

NBC has estimated a capacity of 90 dwellings for this site.

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres, including that located across the road to the 
northeast of site.

++

Northeast corner of site is within 500m of a primary school. The northeast half of site is within 1,000m and the remainder 
of site within 2,000m of Abbeyfield Secondary School.

-

Site is more than 800m from healthcare facilities.

++

Site is within 800m of open space, including Presbytery Churchyard across the road to the north of site and Grangewood 
Park across the road to the southeast of site. The site is also within 800m of Danes Camp Leisure Centre.

-

Western part of site is within 50m of a railway line and the westernmost part of site contains part of a railway tunnel.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

774



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Western part of site partially overlaps with Wootton Railway Embankments LWS.  The remainder of site is within 250m of 
this LWS and the north of site is also within 250m of Hunsbury Hill Country Park LWS.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as part previously developed land.  Aerial imagery indicates the majority of the site is 
greenfield which could therefore be lost to development.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Quarried and disturbed-    POSSIBLE MEDIEVAL ACTIVITY AND PRE-HISTORIC ROUND BARROW AND FUNERY ACTIVITY
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
MNN102926 Towcester-Cotton End turnpike MNN135673 London and North West Railway MNN136190 Wootton Hill Pit. 
Stone pit shown in NE corner on historic O/S. Extensive tree cover - value? HER makes reference to a mineral railway - 
possibly linked to Hunsbury Hill?
SUMMARY
The site has some potential but its extent is currently unknown.

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

-?

Parts of the north of site and east of site are within areas of contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

Parts of the site (<50%) are within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk areas. These are primarily confined to the 
northeast, southeast and centre of site.

+

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as part previously developed land.  Aerial imagery indicates the site contains less than 1ha of 
brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as part previously developed land.  Aerial imagery indicates the site contains more than 1ha of 
greenfield land.

--?

The entire site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.  Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of Grade 
3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres, including that located across the road to the 
northeast of site.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of several bus stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min 
frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

775



-

Part of the southwest of site contains Grade C Ground Instability.  The remainder of site contains Grade A and B Ground 
Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

776



LAA1101 Land at Waterside Way

Site area (m2): 9804Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

+

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

+

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Site is within 2km of the Upper Nene Gravel Pits Ramsar, SPA and SSSI. The site is also within 250m of Hardingstone Flood 
Storage Area LWS, and the River Nene Navigation Channel LWS.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

777



N/A

-?

0

--

Site is wholly within Flood Zone 3.

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

778



LAA1102 Site east of Towcester Road

Site area (m2): 25764Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 50

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

NBC has estimated a capacity of 50 dwellings for this site.

-

The majority of site is within 500m of cycle routes, with the exception of a small part site (south-eastern corner).  It is 
noted that site is also within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least a 15 minute 
frequency during weekday peak travel times.

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

Site is located more than 500m from primary schools. The site is within 2,000m of Abbeyfield and Wootton Hall Park 
Secondary Schools.

-

Site is more than 800m from healthcare facilities.

+

Site is within 800m of open space, including the Counties Crematorium Cemetery located across the road to the west of site.

-

Southwestern corner of site is within Zone 1 - The M1 corridor AQMA and the easternmost part of site is within 50m of the 
railway line.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

779



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0

Site is not in proximity to any designated biodiversity or geodiversity site.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land. Therefore, development of this site could lead to loss of greenfield 
land that is not designated as open space.

0

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Disturbance from Rugby cement slurry pipeline and London and North West Railway Line No archaeology observed during 
observation of pipeline
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
MNN135673 London and North Western Railway line ENN 103288 Rugby Cement Watching Brief 2001. R&F survives in 
south portion of the site.
SUMMARY
The site has little known heritage potential

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within 'High Risk' or 'Very High Risk' groundwater flood risk areas and a smaller proportion of site (1-
50%) falls within a 'Moderate Risk' groundwater flood risk area.'

0

None of the site falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land. Therefore the site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The entire site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land. Therefore the site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 
agricultural land.

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

+

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

The majority of site is within 500m of cycle routes, with the exception of a small part site (south-eastern corner).  It is 
noted that site is also within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least a 15 minute 
frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

780



0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

781



LAA1104 Watering Lane

Site area (m2): 110351Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 250

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 221 dwellings for this site.

--

Site is not within 500m of any sustainable transport links. It is noted that the site is within 500m of bus stops however 
these are not served by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

+

Approximately one third of site (north-western part) is within 2,000m of employment areas.

+

The north eastern and north western corners of the site are within 2,000m of Caroline Chisholm and Wootton Hall Park 
Secondary Schools respectively. It is noted however that the intervening A45 separates the site from Caroline Chisholm 
School and therefore may limit pedestrian access. Approximately one third of the north western part of the site is also 
within 500m of a primary school.

-

Approximately one third of site (eastern part) is within 800m of a healthcare facility. However, the site is separated from 
this facility by the intervening A45. This may limit pedestrian access from the site and significantly increase the distance 
required to travel to access the facility. Therefore, the score for this SA objective has been downgraded from minor positive 
“+” to minor negative “-”.

+

Site is within 800m of open space, including the Watering Lane Collingtree Allotments and Collingtree Cemetery adjacent to 
site, and the Collingtree Playing Fields located across the road to the north of site.

-

South western part of site is located within Zone 1 - The M1 corridor AQMA and the south western part of the site is within 
50m of the M1 motorway.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

782



0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-

Approximately one third of the site (north-eastern part) is located within 250m of the Collingtree Golf Course LWS.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land. Development of site could lead to greenfield land that is not 
designated as open space.

-

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Archaeological potential unknown but field walking indicates potential for prehistoric activity.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
ENN 7182 Field walking pre 1985 MNN 28248  Unstratified Prehistoric Flints MNN24850 prehistoric finds. Impact on 
character of Collingtree Conservation Area. EH parks survey1995
SUMMARY
Development has the potential to harm the character of the conservation area and has archaeological potential

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters from the 
area of this site would be likely to pass through the Zone 5 London Road AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

Parts of the site (<50%) are within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk areas. These are located in the far west of the 
site and in the east of site.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly greenfield land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--

With the exception of a small part of the southernmost part of the site (<1ha) which contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) 
agricultural land, the entire site contains Grade 2 (Very Good) agricultural land. Therefore site contains more than 1ha of 
Grade 2 agricultural land.

--?

Site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

+

Approximately one third of site (north-western part) is within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

--

Site is not within 500m of any sustainable transport links. It is noted that the site is within 500m of bus stops however 
these are not served by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

783



0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

784



LAA1107 Former Abington Mill Farm, land off Rushmere Road 

Site area (m2): 50165Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 125

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 166 dwellings for this site.

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes. It is noted that the northern edge of the site is also within 500m of bus stops however 
these are not served by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

++

The site is within 2,000m of employment areas. The majority of the site, with the exception of the south-westernmost 
corner, is within 800m of a local centre.

-

Approximately two thirds of the site (to the west) is located within 1,000m of Northampton School for Boys Secondary 
School. The site is not within 500m of a primary school.

+

Approximately two thirds of the site (to the west) is located within 800m of St Andrews Hospital.

+

Site is located within 800m of open space. The site is located within the Rushmere Road / Rille Nene Greenspace. Although 
the area within the site could be lost to development, the greenspace continues adjacent to the site and to the south.

-

The southern edge of the site is located within 50m of the A45.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

785



0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI. The site is also located within 
250m of Abington Old Millpond, Wilson's Orchard and Hardingstone Flood Storage Area LWS and Barnes Meadow LNR and 
LWS.

--

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Development of this site could lead to loss of Rushmere Road / Rille Nene 
Natural Semi-natural open space which overlaps with the entire site.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Former mill site with a scatter of medieval pottery within floodplain. Archaeological potential unknown
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
MNN14423 Abington Mill (2 mills recorded)- not clear if any mill buildings survive.  River course changed  - water north of 
site no longer forms part of river system. Reference to lock, weir and sluice on 1900 map - survives?  Converted to 
Tannery - 1925 map
SUMMARY
The potential of this site is not currently known

-?

It appears unlikely from 2011 Census data and the layout of road network that a significant number of car commuters from 
the area of this site would be likely to pass through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

-

The majority of the site is within Flood Zone 2.  Approximately 1% of the site is within Flood Zone 3.

-

Approximately 75% is within a moderate groundwater flood risk area. A small proportion is within a low risk area or area of 
very low risk.

-

Approximately one third of the site is located within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC's LAA as wholly greenfield. Site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

-

Site contains more than 1ha of Grade 4 agricultural land (the southern corner). The site does not contain any Grade 1 to 3 
agricultural land.

--?

The site is wholly within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

++

The site is within 2,000m of employment areas. The majority of the site, with the exception of the south-westernmost 
corner, is within 800m of a local centre.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes. It is noted that the northern edge of the site is also within 500m of bus stops however 
these are not served by buses with at least a 15 minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

786



0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

787



LAA1108 Horsley Road

Site area (m2): 11032Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 35

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.  It is noted that the site occupies an 
employment area which could be lost to development. However, it this were lost the site would still be within 2,000m of 
employment areas, including those adjacent to site to the southeast and northeast.

-

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of local centres and within 2,000m of employment areas.  It is noted that the site occupies an 
employment area which could be lost to development. However, it this were lost the site would still be within 2,000m of 
employment areas, including those adjacent to site to the southeast and northeast.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

788



-

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

-

++

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as wholly previously developed land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of brownfield 
land.

0

Site does not contain any greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--

Site is within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

789



LAA1109 Mill Lane

Site area (m2): 7120Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment areas.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Part of the Kingsthorpe Meadows Local Wildlife Site is located within the western half of the site. The site is also located 

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

790



within 250m of Kingsthorpe Nature Reserve located to the west of the site.

--

Development of this site would lead to loss of part of Kingsthorpe natural and semi-natural open space (NSN).

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

791



LAA1112 Milton Ham

Site area (m2): 98788Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

+

The north and east of site are within 500m of cycle routes and the north of the site is within 500m of bus stops, including 
those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is not adjacent to or within 100m of existing sensitive receptors.

N/A

N/A

0

Location of employment sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

++

Site is above 1ha.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

792



-

The western third of site is within 250m of the Grand Union Canal - Northampton Arm LWS. It However, it should be noted 
that the intervening A5123 may limit adverse effects upon the LWS.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed and mostly greenfield.  Development of this site would lead to 
loss of greenfield land that is not designated as open space.

?

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Known potential for Romano British activity and potential for Neolithic cremation cemetery 
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
ENN 106107 geophysical survey  (limited) 2002 MNN160728 former ridge and furrow MNN160740 Romano British 
settlement MNN 168700 possible Middle Neolithic Cremation cemetery
SUMMARY
This site has high archaeological potential which would need to be evaluated to understand potential impact

--?

It appears likely from 2011 Census data and layout of road network that a significant amount of car commuters to the area 
of this site would be likely to pass through four AQMAs. These are Zone 3 St James, Zone 8 St Michael’s Road, as well as 
Zone 6 Campbell Square and Zone 2 Victoria Promenade.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zone 3 and a smaller proportion of site (1-50%) falls within Flood Zone 2.

-

The western part of site (<50%) is within a ‘Very High Risk’ groundwater flood risk area and a small part of the southeast 
of site is within a ‘Moderate Risk’ groundwater flood risk area. The remainder and majority of site is within ‘Negligible Risk’ 
to ‘Very Low Risk’ groundwater flood risk areas.

0

None of the site falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

+

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed and mostly greenfield.  Aerial imagery indicates the site 
contains less than 1ha of brownfield land.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed and mostly greenfield.  Therefore, the site contains more than 
1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The entire site contains Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) agricultural land. Therefore, the site contains more than 1ha of Grade 
3 agricultural land.

-?

Northwest, northeast and southeast of site are partially within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

The north and east of site are within 500m of cycle routes and the north of the site is within 500m of bus stops, including 
those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

793



0

None of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which the 
MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

794



LAA1113c Greyfriars

Site area (m2): 17459Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

++

Site is above 1ha.

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

795



0

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land which could therefore be redeveloped at this site.  The 
site also partially contains Lady’s Land Amenity Green Space.  Therefore, development of this site could cause loss of 
designated open space.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Rescue archaeological recording has been undertaken within the area. It is clear that most of the area has been disturbed 
by the construction of the bus station and subways. The potential for small islands of survival within both areas should not 
be discounted and provision for archaeological investigation should be made in association with any development
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Site boarders the All Saints and  Holy Sepulchre CA and its redevelopment has potential to impact the setting of the Holy 
Sepulchre Church, other listed buildings and the conservation area
SUMMARY
The redevelopment of the site has potential to impact on a number of designated and non-designated heritage assets. 

-?

-?

0

0

-

+

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  The site contains less than 1ha of brownfield land.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  The site contains less than 1ha of greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

796



LAA1113r Greyfriars

Site area (m2): 17459Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 261

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 331 dwellings for this site.

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment areas, 
including the employment site located across the road to the north of site.  It is noted that an employment site is located in 
the east of the site which could be lost to development. However, if this on-site employment land were to be lost, the site 
would still be located within 2,000m of employment sites.

++

Site is within 1,000m of the Northampton International Academy Secondary School and the western half of the site is within 
500m of primary schools.

+

++

Site is within 800m of sports facilities and open space, including Wellington St Amenity Greenspace located across the road 
to the east of site.  It is noted that the site contains Lady's Lane Amenity Green Space, which could be lost to development 
on this site. However, if this on-site open space were to be lost, the site would still be within 800m of open space.

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

797



?SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

--

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land which could therefore be redeveloped at this site.  The 
site also partially contains Lady’s Land Amenity Green Space.  Therefore, development of this site could cause loss of 
designated open space.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Rescue archaeological recording has been undertaken within the area. It is clear that most of the area has been disturbed 
by the construction of the bus station and subways. The potential for small islands of survival within both areas should not 
be discounted and provision for archaeological investigation should be made in association with any development
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Site boarders the All Saints and  Holy Sepulchre CA and its redevelopment has potential to impact the setting of the Holy 
Sepulchre Church, other listed buildings and the conservation area
SUMMARY
The redevelopment of the site has potential to impact on a number of designated and non-designated heritage assets. 

-?

-?

0

0

-

+

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  The site contains less than 1ha of brownfield land.

-

Site identified by NBC’s LAA as partially previously developed land.  The site contains less than 1ha of greenfield land.

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within Northampton town centre.  The site is also within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment areas, 
including the employment site located across the road to the north of site.  It is noted that an employment site is located in 
the east of site which could be lost to development. However, if this on-site employment land were to be lost, the site 
would still be located within 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

798



LAA1114 Cedarwood Nursing Home, 492 Kettering Road

Site area (m2): 1894Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 2

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

++

Site is within 500m of primary schools and site is within 1,000m of Thomas Becket Catholic School and Northampton School 
For Girls secondary schools.

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 2,000m of employment areas and within 800m of local centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

799



-

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

800



LAA1116 194-200 Kingsthorpe Grove

Site area (m2): 1482Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 14

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

-

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment areas.

++

The site is located within 500m of Malcolm Arnold Preparatory and Secondary School.

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

801



N/A

-?

-?

0

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

802



LAA1117 133 Queens Park Terrace

Site area (m2): 649Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 18

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

Site is within 800m of local centres, including Kingsthorpe to the north of the site. The site is also within 2,000m of 
employment areas.

++

Site is within 500m of Kingsthorpe Grove Primary School and within 1,000m of Malcom Arnold Academy Secondary School.

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 800m of local centres, including Kingsthorpe to the north of the site. The site is also within 2,000m of 
employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

803



0

N/A

-?

0

0

0

--

Parts of the site (>50%) are within 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk areas. These are primarily confined to the centre 
of the site.

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

804



LAA1118 135 Harlestone Road

Site area (m2): 7095Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 7

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station and is within 500m of the Norbital cycle route.  The site is 
also within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment centres.

+

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station and is within 500m of the Norbital cycle route.  The site is 
also within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

805



0

N/A

-?

0

0

0

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

806



LAA1119 Silver Coronet, Welland Way

Site area (m2): 1645Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 14

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment centres.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

807



N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

808



LAA1121 Upton Valley Way East

Site area (m2): 16402Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 34

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The eastern half of the site is within 800m of a local centre.  The site is within 2,000m of employment centres.

--

The site is further than 500m from a primary school and 2,000m from a secondary school.

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The eastern half of the site is within 800m of a local centre.  The site is within 2,000m of employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

809



--

The northern half of the site is located within Banbury Lane Amenity Green Space.

-?

0

0

0

-

+

The site contains up to 1ha of brownfield land.

--

The site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

-

-?

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

810



LAA1123 83 - 103 Trinity Avenue

Site area (m2): 1913Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 9

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

-

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m from employment centres.

++

The site is within 500m from Malcolm Arnold Preparatory School and Malcolm Arnold Academy.

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

0SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m from employment centres.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

811



N/A

-?

-?

0

--

The site is located within a very high groundwater flood risk area.

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

812



LAA1124 41-43 Derngate

Site area (m2): 770Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 7

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The site is within Northampton town centre.

-

+

++

The site is within 800m of Cripps Recreation Centre and a number of open spaces including Beckett's Park and St Giles 
Churchyard.

0

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of 
North Gate Bus Station and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 
16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

813



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site.

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is within the town centre.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

814



LAA1126 5 Primrose Hill

Site area (m2): 405Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is within 2,000m of Northampton railway station and is within 500m of a cycle route and bus stops, including those 
served by bus route 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment sites.

-

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is within 2,000m of Northampton railway station and is within 500m of a cycle route and bus stops, including those 
served by bus route 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

815



0

N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

816



LAA1127 32 Connaught Street

Site area (m2): 349Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

The site is within 500m of a cycle route and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and (10 min frequency Mon 
to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 and 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). The 
site is also within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

++

The site is within 500m of Castle Academy primary school and 1,000m of Northampton International Academy.

+

++

The site is within 800m of Mounts Baths Leisure Centre and is within 800m of other open spaces including The Racecourse 
and Holy Sepulchre Churchyard.

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

The site is within 500m of a cycle route and bus stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and (10 min frequency Mon 
to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2 and 4 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). The 
site is also within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

817



--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site.

N/A

-?

-?

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

The site is within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

818



LAA1131 The Leys Close, 39 Mill Lane

Site area (m2): 5695Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 6

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and within 2,000m of employment sites.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and within 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

819



N/A

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

820



LAA1133 Eastern District Social Club, Crestwood Road

Site area (m2): 1950Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 5

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

+

+

+

0

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

-SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The site is within 800m of local centres and 2,000m of employment sites.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

821



--

The site is located on Lodge Park Open Space.

-?

0

0

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

822



LAA1134c St John's Railway Embankment

Site area (m2): 2972Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Commercial Yield (dw): 0

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

0

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri 
and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

N/A

0

-?

N/A

N/A

0

+

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

N/ASA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri 
and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

823



0

N/A

-?

-?

-

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

824



LAA1134r St John's Railway Embankment

Site area (m2): 2972Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 12

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri 
and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

++

Site is within Northampton Town Centre and within 800m of local centres.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment 
areas.

-

+

++

Site is within 800m of Cripps Recreation Centre and is within 800m of open space, including Beckets Park adjacent to the 
east of site.

-

0

0

?

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

++

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 2,000m of Northampton Railway Station. The site is also within 500m of bus 
stops, including those served by bus routes 1 and 9/9a/9b (10 min frequency Mon to Sat), 16 (10 min frequency Mon to Fri 
and 15 min frequency on Sat) and 2, 3, 4 and 8 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

825



--

Site is within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA, Ramsar Site and SSSI.

N/A

-?

-?

-

0

0

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

0

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

++

Site is within Northampton Town Centre and within 800m of local centres.  The site is also within 2,000m of employment 
areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

826



LAA1137 Land at Wootton Fields

Site area (m2): 27735Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 89

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

NBC has estimated a capacity of 89 dwellings for this site.

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 
minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

+

The site is located within 2,000m of an employment area.

++

The site is located within 500m of Preston Hedges Primary School and within 1,000m of Caroline Chisholm School.

-

The site is located more than 800m from a healthcare facility.

+

The site is located within 800m of a number of open spaces including Wootton Amenity Green Space and Wootton 
Recreation Ground.

0

Site is not within an AQMA or within 50m of  an ‘A’ road, motorway, railway line, or industrial area.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

The site is outside Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

827



0

Site is not in proximity to any designated biodiversity or geodiversity site.

--

The site contains Wooldale Road natural open space.

-

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Archaeological potential is unknown in this area. Adjacent to the Wootton Fields development area. This identified isolated 
activity within the area adjacent to site. HER record indicate archaeological activity in adjacent site prior to development. 
Geophysical survey only 2002. We have no records of any mitigation being undertaken in this area. HLC and mapping 
shows Ridge & Furrow surviving across site.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
The spinney to the North of the site is shown on 1883 mapping. Water course on SE boundary shown on historic mapping 
with footbridge to the south of site. Open fields project ridge and furrow. Once part of a larger area.
SUMMARY
Existing site features should be retained and incorporated.

-?

It is unlikely that the site will generate traffic that uses a route passing through an AQMA.

0

Site is not within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

0

None of the site falls within Flood Zones 2 or 3.

0

None of the site falls within a groundwater flood risk area of level 'moderate' or above.

-

A small proportion of the site (<50%) is within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

The site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The site contains more than 1ha of Grade 3 agricultural land.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of within an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which 
the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

+

The site is located within 2,000m of an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

-

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, however these are not served by buses with at least 15 
minute frequency during weekday peak travel times.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

828



LAA1138 Land south of Bedford Road/ north of sports ground

Site area (m2): 2139Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 7

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

+

+

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre and within 2,000m of employment areas.

-

+

+

-

0

0

0

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

The site is within 2km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

++

The site is located within 800m of the town centre and within 2,000m of employment areas.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

829



--

The site contains Bedford Road natural or semi natural open space.

-?

0

--

The whole of the site falls within Flood Zone 3.

-

-

N/A

N/A

0

0

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

--?

The southern edge of the site falls within 300m of an industrial area in which the MWLP considers waste management uses 
to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

830



LAA1139 Ransome Road 

Site area (m2): 155696Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 250

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 250 dwellings for this site.

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes and bus stops that are served by route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). 
The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of an employment area.

-

The site is located within 2,000m of Abbeyfield Secondary School.

+

The site is located within 800m of a doctors surgery and St Andrews Hospital.

++

The northern half of the site is located within 800m of Cripps Recreation Centre. It is also located within 800m of other 
open spaces including Delapre Park and Far Cotton Recreation Ground.

-

A small part of the site is located within 50m of a railway track.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

831



+

The site is located within Northampton town centre. The site is predominantly brownfield, therefore development of the site 
for residential use would not result in the loss of commercial and retail uses within the town centre, but would contribute to 
the provision of a range of homes within the town centre.

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

--

The site is located within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar Site. The eastern half of the site is also 
located within 250m of Delapre Lake Local Wildlife Site and Barnes Meadow Local Nature Reserve.

--

The eastern corner of the site falls within Delapre Park. Therefore development of this site could lead to loss of part of a 
designated open space.

--

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Possible early church related to Delapre Abbey - can be seen on 1940's aerial photos. Possible prehistoric settlement ?. 
Disused rail line forms part of setting of listed engine shed. The HER has identified the possible presence of a cruciform 
church which may have been related to Delapre Abbey and have an association with the battlefield. The extent of the 
battlefield is unknown and as such could potentially be within the area. 
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Eastern part of the site is within the Registered Battlefield boundary. The Battle of Northampton 1460 conservation 
management plan will be an important consideration.  The site is identified as one of three potential locations for the 
Lancastrian entrenchments and the management plan identifies as an action, establishing the depth of the 1460 surface to 
determine whether any archaeology from the Battle may survive beneath the current surface. It is understood that there is 
extensive made ground on the site. This however maybe preserving any archaeological remains. In light of the difficulty in 
putting in evaluation trenches a condition was requested to evaluate when the ground level has  been reduced. The ground 
reduction would need to undertaken in an archaeologically sensitive manner.   Footpath across the site (N/S) forms part of 
a historic footpath linking the town centre with Hardingstone village shown on 1883 map.  Setting of the complex of 
building at Delapre and the Delapre Abbey conservation area will be important considerations.  The setting of the engine 
shed to the north will be an important consideration.
SUMMARY
There is potential for development  to further understanding with regard to the Battle of Northampton 1460 and the 
historical development of the Delapre Abbey complex.  The form of development  has the potential to impact on setting and 
character resulting in a level of harm. There is potential to retain/enhance and establish links between the town centre and 
associated heritage sites.

--?

It appears likely from 2011 census data and layout of the road network that a significant proportion of car commuters from 
this site would pass through the Zone 2 Victoria Promenade AQMA.

-?

A small area of the site contains contaminated land.

--

The majority of the site falls within Flood Zone 3.

-

The majority of the site falls within moderate groundwater flood risk area. A small area of the site falls within low 
groundwater flood risk area.

-

A small proportion of the site  (<50%) falls within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

++

The majority of the site has been identified as brownfield land.  The site contains more than 1ha of brownfield land.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

++

The site is within 800m of a local centre and 2,000m of an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

++

The site is located within 500m of cycle routes and bus stops that are served by route 3 (15 min frequency Mon to Sat). 
The site is also located within 2,000m of Northampton railway station.

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

832



--

Part of the site has been identified as greenfield land.  The site contains more than 1 ha of greenfield land.

0

The site contains less than 1 hectare of agricultural land of grade 4 or higher quality.

0

None of the site falls within a Minerals Safeguarding Area or minerals extraction Conflict Consultation Buffer.

0

None of the site contains areas of Category C, D or E Ground Instability.

--

Approximately one third of the site falls within 300m of an active or committed waste management facility.

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

833



LAA1140 Land north of Milton Ham

Site area (m2): 69860Site status: Allocate

Proposed use: Residential Yield (dw): 224

SA1a: Housing Provision

SCORE

++

NBC has estimated a capacity of 224 dwellings for this site.

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency 
Mon to Sat).

+

The site is located within 2,000m of an employment area.

-

The eastern half of the site is located within 2,000m of Abbeyfield Secondary School.

-

The site is located more than 800m from a healthcare facility.

+

The site is within 800m of a number of open spaces including Ladybridge playing fields and Wootton Brook natural green 
space.

-

The western edge of the site is located within 50m of the A5123.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Location of residential sites within the Borough assumed to not directly affect achievement of this objective.

0

Site is outside of Northampton town centre.

SA2a: Access to Sustainable Transport

SA2b: Proximity of Services and Facilities

SA3a: Proximity of Schools

SA4a: Proximity of Healthcare Facilities

SA4b: Proximity of Open Space and Leisure Facilities

SA4c: Exposure to Low Air Quality and Noise

SA5a: Reduce Crime

SA6a: Economical Growth and Availability of Jobs

SA7a: Location Relative to Town Centre

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

834



-

The north eastern edge of the site is within 250m of Shelfleys Lake Local Wildlife Site and the western edge of the site is 
within 250m of the Grand Union Canal Local Wildlife Site.

-

Aerial imagery and an online search indicate that the site is entirely greenfield but does not include designated open space.

-

ARCHAEOLOGICAL POTENTIAL
Possible romano-british settlement and road route. Southern end significant archaeologically. HLC - possible roman road 
route. Adjacent to a known area of archaeological activity but part of the site has been disturbed by the Rugby Cement 
Pipeline which has a 20m easement ENN104057 Rugby Cement Pipeline 2001 Watching Brief.
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT COMMENTARY
Historically an agricultural landscape.
SUMMARY
The site has potential to be sensitive from a heritage point of view even though part of the land has been disturbed.

--?

It appears likely from 2011 census data and layout of the road network that a significant proportion of vehicles from the 
site would pass through the Zone 1 M1 corridor AQMA.

0

The site is not located within a Source Protection Zone and does not contain contaminated land.

-

The northern third of the site (<50%) falls within Flood Zone 3.

-

The eastern edge of the site (<50%) falls within a very high groundwater flood risk area.

-

An area (<50%) in the northern half of the site is within a 1 in 100 year surface water flood risk area.

0

Site does not contain any brownfield land.

--

The site contains more than 1ha of greenfield land.

--?

The whole of the site falls on Grade 3 agricultural land.

-?

The majority of the site is within a Sand and Gravel Safeguarding Area.

SA9a: Proximity of Designated Sites

SA10a: Presence of Brownfield Land, Derelict Buildings and Open Space

SA11a: Impact on Cultural Heritage

0

None of the site contains areas of category C, D or E Ground Instability.

0

None of the site falls within 300m of within an active or committed waste management facility, or industrial area in which 
the MWLP considers waste management uses to be acceptable.

SA12a: Road Traffic Increase within Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA)

SA13a: Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or Contaminated Land

SA14a: Flood Risk from Rivers

SA14b: Flood Risk from Groundwater

SA14c: Flood Risk from Surface Water

SA15a: Prioritise Use of Brownfield Land

SA15b: Avoid Loss of Greenfield Land

SA15c: Avoid Loss of High Quality Agricultural Land

SA15d: Avoid Sterilisation of Mineral Resources

SA15e: Avoid Risk from Land Instability

SA16a: Avoid Noise and Odour and Sterilisation of Waste Management Sites

+

The site is located within 2,000m of an employment area.

SA8b: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Proximity of Services and 
Facilities

+

Site is within 500m of cycle routes and within 500m of bus stops, including those served by bus route 3 (15 min frequency 
Mon to Sat).

SA8a: Renewable Energy and Greenhouse Gas Emission - Sustainable Transport

June 2017SA of Northampton Local Plan (Part 2)

835



 
 Sustainability Appraisal for Northampton Local Plan Part 2 643 March 2019 

Appendix 7  
Findings of the SA of the Options Consultation Paper 
 

Note: This appendix presents Chapter 4 of the August 2016 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): 
Sustainability Appraisal of Options Consultation Paper and therefore the page numbering differs from the 
remainder of this report. 

 

836



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of 

Options Consultation Paper 

18 LUC 

August 2016 

4 Findings of the SA of the Options Consultation 

Paper 

SA of Local Plan (Part 2) objectives 

4.1 The Council has decided that objectives set out in the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy 

are still appropriate to use as objectives for the Northampton Local Plan (Part 2).   The JCS 

objectives were subject to SA at the time of the preparation of the JCS. 

4.2 However, it has been decided to subject them again to SA within the context of the Northampton 

Local Plan (Part 2).  The findings are shown in Table 4.1 and are summarised below. 

4.3 The Local Plan (Part 2) objectives are unlikely to have any significant negative effects (--).  Most 

of the objectives are likely to have significant positive (++) or minor positive effects (+) in 

relation to the SA objectives, or negligible (0) effects.  All the objectives have at least one 

significant positive effect where they directly address SA objectives, although a small number of 

minor negative effects (-) and mixed effects (+/-) have also been identified. 

4.4 Local Plan (Part 2) Objective 6 – Housing, and Objective 3 – Economic Advantage, focus on the 

delivery of housing or employment land and therefore respectively score a significant positive 

effect (++) in relation to SA objective 1: Housing and SA objective 6: Economy.  Most of the 

other Local Plan (Part 2) objectives are likely to result in a mixture of positive and negative effects 

(+/-) or minor negative effects.  While they will help to achieve the housing and employment 

development needed in the Borough, construction of new homes and employment development 

could potentially have negative effects on environmental receptors and could result in increased 

car traffic within the Borough.  However, there would be opportunities for good design and 

construction techniques to mitigate potential effects and even have beneficial effects, e.g. on the 

setting of a heritage asset trough sensitive design.  For some of the SA objectives, the potential 

minor negative effect is shown as uncertain (-?), as it will depend on how and where the housing 

and employment development is delivered across the Borough. 

4.5 The Local Plan (Part 2) Objective 7 – Supporting the Town Centre focuses on regeneration and 

service provision of town centres.  Therefore, it is considered likely to have significant positive 

effects (++) on SA objective 6: Economy, and SA objective 7:  Town centre vitality.  

4.6 The Local Plan (Part 2) Objective 1 – Connections, and Objective 2 – Infrastructure and 

Development seek to make sustainable travel a priority and ensure social, physical and green 

infrastructure is adequately provided. Therefore, this objective directly addresses SA objective 2: 

Sustainable travel, and indirectly SA objective 8: Minimise greenhouse gases and SA objective 12: 

Air pollution with a significant positive effect (++) for each. Similarly the Local Plan (Part 2) 

objective 12 – Green Infrastructure seeks to protect natural species and enhance existing 

strategic green infrastructure network resulting in a significant positive effect (++) for SA 

objective 9: Biodiversity and geodiversity. 

4.7 The Local Plan (Part 2) Objective 5 – Educational Attainment, and Objective 4 – Specialist 

Business Development, are likely to have a significant positive effect (++) on SA objective 6: 

Economy. These Local Plan (Part 2) objectives seek to develop a skills base within the community 

and support opportunities for specialist employment.  Objective 5 – Educational Attainment is also 

directly supportive of SA objective 3: Access to education and so a significant positive effect (++) 

is also likely for this SA objective.   

4.8 Two Local Plan (Part 2) objectives, 10 – Climate Change, and 9 – High Quality Design, are likely 

to result in significant positive effects (++) or minor positive effects (+) in relation to most SA 

objectives.  Objective 9 – High Quality Design directly addresses SA Objective 10: Landscapes 

and townscapes and SA objective 11: Historic environment and so significant positive effects (++) 

are expected for these SA objectives.  The Local Plan (Part 2) objective on Climate change will 

837



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of 

Options Consultation Paper 

19 LUC 

August 2016 

have a have a significant positive effect on SA objective 8: Greenhouse gas emissions, SA 

objective 12: Air pollution, SA objective 13: Sustainable water management and SA objective 14: 

Flood risk.  

4.9 The Local Plan (Part 2) Objective 11 – Protecting and Building Communities should have a 

significant positive effect (++) for SA objective 7: Town centre vitality.  The policy seeks to 

ensure new development in urban areas effectively supports and links new and existing 

communities physically and socially, to achieve social cohesion and address the areas of 

deprivation identified in parts of the Borough.  A couple of other minor positive (+) effects have 

been identified for some SA objectives. 

4.10 The Local Plan (Part 2) Objective 8 – Heritage directly addresses heritage assets and their role in 

providing a sense of place and local distinctiveness.  The Objective also seeks to ensure that 

development conserves and where possible enhances their setting.  Therefore, this policy is 

identified as having a significant positive effect in relation to SA objective 11: Historic 

Environment and SA: objective 10: Landscape and townscape. 

4.11 Whilst there is no Local Plan (Part 2) objective directly relating to health and well-being, a number 

of the other Local Plan (Part 2) objectives should give rise to minor positive effects overall on SA 

objective 4: Health and well-being.  

838



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of Options Consultation Paper 20 LUC 

August 2016 

Table 4.1: SA scores for Northampton Local (Part 2) objectives 

SA Objectives   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Local Plan (Part 2) 

    objectives S
A

1
: 

H
o
u

s
in

g
 

S
A

2
: 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 t

r
a
v
e
l 

S
A

3
: 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 

S
A

4
: 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

w
e
ll

b
e
in

g
 

S
A

5
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 c

r
im

e
 

S
A

6
: 

E
c
o
n

o
m

y
 

S
A

7
: 

T
o

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
 v

it
a
li

ty
 

S
A

8
: 

G
r
e
e
n

h
o
u

s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

S
A

9
: 

B
io

d
iv

e
r
s
it

y
 a

n
d

 

g
e
o
d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 

S
A

1
0

: 
L
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

n
d

 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p

e
 

S
A

1
1

: 
H

is
to

r
ic

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 

S
A

1
2

: 
A

ir
 p

o
ll
u

ti
o

n
 

S
A

1
3

: 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 w

a
te

r
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

S
A

1
4

: 
F
lo

o
d

 r
is

k
 

S
A

1
5

: 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
u

s
e
 o

f 

la
n

d
 

S
A

1
6

: 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 w

a
s
te

 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
Connections 

0 ++ 0 + 0 + 0 ++ 0 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 

Infrastructure and 
development 

0 ++ 0 + 0 + + ++ + 0 0 ++ 0 0 0 0 

Economic Advantage 0 0 0 +? 0 ++ +? +/- -? -? 0 +/- 0 0 0 0 

Specialist Business 
Development 

0 0 0 +? 0 ++ 0 + 0 0 0 + 0 0 0 0 

Educational Attainment 0 + ++ + + ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Housing ++ 0 0 + 0 + 0 +/- -? -? 0 +/- 0 + 0 0 

Supporting the town 
centre 

0 + 0 0 0 ++ ++ +/- 0 +? 0 +/- 0 0 0 0 

Heritage 0 0 0 0 0 + + 0 0 ++ ++ 0 0 0 0 0 

High Quality Design + 0 0 + + +? +? +? 0 ++ ++ 0 0 +? 0 0 

Climate Change 0 + 0 + 0 +? 0 ++ 0 0 0 ++ ++ ++ 0 + 

Protecting and Building 
Communities 

0 0 0 + + +? ++ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Green Infrastructure 0 + 0 + 0 +? 0 0 ++ + 0 0 0 + 0 0 

839



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of 

Options Consultation Paper 

21 LUC 

August 2016 

Providing new homes 

4.12 The SA of the questions relating to housing provision is shown in Table 4.2. 

4.13 All question options have a positive effect () on SA objective 1 (housing) as they are all directly 

related to the provision of housing. 

4.14 The effects of the quantity of development to be delivered within Northampton Borough have 

already been appraised in the SA of the Joint Core Strategy.  It is acknowledged that more 

housing and associated traffic is likely to increase greenhouse gas emissions and air pollution.  

However, the option question seeks to increase the density of dwellings per hectare across the 

Borough, with higher densities in the town centre and other centres and key transport corridors.  

This should enable access to jobs, services and facilities without the need to travel by car, which 

would give rise to positive effects () on SA objectives relating to sustainable travel (SA objective 

2), greenhouse gas emissions (SA objective 8) and air pollution (SA objective 12).  Prioritising 

sites that can be delivered in the short-term or allowing for greater flexibility through a 20% 

housing land supply buffer, could potentially undermine or dilute the delivery of the spatial 

strategy if easy to deliver sites that are less well aligned with the strategy of higher densities in 

the town centre, other centres and key transport corridors were to come forward at the expense 

of, or in advance of, sites that are more challenging to deliver but better aligned with the 

strategy. 

4.15 The higher density of housing in the town centre should help to support town centre vitality (SA 

objective 7).  The emphasis on delivery of housing to higher densities, with a focus on prioritising 

sites that can be delivered in the short term, and with a 20% housing land supply buffer are all 

likely to support the local economy, temporarily through construction activity, and in the medium 

to longer term by providing homes for people working or wishing to work in the Borough (i.e. the 

labour supply).  Similarly, the provision of smaller market dwellings (1 and 2 bed homes) should 

help to provide a range of housing, particularly for younger workers, single households and 

couples who make up an important component of the workforce.  Taken together, these should 

have a positive effect on SA objective 6. 

4.16 Identifying sites for specialist housing and sites specifically for the provision of older persons 

housing will have a positive effect () on health (SA objective 4).  The effects of the other options 

on health are difficult to determine at this stage, as they will be influenced by the design of 

development and access to open space, sport and leisure facilities, and healthcare facilities.  It is 

noted that the strategy seeks to deliver a wider green infrastructure network that will link to the 

surrounding open countryside, and will include access to parks, sports facilities and well 

maintained local space, but this will need to be tested through the assessment of individual sites, 

and associated infrastructure, at the next stage of plan preparation.  

4.17 An uncertain effect (?) is expected for all options against SA objective 15: Efficient use of land.  

Although the introductory text to the questions states that the focus of the strategy will be on 

brownfield land, it also states that this could be on “other available sites within the existing built 

up area and elsewhere in the Borough”, and therefore it is not yet possible to determine how well 

this SA objective will be met until individual sites have been assessed.  A minimum density of 40 

dwellings per hectare outside of the sustainable urban extensions will be expected, which will 

encourage the efficient use of land.  In the town centre, other centres and along key transport 

corridors, the Options Consultation Paper indicates that densities will be higher although specific 

targets are not mentioned. 

4.18 For SA objectives 9: Biodiversity and geodiversity, 10: Landscapes and townscapes, and 11: 

Historic environment, the potential effect is shown as uncertain (?) as development could 

potentially have negative effects on environmental receptors.  However, it will depend on how and 

where the housing development is delivered across the Borough, and there could be opportunities 

for good design and construction techniques to mitigate potential effects and even have beneficial 

effects, for example by using developer contributions to provide multi-functional green 

infrastructure. 

4.19 It is noted that the strategy seeks to enable the provision of new schools and avoid inappropriate 

development within the flood plain, but it is not possible to determine the likely effects on access 

840



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of 

Options Consultation Paper 

22 LUC 

August 2016 

to education (SA objective 3) and flood risk (SA objective 14) until the assessment of individual 

sites.   

4.20 The effects on all other SA objectives are considered to be negligible (0). 

841



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of Options Consultation Paper 23 LUC 

August 2016 

Table 4.2: SA scores for housing options 

SA Objectives  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Options S
A

1
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

S
A

2
: 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a
v
e
l 

S
A

3
: 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 

S
A

4
: 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

w
e
ll

b
e
in

g
 

S
A

5
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 c

r
im

e
  

S
A

6
: 

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

S
A

7
: 

T
o

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
 

v
it

a
li

ty
 

S
A

8
: 

G
r
e
e
n

h
o

u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

S
A

9
: 

B
io

d
iv

e
r
s
it

y
 a

n
d

 

g
e
o

d
iv

e
r
s
it

y
 

S
A

1
0

: 
L
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

n
d

 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p

e
 

S
A

1
1

: 
H

is
to

r
ic

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 

S
A

1
2

: 
A

ir
 p

o
ll

u
ti

o
n

 

S
A

1
3

: 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

w
a
te

r
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

S
A

1
4

: 
F
lo

o
d

 r
is

k
 

S
A

1
5

: 
E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 

la
n

d
 

S
A

1
6

: 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

w
a
s
te

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

Apply a 20% housing land supply 

buffer 
 ? ? ? 0  0 ? ? ? ? ? 0 ? ? 0 

Apply a residential density of 40 

dwellings per hectare outside of the 

sustainable urban extensions, with 

higher densities in the town centre, 

other centres and along key 

transport corridors    

  ? ? 0    ? ? ?  0 ? ? 0 

In allocating sites for housing 

development, priority should be 

given to sites that can be delivered 

in the short term  

 ? ? ? 0  ? ? ? ? ? ? 0 ? ? 0 

Identify sites for specialist housing  0 0  0 0 0 0 ? ? 0 0 0 0 ? 0 

Identify sites specifically for the 

provision of older persons’ housing 
 0 0  0 0 0 0 ? ? 0 0 0 0 ? 0 

Allocations for general housing 

should include a proportion of 

smaller market dwellings (1 & 2 

bed) 

 0 0 0 0  0 0 ? ? 0 0 0 0 ? 0 

Specify a threshold or proportion of 

serviced plots to ensure the delivery 

of custom-build and self-build plots 

 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ? ? 0 0 0 0 ? 0 

842



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of 

Options Consultation Paper 

24 LUC 

August 2016 

Creating a prosperous economy 

4.21 The SA of the questions relating to the economy is shown in Table 4.3. 

4.22 Positive effects () are expected for all options against SA objective 6: Economy, and SA 

objective 7: Town centre vitality. 

4.23 The release of low value office stock for other uses could not only help to improve the vitality of 

town centres, but it could allow for greater surveillance, increasing the perception of safety from 

crime. Therefore that option scored a positive () against SA objective 5: Reduce crime.  A 

positive effect () is also expected against SA objective 1: Housing, due to the potential for 

oversupplied, dated, low value office stock to be released for the purpose of housing. 

4.24 Similarly, the fourth option allows for the release of employment for other uses, once a period of 

active marketing has been undertaken, and therefore also scores a positive effect ()against SA 

objective 1: Housing. 

4.25 The Borough will continue to promote the retention and re-use of land in employment use to 

provide for a range of businesses resulting in positive effects () for SA objective 15: Efficiency of 

land use. 

4.26 The effects on all other SA objectives are negligible (0).  The strategy is to make best and most 

efficient use of land within the Borough.  This includes a flexible approach to land that is already 

in use or designated for employment activity but where other uses, such as housing, may be 

more appropriate.  Given that this land is already in use, and the likely emphasis on quality of 

design of new development within the strategy, it is considered at this stage that such a policy 

approach to change of use is unlikely to have an adverse effect on sustainability issues such as 

biodiversity and geodiversity (SA objective 9), landscape and townscape (SA objective 10), the 

historic environment SA objective 11), and flood risk SA objective 14).  However, where individual 

sites for changes in use are to be identified in the Local Plan (Part 2), the effects of such changes 

will need to be tested through the SA process. 

4.27 Similarly, where other uses are to be considered in Local Plan (Part 2) for specific sites that are 

currently in employment use and/or designated for employment use, the effects of designating 

these sites for other uses against SA objectives such as sustainable travel (SA objective 2), 

access to education (SA objective 3), health and well-being (SA objective 4), greenhouse gas 

emissions (SA objective 8), air pollution (SA objective 12) and flood risk (SA objective 14), will 

need to be assessed by the SA. 

843



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of Options Consultation Paper 25 LUC 

August 2016 

Table 4.3: SA scores for economy options 

SA Objectives  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Options S
A

1
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

S
A

2
: 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a
v
e
l 

S
A

3
: 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 

S
A

4
: 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

w
e
ll

b
e
in

g
 

S
A

5
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 c

r
im

e
  

S
A

6
: 

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

S
A

7
: 

T
o

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
 

v
it

a
li

ty
 

S
A

8
: 

G
r
e
e
n

h
o

u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

S
A

9
: 

B
io

d
iv

e
r
s
it

y
 a

n
d

 

g
e
o

d
iv

e
r
s
it

y
 

S
A

1
0

: 
L
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

n
d

 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p

e
 

S
A

1
1

: 
H

is
to

r
ic

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 

S
A

1
2

: 
A

ir
 p

o
ll

u
ti

o
n

 

S
A

1
3

: 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

w
a
te

r
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

S
A

1
4

: 
F
lo

o
d

 r
is

k
 

S
A

1
5

: 
E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 

la
n

d
 

S
A

1
6

: 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

w
a
s
te

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

Do you agree that there is demand 

for more small scale office space, 

especially in the town centre? 

0 0 0 0 0   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 

Dated, low value office stock in the 

town centre is oversupplied  
 0 0 0    0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 

Outside of the town centre, some 

medium and larger office allocations 

should be released to provide small 

or medium sized industrial and 

distribution uses to help meet 

demand for these uses 

0 0 0 0 0   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 

In demonstrating that existing 

employment sites have been 

actively marketed before they are 

considered for release to other 

uses, active marketing should be 

required to be undertaken for a 

minimum period of 12 months or 24 

months 

 0 0 0 0   0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 

844



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of 

Options Consultation Paper 

26 LUC 

August 2016 

Our retail centres 

4.28 The SA of the option questions relating to retail centres is shown in Table 4.4. 

4.29 All three options for retail centres seek to allow more flexibility for other uses to be introduced in 

centres, which could result in positive effects () for housing (SA objective 1). 

4.30 All three options also support an efficient use of land through allowing new development on 

previously developed land where existing uses have become unattractive or vacant resulting in a 

positive effect () on SA objective 15. 

4.31 A greater mix of uses and a more vibrant town centre will have a positive effect () on the 

perception of safety of crime (SA objective 5). 

4.32 Promoting a balanced range of retail and other town centre uses will provide more reasons for 

people to come into, and stay longer in, the town centre having positive effects for the economy 

(SA objective 6). 

4.33 Creating a range of retail and other uses in the town centre will help maintain and strengthen () 

the character and vitality of the town centre (SA objective 7). 

4.34 The effects on the landscape and townscape (SA objective 10) and the historic environment (SA 

objective 11) of a more flexible use of land within town and other centres, where many of the 

Borough’s built historic assets can be found, are uncertain until further detail is supplied.  For 

example, the re-use, refurbishment or replacement of medium and larger office allocations with 

other uses in the town centre, could give rise to either negative or positive effects depending 

upon the contribution of the existing building to the townscape and setting of historic assets, the 

alternative use proposed, and the nature and design quality of the re-used, refurbished, or 

replacement building. 

4.35 Attracting more people to the town centre could have a negative effect on Air Quality 

Management Areas (AQMAs) which are mainly concentrated around Northampton’s town centre 

and/or located near to significant arterial road routes. However, focusing development in urban 

areas may also offer more sustainable transport choices. Therefore an uncertain effect (?) is 

expected for SA objective 8 (greenhouse gas emissions) and SA objective 12 (air pollution). 

4.36 The effects on all other SA objectives are negligible (0). 

845



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of Options Consultation 

Paper 

27 LUC 

August 2016 

Table 4.4: SA scores for retail options 

SA Objectives  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Options S
A

1
: 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

S
A

2
: 

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a
v
e
l 

S
A

3
: 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 

S
A

4
: 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

w
e
ll

b
e
in

g
 

S
A

5
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 c

r
im

e
  

S
A

6
: 

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 

S
A

7
: 

T
o

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
 

v
it

a
li

ty
 

S
A

8
: 

G
r
e
e
n

h
o

u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

S
A

9
: 

B
io

d
iv

e
r
s
it

y
 a

n
d

 

g
e
o

d
iv

e
r
s
it

y
 

S
A

1
0

: 
L
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

n
d

 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p

e
 

S
A

1
1

: 
H

is
to

r
ic

 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 

S
A

1
2

: 
A

ir
 p

o
ll

u
ti

o
n

 

S
A

1
3

: 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

w
a
te

r
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

S
A

1
4

: 
F
lo

o
d

 r
is

k
 

S
A

1
5

: 
E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 

la
n

d
 

S
A

1
6

: 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

w
a
s
te

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

Allow more flexibility in some 

smaller centres for other uses to be 

introduced 

 0 0 0    ? 0 ? ? ? 0 0  0 

Review the retail frontages policy, 

which restricts non-retail uses in 

some sections of frontage, to allow 

greater flexibility for non-retail uses 

in some areas 

 0 0 0    ? 0 ? ? ? 0 0  0 

Within the town centre, some of the 

medium and larger sized office 

allocations are oversupplied 

 0 0 0    ? 0 ? ? ? 0 0  0 

846



 

 Northampton Local Plan (Part 2): Sustainability Appraisal of 

Options Consultation Paper 

28 LUC 

August 2016 

Overall comments 

4.37 The Northampton Local Plan (Part 2) is set within the context and parameters of the West 

Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy.  It needs to be consistent with the JCS, and provides 

greater detail at the Borough level of how the growth and delivery of development will be 

delivered within the town. 

4.38 The strategy of the Local Plan (Part 2) is to make the best and most efficient use of the urban 

area, by ensuring that housing is delivered to densities that are appropriate for an urban area, 

and that are highest in the town and other centres, and on key transport corridors.  This should 

help to deliver densities of population that can use and support local facilities, such as schools, 

shops, sport and leisure facilities, without the need to use a car and also facilitate use of 

sustainable modes of transport such as buses.  This in turn should have positive effects on 

greenhouse gas emissions and air pollution, if fewer car journeys are required.  The strategy also 

seeks to provide a range of homes to meet the varying needs of Northampton’s residents, 

including at all life stages. 

4.39 With respect to employment and retail uses, the strategy seeks to adopt a flexible approach, 

which again seeks to make the best and most efficient use of land.  This could lead to the change 

of use of land currently in employment or retail use to other uses, for example for housing, which 

could change the character of some areas.  Although this could be seen by some to be 

undesirable, if planned and managed well the effects should be positive. 

4.40 The strategy emphasises the need for high quality, energy, water and waste efficient design of 

new development, to provide for open space, sport and leisure facilities, and community facilities 

such as schools.  It aims to protect and strengthen the green infrastructure network, and 

biodiversity.  It also seeks to highlight the Borough’s historic environment in shaping 

development.  There will be challenges in making this happen, but the strategy is setting the right 

direction in sustainability terms. 

4.41 Urban areas inevitably undergo constant change.  They need to reinvent themselves to respond to 

changing circumstances, whether this is the digital economy or climate change.  In doing so, they 

need to retain their character and distinctiveness, as expressed through their historic assets, their 

open spaces and wildlife, their watercourses, and their communities.  The creation of new 

communities should not be at the expense of existing communities.  Instead, they should be 

mutually reinforcing, creating a network of neighbourhoods, supporting and using the Borough’s 

assets to best effect in a sustainable way. 

4.42 The strategy set out in the Options Consultation Paper seeks to do this.  The test will be how this 

translates into detailed development proposals in Local Plan (Part 2).  It will be important that 

they are in line with, and support, the vision, objectives and strategy set out in the Options 

Consultation Paper.  The next stages of the SA process will test how well this is being achieved in 

line with sustainability principles. 

847



 

 

Northampton Local Plan Part 2 

Habitats Regulations Assessment 

HRA Report 
Prepared by LUC 
March 2019 

 

848



 

 

 

Project Title: Northampton Local Plan (Part 2) SA and HRA 

Client: Northampton Borough Council 

 

 

 

  

 

Version Date Version Details Prepared by Checked by Approved by 

00 17/01/19 Draft for client review Katherine 
Sydney 

David Green 

Jeremy Owen 

Jeremy Owen 

01 31/01/18 Final for submission  
(Reg. 19) 

Katherine 
Sydney 

Jeremy Owen Jeremy Owen 

02 22/03/19 Updated to reflect minor 
Local Plan changes 

Katherine 
Sydney 

Jon Pearson Jeremy Owen 

Northampton Local Plan Part 2 HRA  Last saved: 22/03/2019 14:20 

849



 

 

Northampton Local Plan Part 2 

Habitats Regulations Assessment 

HRA Report 
Prepared by LUC 
March 2019 

 

Planning & EIA 
Design 
Landscape Planning 
Landscape Management 
Ecology 
GIS & Visualisation 

LUC BRISTOL 
12th Floor Colston Tower 
Colston Street Bristol 
BS1 4XE  
T +44 (0)117 929 1997  
bristol@landuse.co.uk 
 

Offices also in: 
Edinburgh 
Glasgow 
Lancaster 
London 
Manchester 
 

 
 
 
 

  FS 566056  EMS 566057 

Land Use Consultants Ltd 
Registered in England 
Registered number: 2549296 
Registered Office: 
43 Chalton Street 
London NW1 1JD 
LUC uses 100% recycled paper 
 

850



Contents 

 

 

 

 

1 Introduction 3 
Background to the preparation of the Local Plan Part 2 3 
The requirement to undertake Habitats Regulations Assessment of Development Plans 3 
Stages of Habitats Regulations Assessment 4 
Recent case law changes 5 
Previous HRA work 6 
Structure of the HRA report 7 

2 The Local Plan 8 

3 HRA methodology 10 
Screening 10 
Appropriate Assessment 13 

4 HRA screening 15 

5 Appropriate Assessment 17 
Physical habitat loss or damage 17 
Loss of supporting habitat 18 
Changes to bird sightlines 21 
Fragmentation 25 
Non-physical disturbance 25 
Recreation pressure 29 
Pet predation 35 
Changes to water supply and water level management 39 
Changes to water quality 41 
Air pollution 43 
Assessment summary 46 

6 Conclusions 49 

Appendix 1 51 
Attributes of the European sites with the potential to be affected by the Local Plan 51 

Appendix 2 59 
Plans and projects with the potential for in-combination effects 59 

Appendix 3 64 
Scoping matrix 64 

Appendix 4 73 
Allocated sites assessed in the HRA 73 

 

851



Tables 

Table 1.1 Stages in HRA 4 
Table 3.1 Stages of HRA screening 10 
Table 3.2 Potential impacts and activities arising from implementation of the Local Plan that could 
adversely affect European sites 11 
Table 6.1 Recommended policy amendments 49 
 

Figures 

Figure 2.1 Allocated sites 9 
Figure 4.1 Location of European sites 16 
Figure 5.1 Supporting habitat: allocated sites in relation to Golden Plover and Lapwing habitat 23 
Figure 5.2 Bird sightlines: allocated sites within 250m of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and 
Ramsar site 24 
Figure 5.3 Non-physical disturbance: allocated sites within 2km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 
and Ramsar site 28 
Figure 5.4 Recreation pressure: residential sites within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and 
Ramsar site 34 
Figure 5.5 Pet predation: residential sites within 1.5km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and 
Ramsar site 37 
Figure 5.6 Traffic contribution to pollutant concentration at different distances from the road centre 45 
 

852



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

3 March 2019 

1 Introduction 

1.1 LUC has been commissioned by Northampton Borough Council to carry out a Habitats Regulations 
Assessment (HRA) of its Local Plan. This report presents the methodology and findings of the HRA 
of the Northampton Local Plan Part 2, Submission Draft Consultation (December 2018) (hereafter 
called ‘the Local Plan’). 

Background to the preparation of the Local Plan Part 2 

1.2 Northampton Borough Council (NBC) is producing a new Local Plan for the Borough.  Once 
adopted, the Local Plan will set out policies and guidance for development of the Borough over the 
next ten years to 2029.  The Local Plan (Part 2) will replace the saved policies from the 
Northampton Local Plan adopted in 1997 and the Central Area Action Plan. 

1.3 The West Northamptonshire Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) was adopted in December 2014 and 
covers the administrative areas of Daventry District, Northampton Borough and South 
Northamptonshire. It sets out the long term vision and objectives for the whole of the West 
Northamptonshire Area for the plan period up until 2029. This Joint Core Strategy forms part of 
the Development Plan for Northampton Borough. 

1.4 Northampton Borough Council’s Local Plan (Part 2) provides detailed planning policies to manage 
and guide development across the Borough.  

The requirement to undertake Habitats Regulations Assessment of 
Development Plans 

1.5 The requirement to undertake HRA of development plans was confirmed by the amendments to 
the Habitats Regulations published for England and Wales in July 2007 and updated in 2010 and 
again in 2012.  These updates were consolidated into the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 20171.   

1.6 The HRA refers to the assessment of the potential effects of a development plan on one or more 
European Sites, including Special Protection Areas (SPAs) and Special Areas of Conservation 
(SACs): 

• SPAs are classified under the European Council Directive “on the conservation of wild birds‟ 
(79/409/EEC; ‘Birds Directive’) for the protection of wild birds and their habitats (including 
particularly rare and vulnerable species listed in Annex 1 of the Birds Directive, and migratory 
species); 

• SACs are designated under the Habitats Directive and target particular habitats (Annex 1) 
and/or species (Annex II) identified as being of European importance. 

1.7 Currently, the Government also expects potential SPAs (pSPAs), possible SACs (pSACs) and 
Ramsar sites to be included within the assessment2. 

• Ramsar sites support internationally important wetland habitats and are listed under the 
Convention on Wetlands of International Importance especially as Waterfowl Habitat (Ramsar 
Convention, 1971). 

                                                
1 The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (Statutory Instrument 2017 No.  1012) consolidate the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 with subsequent amendments. 
2 Department of Communities and Local Government (July 2018) National Planning Policy Framework (para 176). 

853



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

4 March 2019 

1.8 Candidate SACs (cSACs) and Sites of Community Importance (SCIs), which are sites that have 
been adopted by the European Commission but not yet formally designated by the government, 
must also be considered.   

1.9 For ease of reference during HRA, these three designations are collectively referred to as 
European sites, despite Ramsar designations being at the wider international level. 

1.10 The overall purpose of the HRA is to conclude whether or not a proposal or policy, or whole 
development plan would adversely affect the integrity of the site in question. This is judged in 
terms of the implications of the plan for a site’s ‘qualifying features’ (i.e. those Annex I habitats, 
Annex II species, and Annex I bird populations for which it has been designated). Significantly, 
HRA is based on the precautionary principle. Where uncertainty or doubt remains, an adverse 
effect should be assumed. 

Stages of Habitats Regulations Assessment 

1.11 Table 1.1 summarises the stages involved in carrying out a full HRA based on various guidance 
documents.3,4  This HRA presents the methodology and findings of Stage 1: Screening and Stage 
2: Appropriate Assessment. 

Table 1.1 Stages in HRA 

Stage Task Outcome 

Stage 1: Screening 
(the ‘Significance 
Test’)  

Description of the plan. 

Identification of potential effects on 
European Sites. 

Assessing the effects on European 
Sites. 

Where effects are unlikely, prepare 
a ‘finding of no significant effect 
report’. 

Where effects judged likely, or lack 
of information to prove otherwise, 
proceed to Stage 2. 

Stage 2: Appropriate 
Assessment (the 
‘Integrity Test’) 

Gather information (plan and 
European Sites). 

Impact prediction. 

Evaluation of impacts in view of 
conservation objectives. 

Where impacts considered to affect 
qualifying features, identify 
alternative options. 

Assess alternative options. 

If no alternatives exist, define and 
evaluate mitigation measures where 
necessary. 

Appropriate Assessment report 
describing the plan, European site 
baseline conditions, the adverse 
effects of the plan on the European 
site, how these effects will be 
avoided through, firstly,  avoidance, 
and secondly, mitigation including 
the mechanisms and timescale for 
these mitigation measures. 

If effects remain after all 
alternatives and mitigation 
measures have been considered 
proceed to Stage 3. 

 

Stage 3: 
Assessment where 
no alternatives exist 
and adverse impacts 
remain taking into 
account mitigation 

Identify and demonstrate 
‘imperative reasons of overriding 
public interest’ (IROPI). 

Demonstrate no alternatives exist. 

Identify potential compensatory 
measures. 

This stage should be avoided if at 
all possible.  The test of IROPI and 
the requirements for compensation 
are extremely onerous. 

1.12 In assessing the effects of the Local Plan in accordance with Regulation 105 of the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 20175, there are potentially two tests to be applied by the 

                                                
3 Planning for the Protection of European Sites.  Guidance for Regional Spatial Strategies and Local Development Documents.  
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG), August 2006. 
4 The HRA Handbook.  David Tyldesley & Associates, a subscription based online guidance document: 
https://www.dtapublications.co.uk/handbook/ 
5 SI No.  2017/2012 

854



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

5 March 2019 

competent authority: a ‘Significance Test’, followed if necessary by an Appropriate Assessment 
which will inform the ‘Integrity Test’. The relevant sequence of questions is as follows:  

• Step 1: Under Reg.  105(1)(b), consider whether the plan is directly connected with or 
necessary to the management of the sites. If not –  

• Step 2: Under Reg. 105(1)(a) consider whether the plan is likely to have a significant effect 
on the site, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects (the ‘Significance 
Test’). [These two steps are undertaken as part of Stage 1: Screening shown in Table 1.1 
above.] If Yes –  

• Step 3: Under Reg.  105(1), make an Appropriate Assessment of the implications for the site 
in view of its current conservation objectives (the ‘Integrity Test’). In so doing, it is mandatory 
under Reg.  105(2) to consult Natural England, and optional under Reg.  105(3) to take the 
opinion of the general public. [This step is undertaken during Stage 2: Appropriate 
Assessment shown in Table 1.1.]   

• Step 4: In accordance with Reg.105(4), but subject to Reg.107, give effect to the land use 
plan only after having ascertained that the plan will not adversely affect the integrity of the 
European site. 

1.13 It is normally anticipated that an emphasis on Stages 1 and 2 of this process will, through a series 
of iterations, help ensure that potential adverse effects are identified and eliminated through the 
avoidance of likely significant effects at Stage 1, and through Appropriate Assessment at Stage 2 
by the inclusion of mitigation measures designed to avoid, reduce or abate effects. The need to 
consider alternatives could imply more onerous changes to a plan document. It is generally 
understood that so called ‘imperative reasons of overriding public interest’ (IROPI) are likely to be 
justified only very occasionally and would involve engagement with both the Government and 
European Commission. 

1.14 The HRA should be undertaken by the ‘competent authority’ - in this case NBC, and LUC has been 
commissioned to do this on its behalf. The HRA also requires close working with Natural England 
as the statutory nature conservation body6 in order to obtain the necessary information and agree 
the process, outcomes and any mitigation proposals.  

Recent case law changes 

1.15 This HRA has been prepared in accordance with recent case law findings, including most notably 
the recent ‘People over Wind’ and ‘Holohan’ rulings from the Court of Justice for the European 
Union (CJEU). 

1.16 The recent People over Wind, Peter Sweetman v Coillte Teoranta (April 2018) judgment ruled that 
Article 6(3) of the Habitats Directive should be interpreted as meaning that mitigation measures 
should be assessed as part of an Appropriate Assessment, and should not be taken into account 
at the screening stage.  The precise wording of the ruling is as follows: 

“Article 6(3) ………must be interpreted as meaning that, in order to determine whether it is 
necessary to carry out, subsequently, an appropriate assessment of the implications, for a site 
concerned, of a plan or project, it is not appropriate, at the screening stage, to take account of 
measures intended to avoid or reduce the harmful effects of the plan or project on that site. 

1.17 In light of the above, the HRA screening stage does not rely upon avoidance or mitigation 
measures to draw conclusions as to whether the Local Plan could result in likely significant effects 
on European sites, with any such measures being considered at the Appropriate Assessment stage 
as relevant.  

1.18 This HRA also fully considers the recent Holohan v An Bord Pleanala (November 2018) judgement 
which stated that: 

Article 6(3) of Council Directive 92/43/EEC of 21 May 1992 on the conservation of natural habitats 
and of wild fauna and flora must be interpreted as meaning that an ‘appropriate assessment’ 

                                                
6 Regulation 5 of The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (Statutory Instrument 2017 No.  1012). 

855



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

6 March 2019 

must, on the one hand, catalogue the entirety of habitat types and species for which a site is 
protected, and, on the other, identify and examine both the implications of the proposed project 
for the species present on that site, and for which that site has not been listed, and the 
implications for habitat types and species to be found outside the boundaries of that site, provided 
that those implications are liable to affect the conservation objectives of the site. 

Article 6(3) of Directive 92/43 must be interpreted as meaning that the competent authority is 
permitted to grant to a plan or project consent which leaves the developer free to determine 
subsequently certain parameters relating to the construction phase, such as the location of the 
construction compound and haul routes, only if that authority is certain that the development 
consent granted establishes conditions that are strict enough to guarantee that those parameters 
will not adversely affect the integrity of the site. 

Article 6(3) of Directive 92/43 must be interpreted as meaning that, where the competent 
authority rejects the findings in a scientific expert opinion recommending that additional 
information be obtained, the ‘appropriate assessment’ must include an explicit and detailed 
statement of reasons capable of dispelling all reasonable scientific doubt concerning the effects of 
the work envisaged on the site concerned. 

1.19 In undertaking this HRA, LUC has fully considered the potential for effects on species and 
habitats, including those not listed as qualifying features, to result in secondary effects upon the 
qualifying features of European sites, including the potential for complex interactions and 
dependencies. In addition, the potential for offsite impacts, such as through impacts to 
functionally linked land, and or species and habitats located beyond the boundaries of European 
site, but which may be important in supporting the ecological processes of the qualifying features, 
has also been fully considered in this HRA. 

Previous HRA work 

Review of Local Plan (Part 2) site options (2017) 

1.20 LUC was commissioned to undertake some initial work reviewing Northampton Borough Council’s 
Local Plan site allocation options, with reference to the requirements of the Habitats Regulations. 
HRA screening was not carried out as the preferred sites had not been identified at that stage; 
however, the report considered the types of effects that could arise as a result of the Local Plan 
and whether it was possible to rule any out.  

1.21 That work provides background information for this HRA report, but this HRA has been fully 
assessed in line with the case law that has been determined since 2017. 

HRA of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (2007-2013) 

1.22 In 2007 an HRA screening report was prepared for the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy. This identified likely significant effects at Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site and the 
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site. These sites were therefore investigated 
further through Appropriate Assessment which took place between 2009 and 2013, as the 
Appropriate Assessment was continually updated alongside the emerging Joint Core Strategy. A 
final HRA addendum was submitted in 2013 for the Proposed Main Modifications Joint Core 
Strategy. The Joint Core Strategy was adopted on 15th December 2014. 

1.23 Some of the evidence gathered during the HRA work for the Joint Core Strategy7 has been 
referenced within this report. 

                                                
7 http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=2757328#2757328 

856



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

7 March 2019 

Structure of the HRA report 

1.24 This chapter (Chapter 1) has introduced the requirement to undertake HRA of the Local Plan.  
The remainder of the report is structured as follows: 

• Chapter 2: The Local Plan summarises the content of the Submission Draft Consultation 
version of the Northampton Local Plan Part 2, which is the subject of this report. 

• Chapter 3: HRA methodology sets out the approach used and the specific tasks undertaken 
during the screening stage of the HRA. 

• Chapter 4: HRA screening describes the findings of the screening stage of the HRA. 

• Chapter 5: Appropriate Assessment sets out the methodology and findings of the 
Appropriate Assessment stage of the HRA. 

• Chapter 6: Conclusions summarises the HRA conclusions and describes the next steps to be 
undertaken. 

857



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

8 March 2019 

2 The Local Plan 

2.1 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 contains the development management policies and site allocations 
that will guide development within the Borough for the period to 2029. It forms part of the 
Development Plan for Northampton, against which planning applications will be determined 
(unless there are material considerations that indicate otherwise), alongside: 

• The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (Local Plan Part 1); and 

• Any ‘made’ Neighbourhood Plans (currently Duston, Spring Boroughs, and ‘Growing 
Together’). 

2.2 The Local Plan sets out an overall vision for the Borough and 13 overarching objectives that define 
Northampton’s policy priorities. It then sets out 33 development management policies and an 
additional five policies that provide site-specific design principles for five of the larger allocated 
sites. Each of the development management policies identifies one or more corresponding policies 
from the JCS that will be implemented through the Local Plan policy. For example, Policy 26: 
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area delivers JCS Policy BN4 Upper Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits Special Protection Area. Although policies from both plans are related in this way, both 
apply to development in Northampton.  

2.3 Each of the policies is listed in the scoping matrix in Appendix 3. 

2.4 In total, 95 sites are allocated for development, as shown in Figure 2.1, comprising: 

• 74 sites for residential development; 

• 11 sites for commercial development; and 

• 10 sites for mixed residential / commercial development. 

2.5 The sites allocated for residential development are intended to provide 4,749 new homes over the 
plan period. 1,496 of these are to make up for a shortfall in the delivery of homes planned for by 
the JCS. The JCS identified a housing target for Northampton of 18,870 new homes by 2029, and 
5,138 homes were built between 2011 and 2018, with a further 12,236 yet to be built on sites 
identified in the JCS. The target number of new homes within the plan period (to 2029) is 
therefore unlikely to be met. The 4,749 new homes in the Local Plan are intended to meet the 
requirements for the anticipated JCS shortfall (1,496), a 20% buffer (20% of 18,870, or 2,746), 
plus an additional 507 homes.  

2.6 The 18,870 homes planned in the JCS have already been subject to HRA, including the 1,496 
shortfall now incorporated into the Local Plan. When considering the potential in-combination 
effects of the Local Plan and JCS, therefore, the additional number of homes generated by the 
Local Plan is 3,253 and the total number of homes across the two plans is 22,123 (of which 
16,985 are not yet built). 

858



South
Northamptonshire

District

Daventry
District

Wellingborough
District (B)

35

114

51

109

16

85
62

8

80
93

48

60

46

120

14

57

12

59

78

10

97

116

52

40

146

2

3

99

4

110

95

74

26

104 131

132

43

138

20

125

34

23

67

122

58

63
140

65
69

17

118

133

30

86

94

113

29

7

1

145

18

27

73

126

28

107

81

44

49

92

108

39

61

47

6

134

112

137

87

84

64

103

13

129

21

117
111

130

19

25

98

31

36

24

75

50

119

38

77

9

96

83

88

54

45

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

0 2.5 5
km

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUCEDI FIG2-1_5823_r2_AllocatedSites_A3L  20/03/2019

Map Scale @ A3: 1:45,000

E
Source: Northampton BC, LUC

Northampton Borough Council
Other Local Authority
Allocated employment site
Allocated residential site

Northampton 
Local Plan Part 2 HRA

Figure 2.1: Allocated Sites

51

109

85

62

80
93

48

60

46

46

57
59

78

97

52

99

110

74

86

94

73

81
49

9261

112

64

98

77

96

83

54

1 - LAA1006
2 - LAA0719
3 - LAA0720
4 - LAA0910
6 - LAA1121
7 - LAA1099
8 - LAA0208
9 - LAA0629c
10 - LAA0629r
12 - LAA0870
13 - LAA1140
14 - LAA1112
16 - LAA0594c
17 - LAA0594r
18 - LAA1118
19 - LAA1025
20 - LAA1096
21 - LAA1071
23 - LAA1102
24 - LAA1037
25 - LAA1035
26 - LAA1034
27 - LAA0195
28 - LAA1119
29 - LAA0168
30 - LAA1009
31 - LAA1036
34 - LAA1100
35 - LAA0180
36 - LAA1068
38 - LAA0338
39 - LAA1048
40 - LAA0672
43 - LAA1052
44 - LAA1109
45 - LAA0403
46 - LAA1005
47 - LAA1131
48 - LAA0333c
49 - LAA0333r
50 - LAA1026
51 - LAA0288c
52 - LAA0288r
56 - LAA0931
57 - LAA1108
58 - LAA0167
59 - LAA1010c
60 - LAA1010r
61 - LAA0818
62 - LAA1117
63 - LAA1126

64 - LAA1086A
66 - LAA1104
68 - LAA1086B
73 - LAA1022
74 - LAA0174
76 - LAA1113c
77 - LAA1113r
79 - LAA0598
80 - LAA1127
82 - LAA1123
83 - LAA1134c
84 - LAA1134r
85 - LAA1116
89 - LAA1124
92 - LAA1014
93 - LAA0335c
94 - LAA0335r
95 - LAA0903
96 - LAA0814
100 - LAA1139
101 - LAA1041
102 - LAA1063
103 - LAA0740
104 - LAA1013
105 - LAA1007
106 - LAA0915c
107 - LAA0915r
108 - LAA1069
109 - LAA0496
110 - LAA0171
111 - LAA0590
112 - LAA0204
113 - LAA0205
114 - LAA1137
115 - LAA1114
116 - LAA1138
117 - LAA1101
119 - LAA1107
122 - LAA1097
123 - LAA0657
126 - LAA1094
127 - LAA1098
128 - LAA1049
129 - LAA1051B
130 - LAA1051A
131 - LAA1001
134 - LAA1133
135 - LAA1060
137 - LAA0508
142 - LAA1058
143 - LAA0685

859



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

10 March 2019 

3 HRA methodology 

Screening 

3.1 HRA Screening of the Local Plan has been undertaken in line with current available guidance and 
seeks to meet the requirements of the Habitats Regulations. The Habitats Regulations require 
screening to involve the stages outlined in Table 3.1. 

Table 3.1 Stages of HRA screening8 

Regulation Stage required by Regulation 

Reg. 63(1) 1) Determine whether the plan or project is within the scope of the Habitats 
Regulations 

2) Determine whether the plan or project is of a type that could possibly have any 
(positive or negative) effect on a European site 

3) Determine whether the plan or project is directly connect with or necessary to 
the management of the European sites potentially affected 

4) Identify the European sites potentially adversely affected and their conservation 
objectives 

5) Determine whether the plan or project is likely to have a significant adverse 
effect on any European site alone 

6) Determine whether the plan or project is likely to have a significant adverse 
effect on any European site in combination with other plans or projects 

Reg. 63(2) 7) Requires the information necessary to decide whether the plan or project would 
be likely to have a significant adverse effect on a European site either alone or in 
combination with other plans or projects 

Reg. 67 8) Coordination where more than one competent authority is involved in screening 
the plans or projects 

3.2 Local Plans fall within the scope of the Habitats Regulations (screening stage 1; see paragraph 
1.5) and Northampton Borough Council is the competent authority with regards to screening the 
Local Plan (screening stage 8). The information required to determine whether the Local Plan is 
likely to have a significant effect (screening stage 7) is set out below and in Chapter 4. 

3.3 The methodology for the remainder of the stages is described below; Chapter 4 HRA Screening 
Assessment provides the responses to each stage with reference to the Local Plan. 

Identifying types of potential impact from the Local Plan 

3.4 Table 3.2 sets out the range of potential impacts that development of the type included in the 
Local Plan and related activities may have on European sites. This table has been prepared by 
LUC for use in informing HRA judgements, drawing on our experience of HRA and comments 
previously provided by Natural England relating to the potential impacts and activities that could 
affect European sites. 

                                                
8 Adapted from the HRA Handbook David Tyldesley & Associates: https://www.dtapublications.co.uk/handbook/ 

860



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

11 March 2019 

Table 3.2 Potential impacts and activities arising from implementation of the Local Plan 
that could adversely affect European sites 

Broad categories and examples of 
potential impacts on European sites
  

Examples of activities responsible for impacts 

Physical loss   
• Removal (including offsite effects, e.g. 

foraging habitat) 
• Smothering 
• Habitat degradation 

Development (e.g. housing, employment, infrastructure, 
tourism) 
Structural alterations to buildings (bat roosts)  
Afforestation  
Tipping 
Cessation of or inappropriate management for nature 
conservation 

Physical damage  
• Direct mortality 
• Sedimentation / silting 
• Prevention of natural processes 
• Habitat degradation 
• Erosion 
• Trampling  
• Fragmentation 
• Severance / barrier effect 
• Edge effects 
• Fire 

Flood defences 
Dredging  
Recreation (e.g. motor cycling, cycling, walking, horse 
riding, water sports, caving) 
Development (e.g. infrastructure, tourism, adjacent 
housing etc.)  
Vandalism 
Arson 
Cessation of or inappropriate management for nature 
conservation 

Non-physical disturbance  
• Noise 
• Vibration 
• Visual presence 
• Human presence 
• Light pollution 

Development (e.g. housing, industrial) 
Recreation (e.g. dog walking, water sports) 
Industrial activity 
Vehicular traffic 
Artificial lighting (e.g. street lighting) 

Water table/availability  
• Drying 
• Flooding / stormwater increase 
• Water level and stability 
• Water flow (e.g. reduction in velocity of 

surface water  
• Barrier effect (on migratory species) 

Water abstraction 
Drainage interception (e.g. reservoir, dam, infrastructure 
and other development) 
Increased discharge (e.g. drainage, runoff) 

Toxic contamination  
• Water pollution 
• Soil contamination  
• Air pollution 

Oil / chemical spills 
Tipping  
Vehicular traffic 
Industrial waste / emissions 

Non-toxic contamination 
• Nutrient enrichment (e.g. of soils and 

water) 
• Algal blooms  
• Changes in salinity  
• Changes in thermal regime  
• Changes in turbidity  
• Air pollution (dust) 

Sewage discharge  
Water abstraction  
Industrial activity 
Flood defences 
Construction 

Biological disturbance 
• Direct mortality 
• Out-competition by non-native species  
• Selective extraction of species 
• Introduction of disease  
• Rapid population fluctuations  
• Natural succession 

Development (e.g. housing areas with domestic and public 
gardens) 
Predation by domestic pets 
Introduction of non-native species (e.g. from gardens) 
Fishing 
Hunting 
Changes in management practices (e.g. grazing regimes, 
access controls, cutting / clearing) 

861



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

12 March 2019 

Identifying European sites that may be affected   

3.5 Geographical Information Systems (GIS) data has been used to map the locations and boundaries 
of European sites using publicly available data from Natural England. All European sites lying 
partially or wholly within 15 km of the Local Plan boundary have been included, to reflect the fact 
that policies in the Local Plan may affect European sites that are located outside of the 
administrative boundary of the Plan. The 15 km distance has been agreed with Natural England 
for HRAs elsewhere and is considered a precautionary method of identifying European sites that 
could potentially be affected by development. Nevertheless, a check has been made to identify 
any further-distant European sites that could be significantly affected by development within 
Northampton Borough due to links (e.g. hydrological or ecological) with the Plan area.   

Assessment of ‘likely significant effects’ of the Local Plan 

3.6 Regulation 105 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 20179 (the ‘Habitats 
Regulations’), requires an assessment of the ‘likely significant effects’ of a land use plan. Relevant 
case law helps to interpret when effects should be considered as a likely significant effect, when 
carrying out HRA of a land use plan.   

3.7 In the Waddenzee case10, the European Court of Justice ruled on the interpretation of Article 6(3) 
of the Habitats Directive (translated into Reg. 102 in the Habitats Regulations), including that: 

• An effect should be considered ‘likely’, “if it cannot be excluded, on the basis of objective 
information, that it will have a significant effect on the site” (para 44). 

• An effect should be considered ‘significant’, “if it undermines the conservation objectives” 
(para 48). 

• Where a plan or project has an effect on a site “but is not likely to undermine its conservation 
objectives, it cannot be considered likely to have a significant effect on the site concerned” 
(para 47). 

3.8 A relevant opinion delivered to the Court of Justice of the European Union11 commented that: 

“The requirement that an effect in question be ‘significant’ exists in order to lay down a de 
minimis threshold.  Plans or projects that have no appreciable effect on the site are thereby 
excluded.  If all plans or projects capable of having any effect whatsoever on the site were to be 
caught by Article 6(3), activities on or near the site would risk being impossible by reason of 
legislative overkill.” 

3.9 This opinion (the ‘Sweetman’ case) therefore allows for the authorisation of plans and projects 
whose possible effects, alone or in combination, can be considered ‘trivial’ or de minimis; referring 
to such cases as those “that have no appreciable effect on the site”.  In practice such effects could 
be screened out as having no likely significant effect – they would be ‘insignificant’. 

3.10 The HRA screening assessment therefore considers whether the Local Plan policies could have 
likely significant effects either alone or in combination.  

In-combination effects 

3.11 Regulation 105 of the Habitats Regulations 2017 requires an Appropriate Assessment where “a 
land use plan is likely to have a significant effect on a European site (either alone or in 
combination with other plans or projects) and is not directly connected with or necessary to the 
management of the site”.  Therefore, where likely significant effects are identified for the Local 
Plan it is necessary to consider whether there may also be significant effects in combination with 
other plans or projects.   

3.12 The first stage in identifying ‘in-combination’ effects involves identifying which other plans and 
projects in addition to the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 may affect the European sites that are 
the focus of this assessment. There are a large number of potentially relevant plans and projects 
which could be considered. The review focuses largely on planned spatial growth within the 

                                                
9 SI No.  2017/2012 
10 ECJ Case C-127/02 “Waddenzee‟ Jan 2004. 
11 Advocate General’s Opinion to CJEU in Case C-258/11 Sweetman and others v An Bord Pleanala 22nd Nov 2012. 

862



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

13 March 2019 

authorities adjacent to or near Northampton, because these are the plans most likely to give rise 
to in-combination effects, for example in relation to water use or recreation pressure. Water 
Resource Management Plans have also been considered as these plans directly affect the region’s 
reservoirs and the rivers that feed them, including Rutland Water and the River Nene.  

3.13 The following plans have been considered: 

• Joint Core Strategies (Local Plan Part 1) for West Northamptonshire and North 
Northamptonshire; 

• Local Plans (Part 2) for local authorities bordering Northampton; 

• Northamptonshire County Council’s Transportation Plan and Minerals & Waste Plan; 

• Neighbourhood plans within Northampton; and 

• Anglian Water’s current and emerging Water Resources Management Plans. 

3.14 Appendix 2 outlines the components of each plan that could have an impact on nearby European 
sites. The potential for the effects of these plans to combine with the effects of the Local Plan has 
been considered in the HRA screening and subsequent Appropriate Assessment. 

Appropriate Assessment 

3.15 Following the screening stage, if likely significant effects on European sites are unable to be ruled 
out, the plan-making authority is required under Regulation 105 of the Habitats Regulations 2017 
to make an ‘Appropriate Assessment’ of the implications of the plan for European sites, in view of 
their conservation objectives. EC Guidance12 states that the Appropriate Assessment should 
consider the impacts of the plan (either alone or in combination with other projects or plans) on 
the integrity of European sites with respect to their conservation objectives and to their structure 
and function.   

Assessment scope 

3.16 The scope of the Appropriate Assessment has been narrowed down by identifying the specific 
aspects of the Local Plan that contribute to its potential for significant effects. Each Local Plan 
policy and site allocation has been considered, alone and in-combination with other policies, site 
allocations and/or plans from neighbouring authorities. 

3.17 A risk-based approach involving the application of the precautionary principle has been adopted in 
the assessment, such that a conclusion of ‘no significant effect’ has only been reached where it is 
considered unlikely, based on current knowledge and the information available, that a Local Plan 
policy or site allocation would have a significant effect on the integrity of a European site. 

3.18 For some types of impacts, the potential for likely significant effects has been determined on a 
proximity basis, using GIS data to determine the proximity of potential development locations to 
the European sites that are the subject of the assessment. However, there are many uncertainties 
associated with using set distances as there are very few standards available as a guide to how 
far impacts will travel. Therefore, where assumptions have been made, these are set out in 
Chapter 5. 

3.19 A ‘traffic light‘ approach has been used in the scoping matrix to record the likely impacts of each 
policy and site allocation on European sites and their qualifying habitats and species, using the 
colour categories shown below. 

                                                
12 Assessment of plans and projects significantly affecting European sites.  Methodological guidance on the provisions of Article 6(3) 
and (4) of the Habitats Directive 92/43/EEC.  European Commission Environment DG, November 2001. 

863



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

14 March 2019 

Red  There are likely to be significant effects (scoped in to Appropriate Assessment). 

Amber There may be significant effects, but this is currently uncertain (scoped in to Appropriate 
Assessment). 

Green There are unlikely to be significant effects (scoped out of Appropriate Assessment). 

3.20 The Appropriate Assessment then focuses on those policies and site allocations that have been 
scoped in.  

Assessing the effects on site integrity 

3.21 A site’s integrity depends on it being able to sustain its ‘qualifying features’ (i.e. those Annex 1 
habitats, Annex II species, and Annex 1 bird populations for which it has been designated) and to 
ensure their continued viability. A high degree of integrity is considered to exist where the 
potential to meet a site’s conservation objectives is realised and where the site is capable of self-
repair and renewal with a minimum of external management support.  

3.22 A conclusion needs to be reached as to whether or not the Local Plan would adversely affect the 
integrity of a European site. As stated in the EC Guidance, assessing the effects on the site(s) 
integrity involves considering whether the predicted impacts of the Local Plan policies (either 
alone or in combination) have the potential to: 

• Cause delays to the achievement of conservation objectives for the site; 

• Interrupt progress towards the achievement of conservation objectives for the site; 

• Disrupt those factors that help to maintain the favourable conditions of the site; 

• Interfere with the balance, distribution and density of key species that are the indicators of 
the favourable condition of the site; 

• Cause changes to the vital defining aspects (e.g. nutrient balance) that determine how the 
site functions as a habitat or ecosystem; 

• Change the dynamics of relationships that define the structure or function of the site (e.g. 
relationships between soil and water, or animals and plants); 

• Interfere with anticipated natural changes to the site; 

• Reduce the extent of key habitats or the population of key species; 

• Reduce the diversity of the site; 

• Result in disturbance that could affect the population, density or balance between key species; 

• Result in fragmentation; or 

• Result in the loss of key features. 

3.23 The conservation objectives for each European site (Appendix 1) are generally to maintain the 
qualifying features in favourable condition. The Site Improvement Plans for each European site 
provide a high level overview of the issues (both current and predicted) affecting the condition of 
the European features on the site(s) and outline the priority measures required to improve the 
condition of the features. These have been drawn on to help to understand what is needed to 
maintain the integrity of the European sites. 

3.24 For each European site where an uncertain or likely significant effect has been identified in 
relation to the Local Plan, the potential impacts have been set out and judgements made (based 
on the information available) regarding whether the impact will have an adverse effect on the 
integrity of the site. Consideration has been given to the potential for mitigation measures to be 
implemented that could reduce the likelihood or severity of the potential impacts such that there 
would not be an adverse effect on the integrity of the site. 

864



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

15 March 2019 

4 HRA screening 

4.1 The HRA screening of the Local Plan has determined that Appropriate Assessment is required, as 
likely significant effects from the plan’s policies and site allocations cannot be ruled out through 
screening. The reasoning for this is presented below, in response to each screening stage (Table 
3.1). 

Is the Local Plan of a type that could possibly have any (positive or negative) effect on 
a European site? 

4.2 The Local Plan will result in several of the types of activity that could have impacts on European 
sites (Table 3.2). The Local Plan will result in new development (e.g. housing, employment and 
infrastructure), which will have associated impacts (e.g. changes to traffic distribution, types or 
distribution of recreation, water abstraction and discharge, light or noise).  

Is the Local Plan directly connected with or necessary to the management of any 
European sites? 

4.3 No; the Local Plan is not connected with or necessary to the management of any European sites. 

Which European sites could be potentially adversely affected? 

4.4 Only one European site is located within 15 km of the Northampton Local Plan boundary: the 
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site. Although not within the 15 km buffer zone, 
Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, located 41 km from the edge of the Local Plan boundary, has 
also been included in the screening assessment.  This is because the reservoir is a primary source 
of urban water supply for Northamptonshire and could be affected by changes in water demand, 
for example as a result of new homes.  Figure 4.1 shows the location of the two sites.  

4.5 The attributes of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site and Rutland Water SPA 
and Ramsar site are set out in Appendix 1. These have been identified with reference to 
Standard Data Forms for the SPAs, Ramsar Information Sheets13 for the Ramsar sites, and 
Natural England’s Site Improvement Plans14.  

4.6 Natural England’s conservation objectives15 for the SPAs have also been reviewed. These state 
that site integrity must be maintained or restored by maintaining or restoring the habitats of 
qualifying features, the supporting processes on which they rely, and populations of qualifying 
species.  

Is the Local Plan likely to have a significant adverse effect on any European site alone? 

4.7 Likely significant effects from the Local Plan cannot be ruled out at the screening stage: the Local 
Plan allocates development across the Borough, and both Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site and 
the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site have been identified as being sensitive to 
the types of activities that result from development.  

Is the Local Plan likely to have a significant adverse effect on any European site in 
combination with other plans or projects? 

4.8 Likely significant effects from the Local Plan in combination with other plans and projects cannot 
be ruled out at the screening stage. Neighbouring authorities have also allocated development 
that could affect Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site or the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 
and Ramsar site. 

                                                
13 Obtained from the Joint Nature conservation Committee website (www.jncc.gov.ukd)  
14 Obtained from the Natural England website (www.naturalengland.org.uk) 
15 Obtained from Natural England website http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/category/6490068894089216  

865

http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/category/6490068894089216


Upper Nene Valley
Gravel

Pits

Rutland Water

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

0 10 20
km

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUCEDI FIG4-1_5823_r1_EuropeanSites_A3L  18/01/2019

Map Scale @ A3: 1:220,000

E
Source: Northampton BC, Natural England

Northampton Borough Council
Special Protection Area
Ramsar site

Northampton 
Local Plan Part 2 HRA

Figure 4.1: Location of European
Sites

866



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

17 March 2019 

5 Appropriate Assessment 

5.1 The HRA screening has identified the need for Appropriate Assessment, as likely significant effects 
from the Local Plan (alone or in combination with other projects or plans) cannot be ruled out 
without further assessment.  

5.2 The scope of the Appropriate Assessment has been narrowed down by considering each Local Plan 
policy in turn, to determine whether they would result in the type of development that could have 
an effect on a European site; this is set out in Appendix 3. For each type of impact that has been 
identified, the assessment considers the effects on each of the two European sites, the elements 
of the Local Plan (and other plans or projects, where relevant) that would have those effects, and 
any mitigation or safeguards in place that would reduce the effects. The Appropriate Assessment 
then considers whether there would be an adverse effect on the integrity of a European site. 

Physical habitat loss or damage 

5.3 Physical habitat loss or damage at a European site can occur when a new development physically 
encroaches on the boundary of that European site.  

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site 

5.4 Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site is not located within the boundary of the Local Plan area, and 
therefore it will not be subject to any physical habitat loss or damage from any Northampton site 
allocations or other development, and does not need to be considered further.   

5.5 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of physical habitat loss or damage, either alone or in combination with other 
plans or projects. 

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site 

5.6 The southern end of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site falls partly within the 
Northampton Borough boundary and therefore potential habitat loss or damage has been 
considered in relation to the Local Plan.  

5.7 None of the allocated sites fall within the borders of this European site; however, some of the 
Local Plan’s policies permit new development outside of the site allocations. In most cases 
development permitted by those policies is limited to identifiable areas such as the University 
campus, existing employment areas, the town centre or wider central area.  

5.8 The following policies permit new development outside of identifiable areas: 

• Policy 11: Development of main town centre uses  
Permits the regeneration of unallocated sites beyond the town centre and central area, for 
housing and mixed use development;  

• Policy 17: New retail developments and retail impact assessment 
Permits retail development at edge-of-centre and some out-of-centre sites; and 

• Policy 20: Community services and facilities 
Permits new or extended community facilities. 

5.9 Although these policies could in theory permit development within the SPA and Ramsar site, 
safeguards provided by other policies within the Local Plan would make this unlikely to occur:  

• Policy 25: Supporting and enhancing biodiversity 
Requires proposals to “conserve, enhance and increase the net gain for biodiversity. In 
particular, the Council will seek the protection or enhancement of wildlife sites that are in 

867



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

18 March 2019 

areas which are…of national or international importance, specifically the Site of Special 
Scientific Interest, Special Protection Area and Ramsar site at the Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits”. This provides specific protection for the SPA/Ramsar and it is unlikely that the loss of or 
damage to SPA/Ramsar habitat would be permitted; and 

• Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 
Requires that “all new development proposals within 3km of the Special Protection Area must 
demonstrate, where necessary through a series of mitigation measures, that their proposals 
will not contribute to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the bird species for which the 
site is designated”. Development within the SPA/Ramsar would be likely to disturb birds and 
therefore be unlikely to be permitted. 

5.10 Policies within the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy provide further safeguards:  

• Policy BN4 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 
Provides more comprehensive protection from the potential loss of or damage to SPA/Ramsar 
habitat: “New development will need to demonstrate through the development management 
process that there will be no significant adverse effects upon the integrity of the Special 
Protection Area and Ramsar site and the species for which the land is designated…either as a 
direct result of the development alone or in combination.” 

• Policy BN2 Biodiversity 
Safeguards designated sites and encourages a net gain in biodiversity; and 

• Policy BN8 The River Nene Strategic River Corridor 
Provides general protection for the biodiversity of the River Nene corridor. 

5.11 In addition, any unallocated development proposals coming forward under Policies 11, 17 and 20 
within the boundaries of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site would require 
project-level Appropriate Assessment, with the objective of ensuring that such development 
proposals do not give rise to adverse effects on integrity either alone or in-combination with other 
plans or projects. 

5.12 With safeguards provided by policies within the Local Plan and Joint Core Strategy, 
there will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 
and Ramsar site, as a result of physical habitat loss or damage, either alone or in 
combination with other plans or projects. 

Loss of supporting habitat 

5.13 Habitat loss could affect the integrity of a European site if it occurs in an area that supports a 
qualifying species population of a European site, for example the loss of an area used for offsite 
foraging or roosting by a site’s qualifying bird species.  

5.14 The potential effect of air pollution on supporting habitat is discussed under ‘Air pollution’ 
(paragraph 5.136). 

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site  

5.15 The site’s qualifying species are birds so it could therefore be affected by the loss of supporting 
habitat. Supporting habitat for the site’s qualifying species are: open water; neutral grassland; 
fen / marsh swamp; and broadleaved, mixed and yew woodland16. However, due to the distance 
(41km) of the site from Northampton Borough, it is not considered that significant supporting 
habitat will lie within the Local Plan area. The Local Plan area is relatively urban and any potential 
areas of habitat for waterbirds (for example grassland) are more likely to be associated with the 
nearby Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site than Rutland Water, which has 
suitable supporting habitats much closer to it.  

                                                
16 Rutland Water SPA Conservation Objectives supplementary advice (2018): 
http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/4978639963684864 

868



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

19 March 2019 

5.16 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of loss of supporting habitat, either alone or in combination with other plans 
or projects. 

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site  

5.17 Natural England’s Supplementary Advice on Conserving and Restoring Site Features for the SPA17 
identifies the following species for which offsite supporting habitat is important: 

• Great Bittern: feed within and outside the SPA boundary, mainly around Titchmarsh, Grendon 
and Stanwick. These locations are all outside the Local Plan area, therefore supporting 
habitats for Great Bittern are not considered likely to be affected by the Local Plan; 

• Golden Plover: Feed in agricultural land surrounding their main roost locations at Stanwick, 
Earls Barton (Summer Leys) and Northamptonshire Washlands, and often fly many kilometres 
to feed. Northamptonshire Washlands is within the Local Plan area, therefore supporting 
habitat for Golden Plover could be affected by the Local Plan; and 

• Lapwing: have a similar distribution to Golden Plover, therefore supporting habitat for Golden 
Plover that could be affected by the Local Plan are also relevant to Lapwing. 

5.18 Wigeon feed at similar habitat as Golden Plover but do not travel as far to feed, so are not 
considered to make significant use of offsite habitat.   

5.19 Agricultural land, particularly where close to ‘Northampton Washlands’ (the portion of the SPA 
that falls within the Local Plan area) could therefore be considered to be supporting habitat for 
Golden Plover and Lapwing from Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site. 

5.20 As part of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy HRA 18 and in consultation with Natural 
England, survey work19 was carried out in order to understand the potential effects of the Joint 
Core Strategy on supporting habitat used by Golden Plover and Lapwing. The findings of this work 
provided the basis for further discussion between the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
and Natural England to identify areas that could potentially be developed and whether the 
adverse effects on the SPA/Ramsar qualifying bird species could be avoided and/or mitigated. One 
outcome of this work was a map, produced to show the quality of supporting habitat for Golden 
Plover and Lapwing to the south east of Northampton. The supporting habitat identified in this 
map has been digitised by LUC and overlaid with the Local Plan’s allocated sites, as shown in 
Figure 5.1.  

5.21 One allocated site falls within areas that could provide optimal or sub-optimal supporting habitat 
for Golden Plover and/or Lapwing: 

• LAA1098: The Green, Great Houghton 
Allocates 771 homes on a mix of optimal and sub-optimal supporting habitat. 

5.22 This site is allocated for development under the following policies: 

• Policy 12: Housing and other housing led allocation  
Allocates the site and defines its quantum of housing development; and 

• Policy 36: The Green, Great Houghton  
Sets principles for development at the site. 

5.23 In addition to the allocated site, the following policies permit (smaller scale) development that 
could fall within areas identified as providing optimal or sub-optimal supporting habitat for Golden 
Plover and/or Lapwing: 

• Policy 11: Development of main town centre uses  
Permits the regeneration of unallocated sites beyond the town centre and central area, for 
housing and mixed use development;  

                                                
17 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA Conservation Objectives supplementary advice (2017) 
http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/5495529882517504 
18 West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Pre Submission Appropriate Assessment, Environ UK Ltd, 2011.   
19 Survey Work to Support the Appropriate Assessment for the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, Environ UK Ltd, 2010 

869



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

20 March 2019 

• Policy 16: Supporting new employment developments and schemes within and outside 
safeguarded areas  
Permits employment development in areas outside of identified safeguarded sites, for example 
small-scale development within other mixed use developments; 

• Policy 17: New retail developments and retail impact assessment 
Permits retail development at edge-of-centre and some out-of-centre sites; and 

• Policy 20: Community services and facilities 
Permits new or extended community facilities. 

5.24 The loss of supporting habitat is susceptible to cumulative effects as the loss of multiple areas of 
habitat fragments the habitat available. Other plans that could also result in the loss of supporting 
habitat include: 

• West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy: Northampton South of Brackmills SUE lies in an 
area identified as optimal / suboptimal for Golden Plover and/or Lapwing. The plan also 
permits development outside allocated sites e.g. transport improvements; 

• South Northamptonshire Part 2 Local Plan: the Plan area includes habitat identified as optimal 
/ suboptimal for Golden Plover and/or Lapwing that could be affected, should development be 
permitted there; and 

• Northamptonshire Transport Plan: the Plan area includes habitat identified as optimal / 
suboptimal for Golden Plover and/or Lapwing that could be affected, should development be 
permitted there. 

5.25 These plans have themselves been subject to HRA. 

5.26 None of the policies within the Local Plan provide specific mitigation for the loss of supporting 
habitat. However, Policy BN4 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area, within the 
West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, provides specific protection from the loss of 
supporting habitat: 

“New development will need to demonstrate through the development management process that 
there will be no significant adverse effects upon the integrity of the Special Protection Area and 
Ramsar site and the species for which the land is designated including the loss of supporting 
habitat…either as a direct result of the development alone or in combination.” 

5.27 Policies BN2 and BN8 also provide general protection. The Joint Core Strategies apply to 
development in both Northampton Borough and South Northamptonshire. The same wording is 
included in Policy NE1 of the South Northamptonshire Local Plan.  

5.28 Site LAA1098 (The Green, Great Houghton) has been identified for potential development. 
Therefore, as it will need to demonstrate that new development will not have an adverse effect on 
SPA/Ramsar and because Policy 36 sets out the principles for development at the site, the Local 
Plan needs to include any mitigation measures that would be required. 

5.29 The size of the fields at LAA1098 (the species favours larger fields, where it can retain good 
sightlines) and its proximity to the SPA/Ramsar site (c.1.5km) mean that it is reasonably likely 
that the site is used by Golden Plover and/or Lapwing. However, from aerial photography, the site 
consists of three arable fields that are bordered by woodland, a road, and houses. It is unlikely 
that the site provides unique features that cannot be found at other areas of habitat nearby, and 
more suitable habitat (e.g. surrounded by other fields, or pasture) may be found elsewhere. As a 
precaution, therefore, Golden Plover and Lapwing surveys should be carried out at the site to 
identify whether the site is used by over-wintering birds from the SPA/Ramsar. If significant 
numbers of Golden Plover or Lapwing are identified at the site, mitigation will be required for the 
loss of habitat. Appropriate mitigation would involve the enhancement of another area of habitat, 
a similar distance from the SPA/Ramsar and of the same area or greater, such that sub-
optimal/unsuitable habitat becomes optimal for Golden Plover or Lapwing, to ensure that the 
overall quality and availability of feeding resources for these species is maintained. Given the 
non-unique nature of these fields, there is a high degree of confidence in the ability to deliver 
such mitigation if required. This commitment will need to be written into the wording of Policy 36 
prior to the adoption of the Local Plan, although the bird surveys could be carried out during 
January and February 2019, rather than waiting until the following winter. 

870



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

21 March 2019 

5.30 In addition, any unallocated development proposals coming forward under Policies 11, 16, 17 and 
20 within areas identified as optimal / suboptimal for Golden Plover and/or Lapwing would require 
project-level Appropriate Assessment, with the objective of ensuring that such development 
proposals do not give rise to adverse effects on integrity either alone or in-combination with other 
plans or projects. 

5.31 With mitigation provided by policies within the Joint Core Strategy and with the 
recommended additional mitigation included within Policy 36, there will be no adverse 
effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site as a result 
of loss of supporting habitat, either alone or in combination with other plans or 
projects.  

Changes to bird sightlines 

5.32 Many birds rely on good sightlines to detect predators and during take-off. Tall buildings or 
structures in close proximity to European sites designated for bird species could affect the 
integrity of the site by reducing bird sightlines and therefore the suitability of the site’s habitat.  

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site  

5.33 As Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site is not located within Northampton Borough, it will not be 
affected by changes to bird sightlines resulting from the Local Plan.  

5.34 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of changes to bird sightlines, either alone or in combination with other plans 
or projects.  

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site  

5.35 Work undertaken for the HRA of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy considered the 
sensitivity of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar bird species to changes to 
sightlines20. This work concluded that maintenance of unobstructed lines of sight is particularly 
important for Golden Plover and Lapwing. As a result, Policy BN4 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
Special Protection Area, within the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy requires the 
following:  

“…in order to protect sightlines for birds included within the Special Protection Area and Ramsar 
site designations, new development within a 250m zone of the Special Protection Area…must 
undertake an assessment to demonstrate that it will not have a significant adverse effect on birds 
within the Clifford Hill Basin [Northampton Washlands] or, if directly adjacent to existing 
buildings, should reflect surrounding building heights.” 

5.36 The following allocated sites are within 250m of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and 
Ramsar site (Figure 5.2) and would therefore need to mitigate any potential effects on bird 
sightlines, in accordance with Joint Core Strategy Policy BN4: 

• LAA1101: Land at Waterside Way 
A commercial site 45m away that would advance the urban edge towards the European site; 
and 

• LAA1107: Former Abington Mill Farm, land off Rushmere Road 
A residential site 150m away that would advance the urban edge towards the European site. 

5.37 However, taking their immediate surroundings into consideration, both sites are afforded a degree 
of screening; by existing buildings (LAA1101), the A45 road (LAA1107), and the trees at the 
edges of these (both). It is likely that sensitive design of these sites would enable development to 
occur without adversely affecting bird sightlines. 

5.38 These sites are allocated for development by: 

                                                
20 Environ, 2010, Survey work to support the Appropriate Assessment for the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, Report of 
elements 3 and 4.  

871



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

22 March 2019 

• Policy 12: Housing and other housing-led allocation 
Defines the quantum of development at LAA1107; and 

• Policy 33: Development allocations 
Identifies site LAA1101 for (commercial) development. 

5.39 Other policies (or plans) that permit development outside of allocated sites could also result in 
development within 250m of the SPA/Ramsar. 

5.40 Policy BN4 provides specific mitigation for effects on bird sightlines, as quoted above. Further 
general protection is given at the local level with: 

• Policy 25: Supporting and enhancing biodiversity 
Requires proposals to “conserve, enhance and increase the net gain for biodiversity. In 
particular, the Council will seek the protection or enhancement of wildlife sites that are in 
areas which are…of national or international importance, specifically the Site of Special 
Scientific Interest, Special Protection Area and Ramsar site at the Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits.” This provides specific protection for the SPA/Ramsar and it is unlikely that adverse 
effects on bird sightlines would be permitted; and 

• Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 
Requires that “all new development proposals within 3km of the Special Protection Area must 
demonstrate, where necessary through a series of mitigation measures, that their proposals 
will not contribute to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the bird species for which the 
site is designated”. An adverse effect on bird sightlines is a form of disturbance and would 
therefore not be permitted. 

5.41 In addition, any unallocated development proposals coming forward (i.e. Policies 11, 16, 17 and 
20) within 250m of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site would require project-
level Appropriate Assessment, with the objective of ensuring that such development proposals do 
not give rise to adverse effects on integrity either alone or in-combination with other plans or 
projects. 

5.42 With mitigation required by policies within the Joint Core Strategy and Local Plan, there 
will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley SPA and Ramsar site, as 
a result of changes to bird sightlines, either alone or in combination with other plans or 
projects. 

872



LAA1104

LAA1107

LAA0171

LAA1007

LAA1139

LAA1101

LAA1137
LAA1069

LAA1098

LAA1138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

0 1 2
km

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUCEDI FIG5-1_5823_r2_GoldenPlover_A3L  20/03/2019

Map Scale @ A3: 1:25,000

E

Source: Northampton BC, West Northamptonshire Joint 
Planning Unit

Northampton Borough Council
Allocated site
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
(SPA, Ramsar)

Habitat suitability for Golden Plover 
or Lapwing

Optimal
Sub-optimal
Unsuitable

Northampton 
Local Plan Part 2 HRA

Figure 5.1: Supporting Habitats
- Allocated  Sites in Relation to
Golden Plover and Lapwing
Habitat

873



LAA1107

LAA1101

LAA1098

LAA1138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

0 0.5 1
km

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUCEDI FIG5-2_5823_r1_BirdSighlineBuffer_A3L  20/03/2019

Map Scale @ A3: 1:15,000

E

Source: Northampton BC, West Northamptonshire Joint 
Planning Unit

Northampton Borough Council
Allocated site
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
(SPA, Ramsar)
250m zone around Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel Pits (SPA, Ramsar)

Northampton 
Local Plan Part 2 HRA

Figure 5.2: Bird Sightlines -
Allocated Sites within 250m of
the Upper Nene Valley Gravel
Pits SPA and Ramsar Site

874



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

25 March 2019 

Fragmentation 

5.43 Fragmentation could occur where development splits up physically- or functionally-continuous 
tracts of habitat (within the SPA/Ramsar sites or offsite) into smaller, remnant patches with 
adverse effects on their functionality and the integrity of the species populations they support.   

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site  

5.44 As Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site is not located within Northampton Borough, it will not be 
affected by fragmentation as a result of the Local Plan.  

5.45 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of fragmentation, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects.  

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site  

5.46 Fragmentation of habitats within the SPA and Ramsar site will not occur as this would require the 
loss or damage of habitats within the European site (see paragraphs 5.6 to 5.12).  

5.47 Development within areas supporting habitat (i.e. that used by Golden Plover or Lapwing in the 
south east of the Local Plan area; see Figure 5.1) could cause fragmentation by reducing the size 
of habitat area or by physically splitting up habitats. These effects are therefore assessed under 
‘loss of supporting habitat’ (see paragraph 5.17 to 5.31). 

5.48 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 
and Ramsar site, as a result of fragmentation, either alone or in combination with other 
plans or projects.  

Non-physical disturbance 

5.49 Noise, vibration and light effects, for example from construction or new developments, can affect 
bird and other sensitive species. However, development must be close to the European sites or 
their supporting habitats, for these effects to be significant. 

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site  

5.50 Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site is too far (41km) from the Local Plan area for the plan’s 
development to give rise to noise, vibration or light disturbance that would affect the site. 

5.51 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of non-physical disturbance, either alone or in combination with other plans 
or projects.  

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site  

5.52 Sensitivities identified in the citations for the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site 
include “other urbanisation, industrial and similar activities” (SPA Standard Data Form) and 
“unspecified development: urban use – activities connected with ongoing urban development 
cause significant disturbance to wintering birds if unmanaged” (Information Sheet on Ramsar 
Wetlands). This site is therefore sensitive to non-physical disturbance.  

5.53 It is considered that the effects of noise, vibration and light on this European site only have the 
potential to be significant if the source of disturbance is within 2km of its boundary. This is 
consistent with the SPA’s consultation zone for all proposals likely to generate significant noise 
and for large commercial / industrial development, as set out in the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), 2015.21  Significant noise in this context is illustrated 
in the SPD by the example ‘clay pigeon shoot’. 

                                                
21 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Supplementary Planning Document, August 2015  

875



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

26 March 2019 

5.54 Six allocated sites are within 2km of the SPA/Ramsar (Figure 5.3): 

• LAA1101: Land at Waterside Way 
Commercial site, c.45m away; 

• LAA1107: Former Abington Mill Farm, land off Rushmere Road 
Residential site (125 homes), c.150m away;  

• LAA1138 Land south of Bedford Road / north of sports ground 
Residential site (7 homes), c.550m away; 

• LAA1098: The Green, Great Houghton 
Residential site (771 homes), c.1,260m away; 

• LAA1139: Ransome Road 
Residential site (250 homes), c.1,730m away. 

• LAA0915: 118-122 Wellingborough Road 
Commercial and residential site (12 homes), c.1,910m away; and 

• LAA0496: 57 Artizan Road 
Residential site (10 homes), c.1,950m away. 

5.55 However, when the physical surroundings of each site are taken into consideration, the potential 
for significant effects is unlikely. Sites LAA0915 and LAA0496 are small sites well within the 
existing urban area and on the outer edge of the 2km buffer. LAA1138 is also small and separated 
from the SPA/Ramsar by a major road and some urban development and trees. LAA1098 and 
LAA1139 are larger sites but on the edge of the 2km buffer and separated from the SPA/Ramsar 
by major roads and some urban development. At LAA1098, most of the area of site that is within 
the 2km buffer will be used for ecological enhancement and not built upon. These sites are 
unlikely to result in significant non-physical disturbance. 

5.56 Sites LAA1101 and LAA1107 are closer to the SPA/Ramsar. As identified in relation to bird 
sightlines, both sites are afforded a degree of screening; by existing buildings (LAA1101), the A45 
road (LAA1107), and the trees at the edges of these (both). These sites could result in non-
physical disturbance of the SPA/Ramsar. 

5.57 These sites are allocated for development under the following policies: 

• Policy 12: Housing and other housing led allocation  
Allocates the sites and defines the quantum of housing development; and 

• Policy 33: Development allocations 
Allocates all sites within the Local Plan and therefore (excluding housing development 
resulting from Policy 12) is responsible for the allocation of commercial development and the 
non-residential elements of mixed use sites. 

5.58 Policies 11, 16, 17 and 20 also permit development outside of allocated sites. 

5.59 Individually, these residential or commercial developments may not generate significant noise, 
vibration or light. However, without mitigation, they could contribute to a general urbanising 
effect in combination with other policies that permit development outside allocated sites (Policies 
11, 17 & 20) and development from other plans: 

• West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy: permits development outside allocated sites in 
Northampton e.g. transport improvements; 

• South Northamptonshire Part 2 Local Plan: parts of the north of the District are within 2km of 
the SPA/Ramsar;  

• Northamptonshire Transport Plan: identifies transport schemes in Northampton Borough and 
South Northamptonshire and 

• Northamptonshire Minerals & Waste Plan: an area adjacent to the SPA/Ramsar (but outside 
Northampton Borough) has been identified for gravel extraction. 

5.60 These plans have themselves been subject to HRA. 

5.61 The main policy that requires mitigation for potential non-physical disturbance effects is:  

876



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

27 March 2019 

• Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 
Requires that “all new development proposals within 3km of the Special Protection Area must 
demonstrate, where necessary through a series of mitigation measures, that their proposals 
will not contribute to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the bird species for which the 
site is designated”. This provides specific protection against disturbance. 

5.62 The following policies also provide general protection for the SPA/Ramsar: 

• Policy 25: Supporting and enhancing biodiversity 
Requires proposals to “conserve, enhance and increase the net gain for biodiversity. In 
particular, the Council will seek the protection or enhancement of wildlife sites that are in 
areas which are…of national or international importance, specifically the Site of Special 
Scientific Interest, Special Protection Area and Ramsar site at the Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits.”    

• Policy BN4 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area, within the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy: “New development will need to demonstrate through 
the development management process that there will be no significant adverse effects upon 
the integrity of the Special Protection Area and Ramsar site and the species for which the land 
is designated…either as a direct result of the development alone or in combination.” 

• Policy BN2 and Policy BN8 within the Joint Core Strategy also provide general protection for 
biodiversity and the River Nene corridor. 

5.63 In line with the requirements of these policies, sites LAA1101 and LAA1107 and any other 
developments with the potential to result in non-physical disturbance (for example those in 
locations with little existing screening from the SPA/Ramsar, or larger sites with the potential to 
have an urbanising effect) will need to demonstrate that they will not have a significant effect on 
the European site, for example through sensitive design. 

5.64 In addition, any unallocated development proposals coming forward under Policies 11, 16, 17 and 
20 within areas identified as optimal / suboptimal for Golden Plover and/or Lapwing would require 
project-level Appropriate Assessment, with the objective of ensuring that such development 
proposals do not give rise to adverse effects on integrity either alone or in-combination with other 
plans or projects. 

5.65 With mitigation required by policies within the Local Plan and Joint Core Strategy, there 
will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and 
Ramsar site, as a result of non-physical disturbance, either alone or in combination with 
other plans or projects. 

877



LAA0685

LAA0915r

LAA1107

LAA0915c

LAA0508

LAA1134r
LAA1134c

LAA1058

LAA1124

LAA1001

LAA0496

LAA1139

LAA1101

LAA1137
LAA1069

LAA1098

LAA1138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

0 1 2
km

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUCEDI FIG5-3_5823_r2_NonPhysiDisturbBuffer_A3L  20/03/2019

Map Scale @ A3: 1:25,000

E

Source: Northampton BC, West Northamptonshire Joint 
Planning Unit

Northampton Borough Council
Allocated site
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
(SPA, Ramsar)
2km zone around Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel Pits (SPA, Ramsar)

Northampton 
Local Plan Part 2 HRA

Figure 5.3: Non-Physical
Disturbance - Allocated Sites
within 2km of the Upper Nene
Valley Gravel Pits SPA and
Ramsar Site

878



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

29 March 2019 

Recreation pressure 

5.66 Recreational activities can have an adverse impact on the integrity of a European site, for 
example from physical damage, including erosion and trampling of habitat, or fires; and the 
disturbance of fauna, including from human presence, dog walking or water sports. 

5.67 Where the Local Plan would be likely to increase the number of people living close to or visiting 
sensitive European sites, the potential for increased recreation pressure has been assessed. 
Consideration has been given to factors such as the characteristics and current recreational use of 
European sites and their accessibility. The nature of development proposed has also been taken 
into account. For example, employment sites are considered unlikely to result in a significant 
increase in recreation pressure as employees will be at work for the majority of the time they are 
there. 

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site  

5.68 Rutland Water is 41km from the Local Plan area, but is a tourism destination known for its water 
sports that attracts people from a wide area. Public access and disturbance has been identified as 
a threat to the SPA (see Appendix 1).  

5.69 There is some historic visitor data available for Rutland Water22. This data was collected as part of 
a PhD thesis in 1992; therefore it should be used with a degree of caution. This study found the 
majority of visitors (c.81%) to be on day trips and that around half of all visitors had visited three 
or four times in the previous 12 months. The study found that approximately 33% of visitors lived 
less than 19 miles (approximately 30.5km) away. Some of the visitors to the Rutland Water will 
therefore be from the Northampton Borough area. 

5.70 The SPA and Ramsar site at Rutland Water comprises open water, along with terrestrial/wetland 
habitats at the western edge of the lake. The SPA/Ramsar terrestrial/wetland habitats are 
managed as a Wildlife Trust nature reserve. Visitor numbers to the whole SPA/Ramsar are 
managed to minimise impacts on wildlife: access to the nature reserve is only accessible by 
purchasing a permit, and dogs are excluded from the most sensitive areas of the reserve23; 
access to the open water is restricted through the use of permits for water sports or fishing24. The 
rest of the lake edge (not within the SPA/Ramsar site) is freely accessible to visitors (e.g. walkers 
and cyclists). Only a portion of the overall visits to Rutland Water will therefore be to within the 
SPA and Ramsar boundary. 

5.71 It is considered that Rutland Water is too far from Northampton Borough for the Local Plan alone 
to result in significant increases in visitor numbers to the SPA and Ramsar site. The Local Plan 
could contribute to an increase in visitor numbers in combination with development plans from 
other authorities close to Rutland Water; however, the permitting system enables visitor numbers 
to the SPA/Ramsar to be controlled such that significant effects from recreation pressure are not 
likely.  

5.72 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of recreation pressure, either alone or in combination with other plans or 
projects.  

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site  

5.73 The Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site lies within Northampton Borough and 
therefore receives visitors from the Local Plan area. 

5.74 The Standard Data Form for the SPA identifies outdoor sports and leisure activities or recreational 
activities as a threat / pressure. The Ramsar Information Sheet states that access by people and 
dogs both on and off public rights of way is a significant cause of disturbance in some areas and 
that the site is also subject to a variety of recreational activities including fishing and water 

                                                
22 Michael John Pearson (1996) The Management of a National Environmental Problem, “Toxic Cyanobacteria” 
23 https://www.lrwt.org.uk/nature-reserves/rutland-water/ 
24 https://anglianwaterparks.co.uk/rutland-water 

879



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

30 March 2019 

sports. The Site Improvement Plan confirms the existence of a potential threat of recreational 
disturbance (particularly from walkers and dog owners) to wintering birds by reducing the time 
available for feeding, and increasing energy expenditure when avoiding those sources of 
disturbance. Research shows that disturbance from human recreational activities in wetlands can 
cause problems for wildfowl.25 Detailed local studies of the effects of visitor behaviour on bird 
behaviour and numbers have shown that people and dogs can disturb the SPA’s birds as they feed 
and roost.26 

5.75 A 2014 visitor access study for the SPA27 found that visitor rates correlate with proximity to 
residential areas and that they decline rapidly with distance such that a relatively small proportion 
of people visit from distances beyond 3km of the surveyed access points. Approximately half of 
visitors surveyed were walking dogs, almost all (98%) were on a short visit from home, most  
(77%) arrived by car, and most were frequent visitors (60% visited at least once per week).    

5.76 The visitor access study findings are reported in the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPD, which 
states that “recreational disturbance is the most significant threat to the Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits SPA”. The SPD further notes that demand for access and recreational activities in the Nene 
Valley is increasing along with disturbance to the birds for which the SPA is designated. It goes on 
to state that since disturbance effects are cumulative, any net increase in the number of 
residential units near the SPA has the potential, in the absence of mitigation, to increase the 
significance of the effect by increasing the number of visits to the European site. 

5.77 In line with the findings of the visitor access study above and the 3km consultation zone defined 
by the SPD for all applications involving a net gain in residential units, it is judged that all 
residential development within 3km of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site would 
be likely to contribute to an in-combination recreational disturbance effect on the European site.  
The allocated residential sites within 3km of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar 
sites are (Figure 5.4): 

• LAA0174 Ransome Road Gateway - 6 homes, c.2.6km away; 

• LAA0328  Cattle Market Road – 42 homes, c.2.6km away; 

• LAA0335 Chronicle and Echo North - 28 homes, c.2.4km away; 

• LAA0336 Chronicle and Echo South - 19 homes, c.2.5km away; 

• LAA0496: 57 Artizan Road - 10 homes, c.1.9km away; 

• LAA0508 Fishponds Road - 20 homes, c.2.1km away; 

• LAA0685 Adj. 12 Pennycress Road - 12 homes, c.2.3km away; 

• LAA0814 32 Great Russell Street - 12 homes, c.2.4km away; 

• LAA0903 Hawkins Shoe Factory, Overstone Road - 105 homes, c.2.3km away; 

• LAA0915: 118-122 Wellingborough Road - 12 homes, c.1.9km away;  

• LAA0932: Southbridge Site 1 – 44 homes, c.2.3km away; 

• LAA0933: Southbridge Site 2 – 50 homes, c.2.3km away; 

• LAA1001 Former Emmanuel Middle School - 83 homes, c.2.3km away; 

• LAA1010 Land at St Peter’s Way / Court Road / Freeschool Street - 37 homes, c.3km away; 

• LAA1014 University of Northampton, Avenue Campus - 200 homes, c.3km away; 

• LAA1022 Belgrave House  - 99 homes, c.2.6km away; 

• LAA1049 Land off Arbour Court - 11 homes, c.2.9km away; 

                                                
25 For example, see Kirby J, Davidson N, Giles N, Myrfyn O and Spray C. 2004. Waterbirds and Wetland Recreation 
Handbook – a Review of Issues and Management Practice. Slimbridge: The Wildfowl and Wetlands Trust. 
2626 Brayshaw RS. 2010. Survey work to support the Appropriate Assessment for the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy, Element 2: Field surveys (recreational, disturbance and bird behaviour). Report to the West Northamptonshire Joint 
Planning Unit. 
27 Liley, D., Floyd, L., Cruickshanks, K. & Fearnley, H. (2014). Visitor Access Study of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA. Footprint 
Ecology. Unpublished report for the NIA partnership.  NBC intends to publish this as part of its Local Plan evidence base later in 2017. 

880



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

31 March 2019 

• LAA1058 Land off Oat Hill Drive - 11 homes, c.2.3km away; 

• LAA1098: The Green, Great Houghton - 771 homes, c.1.2km away; 

• LAA1107: Former Abington Mill Farm, land off Rushmere Road - 125 homes, c.150m away;  

• LAA1113 Greyfriars - 261 homes, c.2.5km away; 

• LAA1124 41-43 Derngate Road - 7 homes, c.2.3km away; 

• LAA1127 32 Connaught Street - 6 homes, c.2.7km away;  

• LAA1134 St John’s Railway Embankment - 12 homes, c.2.3km away; 

• LAA1138 Land south of Bedford Road / north of sports ground - 7 homes, c.550m away; and 

• LAA1139: Ransome Road - 250 homes, c.1.7km away. 

5.78 These sites are allocated for development under the following policy, which would therefore have 
a potentially significant effect due to recreation pressure: 

• Policy 12: Housing and other housing led allocation  
Allocates up to 2,240 new homes on 26 sites within 3km of the SPA/Ramsar. 

5.79 Policy 36: The Green, Great Houghton and Policy 37: Greyfriars set principles for development at 
sites LAA1098 and LAA1113, respectively, but the number of homes and therefore potential for 
recreation pressure is defined by Policy 12. 

5.80 In addition, the following policies permit an increase in the number of homes in locations other 
than allocated sites: 

• Policy 8: Regeneration opportunities 
Promotes mixed use (including residential) development in the town centre and central area; 

• Policy 11: Development of main town centre uses 
Permits regeneration of sites outside the central area; 

• Policy 14: Delivering houses in multiple occupation 
Enables an increase in the number of households within a house; 

• Policy 15: Safeguarding existing employment sites 
Permits changes of use from employment to non-employment uses; and 

• Policy 18: Residential development on upper floors 
Allows changes of use above shops, to residential. 

5.81 The recreation pressure effect of the Local Plan would act in combination with any recreation 
pressure from other residential development within 3km of the European site. The Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site is a composite site made up of several sites along the 
River Nene valley. Only the Northampton Washlands portion of the SPA/Ramsar is within 3km of 
Northampton Borough; therefore only development plans with the potential to contribute to 
recreation pressure at that part of the site could have in-combination effects with the Local Plan. 
These are: 

• West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy: the Northampton South of Brackmills SUE and 
unallocated residential development; and 

• South Northamptonshire Local Plan: where development is within 3km of the SPA / Ramsar.         

5.82 To mitigate potential effects on the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site, due to 
recreation pressure, the Local Plan contains the following policies: 

• Policy 23: Sustaining and enhancing existing, and supporting the creation of, Northampton’s 
green infrastructure 
Requires developments of 15 dwellings or more to deliver and/or contribute to a net gain in 
green infrastructure, which could divert some recreation trips away from the SPA/Ramsar;  

• Policy 24: Providing open spaces 
Sets standards for greenspace provision, including 1.8ha of natural and semi-natural green 
space per 1,000 population, within a 720m walk (or 800m walk for sites over 2ha). This 

881



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

32 March 2019 

provides green infrastructure that could divert some recreation trips away from the 
SPA/Ramsar; and 

• Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 
Requires that “all new development proposals within 3km of the Special Protection Area must 
demonstrate, where necessary through a series of mitigation measures, that their proposals 
will not contribute to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the bird species for which the 
site is designated” . This specifically requires mitigation of development likely to have an effect 
on the SPA/Ramsar.  

5.83 Policy 26 strengthens the protection contained within the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy Policy BN4 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area (which applies to 
development both in Northampton Borough and South Northamptonshire District): 

“New development will need to demonstrate that the impact of any increased recreational activity 
(indirect or direct) on the Special Protection Area and Ramsar site will not have a detrimental 
impact. Any development that will lead to an increase in recreational activity on the Special 
Protection Area will be required to include the necessary mitigation including development of an 
implementation of habitat and access management plans.” 

5.84 These policies provide sufficient mitigation to prevent individual developments from having a 
significant effect on the SPA/Ramsar, but do not necessarily address the potential combined 
effects of the Local Plan’s total housing provision (within 3km of the SPA/Ramsar) or the in-
combination effects with other development plans.  

5.85 A more strategic approach – for example a mitigation strategy that can be applied to all 
residential developments within 3km of the SPA/Ramsar - would provide sufficient certainty that 
the effects of recreation disturbance can be mitigated, rather than placing the onus solely on 
individual developments to identify appropriate mitigation.  

5.86 The Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area SPD (2015) sets out the type of 
mitigation options that would be appropriate to mitigate the disturbance of birds at the SPA, 
based on a study by Footprint Ecology. These include alternative natural greenspace, habitat 
management, enhancement of other waterside sites, management of visitor flows / access, 
education and enforcement. A mitigation strategy specific to the effects of development from the 
Local Plan on the Northampton Washlands portion of the SPA/Ramsar will need to be developed in 
consultation with Natural England and committed to within Local Plan policy (i.e. agreed prior to 
adoption of the Local Plan). This could be developed in conjunction with South Northamptonshire 
District, the other local authority whose Local Plan would impact upon the Northampton 
Washlands part of the SPA/Ramsar. South Northamptonshire Local Plan Draft Submission 
(Regulation 19) version was completed in September 2018 and contains the following: 

5.87 Policy NE1: Upper Nene Gravel Pits Special Protection Area  

New development will need to demonstrate that the impact of any increased recreational activity 
(indirect or direct) on the Special Protection Area will not have a detrimental impact. Any 
development that will lead to an increase in recreational activity on the Special Protection Area 
will be required to include necessary mitigation including providing or contributing towards a 
combination of the following measures: 

a) development of and implementation of habitat and access management plans within the SPA;  

b) improvement of existing greenspace and recreational routes;  

c) provision of alternative natural greenspace and recreational routes; and 

d) monitoring of the impacts of new development on European designated sites to inform the 
necessary mitigation requirements and future refinement of any mitigation measures. 

And: 

The Local Planning Authority or successor authority will prepare a Mitigation Strategy document 
concerning the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area with a view to its 
subsequent adoption as an Addendum to the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection 
Area Supplementary Planning Document within 12 months of the adoption of the Part 2 Plan. 

882



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

33 March 2019 

5.88 The wording of similar text for Local Plan Policy 26 (or a separate policy) and a mitigation strategy 
will need to be agreed with Natural England. 

5.89 Provided that a mitigation strategy is developed and agreed with Natural England prior 
to adoption of the Local Plan, no adverse effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site are anticipated as a result of recreation pressure, 
either alone or in combination with other plans or projects. 

883



LAA0685

LAA0915r

LAA1049

LAA1060

LAA1107

LAA0508

LAA1134r

LAA1058

LAA1124

LAA1001

LAA0496

LAA1133

LAA1139

LAA1137
LAA1069

LAA1098

LAA1138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

0 1 2
km

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUCEDI FIG5-4_5823_r2_RecreationBuffer_A3L  20/03/2019

Map Scale @ A3: 1:30,000E

Source: Northampton BC, West Northamptonshire Joint 
Planning Unit

Northampton Borough Council
Allocated site
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
(SPA, Ramsar)
3km zone around Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel Pits (SPA, Ramsar)

Northampton 
Local Plan Part 2 HRA

Figure 5.4: Recreation Pressure
- Allocated Residential Sites
within 3km of the Upper Nene
Valley Gravel Pits SPA and
Ramsar Site

LAA0288r

LAA0814

LAA0915r

LAA1022

LAA1134r

LAA0336r

LAA0328

LAA1127LAA0333r

LAA1124
LAA1010r

LAA0903

LAA1113r

LAA0335r

LAA0932

SEE INSET MAP

884



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

35 March 2019 

Pet predation 

5.90 Pet predation, notably hunting by domestic cats from nearby residential developments, can be a 
concern where development is proposed close to a European site, particularly where the qualifying 
species is bird or mammal. Evidence shows that pet cats can roam up to 1.5 km at night.28 29  

5.91 As well as pets, research has shown that habitats close to urban areas can have higher densities 
of mammalian predators such as foxes30 and that there is an increase in the numbers of crows 
and magpies on sites with greater human activity.31  

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site  

5.92 Rutland Water is located 41km outside Local Plan area and therefore will not be subject to any 
potential pet predation arising from the Local Plan policies or sites.   

5.93 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of pet predation either alone or in combination with other plans or projects.  

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site 

5.94 The Standard Data form for this SPA site highlights the effects of ‘other urbanisation’ as a main 
threat and pressure that is impacting the site. The Information Sheet for the Ramsar site also 
highlights ‘Unspecified development: urban use’ as having an adverse effect on the site stating 
that “activities connected with ongoing urban development cause significant disturbance to 
wintering birds if unmanaged”.  

5.95 Although pet predation is not specifically mentioned, it is assumed on a precautionary basis that 
pet predation could result in likely significant effects when residential site allocations are located 
within 1.5 km of a European site.   

5.96 Three sites are allocated for residential development within 1.5km of the SPA and Ramsar site 
(Figure 5.5): 

• LAA1107 Former Abington Mills Farm, land off Rushmere Road  
125 new homes, c.150m away;  

• LAA1138 Land south of Bedford Road / north of sports ground 
7 homes, c.550m away; and 

• LAA1098 The Green, Great Houghton 
771 new homes, c.1.2km away. Policy 36 sets out the development principles at the site. 

5.97 However, when physical barriers are taken into account it is considered that the potential effects 
of sites LAA1107 and LAA1138 will be significantly reduced due to the barriers formed by the 
River Nene and the A45 (a wide dual carriageway road). It is concluded therefore that this site will 
not result in significant effects on the Upper Nene Valley SPA and Ramsar site as a result of pet 
predation. 

5.98 At site LAA1098, it is only the northernmost part of the site that is within 1.5km of the SPA. Policy 
36 safeguards the northern part of the site as an ecological buffer; therefore none of the 
residential development will lie within 1.5km of the SPA / Ramsar and significant effects are not 
likely to arise, as a result of pet predation. 

5.99 Other policies (or plans) that permit development outside of allocated sites could also result in 
development within 150m of the SPA/Ramsar. 

                                                
28 Predation of wildlife by domestic cats in Great Britain. Woods, M. McDonald, R.A. and Harris, S. 2003, Mammal Review, Vol. 33, pp. 
174-188. 
29 Avian assemblage structure and domestic cat densities in urban environments. Sims, V., et al., et al. 2008, Diversity and 
Distributions, Vol. 14, pp. 387-399. 
30 Taylor, E. Predation risk in woodlark Lullula arborea habitat: the influence of recreational disturbance, predator abundance, nest site 
characteristics and temporal factors. s.l. : School of Biological Sciences, UEA, 2002. 
31 Corvid responses to human settlements and campgrounds: causes, consequences and challenges for conservation. Marzluff, J.M. and 
Netherlin, E. 2006, Biological Conservation, Vol. 130, pp. 301-314. 

885



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

36 March 2019 

5.100 The following policies safeguard the SPA/Ramsar from pet predation: 

• Policy 25: Supporting and enhancing biodiversity 
Requires proposals to “conserve, enhance and increase the net gain for biodiversity. In 
particular, the Council will seek the protection or enhancement of wildlife sites that are in 
areas which are…of national or international importance, specifically the Site of Special 
Scientific Interest, Special Protection Area and Ramsar site at the Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits.” This provides specific protection for the SPA/Ramsar; and 

• Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 
Requires that “all new development proposals within 3km of the Special Protection Area must 
demonstrate, where necessary through a series of mitigation measures, that their proposals 
will not contribute to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the bird species for which the 
site is designated”. An adverse effect from pet predation is a form of disturbance and would 
therefore not be permitted. 

5.101 In addition, any unallocated development proposals coming forward (i.e. Policies 11, 16, 17 and 
20) within 150m of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site would require project-
level Appropriate Assessment, with the objective of ensuring that such development proposals do 
not give rise to adverse effects on integrity either alone or in-combination with other plans or 
projects. 

5.102 With mitigation required by policies within the Joint Core Strategy and Local Plan, there 
will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and 
Ramsar site, as a result of pet predation either alone or in combination with other plans 
or projects.  

886



LAA0685

LAA0915r

LAA1107

LAA0508

LAA1058

LAA0496

LAA1139

LAA1098

LAA1138

© Crown Copyright . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey data. Ordnance Survey is a registered trademark. Northampton Borough Council License Number 100019655.

0 1 2
km

CB:EL EB:lendak_e LUCEDI FIG5-5_5823_r2_PetPredationBuffer_A3L  20/03/2019

Map Scale @ A3: 1:20,000

E

Source: Northampton BC, West Northamptonshire Joint 
Planning Unit

Northampton Borough Council
Allocated site
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
(SPA, Ramsar)
1.5km zone around Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel Pits (SPA, Ramsar)

Northampton 
Local Plan Part 2 HRA

Figure 5.5: Pet Predation -
Allocated Residential Sites
within 1.5km of the Upper Nene
Valley Gravel Pits SPA and
Ramsar Site

887



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

39 March 2019 

Changes to water supply and water level management 

5.103 An increase in demand for water abstraction resulting from the growth proposed in the Local Plan 
could result in changes to water levels or flows at hydrologically connected European sites.  
Depending on the qualifying features and particular vulnerabilities of the European sites, this can 
result in likely significant effects on site integrity.   

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site  

5.104 The potential exists for effects on Rutland Water as it is a primary source of urban water supply 
for Northamptonshire32 and therefore the population increases associated with development 
within the Local Plan area are likely to affect water levels at the site. Human induced changes in 
hydrology are listed as a key vulnerability for this European site.  

5.105 The assessment of effects in relation to water supply and water level management has been 
informed by studies undertaken as part of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy work. 
The West Northamptonshire Water Cycle Strategy was published in 2011, alongside the Joint Core 
Strategy. It concluded that: 

“water resource availability should not be considered a constraint to the Core Strategy 
Implementation, subject to the implementation of the Code for Sustainable Homes Standards 
through Building Regulations or through Local Policy’.  It also concluded that ‘Anglian water 
services strategic infrastructure and resource strategic planning within the Ruthamford Water 
Resource Zone will support the proposed growth within the study area until 2035”.   

5.106 However, the Water Cycle Study was published in 2011 and is therefore potentially out of date. 
Notable changes since its publication include the fact that the Code for Sustainable Homes has 
been withdrawn and that the Anglian Water supply area has been classified by the Environment 
Agency as an area of ‘serious water stress’, both currently and under future climate change and 
abstraction demand scenarios33.  

5.107 More recent evidence is available from Anglian Water’s 2015 ‘Water Resources Management Plan’ 
(WRMP), which sets out a 25 year plan to maintain the water supply demand balance in the 
supply region and measures to minimise the environmental impact of abstractions. The WRMP 
concludes that no baseline abstraction deficits are forecast in the Ruthamford North Resource 
Zone, where Rutland Water and Northampton Borough are located; and no significant 
‘sustainability reduction sensitivities’ (requirements to reduce abstraction to more sustainable 
levels) have been identified. The zone is identified as being sensitive to climate change, and the 
WRMP states that this would primarily affect the River Nene and River Welland (which feeds 
Rutland Water); however, no supply / demand issues are identified for the Resource Zone 
throughout the forecast period (2012-2040).    

5.108 The WRMP is being updated and the draft 2019 plan34 (dWRMP) is currently being finalised 
following a period of consultation. The dWRMP plans for the period from 2020 to 2045 and 
therefore extends beyond the Local Plan period, but it predicts that at the end of the dWRMP 
period (2040-2045), without mitigation, North Ruthamford would have a water deficit (demand 
exceeding supply) of 15Ml/day, due to population growth and climate change. The dWRMP sets 
out the strategy for mitigating these effects and ensuring that supply exceeds demand without 
causing environmental harm; in Ruthamford North, this will be principally achieved through 
transfer between resource zones. The recent HRA35 of the dWRMP concludes that the works 
required to enable the dWRMP will not result in likely significant effects on either Rutland Water 
SPA and Ramsar or the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar. 

                                                
32 Anglian Water, Water Resources Management Plan 2015: https://www.anglianwater.co.uk/_assets/media/WRMP_2015.pdf 
33 Environment Agency and Natural Resources Wales, 2013, Water stressed areas – final classification. 
34 Anglian Water, 2019, draft Water Resources Management Plan 2019: 
https://www.anglianwater.co.uk/_assets/media/Anglian_Water_revised_dWRMP_2019.pdf 
35 Anglian Water – Water Resources Management Plan 2019, Habitats Regulations Assessment - Task I: Screening and Task II: 
Appropriate Assessment (March 2018) 

888



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

40 March 2019 

5.109 Within the WRMP, Anglian Water state that they work closely with the Environment Agency and 
Natural England to ensure that their abstractions do not have a detrimental impact on the 
environment, and that many of their abstraction licences include conditions requiring them to 
monitor environmental impact which are reported on annually and if any deterioration is identified 
then they remain committed to addressing the issue. Anglian Water is also subject to the 
Environment Agency’s licensing regime which regulates the amount of water that can be 
abstracted in order to protect the environment. These controls are set out in The Nene Catchment 
Abstraction Management Strategy and they add another level of protection regarding the amount 
of water taken from the environment.    

5.110 The dWRMP takes into account the development targets of authorities within each resource zone, 
and therefore plans for the growth targets set for Northampton Borough (within the Joint Core 
Strategy). As described in Chapter 2, the Local Plan provides just over 20% more housing 
capacity (3,253homes) than required by its targets. Local Plan policies that result in an increase 
in the number of households are: 

• Policy 12: Housing and other housing-led allocation 
Defines the overall supply of new housing in the Local Plan, at allocated sites; 

• Policy 8: Regeneration opportunities 
Promotes mixed use (including residential) development in the town centre and central area; 

• Policy 11: Development of main town centre uses 
Permits regeneration of sites outside the central area; 

• Policy 14: Delivering houses in multiple occupation 
Enables an increase in the number of households within a house; 

• Policy 15: Safeguarding existing employment sites 
Permits changes of use from employment to non-employment uses; and 

• Policy 18: Residential development on upper floors 
Allows changes of use above shops, to residential. 

5.111 Mitigation is provided by the following: 

• Policy 5: Sustainable Construction 
Requires new residential developments to achieve a high water efficiency standard of 110l per 
person per day 

5.112 To ensure that the Local Plan’s additional housing supply will not have an adverse effect on water 
demand (i.e. in combination with the Joint Core Strategy and other plans), Anglian Water have 
also reviewed the Local Plan allocated sites and confirmed36 that no significant water supply 
issues are anticipated over the plan period.  

5.113 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of changes to water supply and water level management either alone or in 
combination with other plans or projects.  

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site 

5.114 The potential exists for likely significant effects because the River Nene, which supplies water to 
the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits, is also an important source of water to fill both Pitsford and 
Rutland Water reservoirs for public water supply37. Significant strategic abstraction occurs at 
Duston Mill, upstream of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits, in addition to other abstraction 
points38. As previously described, Rutland Water is the primary water source for Northampton but 
an increasing demand for water could have a knock-on effect on the River Nene and subsequently 
the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits.   

                                                
36 Personal communication with N Banks, Northampton Borough Council, 7 January 2019 
37 2011, West Northamptonshire water cycle study: Pre-submission Joint Core Strategy final detailed WCS report. 
38 Environment Agency, 2013, The Nene Catchment Abstraction Management Strategy.  

889



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

41 March 2019 

5.115 As with Rutland Water, the 2015 WRMP and 2019 dWRMP provide mitigation to enable supply 
within the Ruthamford North resource zone to exceed demand, without environmental harm; 
however, the Local Plan provides for more housing than set by the targets used in the dWRMP. 

5.116 Policies resulting in an increase in numbers of households (as above) could increase the demand 
for water; however mitigation is provided by the following: 

• Policy 5: Sustainable Construction 
Requires new residential developments to achieve a high water efficiency standard of 110l per 
person per day 

5.117 Policy BN4 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area in the West Northamptonshire 
Joint Core Strategy also states that developments should have no significant adverse effects on 
the integrity due to water abstraction. 

5.118 To ensure that the Local Plan’s additional housing supply will not have an adverse effect on water 
demand (i.e. in combination with the Joint Core Strategy and other plans), Anglian Water have 
also reviewed the Local Plan allocated sites and confirmed that no significant water supply issues 
are anticipated over the plan period.  

5.119 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 
and Ramsar site, as a result of changes to water supply and water level management 
either alone or in combination with other plans or projects.  

Changes to water quality 

5.120 An increase in demand for wastewater treatment resulting from the growth proposed in the Local 
Plan could result in a decrease in water quality as a result of increased amounts of treated sewage 
being discharged to hydrologically linked watercourses or increased amounts of contaminated 
water running off roads and other urban surfaces. Depending on the qualifying features and 
particular vulnerabilities of the European sites, there could be a likely significant effect on site 
integrity.   

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site  

5.121 Due to the distance between the plan area and Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site and the 
absence of hydrological connections with wastewater discharge points from the Borough’s 
Wastewater Treatment Works (WwTWs), it is highly unlikely that surface run-off, foul sewage or 
other potential water pollution from increased development in Northampton will affect this 
European site.   

5.122 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of changes to water quality either alone or in combination with other plans 
or projects.  

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site 

5.123 The River Nene flows west to east through Northampton and therefore flows through the city 
before passing the SPA/Ramsar. 

5.124 Population growth in Northampton has the capacity to have an adverse effect on the water quality 
of this site relating to both increased amounts of treated sewage entering the River Nene or the 
expansion of the built up area resulting in increased amounts of polluted water running off roads 
and other urban surfaces. 

5.125 The Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area SPD requires that applications for 
discharge to surface water or the ground, within 10km of the SPA/Ramsar, consult with Natural 
England. 

5.126 Wastewater from Northampton is discharged into the River Nene at Great Billing wastewater 
treatment works (WwTW) which serves Northampton39. It is located just to the east of 

                                                
39 Halcrow, 2011, West Northamptonshire Water Cycle Study for the Pre-Submission Joint Core Strategy, Detailed WCS Final Report 

890



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

42 March 2019 

Northampton next to the River Nene, between two sections of the SPA and Ramsar site, the flood 
storage reservoir near Northampton and Grendon lakes, downstream. It discharges into the Nene 
at this point meaning areas of the SPA and Ramsar site that are downstream could be adversely 
affected by increases in discharge.    

5.127 The West Northamptonshire Water Cycle Study stated that: 

“the current WFD status has been assessed for the waterbody that the WwTW that serves 
Northampton discharges into. The River Nene is currently failing to meet good ecological status, 
because the waterbody does not achieve good physiochemical status” 

5.128 The study reported that Great Billing WwTW had infrastructure capacity for development forecast 
in the period 2010-2015, provided that capital maintenance improvements planned and funded in 
AMP5 were delivered. However, it was stated that in the longer term a new consent will be 
required and additional infrastructure will be needed to be funded and delivered through Anglian 
Water’s business planning process, although no constraints to providing this infrastructure were 
identified. The study also concluded that the existing water quality consent will need to be 
tightened and monitored to ensure no deterioration but that this is achievable within the limits of 
conventional technology and should not be a constraint to development in Northampton.  

5.129 Anglian Water have since reviewed the Local Plan allocated sites and confirmed40 that no 
significant water treatment issues are anticipated. 

5.130 In addition to wastewater discharges, the Local Plan could also have an adverse effect on the 
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site due to an increase in polluted surface water 
run-off relating to an increase in hard standing area from growth in Northampton (and potentially 
in-combination with the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy SUEs and development in 
South Northamptonshire).   

5.131 Policies that permit new development, changes in use or occupation could alter wastewater 
treatment loads and therefore affect the water quality of the River Nene, as could development 
sites with surface water drainage pathways to the River Nene. The following policies therefore 
have the potential to alter water quality at the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar 
site: 

• Policy 7: Supporting Northampton town centre 
Permits (small-scale) development in the town centre; 

• Policy 8: Regeneration opportunities 
Encourages regeneration (housing & mixed use) within town centre and central area, 
particularly at named sites (some of which have site-specific policies); 

• Policy 11: Development of main town centre uses 
Permits regeneration of sites outside the central area; 

• Policy 12: Housing and other housing-led allocation 
Allocates 4,749 new homes (of which 3,253 are in addition to those required by the Joint Core 
Strategy) on 84 sites; 

• Policy 14: Delivering houses in multiple occupation 
Allows increases in the numbers of households; 

• Policy 15: Safeguarding existing employment sites 
Permits changes of use to non-employment uses; 

• Policy 16: Supporting new employment developments and schemes within and outside 
safeguarded sites 
Permits development within existing employment sites; 

• Policy 18: Residential development on upper floors 
Allows changes of use to residential; and 

                                                
40 Personal communication with N Banks, Northampton Borough Council, 7 January 2019 
 

891



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

43 March 2019 

• Policy 33: Development allocations 
Names the sites allocated for development. The majority are housing or housing-led sites and 
therefore allocated by Policy 12, but the 11 solely commercial sites are allocated by this 
policy. 

5.132 Safeguarding is provided by the following:  

• Policy 6: Flood risk and water management 
Supports proposals that comply with standards for surface water. Standards are set locally in 
Northamptonshire County Council’s Local Standards and Guidance for Surface Water Drainage 
in Northamptonshire.  

5.133 There are also a number of policies in the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy that 
provide additional safeguards: 

• Policy BN9 Planning for pollution control   
States that “Proposals for new development which are likely to cause pollution or likely to 
result in exposure to sources of pollution or risks to safety will need to demonstrate that they 
provide opportunities to minimise and where possible reduce pollution issue that are a barrier 
to achieving sustainable development and healthy communities.”  In regards to water quality 
this is through “Protecting and improving surface and groundwater water quality”.   

• Policy BN7a Water supply, quality and wastewater infrastructure 
Includes the requirement for adequate wastewater treatment capacity to address 
environmental constraints, as well as the use of sustainable drainage systems, where 
practicable, to improve water quality, reduce flood risk and provide environmental and 
adaptation benefits.   

• Policy BN4 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 
Sets out the need for new developments to demonstrate, through the development 
management process, that there will be no significant adverse effects on the integrity of the 
Upper Nene Valley SPA / Ramsar site due to (among others things) “water runoff, water 
abstraction or discharges from the foul drainage system”.   

• Policy BN8 The River Nene strategic river corridor  
Proposals for new development must demonstrate an understanding of the importance of the 
River Nene for biodiversity within and beyond the plan area.   

• Policy S10 Sustainable development principles    
Sets out a requirement to maximise water efficiency and sustainable drainage and minimise 
pollution from run-off.   

5.134 Further protection safeguards are provided by policies and procedures set out by Anglian Water 
and the Environment Agency. Water treatment and recycling in Northampton is carried out by 
Anglian Water and the quality of the water that is discharged to water courses must pass strict 
standards set by law and enforced by the Environment Agency. The Environment Agency 
measures the performance of all the water companies in England annually and the Environment 
Agency’s 2016 Environmental Performance Assessment Report found that in 2015 Anglican Water 
achieved 99% compliance with their discharge licences and permits (all water companies have 
licences and permits which control the level of impact they are allowed to have on the 
environment). Furthermore, the Environment Agency licence and control all discharges and 
abstractions and have responsibilities to ensure ‘no deterioration’ of water quality under the Water 
Framework Directive, which adds an extra layer of protection.   

5.135 With safeguards provided by policies within the Local Plan and Joint Core Strategy, 
there will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 
and Ramsar site, as a result of changes to water quality either alone or in combination 
with other plans or projects.  

Air pollution 

5.136 Air pollution is most likely to affect European sites where plant, soil and water habitats are the 
qualifying features, but some qualifying animal species may also be affected, either directly or 

892



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

44 March 2019 

indirectly, by any deterioration in habitat as a result of air pollution.  Deposition of pollutants to 
the ground and vegetation can alter the characteristics of the soil, affecting the pH and nitrogen 
(N) availability that can then affect plant health, productivity and species composition. 

5.137 In terms of vehicle traffic, nitrogen oxides (NOx, i.e. NO and NO2) are considered to be the key 
pollutants.  Deposition of nitrogen compounds may lead to both soil and freshwater acidification, 
and NOx can cause eutrophication of soils and water.   

5.138 Based on the Highways Agency Design for Road and Bridges (DMRB) Manual Volume 11, Section 
3, Part 141 (which was produced to provide advice regarding the design, assessment and 
operation of trunk roads (including motorways)), it is assumed that air pollution from roads is 
unlikely to be significant beyond 200 m from the road itself.  Where increases in traffic volumes 
are forecast, this 200 m buffer needs to be applied to the relevant roads in order to make a 
judgement about the likely geographical extent of air pollution impacts.   

5.139 The DMRB Guidance for the assessment of local air quality in relation to highways developments 
provides criteria that should be applied to ascertain whether there are likely to be significant 
impacts associated with routes or corridors.  Based on the  DMRB guidance, affected roads which 
should be assessed are those where: 

• Daily traffic flows will change by 1,000 AADT (Annual Average Daily Traffic) or more; or 

• Heavy duty vehicle (HDV) flows will change by 200 AADT or more; or 

• Daily average speed will change by 10 km/hr or more; or 

• Peak hour speed will change by 20 km/hr or more; or 

• Road alignment will change by 5 m or more. 

5.140 Recent case law, known as the Wealden judgement42, has revised the method by which Natural 
England expects to see in-combination air pollution effects assessed. The implication of the 
judgement is that, where the road traffic effects of other plans or projects are known or can be 
reasonably estimated (including those of adopted plans or consented projects), then these should 
be included in road traffic modelling by the local authority whose local plan or project is being 
assessed. The screening criteria of 1,000 AADT should then be applied to the traffic flows of the 
plans in combination.  

5.141 It has been assumed that only those roads forming part of the primary road network (motorways 
and ‘A’ roads) might be likely to experience any significant increases in vehicle traffic as a result 
of development (i.e. greater than 1,000 AADT etc.).    

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site 

5.142 A small part of Rutland Water lies within 200m of both the A606 and A6003; however, these 
roads are sufficiently distant from Northampton that they are not likely to experience significant 
increases in traffic due to the Local Plan. Data on commuting patterns43, based on 2011 census 
data, shows negligible traffic flows to/from Northampton that pass Rutland Water. 

5.143 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site, 
as a result of air pollution either alone or in combination with other plans or projects.  

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site 

5.144 The Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site is not identified as sensitive to air 
pollution, or nitrogen more generally, either within the Site Improvement Plan or Standard Data 
Form (Appendix 1). However, the supplementary advice on conservation objectives sets a target 
to “maintain concentrations and deposition of air pollutants to at or below the site-relevant Critical 
Load or Level values” for supporting habitat, both within and outside the SPA. The Air Pollution 
Information System44 does not show critical load or level values for the SPA features but does 

                                                
41  
42 Wealden District Council v. (1) Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government; (2) Lewes District Council; (3) South 
Downs National Park Authority and Natural England 
43 DataShine Commute http://commute.datashine.org.uk 
44 Air Pollution Information System www.apis.ac.uk 

893



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

45 March 2019 

show a generally stable or falling trend for nitrogen (NOx) deposition at the site, over the last ten 
years.  

5.145 For the effects of nitrogen deposition to have an adverse effect on the integrity of the SPA or 
Ramsar, it would need to change habitats to such an extent that the site’s qualifying bird species 
no longer feed from or use the habitat. While nutrient enrichment could change the floristic 
composition of the site’s terrestrial habitats, it is unlikely to do so to the extent that birds and the 
species they depend on stop using the habitat.   

5.146 Furthermore, the effects of nitrogen deposition from traffic reduce dramatically with distance (see 
Figure 5.6), and are further reduced if there are ‘buffers’ in between a road and the site; the 200 
metre threshold is therefore at the limit of where significant effects might occur.  

Figure 5.6 Traffic contribution to pollutant concentration at different distances from the 
road centre45 

 

 

5.147 Only a very small portion of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site is within 
200m of an A-road. At Northampton Washlands (the portion of the SPA/Ramsar in the Local Plan 
area), the road is located c.120m from the SPA and is separated by another water body and scrub 
habitat. The only portion of the SPA/Ramsar that is adjacent to an A-road is at Rushden / 
Stanwick, where the SSSI condition reports confirm that the site is either in favourable condition 
or unfavourable recovering (due to historic poor management).  

5.148 Overall, the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site is not considered to be sensitive 
to air pollution to a degree that changes in traffic due to the Local Plan would result in adverse 
effects on its integrity. 

5.149 There are also areas of supporting habitat within 200m of major roads: either side of the A428 
(c.180m from the SPA/Ramsar at its closest point), and adjacent to the M1 (c.6km from the 
SPA/Ramsar at its closest point). In both cases, it is unlikely that nutrient enrichment would 
change the floristic composition of these areas of supporting habitat (arable fields and pasture) to 
the extent that birds and the species they depend on stop using the habitat.   

5.150 There will be no adverse effects on the integrity of Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA 
and Ramsar site, as a result of air pollution either alone or in combination with other 
plans or projects.  

                                                
45 Figure C1 from Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (May 2007) Volume 11 Environmental Assessment, Section 3 Environmental 
Assessment Techniques.  Part 1 HA207/7 Air Quality 

894



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

46 March 2019 

Assessment summary  

5.151 A summary of the findings of the Appropriate Assessment is provided below. The scoping matrix 
identifies the policy that each effect type relates to (Appendix 3). 

Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site 

5.152 For the majority of the types of effect that could arise from the Local Plan, Rutland Water SPA and 
Ramsar site is too far from the Local Plan area to be significantly affected by development 
associated with the plan.  

5.153 The following effect has the potential for likely significant effects but, following the Appropriate 
Assessment, no adverse effects on the integrity of the site are anticipated. 

Changes to water supply and water level management 

5.154 Rutland Water is a primary source of urban water supply for Northampton. New development in 
the Local Plan area, in combination with that from other areas within Anglian Water’s region, 
could increase demand such that demand for water cannot be met, sustainably. The 2015 and 
draft 2019 Water Resources Management Plans set out the measures required to balance water 
supply and demand, without adverse environmental effects.  These plan for Northampton’s target 
number of homes set out in the Joint Core Strategy, but not the additional homes provided by the 
Local Plan. Anglian Water have reviewed the Local Plan allocated sites and have confirmed that 
there will be no water supply issues. 

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site 

5.155 The proximity of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site to the Local Plan area 
means that there are more types of potentially significant effect.  

5.156 The following effects have the potential for likely significant effects but, following the Appropriate 
Assessment, no adverse effects on the integrity of the site are anticipated. 

Physical habitat loss of damage 

5.157 No sites are allocated within the SPA/Ramsar and development outside of allocated sites is 
unlikely to be permitted within the SPA/Ramsar due to protection provided by policies in the Local 
Plan and Joint Core Strategy. 

Loss of supporting habitat 

5.158 The Local Plan might permit development within areas of habitat used by Golden Plover or 
Lapwing from the SPA/Ramsar. Mitigation for the potential loss of supporting habitat is provided 
by Policy BN4 of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, which requires new 
development to demonstrate that it will not result in a significant adverse effect due to loss of 
supporting habitat. This is sufficient mitigation, but could be strengthened at the local level, with 
amendments to Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area. 

5.159 LAA1098 The Green, Great Houghton is in an area that may be supporting habitat for Golden 
Plover and/or Lapwing. This site is allocated in Policy 12: Housing and other housing led allocation 
for 771 homes and design principles for the development are set out in Policy 36: The Green, 
Great Houghton. As this development will need to demonstrate that it will have no adverse effect 
on the SPA/Ramsar due to loss of supporting habitat, it is recommended that the following 
mitigation is incorporated into Policy 36: 

• Surveys to identify whether the site is used by over-wintering Golden Plover / Lapwing (i.e.to 
be carried out in the winter).  

• If significant numbers of Golden Plover or Lapwing are identified at the site, mitigation will be 
required for the loss of habitat, for example the enhancement of a sub-optimal / unsuitable 
area of habitat, such that it becomes optimal for Golden Plover / Lapwing. The enhanced 
habitat should be a similar distance from the SPA/Ramsar and of at least the same size as the 
habitat lost. 

895



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

47 March 2019 

Changes to bird sightlines 

5.160 Development within 250m of the SPA/Ramsar could affect bird sightlines. Two allocated sites 
(LAA1101 and LAA1107) are within 250m and the Local Plan could permit other development 
within the same zone. Policies within the Local Plan and Joint Core Strategy provide sufficient 
safeguards against this potential effect. 

Non-physical disturbance 

5.161 Development within 2km of the SPA/Ramsar has the potential for significant effects due to noise, 
vibration or light, particularly in combination with other development as multiple developments 
could have a general urbanising effect. Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection 
Area provides specific mitigation for disturbance effects. Further mitigation is required by Joint 
Core Strategy policy BN4.  This mitigation should be sufficient to ensure no significant effects on 
integrity occur from non-physical disturbance. 

Recreation pressure 

5.162 The SPA/Ramsar is sensitive to visitor pressure and it is considered that any residential 
development within 3km of the site has the potential to contribute to visitor pressure, alone or in 
combination with other development. 

5.163 Policy 12: Housing and other housing led allocation allocates up to 2,240 new homes on 26 sites 
within 3km of the SPA/Ramsar, and other policies permit development outside of the allocated 
sites. The portion of the SPA/Ramsar that is within 3km of the Local Plan area – Northampton 
Washlands – is also within 3km of development within South Northamptonshire, therefore in-
combination effects are likely. 

5.164 At present, the Local Plan requires mitigation in Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special 
Protection Area, which requires that “all new development proposals within 3km of the Special 
Protection Area must demonstrate, where necessary through a series of mitigation measures, that 
their proposals will not contribute to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the bird species 
for which the site is designated.” 

5.165 Policy 23: Sustaining and enhancing existing, and supporting the creation of, Northampton’s 
green infrastructure and Policy 24: Providing open spaces also require development to provide 
green infrastructure that could divert some recreation trips away from the SPA/Ramsar. Other 
policies provide general protection for the SPA/Ramsar. 

5.166 These policies provide sufficient safeguards to prevent individual developments from having a 
significant effect on the SPA/Ramsar, but do not necessarily address the potential combined 
effects of the Local Plan’s total housing provision (within 3km of the SPA/Ramsar) or the in-
combination effects with other development plans.  

5.167 A more strategic approach – for example a mitigation strategy that can be applied to all 
residential developments within 3km of the SPA/Ramsar - would provide greater certainty that the 
effects of recreation disturbance can be mitigated, rather than placing the onus on individual 
developments to identify appropriate mitigation.  

5.168 A mitigation strategy specific to the effects of development from the Local Plan on the 
Northampton Washlands portion of the SPA/Ramsar will need to be developed in consultation with 
Natural England and committed to within Local Plan Policy 26 (or a separate policy); i.e. agreed 
prior to adoption of the Local Plan. This could be developed in conjunction with South 
Northamptonshire District. 

Pet predation 

5.169 Residential developments within 1.5km of the SPA/Ramsar could contribute to an increase in 
numbers of domestic cats. Three residential allocated sites are within this zone but road / river 
barriers at two of the sites and the intended layout of the third site mean that adverse effects are 
unlikely.  

Changes to water supply and water level management 

5.170 The River Nene supplies water to both Rutland Water and Pitsford reservoirs. New development in 
the Local Plan area, in combination with that from other areas within Anglian Water’s region, 
could increase demand such that demand for water cannot be met, sustainably. The 2015 and 

896



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

48 March 2019 

draft 2019 Water Resources Management Plans set out the measures required to balance water 
supply and demand, without adverse environmental effects. These plan for Northampton’s target 
number of homes set out in the Joint Core Strategy, but not the additional homes provided by the 
Local Plan. Anglian Water have reviewed the Local Plan allocated sites and have confirmed that 
there will be no water supply issues. 

Changes to water quality 

5.171 Policies that permit new development, changes in use or occupation could alter wastewater 
treatment loads and therefore affect the water quality of the River Nene, as could development 
sites with surface water drainage pathways to the River Nene. However, Policy 6: Flood risk and 
water management, along with a number of policies within the West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy provide sufficient safeguards. 

Air pollution 

5.172 The SPA/Ramsar is not considered to be particularly sensitive to air pollution. For the effects of 
nitrogen deposition to have an adverse effect on the integrity of the SPA or Ramsar, it would need 
to change habitats to such an extent that the site’s qualifying bird species no longer feed from or 
use the habitat. While nutrient enrichment could change the floristic composition of the site’s 
terrestrial habitats (and associated supporting habitat), it is unlikely to do so to the extent that 
birds and the species they depend on stop using the habitat.   

897



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

49 March 2019 

6 Conclusions 

6.1 The HRA screening assessment (Chapter 4) identified the need for Appropriate Assessment of 
the Northampton Local Plan Part 2, as likely significant effects could not be ruled out. The scope 
of the Appropriate Assessment (Appendix 3) was then defined by considering each policy and 
site allocation, the type of development they could result in and their potential effects on 
European sites, alone and in combination. 

6.2 The Appropriate Assessment has concluded that the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 will not result 
in adverse effects on the integrity of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site or Upper Nene Valley 
Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site. However, in some cases, further mitigation or safeguards are 
required to enable this conclusion to be reached. Mitigation or safeguards for some types of effect 
could also be strengthened at the local level by adding weight to policies in the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, within the Local Plan. 

6.3 It is recommended that the amendments in Table 6.1 are made. 

Table 6.1 Recommended policy amendments 

Current wording Suggested amendment 

Required to 
conclude no 
adverse 
effect on 
integrity? 

Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area 

All new development proposals within 3km of the 
Special Protection Area must demonstrate, where 
necessary through a series of mitigation 
measures, that their proposals will not contribute 
to the disturbance and subsequent decline of the 
bird species for which the site is designated. 

The SPD is referenced in the supporting text: 

The Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special 
Protection Area SPD supplements the policies 
contained in the West Northamptonshire Joint 
Core Strategy. It highlights the requirements to 
consult Natural England on proposals that could 
affect the SPA. The consultation zones are 
included in the SPD. 

Approach to mitigating recreation 
pressure will need to be agreed with 
Natural England and incorporated into 
this policy (or could be a separate 
policy). 

The policy could be worded in the 
following way, to broaden its coverage 
to include other types of effect than 
solely ‘disturbance’:: 

Development within the consultation 
zones identified in the Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel Pits SPD has the potential 
to affect bird species for which the 
Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special 
Protection Area and Ramsar site is 
designated. Applications for these types 
of development must demonstrate, 
where necessary through a series of 
mitigation measures, that their 
proposals will not contribute to adverse 
effects on the bird species for which the 
site is designated, or the habitats they 
rely on. 

Yes, for 
recreation 
pressure. 

No for other 
effects, but 
strengthens 
mitigation for 
loss of 
supporting 
habitat. 

Policy 36: The Green, Great Houghton 

Housing development of up to 800 dwellings, 
which comply with the development principles 
shown on Figure 18 will be supported, subject to 
the following criteria being met: 

• The built development should only take place 
outside of the area hatched in the diagram 

• The scheme should be of high quality design, 
and must take into account and be sensitive to 
the significance and the setting of the Great 

Golden Plover and Lapwing surveys 
should be carried out at the site to 
identify whether the site is used by over-
wintering birds from the SPA/Ramsar.  

If significant numbers of Golden Plover 
or Lapwing are identified at the site, 
mitigation will be required for the loss of 
habitat.  

Appropriate mitigation would involve the 

No, but 
strengthens 
mitigation and 
facilitates 
development 
at the site 

898



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

50 March 2019 

 

 

6.4 The Local Plan is currently at the Regulation 19 (Proposed Submission) stage. The recommended 
policy amendments would need to be incorporated into the Local Plan prior to adoption. 

6.5 With these in place, the Local Plan will have no adverse effects on the integrity of any European 
sites, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects. 

 

LUC 
March 2019 

 

Houghton conservation area, evident through a 
Heritage Impact Assessment  

• A buffer is to be created, in the form of 
ecological enhancements and net increase in 
biodiversity in the area hatched in the diagram 

• The development provides suitable transport 
links to neighbouring developments, including 
neighbourhood centres and community facilities 

• The proposal should include pedestrian and 
cycling provision to secure connectivity and 
permeability within the site and improved 
connections to the employment area to the north 
and the proposed residential areas to the west 

• Development on this site should maximise the 
use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). 

• The layout of the development should be 
designed to take into account existing sewers 
and water mains within the site. 

enhancement of another area of habitat, 
a similar distance from the SPA/Ramsar 
and of the same area or greater, such 
that sub-optimal/unsuitable habitat 
becomes optimal for Golden Plover or 
Lapwing.  

This commitment will need to be written 
into the wording of Policy 36 prior to the 
adoption of the Local Plan. 

899



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

51 March 2019 

Appendix 1   
Attributes of the European sites with the potential to be affected by the Local Plan 
Table 1 Attributes of the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site  

Site name 

(Area, ha) 

Qualifying features Key vulnerabilities  Non-qualifying habitats and species upon 
which the qualifying habitats and/or 
species depend 

Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel 
Pits SPA 

(1,357 ha) 

Natura 2000 Standard Data Form 

Wintering populations of the following 
bird species: 

Anas clypeata (Shoveler) 

Anas Penelope (Wigeon) 

Anas platyrhynchos (Mallard) 

Anas strepera (Gadwall) 

Aythya farina (Pochard) 

Aythya fuligula (Tufted duck) 

Botaurus stellaris (Bittern) 

Fulica atra (Coot) 

Phalacrocorax carbo (Cormorant) 

Pluvialis apricaria (Golden Plover) 

Podiceps cristatus (Great Crested 
Grebe) 

Vanellus vanellus (Lapwing) 

Waterfowl assemblage (wintering and 
breeding populations) 

Natura 2000 Standard Data Form 

• Fishing and harvesting aquatic resources 
• Other urbanisation, industrial and similar activities 
• Modification of cultivation practices 
• Outdoor sports and leisure activities, recreational 

activities  

Natural England site improvement plan  

• Public access / disturbance – Disturbance from 
recreation (particularly walkers and dog owners) 
affects wintering birds by reducing the time 
available for feeding, and increasing energy 
expenditure when avoiding those sources of 
disturbance. 

• Planning permission general – There continues to 
be an increase in built and recreational 
development within and around the SPA leading to 
loss and fragmentation of habitat, and increased 
disturbance.  Seven local planning authorities are 
involved with decision making; policies can be 
inconsistent across the authorities or provide 
insufficient protection. 

• Fisheries, freshwater – An increasing number of 
lakes are being utilised as freshwater fisheries; 
overstocking of certain fish species and issuing of 

 

In general, wintering populations of waterbirds rely 
on: 

• Maintenance of the populations of species they 
feed on (see diets, below); 

• The site’s ecosystem as a whole (see list of 
habitats, below; 

• Seasonal variations in water levels that 
maintain the mix of habitats at the site and 
that could be affected by climate change, 
extreme weather and/or land management; 

• Off-site habitats, which provide migratory 
‘stepping stones’ and foraging habitat (rather 
than off-site breeding habitats; the site is 
designated for wintering species only) - 
particularly arable fields and pasture, which 
Golden Plover and Lapwing rely on; 

• Unobstructed flight lines / routes. 

BTO Bird Facts47 

The site’s qualifying bird species’ diets are: 

• Shoveler: omnivorous (incl. insects, 
crustaceans, molluscs, seeds); 

• Wigeon: mostly leaves, shoots, rhizomes, 
seeds; 

• Mallard: omnivorous; 

                                                
47 https://www.bto.org/about-birds/birdfacts 

900



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

52 March 2019 

Site name 

(Area, ha) 

Qualifying features Key vulnerabilities  Non-qualifying habitats and species upon 
which the qualifying habitats and/or 
species depend 

(N.B. The compartment of the SPA 
within and directly adjacent to the plan 
area, known as Clifford Hill Gravel Pits 
or Northamptonshire Washlands, is 
used by a significant proportion of the 
site’s Golden Plover, Lapwing and 
Wigeon populations.)46 

licences to control fish-eating birds can be a 
problem.   

• Change in land management – Continued habitat 
management is required to ensure the balance of 
short grassland, reedbed, fen and open water is 
maintained.   

Natural England: supplementary advice on conserving 
and restoring site features 

In addition to the above, the supplementary advice 
identifies the following vulnerabilities:  

• Water quantity/quality –can affect the 
availability/suitability of feeding and roosting 
habitats, especially reedbeds and grassland within 
flood storage areas.  

• Air quality - exceeding ‘critical values’ for air 
pollutants may result in changes to the habitat 
substrate and therefore nesting, feeding or 
roosting habitats. 

• Changes in vegetation characteristics – the height, 
cover, variation and composition of vegetation 
enable successful feeding/concealment/roosting.  

• Human disturbance – particular risk from users 
entering the private land within the flood storage 
area.  

• Changes to site topography – may adversely affect 
supporting habitats  

• Loss of connectivity between feeding/roosting 
areas– both on-site and at off-site habitats.  

• Changes to water area and associated marginal 
habitat - can adversely affect the suitability of 

• Gadwall: leaves and shoots; 

• Tufted duck: mostly plants, small animals; 

• Bittern: mostly fish, amphibians, insects; 

• Coot: omnivorous but mostly plants; 

• Cormorant: fish; 

• Golden Plover: invertebrates (esp. beetles and 
earthworms), feeds extensively at night; 

• Great Crested Grebe: mostly fish, some aquatic 
invertebrates; 

• Lapwing: invertebrates from ground; will feed 
at night. 

Natura 2000 Standard Data Form 

The mix of habitats48 at the site (% cover) is: 

• 49% N06: inland water bodies (standing water 
/ running water); 

• 27% N14: improved grassland; 

• 19% N07: bogs, marshes, water fringed 
vegetation, fens; and  

• 5% N16: broad-leaved deciduous woodland.  

                                                
46 West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, para. 10.26 
48 Habitat types: https://bd.eionet.europa.eu/activities/Natura_2000/Folder_Reference_Portal/NATHABS_HABCODE_090416.pdf  

901



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

53 March 2019 

Site name 

(Area, ha) 

Qualifying features Key vulnerabilities  Non-qualifying habitats and species upon 
which the qualifying habitats and/or 
species depend 

supporting open water habitat.  
• Loss of open terrain – need for large areas of open 

terrain, largely free of obstructions, in and around 
roosting and feeding areas 

• Water depth – bitterns are visual predators and 
rely on detecting prey in the water, therefore 
depth of water at critical times of year may be 
paramount for successful feeding. 

• Food availability – inappropriate management 
affecting the distribution, abundance and 
availability of prey may adversely affect the Great 
Bittern and golden plover populations. 

Upper Nene 
Valley Gravel 
Pits Ramsar 
site 

(same area as 
SPA) 

Information Sheet on Ramsar 
Wetlands 

The sites regularly supports 20,000 or 
more waterbirds 

The site regularly supports 1% of the 
individuals in the populations of the 
following species: 

Cygnus olor (Mute Swan) 

Anas strepera (Gadwall) 

Noteworthy Fauna include those listed 
above for SPA 

Information Sheet on Ramsar Wetlands 

• Unspecified development: urban use – activities 
connected with ongoing urban development cause 
significant disturbance to wintering birds if 
unmanaged.   

• Vegetation succession – Lack of grazing is leading 
to rank grassland, scrub / woodland.  Whilst this is 
desirable in certain areas, widespread vegetation 
succession will result in a decrease in the 
availability of suitable habitat for key species.   

• Introduction / invasion of non-native plant species 
– Hydrocotyle ranunculoides and Crassula helmsii 
present in small areas of the site. 

• Recreation / tourism disturbance – access by 
people and dogs both on and off public rights of 
way is a significant course of disturbance in some 
areas.  The site is also subject to a variety of 
recreational activities including fishing and water 
sports.  Demand for access and formal / informal 
recreational activities within the Nene Valley are 
increasing; development of facilities / opportunities 

As for the SPA, with additional information on 
habitats and species at the site: 

Information Sheet on Ramsar Wetlands 

Open water, with associated wetland habitats 
including reedbeds, fen grassland and woodland 
which support a number of wetland plant and animal 
species including internationally important numbers 
of wintering and breeding wildfowl. 

This chain of both active and disused sand and gravel 
pits form an extensive series of shallow and deep 
open waters which occur in association with a wide 
range of marginal features, such as sparsely-
vegetated islands, gravel bars and shorelines and 
habitats including reedswamp, marsh, wet ditches, 
rush pasture, rough grassland and scattered scrub. 

This range of habitats and the varied topography of 
the lagoons provide valuable resting and feeding 
conditions for concentrations of wintering waterbirds, 
especially ducks and waders. Species such as golden 
plover Pluvialis apricaria and lapwing Vanellus 

902



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

54 March 2019 

Site name 

(Area, ha) 

Qualifying features Key vulnerabilities  Non-qualifying habitats and species upon 
which the qualifying habitats and/or 
species depend 

is often in an uncoordinated manner. vanellus also spend time feeding and roosting on 
surrounding agricultural land outside the Ramsar 
site. 

The site provides flood water storage within the 
hydrological catchment. 

903



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

55 March 2019 

Table 2 Attributes of Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site 

Site name 

(Area, ha) 

Qualifying features Key vulnerabilities  Non-qualifying habitats and species upon which 
the qualifying habitats and/or species depend 

Rutland Water 
SPA 

(1,555 ha) 

Natura 2000 Standard 
Data Form 

Wintering populations of 
the following bird species: 

Anas clypeata (Shoveler) 

Anas crecca (Teal) 

Anas Penelope (Wigeon) 

Anas strepera (Gadwall) 

Aythya fuligula (Tufted 
Duck) 

Bucephala clangula 
(Goldeneye) 

Cygnus olor (Mute Swan) 

Fulica atra (Coot) 

Mergus merganser 
(Goosander) 

Podiceps cristatus (Great 
Crested Grebe) 

Waterfowl assemblage 

Natura 2000 Standard Data Form 

• Human induced changes in hydraulic conditions 
• Pollution to groundwater 
• Other human intrusions and disturbances 
• Invasive non-native species 

Natural England Site Improvement Plan  

• Water abstraction – Increased water abstraction is 
proposed that will radically alter water levels in the 
reservoir which may result in a proportion of waterbirds 
utilising areas provided as compensation but which are 
currently outside the SPA. 

• Inappropriate water levels – Water levels of the reserve 
are managed primarily for public water supply and 
water storage and not specifically for non-breeding 
water birds. This can influence the number of specific 
species of non-breeding water birds using the site at 
certain times of the year. At the moment, this is not 
causing any long–term deterioration of the site. 
However, when the proposed new increased abstraction 
regime is implemented, appropriate management of the 
water levels in the compensation and mitigation water 
bodies will be required to offset the impacts of the 
abstraction.  

• Direct impact from 3rd party – Cumulative impacts from 
unregulated third party activities like private firework 
displays in properties adjacent to the SPA, hot air 
balloon flights, and private aircraft flights is unknown. 
Investigation is needed to better understand the 
frequency of these disturbances and the cumulative 

 

In general, wintering populations of waterbirds rely on: 

• Maintenance of the populations of species they feed on 
(see diets, below); 

• The site’s ecosystem as a whole (see list of habitats, 
below); 

• Predictable seasonal variations in water levels, which 
could be affected by climate change, extreme weather 
and/or changes in water abstraction or discharge; 

• Off-site habitats, which provide migratory ‘stepping 
stones’ and foraging habitat (rather than off-site 
breeding habitats; the site is designated for wintering 
species only); and 

• Unobstructed flight lines / routes. 

BTO Bird Facts49 

The site’s qualifying bird species’ diets are: 

• Shoveler: omnivorous (incl. insects, crustaceans, 
molluscs, seeds); 

• Teal: omnivorous (mostly seeds), feeds at night; 

• Wigeon: mostly leaves, shoots, rhizomes, seeds; 

• Gadwall: leaves and shoots; 

• Tufted duck: mostly plants, small animals; 

• Goldeneye: insects, molluscs and crustaceans; 

• Mute Swan: aquatic vegetation, also grazes on land and 
occasionally takes insects, molluscs and small 
amphibians; 

• Coot: omnivorous but mostly plants; 

                                                
49 https://www.bto.org/about-birds/birdfacts 

904



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

56 March 2019 

Site name 

(Area, ha) 

Qualifying features Key vulnerabilities  Non-qualifying habitats and species upon which 
the qualifying habitats and/or species depend 

impacts of these activities upon the waterbirds using 
Rutland Water. 

• Invasive species – Rutland Water has been colonised by 
several non-native species and not all are having a 
positive impact on the SPA interest features. 

• Water pollution – The inflows into Rutland Water 
currently receive regulated discharges of treated 
sewage as well as unregulated treated sewage 
discharges from septic tanks. Further nutrient inputs 
come from diffuse sources which maintain the reservoir 
in a highly eutrophic state and has led in the past to 
regular algal blooms. 

• Planning permission general – In the wider area 
surrounding the SPA, wind farm and other development 
is being proposed and is taking place. However, the 
impact upon the waterfowl behaviour during nocturnal 
migration and dispersal to and from the reservoir, and 
their interaction with the environment in the 
surrounding countryside is poorly understood.   

• Public access / disturbance – The reservoir and 
surrounding area is a very important destination for 
undertaking recreational activities. These include a 
range of water sports, fishing, cycling, birdwatching and 
walking. Several large events are also held on the banks 
of the reservoir each year. Future recreational proposals 
will need to avoid likely significant effects on the SPA.  

• Fisheries: Rutland Water is currently managed as a put 
and take trout fishery. Trout have a controlling impact 
on coarse fish populations and future changes in coarse 
fish populations could create a shift in the ecological 
balance of the water body.   
 

• Goosander: fish; 

• Great Crested Grebe: mostly fish, some aquatic 
invertebrates. 

Natura 2000 Standard Data Form 

The mix of habitats50 at the site (% cover) is: 

• 80% N06: inland water bodies (standing water / 
running water); 

• 10% N19: mixed woodland; 

• 9.9% N09: dry grassland /steppes; and 

• 0.1% N07: bogs, marshes, water fringed vegetation, 
fens.  

 

                                                
50 Habitat types: https://bd.eionet.europa.eu/activities/Natura_2000/Folder_Reference_Portal/NATHABS_HABCODE_090416.pdf  

905



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

57 March 2019 

Site name 

(Area, ha) 

Qualifying features Key vulnerabilities  Non-qualifying habitats and species upon which 
the qualifying habitats and/or species depend 

Natural England: supplementary advice on conserving and 
restoring site features 

In addition to the above, the supplementary advice identifies 
the following vulnerabilities: 

• Water supply - critical for SPA features that are 
dependent on wetland habitats supported by surface 
water, especially at certain times of year.   

• Air quality – exceeding ‘critical values’ for air pollutants 
may result in changes to the habitat substrate and 
therefore nesting, feeding or roosting habitats. 

• Loss of connectivity – the ability to move to and from 
feeding and roosting areas is critical to the breeding 
success of species present on the site, both on-site and 
at off-site habitats.  

• Water depth – the SPA requires extensive areas of 
water for feeding, and water depth at critical times of 
year is paramount for successful feeding, fitness and 
survival.  

• Food availability – inappropriate management might 
affect the distribution, abundance and availability of 
food plants may adversely affect the sustainability of 
the population.  

Rutland Water 
Ramsar site 

(same area as 
SPA) 

Information Sheet on 
Ramsar Wetlands 

Assemblages of 
international importance, 
supporting 20,000 or more 
waterbirds 

Species / populations 
occurring at levels of 
international importance, 
supporting 1% of the 

No vulnerabilities listed  As for the SPA, with additional information on habitats and 
species at the site: 

Information Sheet on Ramsar Wetlands 

Rutland Water is a large eutrophic man-made pump storage 
reservoir created by the damming of the Gwash Valley in 
1975. The reservoir is in a lowland setting receiving the 
majority of its water from the Nene (90%) and Welland 
(10%). In general the reservoir is drawn down in the summer 
and filled during the autumn and winter months when river 
levels are high. 

906



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

58 March 2019 

Site name 

(Area, ha) 

Qualifying features Key vulnerabilities  Non-qualifying habitats and species upon which 
the qualifying habitats and/or species depend 

individuals in a population 
of one species of waterbird 

Qualifying species / 
populations: 

Anas strepera strepera 
(Gadwall) 

Anas clypeata (Northern 
Shoveler) 

The main habitats are open water and a mosaic of lagoons, 
reedswamp, marsh, old meadows, scrub and woodland. 

The main habitat is the open water of the main body of the 
reservoir. This is deep water with some macrophyte growth 
down to 3 metres (average depth 14 m, maximum depth 34 
m). 

The western end of the reservoir contains three bunded areas 
with their own water supply. These are managed by 
manipulating the water level to produce seasonal inundation 
and conditions for breeding wildfowl. They include several 
small artificial islands and a 2 ha reedbed. The rest of the site 
is made up of adjacent woodland and grazed grasslands that 
are used by wintering wigeon and swans and provide a buffer 
from activities adjacent to the site. 

In addition to the site’s qualifying species, there are a 
number of other waterbird species that occur at the site in 
nationally important numbers. 

907



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

59 March 2019 

Appendix 2  
Plans and projects with the potential for in-combination 
effects 
 

PART 1 LOCAL PLANS  

West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (JCS) 

Status 

Adopted December 2014. Forms Part 1 of the suite of Local Plans in the West Northamptonshire region, 
which includes Northampton Borough, and is therefore part of the Development Plan for Northampton.  

Types of development with the potential for in-combination effects 

Makes provisions for a total of 47,620 net additional dwellings across the plan area. These are distributed 
between: Daventry District (12,730); Northampton (18,870); South Northamptonshire District (11,020).  

Reference to European sites 

Policy BN4 (Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area) requires that new development will 
need to demonstrate that there will be no significant adverse effects on the integrity of the SPA, including 
loss of supporting habitat and impacts due to water runoff, water abstraction or discharges from the 
drainage system. New development that will lead to an increase in recreational activity at the SPA will 
require mitigation. New development within 250m of the SPA must also undertake an assessment to 
demonstrate no effect on sightlines for birds – if directly adjacent to existing buildings, it should reflect 
surrounding building heights. 

North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (JCS) 

Status 

Adopted July 2016 and forms the strategic guidance for the Local Plans for Corby, East 
Northamptonshire, Kettering and Wellingborough. North Northamptonshire borders the West 
Northamptonshire region to the north. 

Types of development with the potential for in-combination effects 

The JCS outlines the need for housing of 34,900 net additional dwellings over the plan period 2011-31. 
Policy 28 sets out the distribution of these dwellings between districts - with Kettering Borough to absorb 
10,400 dwellings and Wellingborough 7,000. 

One of the most significant proposals is for the sustainable urban extension with around 2,500 homes to 
the East of Rushden.  

Reference to European sites 

The JCS references the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site as a significant and protected 
environmental asset. The JCS requires that any new residential development proposed within 3km of the 
designated site where schemes involve a net gain in residential units. If mitigation measures cannot be 
identified, the development will not be permitted.  

Policy 4 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity) requires that the plan will protect the designated site from 
unacceptable levels of access and managing pressures for access to and disturbance of sensitive habitats. 
It also requires that any developments likely to have an adverse impact, either alone or in combination, 
on the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site or other designated site must satisfy HRA 
requirements. Mitigation strategies may involve contributing to: access and visitor management 
measures within the SPA; improvement of existing greenspace and recreational routes; or the monitoring 
of impacts of new development on the European sites to inform future measures.  

908



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

60 March 2019 

PART 2 LOCAL PLANS  

South Northamptonshire Part 2 Local Plan 

Status 

Emerging. Public consultation on the Draft Plan concluded in November 2018 and the Plan went to 
Examination in January 2019. Adoption is projected for late 2019. South Northamptonshire falls within 
the West Northamptonshire region and borders the southern half of Northampton Borough. 

Types of development with the potential for in-combination effects 

The Draft Plan provides for 11,020 net additional dwellings over the plan period for 2011-2029, reflecting 
the provisions in Policy S3 of the West Northamptonshire JCS. However South Northamptonshire carried 
out their own Housing Needs Assessment in line with the revised NPPF (2018), giving a lower ‘housing 
need’ figure of 6,320.  

The distribution of housing provision allocates new dwellings relatively evenly – 2,160 in Brackley; 2,650 
in Towcester town; 2,360 in the South Northamptonshire rural area; and 3,850 in the Northampton 
Related Development Area (NRDA).  

Reference to European sites 

In line with the overarching JCS Policy BN4, Policy NE1 (Upper Nene Gravel Pits Special Protection Area) 
requires that any new development within a 3km zone of the SPA must undertake an assessment 
regarding adverse effects on the integrity of the SPA.  

The LPA will also prepare a Mitigation Strategy Document concerning the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
SPA and Ramsar site within 12 months of the adoption of the plan.  

The local authority has adopted the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD). 

Daventry District Settlements and Countryside (Part 2) Local Plan 

Status 

Emerging. Consultation on the Draft Plan concluded in October 2018 and the Plan was submitted to the 
Secretary of State in December 2018. According to the Local Development Scheme, the Part 2 Local Plan 
is projected for adoption in July 2019. Daventry District falls within the West Northamptonshire region 
and borders the northern half of Northampton Borough. 

Types of development with the potential for in-combination effects 

Policy S3 of the West Northamptonshire JCS sets out that over 2011-2029, 12,730 net additional 
dwellings will be delivered in Daventry District, with Daventry town accounting for 4,620 dwellings. As of 
April 2018, 2,581 dwellings had been delivered against this requirement, with the majority in rural areas. 

Reference to European sites 

Policy ENV4 (Green Infrastructure) does not directly reference the SPA. However, it requires that 
proposals will be supported that would contribute to the aims and objectives of the Nene Valley Nature 
Improvement Area project on habitat restoration, creation and connectivity.  

The Plan for the Borough of Wellingborough (PBW)  

Status 

Adopted February 2019. The Plan is now formally part of the Development plan forming Part 2 of the 
Local Plan for the borough. This Part 2 Plan fully supersedes the policies in the Town Centre Area Action 
Plan (2009) and saved policies from Borough of Wellingborough Local Plan (1999-2004).Wellingborough 
falls within the North Northamptonshire region and borders the west of Northampton Borough. 

Types of development with the potential for in-combination effects 

Policy 28 the North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (JCS) allocates 7,000 net additional dwellings 

909



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

61 March 2019 

to Wellingborough over the plan period of 2011-31. The Draft Plan for Wellingborough reaffirms that, 
detailing that the majority of these will be provided in the Growth Town of Wellingborough (5,750), with 
the remainder distributed across villages. 

Reference to European sites 

The Plan recognises that the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site lies in close proximity to 
several sites allocated in the Plan, and requires that mitigation measures are carried out in respect of 
potential recreation pressures, in accordance with Policy 4 of the North Northamptonshire JCS. In 
particular Policy Site 1 (Wellingborough East) requires that proposals must ensure that there is no 
adverse impact either alone or in combination on the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site, 
which may involve providing alternative accessible greenspace within the development, or access and 
visitor management measures within the SPA.  

The local authority has adopted the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD). 

NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANS 

Duston Neighbourhood Plan 

 
The Duston Neighbourhood Plan was ‘made’ in December 2015, following examination in May 2015 and a 
successful referendum in November 2015. The plan covers the area corresponding to Duston Parish, a 
north-west suburb of Northampton with a population of around 15,000 (2011). The plan’s housing 
provision is in line with the Joint Core Strategy. 
  

Spring Boroughs Neighbourhood Plan  

The Spring Boroughs Neighbourhood Plan was ‘made’ in April 2016, following examination in September 
2015 and a successful referendum in March 2016. The plan covers an area within central Northampton 
adjacent to the town centre and within the Castle Walls. The plan’s housing provision is in line with the 
Joint Core Strategy. 

Growing Together Neighbourhood Plan 

The Growing Together Neighbourhood Plan was ‘made’ in April 2017, following examination in November 
2016 and a successful referendum in February 2017. The plan covers the communities of Blackthorn, 
Cherry Lodge, Goldings, Lings, Lingswood Park, Lumbertubs and Overstone Lodge – which lies to the 
north-east of Northampton town centre. The plan permits small scale residential development (1-9 
dwellings). 

OTHER PLANS 

Anglian Water - Water Resource Management Plan 2015 / Water Resources Management Plan  
Revised Draft (2019) 

Status 

The WRMP 2015 sets out how Anglia Water plan to maintain the water supply-demand balance from 
2015-2040.  

The 2019 WRMP is currently in draft version, following public consultation in March-June 2018. It 
presents the Preferred Plan of Anglia Water.  

Types of development with the potential for in-combination effects 

The 2015 plan develops a number of feasible options for maintaining the supply-demand balance in the 
region. Key features include: demand management in all Water Resource Zones (WRZs), a river 
augmentation scheme, the transfer of resources from areas of surplus to areas of deficit, the selection of 
a trading option, and the deferral of resource development to the end of the forecast period (including 
water reuse schemes and the recommissioning of a reservoir).  

The priority of the 2019 plan is demand management, supported by targeted supply-side investment. It 
also promotes transfers across the region from areas of surplus to areas of deficit.  It plans to deliver 

910



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

62 March 2019 

environmental benefits by reducing abstraction from the environment and ensuring no deterioration in 
the ecological status of water bodies. The Ruthamford North WRZ is designated for a new pumping 
station and new potable water transfer to the South Fenland RZ. 

Reference to European sites 

The plans recognise that the region is home to a significant proportion of wetland sites or conservation 
interest. Rutland Water is an Anglian Water reservoir, and the River Nene is one of the watercourses that 
feeds Rutland Water and Pitsford reservoir. 

Northamptonshire Transportation Plan (2012) 
Status 

The Northamptonshire Transportation Plan was adopted in 2012. 

Types of development with the potential for in-combination effects 

The plan aligns with the statutory West and North Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategies. It is the 
overarching transport plan that sets out strategic aims and goals for the region, and is accompanied by a 
number of daughter documents on specific modes and areas, including Northampton Town Transport 
Strategy (2013); and thematic strategies for bus, rail, cycling, walking, major roads, highway 
development, parking, and road freight. 

The Joint Core Strategy and Transportation Plan between them define the transport schemes for 
Northampton. 

Reference to European sites 

Strategic Policy 25 states that ‘we will avoid or minimise harmful effects on the natural and historic 
environment when planning and designing new transport infrastructure schemes’. Strategic Policy 22 (on 
reducing the impact of motor vehicles) further states that any proposals that would significantly harm a 
European site would not be supported by the strategy.  

Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (2017) 
Status 

The Northamptonshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan was adopted in 2017 as an updated version of the 
previously adopted 2014 plan. 

Types of development with the potential for in-combination effects 

The plan provides the basis for determining planning applications for waste and minerals-related 
development in Northamptonshire, and allocates specific sites for waste and minerals development. 

Minerals development can include the extraction of primary aggregates and the use of secondary (e.g. 
recycled) aggregates.  

Waste development can include the collection, processing and disposal of waste, including hazardous 
waste.   

Reference to European sites 

The plan states: 

“As the former gravel pits in the Nene Valley are now designated as a site of European importance in 
relation to birds (Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA), it is important that further extraction from 
allocated sites in this valley will not lead to adverse effects on the integrity of this designation. Potential 
sites were subject to HRA through the plan-making process. The planning application for mineral 
extraction at the Earls Barton West extension (M4) site will be required to undergo further HRA to ensure 
that development would not adversely affect the integrity of the SPA sites.” 

and 

“Waste management facilities involving advanced treatment often include some form of emission stack 
(chimney) and increasingly feature the use of lighting for the joint purpose of security and visual interest, 
and may include the use of reflective surfaces as a design feature. This is particularly important in 
Northamptonshire given the presence of military flight paths and large numbers of migratory birds. The 
presence of tall structures (particularly where involving atmospheric emissions) or reflective surfaces 

911



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

63 March 2019 

under flight paths may present air safety risks. Proposals for development surrounding areas known to be 
of importance for migratory bird species (e.g. the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and associated 
habitats) should also consider the potential for building bird strike resulting from tall structures and 
reflective surfaces. It is therefore important to highlight the need for consideration of such matters during 
the formative stages of proposal research and design.” 

 

 

912



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

64 March 2019 

Appendix 3  
Scoping matrix 
The matrix below shows which types of impacts on European sites could potentially result from each of the policies and sites allocated in the Local Plan. 
Where a site is not expected to have a particular type of impact, the relevant cell is shaded green.  Where a site could potentially have a certain type of 
impact, this is shown in orange. The final column sets out the nature of potential significant effects if they were to arise. Where uncertain or likely significant 
effects are identified, these are considered further in Chapter 5 Appropriate Assessment. 

 
 

Likely activities 
(operation) to result as a 
consequence of the 
proposal 

Potential effects if 
proposal 
implemented 

Does the policy or site allocation need to be scoped into the 
Appropriate Assessment? 

Policy 1: Presumption in favour of 
sustainable development 

None – this policy describes 
the overall strategy for 
development within the 
Borough but will not itself 
result in new development. 

None No 

Policy 2: Place making None – this policy sets out 
design principles for 
development but will not 
itself result in new 
development. 

None No 

This policy states that development should contribute to good place making by 

 “Sustaining, protecting and enhancing heritage and natural environment 
assets, including prospective non-designated assets and setting and those 
included on Local Lists as well as those already statutorily protected. 
Additionally future development must not leave these assets vulnerable to risk 
and, wherever possible, should promote the use, understanding and enjoyment 
of the historic and natural environments as an integral part of good 
placemaking.” 

This could provide some mitigation for impacts on European sites. 

Policy 3: Design None – this policy sets out 
design principles for 
development but will not 
itself result in new 
development. 

None No 

Policy 4: Amenity and layout None – this policy will not 
result in new development.  

None No 

Policy 5: Sustainable construction None – this policy will not 
result in new development.  

None No 

This policy requires residential development to achieve a water efficiency 
standard of 110l per person per day (Building Regulations Part G2). This could 
provide mitigation for effects due to changes in water level (e.g. abstraction to 

913



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

65 March 2019 

 
 

Likely activities 
(operation) to result as a 
consequence of the 
proposal 

Potential effects if 
proposal 
implemented 

Does the policy or site allocation need to be scoped into the 
Appropriate Assessment? 

meet demand for water). 

Policy 6: Flood risk and water 
management 

None – this policy will not 
result in new development.  

None No 

Supports proposals that comply with standards for surface water and could 
therefore provide mitigation for water quality effects. Water quality standards 
are set locally in Northamptonshire County Council’s Local Standards and 
Guidance for Surface Water Drainage in Northamptonshire. 

Policy 7: Supporting Northampton 
town centre 
 

Retail, leisure and 
employment development  

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

 

Yes 

This policy permits development within the town centre (i.e.changes of use, 
redevelopment, or brownfield development). Although likely to be small-scale, 
development could contribute to a change in the number of vehicle trips to the 
town centre (and therefore air pollution) and water demand / discharge. 

Policy 8: Regeneration opportunities 
 

Residential and mixed use 
development 

Changes in population 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Recreation pressure 

Pet predation 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

Non-physical 
disturbance 

Loss of supporting 
habitat 

Fragmentation 

Loss of bird 
sightlines 

Yes 

This policy encourages the regeneration of sites within the town centre and 
wider central area, for housing and mixed use development. Residential 
development could increase the demand for greenspace for recreation, traffic 
(and air pollution), and water demand / discharge. 

Depending on the location of the sites, there is also the potential for the loss of 
supporting habitat or fragmentation (if on or near greenspace/waterbodies); or 
non-physical disturbance (noise / light), pet predation or loss of bird sightlines 
if the sites are close to a European site (i.e.in the southeast corner of the 
Central Area). 

The policy refers to some named sites, but also enables development on other, 
as yet unidentified sites. The quantum of housing provided by allocated sites 
named in this policy has been assessed under Policy 12, and employment 
under Policy 33. The potential for regeneration development outside of these 
allocated sites is assessed under this policy. 

Policy 9: Supporting and 
safeguarding the University of 
Northampton Waterside Campus 
 

Education development 

Potential changes in 
population 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Recreation pressure 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

Yes 

This policy permits the enhancement of University facilities and improvements 
in connectivity to the town. If the development accommodates an increase in 
student / staff numbers or significantly alters the mix of uses at the site, it 
could increase traffic (air pollution), water demand / discharge and trips to 
local greenspace. 

Policy 10: Managing hotel growth 
 

Hotel development Recreation pressure Yes 

914



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

66 March 2019 

 
 

Likely activities 
(operation) to result as a 
consequence of the 
proposal 

Potential effects if 
proposal 
implemented 

Does the policy or site allocation need to be scoped into the 
Appropriate Assessment? 

Changes in visiting 
population 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

This policy permits new hotels within the town centre and Enterprise Zone. 
New hotels could increase traffic (air pollution), water demand / discharge, and 
trips to local greenspace. 

Policy 11: Development of main 
town centre uses 
 

Residential and mixed use 
development 

Changes in population 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Recreation pressure 

Pet predation 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

Physical habitat loss 
/ damage 

Non-physical 
disturbance 

Loss of supporting 
habitat 

Fragmentation 

Loss of bird 
sightlines 

Yes 

This policy is similar to Policy 8, but permits the regeneration of sites beyond 
the town centre and central area, for housing and mixed use development. 
Residential development could increase the demand for greenspace for 
recreation, traffic (air pollution), and water demand / discharge. Depending on 
the location of the sites, there is also the potential for physical habitat loss / 
damage; the loss of supporting habitat or fragmentation (if on or near 
greenspace/waterbodies); or non-physical disturbance (noise / light), pet 
predation or loss of bird sightlines if the sites are close to a European site. 

Policy 12: Housing and other 
housing-led allocation 
 
(4,749 new homes at 84 allocated 
sites – see Appendix 4)  
 

Residential and mixed-use 
development  

Changes in population 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Recreation pressure 

Pet predation 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

Physical habitat loss 
/ damage 

Non-physical 
disturbance 

Loss of supporting 
habitat 

Yes 

This policy permits housing and associated mixed use development at 80 
allocated sites. Some of those sites also have site-specific development policies 
(Policies 34-38); however the number of homes they are allocated for is 
assessed under this policy. 

Residential development could increase the demand for greenspace for 
recreation, traffic (air pollution), and water demand / discharge. Depending on 
the location of the sites, there is also the potential for physical habitat loss / 
damage; the loss of supporting habitat or fragmentation (if on or near 
greenspace/waterbodies); or non-physical disturbance (noise / light), pet 
predation or loss of bird sightlines if the sites are close to a European site. 

915



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

67 March 2019 

 
 

Likely activities 
(operation) to result as a 
consequence of the 
proposal 

Potential effects if 
proposal 
implemented 

Does the policy or site allocation need to be scoped into the 
Appropriate Assessment? 

Fragmentation 

Loss of bird 
sightlines 

Policy 13: Type and mix of housing 
 

None – this policy sets out 
the preferred housing mix 
but will not itself result in 
new development.  

 

None No 

Policy 14: Delivering houses in 
multiple occupation 
 

Changes in population 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Recreation pressure 

Pet predation 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

 

Yes 

This policy permits dwellings to be converted into houses of multiple occupancy 
and therefore increases the occupation density of residences in the town. 
Although likely to be small-scale, the increase in population could contribute to 
an increase in the demand for greenspace for recreation, traffic (air pollution), 
and water demand / discharge. Depending on the location of the properties, 
there is also the potential for increase in pet predation, if close to a European 
site. 

Policy 15: Safeguarding existing 
employment sites 
 

Non-employment 
development 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

Non-physical 
disturbance 

Loss of supporting 
habitat 

Fragmentation 

 

Yes 

This policy safeguards existing employment sites, but permits changes of use 
to non-employment uses if employment use is no longer viable. If the 
development significantly alters the number of vehicle trips to the site or the 
mix of uses at the site, it could increase traffic (air pollution) and water 
demand / discharge.  

Depending on the location of the sites, there is also the potential for the loss of 
supporting habitat or fragmentation (if on or near greenspace/waterbodies); or 
non-physical disturbance (noise / light) if the sites are close to a European site. 

Policy 16: Supporting new 
employment developments and 
schemes within and outside 
safeguarded sites 
 

Employment development 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

Non-physical 
disturbance 

Loss of supporting 
habitat 

Yes 

This policy permits development within existing employment sites. If the 
development significantly alters the number of vehicle trips to the site or the 
mix of uses at the site, it could increase traffic (air pollution) and water 
demand / discharge. 

Depending on the location of the sites, there is also the potential for the loss of 
supporting habitat or fragmentation (if on or near greenspace/waterbodies); or 
non-physical disturbance (noise / light) or loss of bird sightlines if the sites are 

916



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

68 March 2019 

 
 

Likely activities 
(operation) to result as a 
consequence of the 
proposal 

Potential effects if 
proposal 
implemented 

Does the policy or site allocation need to be scoped into the 
Appropriate Assessment? 

Fragmentation 

Loss of bird 
sightlines 

close to a European site. 

Policy 17: New retail developments 
and retail impact assessment 
 
[7,000-8,900 sqm convenience 
retail and 5,300-7,300 sqm 
convenience]  
 
 

Retail development  

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

Physical habitat loss 
/ damage 

Non-physical 
disturbance 

Loss of supporting 
habitat 

Fragmentation 

Loss of bird 
sightlines 

Yes 

This policy permits retail development in the Primary Shopping Area, town 
centre, edge-of-centre sites and some out-of-centre sites. These could change 
the number of vehicle trips (air pollution) and alter water demand / discharge.  

Depending on the location of the sites, there is also the potential for physical 
habitat loss / damage; the loss of supporting habitat or fragmentation (if on or 
near greenspace/waterbodies); or non-physical disturbance (noise / light) or 
loss of bird sightlines if the sites are close to a European site. 

Policy 18: Residential development 
on upper floors 
 

Changes in population 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Recreation pressure 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

 

Yes 

This policy permits the upper floors of shops to be converted into dwellings and 
therefore increases the resident population in the town centre. Although likely 
to be small-scale, the increase in population could contribute to an increase in 
the demand for greenspace for recreation, traffic (air pollution), and water 
demand / discharge.  

Policy 19: Neighbourhood centres 
 

None – this policy sets 
principles for development in 
proximity to neighbourhood 
retail, but will not itself 
result in new development.  

None No 

Policy 20: Community services and 
facilities 
 

Community development 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

Physical habitat loss 
/ damage 

Non-physical 

Yes 

This policy permits new or extended community facilities. Although likely to be 
small-scale, development could contribute to a change in the number of vehicle 
trips (air pollution) and water demand / discharge.  

Depending on the location of the sites, there is also the potential for physical 
habitat loss / damage; the loss of supporting habitat or fragmentation (if on or 
near greenspace/waterbodies); or non-physical disturbance (noise / light) or 

917



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

69 March 2019 

 
 

Likely activities 
(operation) to result as a 
consequence of the 
proposal 

Potential effects if 
proposal 
implemented 

Does the policy or site allocation need to be scoped into the 
Appropriate Assessment? 

disturbance 

Loss of supporting 
habitat 

Fragmentation 

Loss of bird 
sightlines 

loss of bird sightlines if the sites are close to a European site. 

Policy 21: Childcare provision  
 

None – this policy will not 
result in new development. 

None No 

Policy 22: Sites for burial space 
  

Extension of existing burial 
sites 

Loss of supporting 
habitat 

Yes 

If the land adjacent to the two existing burial sites is used by species from 
either European site, then their extension could result in the loss of supporting 
habitat or fragmentation.  

The policy recognises that burial spaces can provide greenspace or ecological 
enhancement, which could contribute to mitigation for recreation impacts on 
European sites. 

Policy 23: Sustaining and enhancing 
existing, and supporting the 
creation of, Northampton’s green 
infrastructure 
 

None – this policy will not 
result in new development.  

 

None No 

This policy states that “Development of 15 dwellings or more will deliver and / 
or contribute to a net gain of green infrastructure in accordance with the Best 
Practice Principles, Aims and Objectives set out in the Northampton Green 
Infrastructure Plan (or subsequent updated documents). Development 
proposals will demonstrate through context and design how they make a 
positive contribution to the Green Infrastructure Components”; and “Major 
applications must be accompanied by a site specific green infrastructure 
strategy and /or  plan to illustrate how GI is integrated within the development 
proposal and seeks to improve connectivity to the Local Level Green 
Infrastructure network beyond the boundary.” 

This could provide mitigation for recreation impacts on European sites. 

Policy 24: Providing open spaces 
 

None – this policy will not 
result in new development.  

 

None No 

This policy sets standards for greenspace provision, including 1.8ha of natural 
and semi-natural green space per 1,000 population, within a 720m walk (or 
800m walk for sites over 2ha).  

This could provide mitigation for recreation impacts on European sites. 

Policy 25: Supporting and enhancing 
biodiversity 

None – this policy will not None No 

918



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

70 March 2019 

 
 

Likely activities 
(operation) to result as a 
consequence of the 
proposal 

Potential effects if 
proposal 
implemented 

Does the policy or site allocation need to be scoped into the 
Appropriate Assessment? 

 result in new development. This policy requires proposals to “conserve, enhance and increase the net gain 
for biodiversity. In particular, the Council will seek the protection or 
enhancement of wildlife sites that are in areas which are… of national or 
international importance, specifically the Site of Special Interest, Special 
Protection Area and Ramsar site at the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits.”   

Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel 
Pits Special Protection Area 

None – this policy will not 
result in new development 

None No 

This policy requires that “all new development proposals within 3km of the 
Special Protection Area must demonstrate, where necessary through a series of 
mitigation measures, that their proposals will not contribute to the disturbance 
and subsequent decline of the bird species for which the site is designated”. 
This will provide mitigation for recreation and disturbance impacts on the Upper 
Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA. 

Policy 27: Protection and 
enhancements of designated and 
non-designated heritage assets 
 

None – this policy will not 
result in new development.  

 

None No 

Policy 28: Designing sustainable 
transport and travel  
 

Sustainable transport 
infrastructure 

None No 

This policy sets out the requirement for developments to reduce the 
requirement for car use by providing infrastructure and high quality design that 
encourages public transport use, walking and cycling.  

This could provide mitigation for air pollution impacts on European sites. 

Policy 29: Highway network and 
safety 
 

None – this policy will not 
result in new development.  

 

None No 

This policy requires developments to have no potentially adverse impacts on 
the local and/or strategic transport network that cannot be mitigated; and 
requires major developments applications to be accompanied by a Transport 
Assessment.  

This could contribute to mitigation for air pollution impacts on European sites. 

Policy 30: Transport schemes and 
mitigation 
 

None – this policy sets out 
the requirement for 
developer contributions to 
transport schemes and 
council safeguarding of land 
for transport, but will not 
itself result in new 
development. 

None No 

919



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

71 March 2019 

 
 

Likely activities 
(operation) to result as a 
consequence of the 
proposal 

Potential effects if 
proposal 
implemented 

Does the policy or site allocation need to be scoped into the 
Appropriate Assessment? 

Policy 31: Parking standards  
 

None – this policy will not 
result in new development.  

None No 

Policy 32: Infrastructure delivery 
and contributions 
 

None – this policy sets out 
the requirement for 
developer contributions to 
new infrastructure, but will 
not itself result in new 
development. 

None No 

Policy 33: Development allocations 
 
(92 site allocations - see Appendix 
4. 80 are for housing / housing-led 
development and assessed under 
Policy 12. The remaining 11 are 
allocated for non-residential 
development.) 
 

Employment / mixed use 
(non-residential) 
development 

Changes in population 

Changes in vehicle traffic  

Changes to water demand 
and discharge 

Air pollution 

Changes to water 
levels and/or quality 

Non-physical 
disturbance 

Loss of supporting 
habitat 

Fragmentation 

Loss of bird 
sightlines 

Yes 

This policy identifies all of the sites allocated for either housing-led or 
employment development; however, housing allocations have been assessed 
under Policy 12. Only the employment developments (including the non-
residential aspects of the housing-led schemes) have been assessed under this 
policy. Employment development could result in increased traffic (air pollution) 
and water demand / discharge.  

Depending on the location of the sites, there is also the potential for the loss of 
supporting habitat or fragmentation (if on or near greenspace/waterbodies); or 
non-physical disturbance (noise / light) or loss of bird sightlines if the sites are 
close to a European site. 

Policy 34: Northampton Railway 
Station (LAA0288), Railfreight and 
adjoining sites (LAA0333) 
 
(at least 200 homes, see Policy 12; 
mixed uses, see Policy 33) 

None – this policy sets 
design principles for the 
development of the site but 
will not itself result in new 
development (beyond that 
allocated in Policies 12 and 
8). 

n/a No 

The quantum of development brought forward at this mixed use development 
is assessed under Policy 12 (new homes) and Policy 33 (other new 
development at allocated sites). 

Policy 35: Martin’s Yard Extension 
(LAA1005) 

None – this policy sets 
design principles for the 
development of the site but 
will not itself result in new 
development (beyond that 
allocated in Policy 33). 

n/a No 

The quantum of development brought forward at this employment 
development is assessed under Policy 33. 

Policy 36: The Green, Great 
Houghton (LAA1098) 
 
(800 homes, see Policy 12) 

None – this policy sets 
design principles for the 
development of the site but 
will not itself result in new 
development (beyond that 

n/a No 

The quantum of development brought forward at this housing-led development 
is assessed under Policy 12. 

920



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

72 March 2019 

 
 

Likely activities 
(operation) to result as a 
consequence of the 
proposal 

Potential effects if 
proposal 
implemented 

Does the policy or site allocation need to be scoped into the 
Appropriate Assessment? 

allocated in Policy 12). 

Policy 37: Greyfriars 
 
(up to 261 homes, see Policy 12; 
mixed uses, see Policy 33) 
 

None – this policy sets 
design principles for the 
development of the site but 
will not itself result in new 
development (beyond that 
allocated in Policies 12 and 
permitted by Policy 33). 

n/a No 

The quantum of development brought forward at this housing-led development 
is assessed under Policy 12 (new homes) and Policy 33 (other new 
development at allocated sites). 

Policy 38: Ransome Road 
 
(up to 250 homes, assessed under 
Policy 12) 

None – this policy sets 
design principles for the 
development of the site but 
will not itself result in new 
development (beyond that 
allocated in Policy 12). 

n/a No 

The quantum of development brought forward at this housing-led development 
is assessed under Policy 12. 

921



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

73 March 2019 

Appendix 4   
Allocated sites assessed in the HRA 
 

Site reference Site name Residential Commercial 

LAA0167 Tanner Street  ● 

LAA0168 Rowtree Road ●  

LAA0171 Quinton Road ●  

LAA0174 Ransome Road Gateway ●  

LAA0180 St James Road (former bus depot)  ● 

LAA0195 Hunsbury School, Hunsbury Hill ●  

LAA0205 Parklands Middle School, Devon Way ●  

LAA0208 Swan Valley Gateway  ● 

LAA0288 Railway Station car park ● ● 

LAA0328 Cattle Market Road ●  

LAA0333 Castle Station Railfreight ● ● 

LAA0335 Great Russell Street / Chronicle & Echo North ● ● 

LAA0336 Chronicle & Echo South ● ● 

LAA0338 Countess Road ●  

LAA0403 Allotments, Studland Rd ●  

LAA0496 57 Artizan Road ●  

LAA0508 Fishponds Road ●  

LAA0590 Nationwide Building Society (adjacent car park)  ● 

LAA0594 Sixfields East ● ● 

LAA0598 Car park, Victoria Street  ● 

LAA0629 British Timken site ● ● 

LAA0657 Fraser Road ●  

LAA0666 171-180 St Andrews Road ●  

LAA0672 Tunnel Hill Cottages, Rothersthorpe Road ●  

LAA0685 Adj. 12 Pennycress Road ●  

LAA0719 Car garages workshops, 409 Harlestone Road ●  

LAA0720 Ryland Sans Ford garage, Harlestone Road ●  

LAA0814 32 Great Russell Street ●  

LAA0818 St Peter's Way  ● 

LAA0870 Sixfields, Upton Way  ● 

LAA0903 Hawkins Shoe Factory, Overstone Road ●  

LAA0910 379 Harlestone Road ●  

LAA0915 118-122 Wellingborough Road ● ● 

LAA0931 Sites in Green Street  ● 

LAA0932 Southbridge Site 1 ●  

LAA0933 Southbridge Site 2 ●  

LAA1001 Former Emmanuel Middle School ●  

LAA1005 Land north of Martins Yard, Spencer Bridge Road  ● 

922



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

74 March 2019 

Site reference Site name Residential Commercial 

LAA1006 Pineham ●  

LAA1007 Land south of Wooldale Road, east of Wootton Road ●  

LAA1009 Land west of Policy N5 Northampton South SUE ●  

LAA1010 Land at St Peter's Way/ Court Road/ Freeschool Street ● ● 

LAA1013 University of Northampton, Park Campus ●  

LAA1014 University of Northampton, Avenue Campus ●  

LAA1022 Belgrave House  ●  

LAA1025 Land to the west of Towester Road ●  

LAA1026 Eastern Land parcel ●  

LAA1034 Witham Way garage site ●  

LAA1035 West Oval garage site ●  

LAA1036 Derwent Drive garage site ●  

LAA1037 Swale Drive garage site and rear/ unused land ●  

LAA1041 Newnham Road ●  

LAA1048 Stenson Street ●  

LAA1049 Land off Arbour Court ●  

LAA1051a Waterpump Court and Billing Brook Road  ●  

LAA1051b Land between Waterpump Court and Billing Brook Road ●  

LAA1052 Coverack Close, rear of garages ●  

LAA1058 Land off Oat Hill Drive ●  

LAA1060 Hayeswood Road ●  

LAA1068 The Briars garage site ●  

LAA1069 Farmclose Road garage site ●  

LAA1071 Medway Drive (rear of Medway Close) ●  

LAA1086a Cosgrove Road ●  

LAA1086b Chalcombe Avenue ●  

LAA1094 Land off Holmecross Road ●  

LAA1096 Land off Mill Lane ●  

LAA1097 Gate Lodge ●  

LAA1098 The Green, Great Houghton ●  

LAA1099 Upton Park (Upton Reserve Site) ●  

LAA1100 Hill Farm Rise ●  

LAA1101 Land at Waterside Way  ● 

LAA1102 Site east of Towcester Road ●  

LAA1104 Watering Lane ●  

LAA1107 Former Abington Mill Farm, land off Rushmere Road  ●  

LAA1108 Horsley Road ●  

LAA1109 Mill Lane ●  

LAA1112 Milton Ham  ● 

LAA1113 Greyfriars ● ● 

LAA1114 Cedarwood Nursing Home, 492 Kettering Road ●  

LAA1116 194-200 Kingsthorpe Grove ●  

LAA1117 133 Queens Park Terrace ●  

923



 
 Northampton Local Plan Part 2 
Habitats Regulations Assessment 

75 March 2019 

Site reference Site name Residential Commercial 

LAA1118 135 Harlestone Road ●  

LAA1119 Silver Coronet, Welland Way ●  

LAA1121 Upton Valley Way East ●  

LAA1123 83 - 103 Trinity Avenue ●  

LAA1124 41-43 Derngate ] ●  

LAA1126 5 Primrose Hill ●  

LAA1127 32 Connaught Street ●  

LAA1131 The Leys Close, 39 Mill Lane ●  

LAA1133 Eastern District Social Club, Crestwood Road ●  

LAA1134 St John’s Railway Embankment ● ● 

LAA1137 Land at Wootton Fields ●  

LAA1138 Land south of Bedford Road/ north of sports ground ●  

LAA1139 Ransome Road  ●  

LAA1140 Land north of Milton Ham ●  

 

 

924



NORTHAMPTON LOCAL PLAN PART 2
HOUSING TECHNICAL PAPER

Northampton Borough Council

925



1 INTRODUCTION

Northampton Borough Council is preparing a Local Plan Part 2.  It will contain 
development management policies and site allocations, and will conform to the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1 - adopted 2014).  

In investigating sites for allocation in the local plan, it was concluded that the Council 
would not be able to meet the housing trajectory as required by the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, particularly for the first five years of the local 
plan period.  In addition, the Council was unable to identify a 20% buffer for 
persistently under-delivery, to accord with Government guidance.  

The objectives of this housing technical paper are as follows:

 To demonstrate that the Council is able to deliver the housing requirement set 
out in the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy

 To justify why the Council needs to re-profile its trajectory in order to meet the 
housing requirement across the plan period

 To explain how the buffer can be met across the latter part of the plan period 

2 PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

The National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) maintains the requirement 
for local planning authorities to identify a sufficient supply and mix of sites, including 
those for housing.  Local plans should contain policies which identify a supply of 
specific, deliverable site for years one to five of the plan period.  

Policy S3 (Scale and distribution of housing development) of the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy requires the delivery of about 18,870 houses 
in Northampton, between 2011 and 2029.  Reference is not made in this policy to a 
rate of delivery over the plan period.  About 8,000 of these dwellings are expected to 
be provided in the five Sustainable Urban Extensions within Northampton Borough.  

Appendix 3 of the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) provides a proposed trajectory for the 
delivery of housing in Northampton, which is shown in Table 1.

Table 1: West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy proposed housing 
delivery trajectory for Northampton

2011/ 
12

2012/ 
13

2013/ 
14

2014/ 
15

2015/ 
16

2016/ 
17

2017/ 
18

2018/ 
19

2019/ 
20

2020/ 
21

423 516 785 1039 1139 1292 1426 1544 1588 1491

2021/ 
22

2022/ 
23

2023/ 
24

2024/ 
25

2025/ 
26

2026/ 
27

2027/ 
28

2028/ 
29

1355 1278 1025 900 875 815 695 694

926



The profile of the delivery trajectory was heavily influenced by economic conditions 
and intelligence available at the time the JCS was written.  The first three years’ 
figures were, in fact, the numbers of dwellings completed in those three years.  
Subsequent years’ figures were then estimated taking into account information 
provided by developers and making assumptions about the rate of recovery in the 
housing market following the economic crash of 2008.  This has resulted in a 
trajectory that envisages delivery in excess of 1,000 dwellings per year from 2014/15 
to 2023/24 and peaks in 2019/20 with an annual delivery rate of 1,588 completions.  
It was acknowledged in paragraph 4.5 of the Second Update of the Housing 
Technical Paper for the JCS1 that, for the whole of West Northamptonshire, the new 
housing trajectory was going to require a much higher rate of annual completions 
than had ever been delivered before.

 

3 NORTHAMPTON LOCAL PLAN PART 2

Northampton Borough Council has undertaken the following stages of the local plan 
preparation:

 Issues Consultation (April 2016) which included the invitation for Call for Sites
 Options Consultation (October 2016) which provided options for the direction 

the local plan policies should take
 Sites Consultation (September 2017) which sought to gather views on sites 

which the Council intends to investigate further for site allocations

Key to the above is the need to identify a sufficient supply of sites to deliver the 
number of houses required, with the appropriate buffer.                                     
   
4 NORTHAMPTON’S FIVE YEAR HOUSING LAND SUPPLY

Northampton’s Five Year Housing Land Supply Assessment for April 2018 shows 
that 5,139 dwellings have been completed between 2011 and 2018 (see Table 2).  
This is 1,474 dwellings below the delivery trajectory set out in the JCS for the same 
period as Northampton has under-delivered against the JCS target over the last four 
years.  To accord with the NPPF, it was necessary to add a buffer of 20% to supply 
of deliverable sites.

Table 2: Summary of Five Year Supply of Deliverable Housing for Northampton 
Borough against the adopted West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy

DWELLINGS
A JCS Housing Supply Requirement for 2018 – 

2023
7,256

B NPPF 5 year housing requirement (JCS + 20%) 8,707

1 West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Housing Technical Paper Second Update – To Inform Main 
Modifications and Additional Work Requested by the Inspector, West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit, 
December 2013 - http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=11253189 

927

http://www.westnorthamptonshirejpu.org/connect.ti/website/view?objectId=11253189


C JCS Housing Requirement 2011 – 2018 6,613
D Net additional dwellings completed 2011-2018 5,139

E Shortfall of provision compared to 2011-2018 
target

1,474

F NPPF 5 year supply target taking into account of 
shortfall provision (B+E)

10,181

G Supply of deliverable sites (planning approvals, 
windfalls and allocations)

5,334

H % of 5 year housing supply available (G/F * 100) 52.39%

YEARS
I Years of deliverable housing land 2018 – 2023 

(H/100 * 5)
2.62

Northampton Borough Council undertook a Call for Sites exercise in 2016 and 
prepared a Land Availability Assessment in 2017.  The potential of over 500 sites 
was initially investigated.  Around 200 of these sites were investigated further with a 
view to allocation in the Local Plan.  In addition, historic windfall delivery rates were 
reviewed and used for inclusion in the Local Plan Part 2.  It was concluded that 
whilst there were enough sites to meet the housing requirement over the plan period, 
it had not been possible to identify enough sites to meet the delivery shortfall from 
2014 to 2018, or to provide the 20% buffer.

The housing commitments for the remaining Sustainable Urban Extensions (SUEs) 
are summarised as follows:

Table 3: Housing commitments for the Sustainable Urban Extensions

SUE name Dwellings 
completed as at 
01 April 2018

Remaining 
capacity to 2029 
as at 01 April 2029

Remaining 
capacity forecast 
to be delivered 
after 01 April 2029

N5 (Northampton 
South)

0 950 50

N6 (Northampton 
South of 
Brackmills)

0 1,100

N7 (Kings Heath) 0 1,997 803
N9 (Upton park) 0 1,000
N9A (Norwood 
Farm/ Upton 
Lodge)

0 2,026 74

7,073 927

928



5 HOUSING DELIVERY TEST 

In 2018, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government introduced a 
new methodology for measuring housing delivery in the area of relevant plan making 
authorities2.  The Housing Delivery Test (HDT) is a percentage measurement of the 
number of net homes delivered against the number of homes required, as set out in 
the relevant strategic policies for the areas covered by the HDT (in this case, the 
West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy), over a rolling three year period.

The first HDT, published in February 2019, concluded that Northampton Borough 
passed the test, achieving 150% of the test’s requirement for 2015 to 2018, and 
therefore, a 20% buffer was no longer required3.  Instead, the Borough is only 
required to identify a 5% buffer for the first 5 years brought forward from later in the 
plan period.

6 NORTHAMPTON’S HOUSING DELIVERY POSITION

a Meeting the requirement of the Joint Core Strategy

In progressing the Local Plan Part 2, the Council has rigorously undertaken a land 
availability assessment.  Sites which were investigated include:

 Sites which were initially considered through the Strategic Housing Land 
Availability Assessment during the preparation of the West Northamptonshire 
Joint Core Strategy

 Sites which were promoted through the Call for Sites exercise for the Local 
Plan Part 2

 Sites which were granted planning permission
 Sites which were promoted outside the consultation period

The methodology was prepared and consulted upon.  This robust methodology, 
which built on the findings of the consultation exercise, was used to assess the sites.  
Over 500 sites were considered.  Sites which have been built or were under 
construction were excluded in the initial sift.  In October 2017, the Council published 
a Sites Consultation document setting out the sites which the Council intended to 
investigate further and the ones which were excluded from further investigation.  

Additional detailed investigations, coupled with the publication of the revision to the  
NPPF in July 2018 which required 10% of allocated sites to be under 1 ha, meant 
that the Council had to review all the sites once more, including the ones it had 
excluded from further investigations.  In determining which sites were considered 
suitable for allocation, there was also a need to exclude some of the small sites for 
windfall purposes, as evidence shows that a substantial proportion of dwellings 
completed in Northampton are on windfall sites.  

2 Housing Delivery Test measurement rulebook (MHCLG, July 2018)

3 HDT 2018 Measurement (MHCLG, February 2019)

929



These detailed investigations concluded that the Council has sufficient supply to 
meet the requirement of 18,870 across the plan period and therefore complies with 
Policy S3 of the adopted West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy.  The Council 
is confident that the approach taken to assessing the availability of sites is 
comprehensive and that there are no other sources of supply that could reasonably 
be considered to be suitable, available or deliverable.

b Northampton’s 5 year housing land supply position

Northampton has persistently under-delivered on its 5 year housing land supply, 
which meant that it was expecting to be required to identify a 20% buffer in its land 
supply.  The initial position was that Northampton was unable to deliver the 20% 
buffer over the first 5 years of the local plan period.

However, Northampton’s position on housing delivery over the next 5 years has 
changed significantly as a result of successfully passing the Housing Delivery Test.  
The buffer requirement of 5% means that Northampton will still face a shortfall for the 
period 2018/19 to 2022/23, although the shortfall is smaller than in previous years.

Table 4: Housing Land Supply 2018/19 – 2022/23

JCS Target 2011/12 – 2017/18 6,613

b) Shortfall 2011/12 – 2017/18 1,474

c) JCS Target 2018/19 – 2022/23 7,256

d) 5% Buffer of JCS Target 2018/19 – 2022/23 363
(T) Overall Target (b + c + d) 9,094

(S) Supply [Northampton Anticipated Delivery 
2018/19 – 2022/23]

7,369

% of target available on deliverable sites (S/T) x 
100

81.03 %

Supply in Years (S/(T/5)) 4.1 years

Table 5 shows the five year land supply position, starting from the year in which the 
Local Plan Part 2 is expected to be submitted to the Secretary of State (2019/20).  
This table shows that the supply will just fall short of the 5 year land supply.  For the 
purposes of estimating completions in 2018/19, the conservative view has been 
taken that they will equal the number of dwellings committed (apart from Sustainable 
Urban Extensions, windfalls and allocations) as at 1st April 2018.

930



Table 5: Housing Land Supply 2019/20 – 2023/24

JCS Target 2011/12 – 2018/19 8,157

b) Shortfall 2011/12 – 2018/19 
2,346

c) JCS Target 2019/20 – 2023/24 6,737

d) 5% Buffer of JCS Target 2019/20 – 2023/24 337
(T) Overall Target (b + c + d) 9,420

(S) Supply [Northampton Anticipated Delivery 
2019/20 – 2023/24]

8,633

% of target available on deliverable sites (S/T) x 
100

91.6% 

Supply in Years (S/(T/5)) 4.6 years

This means that there will be a degree of reliance on addressing any shortfall in the 
next 5 year phase of the Local Plan as there is a shortfall of 787 dwellings (9,420 – 
8,633) in the first five years of the Plan when applying the Sedgefield method.

The substantial gap between the delivery and plan target figures from years 4 to 7 
(2014/15 to 2017/18) on the graph in Graph 1 (below) illustrates the shortfall that, 
under the Sedgefield method, would need to be made up over the first five years of 
the plan period.  

931



Graph 1: Housing Delivery in Northampton against the Joint Core Strategy 
Housing Delivery Trajectory

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

Actual Completions (2011-18) & Projected Completions 
(2018-29) against JCS Plan Target

Total Delivery Plan Target

The table, set out at Appendix A, shows the detail of past performance and predicted 
housing delivery in future years to 2029.

It is clear that, notwithstanding the large amounts of allocated capacity already in 
Northampton, housing has not been delivered at the rates anticipated in the JCS.  By 
2018/19, the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit envisaged that nearly 1,600 
dwellings would have been provided in SUEs in Northampton Borough.  In practice, 
only 80 dwellings have been delivered in SUEs since 2011.  In the Borough, total 
delivery has undershot by 1,475 dwellings from 2011 to 2018 and it is anticipated 
that that this figure may have increased to 2,346 by 2019.  

Short term housing supply is constrained by the JCS’s heavy reliance on large 
Sustainable Urban Extensions for substantially meeting the Borough’s housing 
needs.  Of the 18,870 dwellings, the JCS had anticipated that some 8,000 dwellings 
would come forward in the plan period to 2029.  However, the timescale for the 
delivery of these SUEs has proved to be overly ambitious, slow to deliver and is 

932



likely to only deliver just over 6,100 dwellings as opposed to 8,000 within the plan 
period.
  
The Council has researched alternative sites in the borough exhaustively through its 
Call for Sites and Land Availability Assessments. There are no other obvious 
sources of supply.  Extending existing SUEs in the Northampton Related 
Development Area further out into South Northamptonshire and Daventry would 
likely just increase the supply of land where delivery would continue to be slow.  

JCS Policy S6 – Monitoring and Review indicates that if monitoring indicates that 
delivery of policy objectives is not being met then, among other things, targets 
should be reviewed and policy or strategy should be reviewed.  Appendix 6 of the 
JCS sets out in more detail the contingency provisions that can be invoked if there is 
under-delivery against the proposed housing delivery trajectory. These contingencies 
include a review of the JCS’s trajectory / requirement and reviewing policy.   The 
JCS needs to have been reviewed by December 2019 (five years after its adoption) 
and work is just starting on its successor, the West Northamptonshire Strategic Plan, 
which will include a full review of housing policies.

In the face of long term under-delivery, over which the Council has no significant 
control, it is unreasonable to envisage that historic under-delivery against the JCS’s 
proposed housing delivery trajectory can be addressed in the first five years of the 
Local Plan Part 2, particularly at a time when that same proposed delivery trajectory 
set out in the JCS sets unprecedented levels of housing delivery.

Accordingly, the Council felt that it was necessary for the Local Plan Part 2 to have a 
housing trajectory that differs significantly from the proposed housing trajectory set 
out in the JCS.

7 LEGAL OPINION

In February 2019, the Borough Council sought a legal opinion on whether or not it 
would be acceptable for the Local Plan Part 2 to include a housing trajectory that 
differed significantly from that set out in the JCS.  The legal opinion assessed the 
following:

 The Government’s preferred approach to under delivery resulting in a backlog 
of need, is that this should be addressed in the first 5 year period.  This is 
known as the Sedgefield Method 

 An alternative method of addressing under delivery such as the Liverpool 
method (spreading the backlog across the whole plan period) or stepped 
trajectories which delay remedying the backlog until later parts of the plan 
period

The legal opinion also noted that whilst the NLP2 proposes to make provision for 
some 20,987 dwellings over the plan period (an over provision of 11%), the short 
term supply is constrained.  

933



Reference was made to the Council’s work on the sources of housing supply.  The 
draft Sites Allocation Methodology and Land Availability Assessment (SAMLAA) 
concluded that for the period 2019 – 2024, there is a supply of around 8,400 
dwellings.    Whilst this exceeds the trajectory requirement for the same period, at 
6,737 dwellings, this takes no account of the consequences of under-delivery 
between 2011 and 2018.  

The legal opinion noted two important points:

 The approach of using the base figures within the JCS trajectory as the 
source of the 5 year housing land requirement is not set out in policy.  The 
policy only requires 18,870 houses to be delivered in Northampton over the 
plan period.  Therefore, if the Local Plan Part 2 contains an approach to 
calculating the 5 year requirement which is different from the JCS trajectory, 
the Plan would still be legally consistent with the policies of the JCS 

 The JCS is silent as to how any backlog should be addressed in the event 
that one arises and silent in terms of buffers.  These are national policy and 
practice matters.  There is no express statutory requirement for Local Plans to 
be consistent with national policy, only that those preparing the plans “must 
have regard” to it.  The opinion states “it does not follow that a plan which is 
inconsistent with national policy is unsound.  Provided that a departure from 
national policy is rigorously and robustly demonstrated to be appropriate for 
the plan area, then despite inconsistency with national policy, a local plan 
can still be sound”.

The legal opinion recommended that the most appropriate way forward and one 
which minimises risk whilst allowing progress to be made on NLP2, is to pursue an 
approach which complies with the letter of the JCS and the NPPF, but which defers 
addressing the backlog until later in the plan period.  It is noted in the legal opinion 
that the realism of this approach could be addressed in the West Northamptonshire 
Strategic Plan which is scheduled to be adopted in 2022.
  
8 NORTHAMPTON LOCAL PLAN PART 2 HOUSING TRAJECTORY

Taking into account the legal opinion and in the knowledge that the contingencies set 
out in the Joint Core Strategy will only be applied when the document is replaced by 
the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, a new, stepped housing trajectory 
has been derived that differs from that set out in the JCS substantially, as shown in 
Graph 2. 

934



Graph 2: Northampton Local Plan Part 2 Housing Delivery Trajectory

The table in Appendix A shows that there is sufficient capacity in Northampton 
borough to deliver 22,035 dwellings over the period 2011 to 2029.  The Joint Core 
Strategy target for Northampton is 18,870 dwellings over the same period.  This 
means that there is sufficient capacity to deliver a 3,162 dwelling surplus by 2029.  
Mindful of the fact that delivery rates have proven to be low since 2011, particularly 
in SUEs, this surplus has been deducted from the requirement for 2019 – 2024 and 
a flat rate delivery rate of 1,094 dwellings per year has been applied to those years.  
This is a conservative approach which allows some contingency in case the SUEs 
continue to under-deliver, but it is also challenging given that it exceeds previous 
years’ rates of delivery since 2011.

From 2024/25 onwards, the annual requirement will step up to 1,518 dwellings per 
year.  Clearly, the higher delivery level envisaged for the last five years of the Plan 
period is ambitious, but this matter can be addressed in the West Northamptonshire 

935



Strategic Plan, which is timetabled to have reached adoption in 2022.  This will 
enable an early review of the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 to take place. 

The trajectory shown in Appendix B and Graph 2 shows the trajectory against a 
baseline target (which excludes the 5% buffer) and the Joint Core Strategy Housing 
Delivery trajectory.  

The table in Appendix C shows the detail of how it is predicted that sites to be 
allocated in the Northampton Local Plan Part 2 (i.e. sites excluding SUEs) will be 
delivered to 2029, giving to a total of 4,749 new dwellings across the plan period.  

Appendices

A – Past and predicted housing delivery in Northampton Borough 2011 -2029

B – Local Plan Part 2 Housing Delivery Trajectory

C – Trajectory for sites allocated in the Local Plan Part 2 (excluding Sustainable 
Urban Extensions)

936



Appendix A

Past and predicted housing delivery in Northampton Borough 2011- 2029

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
2015-
16

2016-
17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

2022-
23

2023-
24

2024-
25

2025-
26

2026-
27

2027-
28

2028-
29 Total 2029+ Total

Completions*
423 516 834 877 739 884 865            5138   

Existing 
Commitments 
(At 1st April 
2018)

       673 633 686 624 286 143 124 124 124 113 50 3580   

Windfall 
Allowance

       0 60 120 180 240 300 300 300 300 300 300 2400   

Sustainable 
Urban 
Extensions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 232 382 710 767 792 742 767 686 595 495 6168 1752 7920

Allocations         220 294 544 718 702 530 515 422 402 402  4749   

Anticipated 
Total Delivery 423 516 834 877 739 884 865 673 1145 1482 2058 2011 1937 1696 1706 1532 1410 1247 22035 1752  

Plan Target 423 516 785 1039 1132 1292 1426 1544 1588 1491 1355 1278 1025 900 875 815 695 694 18873   
         
Difference 
between Plan 
Target and Total 
Delivery 

0 0 49 -162 -393 -408 -561 -871 -443 -9 703 733 912 796 831 717 715 553 3162   

*includes 80 dwellings completed in Sustainable Urban Extensions from 2011 to 2018.

937



938



Appendix B

Local Plan Part 2 Housing Delivery Trajectory

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 Total
Trajectory (including 5% buffer for 
2019 - 2024) 423 516 834 877 739 884 865 673 1094 1094 1094 1094 1094 1518 1518 1518 1518 1518 18872
Baseline Target 423 516 834 877 739 884 865 673 1042 1042 1042 1042 1042 1594 1594 1594 1594 1594 18991
JCS Housing Delivery Trajectory 423 516 785 1039 1132 1292 1426 1544 1588 1491 1355 1278 1025 900 875 815 695 694 18873

939



Appendix C – Trajectory for sites allocated in the Local Plan Part 2 (excluding 
Sustainable Urban Extensions)

Sites that already feature in the Council’s five year housing supply calculations are 
marked “5YHLS” in the yield column.  Because they are existing commitments, and to 
avoid double counting, these sites are not profiled in the year-by-year columns.

REF SITE NAME YIELD 2019/
20

2020/
21

2021/
22

2022/
23

2023/
24

2024/
25

2025/
26

2026/
27

2027/
28

2028/
29

0168 Rowtree Road 131 10 10 10 10 10 15 15 15 15 21

0171 Quinton Road 19 9 10

0174 Ransome Road 
Gateway

6 3 3

0195 Hunsbury School, 
Hunsbury Hill 

5YHLS 
(50)

0205 Parklands Middle 
School, Devon 
Way 

132 20 20 20 20 20 20 12

0288 Railway Station 
(car park)

68 25 25 18

0333 Railway Station 
(railfreight) 

200 40 40 40 40 40

0335 Great Russell 
Street/ Chronicle 
& Echo North

28 10 10 8

0336 Site rear of Aldi, 
Former Chronicle 
& Echo

5YHLS
(19)

0338 Countess Road 
5YHLS (64)
Additional 

capacity 80
Total: 124

20 20 20 20

0403 Allotments, 
Studland Road 

 74 37 37

0496 57 Artizan Road 10 5 5
0629 British Timken 

Site 
140 20 20 20 20 20 20 20

0657 Fraser Road 140 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
0666 171 – 180 St 

Andrews Road
Planning approval

5YHLS
(22)

0672 Tunnel Hill 
Cottages 

5YHLS
(139)

0685 12 Pennycress 
Place, Ecton 
Brook Road

12 6 6

0719 Car garage 
workshop, 
Harlestone Road

35 11 12 12

0720 Ryland Soans 
garage, 
Harlestone Road

62 20 21 21

0814 32 Great Russell 
Street 
(N/2016/1434) 

5YHLS
(12)

0903 Hawkins Shoe 
Factory, 
Overstone Road 

5YHLS
(105)

940



REF SITE NAME YIELD 2019/
20

2020/
21

2021/
22

2022/
23

2023/
24

2024/
25

2025/
26

2026/
27

2027/
28

2028/
29

0910 379 Harlestone 
Road

17 8 9

0915 118 – 122 
Wellingborough 
Road

12 6 6

0932 Southbridge Site 1 5YHLS
(44)

15 15 14

0933 Southbridge Site 2 5YHLS
(50)

20 20 10

1001 Former 
Emmanuel Middle 
School

5YHLS
(81) 

1006 Pineham 106 30 40 36

1007 Land south of 
Wooldale Road, 
east of Wootton 
Road

44 22 22

1009 Land west of 
Policy N5 
Northampton 
South SUE

271 20 20 20 20 20 30 30 30 40 41

1010 Land at St Peter’s 
Way/ Court Road/ 
Freeschool Street

5YHLS
(37)

10 10 10 7

1013 Park Campus 5YHLS
(800)

1014 Avenue Campus 200 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20

1022 Belgrave House 5YHLS
(99)

1025 Land to the west 
of Towcester 
Road

180 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20

1026 Eastern Land 
Parcel, Buckton 
Fields

24 12 12

1034 Witham Way 4 2 2

1035 West Oval garage 
site

7 3 4

1036 Derwent Drive 
garage site

8 4 4

1037 Swale Drive 
garage site and 
rear/ unused land

6 3 3

1041 Newnham Road, 
Kingsthorpe

15 5 5 5

1048 Stenson Street 6 3 3
1049 Land off Arbour 

Court, Thorplands 
garage block
(exclude 
woodland)

11 5 6

1051
a

Land between 
Waterpump Court 
and Billing Brook 
Road 

24 12 12

1051
b

Waterpump Court 
and Billing Brook 
Road

29 9 10 10

941



REF SITE NAME YIELD 2019/
20

2020/
21

2021/
22

2022/
23

2023/
24

2024/
25

2025/
26

2026/
27

2027/
28

2028/
29

1052 Land rear of 
garages in 
Coverack Close

13 3 5 5

1058 Land off Oat Hill 
Drive, Ecton 
Brook

11 5 6

1060 Hayeswood Road, 
Lings

6 3 3

1068 Garage site in The 
Briars, Briar Hill

5 2 3

1069 Garage site off 
Farmclose Road, 
Wootton

6 3 3

1071 2 sites off 
Medway Drive, 
near Meadow 
Close

9 3 3 3

1086
a

2 parcels of land 
in Sunnyside 
Estate (Cosgrove 
Road)

6 3 3

1086
b

2 parcels of land 
in Sunnyside 
Estate 
(Chalcombe 
Avenue)

7 3 4

1094 Land off 
Holmecross Road

10 5 5

1096 Land off Mill Lane 14 4 4 4 2

1097 Gate Lodge 30 10 10 10

1098 The Green, Great 
Houghton

771
(LAA 

density 
at 75%)

50 50 50 50 50 100 100 100 100 121

1099 Upton Park 
(Upton Reserve 
Site)

40 10 15 15

1100 Hill Farm Rise, 
Hunsbury Hill

90 30 30 30

1102 Site east of 
Towester Road

50 25 25

1104 Watering Lane, 
Colingtree

265 20 20 20 20 20 33 33 33 33 33

1107 Former Abington 
Mill Farm, land off 
Rushmere Road

125 25 25 25 25 25

1108 Horsley Road 35 10 12 13

1109 Mill Lane  6 3 3

1113 Greyfriars 400 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50

1114 Cedarwood 
Nursing Home, 
492 Kettering 
Road 

5YHLS
(2)

1116 194 – 200 
Kingsthorpe 
Grove 

5YHLS
(14)

1117 133 Queens Park 
Terrace

18 9 9

942



REF SITE NAME YIELD 2019/
20

2020/
21

2021/
22

2022/
23

2023/
24

2024/
25

2025/
26

2026/
27

2027/
28

2028/
29

1118 135 Harlestone 
Road

5YHLS
(7)

1119 Silver Cornet, 
Welland Way

5YHLS
(14)

1121 Upton Valley Way 
East 

5YHLS
(34)

1123 83-103 Trinity 
Avenue 

9 3 3 3

1124 41 – 43 Derngate 5YHLS
(7)

1126 5 Primrose Hill 5YHLS
(6)

1127 32 Connaught 
Street

6 3 3

1131 The Leys Close, 
39 Mill Lane 

5YHLS
(6)

1133 Eastern District 
Social Club, 
Crestwood Road

5YHLS
(5)

1134 St Johns Railway 
Embankment

12 6 6

1137 Wootton Fields 92 30 31 31

1138 Land south of Old 
Bedford Road

7 4 3

1139 Merge Homes 
England plots in 
Ransome Road 

5YHLS
(250)

50 50 50 50 50

1140 Land north of 
Milton Ham 

224 20 20 20 20 20 25 25 25 25 24

Sub Total 220 294 544 718 702 530 515 422 402 402
5 year total 2478 2271

Total 4749

943



▲
▲

▲
▲

▲

▲▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲

▲

▲
▲

▲

▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲▲▲▲▲▲▲▲▲
▲▲▲▲▲▲▲▲▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲ ▲ ▲ ▲

▲
▲

▲
▲

▲

Cyan Magenta Yellow Black

Maps produced by Lovell Johns Ltd., Oxford, England.

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 82 83 84737271706968

0

0 1/2 mile

500m 1 km

Scale 1 : 14,000

NORTHAMPTON LOCAL PLAN PART 2 - POLICIES MAP N

Boundary of Local Plan

Town Centre Boundary POLICY 7,8 & 11  

Central Area Boundary POLICY 7,8 & 11

Registered Battlefield POLICY 38

Northampton Railway Station, Rail Freight and Adjoining Sites POLICY 34

Martin’s Yard Extension POLICY 35

The Green, Great Houghton POLICY 36

Greyfriars POLICY 37

Ransome Road POLICY 38

District Centres POLICY 17

Primary Shopping Area POLICY 17 

Local Centres POLICY 17

Neighbourhood Centres POLICY 19

Housing Allocation Sites POLICY 12

Employment Allocation Sites POLICY 16 

Mixed Use Allocation Sites POLICY 34 & 37

River Valley/Canal 

Open Space, Sports and Recreation POLICY 24

Parks and Gardens

Allotments

Natural and Semi Natural Green Space

Amenity Green Space

Churchyards and Cemeteries

Civic spaces

Teenage Facilities

Children’s Play

Safeguarded Employment Areas POLICY 15 

Burial Sites POLICY 22

Conservation Areas POLICY 2 & 36

Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection Area POLICY 25 & 26

University of Northampton Waterside Campus POLICY 9

Local Nature Reserves POLICY 25

Enterprise Zone POLICY 15 

KEY

Safeguarded Former Transport Route POLICY 30

▲ ▲ ▲ ▲

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey licence no. 10019655.

944



Meml

FB

Viaduct

TCB

War

LB

Tanks

Viaduct

FB

MP MPMP

L Twr

Lighting Towers

S Gantry

Gantry
Signal

Spencer Bridge

(telecommunication)

Station

FB

FB

M
ast

(T
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n)

M
as

t

Lighting Tower

Viaduct

Mast

Sluice

Sluice

FB

Cycle
Hire

LG

S Gantry

West
Bridge

LB
TCB

FB

FB

FB

ESS

(telecommunication)

L Twr

Lighting Tower

Mast

LB
LB

Lighting Tower

L Twr

Lighting Tower

Tank

FB

Mast

TCB

LB

(telecommunication)

FB

Pump
House

Mast

FB

FB

LB

LB

TCB

FB

FB

MoPs

WB

WB

FB

Gantry

FB

Jetty

FB

FB

FB

FB

University Bridge

FB

LB

Sluice

Sluice

Chy

FSs

Chy

FSs

Cycle Hire Station

Crane

Ppg Sta

South Bridge

Mooring Post

Sluice

Chy

Mooring Post

LB

Footbridge

Conveyors

FB
Sluice

FB

Footbridge

FB

L Twrs

L Twr
FB

MoP

MoP

Weir

MoP

MoP

Footbridge

Tank

TCBs

LB

TCBs

TCB

LB

LB

TCB

LB
LB

FB

TCBs

LB

TCBs

LB
TCB

LB

Ps

Cycle Hire
Station

W
ar M

em
orial

Posts Posts

LB

Cycle Hire Station

D Fn

Sculpture

LB

TCB

Subway

LB

Subw
ay

TCB

TCP

Sculpture

TCP

TCP

Sculpture

Subway

LB

TCB

TCBs

TCB

LB TCBTCB TCB

Tank

LB

TC
Bs

LB

TCB

Line Of Posts

L Twr

FB

FB

TCB

FB

MoP FB

FB

(Telecommunication)
Mast

Fountain

TCBs

LB

LB

LB

Meml

LB

War

TCB

LB

LB

El Sub Sta

LB

Gas Governor

Statue

Monument
LB

Cross

LB

TCB

LB

LB

LBTCB
Chy

LB

TCBLB

TCB

TCB

LB

LB

LB

LB

Bandstand

43c
43

Sh
elt

er

Tank

Hall

El Sub Sta

71

67a

Vicarage

Club

Gas Gov

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

Hall
Kingdom

Units 6 to 10

Minton Business Centre

Units 1 to 5

2a

PO

7

13

93

2

64

61

16

81

13

45

11

13

28

12

100

22

40

34

67

46

Chapel House

64

49

90

2

32

78

88

43

50

20

41

2

114

57

55

1a

66

176

1

4

1

26

56

1

52

52

67 64

77
89

29

64

55

6

65

24

29

5

1

4

1 to 21

Hall

27

67

57

88

100

Far Cotton

45

2

4a1

51

43

20

50

74
102

34

16

St Mary's Church
44

69

10
0

48

4

105

62

3a

54

76

78

2a

121 to 125

113

Nene Valley Retail Park

119

91
 to

 93

Gas Gov

Working Mens Club

45

ESS

69

3
4

ESS

1 to 20

2

132138

145

27

2

37

131

183

13

36

48

177

Library

5

ESS
Gas Gov

81 to 83

Ta
nk

Tanks

Depot

53

Gas Gov

Sh
elt

er

22 25
23 26

17

164

El Sub Sta

40

14

2

124

43

1

154

144

134

11

108 100

49

90

120

13

35

ESS

Gas Gov

Units 25 to 26

El Sub Sta

25

Unit 60

1

Unit 61

Minton Business Centre

Units 11 to 13

Unit 59

Unit 33

12
 to

 13

Unit 23

Unit 21

Units 27 to 29

65

Unit 50

11

Unit 51

54

El Sub Sta

61

16
 to

 17

13

62

67

16

41

8

40

5

55

49

44

50

33

12
14

23

45

60

El Sub Sta

El 
Su

b S
ta

61El

44

Sub Sta

75

69

67

Unit 30

15

27

66

Club

52

47 to 51

46

72
66

66
a

190
191

90 to 96

93B

Depot

81

16

89

19

65

84

Mews

1

1 to 4

9

11

51

Carol Trusler

88

54

Depot

105

91

81

200

95

189a

Works

107

8

50

75

47

73

97

74
93

95

45

Depot

W
orks

31

10

48

46

87

58

206

87

51

209

52

57

50

103

190a

204

17

84

88

189

96
96a

101
101a

Shelter

Shelter

Filling Station

Tank

32 to 48

7 to 31

10

52

2

18

28

28

31

10

15

19
 to

 27

8

Factory

19 to 24

30

13

1 to 9

to

Cordwainer

1 to
 6

28
 to

 36

17

PH

10
 to

 18

21

El Sub Sta

House

12

13 to 18

House

8

House

1 t
o 

9

Lincoln

1

38

7 to 12

29

20
43

1

13

House

Buckle House

1 to 49
Dovercourt

37 to 45

1 to 27

1 to 18Stirrup

El Sub Sta

Lapstone

1 6

70

14

El
Sub
Sta

De
po

t

15

68
Works

Primary School

8

52
PH

1

9

Spring Lane

4

15 16

2

Pr
io

ry
 H

ou
se

1

14

7

10

17b

SKG Business Centre

14 12

6

Wilmington Terrace

8

4

18

1

Northampton Business Centre

10

1

4

4

1

Garage

Northampton

Innovation Centre

Garage

Builder's Yard

ESSs

Tanks

Shelter

7

43

8

2

18
17

1

3634

3433

16

10
23

4 7

9

15

24

1

2

2 55 563

64

1

1

373941

15

11
12

1 W
es

te
rn

 V
ie

w

5 t
o 

16

2

St James Retail Park

1 t
o 

4

St Peters
1

5

House

Club

18

1

El Sub Sta

PH
3

6

House

4

32

3

8

5

11

6 10

12

6

Crispin House

6

14

1

6

12

3

5

134

Sub Sta

13

Pavilion

Grafton House

2

10

8

9

5

15

6

21

5

19

8

3

5

7

13

22

5

12

11

1

11

El

19

23

7

13

Compton

9

4

14

2

3
5

2 5

17

13

9

St Peter's Church

3

1

44

1317

17 to 25

202a

2a

2

127 to 133

2a
4 to 6

32a

32

2

11

5

6 1

35

39

37

8280

68
70

96
98

141 to 157

38

38

Shelter

Shelter

23

64

44

125

50

186

89

52

33

33a

90

16

26

63

27

92

103

139

20

53

154
24

Church

113

62

Eyeletter

24

Stitchman House

2

1 12

37
 to

 48

2

63

1

93

43

83

135

21

116

40

38

33

El Sub Sta

184

21

34

31

13

152

200

31

98

77

13

43

63

29

19
 to

 27

United Reformed

104

78

55
 to

 63

105

16

140

10 to 18

83

38

73

13

28
 to

 36

95

53

51

168

88

31

37 to 45

30

30

50

21

13

4012

28 to 36

22

128

12

111

42

22

23

117 to 121

35

55

32

59

29

57

115

4

123

PH

202

12

61

32

House

1 to 9

78a

109

1

73

9

1

68

44

17

73a

52

76

71

61

359a

56

12

19 to 27

32

23

48

62

170

19

43

1 to 9

34

13

46 to 54

118

10 to 18

2

23a

13

73

108

13

20

1

12

7

Doddridge Meml

2

19

55 22

17

4

Tandem
Court

1

5

8

33

2

8 to 12

1

2

Ppg Sta

49 to 51

19

Tanks

El Sub Sta

24

Tanks

Tank

1

37

13

126

87

12

25

61

7

1

5

95

13

16

28

Shelter

2424c

Supermarket

47

102

Bank

St James' Church

24

35

31

104
8

92

98
96

100

34

2

1

10

1

13

159

21
 to

 32

Castle Hill

St
 P

et
er

's
 H

ou
se

United Reform
 Church

73
73a

Shelter

Shelter

6
14

14

1210

13

7 3 24

15

102 to 112

1

2

10

22

9

42

78 to 88

54 to 64

52

100
47

63

45

31

15
11

78

88

74

1 to 6

22

1

14

2 12

5

58

El Sub Sta
7 to 12

94 96

22

Works

66

76

4

1

1

72

1

11

El Sub Sta

32

2

48

10

15

51

Sub Sta

13

66

3

Yard 13

57

13

63

31

108

54

El

2

29

9

21

1

12

21

5

41

29

13

27

47

12

1142

11

1a

48

122

40

4436

48a

90

23

20

Gospel Hall

17

12

35

23

15

55

59

12

118

32

1

50

60

2

22

136

43

12

31

59

46

44

208

115

Shelter

8
16

19

Builders

32

32

49

1

66

77

28

66

69

76

81

38

5 to 10

75

18

87

144

76

142

69

72

71

70

17

15

Shelters

34 30
3236

35 31
2933

49
50

4142
4748

5556

13

11

Com
m

unity Centre88

69

1

4

78

10

106

14

2

7

82

2

21

88

19

6

Spencer Haven

10

108

Spencer Haven

19
38

15

26

40

20

68

54

65

73

18

24

4

29

71

9

78

27

37

48

39

61

8

75

5

5

25

67

17

11
0

3

8

4

114

79 
to 

81

1

49

2

1

42
75 to 77

11
2

PO

12

22

3

32

70

28

6

112b

110a

112a

110b

4a

23

3

25

25

38

35

36

36

26

39

24

24

36

28

35

El 
Su

b S
ta

Delapre Abbey

8

Cottages

3

3

Units

1

Park Cottage

10

Gardeners

Cottage
Abbey

1

D

6

2

PC

B

The Boughton
Centre

14

94

114

139

27

88

5

97

12

1

46

1

38

72

79

2

1

86

121

57

60

124

62

62

34 36

28

78
66

101

48

27

1a

112

41

65

74

99

16

107

24

126

45

73

127

42

13

102

4

12

46
56

16

1

59

2

13

7

40

41

69

86

80

55

131

87

57

90

121

13
35 25

87

58

13

59

92

32

98

22

17

14

113

58

12

1

102

2

93

135

PH

27

40

14

73

121

14
52

100

59

13

138
37

Shelter

83

26

12

to

2

38

122

88
98

157

52
7476

41

108

12

Bank

121

110

134

97

4

83

Bank

2

2a

36

Bakery

13

146

24

62

22

Bk

to

Sh
el

te
r

111

Lodge
Delapre

111

66a to 66c

57a

1A

39

Recreation Ground

138

129

Filling Station

Hall

13

149

45

148

113

19 136

114

163
149

31

128

173

Shelter

156

3
5

6

8 t
o 

10

Tow
cester

Surgery

161

Road
M

eth Ch

158

Pp Ho

Sports Ground

8

Transfer
El Sub Sta

Units 4 and 5

Station

Refuse

6

Units 1 and 2

Un
its

 3 
an

d 
4

El Sub Sta

Shelter

3

Rush Mills

Pioneer

Youth Centre

Lockgates House

7

House

Rowing Club

4

Th
e L

im
es

House

2

Hotel

Park

Redbourn

Th
e W

illo
ws

Shelter

1

John

Bondfield
Margaret

12

19

30

3

25

3
1

13

6

Crick
Francis

1

Bradlaugh

Shelter

Charles
Clare

19
21

25 23

313344

Shelter

Sewage Ppg Sta

Club House

Centre

Lime

Rehabilitation

Cott
St Andrew's Hospital

The

The Nene

Tree

Bungalow

Sea Cadets

Club House

Cliftonville House

Garage

(Municipal Offices)

El Sub Sta

PH

1 to 9

Sawmills
Court

Tanks

Sh
el

te
r

Tanks

1 to 35

Pomfret Court

Cotton Court

35 to 4528 to 34

1 to 11

16 to 27

12 to 15

54 to 64

Garage

6
2

3

1 to

15

1

2 to 36

1
5

12

37 to 83

22

2

1

16

Cambridge Court

20

174 to 188

2 to 30

110 to 172

96 to 108

32 to 94

11

21

29

15

2

15

12

19

1 to 11

18

49
41

2
12

51

1

65

190 to 220

11

ESS

79

57

ESS

1

222 to 262

63

Southbridge Court

33

El Sub Sta21

15

1

19

23

2

11

10

5

6

12

2
14

25
 to

 29

20
12

39

28

1 t
o 1

1

15
 to

 29

2

43 53

167 109

2

5014

1

44

9

26

El Sub Stas

13

15 16

PC

10
4

16
20

18

15

Tank

19

21

2

El Sub Sta

PH

Club

Tanks

Club

2a

12
9

17

4

8

1
33

2

66

15

9

54

25

20

31

14

41

53

8

21

18

22

3

44

19

34

29

69

2
4

27

3
1

133

55

24

to
203

191
169

153

to

193

Club

123 to 129
145

143
to

13
Units 1 & 2

65 to 85

24

46 to 53

6

1

Mill House

Unit 4Unit 1

Filling Station

122 20

Shelter

Reboke

Unit 5

House
El

24

39

27
1

21

38

19

4

13

43

37
Sub Sta

19

Tanks

ESS

18

22

21

28

1519
17

25
24

20 23

29 27

26

26
27

1 to 41

El Sub Sta21 to 61

167 to 171

Depot

Depot

153 to 157

140

Brewery

149 to 151
50 to 54

Tanks

123 to 135

159 to 165

6 to 10

1

23

4

10

14

6

24

12

21

16
20

7

1

9

7

14

11

17
20

25

2

7

12

12

5

41

25

43
 to46

26

2

33

1

14

5

11

4
1

3

8

16

47

Museum
Art Gallery

to 56

CentreChurch

32 to 3631

55
53

PH

Dychurch House
1 to 13

2

20to1

Theatre Court

15

16

24

7
2

4

El Sub Sta

2a

9

48

El

37

1

2

Club

2

11

11

15

6

1

18

15

9

27

PH

34

10

County Council Offices

9

3

4

Club

8

16

21

Sta
Sub

36

25

House

17 to 19

2

Guildhall

23 to 25

5

23

PH

Works

10

Spring

7

36

Telephone
Exchange

32

Derngate Mews

28

20A

13

40

9a

10
8a

65

114

22
26

6

PH

26

El Sub Sta

Parish Church

Health

Thomas

69
79

19

39

Offices

Centre

4

11

20

87

El Sub Sta

Hall

The Manna House

17

10

1 to 10

18

St Giles

51

15

PH

Club

8

6

3

House

71

74

St Giles'

St

64

32

7
72

21 to 29

1 to 14

Surgery

to
42

30

44 45

PC

40

House

52

The Angela Grace
(Nursing Home)

19

49 to 53

15

St Giles

41

21

76

Hotel

59

47 to 49

28 41 to 43

Police Station

51 to 57

4

38
34

58

61

30

28

Works

36

24

Garage

23

Club

25

Connaught

34

7

Works

56

49

23

14

2

40

36

67

6469

51

45

Offices

Municipal

6a

74

4633

13
Factory

57

37
 to

 43

35

1

47

26

28

28

45

49

25

House

33

65

Works

616

36

23

44

37

25

13

76

19

3

35

16

2a

46

Garage

Works

13

13

99

26

38

21

16

44
48a

1 to 21

Factory

57

76

93

PH

47
88

78

11
3

Fire Station

PH

Crispian House

31

74

El 
Su

b S
ta

70

23

Factory

77

8 to 15

25

10
9

54

35

72

17

36

3

79

13 50
54

Garage

Crown Court

Factory

62
60

Works

Club

1 to 7

75

4

Minster House
Baths

67

13

12

PW

14

73

41

84

51

2

48

46

20 to 26

61

(above)

14

66

Shelter

PC

Magistrates Court

Shelter

Shelter

42
5

Public
Conveniences

El Sub Sta

77

100

1

25

2

26

4
3

14
13

1516

28
27

1a

90c

53

53A

14A

a b

1

92

59

38

50

36

Christchurch

35

20
16

2

73

22

68

13
38

36

47

61

13

16

76

13

1

69

75

63

1

94

23
19

10

24

40

37

49

51

80

93
120

11

104

37

69

10

92

2

52

2

Abington Park Office Centre

24

70

37

106

2

25

12

26

10

14

13

Rectory

52

21

7

2

8

Abington Bowling Club

2

3

27a

40

1 to 5

45a

14

1

40

13

The Coach

1a

1

11

49

28

47

43

36

48

25

1

39

41

1

20

House

28

12

5

Caldecott

29

35

7
5

13

2

37

61

29

104

28

47
8

114

6

25

52

27

45

51

45

23

33

30

3

108

82

120

81
79a

7

15

10

13
11

1

61

9

49

47a

48

79

1b-1h

246

224b

1a

1b1
1a

86

49

26

247

100

2

1

45a

1

14
87

78

224a

72

241

Bostock Mews

242

45

229

37

27

54

25

251

49

203

48

1

38

14

75

14

77

2a

4

68

37

102

37

46

49
47

13

14

80

25

1

13

217

233

42

213

26

to

34

249

47a

54

63

245

66

61

63

47

226

47

244
231

44

58

96

235

101

75

91

1
44

Garage

2

211
195 to 201

38

13

91

228

13

26

90

2a

200

218
193

220

6

224

202

2b

222 2230

3

214

1
1b212 PH

Shelter

28

227

216

74

189
191

46 to 54

1 to 23

Martonia

108
104 to 106

1

Flats 1 to 5

30

67

165

37

20

42 to 44

40

159

68

1

70

36

28

35
28

54

66

41

to

80

38

50

62

a

69

55

58

51

Works

Works

to

11

56

35

42

33

11

17

78

14

12

41

95
13

36

93

91

2

69

2545

37

80

89

80A

123

44

49

38 to 44

PH

60

90 72

99

86

25

98

60

46

2

110

67

2

70

75

4

81

42

108

10

44a

104

62

53

31

94

111

70

122

57
102

59

38

45

37

81

84

12

50

51

61

80

22

183

181

185
187

79

to

Warehouse

El Sub Sta

38

58

24

127a

2523

12

41
27

16

31

37

15
21

1
13

19

3

6

30 26 22
1418

18
14

29
3533

43

1620

39

28 24

10
8
4

1 to 10
Flats88

Thrift Mews

Hamilton House

73

95
68

83

30

89
66

63

90a

107

117

62Court

Nursery

126

Vernon Terrace

118

12

20

107

Vernon

82

41

Hotel

80

85

69

92

57

49

95

125

64

127

53

17

78

122Primary School

110

119

23

63

22

62a

1 to 15

58

90

102

1 to 22

22

The Old Dairy

St Andrew's House

24

112

32

104

2

(children)

20

St Andrew's Hospital

Billing Lodge

130

13

2

Factory Apartments

Normal Boot& Shoe

Flats 1 to 12

147a

24

141

143 145

3

27

59

W
orks

1

31

14

18
8

1

2

Works

17
4

14
5

2a

131

4

Works

1 109
113

10

105

6

47

16
8

17
0

98

2

43
PH

153
2

151
149

155

12

14
3

115 to 119

Shakespeare House

1612

17
6

32

20

107

Fa
cto

ry

1

Bank

106

21

161

16

42

6

12

17
2

30

24

1213

Works

20

13

13
3

41

14
1

45

13

813 139

2

3

8

58

5

64

48

Malcolm Arnold House

1

2

Hotel 38

Regent House

House

23

Henry Harday

7 11
5 9

Court

Sigma House

Saxon House

Delta House

House

Alpha

House
Omega

Nursery

Dearlove

Rubicon House
25 to 33

20 to 24
Cromwell House

Apartments

Victoria House

56

14
 to

 20St Andrews Court

Cromwell Centre

1

Club

Darenth Court

Works
30

1

10
12

1 to 18

20 to 28
Bakery

Municiple Offices

10

Court

13

Hall

1
7

Multistorey Car Park
8

1 t
o 

4

to
8

33 to 51

Roadmenders Club

50

1 t
o 

30

7

Claremont

19

48 to 66

7

1 to 55

140

1

69

1 to 45

St John's House

11
a

15

St Marks House

9

to

St Luke's House

The

70

13

1

Court

13to

St Barnabas House

Blackfriars

12

1 to 39

1

2

House

1 to 95

Sycamore
Court

Wilmington

3

2

1 to 9

Pevensey

1 t
o 

4

1

Court

Court

1 to 4

1 to 46

Newlife

St Stephens House

26

1 to 6

12
16 13 9

6165

15 11

5357

23

55

21 17
59

19

73

1

67

5
69

63

14
10 7 3

1a

4

24

46

18

83

86

25

Ambidge Ct

94

9
8

13

16

31
51

14

33

11

77

39
37

8

36

48

74

30

71

45

73

37

52

81

36

54

El Sub Sta

43

18

41 35

97

44 2

75

1

50

79

10

25

49

28

85

13

13

47

29

1

4

6

64

53

2

16

81

31

14

30

66

82

67

3432

12

7164

33

7368
69

65

84

29

98

41
43

62

56

48

22

58

50

18

47

52

45
60

46 75

54

40

77

5149

36

20

96

3 51

19 2321

47

10
210
4

10
1

45

10
3

10
0

24

7472

28

70

44

8

97 95

10

61
63

59
42

99

41 to 43

15

25
13

2726

117 9

37

76

39

79

5755

35

78

to 3028

2624 27
3122 3735

1

33

5
17

20

36

18

32
34

9

2321

6

25

93

8
10

7

19
16

94

14
12

92 91

15
13
11

2 to 4

Court

Shelter

15

40

39

5

W
or

ks

13

41

86

42
a

54

10

15

42

59

Depot

100 98

66

House

76

39

25

Club

56

18

14

Works

Gibraltar

20

44

Depot

26

28
26

20

2

24

7 t
o 1

2

33a

19 to 24

36

Works

Arnold

28

W
el

lin
gt

on
 P

la
ce

Ro
ya

l T
er

ra
ce

7
7a

W
or

ks

House

Warehouse

Regent

Works

29 to 34

W
or

ks

Garibaldi

33 31

14

47

13 to 18

62

1 to 5

2

23

(PH)

Club

Factory

35 to 40

Works

1

The

M
ou

nt
s B

us
ine

ss
 C

en
tre

1 t
o 6

57

12

49

Wellington Court

161 t
o 

3

38

17

14

1

90

1

3

1 to 12

1

8 2 to 6
1012 to14

14
15

1 to 5

34 to 38

Tank

Shelters

1

20

1 t
o 

21

39

41

11 to 9

15 to 17

14 to 16

12
10

2 to 6
8 to 12

Cham
bers

W
hitw

orth

58

El Sub Sta

4

6

13
3

1 to 271

8a

1

1

14

17
31

15 5

49

52

10

41

7

28a34

Hall

32a
40

3

Club

19

32b

9

PH

2

36

2 to 3

43

9
7

12 to 14

52

37
25 to 29

32

3

31

2

Gold Street M
ew

s

1a

51

26 to 28

1 to 10

2

Centre

8

9 to 13

5

8

2

11

PH

4 to 5

23
13 to 17

2

1

12

8

6 to 7

35
All Saints' Church

48

50b

11

4

16

20

18

26

60

39

4 to 7

21 to 27

43a

23a
23

3032
9a

16 to 18

6

33

24

21

8

Youth
Hotel

19

County

3

PH

3

5

24

23
33 to 39

8

29
21

17

24

16

2
House

Waterloo

30

15Bank

28
22

18

27

40

12

21

31

9
14

25

13

College St Mews 19

11

20

New Testament

Warehouse

42

1
18

Church of God

7

3

3

10 11

6

9

48

11

38

24

PH

17 to 21

44 46

18

34

6a

42

1 to 5

8

2

36

8 to 10

26

17
11

5
9

15
3

7

Bank

PH

PH

50 50
a

Club

PH

Bank

49a

Shelter

1

64a

Garage

4

13a

Garage

64

4

57
1321 15

Garage

29

7b

12

9 77a

25
 to

 36

1 to 24

Hall

2
35

Electricity Sub Station

63

5 t
o 

11

Hotel

Shelter

St. Johns Hall

61 to 69

21

Bloomsbury House

Museum

45

41

86
 to

 97

48

14

18 to 23

38

52 to 57
58 to 63

66

6

3

13
8

18

Eastgate House

Bedford Mansions

7

82

44

5

68
70

45

46 to 51

23

2

34
 to

 38

16

24

The

1 to 12

41

64 to 69

40
28

56

32

House

Bassett

1 to 40

Albion Court

1
37

12

76 to 81 36

Derngate Centre

70 to 75

53 Charles House

46

Derngate House

Lowke

Royal Theatre

4

30
 to

 35

3

El Sub Sta

51

Car Park

7

32 to 34

17

24 to 29

10

10a

40 to 44

Multistorey

1 t
o 6

(PH)7

2
6

ESS

House
Lion

8 to 12

College
Northampton

38

24

19a

19

37a

26

House

5

25

3

Library

82a

98 to 102

PCs

78

33

Place

Church

84

Multistorey Car Park

2

31

5

Dame

86

108

Club

42 to 46

Sub

4

El

1

75a

77a

2

73a

106

94

85

Bank

PC

75

73

116

3

Station

19

88

House

Northampton House

65

104

El

Abington

Compton

Notre

Sub Sta

PC

Radio

58

53

40
38

13

77b

71a
71

29

82

47

(above) Venton Centre
and Patricia
The William 12a

10 to 15

Meeting

12

12

8

63

31

71b

11

75b

83

Mews

51

77

79

1

Bank

80

Government Offices

32

18

55 to 57

The Racehorse Inn

26

1

51a

1

73b

W
orks

(PH)

8

Sta

34

13

14

37

110

96

Bank

63a
63bBank

59 to 61

69

9
Notre Dam

e M
ew

s

27

Friends

9

36

50 To 52

102a

PH

104a

Re
ge

nt
 S

qu
ar

e

Court

Oasis House

to
 1715

50a

The Viewpoint

46

10 to 16

26
to

32

2 to 8

Depot

Centre13

35 to 37

Id
ea

l B
ui

ld
in

gs

1 t
o 

6

Health

11

Vicarage

5

12

7
9

8

1 to 36
Simon de Senlis

Court

4

1 to 9

55

House

Belgrave House

St

Church Rooms

El Sub Sta

HouseLawrence

St

2

Bartholemews

House

20

Church of the

Martins

1 to 12

1

Holy Sepulchre's

House

5

57

Club

House

Holy Sepulchre

3

Northgate

20a

6

1 to 12

79

1 to 12

39

52

Sussex

Ashby House

St Georges

Job Centre

St

44

PH

House

33 to 37

Albert

Victoria

Gate

1 to 12

56a
56b

Club 56

Club

Lych

House49 to 53

81
 to

 83

13
a

54

18 to 24

Shelters

House
Beethoven

2 To 42

32

5

Welsh

1

2

Berkeley House

2
49

16

6

15

to

19

8

House

7

Doddridge House

Drapery House

8

18

11

10 to 14

13

1 to 10

51

7

Moat House Hotel

13

St Mary's Court

PH

15

4

PH

52

6

3

41

1

44

11

46

9

22

9

4PH

18a

1 to 19

17

Bank

2

Princes Walk

49
 to

 6037 to 48

(above)

Shops

4

43

50

to
11

6

PH

(PH)

3

Shops

17

Bus Station

Shelter

Industrial

Shelter

Fitzroy House

Estate

ESS

Tanks

50

Lowood House

52

Lowood Court

ESSs

82 to 122

71

City House

43

Garage

66 to 80

51 to 107

75 to 121

64

124 to 138

26 to 48

50 to

43 to 73

2 to 24

1 to 25

41

35 to 49

19 to 33 to27

1 to 17

21 to 31

24 to 34

1 to 19

33

36 to 52

75

34

33

48

36

35

44

1 to 35

54

55

61

Industrial Estate

Farefax House

El Sub Sta

Three Shires Hospital

Highfield

(Govt Offices)
Princess House

Garage

Garage

Spencer House

2 to 22

El Sub Sta

St Andrew's Hospital

12

General

11

Maternity Home

Hospital

NorthamptonThe Barratt

13a

Garage

14

Nursery

9

Abington Vale Primary
Stirling Campus

Riverside House

Of Podiatry

The University

Northampton School
Of Northampton

110

20
2

1 to 6
Flats

1A
1B

7 to 12
1 to 6

1

PH

102

14
7

44
1

17
3

16

19

100

20
6

18
5

55

12

86

91

20
4

Mount Pleasant

82

69

24

15
7

19

19
0

11

21
2

41

58

16

79

16
3

196a

2

19
6

68

42

13

26

17

153

15
9

119
9

15
5

20
8

18

29

14
3

4

16
9

16
5

13

Vicarage

16

1

17a

50

88

118

1

11

21
0

19
4 1

19
8

16
1

19
2

39

30

11

56

196b

1

32

21

1

Baptist Church

19
3

16
7

84

1

22
4

Church

Hotel

b

105

89

101

108

115

100

86

9

90
104

10

116

5

86

139

7 4

98

88

Science

6

Christian

2

129

21
8

21
6

1a to 1e

9

2

15

3

9

1

1 to 18
Cowper Factory

The Accurate Boot

8

146

35

20

49

55

25

37

6

77

31

31

16

1
26

W
orks

48

34

49

26

72

11

42

76

6

112

7

13

17

37

36

54

67

32

30

53
El Sub Sta

34

27

24
4

61

3

35

25

32

74

Garage

58

13

21 to

19

20

14

21

W
arehouse

51

6

48

51

5

27

44

9 to

27 to

25

53

63

62

73

76

66

79

43
49

54

W
orks

38

74

40

13

Works

45 43

84

1

41

2

64

15 to

19

16

17

1

5

St Peters Gardens

7 to 9

29
33

15

6
Hazelrigg

House

14

Saxon Court

3539

28
292726

Cinema

Sol Central

Hotel

1 t
o 

12

31

26
 to

 39
14

 to
 25

50

Garage

44

Co
ur

t

1 to 39

50

St
 K

at
he

rin
e'

s

to 2642

21
22

25

6

1 to 20

5452

2

51
45

4a
4b

1c

ESSs

41

1117

52

50

3

47

69

53

48

56

37
43

51

6259

54

40

18 15 12

22
25
19

60 6357

3229
35

68 7165

69 72

30

61

3633

55

42
39

66
58

45 24
27

20

17

5

26

8

21

4

23

2

67 7064

3431

13

44

49

10

38

14

46

16

2

14
Ch

4

62 41

23

84

49

4

12

66

1 to 12

1a

99

104

58

38

2

House

92

1

2

13

120

16

37

14

26

Alliston

11

89

73 to 126
70

12

Adelaide

1 to 12

1 to 12

71

65

Semilong House

Mill House

138

14

91 Gardens

53

59

1

Queens

49

54

31

33
64

48
25

67

14

20

55

1b

26

5

1a

21

20

422

47

46

1

63

23

2a

60
9

35

38

1a

20
282

33

1

45 Building

16

Leicester Parade

1b

10a

Dayspring

1

30

33

14

17

2b

12

2

2 to 429

10

13

2a

93
93a

40

13 13a

115

9595a

26

40a

71 to 6 61 to 3

2a
2b

18

28

Surgery

Centre

52

14

Com
m

unity

19

Te
mple

Hall

3a 5

2a

1 3

12
a

2b

11

2a

5 to 11

Tank

Castle Primary School

61

Club

Chalfont

Belmont Court

Ho
te

l

17

25

13

16

4

Industrial

22

18

17a

13
1

Warehouse

12
24

21
5

1

Fa
cto

ry

25

9

37

19

12

7

7

21

3

22

7

11

15

1a

1

1

23

13

14 27

17

43 to 57

4

9

20

Warehouse

15

2

1 to 18

15

Estate

1 to 30

Works
4

Gibraltar Barracks

7

18

5

27

8

2

21

Aldbury Court

3

13

2

M
os

qu
e

1 to 15

16

ESS

Tanks

PH

The Plough
Hotel

121

25
24

Cattle Market
House

15

Pavilion

El Sub Sta
PCs

Angel Square

1

5
3

2

1 to 20

PH

4a

1

21 to 43

2a

4 to 5

6

6

1

St Johns Court

1

2

9

7

24

1

3

6

25

22

27

5

7a

Garage

6a

Horizon House 2

94
96

35

1

32

2

PH

PH

36

86

21

22
12

10

19
11

5

30

1

28a 28

Shelter

2

34
32

23
25

22

24
6

18

38

8
26

1620
4

43
45

Nelson Hall

1

14

19

PH

21

48

9 to 11

5

1 to 7

26
14

11
7

Leicester Terrace

Adelaide Terrace

Overleys

The

School

Poplars8

55
53 to 54 5

1

52

46
47 to 49

10

56 58

2

11
2

Community Centre

PH

38

50 1a

3

Hotel

Racecourse

2
6

7

Hotel

Surgery

PC

13

Langham
 Place

House

3

36

10

13

43

57

41

1 t
o 

5
6 t

o 
1129

92
 to

 10
0

Centre

Centre
Reserve

Army

33
35

3733

69
71

8
3

22

10

24

35

12

39

9

47

4

45

63

49
51

61

79

12

1

Jve Building

2
11
to
3

1b

54a

14

20A

28

Cromwell
The

House

8

Court
Denis

Claude

2418
 to

 22

231 t
o 5

31

87

28

1

38

37

75

Works

1

49

50

PH

64

42

36

8

4

63

Depot

97

23

15

14

26

St Stanislavs

70

85

73
 to

 79

76

13

2

49

2

21

50

13

41 to 75

3

13

32
18

25

77

50

10
6

90

26

42

5

24

89

30

Beaconsfield Terrace

27

25

40

13

38

26

1

2

38

Albany

14

13

5

96

14

1

11

10
7

36

11
7

a

4

Allinson

49

1a

11

Club

73

House

11
6b

13

26

21

40

67

Watkin Terrace

48

74

7
6

40

House

13
4

54

38

13
2

13

6a

Polish RC Church

4

58

24

52

31

and St Lawrence

21

13

27

26

4

1

12

25

50

24

1

64

88

3
5
1

47 to 51

19

43

3

2

2

52

6

60

37

1a

85

El Sub Sta

75

61

124

61

14

2a

2

Watkin Court

97

14

11
8

24

37

St Lawrence

PH

1 t
o 9

12
 to

 17

56

74

6

to 
9391

8

Works

Fa
ct

or
y

2

Works

2

87

10
0

24
a

13

1

8

98

11
3

Temple

14

Go
sp

el 
Ha

ll

1

10

17
a

20

95

109

29

8

5

1

19

18

El
St

a

11
5

13

Su
b

13

4

23

14

17

12 to 13

70

10
3

1

2a

Factory

82

89

2
2a

2

6

3

68 to 78
62 to 66

54

44

Shelter

Garage

Centre

31-33

Holiness ChurchWesleyan
70

65

64

Community

65

80

26 57

56

St Crispin

51

71

38

44

59

45

34

54

77

31

48

37

53

68

31

1

66

47

69

3

11

Hall

5

80

Sub

92

4

66

71

67

72

W
arehouse

Sta

29

W
arehouse

81

Club

104

1 to 3

Business Centre

El

91

Garage

11

1

85

7

77

Garden of Rest

Warehouse

8

27

22

33

27

36

54

75

W
orks

5

Church

87

Shelter

Shelter

Centre
Community

62

4036

84

38
42

44

1612
20 22

10
1814

9

55

6

5933 29

53

61

73

67

51

57

35

13

85

55

49

81

41

54

37

10

5 1

77

50

9

39

29

7

55

40

59

44

25

11

11

65

77

41

83

73

67

37

27

15

81

23

71

7579

61

69

17 13

51 47

33 29

5 137

75 71

4953

38 42

61 57

27

8

53

3

37

7

39

4

57

43

33

59

77

83 79

63

19

52

35

81

48

35

52

31

5

3

1

176

138

1

50

132

3
46

1

61

154

38

152

27

22

PH

16

8

2

PH

167

73

34

45

180

9

153

13

25

36

24

2

16

43

72

23

80

20

18

144
13

Club

2

12

165

26

21

188

18

163

9

6

162

14 21

24

65

3

170

156

171

182

169

146

48

12

161

150142

160

159

39

17

25

148

63

42

73

147

69

69

172

45

PH

26

25

151

158

36

164
166

65

190
192

184

11

47

40

51

37

1

186

12

2

63

79 75

31

31

15

56

PH

36

Cliftonville
Gardens

1 to 14

ESS

Elgin House

51
49

53

33
3837
39

34

4340

42 47
41 45 46

35

44

48

36

54

52
52

29 30
2625

13
15
17

242322

21

7
98
1119

12
10

20 516
18

14

27

2

28

3
6

1

Cliftonville Care Home

32a

Smyth House

HouseBradgate
1 to 19

17

21A
21

23

37

23A

38

32

1 to 19

HouseVictoria

Chapel

18

11

45

43

26

42 39

20

24

8

15

Cliftonville

Redlands

Court

The Elms 1

25

Woodland House

(private)

Ivy Cottage

Winton Villa

The Lindens

38
42

31
43

Club

19

45

3

4

14
55

1 to 46

10

44

22

41

26

1

58

52

York House

43

51

18

Cliftonville Court

12

W
oodstock

44

40

4

El Sub Sta

118

122
122a

112112a112b

124124a

Shelter

1b

171

114

9

60

102
103

5

87

33

11
23

15

327
19

88

3

3635

62

1

27

6

43

109

7

111

44

56
57

26

5025

63

97

108

17

110

51

61

99

21
35

72

31

70

27

66

115

42

67

69
a

69
d

69
c

69
b

8685

22 to 36

68

104

95
64

112

69
75

93

105

96

76

65

151

1a

125

1 to 7

35

74

34

22a

1

68

77

49

Church

4

59

106

96

1 to 15

70

100

116 123

42

2

38

71

8

51

121

2

82

75

28

102

126

W
orks

40

117

69
71

71

13

58

100

61

49
b

Works

103

73

49
a

569

111

44

3

12

19

House

46

Palmerston

70

30

Orient House

98

El Sub StaDepot

21

90

Palmerston

34

1

1 to 4

107

58

49

14

107

41

130

8

10

101

9

Court

70

Unitarian

80

24a

The Chambers

55

65

59

15

60

94

113

41

PH

113 113a

115 115a

117 117a

7a 7b

26a 26b

71a

2022a

10
4

1

8

2c 2d
2b

1to4
5to16

2e

2A

42
40 House

Woodlows

51

35

1
3 to 7

28
26

Flats 1 to 3
Elite House

1

1

1

Club

14

13

House

25

31

1

44

26

46

4

43

24

22

16

1

38

9

36

8

St Edmunds

37

28 to 30

36

2

54

2

31

16a

8

35

RDC Offices

49

6

67

33

PH

46

2

13

12

23

20

48

45

2

24

2

68

21

11

1a

57

59

23

1
22

1

59

PH

56

1

16

75

47

El Sub Sta

7

8

13
36

Depot

5

41

16

1

2

24 to 28

23
28a

35a

1
1a

49

2 3

90

21

(Gymnasium)
Barry Primary School

Services
Lowther Adolescent

89

91

90b

24

105

131

124

Primary School

Annexe

99

105

98

117

122

94

132

Swimming Pool

Northampton

114

Barry

108

100

109

18

121

117

102

92

133

107

Medical Centre

1

37

Works

55

70

113

44

76

184

145

3

13

2

40

143

46

63

16

57

2

25

94b

35

13

Works

36

61

55

61

16

37

54

159

133

2

67

94a

72

10

73

Depot

95

52

28

69

64

13

73

85

37

91

25

1

123

1

49

31

146

26
83

66

90

25

8

56

49

1a

45

256

1

264

254

2
Club

1

265

13

2

14

279

259

17

Bank

274

Warehouse

Bank

1a

276

33

23

254

55

36

48

43

77

14

24

76

19

PH

Teachers Centre

84 to 88

263

Builders Yard

90a

14 to 16

8

2 to 4

1 to 6

5

69

67b

22a
22

51

12

1715

10
12

3735

26

18

House
Windsor

House
Beckett

69A
67A

House

Springfield

Spring Hill

28

1 to 12

27

13

33

27

26

21

55
52

33a

49

7

43

61

42

29

16

40

15

23

St Lawrence

36

17

32

72

49

53

22

45

10
5 to 12

23

65

58

27

33

Victoria House

10 to 12

13

Church

3

94

24
43

13

34

14

27

8

42

9

11

1

1 to 9

22

13

Victoria Road

72

4

44

The

14

1a

19

Factory

14

52

14

13

15

62

16

48

11

39

2

1114

67

59

Works

12

62

26

1

6

55

30

50

21

35

PH

Ct

17

52

36

39

82

3

1

21

4

Billing

6

48

Congregational

16

35

Beaumont

8 to 23

16

12

Shelter

69b

38

Sunnyside

33

20a

28

19
19a

20b

16

44

14

16a

M
ew

s
Derby

1 to 3

64

110

46

37

82

70

5

87

58

37

79

45

47
45

63

45a

46

111

71

82

107

13

59

49

95

25

119

90
86

41

105

89

94

123

85

114

43

110

121

80

110

100

75

108

76

117

109

72

5
1

Daniel Terrace

67

79

46

Sh
elt

er

Shelter

1 to 10

11 to 14

3

1

99

1 to 12

Willow House
ESS

1

Ea
st 

W
ing

Bu
rlin

gt
on

 H
ou

se

Bu
rlin

gto
n H

ou
se

36
9

Flats 1 to 11

39
3

60

50

154

40

178

65a

2

26

Works

65
70

167

3

146
149

138

Pa
rk

 H
ot

el

1 t
o 1

9

17

157

16

37

Ardington House

2a

Burlington Apartments 37
1

160 38
5

Ab
ing

to
n

49

175

35
4

159

35
8

13

26

9

177

2

40
7

Willow Court

32

26

41
7

16

1

23 to 33

39
7

Garage

48

25

13

35

El Sub Sta

136

7

3

31

197

36

187

14

32

2

43

39

27
50

21

25

15

2

134

16

Sears House

11

7

Stimpson Avenue

72

122

30

118

50

1 to 18

123

90

71

1

2

113

17

29

62

Primary School

14

13

135

13

143

139

128

104

83

1

2

55

57

21

44

54

45
66

30

69

18

32

33

20

42

47

68
56

33

45

23

59

141

2b

(P
H)

11

14

39

53

30

13

2a

St Michael

And All Angels With

St Edmund (church)

St M
ichael's Hall

21

40

17

23

3
1

18

21

7

19

20

16

34

22

29

44

132 Club

56

13

9

18

35

14

7

25

Factory

32

10

9

135

19

8

25

45

19

58

55

44

11a

65

38

42

26

17

Garage

1

3

4 27

20

34

31

36

11
15

32

34

105

7

99
97
to

95

to 47
38

to 59
48

ESS

The Old Print W
orks

Flats 1 to 40
93 to 95

15 to 18

1 to 14

111b

19 to 26
27 to 42

131

77

117

40

61

94

Galliard Court

94

108

113

103

93

106

3

133

34

43

120 135

4 16

Knights Court
15

149

17

1 to 6

5

11

137

1 to 10

Baron Ct

1 to 6

El Sub Sta

to

18 to 37

47

1 to 60

Shelter

30

Shelter

181

to 304

302

183
173

35
7 t

o 3
59

36
1 t

o 3
63

299

52

136

25

185

36
7

355

157

168

160

150

145

331

Ab
ing

ton
 B

us
ine

ss
 Ce

ntr
e

320

5

2a

6a

157

129

16

296

159

148

337

321

5

12

44

2

176

14

(Units 1 to 20)

340 to 346

134

152

164

Bakery

171

2

338

Mobbs Miller House

162

152

Vicarage

Hall

PW

25

64

13

172

311

Garage

Ch
ris

t C
hu

rc
h

13

20

171

334

3

339

145

4

332

143

1

39

174

34
8

4

140

308

86

3

27

35

28

2

25 to 35

26

43

1

28

25

75

23

4

38

2

4

14

63

80
37

26

35

3

51

291

13

37

5

307

25

1

47

2

46

14

18

16

85

16

25
13

11

1 to 10
Randall House

2

175

156

64 1

to 36
32

to 92
86

She
lte

r

77

47

81

45

85

95
91

89

67

87

97

71
63

93

100a
100

55

4945

51
59

41

61
53

105

99103107

57

101

73
69
65

757983

41 to 15

1 t
o 5

3
Th

e B
ail

ey
 W

ills
 B

uil
din

g

The Plaza
76

86
 to

 10
8

12B

84

116

110

12A

Grove Works
1 to 15

17A

34 to 38

3

20

17

82

16
0

141

10

75

3

20

7

1

3424

101

to

93

111

(PH)

Methodist Church

11
1

Helmet

to

13

21

76

47

89

1

106

73

2

11

89

82

13

15

to

11
3

133

115

71 75

3

to

to

38

92

12
3

37

6

13

49

103

97

21

78

29

12

26

14

21

52

24

98

Bank

63

101

19

to

111

95

11
5

85

36

6

69

Queensgrove

28

22

25

27

96

135

16

16
4

13

15

12

50

22
23

79

Swan and

15

to

129

90

22
1

16

10

86

30

Hall

12
1

Centre

94

80

John Clare

84

17

99

81

Works

to

25

37

69

to

to

3

10

31

25

49

105

Works

1092

48

to

40

Shelter

30
32

3436

5340
38

Pavilion
Sir Humphrey Cripps

43

2

161

Works

58

115

186

14

166
93

School for Boys

144

188

Northampton

156

Garage

28

46

105

199

34

189

201

175
177

22

23

13

26

226

36

13

19

33

Pavilion

13

212

16

14

9

1

247

7

200

27

132

21

222

Pavilion

30

Park Villas

2

66
64

60A

1

The Cottages

2

Abington Abbey

PCs

Church of St Peter
and St Paul

71

52

6762

The Old Oak

Museum

(C of E)

Shelter

Aviary

1

DELAPRE STREET

LETTS ROAD

THIRLESTANE ROAD

ABBEY ROAD

OXFORD STREET

ALTON STREET

ROTHERSTHORPE ROAD

MAIN ROAD

CLINTON ROAD

TO
W

CE
ST

ER
 R

OA
D

ST JAMES MILL ROAD EAST

BU
CH

AN
AN

 C
LO

SE

ROTHERSTHORPE CRESCENT

RO
TH

ER
ST

HO
RP

E 
AV

EN
UE

MAIN ROAD

RI
N

G 
W

AY

THIRLESTAN
E CRESCEN

T

ST JAMES' MILL ROAD

ST
 JA

M
ES

 M
ILL

 R
OAD

M
AR

TI
NS

 YA
RD

SPENCER BRIDGE ROAD

QUORN WAY

ST
 A

N
DR

EW
'S

 R
OA

D

BROOK STREET

LESLIE ROAD

LOWER PRIORY STREET

M
AR

TI
N

S 
YA

RD

UPPINGHAM STREET

M
ILLHOUSE COURT

SPENCER STREETSHARMAN ROAD

BYFIELD ROAD

LINCOLN RD

GRAFTON STREET

COMPTON STREET

LO
W

ER
 C

RO
SS

 S
TR

EE
T

WYNYATES COURT

SC
AR

LE
TW

EL
L 

CO
UR

T

LOWER BATH COURT

CASTLE TERRACE

CH
AL

K 
LA

NE

GREEN STREET

PARKWOOD ST

ST JAMES' ROAD

GREEN STREET

EMERALD WAY

ST PETER'S W
AY

BLACK LION HILL

PARKWOOD STREET

M
OA

T 
PL

AC
E

SPRING LANE

ST
 A

N
DR

EW
'S

 R
OA

D

SCARLETWELL STREET

FITZROY

LI
TT

LE
 C

RO
SS

 S
TR

EE
T

PLACE

M
ON

KS PON
D STREET

FO
RT

 P
LA

CE

LOWER BATH STREET

CASTLE HILL

CANONBURY COURT

ST JAM
ES PARK ROAD

OLD SCHOLARS CLOSE

STENSON

SUNDERLAND STREET

MARLBOROUGH ROAD

STANLEY ROAD

ALTHORP ROAD

GREENW
OOD ROAD

RICHMOND TERRACE

AMBUSH STREET

M
USCOTT STREET

STREET

SEYMOUR STREET

STEENE STREET

WIMBLEDON STREET

ST JAM
ES' PARK ROAD

ST
 J

AM
ES

' M
IL

L R
OA

D

MILLBROOK CLOSE

BRECON STREET

ST JAM
ES' ROAD

GREENW
OOD ROAD

ORCHARD STREET

SHANKLEY W
AY

COUNTESS COURT

NEWPORT ROAD

LYTTLETON ROAD

MONMOUTH ROAD

SPENCER BRIDGE ROAD

RAYMOND ROAD

CHEPSTOW
 CLOSE

COUN
TESS ROAD

GLADSTON
E ROAD

HAVEN CLOSE

AV GLADSTON
E ROAD

TINTERN AVENUE

LILIPUT ROAD

RANSOME ROAD

SOUTHAMPTON ROAD

CR
ES

CE
N

T

TH
OR

PE
 R

OA
D

EA
ST

FI
EL

D 
RO

AD

EUSTON ROAD

DELAPRE

LO
N

DO
N

 R
OA

D

HAIN
ES ROAD

DELAPRE CRESCENT ROAD

ST LEONARD'S ROAD

PENRHYN ROAD

TO
W

CES
TE

R ROAD

MAIN ROAD

RUSHMERE ROAD

BEDFORD ROAD

RU
SH

M
IL

LS

N
UN

N
 M

IL
LS

 R
OA

D

A 428

BEDFORD ROAD

RIVER VIEW

HENRY BIRD WAY
HENRY BIRD WAY

M
ARVILLS M

ILL ROAD

POM
FRET ARM

S CLOSE

WEST COTTON CLOSE

BAULMSHOLME CLOSE

JOHN
SON

 COURT

SM
ITHS COURT

HENRY BIRD COURT

HENRY BIRD WAY

ST LEONARDS COURT

RANSOME

CLAUGHTON
 ROAD

OLD TOWCESTER ROAD CO
TT

ON
 EN

D

NEW SOUTH BRIDGE ROAD

THOMAS CHAPMAN GROVE

RD

SOUTHFIELD AVENUE

ROAD

Barnes Meadow Interchange

BEDFORD

N
EN

E 
VA

LL
EY

 W
AY

NAVIGATION ROW

BRIDGE STREET

CATTLE M
ARKET ROAD

BIDDERS CLOSE

AUCTIONEERS WAY

PEN COURT

AUCTION
EERS COURT

FISH STREETABINGTON STREET

HAZELW
OOD ROAD

SPRIN
G GARDEN

S

CASTILIAN

CASTILIAN TERRACE

ST GILES' STREET

THE RIDINGS

DYCHURCH LANE SPRIN
G GARDEN

S

ST GILES' STREET

SPENCER PARADE

STREET

ROBERT STREET

M
AR

GA
RE

T 
ST

RE
ET

GR
EA

T 
RU

SS
EL

L S
TR

EE
T

CLOUTSHAM STREET

OV
ER

ST
ON

E 
RO

AD

CO
NN

AU
GH

T 
ST

RE
ET

EA
RL

 S
TR

EE
T

CR
AN

ST
OU

N 
ST

RE
ET

UPPER MOUNTS

DUNSTER STREET

ST MICHAEL'S ROAD

OV
ER

ST
ON

E 
RO

AD

EA
RL

 S
TR

EE
T

KING EDWARD ROAD

CHRISTCHURCH ROAD

ARDIN
GTON

 ROAD

GARRICK ROAD

SANDRINGHAM CLOSE

THURSBY ROADALBAN
Y ROAD

KING EDWARD ROAD

PARK AVEN
UE SOUTH

PARK AVENUE SOUTH

SAN
DRIN

GHAM
 ROAD

ADAM
S AV

STIM
PSON

 AVEN
UE

BOSTOCK AVEN
UE

BILLINGTON STREET

N
EW

 TOW
N

 RD

M
ELBOURN

E ST

ARTIZAN
 ROAD

W
HITW

ORTH ROAD

M
ELVILLE STREET

M
ARKET STREET

STOCKLEY STREET

UPPER THRIFT STREET

VERN
ON

 TERRACE

ALFRED STREET

LOW
ER THRIFT STREET

HENRY STREET

KE
TT

ER
IN

G 
RO

AD

CAREY STREET

CLARE STREET

HERVEY STREET

W
EL

LI
NG

BO
RO

UG
H 

RO
AD

CROMWELL STREET

FR
AN

CI
S 

ST
RE

ET

GR
AF

TO
N

 P
LA

CE

AR
UN

DE
L 

ST
RE

ET

GRAFTON STREET

ST AN
DREW

'S STREET

UPPER BATH STREET

TOWER STREET

CRISPIN STREET

BR
OA

D 
ST

RE
ET

REGENT STREET

HERBERT STREET

ALTHORP STREET

UP
PE

R 
CR

OS
S 

ST
RE

ET
LO

W
ER

 H
AR

DI
N

G 
ST

RE
ET

Narrow Lane

EAST STREET

SOUTH STREET

ASH STREET

DEAL STREET

TEMPLE BAR

OA
K 

ST
RE

ET

DEAL COURT

LORNE ROAD

BA
RR

AC
K 

RO
AD

LAWRENCE COURT

LORNE ROAD

LOUISE ROAD

ELM STREET
THOMAS STREET

BR
ID

GE
 S

TR
EE

T

ST JOHN'S STREET
FOUNDRY STREET

GOLD STREET

GEORGE ROW

WOOLMONGER STREET

MERCER'S ROW

KIN
GSW

ELL STREET

DRAPERY

COLLEGE STREET

ST KATHERINE'S STREET

HO
RS

ES
HO

E 
ST

RE
ET

COURT

MARE FAIR

GA
S 

ST
RE

ETRD

GREGORY STREET

HORSE M
ARKET

ST KATHERINE'S
SQUARE

ALBION
 PLACE

CH
EY

N
E 

W
AL

K

ST JOHN'S TERRACE

DERNGATE

SW
AN

 STREET

STREET
ST JOHN'S

GUILDHALL ROAD

SC
HO

LA
RS

 C
OU

RT

VICTORIA PROMENADE

BE
DF

OR
D 

PL
AC

E

ABINGTON SQUARE

ABINGTON STREET

ABINGTON STREET

CHAPEL PLACE

LADY'S LANE

W
ELLIN

GTON
 STREET YORK ROAD

ALB
ERT PLA

CE

LOWER MOUNTS

GREYFRIARS

ST GILES' TERRACE

CAMPBELL SQUARE

CAMPBELL STREET

LATYMER COURT

GREYFRIARS

LADY'S LANE

SHEEP STREET

CHURCH LANE

N
EW

LAN
D

VICTORIA STREET

BRADSHAW STREET

KING

CASTLE STREET
STREET

HO
RS

E 
M

AR
KE

T

BE
CK

ET
S 

VI
EW

RIVERSIDE W
AY

CLIFTON
VILLE ROAD

THE NURSERIES

ROAD

BEDFORD

BROW
N

'S W
AY

N
ORM

AN
-D-GATE

ST MICHAELS AVENUE

ST M
ICHAELS M

OUN
T

HOOD STREET

DERBY ROAD

COWPER STREET

COLWYN ROAD

COLWYN ROAD

BURNS STREET

SHAKESPEARE ROAD

GRAY STREET

DODDRIDGE

STREETPETER'S
ST

FR
EE

SC
HO

OL
 S

TR
EE

T

TOWCESTER ROAD

DODDRIDGE STREET

PI
KE

 L
AN

E

ST MARY'S STREET

THE GREEN

PHOENIX STREET

NORTHCOTE STREET

SEM
ILON

G ROAD

LOWER ADELAIDE STREET

MILL LANE

ADELAIDE STREET

MILL ROAD

SALISBURY STREET

LOWER HESTER

GORDON STREET

STREET

HESTER STREET

MARRIOTT STREET

HAMPTON STREET

ST GEORGE'S STREET

UPPER PRIORY STREET

HA
RD

IN
G 

TE
RR

AC
E

VICTORIA PROMENADE

W
OOD HILL

FE
TT

ER
 S

TR
EE

T

ST GILES' SQUARE

ANGEL STREET

VICTORIA GARDEN
S

ST PETER'S WAY
COMMERCIAL STREET

VICTORIA GARDENS

NELSON ST

LEICESTER STREET

BARRACK
ROAD

MILITA
RY COURT

CHARLES STREET

HU
N

TE
R 

ST
RE

ET

M
ILITARY ROAD

DUKE STREET

AUSTIN STREET

CRAVEN STREET

OAKLEY STREET

POOLE STREET

CLARE STREET
CHARLES STREET

BA
IL

IF
F S

TR
EE

T

STREET

THOMAS

W
IL

LI
AM

 S
TR

EE
T

TERRACE

SOMERSET STREET

CLOUTSHAM STREET

ALCOM
BE

KETTERING ROAD

CHAPEL PLACE

KETTERING GARDENS

ST MICHAEL'S ROAD

ST EDM
UN

D'S STREET

W
EST ST

WELLINGBOROUGH ROAD

VERN
ON

 STREET

ELIZABETH STREET
BOUVERIE ST

THE AVEN
UE

BILLING ROAD

BERKELEY CLOSE

PORTLAND PLACE

WELLINGBOROUGH ROAD

W
ILBERFORCE STREET

RAGLAN STREET

THENFORD MEWS

CH
EY

N
E 

W
AL

K

YORK ROAD

ST EDMUND'S ROAD

DEN
M

ARK ROAD

ALEXAN
DRA ROAD

PYTCHLEY STREET

THENFORD STREET

ECTON STREETST EDM
UNDS COURT

LUTTERW
ORTH ROAD

COVINGTON STREET

W
YCLIFFE ROAD

BILLING ROAD

LOYD ROAD

LUTTERW
ORTH ROADBARRY ROAD

COLLIN
S STREET

WELLINGBOROUGH RD

SOUTH TERRACE

W
ILBY STREET

CLIFTONVILLE

EDITH STREET

PALM
ERSTON

 ROAD

ETHEL STREET

CYRIL STREET

VICTORIA ROAD

WOODFORD STREET

BILLING ROAD

HAROLD STREET

PERRY STREET

DERBY ROAD

M
EW

S
OLD BLACKSM

ITHS

M
ANFIELD ROAD

ROSEHOLM
E ROAD

ADNITT ROAD

W
EL

LI
N

GB
OR

OU
GH

 R
OA

D

ROE ROAD

WANTAGE ROAD

ALLEN ROAD

PURSER ROAD

LEA ROAD

SHERIFF ROAD

TURNER STREET

M
AGEE

STREET

ADNITT ROAD

STIM
PSON

 AVEN
UE

BARONSON

WESTLEIGH CLOSE

GDNS

ALLEN ROAD

W
YCLIFFE ROAD

LOYD ROAD

M
ON

KS PARK ROAD

FLORENCE ROAD

PERCY ROAD

MONKS HALL ROAD

QUEENS ROAD

MARKET STREETBRUNSW
ICK

ALCOMBE ROAD

PLACE

EXETER PLACE

SPENCER ROAD

GROVE ROAD

TALBOT ROAD

PORTLAND PLACE

BILLING ROAD

CRANMERE AVENUE

CHIPSEY AVENUE

RUSHMERE AVENUE

ARDIN
GTON

 ROAD

CHRISTCHURCH ROAD

PARK AVENUE SOUTH

GP

Path (um)

Posts

Posts

Tra
ck

Path

Scarletw
ell Terrace

WBWB

Pa
th

Path

Pa
th

Pa
th

Track

Path

Path

Path

Path

Path

Path

Track

Pa
th

Path

Path

Path

Path Path

LION
 COURT

TREN
ERY W

AY

MALTHOUSE CLOSE

Towing Path

Riverside Walk

Track

Path

Track

Path

Track

Path

Track

Path

Post

Fitzroy Terrace

Si
m

on
's

 W
al

k

Subway
Subway

M
elbourne W

alk

Marble Arch

Drum
 Lane

St Peters W
alk

JEYES JETTY

Conduit Lane

Adelaide Place

Posts

St
 J

oh
ns

 S
ta

tio
n 

Pa
ss

ag
e

GP

Posts

Posts

Posts

Posts

Subw
ay

The Parade

Posts

Post

Subway

Shelter

GP

N
ar

ro
w

 T
oe

 L
an

e

GP

GP

Posts

Posts

Posts

Path

W
alk

Elizabeth

Vernon W
alk

Vernon Walk

Bouverie W
alk

Posts

GP

GP

GP

St Edm
und's

Terrace

GP

Path (um)

Woodford Walk

PAVILION COURT

W
alk

M
ar

ke
t W

alk

Bru
ns

wick

Track

El Sub Sta

El SubSta

El Sub Sta

ESS

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

Sta
Sub
El

Lock

Sub Sta
El

Public Park

Play
Area

El Sub
Sta

Foot Meadow

Car Park

El Sub Sta

Trees

Trees

ES
Ss

Car Park

Car Park

Miller's Meadow

Sloping m
asonry

Motor Lorry Park

Playground

Victoria Park

El Sub Sta

Depot

El
 S

ub
St

a

Area
Play

Trees

ESS

El
SubSta

El Sub Sta

Sub Sta

El

Delapre Park

Charterwood

El Sub Sta

Lock

Sta

Sub

Weir

Area
El Picnic

ESS

ESS

ESS

ESS

El Sub Sta

Midsummer Meadow
(Recreation Ground)

El Sub
Sta

COTTON END

ESS

El Sub Sta

Northampton Marina

Sta

El

Lock

Sub

Car Park

Sub StaEl

El Sub Sta

Yard

Car Park

Builders

Tennis Courts

ESSs

Car Park

ESS

El Sub Sta

Tennis Courts

Tennis Courts

El Sub Sta

Car Park

Play

Area

Area

Play

ESS

ESS

ESS

St Peter Square

Car Park

Memorial Square

Electricity Sub Station

El

Car
Park

Sub Sta

Car Park

El Sub Sta

ESS

Car
Park

RC Burial

Car Park

GroundBurial
Ground

Ramp

ESS

ESSs

Ramp

Car
Park

Car
Park

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

El Sub Sta

ESS

ESS

Sta

El
Sub

Sub Sta
El

Car
Park

Play Area

Play Area

Car Park

El Sub
Sta

Tennis Courts

Beckett's
Park

Car
Park

WB

Car Park

Park
CarBuildersYard

Area

Play

Play Area

Area

Area

Play Area

Play

Area

Play

Play

Play

Area

Sta
El Sub

ESS

Tennis Court

Tennis Court

ESS

Cemetery

El Sub
Sta

Yard

Cemetery

Play Area

Depot

Play Area

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

Builders

Bowling Green

Tennis Courts

Playground

Estate
Industrial

Industrial

Estate

Industrial
Estate

Industrial Estate

Park
Victoria Business

Industrial Estate

Industrial Estate

Industrial
Estate

Skatepark

Baulmsholme

NORTHAMPTON

Grosvenor Centre

Gas
Distribution

Sta

Estate

Industrial

Sports Ground

Sports Ground

Cricket Ground

Grand Union Canal

Northampton

Arm

Is
su

es

Northampton ArmGrand Union Canal

Dr
ai

n

Drain

Spreads

Dallington Brook

Brook

Dallington

Reservoir

Issues

Dallington

Brook

Drain

Lake

Drain

Drain

Drain

Sinks

Drain

Pond

Issues

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

Drain

Drain

Dr
ai

n

Ford

Drain
Drain

Flood Channel

Pond
Pond

Pond

Northampton Arm
Grand Union Canal

Drain

Drain

Spring

Pond

Dismantled Railway

SP

MP
0.5

M
P 

0.
25

MP
65.0

SL

S Gantry

S Gantry

Pt

MP 66.5

Wr

MP
66.0

MP
0.75

MP
0.5

SL

SP

SL

SLs
SL

SP

Dismantled Railway

MP 5.5

Dismantled Railway

MP
5.0

Dismantled Railway

MP 4.0

Dismantled Railway
SP

Dismantled Railway

MP70.5

MP 5.25

MP
70.75

Dismantled Railway

CR

ED & Ward Bdy

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

ED & Ward Bdy

CR
ED & Ward Bdy

ED & Ward Bdy

CR

CR

ED
 B

dy

CR

CR

ED Bdy

ED
 B

dy

CR

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

ED & Ward Bdy

ED
 &

 W
ar

d 
Bd

y

ED &
 W

ard Bdy

CR

ED
 B

dy

Def Ward Bdy

Ward Bdy

De
f

Co
 C

on
st

, E
D 

& 
W

ar
d 

Bd
y

Bo
ro

 C
on

st
 B

dy

Ward Bdy

Boro

Const Bdy

Co Const & ED Bdy

CR

Ward Bdy

ED &
 W

ard Bdy

ED &
Ward Bdy

Ward Bdy

CR

CS
CS

CR

ED & Ward Bdy

De
f

Bo
ro

 C
on

st
 B

dy

COCR

Co
 C

on
st

, E
D 

&
 W

ar
d 

Bd
y

Ward Bdy

COCR

W
ard Bdy

ED & Ward Bdy

CR

Boro Const, ED & W
ard Bdy

Boro Const,

ED &
 W

ard Bdy

Boro Const Bdy

Boro Const, ED &
 W

ard Bdy

CR

CW

ED &
 W

ard Bdy

Und

Boro Const Bdy

CR

ED & Ward Bdy

ED & Ward Bdy

ED & W
ard Bdy

Boro Const, ED & Ward Bdy

CP

CR

ED & Ward Bdy

CR

Def

Boro Const, ED & Ward Bdy

Boro Const, ED &
 W

ard Bdy

CP

Und Def

Boro Const,

ED & Ward Bdy

ED &

W
ard Bdy

ED & Ward Bdy

ED & Ward Bdy

ED
 &

W
ar

d 
Bd

y

ED &
Ward Bdy

Boro Const,

ED & Ward Bdy

CR

Boro Const,

ED & Ward Bdy

Boro Const,

ED & Ward Bdy

CR

CR

St Thomas a Beckett's
a Beckett's

Well

St Thomas

St Thomas' Hospital
(site of)

Manor House

ETL

ETL

ETL

ETL

ETL

ETL

Pipelines

River Nene

River
Nene

River Nene

River Nene

River Nene

River
Nene

(Old
Course)

River Nene

River Nene

River Nene

Tow Path

Cyan Magenta Yellow Black

Maps produced by Lovell Johns Ltd., Oxford, England.

96

95

94

93

97

98

99

00

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

4746454443 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77

0

0 1/2 1 mile

1 2 km

Scale 1 : 3,000

NORTHAMPTON LOCAL PLAN PART 2 - CENTRAL AREA INSET PLAN

N

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2018 Ordnance Survey licence no. 10019655.

Town Centre Boundary POLICY 7,8 & 11  

Central Area Boundary POLICY 7,8 & 11

Registered Battlefield POLICY 38

Northampton Railway Station, Rail Freight and Adjoining Sites POLICY 34

Greyfriars POLICY 37

Ransome Road POLICY 38

Primary Shopping Area POLICY 17 

Housing Allocation Sites POLICY 12

Employment Allocation Sites POLICY 16 

Mixed Use Allocation Sites POLICY 34 & 37

River Valley/Canal 

Safeguarded Employment Areas POLICY 15 

Conservation Areas POLICY 2 & 36

University of Northampton Waterside Campus POLICY 9

Enterprise Zone POLICY 15 

KEY

Open Space, Sports and Recreation POLICY 24

Parks and Gardens

Allotments

Natural and Semi Natural Green Space

Amenity Green Space

Churchyards and Cemeteries

Civic spaces

Teenage Facilities

Children’s Play

945



 
 

CABINET REPORT 

 
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Wards 

  
3rd April 2019 
 
No 
 
Yes 
 
Yes  
 
Planning services  
 
Councillor James Hill 
 
Trinity & Semilong 

 
 

1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To seek Cabinet approval to adopt a review of the Barrack Road Conservation 

Area Appraisal and Management Plan following public consultation in 
January-February 2019 and to agree to the re-drafting of the Barrack Road 
Conservation Area Article 4 Direction. 

 
2. Recommendations 
 It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 
2.1  approves the adoption of the Barrack road Conservation Area Re-appraisal 

and Management Plan (Appendix B), 
 
2.2    approves the re-drafting of the existing Barrack Road Conservation Area Article 

4 Direction to include all properties within the Conservation Area. 
 

3. Issues and Choices 
 
3.1     Report Background 
 

Report Title 
 

BARRACK ROAD CONSERVATION AREA RE-
APPRAISAL AND MANAGEMENT PLAN  

Appendices 2  

946

Agenda Item 10



3.1.1 A conservation area is defined in Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings 
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as “an area of special architectural or 
historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is desirable to 
preserve or enhance”. There are 21 conservation areas in Northampton. 
 

3.1.2 The purpose of a conservation area is not to prevent new development but to 
manage change in order to maintain, reinforce and, where possible, enhance 
the special character and quality that justifies designation.  Conservation area 
designation introduces controls over the way owners can alter or develop their 
properties and controls work to trees. Section 72 of the Act requires the 
Council, when considering planning applications, to pay special attention to 
the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of a 
conservation area. 
 

3.1.3 The Act also requires the Council to periodically review conservation areas to 
ensure that they still justify their special status and to determine whether 
boundary revisions are necessary. It also places a duty on the Council to 
formulate and publish proposals for the preservation and enhancement of its 
conservation areas.  
 

3.1.4 Planning policy on conservation areas is contained in the National Planning 
Policy Framework. This states (paragraph 186) that local planning authorities 
should ensure that an area justifies conservation area status because of its 
special architectural or historic interest and that the concept is not devalued 
through the designation of areas that lack special interest. Local planning 
authorities should also maintain and make publicly accessible up-to-date 
evidence about the historic environment (paragraph 187 & 188) 
 

3.1.5 To meet the Council’s statutory obligations, Conservation Area Appraisal and 
Management Plans are prepared and periodically reviewed. These aim to 
identify those features that contribute to the special character and appearance 
of a conservation area and provide the basis for making informed and 
sustainable planning decisions that aim to preserve and enhance the special 
quality. The documents are material considerations when the Council 
considers planning applications.  
 

3.2    Barrack Road Conservation Area Review 
  

3.2.1   Barrack Road Conservation Area was designated in 1987 and was extended 
in 1999. The Conservation Area includes properties facing Barrack Road, 
Marriott Street and part of St George’s Avenue and contains approximately 
150 properties. The last appraisal of the Conservation Area was undertaken in 
2006. An Article 4(2) Direction, requiring planning permission for alterations to 
the front elevation of properties, was made in 2000. 

 
3.2.2  A review of the Conservation Area has now been undertaken and takes 

account of changes in planning legislation since the previous appraisal was 
adopted (notably the introduction of the NPPF) and guidance on the content of 
conservation area appraisals issued by Historic England. Consultation on the 
draft re-appraisal was held between 14th January and 24th February 2019.  
Letters and explanatory leaflets were sent to all properties in the area and the 
appraisal was available for viewing on the Council’s web site, at the One-Stop 

947



Shop in the Guildhall and in the Central library. Ward members for Trinity and 
Semilong wards and the neighbourhood forum were also notified. 

 
 

3.3       Issues Arising 
 
3.3.1 Responses were received from five individual residents, the Barrack road 

Conservation Group and from Councillor Birch. A schedule of the comments 
received and the officer response is included at Appendix A. Where 
appropriate, suggestions and factual corrections have been incorporated into 
the Barrack Road Re-appraisal and Management Plan that is recommended 
for adoption (Appendix B). The responses can be summarised as follows: 

 
3.3.2  Conservation Area designation 

 
Although the level of public response was low, the responses received 
confirm support for the continuation of the Conservation Area and recognise 
its value in maintaining the special character of the area. It is therefore 
proposed that the Conservation Area be retained. There were no suggestions 
to alter the existing boundary, 

 
3.3.3 Article 4 Direction 

 
The consultation also asked if there was support to extend the existing Article 
4(2) Direction to include all properties within the Conservation Area? (At 
present, six conservation areas in Northampton have an Article 4 direction in 
place; unlike the other five which cover the whole of the conservation area, 
the Barrack Road Article 4(2) direction applies to individual properties that 
were known to be single dwelling houses at the time the Order was drafted in 
2000, on the basis that planning permission was already required to make 
alterations to non-dwellinghouses. This has led to some confusion as to 
whether planning permission is required to make alterations to individual 
properties. In order to be consistent and to avoid further confusion, it is 
proposed that the Article 4(2) schedule be be-redrafted to cover the whole of 
the Conservation Area).  No objections were received to the suggestion. 

  
 

3.4 Choices (Options) 
 

3.4.1 Cabinet could choose to: 
a) adopt the Barrack Road Conservation Area Re-appraisal and Management 

Plans with changes made as a result of the consultation, as recommended; 
b) adopt the Re-appraisal and Management Plans  with other changes, or; 
c) adopt the Re-appraisal and Management Plans with no changes. 
 

3.4.2  Option a) is considered the most appropriate as it would provide the 
Conservation Area with an up-to-date Appraisal and Management Plans that has 
been subject to public consultation.  

 
 
 

4. Implications (including financial implications) 

948



 
4.1  Policy 

 
4.1.1 Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990 states that it is the duty of a local planning authority from time to time to 
review conservation areas and to determine whether any further parts of their 
area should be designated as conservation areas.  
 

4.1.2 The re-appraisal is in accordance with policy contained in the National 
Planning Policy Framework and recent guidance produced by Historic 
England. Policy E26 of the Northampton Local Plan is also relevant. 
 

 
4.2   Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1 Designating and reviewing conservation areas is a statutory duty and is part of 

the remit of the Policy, Heritage and Environment group. There will be some 
financial cost in advertising by statutory press notice the alteration to the 
Article 4 Direction and will be met through the existing Conservation service 
budget. The costs associated with any possible future enhancement projects 
will be considered separately and would be the subject of a separate report 
 

4.2.2  Adoption of the Appraisal and Management Plan will assist the Council in 
safeguarding the special character and appearance of the Conservation Areas 
as they will be material considerations in the determination of planning 
applications and planning appeals. Without up-to-date Appraisals, there is a 
danger that the special interest and character that justified designation could 
be eroded.   
 
 

 
4.3   Legal 

 
4.3.1 The re-drafting of the Article 4 Direction will require the input of Legal Services 

and the notice will require to be advertised in the local press. Residents within 
the Conservation Area would also be notified.  
 

4.4 Equality and Health 
 
4.4.1 No significant adverse impacts on those with protected characteristics have 

been identified. An Equality Impact Assessment Screening has been 
undertaken and approved. 
 

 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 Individual letters and a leaflet summarising the draft appraisal were sent to all 

properties in the Conservation Areal. The ward members were also consulted.  
 
 

 
 

949



4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 The appraisals relate to strategies in the Corporate Plan to protect the 

environment and Love Northampton by celebrating the town’s history and 
heritage.  
 

4.7 Other implications 
 
4.7.1   None 
 
 
5. Background Papers 
 
5.1 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act, 1990 Section 69; 
5.2      Paragraphs 186,187 & 188 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(published   by HM Government, July 2018); 
5.3       Historic England Advice Note 1 – Conservation Area Designation, Appraisal 
and Management (Historic England, February 2016).  
 

 
6.0 Appendices 

 
Appendix A:  Summary of responses received  
Appendix B:  Draft Barrack Road Conservation Area Re-appraisal and Management 
Plan 

 
 

950



1 

 

          Appendix A 

 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Re-appraisal - Summary 
of consultation responses 
Results of public consultation held between 14th January - 24th February 2019 
(Officer’s response, where appropriate, is in italics). 

 

Councillor Birch 

Local residents are working on a Neighbourhood Plan for the area including 
Semilong, St George’s Avenue and The Racecourse and the information on the 
heritage aspects will be very helpful 

 

 (Officer response: Noted; the conservation area re-appraisal would be 
complementary to any forthcoming Neighbourhood Plan). 

 

Barrack Road Conservation Group 

The group welcome the draft appraisal and the suggestion of extending the Article 4 
direction to include all properties, which will not only avoid confusion but help to 
maintain the special character of the area; it presents an opportunity to undo some of 
the inappropriate refurbishments that have taken place over the years.  The area is 
at risk of gradual erosion of its character by installation of inappropriate windows, 
satellite dishes and signage and the lack of maintenance or removal of boundary 
walls or gates. The area has suffered from the conversion of family homes to 
multiple occupancy properties. 

(The support of the Conservation Group is welcome. The extension of the Article 4 
Direction to include all properties would not involve any extra restrictions, since 
planning permission is already require to make alterations to properties which are 
not dwelling houses, but it would help to avoid confusion that has arisen as to 
whether individual properties are covered by the restrictions. The concern in respect 
of the number of HIMOs is noted but the size of many of the houses means that they 
may not be viable as single dwellings. Simplifying the schedule of properties covered 
by the Article 4 and greater awareness of the planning restrictions is intended to help 
to maintain the character and appearance of the area).  

 

 
 

 

951



2 

 

  

Individual responses: 

- The character of the area has generally been maintained as an area of 
historic significance that adds to Northampton’s overall historic interest. Need 
to ensure we keep this beautiful area to showcase the town by maintaining 
the conservation area and the Article 4 direction. 

-  

- Very important to maintain the conservation area; maintaining the beautiful 
properties and controlling development will help to uphold a sense of pride in 
the area. 

 

- Negative features:  the amount, speed and noise of heavy articulated lorry 
traffic on Barrack road causes disturbance and potential damage to 
properties; 

- Cracked pavements on Elysian Terrace need replacement; 

- Vacant ground and graffiti on corner of St Agnes Road detracts from the 
appearance of the area; 

- Listed properties are not being maintained correctly.  

(Some of the concerns are outside of the scope of a Conservation Area Appraisal 
but will be forwarded to the relevant body. The overgrown site at the corner of St 
Agnes Road is recognised as a negative feature and possible action will be 
investigated. Owners of listed buildings are encouraged but are not under a legal 
obligation to maintain their property, but officers are not aware of any 
unauthorised work). 

 

 

 

 

 

 
        

 

952



 

 

BARRACK ROAD 
 CONSERVATION AREA RE-APPRAISAL  

AND MANAGEMENT PLAN  
 

 
 

Consultation Draft December 2018 

 

 

953

MBurgess
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by MBurgess

MBurgess_1
Text Box
APPENDIX B



1. Introduction 

1.1 A conservation area is defined as “an 
area of special architectural or historic 
interest, the character or appearance of 
which it is desirable to preserve or 
enhance” (Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act, 1990 Section 69.   

The Act requires local planning authorities 
to review conservation areas from time to 
time to determine whether new areas 
should be designated, boundaries revised 
or whether designation should be 
cancelled if an area no longer possesses 
special interest.  The Council is also 
required to formulate and publish 
proposals for the preservation and 
enhancement of conservation areas. 

Conservation areas were introduced 
under the Civic Amenities Act of 1967 and 
there are now 21 designated conservation 
areas in Northampton. Barrack Road 
Conservation Area was designated in 
February 1987 and the boundary 
extended in 1999; the last review was 
undertaken in 2006. The Conservation 
Area covers approximately 8.5 hectares, 
making it one of the smallest of 
Northampton’s conservation areas and the 
boundary is shown on Map 1.  An Article 
4(2) Direction (which means that planning 
permission is required to alter the front 
elevation of houses) came into effect on 20 
October 2000; for reference, the existing 
Article 4 direction is attached as Appendix 
1.  

 

1.2 The purpose of a conservation area 

 “The contribution that historic areas 
make to our quality of life is widely 
recognised. They are a link to the past 
that can give us a sense of continuity 
and stability and they have the 
reassurance of the familiar which can 
provide a point of reference in a rapidly 
changing world. The way building 

traditions and settlement patterns are 
superimposed and survive over time 
will be unique to each area. This local 
distinctiveness can provide a catalyst 
for regeneration and inspire well 
designed new development which 
brings economic and social benefits. 
Change is inevitable.”  
Historic England: “Conservation Area 
Designation, Appraisal and 
Management”, February 2016  

It is not the purpose of a conservation area 
to prevent new development but to 
manage change, in order to maintain, 
reinforce and enhance the special 
character and quality of the area that 
justifies its special status. It requires that 
new work in or adjacent to a conservation 
area either preserves or enhances the 
character or appearance of the area.   
 
The controls within Barrack Road 
Conservation Area can be summarised as: 

• Most demolition requires 
permission and will be resisted if 
the building makes a positive 
contribution to the character and 
appearance of the area; 

• Alterations to the external 
appearance of houses require 
planning permission where the 
work would be visible from a 
highway. Examples are side and 
front extensions, rear extensions 
more than one storey high, 
replacement of windows and doors, 
alterations to the roof (including re-
roofing with a different material, 
insertion of rooflights or dormer 
windows), addition or removal of 
chimneys or flue pipes, addition of 
an entrance porch, removal or 
alteration of front boundary walls 
and gates, cladding or painting the 
walls of buildings and the 
installation of satellite dishes on the 
front elevation;  

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 1
954



• A higher standard of design applies 
for new buildings and for 
extensions and alterations to 
existing buildings;   

•        The Borough Council is required to 
be   notified of most work to trees 
six weeks before the work is due to 
take place. 

In addition to statutory legislative and local 
planning controls, the following 
opportunities for the enhancement have 
been identified: 
 

• Encourage the preservation and 
reinstatement of historic detailing 
on buildings within the 
Conservation Area.  

• Promote the sympathetic 
management of open space and 
the public realm.  

• Establish a list of locally significant 
buildings. 

• Promote retention of trees which 
contribute to the appearance of the 
area.  
 

1.3 Barrack Road Conservation Area 
Appraisal and Management Plan, 2006 

An Appraisal and Management Plan for 
the Conservation Area was adopted by 
Northampton Borough Council in 
December 2006. This review updates the 
previous Appraisal and Management Plan 
to comply with guidance now contained in 
Historic England’s Advice Note No.1 
“Conservation Area Designation, 
Appraisal and Management”, issued in 
February 2016. The review also re-
assesses the Conservation Area to ensure 
that it continues to justify its status as an 
area of special architectural or historic 
interest.  
The Appraisal and Management Plan is 
intended to provide guidance for owners 
and occupiers on how the preservation 
and enhancement of the character and 
appearance of the area can be achieved. 
It will also provide a sound basis for the 

assessment of planning applications and 
will be a material consideration when 
Northampton Borough Council, as local 
planning authority, considers planning 
applications within the Conservation Area 
or which impact upon its appearance or 
setting.   
 

2.   Planning policy context 

Conservation areas sit within national 
planning legislation, regional policy and 
local planning policies. 
2.1 National planning policy  

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
requires the local planning authority to pay 
special attention to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or 
appearance of conservation areas when 
considering planning applications. 

The major change to planning legislation 
since the previous appraisal was adopted 
is the introduction of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) in 2012. This 
document in itself was revised in 2018.  

The NPPF identifies conservation areas 
as designated heritage assets. The 
following paragraphs in the new NPPF are 
relevant: 

Paragraph 186: local planning authorities 
should ensure that an area justifies 
conservation area status because of its 
special architectural or historic interest 
and that the concept is not devalued 
through the designation of areas that lack 
special interest. 

Paragraph 188: local planning authorities 
should make information about the 
significance of the historic environment 
publicly accessible.   

Paragraph 189: applicants for planning 
permission should describe the 
significance of any heritage asset affected.  

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 2
955



Paragraph 192: in determining planning 
applications, the desirability of sustaining 
and enhancing the significance of heritage 
assets should be taken into account. 

Paragraph 193: when considering the 
impact of a proposed development on the 
significance of a designated heritage 
asset, great weight should be given to the 
asset’s conservation, irrespective of the 
level of harm; significance can be harmed 
through development within its setting.  

Paragraph 195: substantial harm to a 
designated heritage asset should be 
refused consent unless necessary to 
achieve substantial public benefit. 

Paragraph 196: less than substantial harm 
should be weighed against the public 
benefits of the proposal. 

Paragraph 200: local planning authorities 
should look for opportunities for new 
development within conservation areas to 
enhance or better reveal their significance. 

Paragraph 201: loss of a building that 
makes a positive contribution to the 
significance of a conservation area should 
be treated either as substantial harm or 
less than substantial harm, taking into 
account the significance of the building 
and its contribution to the conservation 
area. 

2.2  Regional policy  

The West Northamptonshire Joint Core 
Strategy 2014 sets out the long-term vision 
and objectives for the area until 2029, 
including strategic policies for steering and 
shaping development. Policy BN5 states: 
designated and non-designated heritage 
assets and their settings and landscapes 
will be conserved and enhanced in 
recognition of their individual and 
cumulative significance and contribution to 
West Northamptonshire's local 
distinctiveness and sense of place.  

 

2.3  Northampton Local Plan, 1997 

Saved Policy E26: new development to 
preserve or enhance the character and 
appearance of conservation areas. 

 

3. Assessment of special interest  

3.1 Location and setting 
Barrack Road Conservation Area is 
situated approximately one kilometre north 
of Northampton town centre and 
comprises approximately 150 properties 
within Semilong and Trinity wards.  
Barrack Road rises steadily away from the 
town centre.  To the west, the land drops 
away towards the shallow valley of the 
northern arm of the River Nene, while to 
the east the land is fairly level towards The 
Racecourse. To the north of the 
Conservation Area, the land sharply drops 
towards Kingsthorpe Hollow, creating 
some considerable level differences. 
The Conservation Area extends for 
approximately half a kilometre from Arnold 
Road to Leicester Terrace, largely 
comprising the terraced properties that 
front both sides of the main road (A508) 
that runs north from the town centre 
towards Market Harborough. To the east, 
the boundary is drawn to the rear of the 
properties fronting Barrack Road, 
extending east at St George's Avenue to 
include the properties as far as Brick Kiln 
Lane before returning to follow the rear 
boundaries of  properties fronting 
Kingsthorpe Road.  The western boundary 
is also drawn to the rear of the properties 
fronting Kingsthorpe Road, extending 
westwards at Cathedral House to include 
properties in Marriott Street before 
returning to follow the rear boundaries of  
properties fronting Barrack Road. 
 
 
 
 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 3
956



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Prevailing uses 
Due primarily to the size of the properties 
and the proximity to the town centre, 
relatively few of the houses remain in 
single family occupation, with a large 
number being in multiple  occupation as 
flats. Buildings have also been converted 
to a variety of commercial and professional 
uses, including offices, clinics and hotels, 
whilst Bosworth College occupy a number 
of properties. The former Barratts shoe 
factory has been converted into business 
units. Few properties are vacant and there 
has been little change in the mix of uses 
since the previous review. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Historic development and 
archaeology 

5.1 The local Sites and Monuments 
Record identifies a number of sites where 
finds of archaeological interest have been 
recorded in and around the Barrack Road 
Conservation Area:  that of the medieval 
Church of St Bartholomew (on the east 
side Barrack Road south of The 
Racecourse entrance) is the most 
significant.  None, however, appears to 
have had a perceptible impact on the 
nineteenth century development of the 
area. 
5.2 Barrack Road follows the route of the 
medieval road from the Town’s former 
north gate.  It became a turnpike road in 

 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 4
957



the 1720s as a part of the London to 
Holyhead mail road. 
5.3 Semilong Road, too, pre-dates the 
development of the area.  The earliest 
available map of the Barrack Road area – 
the 1778 New Allotments Map – shows 
Barrack Road / Kingsthorpe Road and 
Semilong Road on their existing 
alignments flanked by fields and closes. 
5.4 In the nineteenth century Northampton 
experienced a rapid growth in population.  
This led to small stretches of high quality 
residential development spilling over on to 
land adjoining the old medieval town, 
including to the north of the town along 
Barrack Road.  However, development in 
the area was initially relatively slow and 
began in 1796 with the construction of 
Gibraltar Barracks (which gave the road its 
name).  The area of land between Regent 
Square and the Barracks (on both sides) 
followed, being developed between circa 
1820 and the early 1830s. 
5.5 Within the Conservation Area, 
development had begun around 1820 with 
the construction of La Belle Alliance 
Cottage (now replaced by The Poplars).  
Leicester Terrace and Adelaide Terrace 
were developed on a piecemeal basis from 
circa 1832 through to 1851.  The only 
other building within the conservation area 
to be developed during the early part of the 
nineteenth century was the Roman 
Catholic Chapel of St Andrew, built in 
1825, and now incorporated into the 
Cathedral complex. 
5.6 From the mid-1850s, development 
started to spread rapidly northwards 
towards Kingsthorpe Hollow.  Existing 
roads were widened and paved and new 
roads, such as Hester Street and Marriott 
Street, were cut and development plots 
laid out.  By the late 1860s the existing 
street pattern within the conservation area 
and its immediate surroundings was 
essentially complete, although many 
building plots still remained undeveloped. 
5.7 To the north of the Barrack Road / St 
George's Avenue junction, the majority of 
residential properties within the 

conservation area are built on land 
purchased by the Freehold Land Society.  
The aim of the Society was to extend the 
vote to some of the excluded working 
classes by enabling them to qualify as 
freeholders of property.  To do so, the 
society purchased small estates of land 
and sold plots at cost to subscribers.   
5.8 The first land purchased by the 
Northampton Freehold Land Society was 
in 1851 and comprised land on the west 
side of Kingsthorpe Road, extending from 
the Cathedral to St Paul's Road and land 
to the north of St George's Avenue, 
between Kingsthorpe Road and Brick Kiln 
Lane.  Further plots fronting Kingsthorpe 
Road (now St George's Place and Elysium 
Terrace) were purchased by the Society in 
the 1850s and 1860s, and developed. 
5.9 By the end of the 19th century, 
development within the Conservation Area 
was essentially complete, as shown in the 
Ordnance Survey map of 1900 (below).  
Notable late infillings included the Queen 
Victoria Nursing Institution building (still 
known as the Queen’s Building) and 
former Primrose Hill Congregation 
Church, both of which date from circa 
1900, and the Barratt Shoe Factory of 
1913. 
5.10 Appendix 2 sets out the chronological 
development of the Conservation Area in 
further detail. 
 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 5
958



 
Barrack Road in 1900 © Crown copyright  

 
6. Architectural quality and built form 
The following analysis aims to identify the 
area's main architectural and historic 
qualities, the dominant architectural styles 
and discernible areas of distinct 
townscape value.  
Map 1 shows the boundary of the 
Conservation Area and identifies areas of 
differing character within it. A number of 
buildings are statutorily listed as being of 
special architectural or historic interest 
and the schedule of listed buildings is 
attached as Appendix 3. However, the 
Conservation Area also contains a number 
of other buildings that, although not of 
national importance, are of local 

architectural or historic interest and make 
a positive contribution to its character and 
appearance; these will be considered for 
inclusion in a proposed Local Heritage List 
for Northampton and a schedule is 
included as Appendix 4. The list is not 
exhaustive and the absence of a particular 
building does not imply that it is not of 
significance within the Conservation Area. 
The location of all statutorily listed and 
potentially locally listed buildings is shown 
on Map 2. 
 
6.1 Character Areas 
Although the Conservation Area is small, it 
is possible to identify several distinctive 
parts within it.   
 
6.1.1 Barrack Road 
Barrack Road forms part of the A508, the 
main, heavily-trafficked route to the town 
centre from the north.  It is a wide road, 
which gives the area a sense of 
spaciousness that is further enhanced by 
the buildings being well set back from the 
street.  The character of the streetscape is 
greatly eroded by the visual intrusion 
caused by the constant traffic and through 
air and noise pollution.  The number and 
poor condition of road traffic signs detracts 
further from the quality of the street scene. 
On the west side of Barrack Road, 
Leicester Terrace forms the southern limit 
of the Conservation Area and are the 
earliest residential properties in the 
Conservation Area (circa 1832-51). Nos.1-
3 Leicester Terrace are modest, early 19th 
century ashlar sandstone houses, while 
Nos. 4-7 form a later, symmetrical red 
brick terrace with stone detailing.  No.8 
Leicester Terrace is a striking Regency 
style house, with stuccoed elevations and 
pilasters. All of Leicester Terrace is listed 
grade II on account of its value as a group 
of architectural and historic interest.   
Nos. 1-3 Adelaide Terrace form a 
particularly handsome and striking group, 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 6
959



 
1-3 Adelaide Terrace 

Being designed as a symmetrical 
composition with a recessed centre in 
which there is a striking arcaded balcony 
at first floor level.  Overall, the two terraces 
have a simple uniformity that results from 
both their scale and the use of simplified 
classical detailing, and have a positive 
effect on the conservation area.   
Since the previous appraisal, the 
replacement of unsympathetic windows at 
No.5 Adelaide Terrace has helped to 
improve the overall appearance of the 
terrace.   

 
4-7 Adelaide Terrace 

The advertisements on the front of 7 
Adelaide Terrace detract from the 
appearance of the Conservation Area.   
Leicester Parade, north of Adelaide 
Terrace, was constructed in the last 20 
years of the 19th century and contains a 
number of buildings of high architectural 
quality.  The most notable of these are 
1-4 Leicester Parade, a Jacobean style 
building; 5 Leicester Parade (formerly 

Langham House) an Italianate building; 
and the Queen’s Building, built in a 
Renaissance style. 
The buildings in Leicester Parade are set 
back behind the building line of Leicester 
and Adelaide Terrace, providing them with 
larger front gardens that reflect the 
grander scale of these properties.  They 
retain their original stone dwarf boundary 
walls and gate piers, adding to both the 
grandeur of these buildings and imparting 
a rhythm in the street scene, e.g. the front 
balustraded wall to the Queen’s Building 
(restored 1997).   
 

 
Queen’s Building, Leicester Parade 

The gap site between 5 Leicester Parade 
and the Queen’s Building gives this group 
a somewhat disjointed appearance and 
detracts from the overall quality of the 
street scene; its development would 
provide an opportunity for enhancing the 
terrace and Conservation Area generally.  
 
On the east side of Barrack Road, The 
Poplars dates from circa 1865 and is a 
fine, classical building constructed of 
cream bricks with stone dressings. The 
property was originally set in extensive 
grounds that have been subdivided; the 
modern building occupying the southern 
part of the grounds is out of character with 
the area as a whole and is not included 
within the Conservation Area. The modern 
brick wall to the front of The Poplars also 
detracts from the setting of the building.  

  
  

 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 7
960



 

 
The Poplars 

The entrance to The Racecourse, next to 
The Poplars, was refurbished in 1997; the 
ornamental trees that line the entrance 
planted at that time have a positive impact 
on the Conservation Area. However, the 
telecommunication box situated in front of 
the railings at the entrance is unsightly and 
attracts graffiti; moving the box to a less 
prominent and vulnerable location is 
desirable. 
 

 
1-8 Langham Place 

Langham Place dominates the east side of 
Barrack Road and is one of the finest 
terraces in Northampton. The terrace was 
built over a number of years rather than as 
a single block but has a uniformity of 
design resulting from the use of simplified 
classical detailing (though the northern 
part, Nos. 9-28, display Italianate 
features). It has a positive effect on the 
street scene.   
The terrace retains many original features 
although, where unsympathetic alterations 

have been carried out, they have had a 
negative effect upon the overall 
appearance.   
Nos.1-8 Langham Place retain their 
original stone dwarf walls and gate piers 
and the generosity of their proportions 
adds to the grandeur of these buildings.  
The treatment of the boundaries to the 
remainder of this terrace shows a variety 
of designs and materials and generally 
have a neutral effect on the street scene.   
 
6.1.2 The Cathedral and Marriott Street 
Bosworth College (formerly Nazareth 
House), the Roman Catholic Cathedral of 
Our Lady Immaculate and St Thomas, and 
Cathedral House form the nucleus of the 
Conservation Area. 
Bosworth College is an impressive 
building in Late Gothic style. The building 
still retains many original features, 
including the dwarf front boundary wall and 
gate piers.  The trees situated in front of 
the property have a positive effect upon 
the local street scene. 

 
R. C. Cathedral of St Mary & St Thomas 

The Roman Catholic Cathedral has grown 
from a small chapel, adjacent to which 
Augustus Welby Pugin built a Collegiate 
chapel in 1844, itself enlarged by his son, 
Edward Welby Pugin in 1863 and then 
substantially extended between 1948-55 
by Albert Herbert, with the east end 
replaced by a crossing tower, transepts 
and chancel. The Cathedral, by virtue of 
the size and scale of the modern 
rebuilding, forms an important landmark, 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 8
961



particularly when viewed from St George's 
Avenue and in views looking into the 
Conservation Area from Kingsthorpe 
Hollow and beyond.   
Cathedral House forms an integral part of 
the Cathedral complex.  The house, which 
dates from circa 1825, is an attractive 
three bay Georgian townhouse that retains 
many its original features.  It is well set 
back from the road, creating a large front 
garden area that was originally extensively 
landscaped but has now been paved over 
to provide car parking for the cathedral.  
The extensive paving detracts from the 
setting of the buildings and this part of the 
conservation area.  However, a number of 
mature trees still remain around the 
perimeter of the site and make a positive 
contribution to the local environment.   
Marriott Street is a straight road with a 
falling gradient from Barrack Road to 
Semilong Road.  The views along this 
street are terminated to the east by 
Langham Place and to the west by one of 
a series of terraces that front on to 
Semilong Road. 
The south side of Marriott Street is 
essentially formed by a single two / three 
storey red brick terrace of a 
straightforward Victorian design.  Though 
developed in piecemeal fashion, it 
appears to have been designed as a single 
symmetrical composition. The previous 
appraisal noted that the terrace was not 
completed and single storey garage units 
gave the terrace a disjointed and 
fragmented appearance. Since then, infill 
development of the garage site in 
matching scale and design to the terrace 
(below) has enhanced the street scene, 
although the difficulty in matching original 
19th century locally made bricks is 
apparent.  
The south-west corner of Marriott Street is 
formed by an attractive three-bay Victorian 

 
townhouse that retains many of its original 
features.  Although it forms part of the 
terrace fronting on to Semilong Road, its 
main entrance fronts directly on to Marriott 
Street and appears in this street as a large 
single detached property. 
 

 
2 Marriott Street 

The Bishop’s House occupies much of the 
north side of Marriott Street.  The house 
was designed in a Neo-Gothic style and 
remains substantially unaltered.  It is set in 
extensive grounds and the general 
structure of the original garden still 
remains intact.  The boundary wall has 
recently been repointed and, together with 
the tree and shrub planting, have a 
positive effect upon the appearance of the 
street. 
Dense on-street car parking detracts from 
the amenity of Marriott Street. There has 
also been some loss of original timber 
windows and replacement with upvc since 
the last review was undertaken. 
 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 9
962



6.1.3 Kingsthorpe Road 
Kingsthorpe Road forms a continuation of 
Barrack Road and shares many of its 
characteristics.  The road descends about 
12m from its junction with Barrack Road to 
Kingsthorpe Hollow, and curves subtly 
along most of its length. 
In the main, the properties in the terraces 
Primrose Hill, St George's Place, and 
Elysium Terrace are of a straightforward 
Victorian design.  Most have a unity of 
architectural style that results from their 
scale and character, simplified classical 
detailing with occasional flourishes of 
Victorian gothic, and a limited palette of 
materials.  The notable exceptions to this 
are 23-24 Primrose Hill, which are later in 
date and built in a similar style to the 
buildings in St Paul's Terrace. 
 

 
St Paul's Terrace 

St Paul's Terrace (and 23-4 Primrose Hill) 
date from circa 1882 and their general 
design is influenced by the Arts and Crafts 
Movement.  They contrast stylistically with 
the straightforward red brick Victorian 
townhouses that dominate this street.  
Despite these differences, the buildings 
are consistent in terms of their scale and 
mass with the other properties in 
Kingsthorpe Road and do not, therefore, 
appear out of context with their 
surroundings.  
Many of the buildings within these terraces 
have suffered from inappropriate 
alterations to windows, doors, roof 
coverings and boundary walls and railings.  

A considerable number of gate piers, 
however, still remain and where they have 
been retained in sufficient numbers, as in 
St Paul's Terrace, they impart a rhythm to 
the street.   
The overgrown site at the corner of 
Primrose Hill and St Paul’s Road detracts 
from the streetscene but is not deep 
enough for development.   
 
 
 

 
Primrose Hill Congregational Church 

Primrose Hill Congregational Church, 
situated to the north of St Paul's Terrace, 
is an attractive classical building that was 
converted to flats in 2005.  It makes a 
noteworthy landmark in the Conservation 
Area.  The modern flats located 
immediately to the north of the former 
Primrose Hill Congregational Church mark 
the northern boundary of the Conservation 
Area; partly screened by lime trees on the 
front, they have a neutral impact on the 
character of the Conservation Area. 
The converted former Barratt Shoe 
Factory stands on the east side of 
Kingsthorpe Road at the northern 
entrance to the Conservation Area.  The 
building was designed in 1913 by 
MacVicar Anderson in a Neo-Baroque 
style and is an important landmark when 
viewed from Kingsthorpe Hollow.  
Although larger in scale than the 
surrounding residential properties, it 
exploits its lower topographical position 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 10
963



well and, as a consequence of this, does 
not appear out of context with the overall 
character and form of this area.  The 
Barratt Shoe Factory is listed grade II. 

 
The “Footshape Works” of Barratts Shoe 
Factory 

6.1.4 St George’s Avenue 
St George's Avenue is a long straight road 
with development on the north side facing 
The Racecourse. The properties between 
Barrack Road and Brick Kiln Lane (known 
as St George’s Terrace) are included in 
Barrack Road Conservation Area; The 
Racecourse and the remainder of St 
George’s Avenue are within the adjoining 
Kingsley Conservation Area. 
The majority of the properties within St 
George’s Terrace are of a straightforward 
red brick Victorian design.  The notable 
exception to this is no. 8, which is 
constructed of coursed rubble and has 
canted bay windows extending through 
two storeys with half-gabled dormer 
windows above.  Despite the stylistic 
differences of this building, it remains 
consistent in terms of its scale and mass 
with the other Victorian properties in this 
terrace and does not appear out of context 
with its surroundings.   
Many of the buildings in St George’s 
Terrace have suffered from inappropriate 
replacement of original windows, doors 
and boundary walls, and these works have 
had a detrimental effect upon the overall 
appearance of this terrace. There are also 
some 1930s infill houses which are smaller 
in scale and have a disruptive effect upon 

the regularity of the terrace, although they 
do not detract from the overall quality of 
the street scene. 
 
6.2 Building materials and details 
Buildings within the Conservation Area are 
constructed either of stone or, in the case 
of Victorian properties, red brick, whilst the 
front elevation of a number of the Regency 
style properties are faced in painted stucco 
or render.   
Roofs are traditionally covered in either 
Welsh slate or plain clay tiles, though 
replacement concrete tiles are now very 
common, and the majority were 
constructed with the ridges running 
parallel to the street.  Chimney-stacks are 
generally ridge-mounted and of a simple 
rectangular design. 
Timber windows and doors are an 
important feature of the Conservation 
Area's quality and character.  The 
doorways are generally of a simple design 
with the doors and fanlights slightly 
recessed.  There are a variety of window 
designs with double-hung sash windows, 
each sash divided into four panes, being 
the most common type.   
Decorative relief to the windows in the 
form of stone sills, architraves, cornices 
with console brackets and stone lintels are 
common and are generally painted.  Many 
of the properties have bay windows 
extending from the basement through to 
the ground floor while some of the grander 
properties on Langham Place have 
retained wrought iron balconies to first 
floor windows. Dormer windows are rare 
and, where they do occur, form part of the 
overall composition of the building.  
Many of the properties previously suffered 
from unsympathetic alterations to 
windows, doors, roofs, architectural details 
and the treatment of their boundaries and 
this has had a negative effect upon the 
appearance of the area. In order to prevent 
further erosion of its historic character, an 
Article 4 Direction was made in 2000, 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 11
964



requiring planning permission for 
alterations to the front elevation of houses.  
 
6.3 Boundary walls 
A distinguishing feature of most of the 
properties within the Conservation Area 
are front boundary walls, usually of brick 
with some stone and traditionally topped 
with wrought iron railings and with 
matching pedestrian gates. The retention 
of boundary walls is important to the 
character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area and their removal is 
prevented by the Article 4 direction.  
  
6.4 Key views and vistas  
From the south, the vista along Barrack 
Road is contained, for much of its length, 
by trees that not only give the area a 
verdant feel but also help to draw the eye 
into the Conservation Area and frame the 
distant view from Kingsthorpe Hollow. The 
views south, out of the Conservation Area 
lack the same sense of containment due to 
a breakdown in the historic building 
pattern, and do not contribute to the 
character of the Conservation Area. 
Approaching the Conservation Area from 
the north, the rise and curve of the road 
draws the eye. This is emphasised by 
more recent buildings outside the 
Conservation Area being on a building line 
further away from the road.  The buildings 
on the east side of the road initially contain 
the view.  However, from the Barratt Shoe 
factory southwards, the vista along the 
Kingsthorpe Road opens up and is 
dominated by the tall central reservation 
street lighting.  Views north out of the 
Conservation Area do not contribute to its 
character, primarily due to the lack of 
visual containment and break down of the 
original building and street pattern. 
Entering St George’s Avenue from 
Barrack Road/Kingsthorpe Road, a strong 
sense of enclosure is initially created by 
the two corner properties fronting directly 
on to the main road.  Beyond these 
buildings, the view along St George’s 

Avenue starts to open out and benefits 
from a sense of spacious created by 
St George’s Terrace being set back from 
the street and the openness of The 
Racecourse.  The trees that line The 
Racecourse provide the street with a 
verdant feel and make an important 
contribution to the visual amenity of this 
road.  The Cathedral terminates the view 
west along St George’s Avenue. 
The carriageway of Barrack Road/ 
Kingsthorpe Road is wide and, in 
conjunction with the set-back of the three-
storey terraces that line it, provides a 
spacious boulevard.  This feeling of space 
is further enhanced by the glimpses of 
Racecourse available from its entrance 
and from St George’s Avenue.  The side 
roads are narrower and quieter and have 
a calmer feel to the main road. 
 
6.5 Public Realm 
Footways throughout the area are 
generally rectangular concrete paving 
slabs laid in a simple staggered pattern 
with granite or concrete kerbstones.  
Carriageways are tarmacked, with a 
central reservation running down much of 
Barrack Road/Kingsthorpe Road.  Due to 
the status of Barrack Road/Kingsthorpe 
Road, there is a large number of road 
signs and street lights, which contribute 
towards a cluttered appearance. 
 
6.6 Greenery 
The majority of buildings are set behind 
small front gardens with low boundary 
walls, within which trees and shrubs were 
originally planted: Limes are the most 
common tree species.  North of St 
George’s Avenue, where the land begins 
to drop towards Kingsthorpe Hollow, the 
terraces tend to maintain their horizontality 
and appear to rise above the gradually 
descending street level.  There, the front 
gardens are banked or terraced and 
consequently gain additional prominence 
in the street scene. 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 12
965



Greenery within front gardens 
complements the buildings and adds to the 
high quality of the street scene, although 
selective maintenance and some cutting-
back of vegetation in some instances 
would be beneficial to the overall 
appearance of the area.  
 
7. Summary of special interest 
The preceding sections indicate that the 
distinctive character of Barrack Road 
Conservation Area and its townscape is 
almost wholly derived from its 
development as a high quality residential 
area, laid out over a relatively short period 
in the 19th century. The area developed 
during Northampton’s grand era of town 
building and provided housing for trade 
and professional families, reflecting the 
prosperity generated by the town’s boot 
and shoe industry at that time. 
The blocks are set in a fairly regular 
pattern with buildings generally arranged 
in terraces with narrow frontage widths 
and three storeys above ground, set well 
back from the road to create a sense of 
spaciousness. 
The area as a whole has an architectural 
unity that results from the scale, mass and 
use of simplified classical detailing of the 
properties and the consistent use of a 
limited range of building materials – 
primarily red brick with stone detailing for 
the Victorian properties with stone and 
stucco render used for some of the earlier 
Regency style buildings.  Roofs are 
traditionally Welsh slate or clay tile, with 
timber sash windows and doors. Front 
boundary walls are an important feature in 
the street scene. 
Although small in area, four distinct sub-
areas of differing architectural character 
can be identified: 

- Buildings fronting Barrack Road to 
the south of St George's Avenue 
are generally designed in the 'grand 
manner' and show a variety of 
dates, styles and materials.  

- On the west side of Barrack Road is 
a more varied street scene, with 
individually designed terraced 
blocks contrasting with the scale of 
the Catholic Cathedral and 
Bosworth College, which introduce 
a Victorian gothic element into what 
is a primarily classical styled area.    

- To the north of St George's Avenue 
fronting Kingsthorpe Road, the 
buildings predominantly comprise 
terrace houses of a straightforward 
Victorian design.    
 

- St George’s Avenue itself has a 
quieter, more open feel encouraged 
by the adjoining Racecourse.   
 

8. The Conservation Area boundary 
Section 69 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
requires the local authority to consider 
whether an area still retains sufficient 
architectural or historic interest to justify its 
special status or whether extension of the 
boundary, or, in extreme cases, 
cancellation of the designation, is 
appropriate. 
Barrack Road Conservation Area was first 
designated in 1987 and was extended in 
1999. Although there has inevitably been 
change since then, the preceding sections 
indicate that the special interest that 
originally justified designation still remains. 
It is not therefore proposed to cancel the 
designation. 
Consideration has also been given to the 
possibility of amending the boundary. 
However, the existing boundary is judged 
to be correctly located, marking the point 
at which a distinct change in character 
and/or appearance occurs and no 
alterations to the boundary are proposed. 
 
  

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 13
966



9. Barrack Road Conservation Area 
Management Plan 
The above survey identifies features that 
contribute to the special character and 
appearance of Barrack Road 
Conservation Area and identifies issues 
that could erode the special interest of the 
area. In order to safeguard the character 
and appearance of the area, the following 
measures are proposed. 
 
9.1 Barrack Road Article 4(2) Direction 
An Article 4 direction was made in 2000 
and requires that planning permission be 
obtained for alterations to the external 
appearance of dwelling houses when 
viewed from the street.  This allows the 
Council to consider the impact on the 
appearance of the area of alterations that 
could otherwise be undertaken without 
consent being required and was 
introduced in response to concern that the 
special character and appearance of the 
area could gradually be eroded through 
loss of architectural details and features. 
 A photographic survey was carried out 
concurrently with the introduction of the 
Article 4(2) Direction, in order to produce 
an accurate database. Comparison of the 
record taken at the time of the making of 
the order indicates that the Article 4 has 
largely been successful in preventing 
further loss of architectural details, 
although enforcement action will be 
recommended where necessary against 
any future unauthorised alterations. 
 It is suggested that the Article 4 direction 
be retained but that the order be re-drafted 
to include all properties within the 
Conservation Area, to avoid possible 
confusion over whether individual 
properties are included.. 
 
9.2 Windows and front wall database 
The replacement of original sliding sash 
wooden windows, often with top-hinged 
uPVC units, is highly detrimental to the 
conservation area.  The proportions, 

details and thickness of glazing bars on 
replacement windows seldom replicate the 
intricacy of the originals.  Outward 
opening, top-hung window units when 
opened at an angle, visually disrupt the 
clean lines of the Victorian terraces and 
adversely affect the streetscene.  
Equally, the existing boundary walls make 
up an important part of the character of the 
conservation area.  Not only do they define 
the public and private spaces, but they 
also visually frame the properties.  A 
replacement wall in non-traditional 
materials or the removal of a wall can 
substantially damage the uniform 
appearance of a terrace from the street. 
A comprehensive list of these details 
would provide both planners and 
developers with information on what parts 
of the historic fabric are most worthy of 
retention, and what parts should be 
replaced in order to improve the character 
and appearance of the conservation area. 
 
9.3 Unauthorised development 
By comparing the latest photographic 
survey with those taken within the last four 
years it should be possible to identify any 
unauthorised development that adversely 
affects the conservation area and where it 
is possible to carry out enforcement action.  
Due to the pressures of the four year 
immunity rule on development, action 
should be taken within a reasonably short 
timescale.   
 
9.4 Demolition in Conservation Areas 

Conservation Area Consent is required for 
certain demolition work within a 
Conservation Area:–   
♦ The demolition of a building with a cubic 

content of more than 115 cu m. 
♦ The demolition of wall, fences or gates 

above 1 metre in height  and abutting  
the  highway (2 metres elsewhere) 

♦ Buildings subject to a statutory order or 
notice. 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 14
967



In the case of a listed building, a separate 
Listed Building Consent is also required. 
Demolition of buildings or structures such 
as boundary walls considered to make a 
positive contribution to the conservation 
area will normally be opposed. 
 

9.5 Listed Building Consent 

Listed Building Consent is required for the 
demolition of, or any works of alteration or 
extension which would affect the character 
or appearance of a Listed Building.  The 
regulations apply to both external and 
internal alterations.  For the purposes of 
Listed Building control any object or 
structure which is fixed to the building or 
has formed part of the land since before 
1st July 1948 are also treated as part of 
the Listed Building. 
The Council will consider enforcement 
action in respect of unauthorised work to 
listed buildings.  
Repair works do not normally require listed 
building consent.  However, it is always 
advisable to consult the Council’s 
Conservation Officers before commencing 
work to a Listed Building.   
 
9.6 Buildings of Local Interest 

The Council is undertaking the preparation 
of a Local Heritage List for Northampton. It 
is likely that a number of buildings within 
the Conservation Area that make a 
contribution to its character and 
appearance but which are not of national 
significance will be considered for 
inclusion and the Council will endeavour to 
secure the long term future of these 
buildings. 
 
9.7 Trees 

The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
makes provision for the protection of trees 
in the interests of amenity and the Act 
makes special provision for trees within 
Conservation Areas.   Well-established 

trees make an important and positive 
contribution to the local environment and 
therefore it is essential to safeguard these 
features for the benefit of the community.  
Trees over 76mm (3”) in diameter within 
the Conservation Area are automatically 
protected from damage or felling.  Six 
weeks prior written  notice must be given 
to the Local Authority for any works likely 
to affect a tree within a Conservation Area 
(this includes work which may affect the 
roots).  Within that time the Local Authority 
may decide to make a Tree Preservation 
Order.  Once a tree is protected by a Tree 
Preservation Order it is an offence to cut 
down, uproot, prune, damage or destroy a 
tree without the written consent of the 
Council. 
 
9.8 Design guidance 

In Conservation Areas detailed 
examination of the design, siting and 
layout of development proposals of all 
types is necessary to achieve a high 
standard of development and to preserve 
the character of the area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Barrack Road Conservation Area Reappraisal and Management Plan

Northampton Borough Council 15
968



969



© Crown copyright and database rights 2017 Ordnance Survey licence no. 10019655

Barrack Road Conservation Area aerial plan
970



 

Appendix 1: 

The Northampton Borough Council 
(Permitted Development: Barrack Road 
Area) Direction 2000 – Direction Made 
Under Article 4(2) 

WHEREAS Northampton Borough Council 
(the Council”) being the appropriate local 
planning authority within the meaning of 
article 4(6) of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (“the Order”) 
are satisfied that it is expedient that 
development of the descriptions set out in 
the First Schedule below should not be 
carried out on the lands shown edged with 
a thick black line on the attached plan and 
described in the Second Schedule below 
being lands within the Barrack Road 
Conservation Area (“the said lands”) 
unless permission is granted on an 
application made under Part III of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
NOW THEREFORE the Council in 
pursuance of the power conferred upon 
them by article 4(2) of the Order hereby 
direct that the permission granted by 
article 3 of the Order shall not apply to 
development on the said lands. 
THIS DIRECTION is made under article 
4(2) of the Order, and, in accordance with 
article 6(7), shall remain in force until 19 
April 2001 (being six months from the date 
of this Direction) and shall then expire 
unless it has been confirmed by the 
Council. 
THIS DIRECTION may be cited as the 
Northampton Borough Council (Permitted 
Development: Barrack Road Area) 
Direction 2000. 
 
First Schedule 
1. The erection, alteration or removal of 

a chimney on a dwellinghouse or on a 
building within the curtilage of a 
dwellinghouse being development 
comprised within Class A of Part I of 
Schedule 2 to the Order not being 

development comprised within any 
other Class; 

2. The enlargement, improvement or 
other alteration of a dwellinghouse 
where any part of the enlargement, 
improvement or alteration would front 
a highway being development 
comprised within Class A of Part I of 
Schedule 2 to the Order and not being 
development comprised within any 
other Class; 

3. The alteration of a roof of a 
dwellinghouse where the alteration 
would be to a roof slope which fronts 
a highway (other than the alteration of 
a roof in connection with the 
enlargement of a dwellinghouse) 
being development comprised within 
Class C of Part I of Schedule 2 to the 
Order and not being development 
comprised within any other Class; 

4. The erection or construction of a porch 
outside any external door of a 
dwellinghouse where the external 
door in question fronts a highway 
being development comprised within 
Class D of Part I of Schedule 2 to the 
Order and not being development 
comprised within any other Class; 

5. The erection, construction, 
maintenance, improvement or 
alteration of a gate, fence, wall or 
other means of enclosure within the 
curtilage or a dwellinghouse where 
the gate, fence, wall or other means of 
enclosure fronts a highway being 
development comprised within Class 
A or Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the Order 
and not being development comprised 
within any other Class; 

6. The painting of the exterior of any part 
of a dwellinghouse which fronts a 
highway or any part of any building or 
enclosure within the curtilage of a 
dwellinghouse which fronts a highway 
being development comprised within 
Class C of Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the 
Order and not being development 
comprised within any other Class; and 

971



 

7. Any building operation consisting of 
the demolition of the whole or any part 
of any gate, fence, wall or other 
means or enclosure within the 
curtilage of a dwellinghouse where the 
gate, fence, wall or other means of 
enclosure fronts a highway being 
development comprised within Class 
B of Part 31 of Schedule 2 to the Order 
and not being development comprised 
within any other Class. 

 
Second Schedule 
Numbers 3 and 6 Langham Place, Barrack 
Road, Northampton, NN2 6AA.  
Numbers 4, 5 and 6 Adelaide Terrace, 
Northampton, NN2 6AH 
Numbers 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14, 
14A, 17, 18, 19, 24 and Cathedral House, 
Primrose Hill, Kingsthorpe Road, 
Northampton, NN2 6ER. 
Number 5 and 6 St Paul’s Terrace, 
Kingsthorpe Road, Northampton, NN2 
6ET. 
Numbers 1, 2, 4, 5, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 
16, 17, 18, 20, 21 and 22 St George’s 
Place, Kingsthorpe Road, Northampton, 
NN2 6EP. 
Numbers 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 11 Elysium 
Terrace, Kingsthorpe Road, Northampton, 
NN2 6EN. 
Numbers 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24, 25 
and Bishops House, Marriott Street, 
Northampton, NN2 6PW. 
Numbers 5, 7, 8, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 
21, 22, 23, 24 and 25 St George’s Avenue, 
Northampton, NN2 6JF. 
Given under the Common Seal of 
Northampton Borough Council  this 
Twentieth day of October 2000. 
The COMMON SEAL of the 
NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
was hereunto affixed to this Direction in 
the presence of:   
Borough Solicitor 

972



 

Appendix 2: 

Chronological Development of the 
Barrack Road Conservation Area 

Roman Catholic Cathedral, Barrack Road  
circa 1825 - 1960. 
Pevsner (Buildings of England) 
Adelaide Terrace, Barrack Road  circa 
1832 - 42. 
1-3 circa 1842 
4-7 circa 1832-33 
St Sepulchre’s Parish Ratebook and 
Improvement Commissioners Ratebook. 
Leicester Terrace, Barrack Road  circa 
1832 - 51. 
circa 1832-33 
3 circa 1835 
4-7 circa 1851 
8 circa 1842  (originally two houses) 
St George’s Place, Kingsthorpe Road  
circa 1855 - 70. 
Two houses are listed in St George’s 
Place in the Improvement Commissioners 
Ratebook for August 1855.  The Ratebook 
for May 1860 lists fifteen houses and the 
Ratebook for July 1865 reveals that these 
were nos. 8-22.   However, nos. 1-7 do not 
seem to have been constructed until the 
1870s.   Kelly’s Directory for 1877 lists nos. 
1,3,4,6 & 7.  The terrace is shown 
complete on the O.S. map surveyed in 
1884. 
Elysium Terrace, Kingsthorpe Road  circa 
1855 - 90. 
3-11 constructed many years before nos. 
1 & 2.  Seven houses appear in the 
Improvement Commissioners Ratebook 
for August 1858 and nine in the Ratebook 
for May 1860.  The terrace appears 
without nos. 1 & 2 on the O.S. map 
surveyed in 1884.  In Kelly’s Directory for 
1890 it is shown with eleven houses 
running nos. 1-11. 

Primrose Hill, Kingsthorpe Road  circa 
1855 - 1901. 
2-3 and 17-22  circa 1855-62 – taken from 
the Improvement Commissioners 
Ratebooks 
15 circa 1901 (dated) 
23-24 circa 1884 – similar in design 
to 1-8 St Paul’s Terrace and therefore, 
presumably, of the same date. 
Langham Place, Barrack Road  circa 
1864 - 69. 
1&2 Langham Place are listed in the 
Taylor’s General Directory of Northampton 
that was published in 1864.  The 
Improvement Commissioners Ratebook 
for July 1865 carries entries for 25 
properties (nos. 1-9 & 13-28).  All 28 
properties are listed in 1869 Ratebook. 
The Poplars, Barrack Road  circa 1865.  
The building stands on the site of Belle 
Alliance Cottage, which was named after a 
prominent feature at the battle of Waterloo 
and constructed circa 1820 (i.e. soon after 
the battle). The 1864 Kelly’s Directory 
records Henry Marshall as living at Belle 
Alliance Cottage.  The poll sheet issued 
after the 1865 election, however, records 
Marshall as living at The Poplars.   It 
therefore seems likely that the house was 
rebuilt in the mid 1860s, unless Marshall 
decided to change the name before 
rebuilding the structure.  
Marriott Street  circa 1869 - 90. 
Building plots were originally laid out on 
both the north and south side of Marriott 
Street; nos. 1-13 on the north side and 
nos. 14-25 on the south side.  The 
Improvement Commissioners Ratebook 
for January 1869 lists nos. 4, 5 and 15; two 
further properties (nos. 22 and 23) are 
listed in the Ratebook for January 1875. 
The O.S. map surveyed in 1883 shows the 
terrace on the south side complete except 
for no. 14, and nos. 4-5 and Bishops 
House (built 1883) on the north side.  
However, nos. 4-5 Marriott Street are not 
shown on the O.S. map surveyed in 1884 

973



 

and must therefore have been demolished 
between the two survey dates.  
14 Marriott Street appears in Stevens’ 
Directory for 1893. 
2 Marriott Street forms part of a terrace 
fronting Semilong Road between Marriott 
Street and Hester Street.  The property 
first appears on the O.S. plan surveyed in 
1900.  
St George’s Terrace, St George’s Avenue  
circa 1869 - 90. 
The Improvement Commissioners 
Ratebook for January 1869 lists nos. 13-
17, 21 and 23-25; no. 22 is listed in 
Ratebook for January 1875.  The O.S. plan 
surveyed in 1884 shows nos. 9-17 and 21-
25 complete. 
8 St George’s Terrace (South View) 
appears in Stevens’ Directory for 1893. 
Bosworth College, Barrack Road  circa 
1876. 
Pevsner (Buildings of England).  Formerly 
Nazareth House. 
St Paul’s Terrace, Kingsthorpe Road  
circa 1884. 
The 1884 Ordnance Survey plan shows 
only nos. 4-6; nos. 1 and 3 were 
presumably under construction at the time 
the survey was undertaken. 
Leicester Parade, Barrack Road  circa 
1884 - 1903. 
1-4 Leicester Parade: nos. 2 & 3 only are 
shown on the 1884 Ordnance Survey map; 
nos. 1 and 4 were presumably in the 
process of being erected.  They appear in 
the Kelly’s Directory of 1890. 
5 Leicester Parade: First appears in Kelly’s 
Directory of 1877.  Formerly known as 
Langham House. 
Former Leicester University Centre: Dated 
1900 on the façade.   Formerly the Town 
and County Nursing Association. 
12-13 Leicester Parade: Listed in 
Whellan’s Directory of 1874 as Baden & 
Westalls School. 

White Lodge: First appears in Kelly’s 
Directory of 1903. 
Primrose Hill Congregation Church, 
Kingsthorpe Road  circa 1903.  
Pevsner (Buildings of England) 
The Barratt Shoe Factory, Kingsthorpe 
Road  circa 1913. 
Pevsner (Buildings of England) 

974



 

Appendix 3: 

Listed Buildings in the Barrack Road 
Conservation Area 

The Poplars, Barrack Road - Listed 
Grade II 
Mid C19 in classical style.  Yellow brick, 
stone dressings, hipped Welsh slated roof 
with 2 box dormers.  2 storeys and attics, 
first floor sill band, cornice with console 
brackets.  3 sash windows with marginal 
glazing bars in architrave surrounds.  
Central glazed porch flanked by pair of 
single storey canted bay windows.  
Included mainly for elaborate cast iron 
veranda to ground floor of south side 
elevation in late Regency style. 
9-28 Langham Place, Barrack Road - 
Listed Grade II (Group Value) 
Mid C19 circa 1860-70.  Red brick, stucco 
dressings and rusticated stucco ground 
floor.  Tiled and Welsh slated roofs.  3 
storeys, floor bands, cornice with console 
brackets.  Each house has 2 sash 
windows in eared architraves to second 
floor; 3 joined, round headed windows to 
first floor with ornate cast iron balcony 
railings; ground floor 3 light sash window 
and round arched doorway with pilasters, 
archivolt and keyblock.  Some houses now 
cement rendered.  Nos. 9 to 12, 16, 20, 24 
and 28 project slightly with quoins.  (Nos. 
9 to 28 (consec.) form a group with nos. 1 
to 8 (consec.) which are of local interest.) 
1-3 Leicester Terrace, Barrack Road - 
Listed Grade II (Group Value) 
Early C19.  Ashlar, Welsh slated roofs.  3 
storeys, 3 sash windows with glazing bars, 
2 ground floor canted bay windows.  4-
panelled doors, panelled reveals, fluted 
Doric pilasters, entablatures.  Wooden 
trellis porch to no. 3.  (Nos. 1 to 8 (consec.) 
Leicester Terrace forms a group.) 
4-7 Leicester Terrace, Barrack Road - 
Listed Grade II (Group Value) 
Early C19.  Red brick, stucco flush quoins, 
window surrounds and floor bands.  Welsh 
slated roof.  3 storeys, 8 sash windows 

with glazing bars.  Ground floor of no. 5 
altered.  Included for group value. (Nos. 1 
to 8 (consec.) Leicester Terrace forms a 
group.) 
8 Leicester Terrace, Barrack Road - 
Listed Grade II (Group Value) 
Early C19.  Stucco, pilasters to upper 
floors.  Tiled roof behind parapet.  3 
storeys, bands at first floor and eaves 
levels.  2 sash windows, first floor cast iron 
balconettes, pair of canted bay windows to 
ground floor. 
1-3 Adelaide Terrace, Barrack Road- 
Listed Grade II (Group Value) 
Earlier C19.  Stucco, Welsh slated and 
pantiled roofs.  3 storeys, parapet stepped 
up in centre, channelled ground floor, 
incised pilasters to each upper floor of nos. 
1 & 3.  No. 2 slightly recessed.  Floor 
bands, cornice.  Box dormer to no. 3.   
1:3:1 sash windows with glazing bars in 
architrave surrounds, first floor cast iron 
balcony railings and central arcade to 
recessed balcony with French windows.  
Ground floor has canted bays to centre 
and left.  
Nos. 1 to 3 (consec.) Adelaide Terrace 
form a group with nos. 4 to 7 (consec.) 
Adelaide Terrace, which are of local 
interest. 
5 Leicester Parade, Barrack Road - 
Listed Grade II 
Main front to Hester Street on south.  Mid 
C19, Italianate.  Stone dressed yellow 
brick front.  Basement and 3 storeys, 
hipped tiled roof with modillion cornice, 
guilloche frieze.  Quoins, floor and sill 
bands.  5 casement windows in rusticated 
architrave surrounds to first and second 
floors, first floor cornices on consoles.  
Round headed similar ground floor 
windows and doorway.  East side 
elevation has ground floor Venetian 
window, first floor pseudo-Venetian with 
arched panel over central light. 

975



 

Bosworth College, Barrack Road - Listed 
Grade II 
Formerly known as Nazareth House.  
1876-7 by E. W. Tasker in free late Gothic 
style.  Ashlar dressed square rubble, tiled 
roof, 2 storeys and attics with 3 storey 
gables.  4 basement windows with stone 
mullions and transoms.  Tall doorway arch 
under canopied first floor niche.  Chapel at 
back on left has small spire astride roof 
ridge. 
Roman Catholic Cathedral of St Mary & 
St Thomas, Barrack Road - Listed Grade 
II 
Nave and aisles mainly 1863 by E. Pugin, 
enlarging on a much smaller church, 1844 
by Augustus Welby Pugin.  Crossing 
Tower, transepts and chancel 1948-55 by 
Albert Herbert.  C19 parts in Decorated 
style, brick with stone dressings. 
Barratt Shoe Factory, Kingsthorpe Road - 
Listed Grade II 
Shoe and boot factory. Front range facing 
Kingsthorpe Road dated 1913.  Macvicar 
Anderson for Barratt's Shoes in an 
exuberantly Neo-Baroque style.   Stone, 
brick, terracotta details; steel frame. 3 
storeys. Symmetrical front of 9 bays 
defined by full height pilaster buttresses. 
Stone plinth. Central doorway framed by a 
projecting porch with broken segmental 
pediment supported on Roman Ionic 
columns and deep entablatures with 
carved frieze blocks. Large arched 
openings in stone to either side with metal 
framed 3-light mullion and transom 
windows except for end bay to left which 
has cart entry under similar arch with 
fanlight grille of radiating metal bars. Stone 
spandrels above arches divided by raised 
key blocks. First and second floor bays are 
each subdivided by and intermediate pier. 
Pilaster buttresses and piers have 
alternating bands of brick and stone. Metal 
frame casement windows with transoms 
on first floor and stone spandrels above, 
with carved aprons. Lower windows on 
second floor except for the bay to either 
side of central bay.  These have tall 
windows crowned by stone segmental 

pedimented features with boldly moulded 
wreathes enclosing inscriptions:  Estd 
1903, on left, Built 1913, on right.  A similar 
pedimented feature over each end bay 
enclosing a circular window in wreathed 
frame with side drops.  Between 
pedimented features to left and right, a 
dentil eaves cornice crowned by 
balustrades of open stone letters: 
FOOTSHAPE to left and BOOT WORKS 
to right.  A circular clock set in a segmental 
headed frame over the central bay.  Stone 
and brick gate piers, brick stone capped 
plinth for former boundary railing. The 
large factory extension to the rear of the 
front block is not of special interest. 

976



 

Appendix 4: 

Locally Important Buildings in the 
Barrack Road Conservation Area 

1-8 Langham Place, Barrack Road 
Mid C19.  Red brick with stucco dressing, 
Welsh slate roofs.  3 storeys, stucco 
cornice.  Each house has 3 first floor sash 
windows in architrave surrounds, 3 second 
floor sashes in reveals.  Ground floor to 
each house has 2 triple light sash 
windows, central porch with arch, impost 
bands, archivolt, keyblock, eaves cornice 
and blocking course.  Nos. 1, 4 and 7 
project slightly and have quoins.  Some 
houses now cement rendered. 
1-4 Leicester Parade, Barrack Road 
Symmetrical design, dated 1882 on a 
slightly projecting Dutch gable in the 
centre.  Squared rubble, ashlar dressed.  
Welsh slate roof.  Basement, 3 storeys and 
attics.  Gabled wings, 1:3:1 casement 
windows with stone mullions and 
transoms.  Ground floor bay windows 
canted either side of double central 
doorway.  Jacobean style. 
The Leicester University Centre, Barrack 
Road 
Late C19 / 1900 in Renaissance style.  
Ashlar, steep tiled roof.  3 storeys, 5 sash 
windows with glazing bars.  Floor bands, 
first floor sill bands.  Chamfered quoins.  
Pedimented doorway under segmentally 
pedimented first floor window. 
Cathedral House, Kingsthorpe Road 
Early C19.  Ashlar, Welsh slate roof.  3 
storeys.  3 sash windows with glazing 
bars.  Central doorway with pilasters and 
entablature. 
Primrose Hill Congregational Church, 
Kingsthorpe Road 
1901 by Alexander Anderson.  Red brick, 
ashlar dressings, Welsh slate roof.  Single 
storey.  Semi-circular peristyle with 
Tuscan columns.  5 high level arched sash 
windows flanked by pilasters.  Large 
decorative pediment.  Central doorway 

with keyblocks.  Octagonal hall behind 
façade.  Doomed roof with cupola. 
1-8 St Paul's Terrace, Kingsthorpe Road 
Late C19.  Squared rubble, ashlar 
dressings, tiled roofs.  Basement, 2 
storeys and attics.  Slightly projecting 
gabled wings with 2 half-gabled dormer 
windows also slightly projecting flanked by 
dormer windows.  Projecting decorative 
bargeboards to gables / dormer windows.  
Canted bay windows to basement and first 
floor, extending to second floor on wings.  
1:2:1 sash windows above bay windows.  
Single sash above doors.  Floor and sill 
bands to second floor.  Decorative frieze at 
eaves level.  Flush quoins.  Tall chimney-
stacks, rectangular in plan with cap 
mouldings. 
Bishop’s House, Marriott Street 
1883 S. J. Nicholls in a Neo Gothic style.  
Squared rubble with ashlar dressing, tiled 
roof.  2 storeys plus basement.  Gabled 
wings with sash windows.  Recessed 
central doorway with a nodding arch 
surround.  Half gabled gothic dormer 
window with tracery above the entrance. 

977



 

Appendix 5: 

Useful Contacts 

Conservation Officers 
Northampton Borough Council 
The Guildhall, 
St Giles Square 
NORTHAMPTON 
NN1 1DE 
Tel:  (01604) 837634 and 837637 
conservation@northampton.gov.uk 
www.northampton.gov.uk 
 
English Heritage  
(East Midlands Region) 
Windsor House, 
Cliftonville, 
NORTHAMPTON 
NN1 5BE 
Tel:  (01604) 735460 
www.english-heritage.org.uk 
 
Ancient Monuments Society 
St Ann’s Vestry Hall 
2 Church Entry 
LONDON 
EC4V 5HB 
Tel: 020 7236 3934 
office@ancientmonumentssociety.org.uk 
www.ancientmonumentssociety.org.uk 
 
Society for Protection of Ancient 
Buildings 
37 Spital Square 
LONDON 
E1 6DY 
Tel: 020 7377 1644 
info@spab.org.uk 
www.spab.org.uk 
 
Georgian Group 
6 Fitzroy Square 
LONDON 
W1T 5DX 
Tel: 020 7529 8920 
info@georgiangroup.org.uk 
www.georgiangroup.org.uk 

 
 
 
 
The Victorian Society 
1 Priory Gardens 
Bedford Park 
LONDON 
W4 1TT 
Tel: 020 8994 1019 
admin@victorian-society.org.uk 
www.victorian-society.org.uk 
 
The Twentieth Century Society 
70 Cowcross Street 
LONDON 
EC1M 6EJ 
Tel: 020 7250 3857 
coordinator@c20society.org.uk 
www.c20society.org.uk  
 

978

mailto:conservation@northampton.gov.uk
http://www.northampton.gov.uk/
http://www.english-heritage.org.uk/
mailto:office@ancientmonumentssociety.org.uk
http://www.ancientmonumentssociety.org.uk/
mailto:info@spab.org.uk
http://www.spab.org.uk/
mailto:info@georgiangroup.org.uk
http://www.georgiangroup.org.uk/
mailto:admin@victorian-society.org.uk
http://www.victorian-society.org.uk/
mailto:coordinator@c20society.org.uk
http://www.c20society.org.uk/


 

 

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 
 
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 
 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
3 April 2019 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
Housing and Wellbeing 
 
Councillor Stephen Hibbert 
 
All 
 
 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 In Northampton, the number of homeless households living in temporary 

accommodation has risen sharply during the past three years and, in order to meet 
the growing demand for temporary accommodation, the Council has become 
increasingly reliant on private sector housing suppliers. 
 

1.2 The purpose of this report is to ask Cabinet to approve a Temporary Accommodation 
Action Plan that will reduce the use and cost of temporary accommodation.  
 

2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 

(a) Approves the Temporary Accommodation Action Plan (attached to this 
report as Appendix 1) in full, in part or as it sees fit;   
 

(b) Approves the submission to Full Council of a request for supplementary 
funding in respect of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) to extend HRA 
borrowing by up to £25m in order to enable the acquisition of affordable 
housing under s106 / development agreements via developers;  

 
Report Title 
 

Reducing the use and cost of temporary accommodation 

    Appendices 
 
          1 

979

Agenda Item 11



 

 

(c) Receives a further report in October 2019, providing details of the 
progress that the Council and Northampton Partnership Homes have 
made in implementing the Action Plan and what impact this has had on 
the use and cost of temporary accommodation; and 

 
(d) Notes that, although the implementation of the Action Plan should result in 

costs being controlled, reduced and avoided, an unforeseen increase in 
demand may create a further cost pressure.  

 
3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1   Report Background 

 
  Homelessness in Northampton 
 

3.1.1 During the last three years, the number of households applying to the Council for 
assistance under the homelessness legislation has more than doubled and, 
between March 2016 and February 2019, the number of households living in 
temporary accommodation more than quadrupled from 66 to 324. 

 
3.1.2 One of the main reasons for this increase is the severe shortage of affordable / 

social rented housing and the impact that this shortage has had on the amount of 
time that homeless households spend in temporary accommodation before they are 
able to move on into suitable, settled accommodation. This is being addressed 
through planned investment in an ambitious Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
housebuilding programme that is designed to deliver at least 150 new HRA council 
homes a year.  

 

3.1.3 The Council’s use of temporary accommodation has increased further as a result of 
the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 which came into effect in April 2018 and has 
given local authorities new duties to relieve homelessness for all eligible people.  

 

Duty to provide temporary accommodation 
 

3.1.4 When an applicant has become homeless, the Council is required (under the 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2017) to try to relieve their homelessness within a 
period of 56 days; this is called the ‘relief duty’.  

 
3.1.5 During this 56 day period, the applicant and the Council must both do everything 

they can to help resolve the applicant’s housing situation by finding somewhere 
suitable for the applicant to live for a period of no less than six months. 

 
3.1.6 Although all applicants are actively encouraged and supported to make their own 

temporary accommodation arrangements – especially if they have friends and 
family who are able to help and support them – the Council must provide temporary 
accommodation if it has reason to believe that the applicant may be homeless, 
eligible for assistance and in priority need.  

 

3.1.7 If homelessness cannot be relieved within the 56 days, the Council will need to 
decide whether or not it owes the applicant the ‘main housing duty’: 

 
 

980



 

 

 Where it decides that it owes the applicant the main housing duty, it 
will normally continue to provide them with temporary accommodation 
until they are offered suitable, settled accommodation by the council, a 
housing association / registered provider or a private landlord 

 

 Where it decides that it does not owe the applicant the main housing 
duty, it must still accommodate vulnerable people, pregnant women 
and families with dependent children for at least the full 56 day period 
of the relief duty and then allow them enough time to make alternative 
arrangements for when the relief duty (and their temporary 
accommodation) comes to an end.  

 
3.1.8  When an applicant disagrees with any of the Council’s decisions – including the 

suitability of any accommodation they are offered – and requests a review of a 
decision or challenges a decision in the County Court, the Council may decide (on 
the basis of an assessment that is prescribed in law) to extend the provision of 

temporary accommodation pending the outcome of the review or appeal.  
 

The Council’s use of temporary accommodation 
 

3.1.9     Although the Council’s stock of temporary accommodation includes 68 Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) council homes that are let short-term to homeless 
households, more than three quarters of the temporary accommodation the Council 
uses is purchased, on a nightly basis, from private sector housing suppliers.  
 

3.1.10   As at 25 February 2019, there were 324 homeless households living in three types 
of temporary accommodation: 

 

 56 homeless households were living in HRA council homes; 
 

 244 homeless households were living in self-contained, nightly 
purchased accommodation in Northampton; and 

 

 24 homeless households (22 single people and 2 families) were living 
in bed and breakfast accommodation. 

 

3.1.11 Of the 268 households living in nightly-purchased temporary accommodation: 
  

 79 (29%) were living in one-bedroom accommodation 
 

 122 (46%) were living in two-bedroom accommodation 
 

 62 (23%) were living in three-bedroom accommodation 
 

 5 (2%) were living in four-bedroom accommodation 
 
 The net cost of temporary accommodation 
 
3.1.12 Unlike the council homes that are let to homeless households at a social rent, the 

amount that the Council is paying housing suppliers for nightly purchased 
temporary accommodation (including bed and breakfast) is much higher than the 
amount it is able to recover from the households living in it.   
 

981



 

 

3.1.13 Although Officers successfully negotiated standard, reduced nightly rates with 
most of the Council’s housing suppliers in 2018, the difference between the 
amount the Council is charged for self-contained nightly purchased 
accommodation and the amount that it charges the homeless households that are 
living in the accommodation is as follows: 

 

SIZE OF 
PROPERTY 

NIGHTLY 
RATE 

NET COST OF NIGHTLY-PURCHASED HOUSING                
TO NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL *  

1-bedroom  £38.00 £111 per week £481 per month £5,772 per annum 

2-bedroom £45.00 £120 per week £520 per month £6,240 per annum 

3-bedroom £52.00 £154 per week £667 per month £8,008 per annum 

4-bedroom £57.00 £132 per week £572 per month £6,864 per annum 

5-bedroom £64.00 £181 per week £784 per month £9,412 per annum 

 

              * This assumes that the Council is able to collect 100% of what it charges the households 

 
3.1.14 The true net cost to the Council of providing homeless households with self-

contained, nightly purchased temporary accommodation is even higher than the 
amounts set out in the table. This is because they do not take into account bad 
debts (resulting from households’ failure to pay all of their rent) or the amount of 
Housing Benefit that the Council pays to homeless households but is unable to 
recover from Government through the Housing Benefit subsidy system. 
 
The impact of temporary accommodation on the Council’s budget 

 
3.1.15 When calculating the net cost of providing temporary accommodation, the Council 

needs to consider not just how much it pays and charges for the accommodation 
but also how much of the Housing Benefit that it pays to homeless households will 
be reimbursed, by the Government, through Housing Benefit Subsidy. 
 

3.1.16 Not all of the Housing Benefit that is paid to homeless households is covered by 
Central Government subsidy. The maximum amount of Housing Benefit Subsidy 
that the Council can claim towards the cost of temporary accommodation is based 
on the size and type of the accommodation, the Broad Rental Market Area in which 
the accommodation is situated, the January 2011 Local Housing Allowance (LHA) 
rates and the amount of Housing Benefit that the household is paid.  

 

3.1.17 In July 2018, the Council reduced the amount it charges for temporary 
accommodation. This has reduced the amount of Housing Benefit paid, but 
increased the net cost to the Housing and Wellbeing Service.  

 
3.1.18 During the past three years (2016/17 - 2018/19), the amount of money that the 

Council has spent on temporary accommodation has increased by 364%:  
 

Year 

Net Housing 
Expenditure                     

(000's) 

Net Housing Benefit 
Expenditure                                

(000's) 

Total Net 
Expenditure 

(000's) 

2016/17    74    599    673 

2017/18    10 1,406 1,416 

2018/19 1,588*     934*   2,522* 

 
   Please note: The figures for 2018/19 are based on the first 9 months of 2018/19.  
 

982



 

 

  Proposed reorganisation of the Housing Options and Advice Service 
 
3.1.19 In the Council’s 2019/20 Budget, the Housing Options and Advice Service has been 

provided with additional funding of £533,000 to enable it to appoint an extra 12 
staff, prevent more homelessness and improve households’ access to suitable, 
good quality, well-managed private rented accommodation. 
 

3.1.20 The reorganisation, planned for the early part of 2019/20, will provide the Housing 
Options & Advice Team with the extra management capacity it needs in relation to 
homelessness prevention, temporary accommodation and single homelessness. 

 

3.1.21 By establishing a dedicated Temporary Accommodation Team, the reorganisation 
will enable the Social Lettings Agency staff to revert back to their primary role of 
procuring a plentiful supply of affordable private rented housing that can be offered 
to households that are threatened with homelessness or, when households are 
already homeless, to discharge the Council’s rehousing duty quickly and efficiently. 

 

3.1.22 With its focus on early intervention, the reorganisation will create specialist advisory 
roles that will work proactively and effectively with other services and organisations 
to prevent and reduce homelessness, minimise the amount of time that households 
spend in temporary accommodation and ensure that, when someone is leaving 
prison, hospital or care, they do so in a planned way.  

 

3.1.23 When it is implemented and the additional staff are in place, the reorganisation will 
contribute positively to the proposed reduction in the use and cost of temporary 
accommodation and, in doing so, relieve the strain on the Council’s budget.  

 

Opportunities to acquire new affordable housing 
 
3.1.24   Homes England schemes and developer-led schemes require the provision of 

affordable housing. Developers often invite Registered Providers to bid for the 
affordable housing and, typically, this will sell for 50% - 60% of the market value. 
 

3.1.25   As Northampton Borough Council is a Registered Provider, Northampton 
Partnership Homes (NPH) is actively monitoring such opportunities. However, the 
timescales are often very short and Registered Providers are usually required to 
provide confirmation, when they submit their expression of interest, that funds are 
available (or will be) to complete the purchase.  

 
3.1.26   Although each scheme will require its own business case to demonstrate due 

diligence and value for money, there is a need to obtain Council approval to 
increase the HRA borrowing and expenditure envelope in order to make the most of 
these opportunities to acquire new affordable housing. 

 
3.2 Issues 

 
  The need for immediate action  
 

3.2.1   During the past six months, the number of homeless households living in temporary 
accommodation has fluctuated between 300 and 325.  

 
 

983



 

 

3.2.2  Unfortunately, 80% of the temporary accommodation that the Council currently 
uses is procured, at a high cost, from private sector housing suppliers. When the 
Council was accommodating the 268 homeless households in nightly-purchased 
accommodation on 25 February 2019, the net cost (excluding lost Housing Benefit 
Subsidy and bad debts) was more than £33,500 per week (£1.74m per annum).  

 
3.2.3  Although the reorganisation of the Housing Options and Advice Team will increase 

the Council’s capacity to prevent homelessness in the long term, immediate action 
is required in order to reduce the Council’s use of temporary accommodation and 
find less expensive alternatives to nightly-purchased accommodation. 

 
  The need for a flexible, sustainable solution 
 
3.2.4   One of the essential requirements of any plan to reduce the use and cost of 

temporary accommodation is that it offers a solution that is flexible enough to meet 
future fluctuations in the overall demand for temporary accommodation.  

 
3.2.5  The temporary accommodation that is provided must be affordable for the people 

living in it and careful consideration must be given to its financial impact on the 
Council, taking into account what it costs the Council to provide the 
accommodation, how much it charges for the accommodation and what it loses in 
terms of Housing Benefit Subsidy and bad debts.  

 
3.2.6  For homeless families and the Council, the Benefit Cap (£384.62 per week) has a 

significant impact on what families can afford to pay for their accommodation.   
 
  Reducing the use of temporary accommodation 
 
3.2.7  In order to reduce its use of temporary accommodation, the Council needs to slow 

down the rate at which homeless households move into temporary accommodation 
and minimise the amount of time that they spend in temporary accommodation.  

 
3.2.8  To reduce the number of households moving into temporary accommodation, there 

needs to be an even greater emphasis on the prevention of homelessness. 
 
3.2.9  To minimise the amount of time that homeless households spend in temporary 

accommodation, there needs to be an even greater emphasis on: 
 

 Delaying the placement of households in temporary accommodation; 
 

 Improving the flow of households through temporary accommodation by 
ensuring that all homelessness decisions (including homelessness 
review decisions) are accurate and issued as soon as practicable, and 
all temporary accommodation is withdrawn as soon as the Council’s 
duty to accommodate comes to an end;  
 

 Converting into permanent accommodation any HRA council homes 
that are used as temporary accommodation and are suitable to offer to 
current occupants as a discharge of the Council’s homelessness duty; 

 

 Maximising the amount of suitable private rented accommodation that is 
offered to homeless households living in temporary accommodation as 
a discharge of the Council’s homelessness duty; 

984



 

 

 Maximising the number of HRA council homes and housing association 
homes that are let to homeless households; and 

 

 Ensuring that unexpected delays in the construction, repair or 
refurbishment of HRA council homes and housing association homes 
do not result in homeless households spending an unreasonable 
amount of extra time in temporary accommodation. 

 
  Reducing the cost of temporary accommodation 
 
3.2.10  In order to reduce the cost of temporary accommodation, the Council needs to 

reduce its use of temporary accommodation and, at the same time, find less 
expensive alternatives to nightly-purchased accommodation. 

 
3.2.11  To reduce the cost of temporary accommodation, there needs to be an even 

greater emphasis on: 
 

 Making optimum use of the Council’s HRA housing stock; 
 

 Improving the flow of households through temporary accommodation by 
increasing the number of HRA council homes that are used as 
temporary accommodation for homeless households; and 
 

 Purchasing or building a stock of temporary accommodation that will be 
owned by the Council (within the General Fund and/or the Housing 
Revenue Account) and reduce the net cost to the Council. 

 
3.3 Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 The Temporary Accommodation Action Plan (see Appendix 1) lists 14 actions that 

Cabinet may want the Council and Northampton Partnership Homes to take to 
reduce the use and cost of temporary accommodation. 

 
3.3.2 For each element of the Action Plan, Cabinet may decide to approve the proposed 

action, amend the proposed action or reject the proposed action. 
 
3.3.3 Cabinet may also decide that other actions (not included in the Action Plan) are 

required in order to reduce the use and cost of temporary accommodation.  
 

OBJECTIVE ONE: REDUCING THE NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS MOVING 
INTO TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION  
 

3.3.4 The ending of an Assured Shorthold Tenancy (AST) and the withdrawal of 
accommodation by family members and friends are the main causes of 
homelessness in Northampton and, between them, account for more than two 
thirds of the households that become homeless in the borough. 

 
 
 

 

985



 

 

 
ACTION 1:  Prevent private tenants from becoming homeless by negotiating with 
landlords and letting agents to persuade them to renew the tenancies. 
 
 
ACTION 2:  Prevent private tenants from becoming homeless by negotiating with 
landlords and letting agents to persuade them to allow their tenants enough time 
to find somewhere else to live, with the Council’s help, before they are homeless. 
 

 
3.3.5 As part of the proposed reorganisation of the Housing Options & Advice Service, 

two specialist Private Sector Housing Advisers will actively engage with every 
private landlord and letting agent who has served notice on their tenants with a view 
to persuading them to renew the tenancy for 12 months or allow their tenants 
enough time to find somewhere else suitable to live.  

 
3.3.6 In the meantime, an assertive AST Sustainment Team (comprising a Housing 

Options Adviser and a Lettings Negotiator) will work with landlords and letting 
agents to prevent homelessness. They will also work closely with the Tenancy 
Relations Officer to prevent harassment, unlawful eviction and retaliatory eviction. 

 

 
ACTION 3:  Prevent homelessness by persuading applicants’ families and friends 
to continue accommodating them (as part of the ‘Homeless at Home’ scheme) 
and, in doing so, avoid the need to provide temporary accommodation.   

 
3.3.7 During 2018, the temporary Home Visiting Officer successfully persuaded family 

and friends to continue accommodating a total of 73 households on the 
understanding that, as ‘Homeless at Home’, those households would receive the 
same priority for rehousing as other homeless households. This has avoided the 
need for the Council to provide them with temporary accommodation. 

 
3.3.8 The proposed reorganisation of the Housing Options & Advice Service includes 

provision for a permanent Home Visiting Officer.  
 
  OBJECTIVE TWO: MINIMISING THE AMOUNT OF TIME HOUSEHOLDS 

SPEND IN TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION 
 

 
ACTION 4:  Delay the eviction of private tenants through negotiation with private 
landlords and letting agents 
 
ACTION 5:  Delay the eviction of council tenants  
  

 
3.3.9 It is anticipated that, even when homelessness cannot be prevented, it will be 

possible to delay the eviction of private tenants and council tenants for a period of 
at least 8 weeks.  

 
3.3.10 Officers have agreed with NPH that, when council tenants are being evicted, the 

eviction will be postponed for 8 weeks to enable the tenants to continue living in the 
property during the period in which the ‘relief’ duty applies.  

 

986



 

 

 
ACTION 6:  Improve the flow of households through temporary accommodation 
by ensuring that all homelessness decisions (including homelessness review 
decisions) are accurate and issued as soon as practicable 

 
3.3.11 By making decisions quickly and ensuring that all temporary accommodation is 

withdrawn when its housing duty ends, the Council will be able to reduce the 
number of homeless households living in temporary accommodation. 

 
3.3.12 The reorganisation of the Housing Options & Advice Service will provide the 

Homelessness Team with the extra staffing capacity it needs to ensure that all 
homelessness decisions are accurate and issued as soon as practicable. In the 
meantime, additional capacity will be provided through a specialist contractor.  

 

 
ACTION 7: Convert into permanent accommodation any HRA council homes 
that are being used as temporary accommodation and are suitable to offer the 
current occupants as a discharge of the Council’s homelessness duty 

 

 

3.3.13 As at 25 February 2019, a total of 68 council homes were set aside for use as 
temporary accommodation.  

 
3.3.14 A desktop review of the circumstances of the households currently living in this 

temporary accommodation suggests that 25 of these homes are suitable to offer to 
the households living in them as a discharge of the Council’s homelessness duty. 

 

3.3.15 Although this will not significantly reduce the cost of temporary accommodation, it 
will avoid the void costs that would otherwise be incurred if the households had 
moved to alternative accommodation and the homes needed to be re-let. 

 
 
ACTION 8:  Maximise the amount of suitable private rented accommodation that 
is offered to homeless households living in temporary accommodation in order 
to discharge the Council’s homelessness duty. 

 

3.3.16 One of the key objectives of the proposed reorganisation of the Housing Options & 
Advice Service is to establish a dedicated Temporary Accommodation Team and 
enable the Social Lettings Agency staff to revert back to their primary role of 
securing affordable private rented accommodation to prevent homelessness. 

 
3.3.17 During 2019/20, the primary focus of the Social Lettings Agency will be to meet the 

housing needs of private tenants who are threatened with homelessness due to the 
termination of their AST. However, as soon as it is able to increase the supply of 
suitable private rented accommodation, it will offer tenancies to homeless 
households living in temporary accommodation.  

 

 
 

987



 

 

 
ACTION 9: Maximise the number of HRA council homes and housing 
association homes that are let to homeless households 

 
3.3.18 Between January and December 2018, a total of 881 affordable rented general 

needs properties were let to households on Northampton’s Housing Register: 
 

 285 (32%) were let to homeless households in the Emergency Band for 
whom the Council had accepted a rehousing duty under the 
homelessness legislation 
 

 177 (20%) were let to non-homeless households in the Emergency Band 
 

 302 (34%) were let to households in Band ‘A’ 
 

 117 (13%) were let to households in Band ‘B’ 
 

3.3.19 As NPH is planning to build 150 new council homes in 2019/20 and it is receiving 
nomination rights to the affordable rented housing that is being built in the Strategic 
Urban Extensions of the Northampton Related Development Area (NRDA), it is 
reasonable to assume that the number of homes available for letting in 2019/20 will 
increase by at least 100 in 2019/20. 
 

3.3.20 It is proposed that, for a period of 12 months, the proportion of general needs 
properties that are let to homeless households in the Emergency Band – excluding 
the HRA temporary accommodation that will be let to occupants as permanent 
accommodation (see Paragraph 3.3.14) – is increased by 57 (one fifth).  

 

3.3.21 If the net increase in the number of affordable rented homes that become available 
for letting in 2019/20, compared to 2018, matches the 77 additional homes that are 
set aside for use as temporary accommodation (see Paragraph 3.3.34), 881 
affordable rented homes will be available for letting in 2019/20. 

 

3.3.22 As an additional 57 homes will be offered to homeless households in the 
Emergency Band and the number of homes let to non-homeless households in the 
Emergency Band will remain unchanged, the lettings in 2019/20 will be as follows: 

 

 342 (39%) will be let to homeless households in the Emergency Band 

 177 (20%) will be let to non-homeless households in the Emergency Band 

 362 (41%) will be let to households in Band ‘A’ and Band ‘B’ 
 

 
ACTION 10: Ensure that unexpected delays in the construction, repair or 
refurbishment of council and housing association homes do not result in 
homeless households spending an unreasonable amount of extra time in 
temporary accommodation, unable to be considered for other homes. 

 

 
3.3.23 When homeless households are offered a permanent HRA council home or their 

nomination to a housing association has been accepted, they cannot bid for – or be 
considered for – any other affordable rented accommodation that is available.  

 

988



 

 

3.3.24 Unexpected delays in the construction, repair or refurbishment of HRA council 
homes and housing association homes can result in some households spending 
months longer in temporary accommodation than they should have done. 
 

3.3.25 It is proposed that, where it is anticipated that a household’s ‘moving in’ date is 
going to be delayed by at least four weeks, their situation will be reviewed by NPH 
and the Council and a decision will be made on whether or not the offer or 
nomination should be withdrawn and the household offered another home instead.    

 

3.3.26 To ensure that homeless households are actively considered for all suitable 
accommodation, a member of the Housing Options & Advice Team is co-located 
with NPH’s Rehousing Team, one day a week. This has improved communication 
between NPH and the Council and between NPH and homeless households. 
 

  OBJECTIVE THREE: REDUCING THE COST OF TEMPORARY 
ACCOMMODATION 

 

 
ACTION 11: Make optimum use of the Council’s temporary accommodation. 
 

 
3.3.27 Given the high cost of the temporary accommodation that the Council procures from 

private sector housing suppliers and the fact that any HRA council homes that are 
used as temporary accommodation are not available to let (as permanent homes) to 
households on Northampton’s Housing Register, careful consideration has been 
given to the way in which the Council’s stock of temporary accommodation is used. 
 

3.3.28 It is proposed, therefore, that all households (single people and couples) that 
contain a pregnancy but no children should routinely be offered suitable one-
bedroom temporary accommodation – preferably one of the council homes that are 
let on a temporary basis – and continue to reside in that accommodation until the 
baby is born and they are offered a two-bedroom affordable rented home or the 
tenancy of suitable private rented housing. 

 

3.3.29 It is proposed, also, that all households (single people and couples) that contain 
only one child and that child is under the age of 12 months, should routinely be 
offered suitable one-bedroom temporary accommodation – preferably one of the 
council homes that are let on a temporary basis – and continue to reside in that 
accommodation until they are offered a two-bedroom affordable rented home or the 
tenancy of suitable private rented housing.  

 

3.3.30 These arrangements will make optimum use of the one-bedroom HRA council 
homes that are used as temporary accommodation and ensure as few households 
as possible are accommodated in two-bedroom nightly purchased accommodation.   

 
 
ACTION 12:  Increase the number of permanent HRA council homes that are used 
as temporary accommodation for homeless households. 

 

 
3.3.31 As the HRA council homes that are used as temporary accommodation are let at 

social rents, the impact that this type of accommodation has on the Council’s 
General Fund finances is minimal. 

 

989



 

 

3.3.32 Although careful consideration needs to be given to the impact that any increase in 
the number of HRA council homes used as temporary accommodation will have on 
other applicants on Northampton’s Housing Register, substantial costs can be 
avoided if more council homes are set aside for use as temporary accommodation.  

 
3.3.33 The Temporary Accommodation Action Plan proposes that the number of HRA 

council homes used as temporary accommodation is increased to 120.   
 
3.3.34 As one-bedroom homes account for the largest proportion of all affordable rented 

general needs housing that becomes available for letting, it is proposed that the 
stock of 120 HRA council homes that are used as temporary accommodation 
should comprise 60 one-bedroom homes, 35 two-bedroom homes, 21 three-
bedroom homes, 3 four-bedroom homes and 1 five-bedroom home. 

 
3.3.35 If 25 of the 68 HRA council homes that are currently used as temporary 

accommodation are converted into permanent lettings (see Paragraph 3.3.14) NPH 
will need to set aside another 77 council homes for use as temporary 
accommodation: 34 one-bedroom homes, 26 two-bedroom homes, 13 three-
bedroom homes, 3 four-bedroom homes and 1 five-bedroom home.  

 
3.3.36 Although it is likely to take NPH around nine months to increase to 120 the number 

of HRA council homes used as temporary accommodation, this action will enable 
the Council to avoid substantial temporary accommodation costs. 

 

 
ACTION 13: Reduce the nightly rates that the Council pays to housing suppliers 

for the self-contained, nightly-purchased accommodation it uses. 

 

 

3.3.37 It is proposed that the Council issues a fresh invitation to housing suppliers (through 
the Dynamic Purchasing System) to provide self-contained temporary 
accommodation at nightly rates that are lower than it is paying at the moment. 
 

3.3.38 Although the Council will still need to pay the existing nightly rates for the temporary 
accommodation that is currently occupied, the reduced nightly rates will apply to 
any vacant properties that are offered to the Council after the date specified in the 
Dynamic Purchasing scheme. 

 

3.3.39 As the Council is not able to recover (in Housing Benefit and household 
contributions) the full cost of what it pays to the housing supplier, it will derive the 
full benefit of the proposed price reduction.  

 
 
ACTION 14: Purchase or build a stock of temporary accommodation that will be 

owned by the Council (within the General Fund and/or the Housing Revenue 

Account) and reduce the net cost to the Council. 

 

 
3.3.40 Although the primary aim of the Action Plan is to reduce the number of households 

living in temporary accommodation to 200 by the end of March 2020, increasing the 
number of HRA council homes that are used as temporary accommodation will 
significantly reduce the Council’s use of nightly-purchased accommodation. 
 

990



 

 

3.3.41 If Actions 1-12 in the Temporary Accommodation Action Plan are implemented, the 
number of households living in nightly-purchased accommodation should reduce by 
70% (from 268 to 80) between 25 February 2019 and 31 March 2020. 

  
3.3.42 Based on the mix of property sizes set out in the Action Plan, the net cost of those 

80 households in nightly-purchased accommodation will be £523,000 per annum.  
 

3.3.43 Although consideration will need to be given to the size, type and number of homes 
purchased or built for use as temporary accommodation, the Action Plan provides 
an illustration of how the Council can achieve substantial revenue savings by setting 
aside additional HRA council homes for use as temporary accommodation and/or 
creating a sizeable stock of council-owned, non-HRA temporary accommodation.  

 

3.3.44 As well as reducing the net cost of temporary accommodation in the immediate 
term, the creation of a stock of council-owned, non-HRA temporary accommodation 
will provide the Council with the flexibility to respond to any future reduction in the 
demand for temporary accommodation and: 

 

 Let the properties at market rents or sub-market rents to prevent 
homelessness and/or generate extra income for the General Fund; or 
 

 Sell the properties on the open market, or to the HRA, at market value. 
 

3.3.45 Consideration is still being given to the role that private sector leasing can play in 
meeting the Council’s need for low-cost temporary accommodation. However, most 
landlords and investors are seeking much higher rental yields than the Council is 
offering and, of the properties that have been offered to date, most do not meet the 
standards specified by the Council.  

 
3.3.46 One of the other options available to the Council is to lease or purchase modular 

homes that can be erected on one or more sites and, perhaps, moved around the 
borough. This is being actively considered and, if it offers a cost-effective solution, a 
comprehensive business case will be produced and submitted to Cabinet.  

 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

 
4.1.1 The action that the Council is proposing to take is in line with Council policy and 

reflects the priorities in the Corporate Plan 2018-20. 
 

4.2 Resources and Risk 
 
4.2.1 Finance Officers have been working closely with the Housing and Wellbeing 

Service to identify the various options available to the Council. 
 

4.2.2 Financial modelling has been carried out in relation to each of these options but, 
given the large number of variables, it is extremely difficult to accurately forecast 
the likely impact that each measure will have on the number of homeless 
households living in temporary accommodation. 

 

 

991



 

 

4.2.3 Assuming, however, that the number of households moving into, and out of, 
temporary accommodation in 2019/20 will be about the same as it has been in 
2018/19, it is possible to estimate the likely impact that each measure will have on 
the use and cost of temporary accommodation. Appendix 1 Section 7 “Assumptions 
and Financial Modelling” provides further details. 

 
4.2.4 The tables below summarises the estimated costs and savings on Housing Service 

accounts over the next two years: 
 

2019/20 
 

2019/20  2020/21 

Estimated Cost  
Pre-Action Plan 

(000) 

Estimated Cost  
Post Action Plan  

(000) 

Estimated Cost  
Post Action Plan  

(000) 

1,759 1,318 531 

 

2019/20 
 

2019/20  2020/21 

Cost Avoidance / 
Savings   

Pre-Action Plan 
(000) 

Cost Avoidance / 
Savings 

Post Action Plan  
(000) 

Cost Avoidance / 
Savings                         

Post Action Plan  
(000) 

0 441 1,111 

 
4.2.5 It should be noted that the costs / impact of each option is based on modelling. 

Whilst this will give an indication of the financial impact on the Council, there are 
many variables that can affect the impact. 

 
4.2.6 The following risks could impact upon the financial position of the new 

arrangements: 
 

 Volumes (the number of households requiring temporary accommodation) 
vary significantly from the financial modelling 
 

 The rate the Council pays for temporary accommodation is not in line with 
what is described in this report 

 

 Debt (income recovery) is not actively managed 
 

 Actual income recovery rates vary from the financial modelling. 
 
4.2.7 Further modelling work will be continued and informed through this process and, 

with improved data when collected, will be used to inform the Council’s future 
budget requirements. Given the number of variables, this must be accepted as a 
demand-led budget with multiple variables, so will always be at risk of over or 
underspending against the ‘annual budget’. 
 

4.2.8 One of the ways to reduce the pressure of homelessness and temporary 
accommodation is to increase the supply of affordable housing. The Council is 
already supporting and financing increases in the HRA stock through a programme 
of NPH developments. However, there are opportunities to acquire a significant 
number of new HRA council homes by purchasing properties ‘off plan’ through 
developer / Homes England schemes.  

 

992



 

 

4.2.9 As such acquisitions are likely to be of a large scale and require substantial 
investment, there is a need to gain Council approval to increase the HRA borrowing 
envelope to progress such schemes. The proposal is to submit a supplementary 
budget request to Council in April 2019 to increase the permitted HRA borrowing 
and expenditure by up to £25m should such opportunities arise.  

 

4.2.10 Cabinet will receive a full and formal business case before the Council commits any 
actual funds to the purchase of the affordable housing. 

 
4.3   Legal 

 
4.3.1 The Housing Act 1996 (as amended) imposes duties on the Council in relation to 

those who are homeless or threatened with homelessness.  The duties are referred 
to in the body of the report and can be summarised as follows: 

 

 To take reasonable steps to help an applicant who is threatened with 
homelessness to secure that accommodation does not cease to be 
available to occupy (‘the prevention duty’); 
 

 To secure that accommodation is available for an applicant who it believes 
is homeless, eligible for assistance and in priority need (‘the interim duty’);  

 

 To take reasonable steps to help an applicant to secure that suitable 
accommodation becomes available for their occupation for at least 6 
months (‘the relief duty’) and, if the applicant is also in priority need, to 
provide interim accommodation whilst fulfilling that duty; and 

 

 To secure that accommodation is available for those who are homeless 
and eligible for assistance and are not intentionally homeless (‘the main 
housing duty’). 

 
4.3.2   In fulfilling these duties, the Council must have regard to the Code of Practice 

issued by the Secretary of State.   
 

4.3.3   The 1996 Act requires the Council to discharge its housing duty (4.3.1.4) by 
providing accommodation itself, securing that accommodation is available from 
other persons or giving such advice and assistance as will secure that suitable 
accommodation is provided by some other person. The Council may require a 
person to whom it provides or secures accommodation to pay reasonable charges 
for their occupation however, the amount charged often does not represent the cost 
of providing such accommodation.   

 
4.3.4   The proposals in the Action Plan are compatible with the current version of the 

Code of Practice issued under the Act.  Any payments towards topping up rent or 
payment of arrears may however, only be made in accordance with the legislation 
relating to Housing Benefit and / or Discretionary Housing Payments. 

 
4.3.5   Case law makes clear that if the Council intends to make any payments of the 

types set out in the Action Plan, by way of incentive, assistance with deposits or 
otherwise, it will need to establish clear criteria as to the circumstances in which 
such payments are to be made. Any criteria must however, be flexible enough to 
allow proper exercise of discretion on a case by case basis.   

 

993



 

 

4.4      Equality and Health 

4.4.2   A full Community Impact Assessment has been completed.     
 

4.4.3   The changes proposed in this report – including the temporary changes to the 
Annual Lettings Plan – will have an overwhelmingly positive impact on people with 
different protected characteristics and will help the Council to address and mitigate 
the problems caused by homelessness.  

 
4.4.4   The changes will contribute to a reduction in the health inequalities and social and 

economic exclusion of people with any combination of protected characteristics who 
are disproportionately affected by homelessness. They will also promote the 
advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

 
4.4.5   These changes are part of the Borough Council’s commitment to improving 

communities and our town as a place to live. In implementing them, the Council will 
have due regard to its Public Sector Duty and will continue to work to tackle 
discrimination and inequality and contribute to the development of a fairer society.  

 
4.5  Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1   The changes proposed in this report have been developed in consultation with the 

Housing Options & Advice Service, the Revenues & Benefits Service, the Finance 
Team, the Procurement Team and NPH.  

4.5.2   The proposed changes to the Annual Lettings Plan will be posted on the Council’s 
website and will be provided to everyone who requests temporary accommodation. 

4.6  How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 The Temporary Accommodation Action Plan will help the Council to deliver the 

following priority outcomes in the Corporate Plan 2018 – 2020: 

 Provide value for money services 
 

 Review and reduce homelessness through early intervention 
 

 Reduce the overall cost of temporary accommodation  
 

 Investigate potential benefits of increasing the council stock of lower-cost 
temporary accommodation 

 

 Increase the number of council homes that are used as temporary 
accommodation 

 

5. Next steps 

 
5.1 For each of the 14 measures in the Temporary Accommodation Action Plan, overall 

responsibility for delivering it will rest with a named Officer. 
 
5.2 A multi-disciplinary Implementation Group (comprising representatives from 

Housing, Finance, Northampton Partnership Homes and the Revenue & Benefits 
Service will meet regularly to oversee the successful implementation of Action Plan. 

 

994



 

 

 
Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 – Temporary Accommodation Action Plan 
 

 
Background Papers 

 
Community Impact Assessment                              Phil Harris 

            Head of Housing and Wellbeing 
                 01604 837871 

 

                                  
 
                       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

995



 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Temporary 
Accommodation 

Action Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 2019 
 
 

996



 

 

1.    Introduction 

 

1.1 During the last three years, the number of households applying to the Council for 

assistance under the homelessness legislation has more than doubled and, between 

March 2016 and February 2019, the number of households living in temporary 

accommodation more than quadrupled from 66 to 324. 

1.2 One of the main reasons for this increase is the severe shortage of affordable and 

social rented housing and the impact that this shortage has had on the amount of time 

that homeless households spend in temporary accommodation before they are able to 

move on into suitable, settled accommodation. This is being addressed through 

investment in an ambitious Housing Revenue Account (HRA) housebuilding 

programme that is designed to deliver at least 150 new HRA council homes a year. 

1.3 The Council’s use of temporary accommodation has increased further as a result of 

the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 which came into effect on 3 April 2018 and 

has given local authorities new duties to relieve homelessness.  

1.4 Although the Council’s stock of temporary accommodation includes some HRA council 

homes that are let to homeless households on a short-term basis, more than three 

quarters of the temporary accommodation that the Council uses is purchased, on a 

nightly basis, from private sector housing suppliers.  

1.5 The large number of homeless households living in temporary accommodation, and 

the over-reliance on expensive, nightly purchased accommodation, have resulted in 

considerable cost pressures within the Council’s annual budget. 

1.6 Later this year, the Housing Options & Advice Service will be reorganised and 

expanded in order to prevent more homelessness and improve people’s access to 

suitable private rented accommodation. In the meantime, however, urgent action is 

required to reduce the use and cost of temporary accommodation.  

2.    Temporary Accommodation Action Plan  

 

2.1 The purpose of this 12 months Action Plan is to reduce, to 200, the number of 

homeless households living in temporary accommodation and to reduce, to 80, the 

number of households living in nightly-purchased accommodation. 

2.2 This Action Plan comprises a total of 14 measures which, if implemented, will have a 

huge impact on the use and cost of temporary accommodation in Northampton 

between now and 31 March 2020. 

2.3 Progress will be monitored by a multi-disciplinary Implementation Group that includes 

representatives from Housing, Finance, Northampton Partnership Homes (NPH) and 

the Revenue & Benefits Service.   

 

 

997



 

 

3.    Use and cost of temporary accommodation  
 

3.1 As at 25 February 2019, there were 324 homeless households living in three types of 

temporary accommodation: 

 

 56 homeless households were living in HRA council homes 

 

 244 homeless households were living in self-contained, nightly 

purchased accommodation in Northampton 

 

 24 homeless households (22 single people and 2 families) were living in 

bed and breakfast accommodation 

 

3.2 Of the 268 households that were living in nightly-purchased temporary 

accommodation (including bed and breakfast): 

  

 79 (29%) were living in one-bedroom accommodation 

 

 122 (46%) were living in two-bedroom accommodation 

 

 62 (23%) were living in three-bedroom accommodation 

 

 5 (2%) were living in four-bedroom accommodation 

 

3.3 Unlike the council homes that are let to homeless households at social rents, the 

amount that the Council is paying housing suppliers for nightly purchased temporary 

accommodation (including bed and breakfast) is much higher than what it is able to 

recover from the households living in it.   

 

3.4 Although Officers successfully negotiated standard, reduced nightly rates with most 

of the Council’s housing suppliers in 2018, the difference between the amount the 

Council is charged for self-contained nightly purchased accommodation and the 

amount that it charges the homeless households living in it is as follows: 

 

SIZE OF 

PROPERTY 

NIGHTLY 

RATE 

NET COST OF NIGHTLY-PURCHASED HOUSING  

TO NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL *  

1-bedroom  £38.00 £111 per week £481 per month £5,772 per annum 

2-bedroom £45.00 £120 per week £520 per month £6,240 per annum 

3-bedroom £52.00 £154 per week £667 per month £8,008 per annum 

4-bedroom £57.00 £132 per week £572 per month £6,864 per annum 

5-bedroom £64.00 £181 per week £784 per month £9,412 per annum 

 
* This assumes that the Council is able to collect 100% of what it charges. It does not take into account 

bad debts (resulting from households’ non-payment of rent) or the amount of Housing Benefit that the 

Council pays to homeless households but is unable to recover from Government through the Housing 

Benefit subsidy system. 

 

 

998



 

 

4.    Reorganisation and expansion of the Council’s 
       Housing Options & Advice Service   
 
4.1 In its 2019/20 Budget, the Council has provided extra funding to enable the Housing 

Options and Advice Service to be reorganised and expanded to include an additional 
12 staff, prevent more homelessness and improve households’ access to good quality, 
well-managed private rented housing. 
 

4.2 The reorganisation, due to be completed in Summer 2019, will provide the extra 
management capacity the Service requires in relation to homelessness prevention, 
temporary accommodation and single homelessness. 

 
4.3 By establishing a dedicated Temporary Accommodation Team, the reorganisation will 

enable the Social Lettings Agency staff to revert back to their primary role of procuring 
a plentiful supply of affordable private rented housing that can be offered to 
households that are threatened with homelessness or, when households are already 
homeless, to discharge the Council’s rehousing duty quickly and efficiently. 

 
4.4 With its focus on early intervention, the reorganisation will create specialist advisory 

roles that will work proactively and effectively with other services and organisations to 
prevent and reduce homelessness, minimise the amount of time that households 
spend in temporary accommodation and ensure that, when someone is leaving prison, 
hospital or care, they do so in a planned way.  

 
4.5 When it is implemented and the additional staff are in place, the reorganisation will 

help to reduce the use and cost of temporary accommodation and, in doing so, relieve 
the strain on the Council’s budget.   

 

5.    Reducing the use of temporary accommodation   
 
5.1 In order to reduce its use of temporary accommodation, the Council needs to slow 

down the rate at which homeless households move into temporary accommodation 
and minimise the amount of time they spend in it.  

 
5.2 To reduce the number of households moving into temporary accommodation, there 

needs to be an even greater emphasis on: 
 

 Preventing private tenants from becoming homeless by negotiating with 
private landlords and letting agents to persuade them to renew their 
tenancies or, where this is not possible, allow the tenants to stay for long 
enough to find somewhere else to live, with the Council’s help, before they 
become homeless; and 
 

 Preventing households from becoming homeless by persuading their 
families and friends to continue accommodating them (as ‘Homeless at 
Home’) until they can be rehoused. 

 
5.3 To minimise the amount of time that homeless households spend in temporary 

accommodation, there needs to be an even greater emphasis on: 
 

   Delaying the eviction of private tenants through negotiation with landlords 
and letting agents; 
 

   Delaying the eviction of council tenants;  

999



 

 

   Delaying the placement of households in temporary accommodation 

through negotiation with their families and friends;  

 

   Improving the flow of households through temporary accommodation by 

ensuring that all homelessness decisions (including homelessness review 

decisions) are accurate and issued as soon as practicable, and there is an 

adequate supply of suitable homes available when needed; 

 

   Ensuring that all temporary accommodation is withdrawn as soon as the 

Council’s duty to accommodate comes to an end;  

 

   Converting into permanent accommodation any HRA council homes that 

are being used as temporary accommodation and are suitable to offer to 

current occupants as a discharge of the Council’s homelessness duty; 

 

   Maximising the amount of suitable private rented accommodation offered 

to homeless households living in temporary accommodation as a 

discharge of the Council’s homelessness duty; 

 

   Maximising the number of HRA council homes and housing association 

homes that are let to homeless households; and 

 

   Ensuring that unexpected delays in the construction, repair or 

refurbishment of council and housing association homes do not result in 

homeless households spending an unreasonable amount of extra time in 

temporary accommodation. 

 

6.    Reducing the cost of temporary accommodation   

 

6.1 In order to reduce the cost of temporary accommodation, the Council needs to reduce 

its use of temporary accommodation and, at the same time, minimise the amount of 

accommodation it procures from private housing suppliers. 

 

6.2 To reduce the cost of temporary accommodation, there needs to be an even greater 

emphasis on: 

 

   Making optimum use of the Council’s HRA housing stock; 

 

   Improving the flow of homeless households through temporary 

accommodation by increasing the number of HRA council homes that are 

used as temporary accommodation; and  

 

   Purchasing or building a stock of temporary accommodation that is owned 

by the Council (in the General Fund and/or the Housing Revenue Account) 

and reduces the net cost to the Council. 

 

 
 

1000



 

 

7.    Assumptions and financial modelling   
 
7.1  Given the large number of variables, it is extremely difficult to accurately forecast the 

likely impact that each measure will have on the number of homeless households 
living in temporary accommodation.  

 
7.2  Assuming, however, that the number of households moving into, and out of, temporary 

accommodation in 2019/20 will be about the same as it has been in 2018/19, it is 
possible to estimate the likely impact that each measure will have on the use and cost 
of temporary accommodation. 

 
7.3  For the purpose of this Action Plan:  
 

 Realistic targets have been set for the increase in homelessness prevention 
activity (Actions 1, 2 and 3) and only 75% of this total number of 
homelessness preventions has been taken into account when forecasting the 
future, quarterly reduction in the use of temporary accommodation; 
 

 Quarterly targets have been set for the number of households living in 
temporary accommodation at the end of each Quarter (taking into account 
the increase in homelessness prevention activity and the amount of 
temporary accommodation that is converted into permanent accommodation) 
and these figures have been used as the basis for the assumptions about 
tenure type and the mix of property sizes; 

 

 Forecasts of expenditure on temporary accommodation are based on the 
end-of-quarter temporary accommodation targets, so do not take into account 
any reductions in expenditure that occurs as a result of the reduction in 
numbers during the Quarter.   

 

7.4   The Action Plan differentiates between ‘cost avoidance’ and ‘cost reduction’, 
and takes into account any additional expenditure that is likely to be needed in 
order to achieve the desired outcomes.  
 

7.5 Although the financial impact of each measure is expressed as a ‘full year’ 
figure, the extent to which costs are reduced or avoided will be expressed as a 
‘part year’ figure in the financial modelling for 2019/20.   

 

8.    OBJECTIVE 1 – Reducing the number of households moving  
                                  into temporary accommodation    
 
8.1 The ending of an Assured Shorthold Tenancy (AST) and the withdrawal of 

accommodation by family members and friends are the main causes of homelessness 
in Northampton and, between them, account for more than two thirds of the 
households that become homeless in the borough. 

 
8.2 As part of the reorganisation of the Housing Options & Advice Service, two specialist 

Private Sector Housing Advisers will actively engage with every private landlord and 
letting agent to prevent homelessness. They will also work closely with the Tenancy 
Relations Officer to prevent harassment, unlawful eviction and retaliatory eviction. 

 
 

1001



 

 

8.3 The reorganisation of the Housing Options & Advice Service also includes provision 
for a full-time Home Visiting Officer. This is an agile and highly proactive role that has 
been piloted during the past year and has proved particularly effective in persuading 
families and friends to avoid making households homeless, with little or no notice, in 
an unplanned way.  

 

ACTION 1: 
 
 

Prevent private tenants from becoming homeless                           
by negotiating with landlords and letting agents to               
persuade them to renew the tenancies 

 
8.4 Until the reorganisation is implemented, an assertive AST Sustainment Team 

(comprising a Housing Options Adviser and a Lettings Negotiator) will work proactively 
with private landlords and letting agents to secure the renewal of the tenancy for a 
period of at least 12 months.  

 
8.5 To support its negotiations, the AST Sustainment Team will be able to access ‘spend 

to save’ funding that enables tenancies to be renewed at a comparatively low cost.  
 
8.6 Although it is difficult to forecast the impact that ACTION 1 is likely to have on the 

number of tenants that become homeless – because some of this work is already 
being undertaken by the Housing Options & Advice Team – it is known that, in 
2016/17 and 2017/18, the Council accepted a duty to rehouse an average of 249 
households per annum that were living in private rented accommodation and became 
homeless when their AST was terminated. 

 
8.7 If the AST Sustainment Team is able to successfully negotiate the renewal of just 15% 

of these 249 tenancies, ACTION 1 will reduce, by an extra 37 tenants per annum, the 
number of private tenants who become homeless and move into temporary 
accommodation as a result of the termination of their AST.  

 

Financial impact of ACTION 1 
Taking into account the ‘spend to save’ expenditure, it is estimated that Action 1 will 
result in ‘full year’ cost avoidance of around £194,000.  

 
8.8 More homelessness will be prevented when the Housing Options & Advice Service is 

reorganised and two specialist Private Sector Housing Advisers will actively engage 
with every landlord and letting agent to prevent homelessness. 

 

ACTION 2: Prevent private tenants from becoming homeless                           
by negotiating with landlords and letting agents to 
persuade them to allow their tenants enough time to                       
find somewhere else to live, with the Council’s help,                      
before they become homeless 
 

 
8.9 Until the reorganisation is implemented, an assertive AST Sustainment Team 

(comprising a Housing Options Adviser and a Lettings Negotiator) will work proactively 
with private landlords and letting agents to persuade them to allow their tenants 
enough time to find somewhere else to live. 

 
8.10 To support its negotiations, the AST Sustainment Team will work with landlords and 

letting agents to access a supply of suitable private rented housing that can be let to 
private tenants that are unable to renew their existing tenancies.  

1002



 

 

8.11 In order to encourage letting agents to offer private rented accommodation to 
prospective tenants nominated by the Council, the AST Sustainment Team will use all 
means available to support the signing of the tenancy agreement. 

 
8.12 The Team will be able to access ‘spend to save’ funding that enables tenancies to be 

secured at a comparatively low cost.  
 
8.13 Although it is difficult to forecast the impact that ACTION 2 is likely to have on the 

number of tenants that become homeless – because some of this work is already 
being done by the Housing Options & Advice Team – it is known that, in 2016/17 and 
2017/18, the Council accepted a duty to rehouse an average of 249 households per 
annum that were living in private rented accommodation and became homeless when 
their AST was terminated. 

 
8.14 If the AST Sustainment Team is able to secure the renewal of 15% of those tenancies 

(see ACTION 1) and source suitable alternative private rented accommodation for 
15% of the remaining 212 households before they become homeless, ACTION 2 will 
reduce, by an extra 32 tenants per annum, the number of private tenants who become 
homeless and move into temporary accommodation.   

 

Financial impact of ACTION 2 
Taking into account the ‘spend to save’ expenditure, it is estimated that Action 2 will 
result in ‘full year’ cost avoidance of around £120,000.  

 
8.15 More homelessness will be prevented when the Housing Options & Advice Service is 

reorganised and the Social Lettings Agency staff can focus on maximising the supply 
of private rented housing to prevent homelessness.  

 

ACTION 3: Prevent homelessness by persuading applicants’ families 
and friends to continue accommodating   them (as part of the 
‘Homeless at Home’ scheme) and, in doing so, avoid the 
need to provide temporary accommodation 

 
8.16 Being asked to leave by family or friends (family licence terminations) is one of the 

main reasons for homelessness in Northampton and accounts for about one third of 
the Council’s annual homelessness acceptances.  

 
8.17 During 2018, the Home Visiting Officer successfully persuaded family and friends to 

continue accommodating a total of 73 households on the understanding that, as 
‘Homeless at Home’, those households will receive the same priority for rehousing as 
other homeless households. This has avoided the need for the Council to provide 
them with temporary accommodation. 

 
8.18 As the Home Visiting Officer role is included in the proposed restructure of the 

Housing Options & Advice Service, this service will continue to be provided. 
 
8.19 Although it is difficult to estimate the extent to which the Council may be able to 

increase the take-up of the ‘Homeless at Home’ scheme – because the Home Visiting 
Officer is already working to full capacity – it is known that, in 2017/18, the Council 
accepted a duty to rehouse 183 households that became homeless when they were 
asked to leave by their families or friends. 

1003



 

 

8.20 If the Housing Options & Advice Team is able to increase, by 20%, the number of 
households that become ‘Homeless at Home’, ACTION 3 will reduce, by an extra 15 
households per annum, the number of households that move into temporary 
accommodation when asked to leave by their families and friends.   

 

Financial impact of ACTION 3 

It is estimated that Action 3 will result in ‘full year’ cost avoidance of around £87,000.  

 

9.    OBJECTIVE 2 – Minimising the amount of time households  
                                  spend in temporary accommodation     
 
 

ACTION 4: 
 
 

Delay the eviction of private tenants through negotiation with 
private landlords and letting agents  

 
9.1 Until the reorganisation is implemented, an assertive AST Sustainment Team 

(comprising a Housing Options Adviser and a Lettings Negotiator) will work with 
private landlords and letting agents to persuade them to renew their tenancies or allow 
their tenants enough time to find somewhere else to live. 

 
9.2 It is hoped that, even when homelessness cannot be prevented, it will be possible for 

the AST Sustainment Team to negotiate with private landlords and letting agents to 
achieve at least an 8 week delay in homelessness, compared to when they would 
otherwise have become homeless. 

 
9.3 Although it is difficult to forecast the impact that ACTION 4 is likely to have on the 

number of private tenants that become homeless – because some of this work is 
already being done by the Housing Options & Advice Team – it is known that, in 
2016/17 and 2017/18, the Council accepted a duty to rehouse an average of 249 
households per annum that were living in private rented accommodation and became 
homeless when their AST was terminated. 

 
9.4 If the AST Sustainment Team is able to prevent an additional 69 private tenants from 

becoming homeless (see ACTION 1 and ACTION 2) and negotiate an 8 week delay in 
homelessness in 10% of the instances in which private tenants move into temporary 
accommodation, ACTION 4 will reduce, by 8 weeks, the amount of time that 18 
tenants spend in temporary accommodation.  

 

Financial impact of ACTION 4 

It is estimated that Action 4 will result in ‘full year’ cost avoidance of around £17,000.  

 
 
 

ACTION 5: Delay the eviction of council tenants   

 
9.5 Each year, Northampton Partnership Homes (NPH) evicts approximately 30 council 

tenants. Most of those who are in ‘priority need’ (usually families with children) 
subsequently apply to the Council for assistance under the homelessness legislation 
on the day that the bailiffs carry out the eviction. 

1004



 

 

9.6 As the Council will owe those households a ‘relief’ duty (under the Homelessness 
Reduction Act 2017), it will be required to provide them with temporary 
accommodation for 56 days. If it then decides that the household is ‘intentionally’ 
homeless, it will normally be required to provide temporary accommodation for at least 
another 28 days. 

 
9.7 Officers have agreed with NPH that, when council tenants are being evicted, the 

eviction will be postponed for 8 weeks to enable the tenants to continue living in the 
property during the period in which the ‘relief’ duty applies.   

 
9.8 Assuming that two thirds of the tenants who are evicted are in ‘priority need’, ACTION 

5 will reduce the amount of time that 20 tenants spend in temporary accommodation.  
 

Financial impact of ACTION 5 

It is estimated that Action 5 will result in ‘full year’ cost avoidance of around £19,000.  

 

ACTION 6: Improve the flow of households through temporary 
accommodation by ensuring that all homelessness decisions 
(including homelessness review decisions) are accurate and 
issued as soon as practicable 

 
9.9 By making decisions quickly and ensuring that all temporary accommodation is 

withdrawn when its housing duty ends, the Council will be able to reduce the number 
of homeless households living in temporary accommodation. 
 

9.10 It will do this by ensuring that the Homelessness Officers’ caseloads are manageable, 
all decisions are made as soon as practicable, and all review requests and appeals 
are dealt with promptly. 

 
9.11 The reorganisation of the Housing Options & Advice Service will provide the 

Homelessness Team with the extra staffing capacity it needs to ensure that all 
homelessness decisions are accurate and issued as soon as practicable. In the 
meantime, additional capacity will be provided through a specialist contractor to make 
up to 75 homelessness decisions in 2019/20.  

 
Financial impact of ACTION 6 
Taking into account the expenditure on the specialist contractor (which can be 
funded from the projected underspend in the Housing Options & Advice budget for 
the first Quarter of 2019/20), it is estimated that Action 6 will result in ‘full year’ cost 
avoidance of around £20,000. 

 
9.12 The reorganisation will provide the Homelessness Team with the extra staffing it 

requires to ensure that all homelessness decisions (including homelessness review 
decisions) are accurate and issued as soon as practicable. 
 
 
 
 
 

1005



 

 

ACTION 7: Convert into permanent accommodation any HRA council 
homes that are being used as temporary accommodation 
and are suitable to offer the current tenants as a discharge of 
the Council’s homelessness duty 
 

 
9.13 As at 25 February 2019, a total of 68 council homes were set aside for use as 

temporary accommodation. These comprised 30 one-bedroom homes, 21 two-
bedroom homes, 16 three-bedroom homes and one five-bedroom home. 
 

9.14 A desktop review of the circumstances of the households currently living in this 
temporary accommodation suggests that 25 of these homes are suitable to offer to the 
households living in them as a discharge of the Council’s homelessness duty. 

 
9.15 If these 25 units of temporary accommodation (4 one-bedroom homes, 12 two-

bedroom homes, 8 three-bedroom homes and 1 five-bedroom home) are converted to 
permanent accommodation, this will reduce the number of homeless households living 
in temporary accommodation. 

  
Financial impact of ACTION 7 
The primary purpose of Action 7 is to reduce the number of homeless households 
living in temporary accommodation. However, this action will avoid the void costs 
that would otherwise have been incurred if the households had moved to alternative 
accommodation and the homes had needed to be re-let.   

 

ACTION 8: Maximise the amount of suitable private rented 
accommodation that is offered to homeless households 
living in temporary accommodation in order to discharge the 
Council’s homelessness duty 

 
9.16 One of the key objectives of the proposed restructure of the Housing Options & Advice 

Service is to establish a dedicated Temporary Accommodation Team that will enable 
the Social Lettings Agency staff to revert back to their primary role of securing 
affordable private rented accommodation that can be used to prevent households from 
becoming homeless. 
 

9.17 During 2019/20, the primary focus of the Social Lettings Agency will be to meet the 
housing needs of private tenants who are threatened with homelessness due to the 
termination of their AST. However, as soon as it is able to increase the supply of 
suitable private rented accommodation, it will offer tenancies to homeless households 
living in temporary accommodation.  

 
9.18 The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 enables local authorities to discharge their 

homelessness duty by making a ‘suitable’ offer of a six months AST. However, it is 
proposed that the Council offers households a 12 months tenancy when it is 
discharging its duty to households that are living in temporary accommodation.  

 

Financial impact of ACTION 8 
It is assumed that the Social Lettings Agency will start offering private rented 
accommodation to homeless households in temporary accommodation, as a matter 
of routine, from 2020/21 onwards. No financial benefits have been assumed, 
therefore, for Action 8 in 2019/20.  

 

1006



 

 

ACTION 9: 
 

 

Maximise the number of council and housing association 

homes that are let to homeless households  

 

9.19 Between January and December 2018, a total of 881 affordable rented general needs 
properties were let to households on Northampton’s Housing Register.  
 

9.20 Of these 881 homes, 285 (32%) were let to homeless households (in the Emergency 
Band) for whom the Council had accepted a rehousing duty under the homelessness 
legislation, 177 (20%) were let to non-homeless households in the Emergency Band, 
302 (34%) were let to households in Band ‘A’ and 117 (13%) were let to households in 
Band ‘B’.  

 
9.21 It is proposed that, for a period of 12 months, the proportion of general needs 

properties that are let to homeless households in the Emergency Band – excluding the 
25 units of HRA temporary accommodation that will be let to occupants as permanent 
accommodation (see ACTION 6) – is increased by 57 (20%).  

 
9.22 If the number of homes available for letting during 2019/20 remains at the level it was 

in 2018, the number of homes let to homeless households in the Emergency Band is 
increased by 57 and the number of homes let to non-homeless households in the 
Emergency Band remains unchanged, the situation will be as follows: 

 

 342 (39%) will be let to homeless households in the Emergency Band 
 177 (20%) will be let to non-homeless households in the Emergency Band 
 362 (41%) will be let to households in Band ‘A’ and Band ‘B’ 

 
9.23 If the Annual Lettings Plan is amended in this way, ACTION 9 will reduce, by 57, the 

number of households living in temporary accommodation.   
 
9.24 In order to ensure that homeless households are actively considered for all suitable 

properties, a member of the Housing Options & Advice Team is now co-located with 
NPH’s Rehousing Team, one day a week. This has improved communication between 
NPH and the Council and between NPH and homeless households. 

 
Financial impact of ACTION 9 
It is estimated that Action 9 will result in ‘full year’ cost avoidance of around 
£355,000.  

 

ACTION 10: Ensure that unexpected delays in the construction, repair or 
refurbishment of council and housing association homes 
do not result in homeless households spending an 
unreasonable amount of extra time in temporary 
accommodation, unable to be considered for other homes 
 

 
9.25 One of the reasons why the use and cost of temporary accommodation in 

Northampton is higher than it needs to be is the fact that, when homeless households 
are offered a permanent HRA council home or their nomination to a housing 
association has been accepted, they cannot bid for – or be considered for – any other 
affordable rented accommodation that becomes available.  

 
 

1007



 

 

9.26 Although there are good reasons for doing this, one of the unintended consequences 
is that the homeless household can end up staying for an extended period in 
temporary accommodation – weeks, or even months, after they were due to move into 
their permanent home – due to unexpected delays in its construction, repair or 
refurbishment.  

 
9.27 It is proposed that, where it is expected that the household’s ‘moving in’ date will be 

delayed by 4 weeks or longer, NPH and the Council will review the situation and 
decide whether or not the offer / nomination should be withdrawn and the household 
offered, or nominated to, another home that is available.  

 
9.28 Although the cumulative impact that these unexpected delays are having on the use 

and cost of temporary accommodation has not been monitored, it is known that the 
delays in the construction, repair or refurbishment of council and housing association 
homes are resulting in some households spending months longer in temporary 
accommodation than they should have done. 

 

Financial impact of ACTION 10 

It is estimated that Action 10 will result in ‘full year’ cost avoidance of around £9,600.  

 

10.  OBJECTIVE 3 – Reducing the cost of temporary  
                                  accommodation     
 
 

ACTION 11: 
 

Make optimum use of the Council’s temporary 
accommodation 

 
10.1 Given the high cost of the temporary accommodation that the Council procures from 

private sector housing suppliers and the fact that any HRA council homes that are 
used as temporary accommodation are not available to let (as permanent homes) to 
households on Northampton’s Housing Register, careful consideration has been given 
to the way in which the Council’s stock of temporary accommodation is used. 
 

10.2 It is proposed that all households (single people and couples) that contain a pregnancy 
but not a child should be offered, as a matter of routine, suitable one-bedroom 
temporary accommodation – preferably one of the council homes that is let on a 
temporary basis – and continue to reside in that accommodation until the baby is born 
and they are then offered a two-bedroom affordable rented home or the tenancy of 
suitable private rented housing. 

 
10.3 It is proposed, also, that all households (single people and couples) that contain only 

one child and that child is under the age of 12 months, should be offered, as a matter 
of routine, suitable one-bedroom temporary accommodation – preferably one of the 
council homes that is let on a temporary basis – and continue to reside in that 
accommodation until they are offered a two-bedroom affordable rented home or the 
tenancy of suitable private rented housing.  

 
10.4 As at 25 February 2019, a total of 9 households (single people and couples) 

containing a pregnancy were living in nightly-purchased temporary accommodation at 
a net cost to the Council of around £4,300 per month. At the same time, a total of 11 
households (single people and couples) containing a child under the age of 12 months 
were living in nightly-purchased temporary accommodation at a net cost to the Council 
of around £5,200 per month. 

1008



 

 

10.5 These arrangements will make optimum use of the one-bedroom HRA council homes 
that are used as temporary accommodation and ensure as few households as 
possible are accommodated in two-bedroom nightly purchased accommodation.   

 

Financial impact of ACTION 11 

It is estimated that Action 11 will result in ‘full year’ cost avoidance of around 

£114,000.  

 

ACTION 12: 
 
 

Increase the number of HRA council homes that are used 
as temporary accommodation for homeless households  

 
10.6 As the rents charged for the council homes that are let as temporary accommodation 

are affordable for the households living in them, the impact that this type of 
accommodation has on the Council’s General Fund finances is minimal. 
 

10.7 Although careful consideration needs to be given to the impact that any increase in the 
number of HRA council homes used as temporary accommodation will have on other 
applicants on the Housing Register, substantial costs can be avoided if more HRA 
council homes are used as temporary accommodation.  

 

10.8 It is proposed that the number of permanent council homes used as temporary 
accommodation is increased to 120. If ACTION 6 is agreed, the number of council 
homes being used as temporary accommodation will be reduced to 43, so it will be 
necessary for NPH to set aside another 77 council homes to provide temporary 
accommodation for homeless households. 

 

10.9 Acknowledging the high demand for family homes in the borough and the fact that 
one-bedroom homes accounted for 50% of all affordable rented general needs 
housing that became available for letting in 2018, it is proposed that the stock of 120 
HRA council homes used as temporary accommodation should comprise 60 one-
bedroom homes, 35 two-bedroom homes, 21 three-bedroom homes, 3 four-bedroom 
homes and 1 five-bedroom home. 

 

10.10 If ACTION 6 and ACTION 12 are agreed and the property mix described in Paragraph 
10.8 is agreed, Northampton Partnership Homes will need to set aside another 77 
HRA council homes for use as temporary accommodation: 34 one-bedroom homes, 
26 two-bedroom homes, 13 three-bedroom homes, 3 four-bedroom homes and 1 five-
bedroom home.  

 

10.11 Although it is likely to take NPH around nine months to increase to 120 the number of 
HRA council homes used as temporary accommodation, this will enable the Council to 
avoid temporary accommodation costs of almost £490,000 per annum. 

 

Financial impact of ACTION 12 

It is estimated that Action 12 will result in ‘full year’ cost avoidance of around 

£490,000.  

 
  

 

1009



 

 

ACTION 13: 
 

 

Reduce the nightly rates that the Council pays to housing 

suppliers for the self-contained, nightly-purchased 

temporary accommodation it uses 

 

10.12 It is proposed that the Council issues a fresh invitation to housing suppliers (through 

the Dynamic Purchasing System) to provide self-contained, nightly-purchased 

temporary accommodation at nightly rates that are lower than the nightly rates that the 

Council is paying at the moment. 

 

10.13 The new nightly rates will be £34 for a one-bedroom home, £40 for a two-bedroom 

home, £46 for a three-bedroom home, £52 for a four-bedroom home and £58 for a 

five-bedroom home.  

 

10.14 Although the Council will continue to pay the housing suppliers the existing nightly 

rates for temporary accommodation that is currently occupied, the reduced nightly 

rates will apply to any vacant properties that are offered to the Council after the date 

specified in the Dynamic Purchasing System scheme. 

 

10.15 As the Council is currently unable to recover (in Housing Benefit and household 

contributions) the full cost of what it pays to the housing supplier, it will derive the full 

benefit of the proposed reduction in the nightly rates.    

 

Financial impact of ACTION 13 

Based on a portfolio of 60 newly-acquired nightly-purchased accommodation and an 

equal mix of two-bedroom homes and three-bedroom homes, Action 13 will result in 

‘full year’ savings of around £80,000.  

 

ACTION 14: Purchase or build a stock of temporary accommodation 

that will be owned by the Council (in the General Fund 

and/or the Housing Revenue Account) and reduce the                   

net cost to the Council 

 

10.16 Although the primary aim of the Action Plan is to reduce the number of households 

living in temporary accommodation to 200 by the end of March 2020, increasing the 

number of HRA council homes that are used as temporary accommodation will 

significantly reduce the Council’s use of nightly-purchased accommodation. 

 

10.17 If Actions 1-12 in this Action Plan are implemented, the number of households living in 

nightly-purchased accommodation should reduce by 70% (from 268 to 80) between 25 

February 2019 and 31 March 2020. 

 

10.18 Based on the mix of property sizes set out in the Action Plan, the net cost of those 80 

households in nightly-purchased accommodation will be £531,000 per annum.  

 

 

 

 

1010



 

 

10.19 Consideration is still being given to the role that private sector leasing can play in 

meeting the Council’s need for low-cost temporary accommodation. However, most 

landlords and investors are seeking much higher rental yields than the Council is 

offering and, of the properties that have been submitted to date, most do not meet the 

standards specified by the Council.  

 

10.20 One of the other options available to the Council is to lease or purchase modular 

homes that can be erected on one or more sites and, perhaps, moved around the 

borough. This is being actively considered and, if it offers a cost-effective solution, a 

comprehensive business case will be produced and submitted to Cabinet.  

 

10.21 Although consideration will need to be given to the size, type and number of homes 

purchased or built for use as temporary accommodation, it is clear that the Council will 

achieve substantial revenue savings from the creation of a sizeable stock of council-

owned, non-HRA temporary accommodation.  

 

10.22 For the purpose of illustration – a comprehensive business case would need to be 

prepared before such a scheme could proceed – it is assumed that the Council obtains 

a loan of between £5m and £10m from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) to 

purchase a total of 30 or 60 two and three-bedroom homes (with a ratio of 2:1 in 

favour of the two-bedroom homes) at an average cost of £150,000 for a two-bedroom 

home and £180,000 for a three-bedroom home. It is also assumed that: 

 

 The costs of purchasing, acquiring, refurbishing and/or converting the homes 

will be funded by a loan from the Public Works Loan Board; 

 The PWLB loan will be repayable over a period of 25 years; 

 The rental income received from the households in temporary 

accommodation will be used to fund the loan repayments and the cost of 

housing management, repairs and maintenance. This is based on Local 

Authority Housing Allowance Rates for Northampton; 

 No assumptions have been built into the modelling for any benefit the Council 

may receive through reduced Housing Benefit subsidy loss; 

 Stamp Duty Land Tax (SDLT) would be payable on completion of any 

purchases but has not been factored into the high-level modelling 

(approximately £5k - £7k per dwelling); 

 Major repairs to dwellings over their life has not been factored into the 

modelling and will need to be considered as part of the final business case 

for purchase; and 

 Allowances for marginal increase to Management costs and Repairs and 

Maintenance costs has been included. 

 

 

 

1011



 

 

10.24 Based on the current PWLB loan rate of 3% (over 25 years), the appraisal model 
currently used by the Council and NPH and taking into account the assumptions listed 
above, the Council could reduce its net expenditure by:  

 

Description of temporary 
accommodation 

Annual net 
cost                                                          
(council-
owned) 

Annual net 
cost                                                          
(private 
suppliers) 

Potential annual                         
savings 

 20 x two-bedroom homes 

 10 x three-bedroom homes 

£106k                            
per annum 

£205k                                         
per annum 

£99k                                            
per annum 

 40 x two-bedroom homes 

 20 x three-bedroom homes 

£212k                           
per annum 

£410k                                           
per annum 

£198k                                           
per annum 

 
10.25 As well as reducing the net cost of temporary accommodation in the immediate term, 

the creation of a stock of council-owned, non-HRA temporary accommodation will 
provide the Council with the flexibility to respond to any future reduction in the demand 
for temporary accommodation and: 

 

 Let the properties at market rents or sub-market rents to prevent 
homelessness and/or generate extra income for the General Fund; or 

 
 Sell the properties on the open market, or to the HRA, at market value. 

 

11.    Impact on the future use of temporary accommodation  

 

11.1 Although the huge number of variables make it extremely difficult to forecast the 

impact that the measures in this Action Plan are likely to have on the number of 

homeless households living in temporary accommodation and the way in which the 

size and type of accommodation changes over time, it is assumed (for modelling 

purposes) that the Council’s portfolio of temporary accommodation will be as follows 

at the end of each Quarter in 2019/20: 
 

 Amount and type of TA Size of TA in use 
End of Quarter 1 
(30 June 2019) 
 
Total: 283                     
 
(reduced by 41                             
since 25/2/19) 

 

NPH – 79 homes 
 
 

43 x 1 bedroom homes 
20 x 2-bedroom homes 
15 x 3-bedroom homes 
1 x 4-bedroom homes 
 

Nightly-purchased – 204 
 
 
 

56 x 1 bedroom homes 
96 x 2-bedroom homes 
48 x 3-bedroom homes 
4 x 4-bedroom home 

 
End of Quarter 2 
(30 Sept 2019) 
 
Total: 252                     
 
(reduced by 31                             
since 30/6/19) 

 

NPH – 103 homes 
 
 

60 x 1 bedroom homes 
25 x 2-bedroom homes 
15 x 3-bedroom homes 
2 x 4-bedroom homes 
1 x 5-bed home 
 

Nightly-purchased – 149 
 
 
 

33 x 1 bedroom homes 
75 x 2-bedroom homes 
38 x 3-bedroom homes 
3 x 4-bedroom homes 
 

1012



 

 

 Amount and type of TA Size of TA in use 
End of Quarter 3 
(31 Dec 2019) 
 
Total: 226                     
 
(reduced by 26                             
since 30/9/19) 

 

NPH – 120 homes 
 
 

60 x 1 bedroom homes 
35 x 2-bedroom homes 
21 x 3-bedroom homes 
4 x 4-bedroom homes 
1 x 5-bed home 
 

Nightly-purchased – 106 
 
 
 

27 x 1 bedroom homes 
55 x 2-bedroom homes 
22 x 3-bedroom homes 
2 x 4-bedroom homes 
 

End of Quarter 4 
(31 March 2020) 
 
Total: 200                    
 
(reduced by 26                             
since 31/12/19) 

 

NPH – 120 homes 
 
 

60 x 1 bedroom homes 
35 x 2-bedroom homes 
21  x 3-bedroom homes 
3 x 4-bedroom homes 
1 x 5-bed home 
 

Nightly-purchased – 80 
 
 
 

16 x 1 bedroom homes 
45 x 2-bedroom homes 
17 x 3-bedroom homes 
2 x 4-bedroom homes 
 

 
11.2 The graph below reflects the way in which the Council is seeking to reduce the 

overall number of households in temporary accommodation whilst, at the same time, 

increasing the number and proportion of HRA council homes that are used as 

temporary accommodation.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1013



 

 

12.    Impact on the future cost of temporary accommodation  

 
12.1 As explained in Section 7 of this Action Plan, realistic targets have been set for the 

increase in homelessness prevention activity, and any reductions in the number of 

households in temporary accommodation are taken into account (in the financial 

modelling) from the next Quarter rather than when they occur.    

 

12.2 Realistic assumptions are also made about the timescales within which NPH will be 

able to convert 25 of its temporary homes into permanent homes (six months) and 

increase, to 120, the number of HRA council homes that are used as temporary 

accommodation (nine months). The cost reductions resulting from this – and from 

any reduction in the use of temporary accommodation – will not be reflected in the 

financial modelling until the next Quarter.  

 

12.3 No allowance has been made for the impact that the reorganisation and expansion of 

the Housing Options & Advice Service is likely to have on the use and cost of 

temporary accommodation. Although the reorganisation and recruitment of the 

additional Officers will take time, its focus on homelessness prevention and early 

intervention will accelerate the rate at which the Council is able to reduce the use and 

cost of temporary accommodation. 

 
12.4 Detailed financial modelling has been undertaken by the Finance Team, based on 

the assumptions made in this Action Plan including the tables in Paragraphs 3.4 and 
11.1 and the Actions described in Sections 8, 9 and 10:  

 

2019/20 
 

2019/20  2020/21 

Estimated Cost  
Pre-Action Plan 

(000) 

Estimated Cost  
Post Action Plan  

(000) 

Estimated Cost  
Post Action Plan  

(000) 

1,759 1,318 531 

 
 Notes 
 

1. The 2019/20 Pre-Action Plan figures are based on the volumes as at 25 February 2019 
 

2. The 2019/20 Post-Action Plan figures are based on quarterly reductions in the volumes 
as set out in the Action Plan 

 
3. The 2020/21 Post-Action Plan reflects the full year effect of the Action Plan 

 
 

12.5 The cost avoidance / savings resulting from this Plan are reflected in the above 
figures and amount to £0.441m in 2019/20 and £1.228m in 2020/21. 

 
12.6 The above figures do not reflect the positive impact that reductions in the use and 

cost of temporary accommodation will have on housing benefit subsidy loss (around 
£176k in 2019/20 and £384k in 2020/21) and bad debt provision. 

 
12.7 The figures do not reflect, either, the significant cost reductions that are likely to be 

achieved by the Council if it reduces the nightly rates it pays to housing suppliers for 
nightly-purchased (Action 13) and purchasing or building additional homes for use as 
temporary accommodation (Action 14). 

1014


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Upton Country Park - Appointment of main contractor
	8 Local Development Scheme
	Northampton Local Development Scheme 20190403

	9 Local Plan
	Appendix A
	Appendix B Part I
	Tables
	Figures
	1 Introduction
	The Local Plan area
	Northampton Local Plan Part 2
	West Northamptonshire JCS
	Northampton Local Plan Part 2
	Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople Local Plan

	Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment
	Meeting the requirements of the SEA Regulations

	Habitats Regulations Assessment
	Structure of this Report

	2 Methodology
	Stages of SA
	Stage A: Scoping
	Review other relevant policies, plans and programmes to establish policy context
	Collect baseline information to establish sustainability context
	Identify sustainability issues
	Develop the SA framework
	Consult on the scope of the SA

	Stage B: Developing and refining options and assessing effects
	Identifying and assessing policy options
	Issues consultation
	Options consultation
	Policies in the Proposed Submission draft Local Plan Part 2

	Identifying and assessing site options
	Issues consultation and site identification and selection process
	Site Options consultation and additional site options
	Sites allocated by the Proposed Submission draft Local Plan Part 2


	Stage C: Preparing the Sustainability Appraisal report
	Stage D: Consultation on the Local Plan Part 2 and the SA Report
	Stage E: Monitoring implementation of the Local Plan
	Overarching approach to the assessment
	Types of effect
	Form of assessment and use of SA matrices

	Approach to the SA of site allocations
	Step 1: GIS-based assessment of all reasonable alternative sites
	Step 2: Additional qualitative assessment of sites likely to contribute to significant effects of the Local Plan Part 2
	Assumptions applied in the SA of site options
	Assumptions regarding distances


	Difficulties encountered

	3 Sustainability context for development in Northampton Borough
	Review of policies, plans, and programmes
	Relationship with other plans and programmes
	Environmental protection and other policy objectives
	Key international policies, plans, and programmes
	Key national policies, plans, and programmes


	Baseline information
	Key sustainability issues and their likely evolution without the Local Plan Part 2
	The SA framework

	4 SA findings for the Local Plan Part 2 vision and objectives
	Vision
	Objectives

	5 SA findings for policies and reasonable alternatives
	Sustainable development
	Policy 1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach


	Quality of new development
	Policy 2: Placemaking
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 3: Design
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 4: Amenity and Layout
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2
	SA findings for Option 3

	Policy 5: Sustainable Construction
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 6: Flood Risk and Water Management
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2


	Northampton regeneration strategy
	Policy 7: Supporting Northampton Town Centre
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 8: Regeneration Opportunities
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 9: Supporting and Safeguarding the University of Northampton Waterside Campus
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 10: Managing Hotel Growth
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 11: Development of Main Town Centre Uses
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2


	Housing
	Policy 12: Housing and Other Housing Led Allocation
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 13: Type and Mix of Housing
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 14: Delivering Houses in Multiple Occupation
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2


	Economy
	Policy 15: Safeguarding Existing Employment Sites
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 16: Supporting New Employment Developments and Schemes within and outside Safeguarded Sites
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2


	Centres, services and facilities
	Policy 17: New Retail Developments and Retail Impact Assessments
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 18: Residential Development on Upper Floors
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 19: Neighbourhood Centres
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 20: Community Services and Facilities
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 21: Childcare Provision
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 22: Sites for Burial Space
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2


	Built and natural environmental assets
	Policy 23: Sustaining and Enhancing Existing and Supporting the Creation of Northampton’s Green Infrastructure
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 24: Providing Open Spaces
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 25: Supporting and Enhancing Biodiversity
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)

	Policy 26: Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 27: Protection and Enhancements of Designated and Non-designated Heritage Assets
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2


	Movement
	Policy 28: Designing Sustainable Transport and Travel
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 29: Highway Network and Safety
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)

	Policy 30: Transport Schemes and Mitigation
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2

	Policy 31: Parking Standards
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)


	Infrastructure
	Policy 32: Infrastructure Delivery and Contributions
	Policy approaches considered and summary of sustainability effects
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach (Option 1)
	SA findings for Option 2



	6 SA findings for site specific allocations and reasonable alternatives
	SA results for reasonable alternative (unallocated) and allocated sites
	SA objective 1: Housing provision
	1a: Housing provision

	SA objective 2: Sustainable travel
	2a: Walking distance to sustainable transport links
	Res2b: Walking distance to services and facilities

	SA objective 3: Access to schools
	3a: Walking distance to schools

	SA objective 4: Health and well-being
	Res4a: Walking distance to healthcare facilities
	Res4b: Walking distance to open space and sports facilities
	Res4c: Exposure to low air quality or noise
	Emp4a: Noise and light impacts on sensitive receptors

	SA objective 5: Crime
	5a: Reduce crime

	SA objective 6: Economy
	Res6a: Growth of economy and availability of jobs
	Emp6a: Employment provision

	SA objective 7: Northampton Town Centre
	7a: Location of sites relative to town centre

	SA objective 8: Greenhouse gas emissions
	SA objective 9: Biodiversity and geodiversity
	9a: Proximity to designated ecological sites

	SA objective 10: Landscape and townscape
	10a: Presence of brownfield land, derelict buildings, and open space

	SA objective 11: Historic environment
	11a: Qualitative assessment of potential impact on heritage significance carried out by NBC officers by reference to Historic England guidance

	SA objective 12: Air pollution
	12a: Contribution to road traffic increases within AQMAs

	SA objective 13: Water resources and water quality
	13a: Location within a Source Protection Zone (SPZ) or on contaminated land

	SA objective 14: Flooding
	14a: Flood risk from rivers
	14b: Flood risk from groundwater
	14c: Surface water flood risk

	SA objective 15: Soils and minerals
	15a: Prioritising use of brownfield land
	15b: Avoiding loss of greenfield land
	15c: Avoiding loss of high quality agricultural land
	15d: Avoiding sterilisation of mineral resources
	15e: Avoiding risk from land instability

	SA objective 16: Waste
	16a: Avoiding conflicts with waste management sites


	SA results for allocation policies
	Policy 34: Northampton Railway Station (LAA0288), Railfreight and adjoining sites (LAA0333)
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach

	Policy 35: Martin’s Yard Extension (LAA1005) – employment
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission approach

	Policy 36: The Green, Great Houghton (LAA1098) – housing
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission Local Plan

	Policy 37: Greyfriars (LAA1113)
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission Local Plan

	Policy 38: Ransome Road (LAA1139)
	SA findings for the Proposed Submission Local Plan



	7 Cumulative effects
	SA Objective 1: Help make suitable housing available and affordable according to the needs of Northampton’s population
	SA Objective 2: Reduce the need to travel within, to and from Northampton by providing easy access to jobs, services and facilities and to sustainable travel alternatives to the car.
	SA Objective 3: Provide easy access to primary and secondary schools by sustainable modes
	SA Objective 4: Improve the health and well-being of Northampton’s residents, promoting healthy lifestyles and reduce health inequalities
	SA Objective 5: Reduce crime and the fear of crime in Northampton
	SA Objective 6: Facilitate the growth of Northampton’s economy and the availability of jobs
	SA Objective 7: Maintain and strengthen the character and vitality of Northampton town centre
	SA Objective 8: Minimise Northampton’s greenhouse gas emissions
	SA Objective 9: Protect and enhance Northampton’s biodiversity and geodiversity
	SA Objective 10: Protect and enhance the quality and character of Northampton’s landscape and townscape
	SA Objective 11: Conserve and enhance Northampton’s historic environment, heritage assets and their settings
	SA Objective 12: Minimise air pollution in and around Northampton, particularly in the AQMAs.
	SA Objective 13: Encourage sustainable water management
	SA Objective 14: Reduce the risk of flooding to people and property in Northampton
	SA Objective 15: Encourage the efficient use of land in Northampton and protect its soils and mineral resources.
	SA Objective 16: Facilitate sustainable waste management
	Recommendations

	8 Monitoring
	Monitoring

	9 Next steps
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Geography
	Population
	Housing
	Social inclusion and deprivation
	Health
	Deprivation
	Crime
	Education

	Employment and economic activity
	Religion
	Culture, leisure and recreation
	Transport
	Road
	Bus
	Cycling
	Rail
	Air
	Travel to work patterns

	Climate change and energy
	Landscape
	Biodiversity and geology
	Historic environment
	Air
	Water
	Flood risk
	Soils
	Minerals
	Waste
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7



	Appendix B Part II
	Tables
	Figures
	1 Introduction
	Background to the preparation of the Local Plan Part 2
	The requirement to undertake Habitats Regulations Assessment of Development Plans
	Stages of Habitats Regulations Assessment
	Recent case law changes
	Previous HRA work
	Review of Local Plan (Part 2) site options (2017)
	HRA of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (2007-2013)

	Structure of the HRA report

	2 The Local Plan
	3 HRA methodology
	Screening
	Identifying types of potential impact from the Local Plan
	Identifying European sites that may be affected
	Assessment of ‘likely significant effects’ of the Local Plan
	In-combination effects

	Appropriate Assessment
	Assessment scope
	Assessing the effects on site integrity


	4 HRA screening
	Is the Local Plan of a type that could possibly have any (positive or negative) effect on a European site?
	Is the Local Plan directly connected with or necessary to the management of any European sites?
	Which European sites could be potentially adversely affected?
	Is the Local Plan likely to have a significant adverse effect on any European site alone?
	Is the Local Plan likely to have a significant adverse effect on any European site in combination with other plans or projects?

	5 Appropriate Assessment
	Physical habitat loss or damage
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Loss of supporting habitat
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Changes to bird sightlines
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Fragmentation
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Non-physical disturbance
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Recreation pressure
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Pet predation
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Changes to water supply and water level management
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Changes to water quality
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Air pollution
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site

	Assessment summary
	Rutland Water SPA and Ramsar site
	Changes to water supply and water level management

	Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits SPA and Ramsar site
	Physical habitat loss of damage
	Loss of supporting habitat
	Changes to bird sightlines
	Non-physical disturbance
	Recreation pressure
	Pet predation
	Changes to water supply and water level management
	Changes to water quality
	Air pollution



	6 Conclusions
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4


	Appendix C Housing Technical Paper - Appendix A
	In cabinet
	Appendix C  Housing Technical Paper - Appendix B
	Appendix C Housing Technical Paper - Appendix C
	Northampton Main Map
	Northampton Inset Map

	10 Conservation Area Appraisal
	6.1 Cabinet report - Barrack Road Conservation Area Appraisal
	6.2 Cabinet report -Barrack Road Appendix A
	6.3 Cabinet report - Barrack Road  Appendix B
	2.   Planning policy context
	Conservation areas sit within national planning legislation, regional policy and local planning policies.
	3. Assessment of special interest
	6.1.2 The Cathedral and Marriott Street
	6.1.3 Kingsthorpe Road
	6.4 Key views and vistas
	6.5 Public Realm
	6.6 Greenery
	9.2 Windows and front wall database
	9.3 Unauthorised development

	9.4 Demolition in Conservation Areas
	9.5 Listed Building Consent
	9.6 Buildings of Local Interest
	9.7 Trees
	9.8 Design guidance
	Appendix 1:
	The Northampton Borough Council (Permitted Development: Barrack Road Area) Direction 2000 – Direction Made Under Article 4(2)
	First Schedule
	Second Schedule

	Appendix 2:
	Chronological Development of the Barrack Road Conservation Area
	Roman Catholic Cathedral, Barrack Road  circa 1825 - 1960.
	Adelaide Terrace, Barrack Road  circa 1832 - 42.
	Leicester Terrace, Barrack Road  circa 1832 - 51.
	St George’s Place, Kingsthorpe Road  circa 1855 - 70.
	Elysium Terrace, Kingsthorpe Road  circa 1855 - 90.
	Primrose Hill, Kingsthorpe Road  circa 1855 - 1901.
	Langham Place, Barrack Road  circa 1864 - 69.
	The Poplars, Barrack Road  circa 1865.
	Marriott Street  circa 1869 - 90.
	St George’s Terrace, St George’s Avenue  circa 1869 - 90.
	Bosworth College, Barrack Road  circa 1876.
	St Paul’s Terrace, Kingsthorpe Road  circa 1884.
	Leicester Parade, Barrack Road  circa 1884 - 1903.
	Primrose Hill Congregation Church, Kingsthorpe Road  circa 1903.
	The Barratt Shoe Factory, Kingsthorpe Road  circa 1913.

	Appendix 3:
	Listed Buildings in the Barrack Road Conservation Area
	The Poplars, Barrack Road - Listed Grade II
	9-28 Langham Place, Barrack Road - Listed Grade II (Group Value)
	1-3 Leicester Terrace, Barrack Road - Listed Grade II (Group Value)
	4-7 Leicester Terrace, Barrack Road - Listed Grade II (Group Value)
	8 Leicester Terrace, Barrack Road - Listed Grade II (Group Value)
	1-3 Adelaide Terrace, Barrack Road- Listed Grade II (Group Value)
	5 Leicester Parade, Barrack Road - Listed Grade II
	Bosworth College, Barrack Road - Listed Grade II
	Roman Catholic Cathedral of St Mary & St Thomas, Barrack Road - Listed Grade II
	Barratt Shoe Factory, Kingsthorpe Road - Listed Grade II

	Appendix 4:
	Locally Important Buildings in the Barrack Road Conservation Area
	1-8 Langham Place, Barrack Road
	1-4 Leicester Parade, Barrack Road
	The Leicester University Centre, Barrack Road
	Cathedral House, Kingsthorpe Road
	Primrose Hill Congregational Church, Kingsthorpe Road
	1-8 St Paul's Terrace, Kingsthorpe Road
	Bishop’s House, Marriott Street

	Appendix 5:
	Useful Contacts


	11 Reducing the use and cost of Temporary Accommodation



